

Traffic Safety Administration

DOT HS 811 456



April 2011

# Digest of Impaired Driving and Selected Beverage Control Laws

Twenty-Fifth Edition Current as of March 1, 2010

#### DISCLAIMER

This publication is distributed by the U.S. Department of Transportation, National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, in the interest of information exchange. The opinions, findings, and conclusions expressed in this publication are those of the authors and not necessarily those of the Department of Transportation or the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. The United States Government assumes no liability for its contents or use thereof. If trade names, manufacturers' names, or specific products are mentioned, it is because they are considered essential to the object of the publication and should not be construed as an endorsement. The United States Government does not endorse products or manufacturers.

## **Table of Contents**

Introduction	
Summary Charts of Key Provisions of State Impaired Driving and Selected Beverage Control Laws	ix
ALABAMA	
ALASKA	10
ARIZONA	21
ARKANSAS	33
CALIFORNIA	45
COLORADO	62
CONNECTICUT	74
DELAWARE	83
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA	94
FLORIDA	104
GEORGIA	116
HAWAII	128
IDAHO	139
ILLINOIS	150
INDIANA	162
IOWA	173
KANSAS	183
KENTUCKY	193
LOUISIANA	204
MAINE	215
MARYLAND	225
MASSACHUSETTS	235
MICHIGAN	246
MINNESOTA	259
MISSISSIPPI	270
MISSOURI	280
MONTANA	289
NEBRASKA	298
NEVADA	310
NEW HAMPSHIRE	320
NEW JERSEY	330
NEW MEXICO	340
NEW YORK	349
NORTH CAROLINA	361
NORTH DAKOTA	371
OHIO	380
OKLAHOMA	393
OREGON	403
PENNSYLVANIA	413
PUERTO RICO	423
RHODE ISLAND	
SOUTH CAROLINA	
SOUTH DAKOTA	
TENNESSEE	459
TEXAS	469

UTAH	
VERMONT	
VIRGINIA	
WASHINGTON	
WEST VIRGINIA	
WISCONSIN	528
WYOMING	

#### **INTRODUCTION**

The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration is responsible for reducing vehiclerelated fatalities and injuries on our Nation's highways. This digest reports the status of State laws that are concerned with impaired driving offenses and alcoholic beverage control. It is extensively footnoted and contains comprehensive information on critical impaired driving laws for all 50 States, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico.

It is designed to be an easily accessible reference to all States' current laws on alcohol and other issues of impaired driving. The digest contains a selection of the most important laws pertaining to impaired driving for each State, compiled in a consistent format to make research simpler. Each State entry includes: Basis for a DWI Offense; Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration; Adjudication of Driving While Intoxicated (DWI) charges; Sanctions; Administrative Licensing Actions; Ignition Interlock; Sobriety Checkpoints; DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles; Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI; Minimum Age Alcohol Laws, Dram Shop Laws and Related Actions, and others.

#### **DEFINITIONS**

#### Administrative Per Se Law:

This allows a State's driver licensing agency to suspend or revoke a driver's license based on a specific blood alcohol concentration (BAC) or on some other criteria related to alcohol or drug use and driving. Such action is completely independent of any licensing action related to a driver's conviction for an impaired driving offense. These laws usually cover both resident and nonresident drivers. However, for nonresident drivers, the action would be limited to denying driving privileges in the sanctioning State.

#### Commercial Motor Vehicle:

For impaired driving offense purposes, most States define a "commercial motor vehicle" (CMV) as one that (1) has a gross vehicle weight  $\ge 26,001$  pounds; (2) is designed to transport 16 or more people including the driver; or (3) transports hazardous materials.

#### Dram Shop Laws:

Statutory or case law that provides that a person who serves alcoholic beverages to an intoxicated individual may be liable for the damages caused by such individual. In some States, a server may also be liable for injuries sustained by the intoxicated individual.

#### <u>DWI</u>, <u>DUI</u>, and <u>Impaired Driving Offense</u>: These are generally "non-legal" terms that refer to <u>any</u> criminal action related to driving a motor vehicle while "illegal per se" or while either impaired by, under the influence of, or intoxicated by alcohol or other drugs.

#### Happy Hour Laws:

For the purposes of this digest, this is a statute or regulation that prohibits the sale of alcoholic beverages below the price per quantity normally charged for such beverages.

#### Vehicular Homicide:

"Vehicular homicide" is the unlawful and unintentional death caused by a person while violating laws related to motor vehicle operation.

#### Illegal Per Se Law:

A State law that makes it a criminal offense to operate a motor vehicle: (1) at or above a specified alcohol concentration in the blood, breath, or urine; or (2) with any amount of a drug, usually a controlled (illegal) substance, in the body.

#### Implied Consent Law:

This type of law provides that a person gives implied consent to submit to a test for either an alcohol or drug content in his/her body if he/she is arrested or otherwise detained for a DWI offense. If the person refuses to submit to such a test, the law usually provides that his/her driving privileges will be either suspended or revoked. The results obtained from such a test are usually admissible into evidence at a DWI trial.

#### Intoxicating Liquor:

A number of State laws provide that it is illegal to operate a vehicle while under the influence of "intoxicating liquor" (instead of under the influence of alcohol). However, the term "intoxicating liquor" is <u>not</u> defined in many of the State motor vehicle codes that provide for this type of impaired driving offense. Nevertheless, such terms usually refer to <u>all</u> types of alcoholic beverages (i.e., beer, wine, and distilled spirits). See the definitions of "alcoholic liquor," "intoxicating liquor," and "liquor" in Black's Law Dictionary, Sixth Edition, West Publishing Company.

#### Mandatory Sanctions:

A "mandatory sanction" means either a criminal sanction (e.g., jail, fine, or community service) or an administrative licensing action (e.g., license suspension or revocation) <u>must</u> be imposed by either a court or an administrative agency. That is, statutory law specifically requires that such sanction be imposed.

#### Preliminary Breath Test.

A "preliminary breath test" (PBT) refers to a breath test given by a law enforcement officer to a suspected impaired driver <u>prior</u> to an arrest for an impaired driving offense. The results of this test are used along with other evidence by the officer to determine if there is "probable cause" to arrest the driver for such an offense. Usually, the results of a PBT cannot be admitted into evidence.

#### Pre-Sentence Investigation Law:

As used in this publication, this term means a law that provides that a person who has been convicted of an impaired driving offense undergo an evaluation to determine if he/she has either an alcohol or drug abuse problem prior to sentencing.

#### Presumption:

The term "presumption" under "Basis for a DWI Charge" refers to a specific alcohol concentration in a driver's blood, breath, or urine at or above which it <u>may be</u> presumed that he/she was driving in violation of the "Standard DWI Offense."

#### Off-Highway Vehicles:

Not reported in this digest are State laws that prohibit the operation of non-highway vehicles (e.g., snowmobiles, all-terrain vehicles (ATVs), or other off-road vehicles (ORVs) either while under the influence of alcohol or drugs or at or above a specific blood alcohol concentration.

#### Sanctions:

Unless otherwise stated, the sanctions are the same for all alcohol and drugged driving offenses (e.g., driving while under the influence of either alcohol or drugs, illegal *per se*, et al.).

The sanctions listed in the digest for criminal offenses are those that would normally apply to adult offenders. However, it should be noted that for juvenile offenders (those under 18 years old), the law may limit a court's ability to assign such punishment. Such offenders also may be subject to other sanctions for a violation of criminal laws that may not be listed in this digest.

Nevertheless, this digest does report the sanctions (criminal or administrative) related to State laws that have special provisions that make it illegal for a young person (e.g., a person under 21 years old) to operate a motor vehicle either (1) at or above a specific alcohol concentration, which is below the level used to determine adult intoxication; or (2) with any measurable amount of alcohol or drugs in his/her body. However, the digest does not generally report the sanctions (criminal or administrative) associated with State laws that prohibit a person who is under the legal drinking age from consuming alcoholic beverages. Please note that the sanctions for fines listed in this digest do not include court costs.

#### LEGISLATIVE SUBJECT AREAS

Basis for a DWI Charge (e.g., Under the Influence of Alcohol or Drugs, Illegal Per Se, et al.) Chemical Breath Tests Preliminary Evidentiary (Implied Consent Law)

#### CHEMICAL TESTS OF OTHER SUBSTANCES FOR ALCOHOL/DRUGS UNDER THE IMPLIED CONSENT LAW

Adjudication of Alcohol Driving Offenses **Pre-Sentence** Investigation Mandatory Adjudication Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statutes Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test Sanctions Following a Conviction for an Alcohol Driving Offense Ignition Interlock Sobriety Checkpoints Homicide by Vehicle Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was an Alcohol Driving Offense Habitual Offender Laws **BAC** Tests Required for Persons Killed as a Result of a Traffic Crash Laws Establishing Minimum Ages Concerning the Use of Alcoholic Beverages Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions Laws Concerning Criminal/Administrative Actions Against Employees/Owners of Licensed Liquor Establishments Who Sell Alcoholic Beverages to People who Are Under the Legal Drinking Age or Who Are Intoxicated Laws Prohibiting "Happy Hours" Laws Prohibiting the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Motor Vehicle Laws Prohibiting the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in Motor Vehicles

#### **ABBREVIATIONS and SYMBOLS**

- ALR = administrative license revocation BAC = blood alcohol concentration BrAC = breath alcohol concentration CDL = commercial driver's license CMV = commercial motor vehicle DUI = driving under the influence DWI = driving while intoxicated EMS = emergency medical services mand = mandatoryN/A = not applicablen.a. = not availableSusp = suspendedRev = revokedUrAC = urine alcohol concentration > = greater than < = less than  $\geq$  = greater than or equal to
- $\leq$  = less than or equal to

#### OVERVIEW NARRATIVE OF KEY PROVISIONS OF STATE IMPAIRED DRIVING LAWS

State statutes or regulations that are concerned with impaired driving violations, i.e.., DWI or DUI, typically include several major components: the basis for an offense; requirements for chemical breath tests for alcohol concentration; the adjudication of charges; sanctions; administrative licensing actions (applied pre- and postconviction); and other criminal actions related to DWI. Details for each State's statutes or regulations pertaining to each of these components are provided in the State-by-State analysis of this document.

#### THE BASIS FOR A DWI CHARGE

The basis of a charge for driving while intoxicated for each State is established, by statute, to be the level of blood or breath alcohol content at or above which a person is presumed to be under the influence of alcohol. BAC, measured in grams per deciliter (g/dL), is widely considered to be the most accurate measurement of alcohol concentration in a person's blood, and as such, the most reliable measure of alcohol impairment. As of 2005, all States, the District of Columbia. and Puerto Rico have enacted illegal per se laws, making it illegal to operate a motor vehicle when the person's BAC is at or above .08 g/dL, the quantity of alcohol in the blood. The basis for a DWI charge in each State also sets forth the conditions under which a person is *presumed* to be under the influence of alcohol; also set at or above .08 g/dL in all States. Lastly, the statutes in many States also provide for a determination of DUI when a person is found to have been under the influence of substances other than alcohol, e.g., any illegal or controlled substance which impairs one's mental and/or physical faculties

Several States have statutes establishing a lower BAC level for DWI for certain groups of individuals. For example, school bus drivers, day care vehicle operators, and people under the age of 21 in Alabama are presumed to be under the influence of alcohol if found to have a BAC at or above .02 g/dL.

## SANCTIONS FOR FIRST and REPEAT OFFENDERS

Forty-one States and DC have *administrative license revocation* laws, which provide for the administrative suspension of a driver's license, prior to conviction for DWI. The driver's license is suspended by the States' licensing agency prior to being convicted for DWI when the driver's BAC test result is found to be at or above .08 g/dL, or the driver refuses to submit to chemical testing. For those States with ALR laws, first-time DWI offenders are subject to an administrative license suspension ranging from 7 days in Virginia to 1 year in Georgia.

First-time DWI offenders, upon conviction, are often subject to additional licensing sanctions (suspension or revocation), jail time, and/or fines, and can receive other sanctions such as community service, vehicle impoundment, alcohol education and treatment, etc., independent of the administrative license suspension or revocation that occurs prior to conviction. Information on the minimum sanctions that may be imposed upon first-time DWI offenders, upon conviction, in each State, is provided in the Key Provisions of State Impaired Driving Laws Summary Tables included in this document.

Under 23 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 1275, States are required to enact and enforce laws establishing minimum sanctions for repeat DWI offenders, to avoid the transfer of Federalaid highway funds. A repeat offender is defined in 23 CFR § 1275 (Repeat Intoxicated Driver Laws) as "...a person who has been convicted of DWI or DUI more than once in any five-year period." To avoid the penalty of the transfer of Federal-aid highway funds, States must enact and enforce laws providing the following as sanctions for second or subsequent DWI offenders: a minimum license suspension of 1 year; the impoundment, immobilization, or installation of an ignition interlock on a driver's motor vehicle; an alcohol assessment and treatment as appropriate; and not less than 5 days of imprisonment or 30 days of community service. Information on the sanctions that may be imposed in each State upon convicted repeat DWI offenders is provided in the Key Provisions of State Impaired Driving Laws Summary Tables, included in this document. Please also refer to the State-by-State analysis portion of this document for the entire range of specific sanctions for all DWI offenders in individual States.

#### **HIGH-BAC OFFENDERS**

A number of States have laws establishing enhanced sanctions for those DWI offenders considered to be high-BAC offenders, including increased jail time, longer suspension periods, use of ignition interlocks, higher levels of fines, etc. High-BAC offenders are defined by the States, with levels ranging from BACs of .15 or greater, to .20 or greater. Offenders with high BACs are at greater risk than other impaired drivers of being involved in alcohol-impaireddriving fatal crashes. Specific information on enhanced sanctions for high-BAC offenders in each State is provided in the Key Provisions of State Impaired Driving Laws Summary Tables and the State-by-State analysis portion of this document

#### SOBRIETY CHECKPOINTS

Sobriety checkpoints are used in many States as part of a comprehensive law enforcement approach aimed at reducing impaired driving, by increasing the public's perception of being apprehended in violation of DWI laws. Sobriety checkpoints provide law enforcement officers with an opportunity to identify and assess drivers for the possibility of alcohol impairment at one or more established points on a roadway. Moreover, they are designed to be highly visible, with the intention of creating general deterrence for the public, so that drivers are deterred from driving impaired. Vehicle checkpoint campaignns are often highly publicized prior to being used. Vehicles are stopped during a sobriety checkpoint using a random pattern, such as every fourth or fifth vehicle. If law enforcement has reason to believe that the driver has been drinking, the driver is given Standardized Field Sobriety Testing, followed by chemical testing to determine whether the driver is impaired by alcohol and/or other drugs. While many States do not have statutes specifically pertaining to the use of sobriety checkpoints, most permit their use. Please refer to Key Provisions of State Impaired Driving Laws Summary Tables and to the State-by-State analysis portion of this document for details on the case law governing the use of sobriety checkpoints in specific States.

#### **IGNITION INTERLOCKS**

Under certain conditions, DWI offenders in 49 States and the District of Columbia may be required to equip their vehicles with ignition interlock devices. When an ignition interlock is installed on a vehicle, the driver breathes into the device, and it analyzes the driver's breath and renders the vehicle inoperable if the breath sample indicates that the driver has been drinking. The installation of an ignition interlock device is mandatory upon conviction for DWI in some States and discretionary in other States. For the purposes of this document, a State's ignition interlock statute is characterized as "permissive" if it provides for the installation of an ignition interlock as an option in DWI sentencing, either in lieu of, or in addition to other sanctions (jail, fines, community service) or "mandatory" if the installation of an ignition interlock device is required for DWI offenders. Please refer to the State-by-State analysis of this document for details regarding the ignition interlock laws for each individual State.

#### SOCIAL HOST VIOLATIONS

Social host laws are those State laws assigning criminal or civil responsibility for providing alcohol to those persons obviously intoxicated and in so doing, endangering their lives and/or the lives of others or providing alcohol to those under the legal drinking age of 21 and, in so doing, endangering the welfare of minor(s). While the definition of a social host and the laws governing them vary from State to State, many States have laws establishing enhanced sanctions for violating social host laws, particularly in cases where those to whom the alcohol was served are subsequently involved in motor vehicle crashes resulting in fatality or injury. Please refer to Key Provisions of Impaired Driving Laws Summary Tables and the State-by-State analysis of this document for details regarding such legislation in each individual State.

## OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIONS RELATED TO DWI

Most States also have laws defining other specific criminal actions related to DWI under certain circumstances or conditions. Actions such as vehicular homicide; driving while one's license is suspended for DWI; and operating a commercial motor vehicle while under the influence are among those considered to be criminal actions related to DWI. Drivers found to be in violation of laws pertaining to other criminal actions related to DWI are often subject to enhanced sanctions, including, but not limited to: license revocation, jail time, vehicle forfeiture, and more. Details regarding the specific actions considered to be criminal related to DWI and the sanctions associated with these actions are provided in the State-by-State analysis of this document.

### Summary Charts of Key Provisions of State Impaired Driving and Selected Beverage Control Laws

	Minimum Sanctions for 1 <sup>st</sup> Conviction <sup>d</sup>	Sanctions for Administrative Sanctions for		Minimum Sa Repeat Of		Minimum Sanctions for High-BAC Offenders <sup>f</sup>	
State	Jail Time and/or Fine	ALR Law <sup>g h</sup>	Minimum Licensing Sanctions Prior to Conviction	Jail Time and/or Fine	Other <sup>i</sup>	What is the High-BAC Level? <sup>j</sup>	Additional Minimum Sanctions for High- BAC Offenders (Jail Time and/or Fine or Other)
AL	Not more than 1 Year and/or \$600 to \$2,100	Yes	Suspension—90 days (mandatory)	Not more than 1 Year (5 days mandatory) and \$1,100 to \$5,100	Not less than 30 days community service	No Statutory Provision	N/A
AK	Not less than 72 hours and not less than \$1500 (1 Year and \$10,000 max.)	Yes	Suspension—90 days (mandatory)	Not less than 20 days and not less than \$3,000 (1 year and \$10,000 max.)	At least 120 hours community service	.16 and above	6 months ignition interlock for BAC ≥ .16 but < .24 1 year ignition interlock for BAC ≥ .24
AZ	Not more than 6 months and not more than \$2,500	Yes	Suspension—90 days (mandatory)	90 days to 6 months and \$2,500 <sup>1</sup>	30 hours of commu- nity service	.15 and above	BAC ≥ .15 - < .20—30-120 days and \$250-\$500; BAC ≥ .20—45-180 days and \$500-\$1,000
AR	24 Hours to 1 Year and \$150 - \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 6 months	7 days to 1 Year and \$400 – \$3,000	Not less than 30 days community service (mandatory)	No statutory provision	N/A
CA	48 hours and \$390 (mandatory)	Yes	Suspension—4 months (mandato- ry)	96 hours and \$390 (mandatory)	Community service, assessments, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A
со	5 days to 1 Year and \$600 - \$1,000	Yes	Revocation— 9 months	70 days to 1 Year and \$900 - \$1,500	56 hours to 112 hours community service	.20 and above	90 days to 1 Year and \$1,000 - \$1,500
СТ	Not more than 6 months and \$500 - \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 90 days	Not more than 2 Years and \$1,000 - \$4,000	100 hours communi- ty service (mandato- ry)	No statutory provision	N/A

Table 1. Key Provisions of State Impaired Driving and Selected Beverage Control Laws through March 1, 2010<sup>a, b, c</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Plus two mandatory assessments based on a percentage of the fine imposed.

	Minimum Sanctions for 1 <sup>st</sup> Conviction <sup>d</sup>	Sanctions for Administrative Sanctions for			nctions for fenders <sup>e</sup>	Minimum Sanctions for High-BAC Offenders <sup>f</sup>	
State	Jail Time and/or Fine	ALR Law <sup>g h</sup>	Minimum Licensing Sanctions Prior to Conviction	Jail Time and/or Fine	Other <sup>i</sup>	What is the High-BAC Level? <sup>j</sup>	Additional Minimum Sanctions for High- BAC Offenders (Jail Time and/or Fine or Other)
DE	Not more than 6 months and \$500- \$1,500	Yes	Revocation—3 months mandato- ry)	60 days to 18 months and \$750-\$2,500	Community service, etc.	.15 and above	Not specified
DC	Not more than 90 days and \$300	Yes	Suspension— 2 days	5 days to 1 Year and \$1,000 - \$5,000	At least 30 days community service	.20 and above	5 days to 25 days (man- datory)
FL	Not more than 6 months and \$500 - \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 6 months	10 days to 9 months and \$1,000 - \$2,000	Community service, probation, fees, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A
GA	10 days to 12 months and \$300 - \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 1 Year	90 days to 12 months and \$600 - \$1,000	30 days community service (mandatory)	No statutory provision	N/A
HI	48 hours to 5 days and \$150 - \$1,000	Yes	Revocation— 3 months	5 – 14 days and \$500 - \$1,500	240 hours communi- ty service	No statutory provision	N/A
ID	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 90 days	10 days to 1 Year and not more than \$2,000	Restitution, etc.	.20 or greater	10 days (mandatory)
IL	Up to 1 Year and \$2,500	Yes	Suspension— 6 months	5 days to 1 Year and \$2,500	5 days jail or 240 hours community service	.16 and above	(please refer to Illinois portion of digest)
IN	Not more than 60 days and not more than \$500	Yes	Suspensionup to 180 days	6 months to 3 Years and not more than \$10,000	10 days or 360 hours of community service	.15 and above	Not more than 1 Year and not more than \$5,000
IA	48 hours to 1 Year and \$1,250	Yes	Revocation— 180 days	7 days to 2 Years and \$1,875 - \$6250	Restitution, fees, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A
KS	48 hours to 6 months and \$500 - \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 30 days	90 days to 1 Year and \$1,000 - \$1,500	Community service, etc.	.15 and above	Suspension—1 Year and restricted driving privileg- es
KY	48 hours to 30 days and/or \$200 - \$500	No	Suspension— 30 to 120 days <sup>2</sup>	7 days to 6 months and \$350 - \$500	10 days to 6 months community service	No statutory provision	N/A
LA	10 days to 6 months and \$300 - \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 90 days	30 days to 6 months and \$750 - \$1,000	30 (8 hour) days of community service	.20 and above	Ignition Interlock and re- stricted driver's license

 $<sup>^{2}</sup>$ As KY does not have an ALR law, the sanctions shown here are those the court shall apply at arraignment for a driver's refusal to submit to a chemical test; has either a prior DWI conviction or a prior refusal; or was involved in a crash that resulted in death or injury to another person. Please refer to the Kentucky portion of this document for more information.

	Minimum Sanctions for 1 <sup>st</sup> Conviction <sup>d</sup>	Sanctions for Administrative Sanctions for		Minimum Sa Repeat Of		Minimum Sanctions for High-BAC Offenders <sup>f</sup>	
State	Jail Time and/or Fine	ALR Law <sup>g h</sup>	Minimum Licensing Sanctions Prior to Conviction	Jail Time and/or Fine	Other <sup>i</sup>	What is the High-BAC Level? <sup>j</sup>	Additional Minimum Sanctions for High- BAC Offenders (Jail Time and/or Fine or Other)
ME	Not less than \$500	Yes	Suspension— 90 days	7 days to 12 months and \$700 - \$2,000	Community service, restitution, sur- charges, etc.	.15 and above	48 hours-12 months and \$600-\$2,000
MD	Not more than 2 months and/or not more than \$500	Yes	Suspension— 45 days	Not more than 1 Year and/or not more than \$500	Community service, restitution, etc.	.15 and above	Ignition Interlock for at least 1 Year
MA	Not more than 2½ years and/or not more than \$500	Yes	Suspension— 30 days	60 days to 2 ½ Years and \$600 - \$10,000	In patient treatment, Community service, restitution, etc.	.20 or above	Under 21 years of age – 14 day inpatient treat- ment, 21years or older – mandatory alcohol as- sessment
МІ	93 days or 360 hours community service or \$100-\$500	No	N/A	5 days and \$200	See MI Criminal Sanctions	.17 or above	Not more than 180 days or more than 360 hours of community service or \$200-\$700
MN	90 days and/or not more than \$1,000	Yes	Revocation— 90 days	30 days-1 year and/or not more than \$3,000	Restitution, etc.	.20 and above	Revocation—twice the applicable period <sup>3</sup>
MS	Not more than 48 hours and/or \$250 - \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 30 days	5 days to 1 Year and \$600 - \$1,500	10 days-1 year community service, restitution, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A
мо	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500 Assuming conviction under state law, penal- ties for municipal viola- tions may be substan- tially less	Yes	Suspension—30 days (mandatory)	Not more than 1 Year and/or not more than \$1,000 Assuming conviction under state law, penal- ties for municipal viola- tions may be substan- tially less	Community service (in lieu of jail), edu- cation, treatment, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A
МТ	24 hours to 6 months and \$300 - \$1,000	No	N/A	7 days to 6 months and \$600 - \$1,000	Community service, restitution, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> In Minnesota, if the offender's BAC is .20 or greater, the license revocation period is twice the 90 days for a first violation (180 days) and twice the 180 days for a second or subsequent violation (360 days).

	Minimum Sanctions for 1 <sup>st</sup> Conviction <sup>d</sup>		ve Sanctions for ffenders	Minimum Sa Repeat Of		Minimum Sanctions for High-BAC Offenders <sup>f</sup>		
State	Jail Time and/or Fine	ALR Law <sup>g h</sup>	Minimum Licensing Sanctions Prior to Conviction	Jail Time and/or Fine	Other <sup>i</sup>	What is the High-BAC Level? <sup>j</sup>	Additional Minimum Sanctions for High- BAC Offenders (Jail Time and/or Fine or Other)	
NE	Not more than 60 days and not more than \$500	Yes	Revocation— 90 days	Not more than 6 months and not more than \$500	Community service, restitution, etc.	.15 and above	2 to 60 days and not more than \$500	
NV	2 days to 6 months and \$400 - \$1,000	Yes	Revocation— 90 days	10 days to 6 months and \$750 - \$1,000	Community service, restitution, fees, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A	
NH	\$500 - \$1,200	Yes	Suspension— 6 months	37 days and \$750 - \$2,000	Community service, fees, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A	
NJ	12 – 48 hours and \$250 - \$400	No	N/A	48 hours – 90 days and \$500 - \$1,000	30 days community service, restitution, fees and surcharges	No statutory provision	N/A	
NM	Not more than 90 days and not more than \$500	Yes	Revocation— 6 months	Not more than 364 days and/or not more than \$1,000	24 hours community service, restitution, fees, treatment costs.	No statutory provision	N/A	
NY	Not more than 15 days and/or \$300 - \$500	Yes	Suspension— 6 months	Not more than 30 days and/or \$500 - \$750	30 days community service, surcharges and fees	.18 or above	Not more than 1 year and/or \$1000-\$2,500	
NC	24 hours – 60 days and up to \$200	Yes⁴	Revocation— 30 days	48 hours – 120 days and up to \$500	48 hours community service, monitoring, fees	No statutory provision	N/A	
ND	30 days and/or \$1,000	Yes	Suspension— 91 days (30 days mandatory)	30 days and/or \$1,000	30 days community service (in lieu of jail)	No statutory provision	N/A	
ОН	Not more than 6 months and \$375 - \$1,075	Yes	Suspension— 3 months	Not more than 6 months and \$525 - \$1,625	Community service and restitution	.17 and above	6 consecutive days in jail <sup>5</sup>	
ОК	10 days – 1 year and not more than \$1,000	Yes	Revocation—180 days	1 – 5 years and not more than \$2,500	Community service, restitution	.15 and above	Assessment, evaluation, and treatment in addition to other sanctions.	

 $<sup>^{4}</sup>$  In NC, the driver's license is revoked prior to conviction if the driver's BAC > .08. For drivers, under 21 years of age, the license is revoked if the driver's BAC > .00. For commercial motor vehicle operators, the license is revoked if the driver's BAC > .04.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Or, 3 consecutive days in jail with 3 consecutive days of a driver's intervention program.

	Minimum Sanctions for 1 <sup>st</sup> Conviction <sup>d</sup>		ve Sanctions for ffenders	Minimum Sa Repeat Of			num Sanctions for -BAC Offenders <sup>f</sup>
State	Jail Time and/or Fine	ALR Law <sup>g h</sup>	Minimum Licensing Sanctions Prior to Conviction	Jail Time and/or Fine	Other <sup>i</sup>	What is the High-BAC Level? <sup>j</sup>	Additional Minimum Sanctions for High- BAC Offenders (Jail Time and/or Fine or Other)
OR	Not more than 1 year and not less than \$1,000	Yes	Suspension—90 days	Not more than 1 year and not less than \$1,500	80 – 250 hours community service, restitution, fees	.15 and above	\$2,000
PA	6 months probation (mandatory) and \$300	No	N/A	5 days – 6 months and \$300 - \$2,500	150 hours communi- ty service, etc.	Depends on the BAC	48 consecutive hours – 6 months and \$500 - \$5,000
PR	\$300 - \$500	No	N/A	15 – 30 days and \$500 - \$750	Community service, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A
RI	Up to 1 year and/or \$100 - \$300	No	N/ A	10 days – 1 year and \$400	Fees, etc.	.15 and above	Up to 1 year and/or \$500
SC	48 hours – 30 days or \$400	Yes <sup>6</sup>	See footnote	5 days – 1 year and \$2,100 - \$5,100	Fees, etc.	.16 and above	30 – 90 days or \$1,000
SD	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,000	No	N/A	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,000	Community service, probation, treatment	No statutory provision	N/A
TN	48 hours and \$350 - \$1,500	No	N/A	45 days – 11 months, 29 days and \$600 - \$3,500	Restitution, fees	.20 and above	7 days and \$350 - \$1,500
тх	72 hours – 180 days and/or not more than \$2,000	Yes	Suspension—90 days	30 days – 1 year and/or not more than \$4,000	Community service, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A
UT	48 hours – 180 days and not more than \$1,000 plus 90% sur- charge	Yes	Suspension—120 days (or until 21 years old, whi- chever is longer – for drivers under 21).	10 – 180 days and not more than \$1,000 plus 85% surcharge	240 hours communi- ty service or 10 days home confinement in lieu of jail, vehicle impoundment, reha- bilitation, etc.	.16 and above	Probation (mandatory)
VT	Not more than 2 years and/or not more than \$750	Yes	Suspension—90 days (mandatory)	Not more than 2 years and/or not more than \$1,500	At least 200 hours (mandatory in lieu of jail)	No statutory provision	N/A
VA	Not more than 12 months and/or not more than \$2,500	Yes	Suspension— 7 days	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,500	Restitution, etc.	≥ .1519 .20 and above	5 days/\$250 (mandatory) 10 days/\$250 (mandatory)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> The administrative per se law in South Carolina pertains to offenders with BAC  $\geq$  .15; the first violation is a suspension of 1 month.

	Minimum Sanctions for 1 <sup>st</sup> Conviction <sup>d</sup>	Administrative Sanctions for 1 <sup>st</sup> Offenders		Minimum Sanctions for Repeat Offenders <sup>e</sup>		Minimum Sanctions for High-BAC Offenders <sup>f</sup>	
State	Jail Time and/or Fine	ALR Law <sup>g h</sup>	Minimum Licensing Sanctions Prior to Conviction	Jail Time and/or Fine	Other <sup>i</sup>	What is the High-BAC Level? <sup>j</sup>	Additional Minimum Sanctions for High- BAC Offenders (Jail Time and/or Fine or Other)
WA	1 day – 1 year and \$350 - \$5,000	Yes	Suspension— 90 days	30 days – 1 year, 60 days home monitoring and \$500 - \$5,000	Restitution, fees, etc.	.15 and above	2 days – 1 year and \$500 - \$5,000
WV	Up to 6 months and \$100 - \$500	Yes	Revocation— 6 months <sup>7</sup>	6 months – 1 year and \$1,000 - \$3,000	Community service, assessments	.15 and above	2 days-6 months / \$1,000
WI	\$150 - \$300	Yes	Suspension— 6 months	5 days – 6 months and \$350 - \$1,100	Community service, etc.	.17 and above <sup>8</sup>	See footnote
WY	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$750	Yes	Suspension— 90 days	7 days – 6 months and \$200 - \$750	Rehabilitation, etc.	No statutory provision	N/A

Summary Chart Notes:

<sup>a</sup> Key provisions of state statutes or regulations concerned with impaired driving violations, e.g., driving while intoxicated (DWI, also referred to as driving under the influence [DUI]). Provisions of local laws are NOT reported.

<sup>b</sup> Impaired driving offenses are "non-legal" terms that refer to any criminal action related to driving a motor vehicle either while illegal per se or while impaired by, under the influence of or intoxicated by alcohol or other drugs.

<sup>c</sup> All 50 States, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico have "illegal per se" laws defining driving with a blood alcohol concentration at or above .08 g/dL as a crime.

<sup>d</sup> Laws in most States provide for mandatory minimum jail terms and fines. Laws in 43 States and DC also include community service as a sanction. Restitution is also used as a sanction in 47 States and DC. Several States also assess fees, mandate alcohol/drug therapy, place offenders on probation, or require training as additional sanctions. Please refer to the State-by-State analysis portion of this document for details regarding the specific sanctions used in individual States.

<sup>e</sup> A repeat offender is defined in 23 CFR Part 1275-Repeat Intoxicated Driver Laws as "...a person who has been convicted of DWI or DUI more than once in any five-year period." Please refer to the State-by-State analysis portion of this document for details regarding the specific sanctions used in individual States.

<sup>f</sup> Laws in a number of States provide for enhanced sanctions for those drivers found to have had a high BAC, i.e., a BAC test result at or above an amount (e.g., .15, .16, .20 or greater) as specified in the State's statute at the time of arrest. The sanctions listed may be imposed in addition to jail time and fines, where not specifically stated. Please refer to the State-by-State portion of this document for details.

<sup>g</sup> Under a State's administrative license revocation (ALR) statute, a driver's license can be suspended or revoked, prior to conviction, if the driver is found to have a BAC level of .08 or greater (administrative per se) or refuses to submit to chemical testing for DWI.

<sup>h</sup> Forty-one (41) States and the District of Columbia have administrative per se laws, which allow the driver's license to be suspended or revoked, prior to conviction, if the driver fails a BAC test or refuses to take a BAC test.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Or, 15 days revocation plus 120 days ignition interlock.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> In Wisconsin, the fines, jail time, and forfeitures are doubled, tripled, or quadrupled depending upon the offender's BAC level. Please refer to the Wisconsin portion of this document for detailed information.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>i</sup> Please refer to the State-by-State portion of this document for detailed information on other sanctions in individual States.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>j</sup> Although most States do not currently have specific statutes that establish "high-BAC," many States do have statutes providing for graduated levels of sanctions when DWI offenders are found to have BAC levels above 08, such as at .15, .16, .20 or greater. In these cases, an inference has been made as to what is considered as a "high-BAC" level for each individual State, which is shown here. Please refer to the State-by-State analysis portion of this document for details regarding the level of sanctions used in individual States for "high-BAC" offenders.

State	Sobriety Checkpoints		Ignition Interlocks <sup>d</sup>	Sanctions for Social Host Violations <sup>e</sup>	
	Allowed <sup>c</sup> ?	Type of Ignition Interlock Law <sup>f</sup>	Offenders Subject to Ignition Interlocks	Length of Interlock Period	(Jail Time and/or Fine)
AL	Permitted	Permissive	Not Specified	Not Specified	Not more than 1 year and not more than \$6,000
AK	No statutory provision <sup>9</sup>	Mandatory	All Offenders	12 months minimum for 1 <sup>st</sup> DWI Offense	Not more than 1 year and not more than \$10,000
AZ	Permitted	Mandatory	All Offenders	12 months for DWI Con- viction with BAC< .20 <sup>10</sup>	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$2,500
AR	Permitted	Permissive	(Alcohol only) Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000
CA	Permitted	Both <sup>*</sup>	All Offenders	Not more than 3 Years	Not less than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000
со	Permitted	Mandatory	Not Specified	Not Specified	3-12 months and/0r \$250-\$1,000
СТ	Permitted	Both	Repeat Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 18 months and/or not more than \$1,500
DE	Permitted	Both	All Offenders	Not less than 1 Year	\$100 - \$1,000
DC	Permitted	Permissive	All Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000
FL	Permitted	Mandatory	Repeat Offenders	1 Year for 2 <sup>nd</sup> conviction; 2 Years for 3 <sup>rd</sup> conviction	Not less than 3 months or more than 6 months
GA	Permitted	Mandatory	Repeat Offenders	At least 6 months	Not more than 12 months or 3 years and/or not more than \$1,000 - \$5,000
HI	Permitted	No statutory provi- sion	N/A	N/A	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000

#### Table 2. Key Provisions of State Impaired Driving and Selected Beverage Control Laws through March 1, 2010<sup>a, b</sup>

<sup>\*&</sup>quot;Both" is used to describe a State's statute that allows for "permissive" and "mandatory" use of an ignition interlock depending on factors such as number of prior convictions or blood alchohol levels. Please refer to the State-by-State analysis of this document for details regarding the laws for each individual State. Note: Referenceces (a) though (f) can be found at the end of the Summary Chart

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> The U. S. District Court of Alaska referenced the constitutionality of sobriety checkpoints in a ruling concerning convicted sex offenders' right to privacy. *See Rowe v. Burton*, 884 F.Supp. 1372, 1382 (D.Alaska 1994).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Longer terms of ignition interlock as a penalty are applied in Arizona under certain conditions. Please refer to the detailed information for Arizona in the Stare-by-State analysis of this document.

State	Sobriety Checkpoints		Ignition Interlocks <sup>d</sup>	Sanctions for Social Host Violations <sup>e</sup>	
	Allowed <sup>c</sup> ?	Type of Ignition Interlock Law <sup>f</sup>	Offenders Subject to Ignition Interlocks	Length of Interlock Period	(Jail Time and/or Fine)
ID	Prohibited	Permissive	All Offenders	Equal to the Probationary Period	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000
IL	Permitted	Mandatory	All Offenders	Not Specified	Less than 1 Year and/or not less than \$500
IN	Permitted	Permissive	All Offenders	Court Determined	Not more than 180 days and not more than \$1,000
IA	Prohibited	Mandatory	All Offenders	1 Year or Less	\$65-\$625 and not more than 30 days
KS	Permitted	Mandatory	Repeat Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 1 year and/or \$1,000-\$2,500
KY	Permitted	Mandatory	All Offenders	6 - 30 months	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500
LA	Permitted	Mandatory	Offenders with BAC >.20	Court Determined	30 days to 6 months and/or \$25-\$1,000
ME	Permitted	Permissive	Repeat Offenders	2-4 Years	Not more than 6 months and not more than \$1,000
MD	Permitted	Both	All Offenders	1 – 3 Years (At least 1 Year if BAC <u>&gt;</u> .15)	Not more than 3 years and/or not more than \$2,500
MA	Permitted	Mandatory	Repeat Offenders	2 Years	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,000
MI	Prohibited	Permissive	First Time Offenders	Court Determined	30 days for 1 <sup>st</sup> offense, 90 days for 2 <sup>nd</sup> offense and not more than \$1,000
MN	Prohibited	Permissive	All Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$3,000
MS	No statutory provision	Permissive	All Offenders	At least 6 months	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500
МО	Permitted	Mandatory	All Offenders	Not less than 6 months	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500
МТ	[Possibly] Pro- hibited	Mandatory	All Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500
NE	Permitted	Permissive	All Offenders	At least 6 months	Not more than 1 Year and/or not more than \$1,000
NV	Permitted	Both	All Offenders	3 – 6 months for BAC<.18; 12 – 36 months for BAC>.18	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000

State	Sobriety Checkpoints		Ignition Interlocks <sup>d</sup>	Sanctions for Social Host Violations <sup>e</sup>	
	Allowed <sup>c</sup> ?	Type of Ignition Interlock Law <sup>f</sup>	Offenders Subject to Ignition Interlocks	Length of Interlock Period	(Jail Time and/or Fine)
NH	Permitted	Mandatory	Aggravated or Repeat Offenders <sup>11</sup>	12 months – 2 years	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,000
NJ	Permitted	Mandatory	High BAC	6 months – 3 years	\$500
NM	Permitted	Mandatory	All Offenders	1 – 3 years	18 months and not more than \$5,000
NY	Permitted	Mandatory	Aggravated Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000
NC	Permitted	Both	Repeat Offenders and Of- fenders with BAC <u>&gt;</u> .15	1 year to Permanent	10 – 59 months or \$250 and 25 hours of community service
ND	Permitted	Permissive	All Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 30 days and/or not more than \$1000
ОН	Permitted	Both	All Offenders	Not Specified	Not more than 6 months and not more than \$1,000
ОК	Permitted	Both <sup>12</sup>	All Offenders	See Footnote	Not more than 1 year and/or \$1,000
OR	Prohibited	Mandatory	All Offenders	1 – 2 years	\$350-\$1,000
PA	Permitted	Mandatory	All Offenders	Not Specified	Not less than \$1,000 and/or not more than 1 year
PR	No provisions	No statutory provi- sions	N/A	N/A	6 months, 1 day – 3 years
RI	Prohibited	Permissive	Repeat Offenders	1 – 2 years	Not more than \$500 or not more than 1 year
SC	No statutory provisions or case law	Mandatory	Repeat Offenders	2 years – Permanent	Not more than 30 days or \$200-\$500
SD	Permitted	No statutory provi- sions	N/A	N/A	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,000

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> In New Hampshire, an aggravated DWI is a Class A misdemeanor. With "serious bodily injury," an aggravated DWI is a Class B felony. Please refer to the NH portion of this document for specific details.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Please refer to the Oklahoma portion of this document for detailed information regarding the conditions under which installation of an ignition interlock device is mandatory for certain DWI offenders.

State	Sobriety Checkpoints	•			Sanctions for Social Host Violations <sup>e</sup>
	Allowed <sup>c</sup> ?	Type of Ignition Interlock Law <sup>f</sup>	Offenders Subject to Ignition Interlocks	Length of Interlock Period	(Jail Time and/or Fine)
TN	Permitted	Permissive	All Offenders	Up to 1 year	Not more than 11 months, 29 days and/or not more than \$2,500
тх	Prohibited	Both	All Offenders	Up to 1 year	Not more than 1 year and/or \$100 - \$500
UT	Permitted	Both <sup>13</sup>	All Offenders	Up to 10 years	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000 plus civil cause of action
VT	Permitted	No statutory provi- sions	3 <sup>rd</sup> or Subsequent Offend- ers	Up to 180 days	Not more than 2 years and/or \$500 - \$2,000
VA	Permitted	Both <sup>14</sup>	All Offenders	See footnote	Not more than 12 months and/or not more than \$2,500
WA	Prohibited	Both <sup>15</sup>	All Offenders	1 to 10 years	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$5,000
WV	Permitted	Both <sup>16</sup>	All offenders	See footnote	Not more than 10 days to 1 year and/or not more than \$100
WI	Prohibited	Mandatory	1st Offenders with BAC ≥ .15 and Repeat Offenders	Not less than 1 year	Not more than \$500 <sup>17</sup>
WY	Prohibited	Mandatory	1 <sup>st</sup> Offenders with BAC <u>&gt;</u> .15 and Repeat Offenders	6 months - Permanent	Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$750

#### Summary Chart Notes:

<sup>a</sup> Key provisions of State statutes, regulations, or laws concerned with impaired driving, i.e., driving while intoxicated (DWI) and/or driving under the influence (DUI). Provisions of local laws are NOT reported. Please refer to the State-by-State analysis of this document for details regarding the laws for each individual State.

<sup>b</sup> All 50 States and the District of Columbia have laws (illegal per se) making it a crime to operate a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol content (BAC) at or above .08.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> Please refer to the Utah portion of this document for the specific conditions under which the installation of an ignition interlock device is mandatory or permissive and the time period.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Please refer to the Virginia portion of this document for the specific conditions under which the installation of an ignition interlock device is mandatory (for offenders with  $BAC \ge$  .15) or permissive and the time period.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> Please refer to the Washington portion of this document for the specific conditions under which the installation of an ignition interlock is mandatory or permissive.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Please refer to the West Virginia portion of this document for the specific conditions under which 1<sup>st</sup> offenders are subject to the installation of an ignition interlock and for the time period.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> Please refer to the Wisconsin portion of this document for the specific sanctions for 2<sup>nd</sup> and subsequent offenses.

<sup>c</sup> Sobriety checkpoints are used as a law enforcement strategy aimed at deterring impaired driving (DWI or DUI) by increasing the public's perception of being caught in violation of State impaired driving laws. For the purposes of this Table, "Permitted" indicates that the State either has statutory authority for the use of checkpoints and/or the use of checkpoints has been upheld in court under the Federal and/or State Constitution. "Prohibited" indicates that the State does not have a statute providing authority for the use of checkpoints and/or does not allow State and local law enforcement to use them.

<sup>d</sup> Under certain conditions of DWI/DUI offenders' convictions in 47 States and the District of Columbia, their vehicles may be equipped with an ignition interlock device as a penalty. The driver breathes into the ignition interlock device, which analyzes the driver's breath and renders the vehicle inoperable if the breath sample indicates that the driver has been drinking.

<sup>e</sup> Social Host laws are those State laws assigning criminal or civil responsibility for providing alcohol to those under the legal drinking age of 21and in so doing endangers the welfare of minor(s). The definitions of social hosts and the laws governing them vary from State to State. Please refer to the State-by-State analysis of this document for details regarding such legislation in each individual State.

<sup>f</sup> The term "permissive" is used to describe a State's statute that provides for the use of an ignition interlock as an option in DWI sentencing, either in lieu of, or in addition to other sanctions (jail, fines, community service). "Mandatory" is used to describe a State's statute that mandates the use of an ignition interlock for DWI offenders

STATE	ALABAMA
General Reference:	Code of Alabama
	Alabama Administrative Code of Regulations (AL ADC)
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol. <sup>18</sup> AL ST § 32-5A-191(a)(2).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08 \text{ AL ST } \$ 32-5A-191 (a)(1).$ $> .02^{19} \text{ School Bus and Day Care Vehicle Operators}$ AL ST  \$ 32-5A-191(c)(1). $\underline{\text{Persons Under 21 Years Old}} \ge .02$ AL ST  \$ 32-5A-191(b).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	<ul> <li>≥.08 AL ST § 32-5A-194 (b)(3).</li> <li>≥.02 - Presumption of driving under the influence of alcohol for school bus drivers and day care vehicle operators. AL ST § 32-5A-194 (b)(3)</li> <li>≥.02 - Presumption of driving under the influence of alcohol for persons under 21. AL ST § 32-5A-194 (b)(3).</li> </ul>
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any substance (which impairs the mental or physical faculties), a controlled substance, or alcohol and a controlled substance. AL ST § 32-5A-191(a)(3), (4), (5).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>No</b> (not required for probable cause determination). <sup>20</sup>
Implied Consent Law:	Yes AL ST § 32-5-192
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes AL ST § 32-5-192.
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> See State v. Radford, 557 So.2d 1285 (Ala.Crim.App. 1989).
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) AL ST § 32-5-192; AL ST § 32-5A-194(c).
Other Information:	Accident Related Implied Consent Law. Under separate provisions of law, a person who is involved in an accident which resulted in a "serious physical injury," and where there are reasonable grounds that they were driving while under the influence of alcohol, amphetamines, opiates or cannabis, shall be deemed to have given consent to a test of their blood for the purpose of determining the alcoholic content or the presence of the drugs listed. AL ST § 32-5-

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> In *Ex Parte Buckner*, 549 So.2d 451, 454 (Ala. 1989), the Alabama Supreme Court held that the term "under the influence of alcohol" means "having consumed such an amount of alcohol as to affect his ability to operate a vehicle in a safe manner."
 <sup>19</sup> Standard: Percentage of alcohol by weight in the blood. However, the law defines this as grams of alcohol per 100 cubic centi-

meters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. AL ST § 32-5A-194(a)(5). This definition, therefore, establishes illegal per se based on breath. <sup>20</sup> See, e.g., Boyd v. City of Montgomery, 472 So.2d 694 (Ala.Crim.App. 1985) (noting that an officer's observations may establish

probable cause).

	200(a).	
	<b>Special Note:</b> A person arrested for a DWI offense shall not be released until his/her BAC/BrAC is < .08 (for persons	
	under 21, <.02). AL ST § $32-5A-191(1)$ .	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		ļ
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes AL ST § 32-5-192(a).	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> AL ST § 32-5-192(a).	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes – Alcohol Evaluation Required. AL ST § 32-5A-	
(Yes/No):	191(b).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a		
Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	N/A	
<u>Test</u> :		
Refusal to Take Implied Consent		
Chemical		
Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	First Refusal – Suspension – 90 days (mand);	
(Susp/Rev):	Second Alcohol Or Drug-Related Enforcement Contact <sup>21</sup>	
	(within 5 years) – Suspension – 1 year (mand);	
	Third or Fourth Alcohol Or Drug-Related Enforcement Con-	
	<u>tact</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Suspension – 3 years</b> (mand); <u>Fifth or</u>	
	Subsequent Alcohol Or Drug-Related Enforcement Contact	
	(within 5 years) – Suspension – 5 years (mand).	
	AL ST § 32-5-192; AL ST § 32-5A-300; AL ST § 32-5A-	
Other:	304; AL ST § 32-5A-305.Refusing to Submit to a Test Under the Accident Related	
Ouldi.	Implied Consent Law–	
	Suspension – 2 years. AL ST § 32-5-200(a). This	
	suspension appears to be mandatory. <sup>22</sup>	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> An "alcohol or drug-related enforcement contact" includes either a refusal, administrative per se violation or a conviction for a drunk-driving offense. AL ST § 32-5A-304(b)(5).
 <sup>22</sup> However, the Director of Public Safety may reduce the suspension period for refusal if it is determined that the driver was not at fault in causing the accident. AL ST § 32-5-200(d).

Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than\$600 or more than \$2,100;23Second offense (within 5 years) – Not more than 1 year(with 5 days mandatory or 30 days community service) andnot less than \$1,100 or more than \$5,100;Third offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 60 days(mand) or more than 1 year and not less than \$2,100 or morethan \$10,100;Fourth or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Not less than1 year & 1 day (with 10 days mandatory) or more than 10years and not less than \$4,100 or more than \$10,100.24AL ST § 32-5A-191(e), (f), (g), (h).
	<ul> <li>Serious Bodily Injury related to a DWI Offense (assault in the first degree – Class B felony): Not less than 2 years or more than 20 years,<sup>25</sup> and may be fined not more than \$30,000.</li> <li>AL ST § 13A-5-2(b); AL ST § 13A-5-6(a)(2); AL ST § 13A-5-11(a)(2); AL ST § 13A-6-20(a)(5), (b).</li> </ul>
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	Second offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 30 days. AL ST § 32-5A-191(f).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes – Victims' Compensation Fund. AL ST § 15-23-1 etseq.Special Note: Under AL ST § 15-18-65 et seq., a defendantmay be required to pay restitution to a victim (or a victim'srepresentative) as a result of damages caused by thedefendant's criminal behavior.
Other:	<ul> <li>Court Authorized Licensing Action: In addition to any other sanction for a criminal violation of the traffic laws, the court may issue an order "forbidding" an offender from operating a motor vehicle for either a specified period of time or perpetually. AL ST § 32-5-316.</li> <li>Special Note: A Class C felony conviction for a fourth drunk-driving offense is not to be considered a felony for purposes of the State's Habitual Felony Offender Law. AL ST § 32-5A-191(h).</li> </ul>
dministrative Licensing Actions:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> The jail and fine sanctions do not apply to first offenders who are under 21. AL ST § 32-5A-191(b).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> After this sanction, a person may be placed on probation on the condition that he/she enroll in and successfully complete a chemical dependency program. If probation is granted, an offender may be placed on house arrest with electronic monitoring. AL ST § 32-5A-191(h).

<sup>32-5</sup>A-191(h). <sup>25</sup> These sanctions apply to first offense convictions for assault in the first degree. To determine the sanctions for a 2nd or subsequent offense of this type, see AL ST § 13A-5-9. **Murder:** If a person causes the death of another while operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated and in an erratic manner with excessive speed, that person may be prosecuted for murder. *See Tims v. State*, 711 So. 2d 1118 (Ala.Crim.App. 1997).

Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes <sup>26</sup> ≥.08
	First Admin Per Se Violation – Suspension – 90 days
	(mand);
	Second Alcohol Or Drug-Related Contact (within 5 years) –
	Suspension – 1 year (mand);
	Third or Fourth Alcohol Or Drug-Related Contact (within 5
	years) – Suspension – 3 years (mand);
	Fifth or Subsequent Alcohol Or Drug-Related Contact (with-
	in 5 years) – Suspension – 5 years (mand).
	AL ST § 32-5A-300; AL ST § 32-5A- 304; AL ST § 32-5A-
	305.
Other:	Under AL ST § 32-5A-195(k), (1), (m), a person's license
	may be suspended without a preliminary hearing, for not
	more than 1 year if such person committed an offense that
	usually requires license revocation (e.g., DWI). Such action
	could occur prior to conviction.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension or revocation
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<u>First offense</u> – Suspension or revocation <sup>27</sup> – 90 days. $^{28,29}$
Years, etc.):	
	School Bus and Day Care Vehicle Operators – 1 year
	mandatory suspension.
	Persons under 21–30 days mandatory suspension.
	<u>Second offense</u> – 1 year mandatory revocation;
	<u>Third offense</u> $-3$ years mandatory revocation;
	Fourth or subsequent offenses – 5 years mandatory
	revocation.
Othern	AL ST § 32-5A-191.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	$V_{22}^{30}$ AL ST § 22.5 A 101(b)
Alcohol Education:	Yes $^{30}$ AL ST § 32-5A-191(b).         Vec       AL ST § 22-5A-101(c) $^{31}$
Substance Abuse Treatment:	<b>Yes</b> AL ST § 32-5A-191(i). <sup>31</sup>
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> If the DWI criminal charges against the driver are dismissed or result in a *nolle prosequi*, or if the driver is found not guilty of the DWI offense, the administrative per se licensing action is rescinded. AL ST § 32-5A-304(c).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> Revocation is also possible by court order. AL ST § 32-5A-195(j)(2).

 $<sup>^{28}</sup>$  It may be possible to "modify" this suspension period. AL ST § 32-5A-195(l).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> A person convicted of driving while under the influence either of a controlled substance or of a combination of a controlled sub-

A person convolted of driving while under the influence enter of a controlled substance of of a controlled substance of of a controlled substance and alcohol <u>must</u> have the driving privileges suspended for 6 months. AL ST § 13A-12-290; AL ST § 13A-12-291(10). <sup>30</sup> At a minimum, an offender must complete a DUI or substance abuse program. An offender's license cannot be reinstated until such a program has been successfully completed. AL ST § 32-5A-191(i). <sup>31</sup> The court may suspend the remainder of a sentence (after the 10-day mandatory minimum is served), but only if as a condition of

probation, the defendant enrolls and successfully completes a state certified chemical dependency program. AL ST § 32-5A-191(h).

Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	For a subsequent offense within 5 years, the registrations of all vehicles owned by the offender shall be suspended for the duration of the license suspension. There is a hardship ex- emption for other individuals. AL ST § 32-5A-191(p).
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	N/A
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Child Endangerment</b> : The minimum sentence is double the usual sanction if an offender $\geq 21$ years old was operating a vehicle while transporting a passenger <14 years old at the time of the DWI offense. AL ST § 32-5A-191(n).
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	PermissiveThe Alabama Sentencing Reform Act of 2003 provides for an array of punishments ranging from proba- tion to incarceration. Its definition of "intermediate pu- nishment" includes probation with conditions, one of which may be the use of an ignition interlock device.AL ST § 12-25-32(2)(b)(15).
Conditions of Use:	N/A
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted         Cains v. State, 555 So.2d 290 (Ala.Cr.App. 1989).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term):	Homicide by Vehicle – Not less than 1 year nor more than 5years and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$2,000.AL ST § 32-5A-192.Criminally Negligent Homicide while driving under the influence – Not less than 1 year & 1 day or more than 10years and may be fined not more than \$15,000. AL ST §13A-5-6; AL ST § 13A-5-11; AL ST § 13A-6(a), (c).
	<b>Special Note</b> : The license suspensions for a DWI offense conviction do not apply if a person has been subject to a license suspension for an <i>admin per se</i> violation. AL ST § 32-5A- 304(c).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>32</sup> Applies only to "Homicide by Vehicle" or vehicle manslaughter offenses. For DWI criminally negligent homicide offenses, li-

Action:	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	Revocation period is not specified in the statute. <sup>33</sup>
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	None
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for not less than 1 year (not less than 3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if: (1) while driving a CMV, that person has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq$ .04 (Standards: grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood; grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath; grams of alcohol per 67 milliliters of urine); (2) is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration. <b>Note</b> : The disqualification provision (AL ST § 32-6-49.11(a)(5)) only applies to refusal to submit to a test to determine an alcohol concentration. However, the CMV implied consent provision (AL ST § 32-6-49.13) applies to tests for alcohol concentration and drugs. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for life (10 years mand). Additionally, a CMV operator who has any measurable (or detectable) amount of alcohol in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. AL ST § 32-6-49.3(2), (3); AL ST § 32-6-49.11; AL ST § 32-6-49.12; AL ST § 32-6-49.13.
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense: <sup>34</sup>	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Fine/Imprisonment (Term):	<b>Misdemeanor</b> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> and may be imprisoned for not more than <b>180 days</b> . AL ST § 32-6-19.
Mandatory Minimum Fine/Term:	<b>None</b> - However, there is an additional penalty of <b>\$50</b> used to fund safety and training funds. This penalty appears to be mandatory. AL ST § 32-6-19.
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:	

censing action appears to be through the regular DWI offense provisions. <sup>33</sup> However, a license or privilege to drive cannot be suspended for more than 1 year. AL ST § 32-5A-195(m).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>34</sup> There is no specific statutory provision for driving on a suspended or revoked license, where the basis was a DWI offense. The sanctions given are for the general offense of operating a motor vehicle while driving privileges are suspended or revoked. Further, neither the CMV laws nor the general code provisions concerned with driving on a suspended or revoked license provides specific sanctions for operating a CMV while disqualified or under an out-of-service order.

Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> (discretionary). AL ST § 32-6-19(a).
Withdrawal Action:	An additional period of 6 months AL ST § 32-6-19(a).
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	None
Other:	A vehicle may be forfeited to the State, if it is operated while a license is revoked or suspended for DWI. AL ST § 32-5A- 203). The person shall be removed from the vehicle immediately and such vehicle shall be impounded (unless a law enforcement officer elects not to impound on the basis of an emergency or medical necessity jeopardizing life or limb). AL ST § 32-6-19(b).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No, but the implied consent law applies to dead persons. AL ST § 32-5-200(c); <i>see, e.g., Lankford v. Redwing</i> <i>Carriers, Inc.</i> , 344 So.2d 515 (Ala.Civ.App. 1977).
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> AL ST § 28-1-5; AL ST s 28-3A-25(a)(19).
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> There is an employment exemption.AL ST § 28-3A-25(a)(19).
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AL ST § 6-5-71; AL ST § 6-5-72.
"Dram Shop Law" Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	Yes Buchanan v. Merger Enterprises, Inc., 463 So.2d 121 (Ala. 1984)
Dram Shop Actions – Social Hosts:	<b>Yes – limited</b> : A social host can be held liable for the actions of <i>intoxicated minors</i> if such host <i>provided</i> alcoholic beverages to the minors. <i>Runyans v. Littrell</i> , 850 So.2d. 244 (Ala. 2002); <i>Martin v. Watts</i> , 513 So.2d 958 (Ala. 1987).
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	A social host may be charged with endangering the welfare

	of a child, a class A misdemeanor, which punishes a parent, guardian or other person legally charged with the care or cus- tody of a child less than 18 years of age, who fails to exercise reasonable diligence in the control of the child to prevent him from becoming a "dependent child" or "delinquent child." AL ST § 13A-13-6. A class A misdemeanor is pu- nishable by a term of not more than 1 year and a fine of not more than \$6,000. AL ST § 13A-5-7; AL ST § 13A-5-12.
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	See AL ADC 20-X-602(4) which prohibits the sale of alcoholic beverages to persons "acting in a manner as to appear to be intoxicated." It is a <b>misdemeanor</b> to violate a regulation. AL ST § 28-3-20.
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>\$500</b> and may be imprisoned for not more than <b>6 months</b> . AL ST § 28-3-20. <sup>35</sup>
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes – Suspension/Revocation.AL ST § 28-3A-24; AL ST§ 28-3A-26.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	First offense – suspension for not more than 1 year or revocation for 1 year;Second or subsequent offense – revocation for 1 year. (This revocation appears to be mandatory; however, see AL ST § 28-3A-24(c) which authorizes a fine up to \$1,000 in lieu of revocation.) AL ST § 28-3A-24; AL ST § 28-3A-26.
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> . AL ST § 28-3A-25(a)(3).
Term of Fine/Imprisonment:	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> and may be imprisoned for not more than <b>6 months</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b>

 $<sup>^{35}</sup>$  AL ST § 28-3-19 also makes it a misdemeanor to violate alcoholic beverage control regulations. The sanctions for this offense are a fine of not less than **\$100** or more than **\$200** and/or imprisonment for not more than **90 days**.

	and not less than <b>3 months</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> ; <u>Third and subsequent offense</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> and not less than <b>6 months</b> or more than <b>12</b> <b>months</b> . AL ST § 28-3A-25(b)(1).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes – Suspension/Revocation</b> . AL ST § 28-3A-24; AL ST § 28-3A-26.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	First offense – Suspension – Not more than 1 year; revocation – 1 year;Second or subsequent offense – revocation for 1 year. (This revocation appears to be mandatory; however, seeAL ST § 28-3A-24(c) which authorizes a fine up to \$1,000in lieu of revocation.) AL ST § 28-3A-24; AL ST § 28-3A-26.
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No. AL ADC 20-X-613 places restrictions on "happy hours" but does not ban or eliminate them.
Laws Prohibiting the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes AL ST § 32-5A-330.
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	No

STATE	ALASKA
General Reference:	Alaska Statutes
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of an alcoholic beverage.
$\mathbf{H}_{\mathbf{A}} = \mathbf{A} \mathbf{D}_{\mathbf{A}} \mathbf{C} \mathbf{A} \mathbf{C} \mathbf{C} \mathbf{C} \mathbf{C} \mathbf{C} \mathbf{C} \mathbf{C} C$	AK ST § 28.35.030(a)(l).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{36}$ AK ST § 28.35.030(a)(2).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08 AK ST § 28.35.033(a)(3). "Under the influence of an alcoholic beverage, intoxicat-
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	ing liquor, inhalant, or any controlled substance, singly or in combination." AK ST § 28.35.030(a)(1).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
<u>concentration</u> .	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes AK ST § 28.35.031(b). This also applies to CMV
	operators. AK ST § 28.33.031(c).
Implied Consent Law:	Yes AK ST § 28.35.031
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes AK ST § 28.35.031. No if death or serious physical
• • • •	injury. AK ST § 28.35.031(g)
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	No Except as noted in "Other Information" below.
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	<b>Yes</b> (Criminal and Civil Cases) AK ST § 28.35.032(e); AK ST § 28.35.285(c).
Other Information:	A "chemical test" of blood, breath, and urine for alcohol
	A chemical test of blood, bleah, and unne for aconor or a controlled substance may be administered to a person without consent if that person has been arrested for a DUI offense where there has been an accident involving death or physical injury to another person. <sup>37</sup> AK ST § 28.35.035(a). <i>See also</i> AK ST § 28.35.031(g) (blood and urine for controlled substances).
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for	
Alcohol Concentration Which Are	
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	No – Except as per "Other Information" above.
Urine:	No – Except as per "Other Information" above.
Other:	None
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>36</sup> Alcohol concentration is based upon either "percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood, in milligrams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. AK ST § 28.35.030(a)(2). Under AK ST § 28.35.033(b), "percent by weight of alcohol in the blood shall be based upon milligrams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood." <sup>37</sup> See Municipality of Anchorage v. Ray, 854 P.2d 740 (Alaska App. 1993)(holding, among other things, that a blood sample drawn

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>37</sup> See Municipality of Anchorage v. Ray, 854 P.2d 740 (Alaska App. 1993)(holding, among other things, that a blood sample drawn by a physician was not so great of an intrusion as to violate due process, and search and seizure provisions of Federal and Alaska Constitutions were not violated by statute allowing police to take blood alcohol sample from arrested motorist without consent).

Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes – AK ST § 28.35.030(h) (for felony DWI conviction under AK ST § 28.35.030(n); AK ST § 28.35.032(1) (for felony Refusal conviction under AK ST § 28.35.032(p).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	Infraction         (non-criminal offense) – Not more than \$300.           AK ST § 28.35.031(e); AK ST § 28.90.010(c), (d).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Other:	Refusal to submit to a PBT may be admitted into evidence at either a criminal or civil proceeding. AK ST § 28.35.031(c). It is a Class B misdemeanor for a CMV op- erator to refuse to submit to a PBT. AK ST § 28.33.031(f). The sanctions for this offense are as fol- lows: Not more than <b>90 days</b> in jail and/or a fine of not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . AK ST § 12.55.035(b)(6); AK ST § 12.55.135(b).	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	Class A misdemeanor – Not more than 1 year imprison- ment/not more than \$10,000 fine.Class C felony – if third or subsequent refusal within 10 years – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$50,000.AK ST § 12.55.035; AK ST § 12.55.125; AK ST § 12.55.135; AK ST § 28.35.032(f), (p).	
	The jail and fine sanctions (including minimum mandatory sanctions), confinement in a community residential center, cost of incarceration (where applicable) for first and subsequent refusal offenses <sup>38</sup> are the same as for DWI offenses. These sanctions run consecutively with any other sanctions. AK ST § 28.35.032(f), (g)(5). <sup>39.</sup>	
Administrative Licensing Action	<b>Revocation</b> AK ST § 28.15.165(a)(l); AK ST §	

 $^{38}$  For DWI offense convictions or for convictions for refusal to submit to a chemical test, a previous offense is considered to be <u>ei-ther</u> a previous chemical test refusal or a previous DWI conviction. AK ST § 28.35.030(u)(4); AK ST § 28.35.032(p).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>39</sup> **Persons Under 21 Years Old**. AK ST § 28.35.285: A person at least 14 but not yet 21 years old commits an "infraction" by refusing to submit to a chemical test after having been arrested for the offense of operating a motor vehicle <u>after having consumed any</u> <u>quantity of alcohol (AK ST § 28.35.280)</u>. The sanctions for this offense are a fine of not more than \$1,500 and community service. AK ST § 28.35.285(d). In addition, the driver's license is revoked via an administrative procedure for the following mandatory periods: <u>first revocation</u> – 30 days; <u>second revocation</u> – 60 days; <u>third revocation</u> – 90 days; <u>fourth or subsequent revocation</u> – 1 year. AK ST § 28.15.183(d).

	20.15.101(.)(0)
(Susp/Rev):	28.15.181(a)(8).
	<u>First Refusal</u> – Not less than <b>90 days</b> ;
	<u>Second Refusal</u> – Not less than <b>1 year</b> ;
	<u>Third Refusal (misdemeanor)</u> – Not less than <b>3 years</b> ;
	Fourth or Subsequent Refusal (misdemeanor) – Not less
	than 5 years.
	AK ST § 28.15.165(d); AK ST § 28.15.181(c).
Other:	<b>State Forfeiture</b> of the vehicle used in subsequent refusal
Other.	
	offenses. This action is not mandatory for misdemeanor
	DWI or Refusal convictions. AK ST § 28.35.036.
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	
Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions: 40	
Imprisonment/Fine:	I. Class A Misdemeanor – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or
	not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . AK ST § 12.55.035; AK ST §
	12.55.135; AK ST § 28.35.030(b).
	II. Class C felony (second or subsequent offense within 10
	years) – Not more than 5 years and may be fined not less
	than <b>\$10,000</b> or more than <b>\$50,000</b> . AK ST § 12.55.035;
	AK ST § 12.55.125; AK ST § 28.35.030(n).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	I. Class A Misdemeanor offenses:
	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>72 consecutive hours</b> & not
	less than <b>\$1,500</b> ;
	Second offense – Not less than <b>20 days</b> and not less than
	\$3,000;
	<u>Third offense</u> <sup>41</sup> – Not less than <b>60 days</b> and not less than
	\$4,000;
	<u>Fourth offense</u> – Not less than <b>120 days</b> and not less than
	\$5,000;
	<u>Fifth offense</u> – Not less than <b>240 days</b> and not less than
	\$6,000;
	Sixth and subsequent offense – Not less than 360 days and
	not less than \$7,000.
	AK ST § 28.35.030(b).
	111 51 5 20.000(0).
	II. Class C felony offenses (offenses occurring within 10
	years):
	Second offense – 120 days;
	$\frac{\text{Third offense}}{\text{Third offense}} - 240 \text{ days};$
	Fourth and subsequent offense – 360 days
	AK ST § 28.35.030(n).
	If a second or subsequent felony offense, sentence is sub-
	ject to AK ST § 12.55.125; AK ST § 12.55.155
<u> </u>	

 $<sup>^{40}</sup>$  For either DWI offense convictions or for convictions for refusal to submit to a chemical test, a previous offense is considered to be <u>either</u> a previous chemical test refusal <u>or</u> a previous DWI conviction. AK ST § 28.35.030(u)(4); AK ST § 28.35.032(o).  $^{41}$  Third and subsequent offense sanctions for a Class A misdemeanor only apply when the person is not subject to the Class C felony

provisions in AK ST § 28.35.030(n).

Other Penalties:	
Community Service: 42	First offense – At least 24 hours; Second offense – At least 160 hours AK ST § 28.35.030(k).Discretionary for subsequent offenses. AK ST § 12.55.055.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes – The court may order a defendant to pay direct compensation to a victim(s). AK ST § 12.55.045.
Other:	Incarceration Costs: Except for indigent defendants, an offender may be required to pay the cost of their incarcera- tion. However, such cost is limited to a maximum of \$2000. The cost may be reimbursed from an Alaska Per- manent Fund Dividend of an indigent defendant. AK ST § 28.35.030(k).
	<b>EMS, Police, Fire Department Costs</b> : A defendant may be ordered to pay the reasonable costs of any "emergency response" associated with an accident related to the drunk- driving offense. An "emergency response" includes emer- gency medical, law enforcement and fire department ser- vices. AK ST § 28.35.030(m).
	<b>Court-Ordered Drug Therapy</b> : A court may order a defendant, while incarcerated, on parole, or probation to "take a drug or combination of drugs intended to prevent the consumption of an alcoholic beverage." AK ST § 28.35.030(b)(4).
	<b>Double Jeopardy</b> : A person who has been subjected to licensing action under the administrative per se law may also be subsequently prosecuted for a drunk-driving offense. Such subsequent criminal trial does not violate the constitutional prohibition against double jeopardy. <i>State v. Zerkel</i> , 900 P.2d 744 (Alaska App. 1995). Likewise, a person who has first been subjected to administrative licensing action for refusing to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law may also be subsequently prosecuted under this law, for the criminal offense of refusing to submit to such a test. This subsequent criminal trial does not constitute double jeopardy. <i>Aaron v. City of Ketchikan</i> , 927 P.2d 335 (Alaska App. 1996).
	<b>Probation</b> : The court shall require the person to serve a period of probation following the period of imprisonment. The period of probation is the period that the person is required to use an ignition interlock device or 5 years, whichever is greater. AK ST § 28.35.030(v).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>42</sup> This community service is <u>not</u> an alternative to the mandatory minimum terms of imprisonment. For third and subsequent offenses, the length and type of community service is discretionary with the court.

Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes $\geq$ .08 (BAC/BrAC) AK ST § 28.15.165; AK ST §28.35.030(a)(2). Licensing revocation periods, including the minimum mandatory periods, for first and subsequent administrative actions are the same as for first and subse- quent revocations for DWI offense convictions, as listed above.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> AK ST § 28.15.181(a)(5), (c).
Term of Revocation (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense – Not less than 90 days; Second offense – Not less than 1 year; Third offense – Not less than 3 years; Fourth or subsequent offense – Not less than 5 years. AK ST § 28.15.181(c); AK ST § 28.35.030(b)(3); AK ST § 28.35.030(o).If convicted of Class C felony, the license is revoked 
Mandatory Minimum Term of Revocation:	The terms above are mandatory, except if the license is permanently revoked.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>44</sup> AK ST § 28.35.030(h).
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes AK ST § 28.35.030(i).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Yes – Mandatory for Class C felonies. AK ST §       28.35.030(n)(5).
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Yes –Forfeiture of the vehicle used in DWI / Refusal offenses.           AK ST § 28.35.032(p)(6);           AK ST § 28.35.030(n)(5);           AK ST § 28.35.030(n)(5);
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	A person claiming ownership or security interest in the vehicle must establish by a preponderance of the evidence that the interest in the vehicle was acquired in good faith; that such person was not the person convicted of the of- fense; and did not know or have reasonable cause to be- lieve such vehicle would be used in the offense. If this is established, then the vehicle shall be released or an

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>43</sup> Subject to review if: (1) the license has been revoked for a period of at least 10 years; (2) the person has not been convicted of a criminal offense since the license was revoked; and (3) the person provides proof of financial responsibility. AK ST § 28.35.030(o).
<sup>44</sup> For any DWI or refusal conviction, before the license is restored, a defendant may be required to complete either an alcohol education or treatment program the court feels is appropriate for that defendant. AK ST § 28.15.211(d). A defendant may participate in this rehabilitation program either while incarcerated or while on probation.
AK ST § 12.55.015(a)(10); AK ST § 12.55.100(a)(5); AK ST § 28.35.030.

g 12.55.015(a)(10), AK 51 g 12.55.100(a)(5), AK 51 g 20.55.050.

	amount equal to the value of that person's interest shall be
	ordered. AK ST § 28.35.036(b); AK ST § 28.35.037.
	ordered. AK 51 § 28.55.050(0), AK 51 § 28.55.057.
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
	An ignition interlock shall be required during the proba-
	tion period upon conviction of a DWI offense.
	AK ST § 28.35.030(b), (n).
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory for all offenders <sup>45</sup>
Conditions of Use:	Class A misdemeanor:
	<u>First conviction</u> – minimum of 12 months;
	<u>Second conviction</u> – minimum of 24 months;
	<u>Third conviction</u> – minimum of 36 months;
	<u>Fourth conviction</u> – throughout the period of probation;
	<u>Fifth conviction</u> – throughout the period of probation;
	Sixth and subsequent conviction - throughout the period of
	probation
	Class C felony: throughout the period of probation
	<b>BAC</b> $\ge$ <b>.16 but</b> $<$ <b>.24</b> – minimum of 6 months
	<b>BAC</b> $\geq$ <b>.24</b> – minimum of 1 year
	AK ST § 12.55.102; AK ST § 28.35.030(b), (n).
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	There is no statute or case law. <sup>46</sup>
Termitted of Tromoted.	There is no statute of case faw.
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes, Case Law – Vehicular homicide can be second-
	degree murder (AK ST § 11.41.110(a)(2)), manslaughter
	(AK ST § 11.41.120(a)), or criminally negligent homicide
	(AK ST § 11.41.130(a)), depending on the degree of the
	risk created by the defendant's conduct and level of
	awareness of risk. <sup>47</sup>
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
	Second-degree murder – At least <b>10 years</b> but not more
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>Second-degree murder</u> – At least <b>10 years</b> but not more than <b>99 years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$500,000</b> ;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>45</sup> A court may waive the ignition interlock requirement if it determines the defendant is required as a condition of employment to drive a vehicle owned or leased by his employer. AK ST § 12.55.102.)<sup>46</sup> However, the United States Supreme Court upheld the constitutionality of sobriety checkpoints in *Michigan Department of State* 

Police v. Sitz, 496 U.S. 444 (1990), and the United States District Court of Alaska referenced the constitutionality of sobriety checkpoints, as held in Sitz, in a ruling concerning convicted sex offenders' right to privacy. See Rowe v. Burton, 884 F.Supp. 1372, 1382 (D.Alaska 1994). <sup>47</sup> See Jeffries v. State, 169 P.3d 913 (Alaska 2007); Puzewicz v. State, 856 P.2d 1178 (Alaska App. 1993); Foxglove v. State, 929

P.2d 669 (Alaska App. 1997).

[	
	and may be fined not more than <b>\$250,000</b> ;
	Criminally negligent homicide (Class B felony) – Not
	more than <b>10 years</b> and may be fined not more than
	<b>\$100,000</b> . AK ST § 12.55.035; AK ST § 12.55.125.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	Yes
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	License revocation for a conviction of manslaughter or negligent homicide resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle. AK ST § 28.15.181.
Length of Term of Licensing Revocation: <sup>48</sup>	<u>First conviction</u> – Not less than <b>30 days</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> – Not less than <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> – Not less than <b>3 years</b> . AK ST § 28.15.181(b).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Revocation:	The terms above are minimums. However, the court may grant a limitation to a person's license if such person's abil- ity to earn a livelihood would be severely impaired and there would not be excessive danger to the public. Such limitation shall be for no less than 60 days. AK ST § 28.15.181(b).
Other:	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for not less than 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazard- ous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a percent by weight of alcohol in the blood of $\geq$ .04, a blood alcohol concentration of $\geq$ 40 milligrams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, or a breath alcohol concentration of $\geq$ .04 grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath; (2) is under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any controlled sub- stance; or (3) refuses to submit to a breath test.
	<ul> <li>any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for life (10 years mandatory).</li> <li>For a subsequent violation or a combination of more than two violations of any of the above listed items, there is a <u>mandatory</u> lifetime "disqualification."</li> </ul>
	A person who operates a CMV with a BAC/BrAC of $\geq$ .04 while under the influence of any controlled substance or who refuses to submit to a breath test is also subject to the regular DWI/implied consent law criminal and administra- tive (licensing) sanctions, including <u>all</u> mandatory sanc- tions. Additionally, a CMV operator who has any "measur-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>48</sup> Alaska courts have held that lifetime revocation should be reserved for chronic offenders, whose records demonstrate that they never should be allowed to drive a motor vehicle again. *See Fine v. State*, 22 P.3d 20 (Alaska App. 2001); *Dodge v. Municipality of Anchorage*, 877 P.2d 270 (Alaska App. 1994).

	able" or "detectable" amount of alcohol in the system must
	be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours.
	AK ST § 28.15.165; AK ST § 28.15.219; AK ST §
	28.33.030; AK ST § 28.33.031(a)(l), (2); AK ST §
	28.33.130; AK ST § 28.33.140; AK ST § 28.35.032(f).
Driving While License Suspended or	
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI	
Offense:	
Sanction: 49 Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>Class A Misdemeanor</u> – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and may be
imprisonment (Term)/Fine.	fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . AK ST § 12.55.035; AK ST
	§ 12.55.135(a); AK ST § 28.15.291.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	Not less than 20 days with 10 days suspended and a fine
Imprisonment:	of not less than <b>\$500</b> , and not less than <b>80 hours</b> communi-
	ty service. AK ST § 28.15.291(b)(1)(C).
Type of Licensing Action	<b>Revocation</b> AK ST § 28.15.291(b)(4).
Length of Term of License	Not less than <b>90 days</b> . AK ST § 28.15.291(b)(4).
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Revocation Action:	Original revocation extended not less than 90 days
Mandatory Term of License Revocation Action:	Original revocation extended not less than 90 days.
Other:	The court may order forfeiture. AK ST § 28.15.291(b)(5).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No
Lang Datablishing (L. M. 1	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/	<b>21</b> AK ST § 04.16.051.
Purchase:	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> There are exemptions for parents or physicians furnish-
Possession/Consumption:	ing alcoholic beverages to minors. AK ST § 04.16.050; AK
	ST § 04.16.051; AK ST § 04.16.052.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>49</sup> It is Class A misdemeanor to operate a CMV during either a CDL disqualification or a CDL out-of-service order. The sanctions for a <u>first offense</u> – jail for not less than 20 days with 10 days suspended and not less than 80 hours community service; <u>subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – not less than 60 days and a fine of \$1,000. For both first and subsequent offenders, driving privileges cannot be restored for an additional 90 days. AK ST § 12.55.035; AK ST § 12.55.135; AK ST § 28.33.150(a), (b), (c).

Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes I. <u>Persons Who Hold Licenses Under the Alcoholic Beve-</u> <u>rage Law</u> – A licensee or agent may be held civilly liable for serving alcohol to a person under the age of 21 or to a drunken person	
	AK ST § 04.16.030; AK ST § 04.21.020(a); AK ST § 04.21.080(a)(l).	
	II. <u>Alcoholic Beverage Law Violators</u> – Persons who "sell or barter" alcoholic beverages to individuals without ob- taining the appropriate license are "strictly liable" for any resulting injuries sustained by such individuals and person who knowingly furnish alcohol to a person under 21 years of age may also be liable for civil damages. AK ST § 04.21.020(b), (d).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions – Social Hosts:	No AK ST § 04.16.020.	
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	A person who is physically in possession and exercising dominion and control over a dwelling may not knowingly permit a person under the age of 21 to possess an alcoholic beverage in the dwelling. Such person may be guilty of a "violation," and pay not more than \$500. AK ST § 04.16.057; AK ST § 12.55.035. Additionally, a social host may be charged with contribut- ing to the delinquency of a minor, a class A misdemeanor, punishably by not more than 1 year and a fine of not more than \$10,000. AK ST § 11.51.130; AK ST § 12.55.035; AK ST § 12.55.135.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A misdemeanor – AK ST § 04.16.030; AK ST § 04.16.180.	
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . AK ST § 12.55.035; AK ST § 12.55.135(a). Organizations may be fined not more than <b>\$200,000</b> for offenses not resulting in death; and not more than <b>\$1 mil-</b> <b>lion</b> for offenses resulting in death. AK ST § 12.55.035(c)(1)(B).	

Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Suspension or Revocation (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AK ST § 04.16.180.
Length of Term of License Revoked or Suspended:	First conviction– Suspension for not more than 45 days; Second conviction (within 5 years) – Suspension for not more than 90 days; Third and subsequent convictions (within 5 years) – Suspension or revocation (no time limit specified in statute). AK ST § 04.16.180(b).
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor. AK ST § 04.16.052; AK ST § 04.16.180.
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . AK ST § 12.55.035; AK ST § 12.55.135(a). Organizations may be fined not more than <b>\$200,000</b> for offenses not resulting in death; and not more than <b>\$1 mil-</b> <b>lion</b> for offenses resulting in death. AK ST § 12.55.035(c)(1)(B).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Revoked or Suspended (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AK ST § 04.16.180.
Length of Term License Revoked or Suspended:	First conviction– Suspension for not more than 45 days;Second conviction(within 5 years) – Suspension for not more than 90 days;Third and subsequent convictions(within 5 years) – Suspension or revocation (no time limit specified in statute).AK ST § 04.16.180(b).
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> AK ST § 04.16.015.
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of s of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	

#### ALASKA

Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AK ST § 28.35.029.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 13 AK ADC s 02.545(a)	

STATE	ARIZONA
General Reference:	Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor. AZ ST § 28- 1381(A)(1).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	≥ .08 <sup>50</sup> AZ ST § 28-1381(A)(2) ≥ .15 <sup>51</sup> AZ ST § 28-1382(A)(1). ≥ .20 AZ ST § 28-1382(A)(2). Persons Under 21 Years Old: Operating a motor vehicle with any "Spirituous Liquor" in the body. AZ ST § 4- 244(34); AZ ST § 4-246(B).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08 AZ ST § 28-1381(G)(3).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug, a vapor-releasing sub- stance containing a toxic substance, or a combination of liquor, drugs or toxic vapor-releasing substance if the person is impaired to the slightest degree. AZ ST § 28- 1381(A)(1).
Chaming Drogth Tracts for Alashal	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes AZ ST § 28-1322. Based on reasonable suspicion of a DWI offense.
Implied Consent Law:	Yes AZ ST § 28-1321
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>52</sup> AZ ST § 28-1321(A).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AZ ST § 28-1321(A).
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) AZ ST § 28-1388(D).
Other Information:	Persons (e.g., medical facility personnel) who collect blood, urine or other bodily substances from drivers may be requested by law enforcement authorities to supply samples of such substances to them for testing. AZ ST § 28-1388(E). Blood or urine samples can also be obtained through search warrants if a person under arrest refuses. AZ ST § 28-1321(D)(1).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>50</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. AZ ST § 28-101(2).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>51</sup> Driving at or above this level is considered to be driving "while under extreme influence of intoxicating liquor." AZ ST § 28-1382(A). Specifically, it is unlawful if a person has an alcohol concentration of .15 or more within 2 hours of driving or being in actual physical control of the vehicle.

actual physical control of the vehicle. <sup>52</sup> Under a **separate implied consent law**, a law enforcement officer can request a driver to submit to a chemical test for either alcohol concentration or drug content if the driver is involved in an accident that caused either a death or a serious physical injury and either (1) there is "probable cause to believe" that the driver caused the accident or (2) the driver was issued a citation for a traffic offense (e.g., a drunk-driving offense, racing on the highway, reckless driving, or other "moving traffic violation"). The sanctions for refusing to submit to this test are the same as for refusing to submit to test under the regular implied consent law (AZ ST § 28-1321). AZ ST § 28-673.

fine of not more than <b>\$2,500</b> may be imposed, plus two
<u>First offense</u> (Class 1 misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>6</b> <b>months</b> (with not less than 10 consecutive days) and a
I. Standard DWI Offense and .08 Offense:
violation of AZ ST § 4-244(33) (driving with any amount of "spirituous liquor" in the body) is subject to the implied consent law. AZ ST § 28-1321(A)(1).
AZ ST § 28-1321(B), (G)(3), (L). A person under 21 years old who has been arrested for a
sion (mand).
<u>Subsequent refusal</u> (within 84 months) – <b>2-year suspen-</b>
None <u>First refusal</u> – 12-month suspension (mand);
None
INORE
None None
N
Yes Alcohol Screening Required. AZ ST § 28-1387(B).
<b>No</b> <b>Yes</b> AZ ST § 28-1387(I). <sup>53</sup>
<b>"Other bodily substances"</b> AZ ST § 28-1321(A).
<b>Yes</b> AZ ST § 28-1321(A).
Yes AZ ST § 28-1321(A).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>53</sup> "Except for another violation of this article [the DWI law provisions], the state shall not dismiss a charge of violating any provision of this article unless there is an insufficient legal or factual basis to pursue that charge." AZ ST § 28-1387(I).

\$500 mandatory assessments;
Second offense (within 84 months) (Class 1 misdemea-
nor) – Not more than <b>6 months</b> (with not less than 90
days) and a fine of not more than <b>\$2,500</b> , plus at least <b>30</b>
hours of community service and two \$1,250 mandatory
assessments.
AZ ST § 13-707; AZ ST § 13-802; AZ ST § 28-1381(I),
(K).
II. ≥ .15 Offense but < .20:
<u>First offense</u> (Class 1 misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>6</b>
months (with not less than 30 consecutive days) and a
fine of not more than \$2,500, plus a \$250 mandatory as-
sessment and two \$1,000 mandatory assessments; and
may be ordered to perform community service;
Second offense (within 84 months) (Class 1 misdemea-
nor) – Not more than <b>6 months</b> (with not less than 120
days) and a fine of not more than \$2,500, plus an addi-
tional mandatory assessment of \$250 and two \$1,250
mandatory assessments; and at least <b>30 hours</b> of commu-
nity service.
AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).
12 51 § 26 1362(D), (L).
III. ≥ <b>.20</b> :
<u>First offense</u> (Class 1 misdemeanor) – Not more than 6
<b>months</b> (with not less than 45 consecutive days) and a
fine of not more than \$2,500, plus a \$250 mandatory as-
sessment and two <b>\$1,000</b> mandatory assessments; and
may be ordered to perform community service;
Second offense (within 84 months) (Class 1 misdemea-
nor) – Not more than <b>6 months</b> (with no less than 180
days) and a fine of not more than \$2,500, plus a \$250
mandatory assessment and two <b>\$1,250</b> mandatory as-
sessments; and at least 30 hours community service.
AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).
III Aggregated DW/L. <sup>54</sup>
III. Aggravated DWI: <sup>54</sup>
<u>Class 4 felony</u> –1 year-3.75 years and may be fined not
more than \$150,000.
AZ ST § 13-702(D); AZ ST § 13-801; AZ ST § 28-
1383(J).
IV. Persons Under 21 Years Old:
Operating a motor vehicle with any "Spirituous Liquor"
in the body (Class 1 misdemeanor) – Not more than 6

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>54</sup> A court may sentence a person found guilty of a felony crime to a mitigated term, minimum term, presumptive term, maximum term or aggravated term. These terms are listed in order of severity. The court will take into consideration any mitigating or aggravating factors of the crime or defendant when sentencing such person. The terms listed for the Class 4 and 6 felonies are the ranges set forth by AZ ST § 13-702(D), from mitigated term to aggravated term.

Information and may be fined not note that \$1,3,000, A2, S1         § 4.244(3); A2 ST § 4.246(B); A2 ST § 3.707; AZ ST         § 13-802.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:         I Standard DWI Offense and .08 Offense:         First offense - 24 consecutive hours; <sup>67</sup> not less than         \$250;         Second offense (* within 84 months) - 30 consecutive         days; not less than \$500, AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).         II. 2. 15 Offense but < .20:         First offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days         shall be served consecutively; not less than \$500, AZ         ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         III. > 20:         First offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days         shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500;         Second offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days         shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ         ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI:         Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) - 8         months; not less than \$750;         Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; sot less than \$250;         Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; <th>§ 4-244(33); <math>AZ</math> ST § 4-246(B); <math>AZ</math> ST § 13-707; <math>AZ</math> ST § 13-802.Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:1. Standard DWI Offense and .08 Offense: First offense - 24 consecutive hours; 51 not less than \$250; Second offense*6 (within 84 months) - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. <math>AZ</math> ST § 28-1381(1), (K).II. <math>\geq</math> .15 Offense but &lt; .20: First offense - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. <math>AZ</math> ST § 28-1382(D), (E).III. <math>\geq</math> .20: First offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. <math>AZ</math> ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving withe lacensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DW1 offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person</th> <th></th> <th>months and may be fined not more than <b>\$2,500.</b> AZ ST</th>	§ 4-244(33); $AZ$ ST § 4-246(B); $AZ$ ST § 13-707; $AZ$ ST § 13-802.Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:1. Standard DWI Offense and .08 Offense: First offense - 24 consecutive hours; 51 not less than \$250; Second offense*6 (within 84 months) - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. $AZ$ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).II. $\geq$ .15 Offense but < .20: First offense - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. $AZ$ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).III. $\geq$ .20: First offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. $AZ$ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving withe lacensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DW1 offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person		months and may be fined not more than <b>\$2,500.</b> AZ ST
§ 13-802.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:         I. Standard DWI Offense and .08 Offense:         First offense - 24 consecutive hours; <sup>55</sup> not less than \$250;         Second offense <sup>66</sup> (within 84 months) - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).         II. ≥ .15 Offense but < .20:	§ 13-802.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:         I. Standard DWI Offense and .08 Offense: First offense 24 consecutive hours; <sup>25</sup> not less than \$250; Second offense <sup>66</sup> (within 84 months) - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).         II. ≥ .15 Offense but < .20: First offense - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         III. ≥ .20: First offense - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DW1: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DW1 offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) - 14 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) - 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F).         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>37</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:       1. Standard DWI Offense and .08 Offense: First offense = 24 consecutive hours; <sup>55</sup> not less than S250; Second offense <sup>56</sup> (within 84 months) = 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(I), (K).         II. ≥ .15 Offense but < .20: First offense = 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) = 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         III. ≥ .20: First offense = 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) = 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense = 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) = 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) = 4 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .08 = 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .15 - 20 = 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .15 - 20 = 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 vears of age in vehicle with .20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old; No	Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: <ul> <li>I. Standard DWI Offense and .08 Offense:</li> <li>First offense = 24 consecutive hours;<sup>55</sup> not less than \$250;</li> <li>Second offense<sup>56</sup> (within 84 months) = 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).</li> <li>II. ≥ .15 Offense but &lt; .20:</li> <li>First offense = -30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;</li> <li>Second offense (within 84 months) = 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>III. ≥ .20:</li> <li>First offense = -45 consecutive days; not less than \$500;</li> <li>Second offense (within 84 months) = 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>IV. Aggravated DWI:</li> <li>Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense = 4 months; not less than \$750;</li> <li>Third offense (within 84 months) = 4 months; not less than \$750;</li> <li>Third offense (within 84 months) = 4 months; not less than \$750;</li> <li>Third offense (within 84 months) = 4 months; not less than \$750;</li> <li>Third offense (within 84 months) = 4 months; not less than \$750;</li> <li>Third offense (within 84 months) = 4 months; not less than \$750;</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 = 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250;</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater = 45 consecutive days; not less than \$550;</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater = 45 consecutive days; not less than \$550;</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater = 45 consecutive days; not less than \$550;&lt;</li></ul>		
First offense – 24 consecutive hours;55 not less than \$250; Second offense56 (within 84 months) – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).II. $\geq$ .15 Offense but < .20: First offense – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$520; Second offense (within 84 months) – 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).III. $\geq$ .20: First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DW1 offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .26 – 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .26 – 20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$350. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F).V. Persons Under 21 Years Old; None	First offense - 24 consecutive hours; $^{55}$ not less than \$230; Second offense $^{56}$ (within 84 months) - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).II. $\geq$ .15 Offense but < .20: First offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).III. $\geq$ .20: First offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DW1 offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) - 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years	Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	0
<ul> <li>\$250; Second offense<sup>46</sup> (within 84 months) – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).</li> <li>II. ≥ .15 Offense but &lt; .20: First offense – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) – 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>III. ≥ .20: First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; sot less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-&lt;20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 – 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 – 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F).</li> <li>V. Persons Under 21 Years Old; None</li> </ul>	S250; Second offense*6 (within 84 months) - 30 consecutive days, not less than S500. AZ, ST § 28-1381(1), (K).II. $\geq$ 15 Offense but < 20: Eirst offense - 30 consecutive days; not less than S250; Second offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than S500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).III. $\geq$ 20: Eirst offense - 45 consecutive days; not less than S500; Second offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than S500; Second offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than S1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense - 4 months; not less than S750; Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than S750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with $08 - 10$ consecutive days; sort less than S250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than S500; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than S500; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than S500; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than S500; Driving with a gerson under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than S500; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than S500; Driving with a gerson under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than S500; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle <b< td=""><td>Wandatory Winning Territy The.</td><td></td></b<>	Wandatory Winning Territy The.	
Second offense <sup>56</sup> (within 84 months) - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).         II. ≥ .15 Offense but < .20:	Second offense**(within 84 months) - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).II. $\geq$ .15 Offense but < .20: First offense 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).III. $\geq$ .20: First offense - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense - 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; 		
days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).         II. ≥ 15 Offense but < 20:	days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381(1), (K).         II. ≥ .15 Offense but < .20:		
<ul> <li>II. ≥ .15 Offense but &lt; .20: First offense – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) – 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>III. ≥ .20: First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DW1 offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-&lt;20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$300. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1382; OL (E), (F). V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None</li> </ul>	II. ≥ 15 Offense but < .20:		
First offense – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;         Second offense (within 84 months) – 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ         ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         III. ≥ .20:         First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500;         Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500;         Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ         ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI:         Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15 – 20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$550.         AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F).         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old; None	First offense – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Second offense (within 84 months) – 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).III. $\geq .20$ : First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; sort less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; and less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; and less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; and less than \$250; Driving with a		
Second offense (within 84 months) – 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         III. ≥ .20:         First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI:         Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250.	Second offense (within 84 months) - 120 days (60 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).III. $\geq$ .20: First offense - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 days 		II. ≥ <b>.15 Offense but &lt; .20</b> :
shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ         ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         III. ≥ .20:         First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500;         Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ         ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI:         Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; scon age in vehicle with .15 -< 20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;	shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZST $\S$ 28-1382(D), (E).III. $\ge$ 20:First offense - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500;Second offense (within 84 months) - 180 days (90 daysshall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZST $\S$ 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI:Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a resultof a DWI offense - 4 months; not less than \$750;Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not lessthan \$750;Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) - 8months; not less than \$750;Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehiclewith .08 - 10 consecutive days; \$250.Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehiclewith .15-<20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;		<u>First offense</u> – <b>30 consecutive days</b> ; not less than <b>\$250</b> ;
<ul> <li>ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>III. ≥ .20: First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DW1 offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F). V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None</li> </ul>	ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         III. ≥ .20:         First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500;         Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ         ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI:         Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .05 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .05 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .05 – 20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .05 – 20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$500.         AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F).         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:       First and second offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		Second offense (within 84 months) – 120 days (60 days
<ul> <li>III. ≥ .20: <u>First offense</u> - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; <u>Second offense</u> (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>IV. Aggravated DWI: <u>Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result</u> of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; <u>Third offense</u> (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; <u>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle</u> with .08 – 10 consecutive days; s250. <u>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle</u> with .15-&lt;.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; <u>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle</u> with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F). V. Persons Under 21 Years Old; None</li> </ul>	III. ≥ .20:         First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500;         Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI:         Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;		shall be served consecutively); not less than \$500. AZ
First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; 320. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F).         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None       First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		ST § 28-1382(D), (E).
First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	First offense – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500; Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; 320. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F).         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None       First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
<ul> <li>Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-&lt;.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)</li> <li>V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None</li> </ul>	Second offense (within 84 months) – 180 days (90 days shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI:         Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;		
shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZST § 28-1382(D), (E).IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	shall be served consecutively); not less than \$1,000. AZ         ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI:         Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750;         Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;		• ·
<ul> <li>ST § 28-1382(D), (E).</li> <li>IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-&lt;.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)</li> <li>V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None</li> </ul>	ST § 28-1382(D), (E).         IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
<ul> <li>IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-&lt;.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)</li> <li>V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None</li> </ul>	IV. Aggravated DWI: Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		577
Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: NoneCommunity Service:First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		51 § 20-1302(D), (E).
Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	Driving while licensed is suspended/revoked as a result of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .02 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: NoneCommunity Service:First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		IV Aggravated DWI <sup>.</sup>
of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	of a DWI offense – 4 months; not less than \$750; Third offense (within 84 months) – 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		88
Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750;Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) - 8 months; not less than \$750;Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; \$250.Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500.AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	Third offense (within 84 months) - 4 months; not less than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) - 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 - 10 consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: NoneCommunity Service:First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
<ul> <li>than \$750;</li> <li>Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8</li> <li>months; not less than \$750;</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle</li> <li>with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle</li> <li>with .15-&lt;.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle</li> <li>with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500.</li> <li>AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)</li> <li>V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None</li> </ul>	than \$750; Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) – 8 months; not less than \$750; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with $.08 - 10$ consecutive days; \$250. Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with $.15 - <.20 - 30$ consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with $.20$ or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: NoneCommunity Service:First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
<ul> <li>months; not less than \$750;</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-&lt;.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;</li> <li>Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500.</li> <li>AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)</li> <li>V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None</li> </ul>	months; not less than \$750;         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle         with .08 - 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle         with .15-<.20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;		
Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500.AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500.         AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		Fourth and subsequent offense (within 84 months) $-8$
with .08- 10 consecutive days; \$250.Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehiclewith .15-<.20	with .08 – 10 consecutive days; \$250.         Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle         with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250;		months; not less than \$750;
Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .15-<.20 – 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: NoneCommunity Service:First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle
with .15-<.20- 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater + .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	with .15-<.20 - 30 consecutive days; not less than \$250; Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater - 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500.         AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses) Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		<u>with .08</u> – 10 consecutive days; \$250.
Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than \$500. AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F)V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	Driving with a person under 15 years of age in vehicle         with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than         \$500.         AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses)         Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
with .20 or greater       - 45 consecutive days; not less than         \$500.       AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	with .20 or greater – 45 consecutive days; not less than         \$500.         AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses)         Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		-
<b>\$500</b> . AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F) V. <b>Persons Under 21 Years Old</b> : <b>None</b>	\$500.         AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses)         Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28- 1383(D), (E), (F) V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382; AZ ST § 28-1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses)         Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
1383(D), (E), (F) V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	1383(D), (E), (F)         V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:         First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses)         Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None	V. Persons Under 21 Years Old: None         Community Service:       First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses)         Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
	Community Service:       First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses)         Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		1383(D), (E), (F)
	Community Service:       First and second offenses (including .15 and .20 offenses)         Yes <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		V. Persons Under 21 Vears Old: None
<u>i inst una secona orienses (meruang 15 ana 20 orienses)</u>	<b>Yes</b> <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court, except that for second or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §	Community Service:	
<b>Yes</b> <sup>57</sup> Discretionary with the court except that for second	or subsequent offenses within 84 months, the court must impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §	Community Service.	
	impose at least 30 hours of community service. AZ ST §		
	1 0		
1 0			1 0
	Felony offenses – Community service cannot be as-		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>55</sup> Provided the defendant completes an alcohol/drug screening, counseling, education/treatment program.
<sup>56</sup> For sentence enhancement purposes, a prior offense includes <u>any</u> previous drunk-driving offense.
<sup>57</sup> First offenders are eligible for community service after having served 24 consecutive hours in jail. Second offenders are eligible for community service after they have served 15 consecutive days in jail. AZ ST § 9-499.07(N); AZ ST § 11-459(M).

	signed. AZ ST § 11-459(B)(4), (R).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes Victims' compensation fund. AZ ST § 41-2407.
	Where there was an economic loss to a victim, the Court
	may order that all or any portion of the fine be allocated
	as restitution. AZ ST § 13-804.
Other:	<b>Driver Training Course</b> : A person may be required to attend and successfully complete a driver-training course. AZ ST § 28-3306. This requirement is mandatory for first-time offenders under the age of 18. AZ ST § 28-
	<ul> <li>3321.</li> <li>Probation: This is discretionary.</li> <li><u>First or second offense</u> (including .15 offenses) – 5 years;</li> </ul>
	<u>Aggravated DWI Offenses</u> $-10$ years.
	AZ ST § 13-902(B). Probation may be extended if a condition of probation, such as restitution, is not met. AZ ST § 13-902(C).
	Assessments: Under AZ ST § 12-116.01; AZ ST § 12- 116.02, the court is to levy penalty assessments based on a percentage of the fine imposed. These assessments may be waived if they create a hardship on the offender or his/her family.
	<b>Reimbursement</b> : The court shall order misdemeanants sentenced to a jail term to reimburse for costs, and the court may require reimbursement for any public costs incurred pursuant to defendant's case. AZ ST § 13- 804.01; AZ ST § 13-809.
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	+
Administrative Per Se Law:	<b>Yes</b> $\geq$ .08 ( $\geq$ .04 for Commercial Motor Vehicle Opera-
	tors) <b>Suspension</b> – Not less than <b>90 consecutive days</b> (30 consecutive days mandatory). <sup>58</sup> AZ ST § 28- 1385(A), (F).
	The procedures of the <i>admin. per se</i> law also apply to persons under 21 years old who have been arrested for a
	violation of AZ ST § 4-244(34) (driving with any amount
	of "spirituous liquor" in the body). However, the <i>admin</i> per se law does not appear to authorize a license suspen- sion for a violation of $\Delta Z ST \le 4.244(34)$
Other:	sion for a violation of AZ ST § 4-244(34).Under AZ ST § 28-3306(A)(1); AZ ST § 28-3315(A),The Department may suspend/revoke a person's license

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>58</sup> For an administrative per se violation where there has not been: (1) serious physical injury; (2) a prior drunk-driving offense conviction within 60 months; or (3) a refusal to submit to a chemical test within 60 months, the license suspension period is not less than 30 consecutive days (mandatory) and a restricted license for not less than 60 consecutive days. AZ ST § 28-1385(G); AZ ST § 28-1387(E).

	for not more than 1 year if that person has "committed" an offense that usually requires license revocation (e.g., a second DWI offense within 84 months). Such action may be taken <u>without</u> a preliminary hearing and could occur prior to a conviction.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	I. Except as noted in II, <u>first offense</u> (including .15 of- fenses) – <b>Suspension</b> for not less than <b>90 consecutive</b> <b>days nor more than 1 year</b> ; <sup>59</sup> <u>second offense</u> (including .15 and .20 offenses) – <b>Revo-</b> <b>cation</b> for <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Aggravated DWI offenses</u> – <b>Revocation</b> for <b>3 years</b> .
	II. Driving under the influence of a controlled substance or with any amount of a controlled substance in the body: <u>first or second offense</u> (within 84 months) – <b>Revocation</b> for <b>1 year minimum</b> ; <u>Aggravated DWI offenses</u> – <b>Revocation</b> for <b>3 years</b> .
	AZ ST § 28-1381(K); AZ ST § 28-1382(E); AZ ST § 28- 1383(J); AZ ST § 28-1385; AZ ST § 28-1387(D); AZ ST § 28-3304(A); AZ ST § 28-3315.
	III. Persons Under 18 Years Old: A person <18 years old convicted of either a DWI offense or driving with any "spirituous liquor in the body" is sub- ject to a <b>suspension for 2 years</b> . However, if that person is convicted of an Aggravated DWI offense he/she is sub- ject to a <b>suspension for 3 years</b> . This licensing action is <u>in addition</u> to any other sanctions that may be imposed. This action is not mandatory. Restricted driving privileg- es are available. AZ ST § 28-3320(A).
	IV. Persons $\geq 18$ but $\leq 21$ Years Old: There appears to be no licensing sanction against a per- son who is $\geq 18$ but $\leq 21$ years old who operates a motor vehicle with any "spirituous liquor" in the body. <sup>60</sup> AZ ST § 4-244(34); 4-246(B).
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev): Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	
Years, etc.): Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	ALL OFFENSES: <u>First offense</u> – <b>90 consecutive</b> days; <sup>61,62</sup>

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>59</sup> This licensing action does not apply to first and second offenders who have been suspended pursuant to the implied consent or administrative per se laws. AZ ST § 28-1387(D).
 <sup>60</sup> However, if would make sense that the same licensing provisions set out for persons age 21 or older would apply.
 <sup>61</sup> For a drunk-driving offense conviction where there has not been: (1) serious physical injury; (2) a prior drunk-driving offense

<u>Second offense</u> – 1 year; <u>Third and subsequent offense</u> – 3 years.
<u></u>
<u>First or second offense</u> – <b>Yes</b> . <sup>63</sup> AZ ST § 28-1387(B), mandatory for Aggravated DWI cases. AZ ST § 28-1383.
<u>First, second, third or subsequent offenses</u> – <b>Yes</b> . AZ ST § 28-1387.
<b>Forfeiture (Mandatory)</b> : The vehicle used in the offense and owned by the offender is forfeited for: (1) $3^{rd}$ or subsequent DWI offense; (2) a DWI offense while transporting a child <15 years old; (3) a DWI offense while the license is still suspended or revoked for a prior DWI offense, or; (4) a DWI offense or refusal to submit to a breath, blood or urine test while required to have an ignition interlock device AZ ST § 1383; AZ ST § 28-1384.
N/A
<b>Home Detention (Work Release)</b> : Only first and second DWI offenders (including .15 offenders) are eligible for the "home detention" (or work release) program. However, before starting this program first offenders must complete 24 consecutive hours in jail and second offenders must complete 15 consecutive days in jail. AZ ST § 9-499.07(N); AZ ST § 11-459(M), (R).
<b>Incarceration Costs</b> : All drunk-driving law offenders must be assessed the costs of their incarceration. The costs charged are based on the offender's financial capa- bilities. AZ ST § 13-804.01; AZ ST § 28-1444.
<b>EMS Costs</b> : A person convicted of a DWI offense who as a result of such offense has negligently caused an accident that resulted in an emergency response is liable for the expenses associated with the response, liability not to exceed \$1,000 for a single accident. AZ ST § 28-

conviction within 60 months; or (3) a refusal to submit to a chemical test within 60 months of the DWI offense, the license suspension period is not less than 30 consecutive days (mandatory) and a restricted license for not less than 60 consecutive days. AZ ST § 28-1385(F); AZ ST § 28-1387(E).

 $<sup>^{62}</sup>$  This suspension does not apply to first or second offenders who have been suspended pursuant to either the implied consent or administrative per se laws. AZ ST § 28-1387(D).

 $<sup>^{63}</sup>$  If a defendant has been ordered to participate in an alcohol education or treatment program, the license cannot be restored until he/she proves completion of such program. AZ ST § 28-3319(C).

Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory for all offenders (by the department of trans-
	portation);
	Permissive (by the courts).
Conditions of Use:	Term:
	<b>12 months</b> for DWI conviction (< .20)
	<b>18 months</b> for BAC $\geq$ .20
	<b>24 months</b> for subsequent DWI with BAC $\geq$ .20, or ag-
	gravated DWI
	AZ ST § 28-3319(D).
	Offender must provide proof of compliance at least once
	every 90 days.
	AZ ST § 28-1461.
	AZ ST § 28-1321; AZ ST § 28-1381; AZ ST § 28-1382;
	AZ ST § 28-1401 et seq., AZ ST § 28-3319.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> State v. Superior Court In and For Pima
	County, 691 P.2d 1073 (Ariz. 1984).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	<b>No</b> <sup>64</sup>
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Note</b> : License revocation for 180 days pursuant to a civil penalty. AZ ST § 28-672.
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for not less than 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazard- ous materials) if while driving a CMV that person has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04, or is under the influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled substance. For a subsequent viola- tion, the "disqualification" is for life.
	A CMV operator is subject to the normal DWI sanctions. Under the regular DWI law, it is illegal per se for a person to drive a CMV with a BAC/BrAC ≥.04. Also, a CMV operator is subject to the sanctions and procedures of the admin. per se law if operating a CMV with a BAC/BrAC ≥.04. AZ ST § 28-101(2); AZ ST § 28-1301; AZ ST § 28- 1381(A)(4); AZ ST § 28-1385(A)(2)(b); AZ ST § 28-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>64</sup> I. A person who causes a death while committing certain traffic violations (failure to stop a red light, failure to yield to oncoming traffic while making a left turn and failure to stop at a stop sign) is subject to a "civil penalty" of not more than \$1,000, license suspension, community service, and must complete a Traffic Survival School. AZ ST § 28-672(C), (D). II. It is an "aggravating circumstance" for sentencing purposes for a person to commit either aggravated assault, negligent homicide, manslaughter or second degree murder while driving with a BAC $\geq$ .15 AZ ST § 13-702.

	3312.
	The State has also adopted Federal CDL disqualification (which are similar to the above actions) and out-of service provisions via AZ ST § 28-5204(B). Under these provi- sions, a person holding a CDL must be placed "out-of- service" for 24 hours if operating a CMV with any mea- surable or detectable amount of alcohol in the system. 49 CFR 383.51; 49 CFR 392.5.
Driving While License Suspended or	
<u>Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI</u> <u>Offense</u> : <sup>65</sup>	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term):	Class 1 misdemeanor – Not more than 6 months and may be fined not more than \$2,500;Class 4 felony – Any DWI offense and driving on a sus- pended/revoked license for a previous DWI conviction (Aggravated DWI) – 1 year-3.75 years and may be fined not more than \$150,000.AZ ST § 13-702; AZ ST § 13-801; AZ ST § 28-1383; AZ ST § 28-3473(B).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	<u>Class 1 Misdemeanor offense</u> – <b>48 consecutive hours</b> AZ ST § 28-3473(B) <u>Class 4 Felony offense</u> – <b>4 months</b> . AZ ST § 28- 1383(D).
Length of Term of License	
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action:	<u>Class 1 Misdemeanor offense</u> – For driving while sus- pended – <b>suspension.</b> For driving while revoked – <b>revo-</b> <b>cation.</b> AZ ST § 28-3473(D) <u>Class 4 felony</u> – <b>revocation.</b> AZ ST § 28-1383(I).
Withdrawal Action:	<u>Class 1 Misdemeanor offense</u> – <b>Suspension</b> equal to original suspension period not to exceed one year from the date of reinstatement. <b>Revocation</b> for one additional year of revocation. AZ ST § 28-3473(D). <u>Class 4 Felony</u> – <b>3 years</b> . AZ ST § 28-1383(I).
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The terms above are mandatory.
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>65</sup> I. The law specifically provides that the sanctions given also apply to persons who operate a CMV during a CDL disqualification. II. The law provides for the following sanctions for a violation of an "out-of-service" order: (1) a civil penalty of at least \$1,000. [AZ ST § 28-5241(B), (D)(1), (F)]; (2) the following CDL disqualification periods: <u>first violation</u> – 90 days (mand); <u>second violation</u> (within 10 years) – 1 year (mand); <u>third or subsequent violation</u> (within 10 years) – 3 years (mand). If the violation involved the transportation of hazardous materials, the disqualification periods are as follows: <u>first violation</u> – 180 days (mand); <u>second or subsequent violation</u> (within 10 years) – 2 years (mand). AZ ST § 28-3312(B), (C).

State Has Such a Law (Vas/Na):	No	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Lenve Deleted To Alechel U		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AZ ST § 28-668.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	<b>Yes</b> AZ ST § 28-668.	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/	<b>21</b> AZ ST § 4-101(18); AZ ST § 4-244(9), (16).	
Purchase:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> There is an exemption for religious services or	
Possession/Consumption:	ceremonies. AZ ST § 4-226; AZ ST § 4-244(9), (40); AZ	
	ST § 4-249.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	<b>Yes</b> AZ ST § 4-311. <sup>66</sup>	
(Yes/No):		
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	Yes Ontiveros v. Borak, 667 P.2d 200 (Ariz. 1983);	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	Brannigan v. Raybuck, 667 P.2d 213 (Ariz. 1983).	
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions - Social Hosts:	<b>Yes (Limited)</b> Liability is limited to the actions of intox-	
1	icated minors. AZ ST § 4-301; AZ ST § 4-311; AZ ST §	
	4-312(B). <sup>67</sup>	
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	<b>Yes</b> A social host may be charged with contributing to the	
	dependency or delinquency of a minor, a class 1 misde-	
	meanor, punishable by not more than 6 months and/or not	
	more than \$2,500.	
	AZ ST § 13-707; AZ ST § 13-802; AZ ST § 13-3613.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Employees of Estudioninents that beive	I [	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>66</sup> AZ ST § 4-311 limits liability to situations where the injury-causing patron was obviously intoxicated or under the legal drinking age.

age. <sup>67</sup> See also Estate of Hernandez v. Arizona Board of Regents, 866 P.2d 1330 (Ariz. 1994); Petolicchio v. Santa Cruz County Fair and Rodeo Ass'n, Inc., 866 P.2d 1342 (Ariz. 1994).

Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Class 1 Misdemeanor</b> AZ ST § 4-244(14); AZ ST § 4-246(B).
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	Not more than 6 months, and may be fined not more than\$2,500. AZ ST § 13-707; AZ ST § 13-802.For businesses, the fine may be not more than \$20,000.AZ ST § 13-803.Assessments: An offender is also subject to assessments.AZ ST § 12-116.01; AZ ST § 12-116.02.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Suspension or revocation. <sup>68</sup> AZ ST § 4-210(A)(9).
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Length of term not fixed
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Class 1 Misdemeanor</b> <sup>69</sup> AZ ST § 4-244(9); AZ ST § 4-246(B).
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> , and may be fined not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . AZ ST § 13-707; AZ ST § 13-802. For businesses, the fine may be not more than <b>\$20,000</b> . AZ ST § 13-803. <b>Assessments</b> : An offender is also subject to assessments. AZ ST § 12-116.01; AZ ST § 12-116.02.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes Suspension</b> or revocation AZ ST § 4-210(A)(9).
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Length of term not fixed.
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>70</sup> AZ ST § 4-244(23).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>68</sup> In lieu of, or in addition to suspension or revocation, a licensee may be subject to a civil fine of not less than \$200 or more than \$3000. AZ ST § 4-210.01.
<sup>69</sup> In addition to the sanctions given under separate provisions of the law, it is a Class 2 misdemeanor to give or furnish "spirituous liquor" to a person who is under the age of 21. The sanctions for this offense are a jail term of not more than 4 months, and a possible fine of not more than \$750. AZ ST § 4-244(16); 4-246(A); AZ ST § 13-707; AZ ST § 13-802.

Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AZ ST § 4-251(A)(2).	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AZ ST § 4-251(A)(1).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>70</sup> The Arizona Court of Appeals held that the Anti-Happy Hour Law applies only to the number of drinks sold. This law does not limit the alcoholic content or size of such drinks. *Callender v. Transpacific Hotel Corp.*, 880 P.2d 1103 (Ariz.App.Div. 2 1993).

STATE	ARKANSAS
General Reference:	Arkansas Code Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Intoxicated. <sup>71</sup> AR ST § 5-65-102(1); AR ST § 5-65- 103(a).
	For Persons Under 21 Years Old – Under the Influence. AR ST § 5-65-303(a).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq$ .08. <sup>72</sup> AR ST § 5-65-103(b); AR ST § 5-65-204(a).
	<u>For Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> $- \ge .02$ but $< .08$ . <sup>73</sup> AR ST § 5-65-303(b).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	<b>.08</b> . AR ST § 5-65-206.
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Any Intoxicant or Controlled Substance. AR ST § 5- 65-102(2); AR ST § 5-65-103(a).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No
Implied Consent Law:	<b>No</b> <sup>74</sup> AR ST § 5-65-202; AR ST § 5-65-309(a).
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AR ST § 5-65-202.
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal Cases) Weaver v. City of Fort Smith, 777 S.W.2d 867 (Ark. App. 1989); Spicer v. State, 799 S.W.2d 562 (Ark. App. 1990); Medlock v. State, 964 S.W.2d 196 (Ark. 1998).
Other Information:	Based upon probable cause of DWI offense related to an accident involving either a death or where there is reason to believe that a death may occur, a driver may be com-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>71</sup> The term "intoxicated" means influenced or affected by the ingestion of alcohol, a controlled substance, any intoxicant, or any combination thereof. AR ST § 5-65-102(1). The term "influence" means being controlled or affected by the ingestion of an alcoholic beverage or similar intoxicant or a combination thereof to a such a degree that a person's driving ability is altered or diminished even to the slightest degree. AR ST § 5-65-302(1). The term "controlled substance" means a drug, substance, or immediate precursor in Schedules I-IV. AR ST § 5-65-102(1).
<sup>72</sup> Standard: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. AR ST § 5-65-103(b); AR

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> **Standard**: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. AR ST § 5-65-103(b); AR ST § 5-65-104; AR ST § 5-65-204(a)(1); AR ST § 5-65-303(b). <sup>73</sup> Under AR ST § 5-65-311(a), the sanctions for this offense are in <u>addition</u> to any other sanctions that may be applicable under other

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> Under AR ST § 5-65-311(a), the sanctions for this offense are in <u>addition</u> to any other sanctions that may be applicable under other provisions of law. To complement this provision, AR ST § 5-65-311(d) provides that a person under 21 years old may be prosecuted for a regular DWI offense if having a BAC > .04 but < .08.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>74</sup> A law enforcement officer can request a driver to submit to a chemical test: (1) if the driver has been arrested for a DWI offense; (2) if the driver has been involved in an accident; or (3) if, at the time of a DWI arrest, there is "reasonable cause to believe" that the driver is intoxicated or has a BAC  $\geq$  .08. AR ST § 5-65-202(a). A law enforcement officer can request a driver who is under 21 years old to submit to a chemical test: (1) if the underage person has been arrested for any offense arising out of driving while under the influence or with a BAC  $\geq$  .02 but < .08; (2) if the underage person has been involved in an accident; or (3) if a law enforcement officer has stopped the underage person based upon "reasonable cause to believe" that the underage person has been driving while under the influence or with a BAC  $\geq$  .02 but < .08. AR ST § 5-65-309(a).

	pelled to submit to a test of their blood, breath or urine for alcohol or drug presence and concentration. AR ST § 5-65-208(a).
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>	
Blood:	Yes AR ST § 5-65-202(a)
Urine:	Yes AR ST § 5-65-202(a)
Other:	No
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>75</sup> AR ST § 5-65-107.
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	Yes AR ST § 5-65-107.
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes AR ST § 5-65-109. The report must include the of-
(Yes/No):	fender's driving record, an alcohol problem assessment,
	and a victim impact statement (if applicable).
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
<u>Chemical Test</u> .	
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	N/A
Test:	
Refusal to Take Implied Consent	
Chemical Test:	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	Persons Under 21 Years Old: <sup>76</sup>
	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ;
	Second offense – Not less than \$200 or more than \$1,000
	and not less than <b>30 days</b> (mand) community service;
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – Not less than $500$ or more than $52000$ and not less than $(0, down (mond))$ community
	than <b>\$2,000</b> <u>and</u> not less than <b>60 days</b> (mand) community service.
	The minimum fines appear to be mandatory.
	AR ST § 5-65-305(a); AR ST § 5-65-306.
	AK N   0 - (0 - (0 - (0 - (0 - (0 - (0 - (0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>75</sup> Persons charged with a DWI offense must be tried on such charges or plead to such charges and no such charges shall be reduced. AR ST § 5-65-107. For persons who are convicted of or who have pleaded guilty to or *nolo contendere* to a first DWI offense, the court is prohibited from placing such persons on probation and later discharging the accused without adjudication after the probation period has been served. AR ST § 5-65-108(c). For persons under 21 years old who have pleaded guilty to or *nolo contendere* to a first offense of "driving while under the influence" or with a BAC of " $\geq$  .02 but <.08," the court is prohibited from placing such persons on probation and discharging the accused without an adjudication of guilt and expunging the record. AR ST § 5-65-308.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>76</sup> There are no statutory provisions providing for criminal sanction for refusal to take implied consent chemical test for offenders age 21 years or older.
 <sup>77</sup> A person is eligible for a restricted license based upon extreme and unusual hardship that the person must use a vehicle: (1) to go

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> A person is eligible for a restricted license based upon extreme and unusual hardship that the person must use a vehicle: (1) to go to and from a place of employment; (2) in the course of employment; (3) to and from an educational institution; (4) to and from an Alcohol Safety Education and Treatment Course; or (5) to and from either a hospital or a clinic for medical treatment. AR ST § 5-65-

(Susp/Rev):	Second refusal78 (within 5 years) – Suspension – 2 years (mand);Third refusal (mand);(within 5 years) – Revocation – 3 years (mand);Fourth or subsequent refusal tion – For Life (mand).(within 5 years) – Revoca- tion – For Life (mand).AR ST § 5-65-104; AR ST § 5-65-118; AR ST § 5-65- 205(a); AR ST § 5-65-402.
	For Persons Under 21 Years Old:         First refusal – Suspension – 90 days;         Second refusal – Suspension – 1 year (mand);         Third or subsequent refusal – Revocation until the person reaches 21 or for 3 years whichever is longer (mand). AR ST § 5-65-310(b).
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	
Offense:	
Criminal Constitution	
Criminal Sanctions:	First offense Not less than <b>24 hours</b> or more than <b>1</b>
Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>24 hours</b> or more than <b>1</b> year or community service in lieu of jail and not less than <b>\$150</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – Not less than <b>7 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , or no fewer than 30 days community service and not less than <b>\$400</b> or more than <b>\$3,000</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years of 1 <sup>st</sup> offense) – Not less than <b>90 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , or no fewer than 90 days community service and not less than <b>\$900</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Fourth offense</u> (within 5 years of 1 <sup>st</sup> offense) (Felony) – At least <b>1 year</b> but not more than <b>6 years</b> or not less than 1 year community service and not less than <b>\$900</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Fifth or subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years of the 1 <sup>st</sup> of- fense) (Felony) – At least <b>2 years</b> but not more than <b>10</b> <b>years</b> or not less than 2 years community service and not less than <b>\$900</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> .
	If Person Under 16 Years Old Is Passenger: <u>First offense</u> – Not less than 7 days or more than 1 year; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – Not less than 30 days or more than 1 year or no fewer than 60 days community service; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years of 1 <sup>st</sup> offense) – Not less than 120 days or more than 1 year or no fewer than 120

 <sup>120(</sup>a).
 <sup>78</sup> However, AR ST § 5-65-205(d) provides that the Office of Driver Services consider DWI conviction as well as refusal to submit to a chemical test as countable previous offenses in determining length of suspension or revocation.

Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: Other Penalties: Community Service:	days community service;         Fourth offense (within 5 years of 1 <sup>st</sup> offense) (Felony) –         At least 2 years but not more than 6 years or not less         than 2 years community service;         Fifth or subsequent offense (within 5 years of 1 <sup>st</sup> offense)         (Felony) – At least 3 years but not more than 10 years or         not less than 3 years community service.         AR ST § 5-65-111; AR ST § 5-65-112.         For Persons Under 21 Years Old:         First offense – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second offense – Not less than \$200 or more than \$500;         Second offense – Not less than \$200 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent offense – Not less than \$500 or more than \$2,000.         AR ST § 5-65-305(a).         The base fines above appear to be mandatory.         I. First offense – In lieu of imprisonment (the law does not specify the length of time a person must do community service);         Second offense – (within 5 years) – Not less than 30 mandatory days in lieu of jail;         Third offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 90 days (mand) in lieu of jail;         Fifth or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 1 year (mand) in lieu of jail;         Fifth or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 1 year (mand) in lieu of jail;         Fifth or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 1 year (mand) in lieu of jail;         Fifth or subsequent offense (withi
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Initial of subsequent offense         P of not less than of days           (mand).         AR ST § 5-65-306.           Yes         AR ST § 5-4-104(d)(4); AR ST § 5-4-205; AR ST §
Other:	16-90-307; AR ST § 16-90-701, et seq.A defendant may have to pay assessments or fees.
	AR ST § 5-65-115.
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>79</sup> The administrative licensing action is reversed if the licensee is acquitted of the drunk-driving charges upon which such action was

	First violation – Suspension 6 months; Second violation (within 5 years) – Suspension 24 months; Third violation (within 5 years) – Suspension 30 months; Fourth or subsequent violation (within 5 years) – Revocation 4 years.Driving while intoxicated by a controlled substance: First violation (driving while intoxicated by a controlled substance: First violation (driving while intoxicated by a controlled substance) – Suspension 6 months;AR ST § 5-65-104(a)(2).For Persons Under 21 Years Old: First offense – Suspension 90 days; Second offense – Suspension 1 year (mand); Third or subsequent offenses – Revocation until the person reaches 21 or for 3 years whichever is longer (mand) AR ST § 5-65-120(b); AR ST § 5-65-304(a), (b); AR ST § 5-65-402.
Post DWI Conviction: <sup>81, 82</sup>	
Licensing Action: Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	No specific licensing following a conviction under AP
	No specific licensing following a conviction under AR ST § 5-65-102 (regular drunk-driving offenses) or AR ST § 5-65-303 (.02 offense for persons < 21 years old). It appears that licensing action is done through the adminis- trative per se laws.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	
Years, etc.):	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	45 days if the issuance of an ignition interlock restricted
Withdrawal:	license is available. AR ST § 5-65-104(a)(2)(B)(ii).
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> AR ST § 5-65-104(b); AR ST § 5-65-115(a). <sup>83</sup>

based. AR ST § 5-65-402(d)(2)(b). <sup>80</sup> A person is eligible for a restricted license based upon extreme and unusual hardship that the person must use a vehicle: (1) to go to and from a place of employment; (2) in the course of employment; (3) to and from an educational institution; (4) to and from an Alcohol Safety Education and Treatment Course; or (5) to and from either a hospital or a clinic for medical treatment. A restricted permit shall <u>not</u> be granted to any person suspended for a second or subsequent violation. AR ST § 5-65-120. <sup>81</sup> Via separate law, a person convicted of driving while under the influence of a controlled substance <u>must</u> have the driving privileg-

es suspended for 6 months. For extreme hardships, restricted driving privileges may be granted. AR ST § 27-16-915. <sup>82</sup> In addition to any other sanctions provided by law, a person under 18 years old who is convicted of a DWI offense (including

driving while under the influence of a controlled substance) must have the license suspended for either 12 months or until reaching 18 whichever is the longer suspension period. However, a restricted hardship driving permit is available for employment/educational purposes. AR ST § 5-64-710; AR ST § 5-65-116; AR ST § 27-16-914. <sup>83</sup> An alcohol education/treatment program must be completed before a suspended/revoked license can be reinstated. AR ST § 5-65-

<sup>115(</sup>b). Additionally, a reinstatement fee of \$100 must be paid. AR ST § 27-16-508.

Alcohol Treatment:	Persons under 21 Years Old who are convicted of "driving while under the influence" or with a BAC $\geq$ .02 but < .08 under AR ST § 5-65-303, or have refused to submit to a chemical test under AR ST § 5-65-310, must complete an alcohol and driving education program. AR ST § 5-65-307(a). This program must be completed be- fore a person's license can be reinstated. AR ST § 5-65- 307(b), (e).Yes AR ST § 5-65-115(a). Alcohol education or treat- ment is mandatory and is in addition to any other sanc- tion.
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Forfeiture
Authorized by Specific Statutory         Authority:         Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	For a fourth DWI offense (within 3 years), a court may order the defendant's motor vehicle forfeited. AR ST § 5-65-117(a).         N/A
Released / Other:	
Other	I. License Plate Impoundment. License plates shall be impounded for no less than <b>90 days</b> if a driver has been arrested for driving while suspended/revoked where such suspension/revocation was based on an alcohol offense conviction. <sup>84</sup> AR ST § 5-65-106.
	II. Motor Vehicle Registration Suspension. A person who has had his/her license suspended or revoked for <b>ANY</b> drunk-driving offense (AR ST § 5-65-103 or AR ST § 5-65-303) or the CDL disqualified for driving a CMV in violation of the drunk-driving provisions of AR ST § 27-23-114 <u>must</u> have the registration of <b>ALL</b> of the vehicles owned by them suspended for the same period of time as the licensing action or for 1 year whichever is longer. <sup>85</sup> AR ST § 5-65-401(3); AR ST § 5-65-403.
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Highway Work Zone</b> : <sup>86</sup> The fine is <b>doubled</b> if the of- fense is committed in a Highway Work Zone. AR ST § 27-50-408(b).
T '4' T 4 1 1	
Ignition Interlock:	D '// 1
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	<b>Permissive</b> The Office of Driver Services may restrict a

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>84</sup> However, a temporary license plate may be issued if the court determines that it is in the best interests of the dependents of the

offender. <sup>85</sup> If a family member or a co-owner of a vehicle subject to registration suspension is completely dependent upon the use of such vehicle for the "necessities of life," a restricted registration may be issued allowing such dependent person to operate the vehicle. AR

ST § 5-65-403(j). <sup>86</sup> An additional fine equal to all of the other fines is imposed for committing a "moving traffic violation" in a highway work zone when construction personnel are present. A "moving traffic violation" includes driving while intoxicated, under age driving while the influence and refusal to submit to a chemical test. AR ST § 27-50-408(b)(l)(A), (e).

	first or second offender to operating only a motor vehicle that is equipped with a functioning ignition interlock de- vice. AR ST § 5-65-104; AR ST § 5-65-118.
Conditions of Use:	Only offenders convicted of DWI (alcohol) may be per- mitted to operate a motor vehicle that is equipped with an ignition interlock device. Any offender convicted of DWI (drugs) shall not be eligible to receive an ignition interlock restricted license. AR ST § 5-65-104; AR ST § 5-65-118; AR ST § 5-65- 205. A subsequent offender may be issued an ignition inter- lock restricted license after a 45-day license suspension. However such offender may drive only to and from work, school, alcohol safety treatment or ignition interlock ser- vice. The restriction may continue up to 1 year after the person's license is no longer suspended or restricted. AR ST § 5-65-104; AR ST § 5-65-118.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>Sheridan v. State</i> , 247 S.W.3d 481 (Ark. 2007).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Negligent homicide</b> – Class B felony. AR ST § 5-10- 105(a). <sup>87</sup>
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	Class B felony
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>5 years</b> or more than <b>20 years</b> and not more than <b>\$15,000</b> . AR ST § 5-4-40l(a)(3); AR ST § 5-4-201(a)(1).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> (mandatory). AR ST § 27-16-905(1); AR ST § 27-50-307(b).
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>1</b> year AR ST § 27-16-912.
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	l year AR ST § 27-16-905(1); AR ST § 27-16-912.
Other:	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1
Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's	mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate-
Licenses (CDL):	rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person has a

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>87</sup> The negligent homicide statute does not preclude a prosecutor from charging a homicide by vehicle as manslaughter. AR ST § 5-10-105 expressly allows for murder or manslaughter charges to arise from a homicide involving the operation of an automobile. *Simmerson v. State* 25 S.W.3d 439 (2000).

BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04, is intoxicated, or refuses to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration. <sup>88</sup>
For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "dis- qualification" is for life (10 years mand).
It is a Class B Misdemeanor to operate a CMV while in- toxicated or with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04.
Sanctions: <u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>90 days</b> and not more than <b>\$1000</b>
<u>Second offense</u> – Mandatory community service for not less than 30 days in lieu of jail; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> - Mandatory community ser-
vice for not less than 60 days in lieu of jail. AR ST § 27-23-114(g).
A person who is convicted of this offense must undergo an alcohol abuse assessment. AR ST § 27-23-114(f).
In addition, persons who have any alcohol in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. AR ST § 27-23-103; AR ST § 27-23-111; AR ST § 27-23-112; AR ST § 27-23-113; AR ST § 27-23-114; AR ST § 27-23- 115.
Under separate provisions of law, persons may have the CDL suspended for 1 year if convicted of operating a CMV while under the influence of a controlled substance. AR ST § 27-16-915(a), (b); AR ST § 27-23-112(a).
DWI Offenses Involving Motor Vehicles Used in Commerce and Regulated Under the State's Motor Carrier Act. A person commits a misdemeanor if that person operates a motor vehicle regulated under this act while possessing, using, or under the influence of intox- icating liquor, a controlled substance, or any substance that renders the person incapable of safely operating a motor vehicle. The sanctions for this offense are as fol- lows: <u>first offense</u> – not less than \$200 or more than \$1,000;
second and subsequent offense – not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000. AR ST § 23-13-258.
This law cannot abrogate or supersede the regular DWI law. i.e., a person must be charged with a violation of the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>88</sup> The CMV implied consent provision (AR ST § 27-23-115(a)) applies to a test for both a blood alcohol concentration and drugs; however, the disqualification provision (AR ST § 27-23-112) applies only to a refusal to submit to a test for an alcohol concentration.

	DWI law in preference to this one. If a person is unable
	to pay a fine, that person may be given community ser-
	vice as an alternative sanction. AR ST § 5-65-114.
Driving While License Suspended or	
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI	
Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Misdemeanor – Not less than 2 days or more than 6
	<b>months</b> and not more than <b>\$1000</b> . AR ST § 5-65-105; AR ST § 27-16-303.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<b>10 days</b> if suspension or revocation is based on a DWI
Imprisonment/Fine:	charge. AR ST § 5-65-105.
Length of Term of License	
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action:	Suspension or Revocation AR ST § 27-16-303.
Withdrawal Action:	
Mandatory Term of License	Original suspension period is extended a like period.
Withdrawal Action:	Original period of revocation is extended 1 year. AR ST §
	27-16-303.
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes AR ST § 5-65-208(a); AR ST § 5-65-202(b).
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the	
the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes <sup>89</sup>
Vehicle Passengers:	N/A
Pedestrian:	N/A
Lawa Establishing the Minimum Area	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages	
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages: Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> AR ST § 3-3-202; AR ST § 3-3-203. There is an
Sale/Purchase:	exemption for family and religion.
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> AR ST § 3-3-203. There is an employment exemption
Possession/Consumption:	for persons over 18. AR ST § 3-3-204. Note: Under AR
r obsession/ consumption.	To persons over 10. The DT y 5-5-204. Hole. Older AR

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>89</sup> Based upon probable cause of DWI offense related to an accident involving either a death or where there is reason to believe that a death may occur, a deceased driver may be administered a test of his/her blood, breath or urine for alcohol or drug presence and concentration. AR ST § 5-65-202(b); AR ST § 5-65-208(a); AR ST § 5-65-309(b).

	ST § 3-3-203(a)(2), "intoxicating liquor, wine or beer in the body of a minor <u>shall not be</u> deemed to be in his possession."
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> AR ST § 16-126-103; AR ST § 16-126-104; AR ST § 16- 126-105.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	Yes See Shannon v. Wilson, 947 S.W.2d 349 (Ark. 1997); Jackson v. Cadillac Cowboy, Inc., 986 S.W.2d 410 (Ark. 1999).
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> Social host liability is prohibited via statute. AR ST § 16-126-106.
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	A social host may be charged with contributing to the delinquency of a minor or contributing to the delinquency of a juvenile. Each is a class A misdemeanor, punishable by a term of not more than 1 year and/or a fine of not more than \$1,000. AR ST § 5-4-201; AR ST § 5-4-401; AR ST § 5-27-209; AR ST § 5-27-220.
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action: <sup>90</sup>	Misdemeanor for all offenses.
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	Package Sales: (1) All alcoholic beverages except those noted below: first offense – not less than \$100 or more than \$250;         second and subsequent offense – 6 months to 1 year and \$250 to \$500.         (2) Beer and wine not in excess of 5% alcohol by weight: first offense – not more than 6 months.
	<b>On-Premises Consumption Sales</b> : (1) All alcoholic beverages except those noted below – not more than 6 months and not more than \$1,000; (2) beer (all types) – none; (3) wine not exceeding 14% – 10 to 30 days and \$100 to \$500.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>90</sup> Citations: AR ST § 3-3-102; AR ST § 3-3-103; AR ST § 3-3-201; AR ST § 3-3-202; AR ST § 3-3-206 through AR ST § 3-3-209; AR ST § 3-4-301; AR ST § 3-4-401 through 3-4-405; AR ST § 3-4-604; AR ST § 3-5-202; AR ST § 3-5-203; AR ST § 3-5-207; AR ST § 3-5-201; AR ST § 3-5-207; AR ST § 3-5-201; AR ST § 3-5-207; AR ST § 3-5-201; AR ST § 3-5-207; AR ST § 3-9-301; AR ST § 3-9-302; AR ST § 3-9-306; AR ST § 3-9-307; AR ST § 3-9-236; AR ST § 3-9-204; AR ST § 5-4-201(a)(2); AR ST § 5-4-401(4), (5).

Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No): Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Yes Under certain conditions.
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action: Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Misdemeanor for all offenses. (except as noted)Package Sales:(1) All alcoholic beverages except those noted below –(a) where "knowledge" is a factor <sup>91</sup> –first offense (Class D felony) – not more than 6 yearsand not more than \$10,000;second offense (within 5 years) (Class C felony) – notless than 3 years or more than 10 years and not morethan \$10,000;(b) where "knowledge" is not a factor –first offense – \$200 to \$500;second and subsequent offense – not more than 1 yearand \$500 to \$1,000;(2) beer and wine not in excess of 5 percent alcohol byweight – not more than 1 year and not more than \$10,00;(2) beer and wine not in excess of 5 percent alcohol byweight – not more than 1 year and not more than \$500.On-Premises Consumption Sales:(1) All alcoholic beverages except those noted below –not more than 6 months and not more than \$1,000;(2) beer and wine not in excess of 5 percent alcohol byweight – not more than 1 year and not more than \$1,000;(3) wine not in excess of 14 percent – 10 to 30 days and \$100 to \$500.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No): Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Yes Under certain conditions         Package Sales:         (1) All alcoholic beverages except those noted below – for two or more convictions – Revocation; <sup>92</sup>

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>91</sup> State v. Jarvis, 427 S.W.2d 531 (Ark. 1968)
 <sup>92</sup> Length of revocation/suspension is not specified in the statute.

	(2) beer and wine not in excess of 5 percent alcohol by weight – <b>I year Revocation/Suspension</b>	
	weight – i year Revocation/Suspension	
	<b>On-Premises Consumption Sales</b> :	
	(1) All alcoholic beverages except those noted below –	
	Revocation/Suspension;	
	(2) beer and wine not in excess of 5 percent alcohol by weight – 1 year <b>Revocation/Suspension</b> ;	
	(3) wine not in excess of 14 percent – <b>Revoca</b> -	
	tion/Suspension	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes AR ST § 5-71-212(c).	

General Reference:       West's Annotated California Code         Basis for a DWI Charge:       Image: Construction of the construc	STATE	CALIFORNIA
Standard DWI Offense:       Under the influence of an alcoholic beverage. CA VEH §         23152; CA VEH § 23153.       Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):       ≥ .08 % CA VEH § 23152(b); CA VEH § 23153(b);         ≥ .01 for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136.       >         Presumption (BAC/BrAC):       ≥ .08 CA VEH § 23610(a)(3).         Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:       Under the influence of any drug or a combination of alcohol and any drug. <sup>94</sup> CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH § 23153.         Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol       Under the space of the spa	General Reference:	West's Annotated California Code
Standard DWI Offense:       Under the influence of an alcoholic beverage. CA VEH §         23152; CA VEH § 23153.       Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):       ≥ .08 % CA VEH § 23152(b); CA VEH § 23153(b);         ≥ .01 for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136.       >         Presumption (BAC/BrAC):       ≥ .08 CA VEH § 23610(a)(3).         Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:       Under the influence of any drug or a combination of alcohol and any drug. <sup>94</sup> CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH § 23153.         Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol       Under the space of the spa		
23152; CA VEH § 23153.         Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):         ≥ .08 <sup>23</sup> CA VEH § 23152(b); CA VEH § 23153(b);         ≥ .01 for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23153.         Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:         Under the influence of any drug or a combination of alcohol and any drug. <sup>94</sup> CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH § 23153.         Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol         Concentration:         Preliminary Breath Test Law:         Yes CA VEH § 23612(h). <sup>95</sup> Persons under 21 years old who have been detained for operating a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol concentration > 0.1 CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 2316(c).         Persons on probation for prior DWI conviction detained for operating a motor vehicle with a BAC of 0.01% or higher. CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 13389.         Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612.         Ves CA VEH § 23612.       Detained for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 13389.         Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612.         Ves CA VEH § 23612.       Detainon with reasonable cause for persons under 21. CA VEH § 2316(c).         Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1).         Ves (CA VEH § 23612(a)(1).       Yes (Cariminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).         Admitted into Evidence:       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).         Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Unde	Basis for a DWI Charge:	
≥ .01 for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136.         Presumption (BAC/BrAC):       ≥ .08 CA VEH § 23610(a)(3).         Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:       Under the influence of any drug or a combination of alcohol and any drug. <sup>94</sup> CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH § 23153.         Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	Standard DWI Offense:	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:       Under the influence of any drug or a combination of alcohol and any drug. <sup>94</sup> CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH § 23153.         Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	
cohol and any drug. <sup>94</sup> CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH §         23153.         Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol         Concentration:         Preliminary Breath Test Law:         Yes CA VEH § 23612(h). <sup>95</sup> Persons under 21 years old who have been detained for operating a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol concentration ≥ .01. CA VEH § 13388; CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 23136(c).         Persons on probation for prior DWI conviction detained for operating a motor vehicle with a BAC of .01% or higher. CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 13389.         Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612         Arrest Required (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612.         Detention with reasonable cause for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136(c).         Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1).         Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):       Yes (Ca VEH § 23612(a)(1).         Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Adubtice into Evidence:       Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).         Admitted into Evidence:       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).       Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(a)(2)(2)         Blood:       Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(a)(2)(2)       Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(a)(2)(2)	Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	≥ .08 CA VEH § 23610(a)(3).
Concentration:       Preliminary Breath Test Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612(h).95         Persons under 21 years old who have been detained for operating a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol concentration > .01. CA VEH § 13388; CA VEH § 23136(c).       Persons on probation for prior DWI conviction detained for operating a motor vehicle with a BAC of .01% or higher. CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 13389.         Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612.         Arrest Required (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612.         Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612.         Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:       Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).         Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).         Blood:       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).       Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(a)(2)	Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	cohol and any drug. <sup>94</sup> CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH §
Persons under 21 years old who have been detained for operating a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol concentration ≥ 01. CA VEH § 13388; CA VEH § 23136(c). Persons on probation for prior DWI conviction detained for operating a motor vehicle with a BAC of 0.01% or higher. CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 13389.         Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612         Arrest Required (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612. Detention with reasonable cause for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136(c).         Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1).         Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:       Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).         Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).         Blood:       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).       Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(d)(2)		
operating a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol concentration ≥ .01. CA VEH § 13388; CA VEH § 23136(c).         Persons on probation for prior DWI conviction detained for operating a motor vehicle with a BAC of .01% or higher. CA VEH § 23154; CA VEH § 13389.         Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612         Arrest Required (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612.         Detention with reasonable cause for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136(c).       Detention with reasonable cause for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136(c).         Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1).       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).         Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:       Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).	Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> CA VEH § 23612(h). <sup>95</sup>
Implied Consent Law:YesYesCAVEH § 23612Arrest Required (Yes/No):YesYesCAVEH § 23612. Detention with reasonable cause for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136(c).Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):YesCAVEH § 23612(a)(1).Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:Yes(Criminal and Civil Cases) CAVEH § 23612(a)(4).Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:YesCAVEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).Blood:YesCAVEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).YesUrine:YesCAVEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CAVEH 23612(d)(2)		operating a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol concentra- tion $\geq$ .01. CA VEH § 13388; CA VEH § 23136(c). <u>Persons on probation for prior DWI conviction</u> detained for operating a motor vehicle with a BAC of
Detention with reasonable cause for persons under 21. CA VEH § 23136(c).Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1).Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).Blood:Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).Urine:Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(d)(2)	Implied Consent Law:	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1).Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).Blood:Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).Urine:Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(d)(2)	Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Detention with reasonable cause for persons under 21. CA
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:       Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).         Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:       Image: Case Case Case Case Case Case Case Case		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:       Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).         Blood:       Yes (CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).         Urine:       Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(a)(1)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(a)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)(1)		Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) CA VEH § 23612(a)(4).
Urine: Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(d)(2)	Alcohol Concentration Which Are	
Urine: Yes (Limited)CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH 23612(d)(2)	Blood:	Yes CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(A).
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		<b>Yes (Limited)</b> CA VEH § 23612(a)(1)(B); CA VEH
	Adjudication of DWI Charges:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>93</sup> Standard: Percent, by weight of alcohol in the blood, is based on grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. CA VEH § 23152(b). The provision related to DWI-injury offenses (CA VEH § 23153) only refers to alcohol concentration in terms of "percent by weight." <sup>94</sup>It is illegal to be under the influence of certain "controlled substances" irrespective of whether the offender was operating a motor

vehicle. CA HEALTH § 11550. <sup>95</sup> A PBT may be conducted without legislative authority. A.G. Opinion No. 88-1102, Oct. 26, 1989.

Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Plea-bargaining is prohibited in serious felony and DWI cases unless: (1) there is insufficient evidence of the of- fense; (2) testimony of a material witness cannot be ob- tained; or (3) the reduction or dismissal of charges would not result in substantial change in sentence. CA PENAL § 1192.7(a)(2); <i>People v. Arauz</i> , 7 Cal.Rptr.2d 145 (Cal.App. 2 Dist. 1992).
	In addition, a criminal charge cannot be dismissed without the court's approval. CA PENAL § 1385. Under CA VEH § 23635, the court must give the reasons a DWI charge was reduced to a lesser offense, changed to reckless driv- ing, or was dismissed.
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>96</sup> (Mand for subsequent offenses and offenders whose BAC is .15 or more). CA VEH § 23646, <i>et seq.</i> ; CA VEH § 23655.
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test: Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u>	
$\frac{\text{Test:}}{(1,1)}$	N
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Persons Under 21</b> : Upon refusal by a person under the age of 21, or upon re- sults of .01 or greater, an officer shall serve such person with a notice of suspension and take possession of the per- son's driver's license. CA VEH § 13388(b).
	<b>Persons on DWI Probation:</b> Upon refusal by a person on probation for DWI, or upon results of .01% or greater, an officer shall serve such person with a notice of suspension and take possession of the persons driver's license. CA VEH § 13389(b)
	First refusal – Suspension 1 year (mand);Second refusal97 (within 10 years) – Revocation 2 years(mand);Third and subsequent refusal98 (within 10 years) – Revocation 3 years (mand).CA VEH § 13353.1(a); CA VEH § 13353.8; CA VEH §

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>96</sup> Each county <u>must</u> develop a PSI alcohol assessment program. CA VEH § 23646, *et seq.*<sup>97</sup> Or a refusal where within 10 years of a DWI/Vehicle Homicide conviction, refusal to submit to a test under the implied consent law, or a prior admin. per se license suspension of <u>any</u> type.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>98</sup> Or a refusal where within 10 years a person has two or more separate DWI/Vehicle Homicide convictions, refusals to submit to a test under the implied consent law, or prior administrative per se license suspensions of any type.

#### CALIFORNIA

	13388; CA VEH § 23136(c).
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	Yes (Upon conviction for underlying DWI)First refusal – 48 hours additional custody;Second refusal (within 10 years) – 96 hours additional custody;Third refusal (within 10 years) – 10 days additional custody;Fourth refusal (within 10 years) – 18 days additional custody;CA VEH § 23577
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First refusal – Suspension – I year (mand); Second refusal (within 10 years) – Revocation – 2 years99 (mand); Third refusal (within 10 years) Revocation-3 years100 (mand).These sanctions also apply to persons under 21 years old who are arrested for a violation of CA VEH § 23140 (driving with a BAC $\geq$ .05) and who refuse to submit to a test under the implied consent law. CA VEH § 13353; CA VEH § 13353.4(a); CA VEH § 23612.
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions: <sup>101</sup>	Non-Injury DWI Offenses are <b>misdemeanors</b> . CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH § 40000.15. <b>Citations</b> : Sanctions for violating the drunk-driving laws are codified under CA VEH § 23536, <i>et seq</i> .
Imprisonment/Fine:	Non-Injury DWI Offense (with no previous DWI of- fenses <sup>102</sup> ) – Not less than <b>96 hours</b> (at least 48 hours shall be continuous) or more than <b>6 months</b> and not less than <b>\$390</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> .

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>99</sup> Or within 10 years, a person has been previously convicted of a DWI/Vehicle Homicide offense or had the license previously suspended/revoked for an admin. per se violation as of the date of refusal.
<sup>100</sup> Or within 10 years, a person has been convicted of two or more DWI/Vehicle Homicide offenses or had the license sus-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>100</sup> Or within 10 years, a person has been convicted of two or more DWI/Vehicle Homicide offenses or had the license suspended/revoked two or more times for an admin. per se violation as of the date of refusal. Priors include vehicular homicide convictions in any other state, district or territory. CA VEH § 13353(a)(3)(D).

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>101</sup> If any person is convicted of DWI and a minor under age 14 was in the vehicle at the time of the offense, the court shall impose the following penalties in addition to any other penalty: <u>First offense</u> – an additional 48 continuous hours in jail (mand); <u>Second offense</u> – an additional 10 days in jail (mand); <u>Third offense</u> – an additional 30 days in jail (mand); <u>Fourth offense</u> – an additional 90 days in jail (mand). CA VEH § 23572.
 <sup>102</sup> A previous offense includes CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH § 23153 (non-injury or injury DWI offenses). A guilty or nolo conten-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>102</sup> A previous offense includes CA VEH § 23152; CA VEH § 23153 (non-injury or injury DWI offenses). A guilty or nolo contendere plea to reckless driving (CA VEH § 23103) instead of a DWI charge, is considered a previous DWI offense as well (CA VEH § 23103.5(c)), as is a conviction for operating a vessel while under the influence. CA HARB & NAV § 655.

	CA VEH § 23536. <u>Non-Injury DWI Offense</u> (with one previous DWI offense) – Not less than <b>90 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and not less than <b>\$390</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . CA VEH § 23540. <u>Non-Injury DWI Offense</u> (with two previous DWI offenses) – Not less than <b>120 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and not less than <b>\$390</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . CA VEH § 23546. <u>Non-Injury DWI Offense</u> (with three previous DWI offenses) – Not less than <b>180 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> <sup>103</sup> and not less than <b>\$390</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . CA VEH § 23550.	
	Injury-Related DWI Offense (with no previous DWI of- fenses) –16 months, 2 years, or 3 years in state prison, or not less than 90 days or more than 1 year in county jail and not less than \$390 or more than \$1,000. CA VEH § 23554. Injury-Related DWI Offense <sup>104</sup> (with one previous DWI offense) – 16 months, 2 years, or 3 years in state prison, or not less than 120 days or more than 1 year in county jail and not less than \$390 or more than \$5,000. CA VEH § 23560. Injury Related DWI Offense <sup>105</sup> (with two or more previous DWI offenses) – A term (in state prison) for 2, 3 or 4 years and not less than \$1,015 or more than \$5,000. CA	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	VEH § 23566. <u>DWI Offense with Great Bodily Injury</u> where there have been 4 or more previous DWI offenses within 10 years, an additional consecutive sentence of 3 years in the State prison. CA VEH § 23566(c).Non-Injury DWI offense (with no previous DWI offenses)	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>103</sup> Or 16 months, 2 or 3 years in the State prison. See also CA PENAL § 18.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>104</sup> If more than one individual has been injured, an enhanced prison term of one year is added for each victim. The maximum number of such enhancements is three. CA VEH § 23558.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>105</sup> Also includes DWI offenses where there has been <u>great</u> bodily injury and there were 2 or more previous DWI offenses (injury/non-injury) within 10 years. CA VEH § 23566(b).

**Prior Drunk-Driving Felony Offenses.** A person: (1) who has been convicted of a drunk-driving offense (injury or non-injury offense) with a <u>prior conviction</u> either for a <u>felony</u> drunk-driving offense (injury or non-injury) or for a <u>felony</u> vehicle manslaughter offense related to drunk-driving with gross negligence; or (2) who has been convicted of a drunk-driving offense (injury or non-injury offense) with a <u>prior conviction</u> for a "gross vehicular manslaughter while intoxicated" offense or for a <u>felony</u> vehicle manslaughter offense related to drunk-driving <u>without</u> gross negligence is subject to the following sanctions: (A) Incarceration in either a county jail or State prison for not more than 1 year (or incarceration in the county jail from 180 days to 1 year if probation is granted) (either 48 consecutive hours or 10 days of community service are mandatory); (B) a fine of not less than \$390 nor more than \$1,000; and (C) unless a longer period would otherwise apply, license revocation for 4 years (24 months mandatory with restricted driving after this period provided the offender participates in either an 18-or 30-month alcohol rehabilitation program). CA VEH § 13352(a)(7); CA VEH § 23550.5; CA VEH § 23552; CA VEH § 23580; CA VEH § 23600.

**Felony/Misdemeanor**. Generally, a non-injury drunk-driving offense under CA VEH § 23152 *et seq.* is classified as a misdemeanor. CA VEH § 40000.15. However, a fourth or subsequent non-injury drunk-driving offense is a felony if the offender is sentenced to incarceration in the State prison. CA PENAL § 17; CA VEH § 23550; *People v. Coronado*, 906 P.2d 1232 (Cal. 1995).

(If Probation Granted)- \$390. CA VEH § 23538.Non-Injury DWI offense (with one previous DWI offense)- 10 days; or 96 hours (as 2 continuous periods of the second seco	offense)
- 10 days; or 96 hours (as 2 continuous periods o	
<b>hours)</b> and <b>\$390</b> . CA VEH § 23542.	
Non-Injury DWI offense (with two previous DWI of	of-
fenses) -30 days and \$390. CA VEH § 23548.	
Non-Injury DWI offense (with three or more previo	ous
DWI offenses) – 180 days and \$390. CA VEH § 2	3552.
Injury-related DWI offense(with no previous DWI	of-
fenses) – <b>5 days</b> and <b>\$390</b> . CA VEH § 23556.	
Injury-related DWI offense (with one previous DW	/I of-
fense) – <b>30 days</b> and <b>\$390</b> . CA VEH § 23562.	
Injury-related DWI offense (with two or more prev	
DWI offenses) – <b>30 days</b> and <b>\$390</b> . CA VEH § 23	568.
Community Service: Yes CA PENAL § 1203.1.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund) Yes Injury-related DWI offenses. CA GOVT § 13	950 et
seq. (Victims' Assistance Fund).	
The court may also order direct compensation by the	ne de-
fendant to the victim(s). CA PENAL § 1203.1.	
Other: Test Fee: The counties are authorized to impose on	
dants a fee of not more \$50 for conducting an alcoh	nol
chemical test. CA PENAL § 1463.14.	
<b>EMS Cost</b> : A person may be held liable for the cost	
emergency response which resulted from the neglig	·
operation of a motor vehicle while under the influen	
either alcohol or drugs. CA GOVT § 53150 et seq;	
PENAL § 1203.1(l). The law does not specifically	
a DWI offense conviction as a condition of liability	r.
Alcohol Program Assessments:	
I. A person convicted of a DWI offense must pay a	n as-
sessment, not to exceed \$50, for the purpose of fund	
alcohol abuse education and prevention programs.	•
VEH § 23645(a).	
II. A fee of not more than \$100 may be assessed ag	ainst a
person convicted of a DWI offense in counties parti	
ing in an alcohol and drug assessment program. CA	*
§ 23649.	
III. An assessment not to exceed \$100 may be impo	osed for
PSI alcohol/drug evaluation. CA VEH § 23649(a).	
Special State Penalty (Fine): An additional State p	penalty
of \$10 is assessed against every defendant for every	
a fine (or fraction thereof) actually imposed and pair	
defendant. CA PENAL § 1463(1)(2); CA PENAL §	-
1464(a).	
Special County Penalty (Fine): An additional cou	nty pe-
nalty of \$7 is assessed against every defendant for e	every

	\$10 of a fine (or fraction thereof) <u>actually</u> imposed and paid by a defendant. CA GOVT § 76000; CA PENAL § 1463(l)(2). As a condition of probation the court may re- quire the defendant to pay costs of probation investigation, incarceration, and provision of parole supervision. CA VEH § 1203.1b; CA VEH § 1203.1c; CA VEH § 1203.1e.
	<b>Drunk Driver Visitation Program (Persons Under 21</b> <b>Years Old)</b> : For a first DWI non-injury offense or a viola- tion of CA VEH § 23140, a person, with their consent and as part of their probation, may be ordered by the court to visit trauma or hospital facilities to observe victims of ac- cidents where alcohol was involved. In order to participate in this program, persons under 21 must agree not to drink alcoholic beverages until they are 21. CA VEH § 23509 <i>et</i> <i>seq</i> .
	<b>Home Detention</b> : DWI offenders are eligible for "home detention" as an alternative to imprisonment. This alternative includes "home detention" for certain minimum mandatory jail sentences. However, the mandatory sanctions for multiple DWI offenders under CA VEH § 23580 (48 continuous hours or 10 days of community service) apply nevertheless. CA PENAL § 1203.016.
	Juvenile Offenses Involving Alcohol: Under CA VEH § 23136, it is unlawful for a person under 21 years old to operate a motor vehicle with a BAC of .01% or higher. ("Zero Tolerance")
	Under CA VEH § 23140, it is unlawful for <u>a person under</u> <u>21 years old</u> to operate a motor vehicle if having a BAC $\geq .05$ .
	Offenders convicted of CA VEH § 23140 who are at least <u>18 years old</u> participate in an alcohol program for at least 3 months consisting of a minimum of 30 hours of activities (e.g., education, group counseling and individual interview sessions). CA HEALTH § 11836; CA HEALTH § 11837(c)(1); CA VEH § 13352.6; CA VEH § 23502.
Administrative Licensing Actions:	ALL persons $< 21$ years old are subject to administrative license suspension if operating a motor vehicle with a BAC $\ge$ .01; but may receive restricted license instead of suspension with a showing of a critical need to drive and no prior DUI convictions, and the person's driving privi- lege has not been suspended or revoked under DUI provi- sions. CA VEH § 13353.8.
	A person under 21 years old who violates the regular DWI

	<ul> <li>laws must also participate in either an alcohol education or rehabilitation program. Also, if such person fails to complete such programs, the license may be either suspended or revoked until either the person shows proof of completion or reaches 21 years old. CA VEH § 23520.</li> <li>A person who has been convicted of any DWI offense and who has also "willfully refused" to submit to a chemical test is subject to the following sanctions:</li> <li><b>DWI non-injury offenses</b>:</li> <li><u>First offense</u> – if probation is granted, the court must use the following sentence structure: mandatory 48 hours in jail, a fine of not less than \$390 and a 6-month license suspension;</li> <li><u>Second offense</u> – 96 hours in jail (mandatory);</li> <li><u>Third offense</u> – 10 days in jail (mandatory);</li> <li><u>Fourth and subsequent offenses</u> – 18 days in jail (mandatory);</li> </ul>
	DWI injury offenses:
	<u>First offense</u> – 48 continuous hours in jail (mandatory);
	Second offense – 96 hours in jail (mandatory) CA VEH § 23577.
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes Persons 21 Years Old and Above – BAC $\geq .08^{106}$ or Per- sons Under 21 Years Old – BAC $\geq .05/.01$ : <u>First violation</u> : Suspension 4 months (mand for persons under 21 years old). A person 21 years old and above who participates in an alcohol education or treatment program is subject to a mandatory license suspension for 30 days followed by restricted driving privileges, except as noted, for 60 days for the purpose of either participating in the program or going to and from a place of employment. Fol- lowing successfully completion of the program, "unre- stricted" driving privileges may be granted after the 60- day restricted driving privileges. However, if the restricted license is used to go to and from a place of employment, the suspension with restrictions must be for 6 months. CA VEH § 13353.3; CA VEH § 13353.7.
	Suspension 1 year (mand). <sup>109, 110, 111</sup> (within 10 years)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>106</sup> Based upon a person driving with a blood alcohol concentration  $\ge .05$  based on "percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood, with an alcohol concentration of .01 based on a preliminary breath test or "other chemical test." CA VEH § 13353.2(a). <sup>107</sup> For purposes of determining whether a license sanction enhancement should be imposed, the following convictions are consi-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup>/ For purposes of determining whether a license sanction enhancement should be imposed, the following convictions are considered prior violations: any DWI offense; vehicular homicide; refusal to submit to a chemical test; and a previous admin. per se violation (appears to include <u>any</u> previous type of admin. per se action). CA VEH § 13353.3(b)(2).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>108</sup> Under CA VEH § 13353.7(d), the 1-year mandatory suspension remains in effect only so long as such suspension is required for subsequent violations per 23 USC 408; 410.

0 7 0 7 0	
13353.4(a); CA VEH § 13382.	
Under Separate Provisions of Law, Persons Under 21	
Years Old are subject to a suspension for not less than 1	
year (30 days mand) if a "preliminary breath test" or "oth-	
er chemical test" result indicates a blood alcohol concen-	
tration $\geq$ .01. After the mandatory suspension period, re-	
stricted driving privileges are available based upon a criti-	
cal need to drive. CA VEH § 13353.3(b)(3); CA VEH §	
13353.8; CA VEH § 23136.	
Suspension or Revocation	
Postponement of Licensing Action: If an offender is sen-	
tenced to serve 1 year in the county jail or more than 1	
year in prison, the court may postpone the imposition of	
either a suspension or revocation until the offender is re-	
leased from incarceration. CA VEH § 23665.	
Non-Injury DWI Offense (with no previous DWI offenses)	
– Suspension - 6 months. CA VEH 13352(a)(1); CA	
VEH § 23536.	
Non-Injury DWI Offense (with one previous DWI offense) -	
Non-Injury DWI Offense (with two previous DWI of-	
23546(a).	
	Under Separate Provisions of Law, Persons Under 21         Years Old are subject to a suspension for not less than 1         year (30 days mand) if a "preliminary breath test" or "other chemical test" result indicates a blood alcohol concentration ≥ .01. After the mandatory suspension period, restricted driving privileges are available based upon a critical need to drive. CA VEH § 13353.3(b)(3); CA VEH § 13353.8; CA VEH § 23136.         Suspension or Revocation         Postponement of Licensing Action: If an offender is sentenced to serve 1 year in the county jail or more than 1 year in prison, the court may postpone the imposition of either a suspension or revocation until the offender is released from incarceration. CA VEH § 23665.         Non-Injury DWI Offense (with no previous DWI offenses) – Suspension - 6 months. CA VEH § 13352(a)(1); CA VEH § 23540.         Non-Injury DWI Offense (with two previous DWI offense) - Suspension - 2 years. CA VEH § 13352(a)(5); CA VEH § 23540.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>109</sup> If a person is "acquitted" of DWI charges associated with the admin. per se violation, the admin. per se suspension is cancelled and the driver's license is reinstated. CA VEH § 13353.2(e). But "dismissal" of DWI charges is not the same as "acquittal" of such charges and will <u>not</u> result in license reinstatement. *See Gikas v. Zolin,* 863 P.2d 745 (Cal. 1993).
 <sup>110</sup> Admin. per se suspensions and DWI suspensions/revocations are to run concurrently. The total period of license suspen-

<sup>113</sup> A license cannot be reinstated unless the defendant has completed either an 18-or 30-month alcohol treatment program. CA VEH

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>110</sup> Admin. per se suspensions and DWI suspensions/revocations are to run concurrently. The total period of license suspension/revocation shall not exceed the longer of the two periods. CA VEH § 13353.3(c).
 <sup>111</sup> Administrative suspensions are "independent" of licensing actions taken via convictions for DWI offenses. e.g., a mandatory

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>111</sup> Administrative suspensions are "independent" of licensing actions taken via convictions for DWI offenses. e.g., a mandatory suspension of 1 year for a second admin. per se violation will apply notwithstanding a court order allowing restricted driving privileges for a second DWI (non-injury) offense conviction. *Robertson v. Dept. of Motor Vehicles*, 9 Cal.Rptr.2d 319.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>112</sup> If a person is involved in an accident and has a BAC  $\geq$  .08 and has been convicted of a DWI-related vehicle homicide (within 5 years), the license shall be either suspended or revoked as follows: (1) If the accident <u>does not</u> result in a DWI conviction (either injury or non-injury) – suspension for 1 year (mandatory); and (2) if the accident <u>results</u> in a DWI conviction (either injury or non-injury) – revocation for 3 years (mandatory). This revocation period is <u>concurrent</u> with any other DWI imposed restriction, suspension or revocation if this is a first DWI conviction or a second conviction within 5 years. This revocation period is <u>cumulative</u> with any other DWI imposed restrictions, suspension or revocation, if there have been two or more previous DWI convictions within 5 years. CA VEH § 13954.

There are two provisions of the California Vehicle Code that provide for special licensing sanctions against minors who violate the DWI laws. I. Under CA VEH § 13352.3, a person who is <18 years old and who is convicted of an alcohol driving offense is subject to a license revocation until 18 for 1 year, or per CA VEH § 13352 whichever period is longer. II. Under CA VEH § 13202.5, a person who is  $\geq$ 13 but < 21 years old and who is convicted of a DWI (alcohol or drugs) offense or of a vehicle manslaughter offense is subject to a license suspension for one year. However, such person may be eligible for restricted driving privileges based on "a showing of a critical need to drive" (CA VEH § 13202.5(c)).

	Non-Injury DWI Offense (with three or more previous DWI offenses) – Revocation - 4 years. CA VEH § 13352(a)(7); CA VEH § 23550.
	<u>Injury-Related DWI Offense</u> (with no previous DWI of- fenses) – <b>Suspension – 1 year</b> . CA VEH § 13352(a)(2); CA VEH § 23554. <u>Injury-Related DWI Offense</u> (with one previous DWI of-
	fense) – <b>Revocation - 3 years</b> . CA VEH § 13352(a)(4); CA VEH § 23560. <u>Injury-Related DWI Offense</u> (with two or more previous DWI offenses) – <b>Revocation - 5 years</b> CA VEH § 13352(a)(6); CA VEH § 23566.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	Non-Injury DWI Offense (with no previous DWI offenses) <sup>114</sup> – 6 months.         Non-Injury DWI Offense (with one previous DWI offense). <sup>115</sup> Non-Injury DWI Offense (with two previous DWI offenses) – 18 months {12 months with ignition interlock.         Non-Injury DWI Offense (with three or more previous DWI offenses) – 18 months {12 months with ignition interlock.         Non-Injury DWI Offense (with three or more previous DWI offenses) – 18 months {12 months with ignition interlock.         Non-Injury DWI Offense (with three or more previous DWI offenses) – 18 months {12 months with ignition interlock.
	<u>Injury-Related DWI Offense</u> (with no previous DWI of- fenses) – <b>1 year</b> . <u>Injury-Related DWI Offense</u> (with one previous DWI of- fense) – <b>18 months {12 months with ignition interlock</b> }. <u>Injury Related DWI Offense</u> (with two or more previous DWI offenses) – <b>18 months {12 months with ignition</b> <b>interlock</b> }.
Other:	CA VEH § 13352.
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	Conditions of probation, which normally provide for a reduced period of incarceration, usually require a defendant to participate in an alcohol education/rehab program for any DWI offense conviction. <sup>116, 117</sup> CA VEH § 23538

§ 13352(a)(5) and gives proof of financial responsibility, pays all reissue fees, etc. CA VEH § 13353.4; CA VEH § 23538. <sup>114</sup> Driving privileges may be restricted for 90 days under certain probation conditions. CA VEH § 13352; CA VEH § 13352.5; CA VEH § 23538; CA HEALTH § 11837(a), (c), (d).

<sup>115</sup> Restricted driving privileges may be granted after a defendant enrolls in or completes an alcohol rehabilitation program. This does not apply if they were operating certain types of heavy trucks or buses at the time of the offense. As an alternative, the defendant may be granted a restricted license after a 12-month suspension if enrolled in an alcohol treatment program and have an ignition interlock device installed on the vehicles. CA VEH § 13352(a)(3); CA VEH § 23542(b); CA HEALTH § 11837.

<sup>116</sup> However, in lieu of the more traditional alcohol and drug education and treatment programs, an offender, again as a condition of probation, may be allowed to participate in a special "live-in alternative." This alternative focuses on substance abuse users and requires them to live full time at a special facility. CA PENAL § 8001. <sup>117</sup> First offenders who have been placed on probation and at the time of the offense had a BAC  $\geq$  .20 or refused to submit to a chem-

ical test must be placed in an alcohol education/counseling program for at least 6 months. CA HEALTH § 11837(c)(2). The same holds true for those who plead guilty or nolo contendere to a reckless driving charge in lieu of DWI. CA VEH § 23103.5.

	<i>et seq.</i> , and 13352 the court may also require a "driving under the influence" program for 18 or 30 months. CA VEH § 23552. A person convicted of a first DWI offense in a juvenile court must participate in and complete either an alcohol or drug education program. CA VEH § 23538; CA VEH § 23556; CA HEALTH § 11837(a), (c), (d).
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	There are two vehicle impoundment laws:
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Impoundment I:118 A vehicle owned and driven by the offender may be impounded as follows for a DWI offense (non-injury/injury):First offense – Not less than 1 day or more than 30 days; Second offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 1 day or more than 30 days; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 1 day or more than 90 days. CA VEH § 23594.
	<b>Impoundment II</b> : The vehicle owned <u>and</u> driven by the offender may be impounded as follows for a DWI or other offense, as listed in the statute: <u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>6 months</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – Not more than <b>12 months</b> . CA VEH § 23592(a)(1).
	<b>Forfeiture</b> : A defendant's vehicle may be subject to for- feiture if convicted of a DWI vehicle homicide offense, a non-injury-related DWI offense and two or more (or com- binations of) convictions within 7 years for a vehicle ho- micide offense or a non-injury/injury-related DWI offense, or a DWI serious injury offense and one or more (or com- binations of) convictions within 7 years for a vehicle ho- micide offense or a non-injury/injury DWI offense. CA VEH § 23596.
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	N/A
Other:	<b>Temporary Impoundment</b> : A law enforcement officer may "remove" from the highway any vehicle driven by a person who has been taken into custody or by a person under 21 years old who has been issued a notice of license suspension for operating a motor vehicle with a BAC $\geq$ .01. The vehicle may be released to the legal owner upon the payment of towing and storage charges. CA VEH §

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>118</sup> Under this impoundment/forfeiture law, no vehicle may be impounded or forfeited if another person has a community property interest in the vehicle and if it is the sole vehicle available to the defendant's immediate family. CA VEH § 23594; CA VEH § 23596. Additionally, it appears that CA VEH § 23594 concerns DWI offenses only. Whereas, CA VEH § 23592 lists DWI offenses along with other types of offenses that would trigger impoundment.

	22651.
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	For the purpose of imposing enhanced sanctions, the court shall consider whether the offender's blood alcohol level was $\geq$ .15, the person refused to submit to a test under the implied consent law. CA VEH § 23578.
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Both
Conditions of Use:	A court may order a first offender convicted of a DWI offense to operate only motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices for not more than 3 years from the date of conviction. For first offenders with a BAC of .15 or greater, the court shall take into consideration the results of a county alcohol and drug problem assessment in determining the term. CA VEH § 23575(a), (f)(1). Additionally, if an offender convicted of a subsequent offense is granted restricted driving privileges, the licensing agency must require that offender to operate only motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices. CA VEH § 13352(a). Persons required to drive vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices who drive without such device are considered to have driven without a license and may be
	immediately arrested, with vehicle impoundment for 30 days. CA VEH § 14602.6(a)(1).
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> CA HEALTH § 11998.1(g), (i).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Vehicular Manslaughter <sup>119</sup> CA PENAL § 191.5; CA PENAL § 192(c); CA PENAL § 193.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine: <sup>120</sup>	<b>Gross Vehicular Manslaughter While Intoxicated</b> <sup>121, 122</sup> – Imprisonment in the state prison for <b>4</b> , <b>6</b> , or <b>10 years</b> and not more than <b>\$10,000</b> .

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>119</sup> **Implied Malice**. Under certain circumstances, in situations where a person has been killed by an intoxicated driver, evidence of voluntary intoxication can be introduced as evidence of implied malice in a second degree murder case against the driver. Additionally, an offender could be charged with murder upon facts exhibiting wantonness and a conscious disregard for life to support a finding of implied malice. CA PENAL § 22; CA PENAL § 188; CA PENAL § 191.5 (e); *People v. Watson*, 637 P.2d 279 (Cal. 1981). <sup>120</sup> If more than one individual has been killed, an enhanced prison term of one year is added for each victim. The maximum number

of such enhancements is three. CA VEH § 23558.

	<ul> <li>Vehicular Manslaughter While Intoxicated<sup>123</sup> – Imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 1 year, or imprisonment in the state prison for 16 months or 2 or 4 years and not more than \$10,000.</li> <li>CA PENAL § 191.5(a), (b); CA PENAL § 672.</li> <li>Note: An offender could also be charged with murder upon facts exhibiting wantonness and a conscious disregard for life of any person.<sup>124</sup></li> </ul>	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Suspension or Revocation	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	No terms are provided. CA VEH § 23566.	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	N/A	
Other:	I. Vehicle Forfeiture. CA VEH § 23596. II. Victims' Assistance Fund. CA GOVT § 13959, <i>et seq</i> . III. See Special State Penalty (Fine) and Special County Penalty (Fine). CA PENAL § 1463(l)(2); CA PENAL § 1464(a); CA VEH § 1203.1b; CA VEH § 1203.1c; CA VEH § 1203.1e; CA GOVT § 76000; CA PENAL § 1463(l)(2).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is prohibited from operating a CMV for <b>1 man- datory year</b> (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if convicted of driving a CMV while under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. For a subsequent conviction of driving a CMV while under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance, a person is prohibited from operating such a vehicle for life. A person who re- fuses to submit to a chemical test while operating a CMV is subject to licensing sanctions, including license sanction enhancements) under the implied consent law; however, if transporting hazardous materials, the suspension is for 3 years (mand).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>121</sup> This is the unlawful killing of a human being without malice aforethought, in the driving of a vehicle, where the driver was intoxicated and the killing was either a proximate result of the commission of an unlawful act, not amounting to a felony, and with gross negligence, or the proximate result of the commission of an unlawful act that might produce death, in an unlawful manner, and with gross negligence. CA PENAL § 191.5(a). <sup>122</sup> **Subsequent Offenses**: A defendant convicted of this offense is subject to imprisonment from **15 years to life**, if that person had a

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>122</sup> **Subsequent Offenses**: A defendant convicted of this offense is subject to imprisonment from **15 years to life**, if that person had a prior vehicle manslaughter offense with gross negligence, a prior vehicle-intoxicated manslaughter offense without gross negligence, a prior injury-related drunk-driving offense or a drunk-driving offense that was punished as a second or subsequent offense. CA PENAL § 191.5(d).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>123</sup> This is the same as gross vehicular manslaughter *except* there is <u>no</u> gross negligence. CA PENAL § 191.5(b).

 $<sup>^{124}</sup>$  Gross vehicle manslaughter while intoxicated is <u>not</u> a lesser-included offense of murder. As a result, a person can be tried for both offenses. *People v. Sanchez*, 16 P.3d 118 (Cal. 2001).

	CA VEH § 15300; CA VEH § 15302.
	A CMV operator must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours if that person has a BAC $\geq$ .01. A CMV operator commits a DWI offense by operating a CMV with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04; a conviction for this offense subjects the offender to the same sanctions as would a conviction for any other DWI offense. CA VEH § 23152(d); CA VEH 23153(d); CA VEH § 34501.15(a).
	A person who has been injured in a traffic accident caused by an intoxicated CMV operator may recover treble dam- age from the operator's employer if the employer has "willfully failed" to comply with Federal CMV regulations related to alcohol use and controlled substances testing. CA CIVIL § 3333.7(a); CA VEH § 34520(a).
Driving While License Suspended or	
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI	
Offense:	
Sanction: Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Misdemeanor
imprisonment (Term)/Tine.	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>6</b> <b>months</b> , and not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Second and subsequent offenses</u> <sup>125</sup> (within 5 years) – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , and not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$2,000</b> . CA VEH § 14601.2.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	First offense – 10 days; <sup>126</sup> Second and subsequent offenses (within 5 years) – 30         days;         For a second or subsequent offense (within 7 but more than 5 years) – 10 days.         CA VEH § 14601.2(g).
Length of Term of License	
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action	2 points are assigned to the driving record. CA VEH § 12810(i)
Withdrawal Action:	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The following sanctions apply if a person was driving while the license was either suspended or revoked <u>and</u> where the basis for the licensing action was either an im-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>125</sup> A previous offense includes not only a prior conviction under CA VEH § 14601.2, but also a violation of CA VEH § 14601 (which prohibits driving after a license has been suspended or revoked for a reckless driving offense), CA VEH § 14601.1 (the general prohibition against driving while a license is either suspended or revoked) and CA VEH § 14601.5. <sup>126</sup> If a defendant injures a person while violating this law, they must also serve this mandatory minimum imprisonment term. i.e.,

they cannot receive work release, community service or other similar programs. CA VEH § 14601.4.

	plied consent refusal or an admin. per se violation:	
	<u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not less	
	than $300^{127}$ or more than $1,000$ ;	
	<u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) <sup><math>128</math></sup> – Not less than <b>10</b>	
	days (mand) or more than 1 year and not less than \$500	
	or more than <b>\$2,000</b> . CA VEH § 14601.5.	
Other:	<b>Vehicle Forfeiture</b> . A vehicle is subject to forfeiture if it is driven by a person who has a suspended or revoked license, who has had a previous misdemeanor conviction either of driving while suspended or revoked under other provisions of law or the habitual offender law and who is the registered owner of such vehicle. However, the vehicle is not subject to forfeiture if there is a community property interest in the vehicle and it is the "only vehicle available to the driver's immediate family." CA VEH § 14607.6.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes	
	CA PENAL § 193.7; CA VEH § 13350(b); CA VEH §	
	14601.3(a); CA VEH § 23546(b); CA VEH § 23550; CA	
	VEH §. 23550.5; CA VEH §. 23564(d); CA VEH §	
	23590.	
Grounds for Being Declared an	A person is declared to be a "habitual traffic offender"	
Habitual Offender:	for a period of 3 years, that person: (1) commits a DWI-	
	related vehicle homicide within 7 years of two or more	
	separate violations of DWI offenses or reckless driving;	
	(2) commits a DWI non-injury or injury offense and has	
	two or more previous DWI offenses; (3) is sanctioned un-	
	der CA VEH § 23550 because that person has prior drunk	
	driving felony offenses; or (4) accumulates a "driving	
	record" <sup>129</sup> while operating a vehicle when the license is	
	either suspended or revoked. <sup>130</sup>	
Term of License Revocations While	<b>1 year</b> and proof of financial responsibility. CA VEH §	
Under Habitual Offender Status:	13350(c).	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	Misdemeanor CA PENAL § 17; CA VEH § 14601.3(e).	
on Charges of Driving While on		
Habitual Offender Status:		
Sanctions Following a Conviction of		
Driving While on Habitual Offender		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>127</sup> This fine is usually mandatory. However, the court may reduce this fine in the "interests of justice." CA VEH § 14601.5(e).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>128</sup> A previous offense includes a violation of CA VEH § 14601 (which prohibits driving after a license has been suspended or revoked for a reckless driving offense), CA VEH § 14601.1 (the general prohibition against driving while a license is either suspended or revoked) and CA VEH § 14602.2 (which prohibits driving while a license is either suspended or revoked for a drunk driving offense).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>129</sup> A "driving record" consists of any one of the following: (1) Two or more convictions for 2 point violations within 12 months; three or more convictions for 1 point violations within 12 months; (3) three or more "reportable" accidents within 12 months; or (4) any combination of convictions/accidents which results in 3 points within 12 months. CA VEH § 14601.3(a). <sup>130</sup> A declaration of "habitual offender status" on this basis automatically means a person may be subject to criminal sanctions.

Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	For "habitual traffic offender" status based on vehicle homicide or DWI offenses: 180 days imprisonment and a fine of \$2,000. <sup>131</sup> CA VEH § 14601.3(e)(3).
	For "habitual traffic offender" status based on vehicle operation while suspension/revocation <u>and</u> after accu- mulating a "driving record":
	First offense – 30 days and a fine of \$1,000;
	Second and subsequent offenses (within 7 years) – 180
	days and a fine of \$2,000. CA VEH § 14601.3(e).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes CA GOVT § 27491.25; CA VEH § 23612(a)(5).
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes
Pedestrian:	Yes
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years)	21
Sale/Purchase:	CA BUS § 25658; CA BUS § 25662.
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> Possession in a public place; exception, possession under 21 is legal if the minor is acting under a parent's order. CA BUS § 25658; CA BUS § 25662.
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Limited The law is limited to the serving of alcoholic beverages to minors obviously intoxicated. CA BUS § 25602; CA BUS § 25602.1; CA CIVIL § 1714.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No CA BUS § 25602(c); CA BUS § 25602.1; CA CIVIL § 1714.
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	No
Drain onop Actions-Social Hosts.	

<sup>131</sup> This penalty shall be consecutive to any other penalty imposed. CA VEH § 14601.3 (e)(3).

	CA BUS § 25602(c); CA BUS § 25602.1; CA CIVIL § 1714(c); <i>Cory v. Shierloh</i> , 629 P.2d 8 (Cal. 1981); <i>Strang</i>	
	v. Cabrol, 691 P.2d 1013 (Cal. 1984).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A parent or legal guardian who: (1) knowingly permits his or her child, or a person in the company of the child, or both, who are under the age of 18 years to consume an alcoholic beverage or use a controlled substance at home; and (2) knowingly permits that child or other underage person to drive a vehicle with a blood alcohol concentra- tion of .05 percent or greater, or under the influence of a controlled substance, may be found guilty of a misdemea- nor if that child causes a traffic collision. CA BUS § 25658.2.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor CA BUS § 25602.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> .	
imprisonment/1 me.	CA BUS § 25617.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or revocation. CA BUS § 24200.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	The length of suspension/revocation is not fixed by statute.	
	The length of suspension/revocation is not fixed by statute.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor CA CONST Art 20, § 22; CA BUS § 25658(a).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>\$1,000</b> and no less than <b>24 hours of community ser</b> - vice. <sup>132</sup> CA BUS § 25658(e).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>132</sup> CA BUS § 25658(e)(3) provides that a person guilty of selling alcohol to a minor who then consumes the alcohol and *proximately causes great bodily injury or death to himself, herself, or a third person* shall be imprisoned for no less than 6 months or more than 1 year and/or a fine of \$1000.

License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or revocation CA BUS § 24200; CA BUS § 25658.1(b).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	The length of suspension/revocation is not fixed by statute.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> CA VEH § 23222; CA VEH § 23223; CA VEH § 23225; CA VEH § 23226.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes CA VEH § 23220; CA VEH § 23221	

STATE	COLORADO
General Reference:	Colorado Revised Statutes
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	I. Under the influence of alcohol. CO ST § 42-4-
	1301(1)(a).
	II. Impaired by the consumption of alcohol. CO ST § 42-
$\frac{11}{2} \frac{1}{2} 1$	4-1301(1)(b).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{.133}$ CO ST § 42-4-1301(2)(a).
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> – BrAC only $\geq$ <b>.02 but</b> $\leq$ <b>.05</b> .
<b>Dragumation</b> $(\mathbf{D} \wedge \mathbf{C} / \mathbf{D} \mathbf{r} \wedge \mathbf{C})$ :	CO ST § 42-4-1301(2), (a.5). >.05 but < .08 = permissible inference that person was
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	driving while impaired.
	$\geq .08 =$ permissible inference that person was driving un-
	der the influence.
	CO ST $\S$ 42-4-1301(6)(a).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Any drug or a combination of alcohol and $drugs^{134}$ (applies
- ) F	to both driving under the influence and driving while im-
	paired). CO ST § 42-4-1301(1)(a), (b).
Other:	It is an offense for habitual drug users to operate a motor
	vehicle. The sanctions for this offense are the same as for
	driving while under the influence. CO ST § 42-4-
	1301(1)(c), (7).
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes
	CO ST § 42-4-1301(6).
Implied Consent Law:	Yes <sup>135</sup>
	CO ST § 42-4-1301.1.
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	No
	However, probable cause is required. CO ST §
	42-4-1301.1(2)(a)(I).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes
(Yes/No):	CO ST § 42-4-1301.1(2)(a)(I).
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal Cases) § 42-4-1301(6)(d).
Admitted into Evidence:	
Other Information:	A law enforcement officer may physically restrain any
	person who refuses only when he has probable cause to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>133</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. CO ST § 42-1-102(8.5).
<sup>134</sup> A "drug" is defined as a substance intended to cure or prevent disease listed in the U.S. pharmacopoeia, a controlled substance or toxic vapor or vapors including, but not limited to, glue sniffing and aerosol inhalation. CO ST § 12-22-303(7), (13); CO ST § 42-4-1301(1)(d).
<sup>135</sup>Colorado calls this law an "express consent" law instead of an "implied consent" law. For example, any person

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>135</sup>Colorado calls this law an "express consent" law instead of an "implied consent" law. For example, any person who operates a motor vehicle in Colorado is "deemed to have expressed such person's consent" to submit to chemical test of either his/her blood, breath, urine, or saliva.

	believe that the person committed criminally negligent homicide, vehicular homicide, 3 <sup>rd</sup> degree assault or vehi- cular assault. CO ST § 42-4-1301.1(3). A person's blood may be taken by force if there is probable cause that the person committed an alcohol-related driving offense, or there is a clear indication that the blood sample will pro- vide evidence of the level of intoxication. Exigent cir- cumstances exist and the test must be reasonable and con- ducted in a reasonable manner. <i>People v. Shepherd</i> , 906 P. 2d 607 (Colo. 1995).
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>	
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> (Alcohol and Drugs) CO ST § 42-4-1301.1(2)(b)(I)
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> (For Drugs only) CO ST § 42-4-1301.1(2)(b)(I)
Other:	<b>Saliva</b> (For Drugs only) CO ST § 42-4-1301.1(2)(b)(I)
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> Deferred prosecution or deferred sentence of drunk- driving offenses is available. CO ST § 18-1.3-101; CO ST § 18-1.3-102.
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>136</sup> CO ST § 42-4-1301(4).
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Alcohol and Drug Evaluations required. CO ST § 42-4-1301.3(1).
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	
<u>Test</u> :	
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	No
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	No
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 1 year</b> ; <u>Second refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 2 years</b> ; <u>Third or subsequent refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 3 years</b> . CO ST § 42-2-126(3)(c).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>136</sup> The court cannot accept a guilty plea to a non-alcohol or non-drug-related traffic offense in lieu of a drunk-driving offense unless the prosecutor makes a good faith representation that they could not establish a prima facie case on the original charge. CO ST § 42-4-1301(4).

Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	
Offense:	
<u>Onense</u> .	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Driving under the influence/illegal per se:
	First offense (misdemeanor) – Not less than 5 days or more than 1 year and may be fined not less than \$600 or more than \$1,000;Subsequent offense of DUI, DUI per se, or habitual user137– Not less than 70 days or more than 1 year and may be fined not less than \$900 or more than \$1,500;Subsequent offense or BAC or BrAC $\geq .20$ – Not less than 90 days or more than 1 year and may be fined not less than
	<b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$1,500</b> . CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(a).
	Driving while impaired (misdemeanor): <u>First offense</u> – Not less than 2 days or more than 180 days and may be fined not less than \$200 or more than \$500; <u>First offense</u> <sup>138</sup> – Not less than 60 days or more than 1 year and may be fined not less than \$800 or more than \$2,200; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – Not less than 45 days or more than 1 year and may be fined not less than \$600 or more than \$1,000. CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(b).
	<b>Injury-Related DWI Offense</b> (Vehicle Assault) (Class 4 felony) – <b>2 to 6 years</b> and <b>\$2,000 to \$500,000</b> . CO ST § 18-1.3-401; CO ST § 18-3-205.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Driving Under the Influence/Illegal per se: <u>First offense</u> – 5 days; <sup>139</sup> <u>First offense</u> – 70 days (7 days); <u>Subsequent offense or BAC or BrAC <math>\geq</math> .20 – 90 days (10 days).</u> CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(a).
	Driving While Impaired: <u>First offense</u> – 2 days; <u>First offense</u> <sup>140</sup> – 60 days (6 days); <u>Subsequent offense</u> – 45 days (5 days). CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(b).
	Injury Related DWI Offense (Vehicle Assault) (Class 4

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>137</sup> But where there has been a conviction for a driving while impaired offense.
<sup>138</sup> But where there has been a conviction for a driving while under the influence offense/illegal per se.
<sup>139</sup> Note: The mandatory 5 day sentence may be suspended conditioned upon the following: (1) the offender receives a presentence alcohol and drug evaluation; (2) the offender satisfactorily completes an appropriate alcohol and drug safety education or treatment program (based on the evaluation); and (3) the offender satisfactoring completes an appropriate alcohol and drug satery cuteation of iteration of i

	felony) – <b>1 year</b> . CO ST § 18-1.3-401(6).
Other Penalties:	<ul> <li>I. A penalty surcharge of not less than \$50 or more than</li> <li>\$500 shall be imposed on all DUIs. CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(d)(II).</li> <li>II. A penalty surcharge of \$20 for the traumatic brain injury</li> </ul>
	trust fund. CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(d)(III).
	III. A penalty surcharge of not less than <b>\$1</b> or more than <b>\$10</b> for programs to address alcohol and substance abuse problems. CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(d)(IV).
Community Service:	Driving under the influence/illegal per se:         First_offense – Not less than 48 hours or more than 96         hours;         Subsequent offense of DUI, DUI per se, or habitual user <sup>141</sup> – Not less than 56 hours or more than 112 hours;         Subsequent offense or BAC/BrAC≥0.20 – Not less than 60
	hours or more than 120 hours.
	Driving While Impaired:First offense – Not less than 24 hours or more than 48hours;First offense <sup>142</sup> – Not less than 52 hours or more than 104hours;Subsequent offense – Not less than 48 hours or more than96 hours.CO ST § 42-4-1301(7).
	Persons assigned to community service must pay a fee of no more than \$120. CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(h); CO ST § 42-4-1301.4(5).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes I. Court costs which credit the crime victim compensation fund. CO ST § 24-4.1-119(1). II. A defendant may be ordered to pay restitution as part of the sentence. CO ST § 18-1.3-205; CO ST § 18-1.3-601. As a condition of probation, a drunk-driving defendant <b>shall</b> be required to make restitution. CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(e).
Other:	Mandatory Parole: Persons who have been convicted of Vehicle Assault must be placed on parole for 3 years. CO ST § 18-1.3-401(1)(a)(V).
	<b>Child Abuse (Endangerment)</b> : Knowingly or recklessly committing an act that either kills or injures a child (<16 years old) is child abuse.
	If death results, it is a Class 2 felony, which carries a term of 8-24 years in prison and/or a fine of \$5,000 – \$1,000,000.

\_\_\_\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>141</sup> But where there has been a conviction for a driving while impaired offense. <sup>142</sup> But where there has been a conviction for a driving while under the influence offense/illegal per se.

	If injury results, it is a Class 3 felony, which carries a term of 4-12 years in prison and/or a fine of \$3,000 – \$750,000. Mandatory parole is 5 years for both felonies. CO ST § 18-1.3-401; CO ST § 18-6-401(1), (2), (7)(a)(I), (III); <i>People v. Deskins</i> , 927 P. 2d 368 (Colo 1996).
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes $\geq .08$ (BAC/BrAC. ):First Violation – Revocation – 9 months; <sup>143</sup> Second – Revocation – 1 year;Third or subsequent violation – Revocation – 2 years. <sup>144</sup> CO ST § 42-2-126(3)(a)(I); CO ST § 42-2-126(6)(b).If the person is also convicted of a DWI offense, the licens-ing actions for the admin. per se violation and for the DWIconviction may run concurrently. CO ST § 42-2-125(5).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	I. Driving while under the influence and illegal per se –         Suspension/Revocation.         CO ST § 42-2-125(1).         II. Driving while impaired – Suspension/         Revocation. <sup>145,146</sup> CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(b), (g), (i).         III. Injury Related DWI Offense (Vehicle Assault) –         Revocation. CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(a).
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	Driving while under the influence and illegal per se –Not less than 1 year;Driving while impaired – Not less than 1 year.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>143</sup> The revocation periods for <u>admin. per se violations</u> are <u>mandatory</u>, except that a person may apply for a restricted license, under CO ST § 42-2-132.5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>144</sup> The revocation periods for <u>admin. per se violations</u> are <u>mandatory</u>, except that a person may apply for a restricted license, under CO ST 42-2-132.5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>145</sup> For driving while under the influence, 12 points and, for driving while impaired conviction, 8 points are placed on driver's record. Generally, the accumulation of either 12 points in 12 months or 18 points in 24 months results in license suspension for not more than 1 year (or for not less than 1 year for driving while under the influence – first offense) but a probationary/restricted license may be issued. CO ST § 42-2-127(1)(a), (5), (12), (14); CO ST § 42-2-132(1).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>146</sup> A conviction for an impaired, under the influence, or illegal per se offense, where there has been a previous alcohol driving offense conviction of any type within a 5-year period results in revocation. CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(g); CO ST § 42-2-132(2). A conviction for an impaired, under the influence of illegal per se influence or illegal per se offense, where there have been two previous alcohol driving offense convictions of any type results in revocation. CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(g); CO ST § 42-2-132(2).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>147</sup> If the first offender is a minor, a person under 21 years of age, the license must be revoked for 1 year. CO ST § 42-2-125(g); CO ST § 42-2-132(2).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>148</sup> A conviction for an impaired, under the influence, or illegal per se offense where there has been a previous alcohol driving offense conviction of any type within a 5-year period results in revocation for **1 year**. CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(g); CO ST § 42-2-132(2). A conviction for an impaired, under the influence of illegal per se influence or illegal per se offense where there have been two pre-

Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(b), (g), (i); CO ST § 42-2-132. Injury-Related DWI Offense (Vehicle Assault) – 1 year. CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(a); CO ST § 42-2-132(2)(a). Driving while under the influence and illegal per se – None. <sup>150</sup> Driving while impaired – None. <sup>151,152</sup> Injury-Related DWI Offense (Veh. Assault) – 1 year.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> CO ST § CO ST § 42-2-126 (4); CO ST § 42-2- 132(2)(a)(II); CO ST § 42-4-1301.3.
Alcohol Treatment:	<b>Yes</b> . CO ST § 42-2-126 (4); 42-2-132(2)(a)(II); CO ST § 42-4-1301.3.
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	None
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	I. A DWI offender may be sentenced to attend a "victim impact panel" and assessed an attendance fee of not more than \$25. CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(f). II. A DWI offender is required to pay \$75 (deposited into the Law Enforcement Assistance Fund) and \$15 (deposited into the county treasury). CO ST § 43-4-402(1). III. A DWI offender is assessed the "cost" for alcohol/drug evaluation and supervision services and may be assessed other costs. CO ST § 42-4-1301(7)(g). IV. For misdemeanor offenses, persons are assessed a surcharge of 37% of the fine imposed, or \$78 (misdemeanor), \$46 (Class 1 misd. traffic) or \$33 (Class 2 misd. traffic), whichever is the greater amount. Felony offenders are assessed a surcharge of 37% of the fine imposed or \$163, whichever is the greater amount. CO ST

vious alcohol driving offense convictions of any type results in revocation for an **indefinite period**. CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(i). <sup>149</sup> A person convicted of operating a vehicle while under the influence of a controlled substance must have his/her license revoked

for a mandatory period of one year for a first offense. CO ST 42-2-125(1)(b), (2); CO ST 42-2-132(2).

<sup>150</sup> A probationary-restricted license may be issued for reasons of employment/alcohol education, et al. This license is renewable for additional 1-year periods, except if the person is designated a "persistent drunk driver" (i.e., has a BAC  $\geq$  17) any probationary license must require ignition interlock for at least one year. CO ST § 42-2-127(12), (14). <sup>151</sup> If the first offender is a minor, a person under 21 years old, his/her license must be revoked for a 1-year period. CO ST §

<sup>151</sup> If the first offender is a minor, a person under 21 years old, his/her license must be revoked for a 1-year period. CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(g); CO ST § 42-2-132(2). <sup>152</sup> I. A conviction for an impaired, under the influence, or illegal per se offense where there has been a previous alcohol driving

 $^{152}$  I. A conviction for an impaired, under the influence, or illegal per se offense where there has been a previous alcohol driving offense conviction of any type within a 5-year period results in a mandatory 1-year revocation (notwithstanding participation in an ignition interlock program). CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(g); CO ST 42-2-132(2). II. A conviction for an impaired, under the influence of illegal per se influence or illegal per se offense where there have been two previous alcohol driving offense convictions of any type results in revocation for 2 years (1 year mandatory notwithstanding participation in an ignition interlock program). CO ST § 42-2-132.5(1)(i). III. Early reinstatement (CO ST § 42-2-132.5(1.5)): A person who has had his/her driving privileges revoked for more than 1 year for driving while either impaired, under the influence or illegal per se, or for an admin per se violation, is eligible for early license reinstatement with driving restrictions with the use of an ignition interlock device. The restrictions remain in effect for "the longer of one year or the total time period remaining on the license restraint prior to early reinstatement."

	<ul><li>§ 24-4.2-104(1)(a)(I)</li><li>V. Traffic School: A person who violates the state's traffic</li></ul>
	laws may be ordered to attend a course of instruction on traffic laws, hazardous driving situations and accident prevention. CO ST § 42-4-1717.
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory
Conditions of use:	Ignition interlock is both mandatory and available depending on the circumstances of the driver/offender. For example, if a person has an ignition interlock device installed in his/her vehicle, the terms under which his/her license has been revoked may be reduced. CO ST § 42-2- 126. For an impaired, under the influence or illegal per se
	offense or a habitual offender offense related to one of these alcohol offenses where there has been a previous alcohol driving offense conviction of any type within a 5- year period, an offender must install ignition interlock devices on the vehicles that person drives and is required to hold a restricted license for at least 1 year prior to full license reinstatement. CO ST § 42-2-132.5
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted         People v. Rister, 803 P.2d 483 (Colo. 1990);           Orr v. People, 803 P.2d 509 (Colo. 1990).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes <u>DWI Vehicle Homicide</u> – Class 3 felony. CO ST § 18-3-106(1)(b), (c).
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>Class 3 felony</u> – <b>4 to 12 years</b> (8-24 years if the victim was a pregnant woman and defendant <i>knew</i> this fact) and <b>\$3,000</b> <b>to \$750,000</b> . CO ST § 18-1.3-401(1)(a)(III)(A); CO ST § 18-1.3-401(1)(a)(V)(A); CO ST 18-1.3-401(13)(a), (b).
Mandatory Minimum Term:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> . CO ST § 42-2-125(a); CO ST § 42-2-128.
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	1 year CO ST § 42-2-132(2)(a).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	1 year

of License Withdrawal:	CO ST § 42-2-132(2)(a).
Other:	Class 3 felony – Mandatory parole for 5 years. CO ST § 18-1.3-401.
	Persons Under 21 Years Old:I. Infraction/Misdemeanor. A person < 21 who operates a motor vehicle with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .02 but $\leq$ .05:First Offense (Class A Traffic Infraction ) - \$15 penalty and revocation for 3 months;Second or subsequent offense (Class 2 Traffic Misdemeanor ) - 10-90 days imprisonment and/or \$150- \$300, and revocation for 6 months (2 <sup>nd</sup> offense) or 1 year (3 <sup>rd</sup> or subsequent offense).CO ST § 42-2-125(1)(g.5), (2.5); CO ST § 42-4- 1302(2)(a.5); CO ST § 42-4-1701(3)(a).
	II. <u>Administrative Action</u> . A person $< 21$ who operates a motor vehicle with either a BAC/BrAC $> .05$ but $< .10$ or a BAC (breath analysis only) $\ge .02$ but $\le .05$ is subject to the same license revocation periods.
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	Any person who holds a commercial driver's license or who drives a commercial motor vehicle is subject to the same disciplinary actions and penalties as listed above for all DWI offense. CO ST § 42-2-405(1). A person who drives, operates, or is in physical control of
	a commercial motor vehicle while having <i>any</i> alcohol in his/her system, or who refuses to submit to a breath or blood test, shall be placed out of service. CO ST § 42-2- 405(2).
	Any person who violates an out of service order commits a Class 1 traffic misdemeanor. CO ST § 42-2-405.5.
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Misdemeanor <u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and may be fined not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Second and subsequent offenses</u> – Not less than <b>90 days</b> or more than <b>2 years</b> and may be fined not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$3,000</b> . CO ST § 42-2-138(1)(d)(I).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	The terms of imprisonment listed above are mandatory. The fines are discretionary. CO ST $42-2-138(1)(d)(I)$ .

Length of Term of License	
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action	For a second or subsequent offense within 5 years, the driver is not "eligible" for driving privileges for a period of <b>4 years</b> after such second or subsequent conviction. CO ST § 42-2-138(1)(e).
Withdrawal Action:	Second and subsequent offenses – 4 years CO ST § 42-2-138(1)(e).
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	Second and subsequent offenses – 4 years CO ST § 42-2-138(1)(e).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> CO ST § 42-2-201.
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	(1) 3 or more serious offenses in 7 years <sup>153</sup> ; (2) 10 or more convictions for offenses of 4 points <sup>154</sup> or more within 5 years; or (3) 18 or more convictions of 3 points <sup>155</sup> or less within 5 years. CO ST § 42-2-202.
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Revocation – 5 years</b> CO ST § 42-2-205.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Class 1 Misdemeanor</b> <sup>156</sup> CO ST § 42-2-206(1)(a)(1).
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	<b>6 to 18 months</b> and/or <b>\$500 to \$5,000</b> . CO ST § 18-1.3- 501.
	<b>30 days</b> and/or <b>\$3,000</b> . <sup>157</sup> CO ST § 42-2-206(1)(a)(II).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	<b>50 days</b> and/or \$5,000. CO 51 § 42-2-200(1)(a)(1).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>153</sup> These include DUI, DUI per se, DWAI or habitual user, reckless driving, driving on suspended or revoked license, vehicular assault and vehicular homicide, etc. CO ST § 42-2-202(2)(a). <sup>154</sup> These include DUI/DUI per se, habitual user, DWAI, UDD, certain speeding offenses, reckless and careless driving. CO ST §

<sup>42-2-127(2)(</sup>b)(5).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>155</sup> These include certain speeding offenses and various traffic infractions. CO ST § 42-2-127(2)(b)(5).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>156</sup> Aggravated Driving: A person commits aggravated driving, a Class 6 felony, when operating a motor vehicle while the license is still revoked for being a habitual offender and committing a drunk-driving offense, reckless driving, eluding a police officer, or a violation of the accident reporting requirements. CO ST § 42-2-206(1)(b)(I), (II). Sanctions: 1 year to 18 months imprisonment (mandatory parole for 1 yr) and \$1,000 - \$100,000 in fines. CO ST § 18-1.3-401(1)(a).

Vehicle Forfeiture: A vehicle used in the commission of a "felony" is subject to in rem civil forfeiture. CO ST § 16-13-302; CO ST § 16-13-303(1)(i). Under this law, the State is able to forfeit a driver's vehicle based upon the offense of driving after license revocation. The driver may be subjected to criminal prosecution for such behavior. This does not constitute double jeopardy. People v. Ferrel, 929 P. 2d 65 (Colo.App. 1996).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>157</sup> A person must be sentenced to a mandatory jail term or a mandatory fine but may be sentenced to both. However, the mandatory jail or fine sanction may be suspended if the offender completes no less than 40 (mandatory) hours or no greater than 300 hours of community service. CO ST § 42-2-206(1)(a)(II).

Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes	
	CO ST § 42-4-1301.1(8); CO ST § 42-4-1304.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
	CO ST § 42-4-1301.1(8); CO ST § 42-4-1304(1).	
Vehicle Passengers:	<b>Yes</b> (only if the driver cannot be immediately determined). CO ST § 42-4-1304(1).	
Pedestrian:	Yes (15 years of age or older). CO ST § 42-4-1304(1).	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Sale/Purchase:	CO ST § 12-47-901(1)(a.5).	
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Possession/Consumption:	Applies to possession in public places and motor vehicles.	
	There is an exemption for possession on private property	
	with parental consent or for religious purposes. CO ST §	
	12-47-901(1)(c); CO ST § 18-13-122.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes	
(Yes/No):	CO ST § 12-47-801.	
	Under this law, a licensee is liable for the injuries caused by	
	a patron if the sale or service of alcoholic beverages was	
	"willfully and knowingly" made to such patron who was	
	under 21, was visibly intoxicated, or was a known habitual	
	drunkard. <sup>158,159</sup>	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	Note: Dram shop case law (e.g., <i>Kerby v. Flamingo Club</i> ,	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	<i>Inc.</i> , 532 P.2d 975 (Colo. 1974)) has been abrogated by leg-	
Common Law Rule by Action of the	islation. CO ST § 12-47-801(1).	
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes (Limited)	
	CO ST § 12-47-801(4).	
	Liability is limited to the actions of those under the legal	
	drinking age. Under the dram shop law, the service of	
	alcoholic beverages must be "willfully and knowingly"	
	made to persons under 21 years old.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>158</sup> A separate dram shop law, CO ST § 13-21-103, provides that persons injured in person, property, or means of support by an intoxicated person has an action against any person who, "by selling or giving away intoxicating liquors to any habitual drunkard, causes the intoxication" of that drunkard. Damages amounts are subject to the general limitations found in CO ST § 13-21-102.5. <sup>159</sup> Damages awards are limited to \$150,000, but are adjusted each year to account for inflation. CO ST § 12-47-801 (3)(c), (4)(c) and (5)(a).

Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person convicted of providing alcohol to an underage person or allowing an underage person to use an adult's identification to purchase alcohol commits a Class 2 misdemeanor, and is subject to the following punishment: <b>3-12 months in jail</b> and/or <b>\$250-\$1,000 fine</b> . CO ST § 12-47-903(2); CO ST § 18-1.3-501(1)(a).
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class 2 Misdemeanor CO ST § 12-47-901(1)(a), (5)(a)(1); CO ST § 12-47-903(2).
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	<b>3-12 months</b> and/or <b>\$250 -\$1,000</b> CO ST § 18-1.3-501(1)(a).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or Revocation CO ST § 12-47-601(1).
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Suspension – Not more than 6 months;160Revocation – Period not specified in the statutes.CO ST § 12-47-601.
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class 2 Misdemeanor CO ST § 12-47-901(1)(a), (5)(a)(1); CO ST § 12-47-903(2).
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>3-12 months</b> and/or <b>\$250-\$1,000</b> CO ST § 18-1.3-501(1)(a).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or Revocation CO ST § 12-47-601(1).
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Suspension – Not more than 6 months;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>160</sup> Summary suspension is allowed for not more than 15 days. CO ST § 12-47-601(2).

#### COLORADO

	<b>Revocation</b> – Period not specified in the statutes. CO ST § 12-47-601.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> CO ST § 42-4-1305.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> CO ST § 12-47-901(1)(h).	

STATE	CONNECTICUT
General Reference:	Connecticut General Statutes Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor. CT ST § 14-
Standard Dwi Offense.	227a(a).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{161}$ CT ST § 14-227a(a).
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: BAC > $.02^{162}$ CT ST § 14-
	227g(a), (c).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug or any drug and intoxicat-
	ing liquor. CT ST § 14-227a(a).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No
Implied Consent Law:	Yes CT ST § 14-227b; CT ST § 14-227g.
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> CT ST § 14-227b; CT ST § 14-227g(a).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes CT ST § 14-227b(b).
(Yes/No):	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal Cases) CT ST § 14-227a(e).
Admitted into Evidence:	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for	
Alcohol Concentration Which Are	
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> CT ST § 14-227b(a).
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> CT ST § 14-227b(a).
Other:	105 CT 51 § 11 22/6(d).
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
_	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No <sup>163</sup>
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> However, the law does require the State to give to the
	court, in open session, the reasons why a DWI charge was
	reduced, nolle prossed or dismissed. CT ST § 14-227a(f).
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	<b>No</b> <sup>164</sup>
(Yes/No):	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>161</sup> Standard: "Percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. CT ST § 14-227a(a); CT ST § 14-227g(a).
<sup>162</sup> The sanctions for a violation of this offense are the same as for a violation of CT ST § 14-227a(a) – driving under the influence into satisfies for a violation of any orbits are the satisfies of a violation of  $0.101 \text{ g} + 227 \text{ a}(\text{a})^{-1}$  arving anter the influence interaction of a violation of  $0.101 \text{ g} + 227 \text{ a}(\text{a})^{-1}$  and the influence interaction of a violation of a violation of  $0.101 \text{ g} + 227 \text{ a}(\text{a})^{-1}$  and the influence interaction of a violation of a vio

 $<sup>^{164}</sup>$  A court may, but is not required to, conduct a pre-sentence investigation. The law is silent as to whether "alcohol screening" has to be given to persons convicted of a drunk-driving offense. CT ST § 54-91a.

Sonations for Defusal to Submit to a		
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
<u>Chemical Test</u> .		
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	N/A	
Test:		
<u>1051</u> .		
Refusal to Take Implied Consent		
Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	First action (refusal) – Suspension 6 months (90 days	
(Susp/Rev):	mandatory); <sup>165</sup>	
(ouspire).	Second action (refusal)– Suspension 1 year;	
	<u>Subsequent action (refusal)</u> – Suspension 3 years. CT ST	
	$\frac{54056440111}{8}$ (14-227b(i); 14-227g(c).	
	s = 2270(1), 1 = 2275(0).	
	Under CT ST § 54-56g(b), a person's participation in an	
	alcohol or treatment program does not affect the mandato-	
	ry license suspension. Furthermore, for a second or subse-	
	quent refusal, the person must satisfactorily complete an	
	alcohol treatment program before driving privileges can be	
	reinstated. CT ST § 14-227b(e).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI		
Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	Under the Influence/Illegal per se:	
	First offense (misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>\$500</b> or more	
	than \$1,000 and not more than 6 months;	
	Second offense (within 10 years – felony) – Not less than	
	\$1,000 or more than \$4,000 and not more than 2 years;	
	Third or subsequent offense (within 10 years – felony) –	
	Not less than \$2,000 or more than \$8,000 and not more	
	than <b>3 years</b> .	
	CT ST § 14-227a(g); CT ST § 53a-25; CT ST § 53a-26.	
	Vehicle Assault (Class D felony) – Not more than \$5,000	
	and not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> . CT ST §	
	53a-35a; CT ST § 53a-41; CT ST § 53a-60d.	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	Under the Influence/Illegal per se:	
	<u>First offense</u> – <b>48 consecutive hours</b> ;	
	<u>Second offense</u> – 120 consecutive days;	
	<u>Third and subsequent offenses</u> – 1 year.	
	CT ST § 14-227a(g).	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	Under the Influence/Illegal per se:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>165</sup> After the 90-day mandatory period, a person is eligible for a "special permit" based on "a showing of significant hardship" to operate a motor vehicle either to and from a place of employment or, if necessary, in the course of a business or profession. CT ST 14-37a(b).

	First offense– 100 hours in lieu of the 48 consecutive hours of mandatory imprisonment. For this alternative, the entire jail sentence is suspended and the required community service is to be performed as a part of proba- tion;166Second and subsequent offense (within 10 years) – 100 hours (mand) in addition to incarceration and as part of probation. CT ST § 14-227a(g); CT ST § 14-227e.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	YesCriminal injuries compensation fund. CT ST § 54-209;CT ST § 54-215.Direct Restitution: The court may order restitution bepaid directly to the victim, the order of which becomes anenforceable civil judgment. CT ST § 53a-28(c).
Other:	<ul> <li>Special Cost: A special cost of \$15 (misdemeanor) or \$20 (felony) is imposed for a DWI offense conviction. CT ST § 54-143(a).</li> <li>Incarceration Cost: A defendant may be required to pay the cost of incarceration. CT ST § 18-85a.</li> </ul>
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes $\geq .08$ (BAC) or $\geq .07$ (BAC) if the driver has a previous DWI violation. $\geq .02$ (BAC) for persons under 21 years old.First action – suspension – 90 days;First action if BAC $\geq .16$ – suspension – 120 days;Second action – suspension – 9 months (mand);Second (BAC $\geq .16$ ) – suspension – 10 months (mand):Subsequent action – suspension – 2 years (mand); Subsequent (BAC $\geq .16$ ) – suspension – 2½ years (mand). CTSt § 14-37a; CT ST § 14-227b(b), (i).
Other:	Under CT ST § 14-111(a), a person's license may be sus- pended for any cause the licensing agency "deems suffi- cient." Such action may be taken with or without a pre- liminary hearing.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Under the Influence/Illegal per se:First and second offenses – Suspension;Third and subsequent offense – Revocation.CT ST § 14-227a(g).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>166</sup> Under separate provisions of law, an offender who is sentenced to probation may be required to perform community service. CT ST § 53a-28(e).

	<b>Vehicle Assault</b> (DWI offense) – <b>Suspension</b> . CT ST § 53a-60d(a).
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	Under the Influence/Illegal per se:First offense – 1 year;Second offense – 3 years;Third and subsequent offense – Permanently.CT ST § 14-227a(g).
	<b>Vehicle Assault (DWI offense)</b> – <b>1 year</b> . CT ST § 53a-60d(a).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	Under the Influence/Illegal per se: <u>First and subsequent offenses</u> – None <sup>167,168</sup>
	Vehicle Assault (DWI offense) – 1 year
	Persons Under 18 Years Old: Under CT ST § 14- 227a(h)(2), a person under 18 years old who is convicted of any DWI offense has the license suspended either until age 18 or for the normal suspension period for the offense convicted, whichever is the longer suspension period. Per- sons under 18 years old can also have the driver's license revoked permanently for a third conviction under CT ST § 14-227a(a). CT ST § 14-227a(g).
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	Yes The court <u>may</u> order alcohol education. CT ST § 14- 227a(j).
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes The court <u>may</u> order alcohol treatment. CT ST § 14- 227a(j).
	Persons charged with a first DWI offense (any type) may be allowed to participate in an accelerated pre-trial reha- bilitation/alcohol education program. If a defendant satis- factorily completes this program, the court may dismiss the drunk-driving charges. CT ST § 54-56e; CT ST § 54- 56g. Furthermore, a person convicted of DWI must sub- mit evidence that he/she is participating in the treatment program, and a person with a second or subsequent con- viction must submit evidence of satisfactory completion of the treatment program, before driving privileges can be reinstated. CT ST § 14-227f.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>167</sup> The law does not specifically prohibit a court from reducing these suspension periods.
 <sup>168</sup> Not all of these licensing actions are mandatory. Based upon "a showing of significant hardship," a person is eligible for a "special permit" which may be used to operate a motor vehicle either to and from a place of employment or, if necessary, in the course of a business or profession. CT ST § 14-37a. If a person is convicted of driving while under the influence of intoxicating liquor while operating a motor vehicle on a "special permit," the period of revocation is twice as long as indicated above. CT ST § 14-227a(h)(3).

Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Yes Limited Impoundment: The vehicle driven by a person who has been arrested for driving while under the influ- ence of intoxicating liquor or with a BAC level $\geq$ .08 shall be impounded for 48 hours <i>if the person's driving privi-</i> <i>lege was suspended or revoked at the time of the offense</i> . CT ST § 14-227h.
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	The owner of such vehicle may reclaim the vehicle only after the expiration of 48 hours upon payment of all tow- ing and storage costs. CT ST § 14-227h.
Other:	<b>Victim Impact Panel</b> : The court may require a probation- er to participate in a victim impact panel as a condition of probation. CT ST § 14-227a(l).
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory
Conditions of Use:	Ignition interlock devices may be required for anyone who has been twice convicted of a DWI offense, and who has served less than 1 year of the prescribed license suspen- sion for such conviction, or who is seeking reversal or re- duction of license revocation, or if the court has ordered such person not to drive without an ignition interlock de- vice. CT ST § 14-36(g); CT ST § 14-111(k)(2); CT ST § 14-227j.
Sobriety Checkpoints: Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted State v. Mikolinski, 775 A.2d 274 (Conn. 2001).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Class C felony – A person is guilty of manslaughter with a motor vehicle if while operating a motor vehicle under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any drug or both, that person causes the death of another person. CT ST § 53a-56b.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> and/or a fine not to exceed <b>\$10,000</b> . CT ST § 53a-25; CT ST § 53a-35a; CT ST § 53a-41.
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Suspension CT ST § 53a-56b.

Action:	
Length of Term of Licensing	<b>1 year</b> CT ST § 53a-56b.
Withdrawal:	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	The 1 year term appears to be mandatory.
of License Withdrawal:	
Other:	<b>Community Service</b> : An offender who is sentenced to probation may be required to perform community service. CT ST § 53a-28(e).
	<b>Persistent Offender</b> : A person who has been convicted of DWI manslaughter or DWI Assault and who has a previous conviction for either of these offenses or a drunk- driving violation under CT ST § 14-227a within 10 years may be incarcerated at the next higher level felony of- fense. CT ST § 53a-40f. (Class B felony- Not less than 1 year or more than 20 years and/or a fine of not more than \$15,000. CT ST § 53a-35a.)
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1
<u>Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's</u> <u>Licenses (CDL):</u>	mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate- rials) if, while operating CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is convicted of driving while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for alcohol concentration. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for life. The lifetime "disqualification" may be reduced to 10 years (mand) if certain conditions are satisfied. But a per- son is not eligible for a "special permit" based on hard- ship. CT ST § 14-1(12), (14), (15); CT ST § 14-37a; CT ST § 14-44k. <sup>169</sup>
Driving While License Suspended or	
<u>Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI</u> Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Misdemeanor –
imprisonnient (Term)/Time.	Not more than 1 year and not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000. <sup>170</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>169</sup> A person who operates a CMV after having been placed "out-of-service" is subject to the following CDL disqualification periods: <u>first offense</u> – not less than 90 days (mand) or more than 1 year; <u>second offense</u> (within 10 years) – not less than 1 year (mand) or more than 5 years; <u>third or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – not less than 3 years (mand) or more than 5 years. If the offender was transporting passengers or hazardous materials, the disqualification periods are as follows: <u>first offense</u> – not less than 180 days (mand) or more than 2 years; <u>second or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – not less than 3 years (mand) or more than 5 years. CT ST § 14-44k(i)(1), (2). In addition, such an offender is subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$1,100 or more than \$2,750. CT ST § 14-44k(g)(3).

 $<sup>^{170}</sup>$  The sanctions given also apply to persons who operate a motor vehicle after their driving privileges have been suspended for an implied consent law violation.

#### CONNECTICUT

	CT ST § 14-215(c); 53a-26(a).
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<b>30 consecutive days</b> CT ST § 14-215(c).
Imprisonment/Fine:	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension
	CT ST § 14-111(b).
Length of Term of License	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than 1 year;
Administrative Licensing Actions:	Subsequent offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 2
	years.
	CT ST § 14-111(b).
Withdrawal Action:	
Mandatory Term of License	Licensing action appears to be mandatory. A person is <u>not</u>
Withdrawal Action:	eligible for a "special permit" based on an occupational
withdrawar Action.	hardship. CT ST § 14-37a. However, the licensing agen-
	cy may have authority to modify or cancel a suspension or
	revocation. CT ST § 14-111(k).
	An offender who is sentenced to probation may be re-
	quired to perform community service. CT ST § 53a-28(e).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Other State Laws Related To Arconor Ose.	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> CT ST § 14-227c(a).
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the	
the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes
Vehicle Passengers:	No
Pedestrian:	Yes
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages	
<u>Concerning Alcoholic Beverages</u> :	
Minimum Age (Years)	21
Sale/Purchase:	CT ST § 30-1(12); CT ST § 30-86(b)(3).
~~~~~	<b>Exceptions</b> : Employment or under an order of a physical
	or while accompanied by a parent or legal guardian who is
	over 21 years of age.
Minimum Age (Years)	21
Possession/Consumption:	CT ST § 30-89(b).
	This applies only to possession in a public place.
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal	
<u>Actions</u> :	

State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes
(Yes/No):	CT ST § 30-102.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	Yes
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	The provisions of the Dram Shop Law do not make it the
Common Law Rule by Action of the	exclusive remedy for such actions, i.e., a plaintiff can still
Highest Court of Record in the State	bring a common law negligence action for injuries. <i>Da</i> -
(Case Citation):	<i>venport v. Quinn</i> , 730 A.2d 1184 (Conn.App. 1999).
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes
	Ely v. Murphy, 540 A.2d 54 (Conn. 1988). This applies to
	the actions of intoxicated minor guests.
Social Hosts-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who gives alcoholic liquor to a minor, by any
	means, shall be fined not more than \$1,500 and/or impri-
	soned not more than 18 months. CT ST § 30-86.
Criminal Action Against Owner or	
Employees of Establishments that Serve	
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor
	CT ST § 30-86.
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . CT
	ST § 30-113.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of	
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic	
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or revocation
windrawn (105/100).	CT ST § 30-55.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute.
Length of Term of Electise withdrawar.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or	
Employees of Establishments that Serve	
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of	
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under	
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
<u>me mannan Dega Dinking (150</u> .	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor CT ST § 30-86.
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . CT
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ST § $30-113$ .
Administrative Actions Against Owners of	
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic	
Beverages to Those Persons Under the	
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or revocation

#### CONNECTICUT

	CT ST § 30-55.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute.
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>No</b> <sup>171</sup>
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open	
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)	
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in	
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	No statutory provisions.
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	No statutory provisions.

 $<sup>^{171}</sup>$  The law prohibits the alcoholic beverage licensing agency from adopting a regulation that mandates the minimum price above which a permittee is required to sell alcoholic beverages. CT ST § 30-6a(c)(5).

STATE	DELAWARE	
General Reference:	Delaware Code Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol. DE ST TI 21 § 4177(a)(l).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{172}$ DE ST TI 21 § 4177(a)(4).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug or a combination of alco- hol and any illicit drug <sup>173</sup> or recreational drug. DE ST TI 21 § 4177(a)(2), (3). <b>Persons Under 21 Years Old</b> – Vehicle Operation While or After Consuming Alcoholic Liquor. <sup>174</sup> DE ST TI 21 §	
	4177L(a).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>175</sup> DE ST TI 21 § 2741.	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes         DE ST TI 21 § 2740	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	No Probable cause is sufficient. DE ST TI 21 § 2740; DE	
Allest Required (1es/100).	ST TI 21 § 2741(b); DE ST TI 21 § 2740, DE	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes	
(Yes/No):	DE ST TI 21 § 2740; DE ST TI 21 § 2741(b).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) DE ST TI 21 § 2749.	
Other Information:	A person <u>may</u> be required to submit to a chemical test if there is probable cause of a DWI offense. However, if a person is <u>informed</u> of his/her statutory right to refuse to submit to a test and he/she exercises this right, a test <u>can- not</u> be administered by involuntary means. DE ST TI 21 § 2740; DE ST TI 21 § 2741(b); DE ST TI 21 § 2742(a).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> DE ST TI 21 § 2740.	
Urine:	Yes DE ST TI 21 § 2740.	
Other:	Yes (breath) DE ST TI 21 § 2740; DE ST TI 21 § 2741.	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
requirement of D in Churges.	1	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>172</sup> Standard: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. DE ST TI 21 § 4177(c)(1); DE ST TI 21 § 4177L(b).
<sup>173</sup> The term "drug" includes those drugs defined in Titles 11 and 16 (e.g., see schedule of controlled substances in Ch.

<sup>47</sup> of Title 16) and any substance or preparation which releases intoxicating vapors or fumes. DE ST TI 21 §

 $<sup>^{174}</sup>$  An alcohol concentration of  $\geq$  .02 is "<u>per se evidence</u>" of having consumed alcoholic liquor. DE ST TI 21 § 4177L(b). <sup>175</sup> The law appears to indirectly authorize PBT use.

<b>No</b> <sup>176</sup>	
No	
No	
None	
DE ST TT 2T g 2742(0)(1), DE ST TT 2T g 2743(a), (g).	
First offense – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not less	
than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$1,500</b> ;	
Second offense <sup>178</sup> (within 5 years) – Not less than <b>60 days</b>	
· · · · ·	
•	
\$10,000	
<b>\$10,000</b> ; Sixth offense (Class D felony) – Not less than <b>5 years</b> or	
	No         No         None         None         First refusal – Revocation = 1 year (6 months mand); Second refusal <sup>177</sup> (within 5 years) – Revocation = 18 months (mand); Third or subsequent refusals (within 5 years) – Revoca- tion = 24 months (mand). DE ST TI 21 § 2742(b)(l); DE ST TI 21 § 2743(a), (g).         Example 12 Second offense <sup>178</sup> (within 5 years) – Not less than 60 days or more than 18 months and not less than \$750 or more than \$2500; Third offense (within 5 years) (Class G felony) – Not less than 1 year or more than 2 years and not less than \$1,000 or more than 5 years and not less than \$3,000 or more than \$7,000; Fourth offense (Class E felony) – Not less than 2 years or more than 5 years and not less than 3 years or more than 5 years and not less than 3 years or more than 5 years and not less than 3 years or more than 5 years and not less than 3 years or more than 5 years and not less than 3 years or more than 5 years and not less than 3 years or more than 5 years and not less than 3,500 or more than

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>176</sup> A first offender cannot substitute the probation-before-judgment-program for the program under DE ST TI 21 § 4177B. DE ST TI 11 § 4218(b)(4). An offender is not eligible for the probation-before-judgment-program if that person has participated within a 5-year period or has other violation "enhancements" such as elevated BAC. DE ST TI 21 § 4177B(a); DE ST TI 11 § 4218(d). <sup>177</sup> For the purpose of license sanction enhancement for refusing to submit to a chemical test, a prior DWI offense/admin. per se violation is considered the same as a prior refusal. DE ST TI 21 § 2742(b). <sup>178</sup> First and second offenses are unclassified misdemeanors. DE ST TI 11 § 4202(b).

	\$10,000;	
	Seventh or subsequent offense (Class C felony) – Not less	
	than 10 years or more than 15 years and not less than	
	<b>\$10,000</b> or more than <b>\$15,000</b> .	
	DE ST TI 21 § 4177(d); DE ST TI s 4177B(e)(2).	
	<ul> <li><u>Vehicular Assault – second degree</u> (Class B misdemeanor): A DWI-related injury where there has been negligent driving – Up to 6 months incarceration and up to a \$1,150 fine.</li> <li>DE ST TI 11 § 628; DE ST TI 11 § 4206(b).</li> <li><u>Vehicle Assault – first degree</u> (Class F felony): A DWI-related serious injury where there has been negligent driv-</li> </ul>	
	ing – Up to <b>3 years</b> incarceration. The court may impose	
	a fine as it deems appropriate.	
	DE ST TI 11 § 629; DE ST TI 11 § 4205(b)(6), (k).	
	<b>Persons Under 21 Year Old</b> : If the person does not have a license, then <b>\$200</b> for first offense; and not less than <b>\$400</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> for each subsequent offense. DE ST TI 21 § 4177L(a).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First offense- \$500 (imprisonment may be suspended);Second offense (within 5 years) - 60 days/\$750;Third offense (within 5 years) - 3 months <sup>179</sup> /\$1,000;Fourth offense - 6 months/\$3,000;Fifth offense - 6 months/\$3,500;Sixth offense - 6 months/\$5,000;Seventh and subsequent offenses - 6 months/\$10,000.DE ST TI 21 §4177(d).	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	Yes <sup>180</sup>	
	Discretionary. DE ST TI 11 § 4332A.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes The court may order the defendant to pay compensa- tion to a victim. DE ST TI 11 § $4204(c)(9)(2)$ . Additional- ly, a victim of a DWI offense is eligible for compensation from the State's Violent Crime Compensation Board. DE ST TI 11 § $9002(3)(f)$ .	
Other:	Assessment: An additional amount equal to 18% of any fine (whether or not the fine is suspended) is assessed against the defendant. The assessment is deposited in the Victim compensation fund. DE ST TI 11 § 9012.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>179</sup> This mandatory imprisonment sanction appears to be consecutive, as early release, furlough and a suspended sentence are prohi-

bited. <sup>180</sup> The total number of community service hours that may be imposed cannot exceed the maximum term of incarceration for the offense, or if no incarceration is provided by law, the maximum number of community service hours shall not exceed 100. DE ST TI 11 § 4332A(b).

Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes Based on probable cause of DWI (alcohol or drugs) <sup>181</sup> First offense – Revocation – 3 months (mand);         Second offense – Revocation – 1 year (mand);         Third or subsequent offenses – Revocation – 18 months (mand). <sup>182</sup> DE ST TI 21 § 2742(c)(l), DE ST TI s 2743(b).         Persons Under 21 Years Old – Vehicle operation while or after consuming alcoholic liquor <sup>183</sup> First offense – Revocation-2 months (appears mand);
	Subsequent offense – Revocation – 6 to 12 months (6 months appears mandatory).         DE ST TI 21 § 2742(c)(2).
Other:	A license may be suspended for not more than 1 year if a person has "committed" an offense requiring license revo- cation (e.g., DWI). Such action may be taken <u>without</u> a preliminary hearing. DE ST TI 21 § 2733(a)(l), (e).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	<u>First offense</u> (.0814)(within 5 years) – <b>Revocation – 12</b> months;
	$(\underline{.1519}) - \text{Revocation} - 18 \text{ months};$ ( <u>.20 or greater</u> ) - Revocation - 24 months. Second offense (.0819) (within 5 years) - Revocation - 24 months; <sup>184</sup>
	( <u>.20 or greater</u> ) – <b>Revocation – 30 months</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (.0814) (within 5 years) – <b>Revocation –</b> <b>24 months</b> ;
	( <u>.1519</u> ) – <b>Revocation – 30 months</b> ; ( <u>.20 or greater</u> ) – <b>Revocation – 36 months</b> ; <u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> (regardless of BAC) (within 5 years) – <b>Revocation – 60 months</b> . DE ST TI 21 § 4177A(a).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>181</sup> Under DE ST TI 21 § 2742(f)(2) with reference <u>only</u> to an admin. per se violation, an alcohol concentration  $\ge$  .08 or a "positive indication of drugs" is conclusive evidence of a DWI offense.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>182</sup> For the purpose of license sanction enhancement, prior DWI offense/implied consent test refusal is considered the same as a prior admin. per se violation. DE ST TI 21 § 2742(c).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>183</sup> For persons < 21 years old, an alcohol concentration  $\geq$  .02 is "conclusive evidence" of vehicle operation while or after consuming alcoholic liquor. 21 §2742(f)(3) <sup>184</sup> For subsequent offenders, higher BACs will increase time of revocation. 21 §4177A(a)(2)(3).

For persons under 18 years old, license suspension/revocation until they are 21 (6 months mand). After the mandatory period, a restricted license may be issued provided there is a "critical need" for such a license and the minor is attending an alcohol program. DE ST TI 1 s 302(2), (12); DE ST TI 10 s 927(a)(6); DE ST TI 10 s 1009(f). Also, under DE ST TI 21 § 2707(b)(9), the licensing agency is not supposed to issue a license for 2 years or until the person is 18 whichever is longer, to anyone under 21 who has been convicted of either a DWI or any drug offense.

	Vehicle Assault (second degree) – <b>Revocation – 1 year</b> ;
	<u>Vehicle Assault (first degree)</u> – <b>Revocation – 2 years</b> .
	DE ST TI 21 § 2732(a)(2).
	Persons Under 21 Years Old – Vehicle operation while
	or after consuming alcoholic liquor –
	<u>First offense</u> – 2 months;
	Subsequent offense – 6 to 12 months.
	DE ST TI 21 § 4177L(a).
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<u>First offense</u> – 6 months. A conditional license may be
Withdrawal:	issued after the first 3 months of the revocation period.
	(< .15 = <b>12</b> months); (.1519 = <b>17</b> months); (.20 or
	greater = 23 months).
	DE ST TI 21 § 4177B; DE ST TI 21 § 4177C; DE ST TI
	21 § 4177E.
	<u>Second offense</u> – 6 months. A person may be permitted to
	apply for a driver's license after <b>12 months</b> provided
	he/she has satisfactorily completed the Subsequent Of- fense <b>Ignition Interlock</b> program.
	(.1519 = 12  months); (.20  or greater = 18  months).
	<u>Third offense</u> – <b>12 months</b> must have elapsed and the
	driver must have completed the <b>Ignition Interlock</b> pro-
	gram.
	(.15  or greater = 18  months); (.20  or greater = 24
	months).
	Fourth or subsequent offense – 48 months.
	DE ST TI 21 § 4177C(b)(3); DE ST TI 21 § 4177C(e).
	Vehicle Assault (second degree) – 1 year.
	Vehicle Assault (first degree) – 2 years.
	Persons Under 21 Years Old – Operation of Vehicle while
	or after consuming alcoholic liquor –
	<u>First offense</u> – 2 months;
	Subsequent offense – 6 months. These actions appear to
	be mandatory.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> DE ST TI 21 § 4177(f); DE ST TI s 4177D.
Alcohol Treatment:	<b>Yes</b> DE ST TI 21 § 4177(f); DE ST TI s 4177D.
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment of a vehicle or surrender of
	license plates/registration is authorized if the vehicle op-
	erator was operating the vehicle while under license sus-
	pension or revocation for a DWI offense, implied consent
	refusal or other situations which require mandatory license
	revocation. Impoundment is for 90 days for a first offense,
	and 1 year for a subsequent offense. DE ST TI 21 §
	2756(c)(1).

Authorized by Specific Statutory	Yes
Authority:	DE ST TI 21 § 2756(c)(1).
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	N/A
Other:	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<ul> <li>"House arrest" may be used as an alternative to imprisonment. DE ST TI 11 § 4332; DE ST TI 11 § 4347(j); DE ST TI 11 § 4392(c). The court may suspend any or all misdemeanor and felony sentences that have no mandatory minimum for probation. DE ST TI 11 § 4205(d), (e); DE ST TI 11 § 4206(d).</li> <li>Child Endangerment. A person who commits a drunk-driving offense while transporting an individual &lt; 17 years old is subject to the following sanctions which are <u>in addition</u> to any other sanctions authorized by law: <u>First offense</u> – an <u>additional</u> minimum of \$500 and not more than an additional \$1,500, and 40 hours of community service benefiting child- ren; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – an <u>additional</u> minimum of \$750 and not more than an additional \$2,500, and 80 hours of community service benefiting children. DE ST TI 21 § 4177(d). These sanctions do not apply to first offenders who are participating in the probation for judgment program.</li> </ul>
	DE ST TI 21 § 4177B.
Ignition Interloals	
Ignition Interlock: Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory
Conditions of Use:	A court may order, in addition to any other penalty, an ignition interlock device, which shall remain in effect for not less than 1 year. DE ST TI 21 § 4177(e). First offenders who have refused to submit to a chemical test, and second or subsequent offenders are eligible for a regular Class D license if they agree to install and use igni- tion interlock devices on their vehicles. Offenders con- victed of DWI related to death or serious injury, or who are under license suspension or revocation are not eligible for this voluntary program. DE ST TI 21 § 2702(e); DE ST TI 21 § 4177F. Participation in the ignition interlock program is mandato- ry for all subsequent offenders. DE ST TI 21 § 4177G.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted See e.g., Howard v. Voshell, 621 A.2d 804 (Del.Super. 1992).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes <u>First degree</u> (death caused by criminally negligent driving

	while DWI) (Class E felony). DE ST TI 11 § 630A. <u>Second degree</u> (death caused by criminally negligent driv- ing or negligent driving while DWI) (Class F felony). DE ST TI 11 § 630(a)(2).
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term):	<u>First degree</u> – Not less than <b>2 years</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> ; <u>Second degree</u> – Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>3 years</b> . Fines for each offense are ordered if the court deems appropriate. DE ST TI 11 § 630(b); DE ST TI 11 § 630A(b); DE ST TI 11 § 4205(b)(5), (6); DE ST TI 11 § 4205(k).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The terms above are mandatory.
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Revocation
Action:	
Length of Term of Licensing	<u>First degree</u> – 4 years;
Withdrawal:	Second degree – 3 years.
	DE ST TI 21 § 2372.
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	The terms above are mandatory.
of License Withdrawal:	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	<ul> <li>Special Note: I. It is an unclassified misdemeanor to operate a CMV while either disqualified or under a CDL outof-service order.</li> <li>For a <u>first offense</u>, a person is subject to a fine of not less than \$200 or more than \$2,500;</li> <li>For a <u>subsequent offense</u>, a person is subject to an imprisonment term of not more than 90 days and/or a fine of not less than \$500 or more than \$5,000.DE ST TI 11 § 233(c); DE ST TI 11 § 4202(b); DE ST TI 21 § 2607(b); DE ST TI 21 § 2622.</li> <li>II. Under separate provisions of law, the following sanctions may be imposed for a violation of an "out-of-service" order.</li> <li>First conviction: A fine of not less than \$2,500 or more than \$3,500;</li> <li>Second or subsequent conviction (within 10 years): A fine of not less than \$5,000 or more than \$6,000. DE ST TI 21 § 2612(h)(4).</li> <li>Disqualification:</li> <li>First violation – not less than 180 days (mandatory) or more than 1 year;</li> </ul>
	<u>Second violation</u> (within 10 years) – not less than 2 years or more than 5 years (1 year mandatory); <u>Third or subsequent violation</u> (within 10 years) – not less

	than 3 years or more than 5 years (3 years mand).
	If the driver was either transporting hazardous materials or driving a vehicle designed to transport > 15 persons, the following disqualification periods apply: <u>First violation</u> – not less than 180 days (mandatory) or more than 2 years; <u>Second violation</u> (within 10 years) – not less than 3 years or more than 5 years (3 years mandatory).
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	No specific statutory provision on this subject. Sanctions given are for the general offense of operating a motor vehicle while driving privileges are suspended or revoked.
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Misdemeanor (Unclassified)First offense – Not less than 30 days or more than 6months and not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000;Subsequent offense (within 3 years) – Not less than 60days or more than 1 year and not less than \$1,000 or more than \$4,000.DE ST TI 11 § 233(c); DE ST TI 11 § 4202(b); DE ST TI 21 § 2756.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	$\frac{\text{First offense}}{\text{Subsequent offense}} - \$600;^{185};$ $\frac{\text{Subsequent offense}}{\text{DE ST TI 21 § 2756.}} = 60 \text{ days.}$
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:	None
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> DE ST TI 21 § 2801 <i>et seq</i> .; DE ST TI 21 § 2612(h)(1), (2), (3).
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	3 or more serious violations <sup>186</sup> within a 5-year period, or 10 or more minor moving violations in a 3-year period. DE ST TI 21 § 2802.
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Revocation for 5 years</b> if based on serious offenses or for <b>3 years</b> if based on minor moving violations. <sup>187</sup> DE ST TI 21 § 2809.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	Misdemeanor (Unclassified).

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>185</sup> If the original revocation was based on a drunk-driving offense related to death or injury, there is a mandatory **30-day** period of imprisonment and a mandatory fine of **\$2,000**.
 <sup>186</sup> These include (but are not limited to) vehicular manslaughter, DWI offense, driving on a suspended/revoked license. DE ST TI

<sup>21 &</sup>amp; 2802(1). <sup>187</sup> Under DE ST TI 21 & 2814, a person who is convicted of an offense that would make him/her a habitual offender is subject to the following additional sanctions: not less than 30 days or more than 12 months and not less than \$115 or more than \$1,150. No execution is taken to impose these additional sanctions until the person is finally adjudged a habitual offender.

on Charges of Driving While on	DE ST TI 11 8 222(a), DE ST TI 11 8 4202(b)	
on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	DE ST TI 11 § 233(c); DE ST TI 11 § 4202(b).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of		
Driving While on Habitual Offender		
Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>90 days</b> or more than <b>30</b>	
imprisonment (Term)/Time.	<b>months</b> and not more than $$1,150$ ; <sup>188</sup>	
	<u>Subsequent offense</u> – Not less than <b>180 days</b> or more than	
	5 years and not more than \$2,300.	
	DE ST TI 21 § 2810.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	The terms above are mandatory.	
Imprisonment:	The terms above are mandatory.	
Licensing Actions (Specify):	None	
Licensing Actions (Speeny).		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohor Ose.		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> DE ST TI 21 § 2740.	
State Hus Stell a Law (165/100).	105 DE 01 11 21 y 27 10.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21 <sup>189</sup>	
Sale/Purchase:	DE ST TI 4 § 904(a), (b).	
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Possession/Consumption:	Does not apply to alcohol use in religious services or in	
	the home. DE ST TI 4 § $904(f)$ .	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	No	
(Yes/No):		
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	For cases denying liability, see <i>Wright v. Moffitt</i> , 437 A.2d	
Common Law Rule by Action of the	554 (Del. 1981); <sup>190</sup> Oakes v. Megaw, 565 A.2d 914 (Del.	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>188</sup> Under DE ST TI 21 § 2810, the court cannot suspend an imprisonment term. This essentially makes the minimum period of in-

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>189</sup> It is not a crime for a minor to simply purchase alcoholic beverages. However, it is a crime for a minor to make a "false statement" about his/her age in order to obtain alcoholic beverages punishable by a fine of not less than \$100 or more than \$500 for a first offense, and not less than \$500 or more than \$1000 for each subsequent offense. DE ST TI 4 § 904(b).
 <sup>190</sup> The *Wright* case concerned a patron who brought a cause of action against a licensee for injuries they sustained as a result of becoming intoxicated at the licensee's establishment. At the conclusion of its decision, the court made a general statement that, in

Highest Court of Record in the State	1989); Samson v. Smith, 560 A.2d 1024 (Del. 1989); Ack-	
(Case Citation):	er v. Cantinas, Inc., 586 A.2d 1178 (Del. 1991).	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> <sup>191</sup>	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who gives a minor alcoholic liquor or knowingly allows a minor to consume alcoholic liquor shall be punished as follows: <u>First offense</u> – not less than \$100 or more than \$500, and may be ordered to perform 40 hours of community service and may be sentenced to not more than 30 days; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000 and may be ordered to perform 80 hours of community service and may be imprisoned for not more than 60 days.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor (Unclassified)           DE ST TI 4 s 706; DE ST TI 4 s 708; DE ST TI 11 §           233(c); DE ST TI 11 § 4202(b).	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>\$100</b> DE ST TI 4 § 903.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension DE ST TI 4 § 561(b)(1).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified by statute.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor (Unclassified)         DE ST TI 4 § 708(a)(1); DE           ST TI 4 § 904(a); DE ST TI 11 § 233(c); DE ST TI 11 §           4202(b).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not less than \$250 or more than \$500 <sup>192</sup> DE ST TI 4 § 904(a).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		

effect, held that a licensee is not liable for the injuries caused by an intoxicated patron to a third party. 437 A.2d 554, 559 (). <sup>191</sup> A "business invitee" (employee) on the premises of a social host (employer) may have a cause of action against such social host for injuries sustained as a result of actions by an intoxicated guest. *DiOssi v. Maroney*, 548 A.2d 1361 (Del. 1988). <sup>192</sup> Under DE ST TI 4 § 902, also authorized is a fine of not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000.

Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension DE ST TI 4 § 561(b)(1).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified by statute.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> <sup>193</sup>	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> DE ST TI 21 § 4177J.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>193</sup> By virtue of the anti-consumption law, an open container law must exist.

STATE	DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
General Reference:	D.C. Code
	Weil's Code of D.C. Municipal Regulations (CDCR)
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Stern Land DWI Officeres	L Under the influence of interview linear 194 DO ST 8
Standard DWI Offense:	I. Under the influence of intoxicating liquor. <sup>194</sup> DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1)(A).
	II. Impaired by the consumption of intoxicating liquor.
	DC ST $\S$ 50-2201.05(b)(2).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{195}$ DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1).
	For Persons Under 21 Years Old – Operating a vehicle
	with any measurable amount of alcohol in the blood,
	breath or urine. <sup>196</sup> DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	Driving under the influence of any drug or a combination
	of any drug and alcohol. DC ST § 50 2201.05(b)(1).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	A rebuttable presumption shall be established that the de-
	fendant was <u>not</u> under the influence of intoxicating liquor
	if that defendant's alcohol concentration was 0.05 grams or
	less per 100 milliliters of blood (or per 210 liters of breath
	or 0.06 grams or less per 100 milliliters or urine).No pre-
	sumption shall be established that the defendant was or
	was not under the influence of intoxicating liquor if the
	defendant's alcohol concentration was >0.05 grams per
	100 milliliters of blood (or per 210 liters of breath or more
	than 0.06 grams per 100 milliliters of urine) but less than <
	0.08 grams per 100 milliliters of blood (or per 210 liters of
	breath or less than 0.10 grams per 100 milliliters of urine).
	But, this may be considered with other competent evi-
	dence in determining whether the defendant was under the
	influence of intoxicating liquor. DC ST § 50-2205.02 (2).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
<u>concentration</u> .	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>197</sup> DC ST § 50-2201.05(b-1).
Implied Consent Law:	Yes DC ST § 50-1902
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes DC ST § 50-1902.
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes DC ST § 50-1902(a).
(Yes/No):	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) DC ST § 50-1905(c).
Admitted into Evidence:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>194</sup> The driving while impaired offense applies <u>only</u> to the use of alcohol. The driving while under the influence offense applies to the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>195</sup> The BAC standard is "percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1); DC ST § 50-2205.02.
<sup>196</sup> The sanctions (criminal and administrative) against <u>persons under 21 years old</u> who are convicted of operating a motor vehicle with any amount of alcohol in the system are the same as for the offenses of illegal per se and driving while under the influence.
<sup>197</sup> The PBT and Implied Consent Laws also apply to persons under 21 years old who operate a vehicle with any measurable amount

of alcohol in the blood, breath or urine.

Other Information:	A person is required to submit to a chemical test if in- volved in an accident (regardless of whether there has been an injury) and arrested for <u>any</u> DWI offense. DC ST § 50-1902(b).
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	Yes DC ST § 50-1902.
Urine:	Yes DC ST § 50-1902.
Other:	None
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes Subsequent offenders of ANY drunk-driving law must complete an alcohol/drug abuse assessment. DC ST § 50- 2201.05(b)(6).
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> Test:	
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension – 12 months DC ST § 50-1905(a). (Mandatory – No occupational hard- ship license shall be issued. 18-310 CDCR.
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>Illegal per se/Under the Influence</b> : <u>First offense</u> – A fine of <b>\$300</b> and may be imprisoned for

not more than <b>90 days</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> (within 15 years) <sup>198</sup> – Not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> and not less than <b>5 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Third and subsequent offenses</u> (within 15 years) <sup>199</sup> – Not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> and <i>either</i> a sen- tence of not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , <i>or</i> at least <b>60 days</b> of community service. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1). <b>Impaired</b> : <u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$300</b> and may be imprisoned for not more than <b>30 days</b> ; <u>Second offense<sup>200</sup>(within 15 years)</u> – Not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than <b>5</b> <b>days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , <i>or</i> at least <b>30 days</b> of communi- ty service; <u>Third or subsequent offense<sup>201</sup> (within 15 years)</u> – Not less
or more than <b>\$5,000</b> and not less than <b>5 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Third and subsequent offenses</u> (within 15 years) <sup>199</sup> – Not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> and <i>either</i> a sen- tence of not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , <i>or</i> at least <b>60 days</b> of community service. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1). <b>Impaired</b> : <u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$300</b> and may be imprisoned for not more than <b>30 days</b> ; <u>Second offense<sup>200</sup>(within 15 years)</u> – Not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than <b>5</b> <b>days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , <i>or</i> at least <b>30 days</b> of communi- ty service;
<b>1</b> year; <u>Third and subsequent offenses</u> (within 15 years) <sup>199</sup> – Not less than \$2,000 or more than \$10,000 and <i>either</i> a sen- tence of not less than 10 days or more than 1 year, or at least 60 days of community service. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1). <b>Impaired</b> : <u>First offense</u> – Not less than \$200 or more than \$300 and may be imprisoned for not more than 30 days; <u>Second offense<sup>200</sup></u> (within 15 years) – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than 5 days or more than 1 year, or at least 30 days of communi- ty service;
Third and subsequent offenses (within 15 years)199 – Not less than \$2,000 or more than \$10,000 and either a sen- tence of not less than 10 days or more than 1 year, or at least 60 days of community service. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1).Impaired: First offense – Not less than \$200 or more than \$300 and may be imprisoned for not more than 30 days; Second offense200 (within 15 years) – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and either a sentence of not less than 5 days or more than 1 year, or at least 30 days of communi- ty service;
<ul> <li>less than \$2,000 or more than \$10,000 and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than 10 days or more than 1 year, or at least 60 days of community service. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1).</li> <li>Impaired: First offense – Not less than \$200 or more than \$300 and may be imprisoned for not more than 30 days; Second offense<sup>200</sup>(within 15 years) – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than 5 days or more than 1 year, or at least 30 days of community service;</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>tence of not less than 10 days or more than 1 year, or at least 60 days of community service. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1).</li> <li>Impaired: <ul> <li><u>First offense</u> – Not less than \$200 or more than \$300 and may be imprisoned for not more than 30 days;</li> <li><u>Second offense</u><sup>200</sup>(within 15 years) – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than 5 days or more than 1 year, or at least 30 days of community service;</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
<ul> <li>least 60 days of community service. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1).</li> <li>Impaired: <u>First offense</u> – Not less than \$200 or more than \$300 and may be imprisoned for not more than 30 days; <u>Second offense<sup>200</sup>(within 15 years)</u> – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than 5 days or more than 1 year, <i>or</i> at least 30 days of community service;</li> </ul>
DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1). <b>Impaired</b> : <u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$300</b> and may be imprisoned for not more than <b>30 days</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> <sup>200</sup> (within 15 years) – Not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than <b>5</b> <b>days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , <i>or</i> at least <b>30 days</b> of communi- ty service;
Impaired: <u>First offense</u> – Not less than \$200 or more than \$300 and may be imprisoned for not more than <b>30 days</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> <sup>200</sup> (within 15 years) – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than 5 <b>days</b> or more than 1 year, <i>or</i> at least 30 days of communi- ty service;
First offense– Not less than \$200 or more than \$300 and may be imprisoned for not more than 30 days; Second offense200 (within 15 years) – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and either a sentence of not less than 5 days or more than 1 year, or at least 30 days of communi- ty service;
First offense– Not less than \$200 or more than \$300 and may be imprisoned for not more than 30 days; Second offense200 (within 15 years) – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and either a sentence of not less than 5 days or more than 1 year, or at least 30 days of communi- ty service;
may be imprisoned for not more than <b>30 days</b> ; <u>Second offense<sup>200</sup></u> (within 15 years) – Not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than <b>5</b> <b>days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , <i>or</i> at least <b>30 days</b> of communi- ty service;
<u>Second offense<sup>200</sup></u> (within 15 years) – Not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than <b>5</b> <b>days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , <i>or</i> at least <b>30 days</b> of communi- ty service;
more than <b>\$500</b> and <i>either</i> a sentence of not less than <b>5 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> , <i>or</i> at least <b>30 days</b> of community service;
ty service;
ty service;
than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000 and <i>either</i> a sentence of
not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> or at least <b>60</b>
days of community service.
DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(2).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: Illegal per se/Under the Influence:
<u>First offense</u> –
if BAC $\geq 0.20$ but $\leq 0.25 - 5$ days;
if BAC $> 0.25 - 10$ days;
Second offense –(within 15 years) – 5 days;
if BAC $\ge 0.20$ but $\le 0.25 - 10$ days;
if BAC $> 0.25 - 20$ days; Third and subsequent offences (within 15 mers) 10
Third and subsequent offenses (within 15 years) – 10
days; if BAC $\ge 0.20$ but $\le 0.25 - 15$ days;
$11 \text{ BAC} \ge 0.20 \text{ but} \ge 0.25 - 15 \text{ days},$ if $\text{BAC} > 0.25 - 25 \text{ days}.$
11 DAC = 0.25 - 25  days.
Impaired:
First offense – None;
Second offense (within 15 years) – 5 days;
Third or subsequent offense (within 15 years) – 10 days
DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1), (2).
Other Penalties:
Community Service: Illegal per se/Under the Influence:
<u>First offense</u> – None;
<u>Second offense</u> – (within 15 years) – at least 30 days;
Third and subsequent offenses (within 15 years) – at least

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>198</sup> Or a first offense where there has been a previous impaired offense within 15 years.
<sup>199</sup> Or a second offense where there has been a previous impaired offense within 15 years.
<sup>200</sup> Or a first offense where there has been previous illegal per se/under the influence offense within 15 years.
<sup>201</sup> Or a second offense where there has been previous illegal per se/under the influence offense within 15 years.

	60 days.
	Impaired: <u>First offense</u> – None; <u>Second offense</u> (within 15 years) – <b>at least 30 days</b> ; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (within 15 years) – <b>at least 60</b> <b>days</b> . DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1),(2).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	YesA Victim's Compensation Fund §4-501 et seq. Awards arelimited to a maximum amount of \$25,000. DC ST § 4-507.A defendant may be required to pay restitution to a victim.DC ST § 16-711.
Other:	Assessments: Offenders are required to pay the following assessments which are used to finance the Crime Victim's Compensation Fund: (1) Violations of drunk-driving of- fenses – \$100 (mand); felony offense – \$100 (mand) to \$5,000. DC ST § 4-516(a).
	Child Endangerment: For any drunk-driving offense conviction where there was a passenger $\leq 17$ years old, the driver is subject to an additional fine of not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000 and 48 hours (80 hours if a subsequent offense) of community service benefiting children. DC ST § 50-2201.05(b)(1)(D).
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor or Drugs: <sup>202</sup> <u>First violation</u> – Suspension 2 to 90 days <u>or</u> Revocation for 6 months; <u>Subsequent violation</u> – Suspension from 2 to 90 days <u>or</u> revocation where the time period is discretionary but must be for a definitive period of time. <sup>203</sup> At the discretion of the licensing agency, the <u>suspension</u> may be from 2 to 90 days "based upon the seriousness of the case." 18-302.5 CDCR; 18-306.1 CDCR; 18-306.4 CDCR.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>202</sup> Either (1) a blood alcohol concentration > .05 "percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood, (2) a urine alcohol concentration of  $\geq$  .06 by weight of alcohol in the urine or (3) a breath alcohol concentration  $\geq$  0.24 micrograms of alcohol per 1 milliliter of breath is considered *prima facie* evidence of driving while under the influence of intoxicating liquor. DC ST § 50-2205.02; 18-1034.3 CDCR.

CDCR. <sup>203</sup> These licensing actions are not mandatory. A person is eligible for either limited or occupational driving privileges. 18-309.1 CDCR *et seq.*; 18-310 CDCR.

Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Driving under the influence/illegal per se: Revocation
	for all offenses. DC ST § 50-1403.01(a); DC ST §
	50.1403.02; DC ST § 50-2201.05(d); 18-301.1 CDCR.
	Driving while impaired: Suspension or Revocation at
	the discretion of D.C. officials. DC ST § 50-1403.01.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	Driving under the influence/illegal per se: <sup>204</sup>
Years, etc.):	<u>First offense</u> – 6 months;
	Second offense – 1 year;
	Third and subsequent offenses – 2 years.
	DC ST § 50-1403.01; DC ST § 50-1403.02(a-3); DC ST §
	50-2201.05(d); 18-301.1 CDCR; 18-306.5 CDCR.
	Driving while impaired:
	First offense – Suspension from 2 to 90 days <sup>205</sup> or Revo-
	cation for 6 months;
	Subsequent offense – Suspension from 2 to 90 days or
	<b>Revocation</b> where the time period is discretionary but
	must be for a definitive period of time. DC ST § 50-
	1403.01; 18-306.1 CDCR; 18-306.4 CDCR.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	Driving under the influence/illegal per se:
Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – 6 months;
	Second offense – 1 year;
	Third and subsequent offenses – 2 years. No occupational
	hardship licenses shall be issued. 18-310.7(a) CDCR
	Driving while impaired: None A limited license (18-
	309.1 CDCR <i>et seq</i> .) or a limited occupational hardship
	license (18-310.1 CDCR et seq.) may be issued.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	A person previously convicted of a DWI offense (within
	15 years) shall receive an assessment of the person's de-
	gree of alcohol abuse and treatment, as appropriate. DC
	ST § 50-2201.05(b)(6).
Alcohol Education:	As appropriate.
Alcohol Treatment:	As appropriate.
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Yes
	Limited Impoundment: Under DC ST § 50-2201.05(c-1),
	a vehicle driven by a person arrested for any drunk driving
	offense shall be impounded for a limited time period (up
	to 24 hours). However, a registered owner of the vehicle
	may authorize the officer to release the vehicle to a person
	in possession of a valid driver's license who is in the com-
	pany of the arrested individual if the officer determines
	that the designated individual is physically able to operate
	the vehicle. The arrested individual may also designated

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>204</sup> DC ST § 50-2201.05(d) authorizes license revocation for driving while under the influence/illegal per se offenses.
<sup>205</sup> At the discretion of the licensing agency, the suspension may be from 2 to 90 days "based upon the seriousness of the case." 18-306.1 CDCR.

	an individual not in his/her company to collect the vehicle if the officer determines that individual is licensed and in
	physical condition to operate the vehicle and who shall
	take possession of the vehicle within a reasonable time
	period from a public parking space to be determined by
	the officer.
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	<b>Yes</b> . DC ST § 50-2201.05(c-1).
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	An impounded vehicle shall be released at any time to a
Released:	registered owner of the vehicle (other than the arrested
	person), or 24 hours after the arrest to the arrested person.
	DC ST § 50-2201.05(c-1)(3).
Other:	Limited Registration Suspension: The registrations of all
	vehicles owned by a person who has been convicted of
	any drunk-driving offense must be suspended until the
	offender gives and maintains proof of financial responsi-
	bility. However, registrations for vehicles owned by the
	United States government, the District of Columbia, a
	state, or a political subdivision of a state shall not be sus-
	pended. DC ST § 50-1301.37; DC ST § 50-1301.38.
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
	The District of Columbia Government is authorized to es-
	tablish an "ignition interlock" program for persons who
	have been convicted of <u>any subsequent</u> drunk-driving of-
	fense. DC ST § 50-2201.05a; 18-311 CDCR.
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permissive
Conditions of Use:	N/A
Sobriety Checkmainte	
Sobriety Checkpoints Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Dermitted</b> Durage $U$ US 620 A 2d 1 (D C 1002)
Permitted of Promotied.	Permitted Duncan v. U.S., 629 A.2d 1 (D.C. 1993).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Yes</b> – Felony Negligent Homicide. DC ST § 50-2203.02.
	<b>Yes</b> – Manslaughter. DC ST § $22-2105$ .
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<b>Negligent Homicide</b> – Not more than <b>5 years</b> and/or a
	fine of not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . DC ST § 50-2203.02.
	Manslaughter – Not more than <b>30 years</b> . DC ST § 22-
	2105.
Mandatory Minimum Term:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	
Action:	

Length of Term of Licensing	First offense – 6 months;
Withdrawal:	Second offense – 1 year;
	Third and subsequent offenses – 2 years.
	18-310.7 CDCR.
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.
<u>DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor</u> <u>Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's</u> <u>Licenses (CDL):</u>	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 90 days to 1 year (3 years if transporting hazardous material) if convicted of driving a CMV while under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. Under the influence of alcohol is defined to mean having a blood alcohol concentration $\geq$ .04. A second violation within a 10 year period results in a "disqualification period" of 1 to 5 years. For a third violation within 10 years, the "disqualification period" is from 3-5 years. A CMV operator must be placed out-of-service for 24
	hours if found to have consumed alcohol, to have any measurable or detectable amount of alcohol or to be under the influence of an intoxicating beverage.
	DC ST § 50-401(3), (4); DC ST § 50-406; 18-1306.1 CDCR; 18-1306.5 CDCR.
	The following fines apply to CMV operators if they violate Federal regulations (49 CFR Parts 383 and 392) regarding alcohol use and CMV operation: <u>first violation</u> – \$500; <u>second violation</u> (within 2 years) – \$1,000; <u>third or subsequent violation</u> (within 2 years) – \$1,500. 18-1408.2(a) CDCR.
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	There is no specific statutory provision on this subject. The sanctions given are for the general offense of operat- ing a motor vehicle while driving privileges are either sus- pended/revoked.
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or a fine of not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . DC ST § 50-1403.01(e); 18-305.1 CDCR; 18-305.2 CDCR.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action	Revocation/Suspension
Withdrawal Action:	Extension of the period of suspension or revocation for an

	additional period of time that is equal to the length of the	1
	original suspension or revocation period. 18-305.1	
	CDCR; 18-305.5 CDCR.	
Mandatory Term of License	Licensing action is mandatory; no occupational license can	
Withdrawal Action:	be granted. 18-310.7(c) CDCR.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	No statutory provision	
Vehicle Passengers:	No statutory provision	
Pedestrian:	No statutory provision	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	<b>21</b> DO ST 8 25 1002( )	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> DC ST § 25-1002(a).	
Sale/Purchase: Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> DC ST § 25-1002(a).	
Possession/Consumption:	21  DC  51  §  23-1002(a).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	No	
(Yes/No):		
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	<b>No</b> <sup>206</sup>	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):	207	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> <sup>207</sup>	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>206</sup> There is no "dram shop law" in the District of Columbia. Under DC ST § 25-781, the sale or delivery of alcoholic beverages to a person under 21 or an intoxicated person, or any person who appears to be intoxicated is prohibited. Therefore, a tavern keep may be held liable for damages caused by intentional torts of an intoxicated patron. *See Rong Yao Zhou v. Jennifer Mall Restaurant, Inc.*, 534 A.2d 1268 (D.C. 1987); *Jarrett v. Woodward Bros., Inc.*, 751 A.2d 972 (D.C. 2000); *Norwood v. Marrocco*, 780 F.2d 110 (C.A.D.C. 1986).
 <sup>207</sup> The U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia has noted that the District of Columbia does not recognize social host liabili-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>207</sup> The U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia has noted that the District of Columbia does not recognize social host liability. *Cartwright v. Hyatt Corp.*, 460 F.Supp. 80 (D.C.D.C. 1978); *Wadley v. Aspilloga*, 163 F.Supp. 2d 1 (D.D.C. 2001). However, a licensee may be liable for the injuries of death of an intoxicated minor patron. *Jarrett v. Woodward Bros., Inc.*, 751 A.2d 972 (D.C. 2000).

Social Host-Criminal Enforcement: Social Host-Criminal Enforcement: Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve	An adult who is 4 or more years older than a minor shall not permit or allow the minor to possess or consume alco- hol shall be guilty of contributing to the delinquency of a minor. This is punishable in the following manner: <u>First offense</u> – not more than \$1,000 and/or not more than 6 months; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – not more than \$3,000 and/or not more than 3 years. DC ST § 22-811. <u>Offenses Resulting in Serious Bodily Injury to the Minor or Another Individual</u> – not more than \$5,000 and/or 15 years. DC ST § 22-811(b)(4). <u>Offenses Resulting in Death to the Minor or Another Indi- yidual</u> – \$10,000 and/or 10 years. DC ST § 22-811 (b)(5).
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor A citation may be issued. DC ST § 25-781(a)(2), (e).
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than 1 year and/or a fine of not more than $\$1,000$ . DC ST $\$25-831(a)$ .
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or Revocation DC ST § 25-823.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Revocation – No license shall be issued to the same person or persons for any other location for 5 years. DC ST §25-821(c).Exception: For revocation of a manager's license, no new manager's license shall be issued for 2 years. DC ST §25-821(d).
<u>Criminal Actions Against Owners or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under</u> <u>the Minimum Legal Drinking Age</u> :	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor A citation may be issued. DC ST § 23-1110(b); DC ST § 25-785.
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>\$1,000</b> and/or up to <b>180</b>

	days; <u>Second offense</u> (within 2 years) – Not more than \$2,500 and/or up to 180 days; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (within 2 years) – Not more than \$5,000 and/or up to 1 year. DC ST § 25-785(c).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or revocation DC ST § 25-823.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	<ul> <li>Revocation – No license shall be issued to the same person or persons for any other location for 5 years. DC ST § 25-821(c).</li> <li>Exception: For revocation of a manager's license, no new manager's license shall be issued for 2 years. DC ST § 25-821(d).</li> </ul>	
Other:	An administrative fine of <b>\$1,000 to \$2,000</b> may be issued by the Board for a <u>first offense</u> ; <u>Second offense</u> (within 2 years) – a fine between <b>\$2,000-</b> <b>\$4,000</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 3 years) – a fine between <b>\$4,000-</b> <b>\$6,000</b> ; <u>Fourth offense</u> (within 4 years) – the ABC license shall be revoked. 23-801 CDCR.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No): Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes         DC ST § 25-1001(a); 18-2224 CDCR.           Yes         DC ST § 25-1001(a).	

STATE	FLORIDA
General Reference:	Florida Statutes Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcoholic beverages. <sup>208</sup>
Illegel Der Se Leur (DAC/DrAC):	FL ST § $316.193(1)(a)$ . $\geq .08$ FL ST § $316.193(1)(b)$ , (c).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	Persons under $21 \ge .02$ . FL ST § $322.2616(1)(a)$ . $\ge .08^{209} =$ prima facie evidence that the person was under
Flesumption (BAC/BIAC).	$\geq$ .00 – prima factor evidence that the person was under the influence of alcoholic beverages to the extent that
	his/her normal faculties were impaired. <sup>210</sup> FL ST §
	316.1934(c).
	$\leq .05 =$ presumption that person was not under the influ-
	ence of alcohol. FL ST § 316.1934(a).
	> .05 but $< .08 =$ no presumption that person was or was
	not under the influence of alcohol but may be considered
	with other competent evidence. FL ST § 316.1934(b).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of a <b>Controlled Substance or Chem-</b>
	ical Substance. <sup>211</sup> FL ST § 316.193(1)(a); see FL ST §
	893.01 <i>et seq</i> .
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	For persons under the age of 21. FL ST § 322.2616(17).
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> FL ST § 316.1932(1)(a); 322.2616(1)(b). <sup>212</sup> Under FL
implied consent Law.	ST § $316.1932(1)(c)$ , an arrest is not a prerequisite to the
	taking of a blood sample if the driver is taken to a medical
	facility for treatment as a result of an accident. Kenson v.
	State, 577 So.2d 694 (Fla.App.3 Dist. 1991).
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes FL ST § 316.1932.
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes FL ST § 316.1932(1)(a) – limited to the testing of
(Yes/No):	urine.
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	<b>Yes</b> <sup>213</sup> (criminal proceeding) FL ST § 316.1932(1)(a)1.b.;
Admitted into Evidence:	FL ST § 316.1932(1)(c).
Other Information:	A driver may be compelled to provide a blood sample for
	testing <u>only</u> if he/she has been: (1) involved in an accident

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>208</sup> The offense of "driving under the influence" includes (1) driving under the influence of alcoholic beverages or (2) driving with a blood or breath level of .08 or more. FL ST § 316.193(1)(a), (b).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>209</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liter of breath. FL ST § 316.193(1)(b), (c); FL ST § 316.1932(2)(b)(1).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>210</sup> If the implied consent law's test procedures are not followed, the State can still introduce alcohol concentration, obtained through blood sample, into evidence. However, if this is done, the statutory "presumptions" cannot be used as they are based on alcohol con-centrations obtained through the implied consent law. *State v. Miles*, 775 So.2d 950 (Fla. 2000). <sup>211</sup> This includes any chemical, compound or liquid used to inhale or ingest which induces a condition of intoxication or which dis-

torts or disturbs the auditory, visual or mental processes. FL ST § 877.111 <sup>212</sup> Under FL ST § 322.2616(1)(b), a person under 21 years old may be lawfully detained and requested to submit to a chemical test

if a there is probable cause to believe that he/she was driving while under the influence of alcohol or with any alcohol level. <sup>213</sup> A refusal to submit to field sobriety testing is admissible into evidence at a DWI trial. *State* v. *Taylor*, 648 So.2d 701 (Fla. 1995).

	resulting in either death or serious bodily injury to another (FL ST § 316.1933(1)); (2) there is reasonable cause to believe a DUI occurred; (3) the driver is at a hospital for treatment and a breath or urine test is impractical; (4) or the person is unconscious or otherwise unable to refuse. FL ST § 316.1932(1)(c).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
*		
Blood:	Yes – Limited	
	A blood test, for the purposes of implied consent, may be taken only if the driver appears for treatment at a medical facility and the administration of a breath/urine test is im- practical or impossible. FL ST § 316.1932(1)(c).	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> FL ST § 316.1932(1)(a)1.b.	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Applies to DWI, manslaughter resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle and vehicle homicide offenses. FL ST § 316.656.	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Applies to DWI where the alcohol concentration is 0.15 or more, DWI where there has been physical injury, death or property damage, manslaughter related to the operation of a motor vehicle and vehicle homicide. FL ST § 316.656(2).	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	No. However, all drunk-driving offenders must undergo a	
(Yes/No):	"psychosocial evaluation". FL ST § 316.193(5).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> Test:		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	For persons under 21 years of age: 1 year license sus-	
(Susp/Rev):	pension, or 18 months license suspension if such person's	
	driving privilege has been previously suspended as a result	
	of refusal to submit to a test. FL ST § 322.2616(2).	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u>		
<u>Chemical Test:</u>	A fine of \$200 shall be accessed a spin st any driver when	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	A fine of <b>\$300</b> shall be assessed against any driver who refuses to submit to a blood-alcohol level test. FL ST § 316.193(2)(b)(4).	
Administrative Licensing Action	First refusal – Suspension for 1 year (90 days mand.) (A	
(Susp/Rev):	hardship license is available after this mandatory period.);	

Other: Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	Subsequent refusals         – Suspension for 18 months (Mandatory). <sup>214</sup> FL ST § 316.1932(1)(a)1.a.; FL ST § 316.1939; FL ST § 322.2615(1)(b); FL ST § 322.2615(10); FL ST § 322.271(2)(a).           Under FL ST § 322.291, an implied consent law violator is required to complete a driver-training course.
Criminal Sanctions: <sup>215, 216</sup> Imprisonment/Fine:	First conviction (misdemeanor) – Not more than 6months and not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000;Second conviction (misdemeanor) – Not less than 10days <sup>217</sup> or more than 9 months and not less than \$1,000 ormore than \$2,000;Third offense (within 10 years = 3 <sup>rd</sup> degree felony) – Notless than 30 days or more than 5 years and/or not morethan \$5,000.Third conviction (outside of 10 years = misdemeanor) –Not more than \$2,000;Fourth or subsequent conviction (third degree felony) –Not more than \$5,000;Fourth or subsequent conviction (third degree felony) –Not more than 5 years and not less than \$2,000.FL ST § 316.193; FL ST § 775.08; FL ST § 775.082; FLST § 775.083.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Second conviction (within 5 years of a previous DWI con- viction) – <b>48 consecutive hours</b> ; <u>Third conviction</u> (within 10 years of a previous DWI con- viction) – <b>48 consecutive hours</b> . FL ST § 316.193(6). The fines appear to be mandatory.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>50 hours</b> , or if the court thinks it is in the best interests of the State, a <b>\$10 fine</b> for each hour of

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>214</sup> The "actual" suspension period appears to be only 17 months. The law provides that a person be issued a 30-day temporary license at the time of arrest. However, the law now provides that the suspension "commences" at the time of arrest or issuance of the notice of suspension "whichever is later." The person may be only denied driving privileges for 17 months. FL ST § 322.2615(b). Unlike the mandatory suspension associated with a first refusal, the law does not provide that the mandatory suspension period start after the expiration of the 30-day temporary license.  $^{215}$  The following sanctions apply for the following DWI offenses involving: (1) <u>Property damage or personal injury</u> – 1<sup>st</sup> degree

misdemeanor = not more than 1 year in jail and/or a fine of not more than \$1,000; (2) Serious bodily injury –  $3^{rd}$  degree felony = not more than 5 years in prison and/or a fine of not more than 5,000; or (3) <u>a BAC/BrAC  $\geq 0.15$  or a passenger under 18 years old</u> (child endangerment) - First conviction - Not more than 9 months in jail and a fine of not less than \$1,000 or more than \$1,200; Second conviction – Not more than 12 months in jail and a fine of not less than \$2,000 or more than \$4,000; Third or subsequent conviction - Not more than 12 months in jail and a fine of not less than \$4,000. The minimum mandatory sanctions for "regular" DWI offense convictions also apply to these offenses. FL ST § 316.193(3), (4); FL ST § 775.082; FL ST § 775.083.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>216</sup> The court in its discretion may require a defendant to serve all or any part of a sentence of imprisonment for a DWI offense in an alcohol or a drug residential treatment program. FL ST § 316.193(6)(k). <sup>217</sup> The 10-day minimum applies if the second offense occurred within 5 years of a previous DWI conviction. FL ST § 316.193(6).

Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	<ul> <li>community work otherwise required notwithstanding other sanctions. This sanction for first offenders is part of mandatory probation which is not to exceed 1 year. FL ST § 316.193(6)(a).</li> <li>Additionally, the court may order a defendant (a first or sub. offender) to perform specified public service. FL ST § 775.091.</li> <li>The court may order a defendant to pay restitution to a victim. FL ST § 775.089. Additionally, the State has a victim's compensation fund. A victim of DWI offense is eligible to receive payments from this fund. FL ST § 960.01 <i>et seq</i>.</li> </ul>
Other:	<ul> <li>Mandatory Probation: First offenders must be placed on probation for l year. FL ST § 316.193(6)(a).</li> <li>Crimes Compensation Trust Fund: The following surcharges, costs and fines are paid into the Crimes Compensation Trust Fund: (1) A surcharge which is 5 percent of the fine; (2) a special cost of \$50; and (3) if injury or death resulted from the offense, a special fine of not more than \$10,000.<sup>218</sup> FL ST § 938.03; FL ST § 938.04; FL ST § 775.0835(1).</li> <li>Special Court Cost: A court cost of \$135 is added to any fine and is distributed as follows: \$25 is deposited into the EMS Trust Fund; \$50 is deposited into the Operating Trust Fund of the Department of Law Enforcement; and, \$60 is deposited into the Brain and Spinal Cord Injury Rehabilitation Trust Fund. FL ST § 938.07.</li> <li>Alcohol/Drug Assessment: In addition to any other fine, a defendant may be assessed an amount not to exceed the maximum fine authorized for the offense. This assessment is used to finance alcohol and drug programs. FL ST § 893.165.</li> <li>Reinstatement Fee: In addition to any other license reinstatement fee, a person, who has been either convicted of a DWI offense or found in violation of the admin. per se law, must pay a special fee of \$130. This fee is paid into the Highway Safety Operating Trust Fund. FL ST § 322.21(9). Under FL ST § 322.291, a defendant is required to complete a driver-training course.</li> <li>Release: A DWI offender cannot be released from custody until he/she is no longer under the influence of alcohol or other chemical substance, (2) his/her BAC/BrAC is &lt; .05, or 8 hours have elapsed from the time of his/her arrest. FL ST § 316.193(9).</li> </ul>
Administrative Licensing Actions:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>218</sup> The court must find that the defendant has the present ability to pay the fine and the impact of the fine on the defendant's dependants will not cause such dependants to become dependent upon public welfare. FL ST § 775.0835(1).

Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes ≥ .08 BAC/BrAC FL ST § 316.193; FL ST § 322.2615(1)(a). <u>A violation</u> – Suspension 6 months (30 days mand). A restricted hardship license may be issued after this manda- tory period. <u>A violation</u> where there have been two or more DWI of- fenses – Suspension 1 year <sup>219</sup> (mand). FL ST § 316.193; FL ST § 322.2615(1)(a), (1)(b), (8)(b), (10); FL ST § 322.271(2)(a). Persons Under 21 Years Old – ≥ .02 BAC/BrAC: <u>First violation</u> – Suspension 6 months (30 days mand); <u>Subsequent violations</u> – suspension 1 year (30 days mand). If BAC/BrAC is ≥ .05, the suspension remains in effect until the driver completes a substance abuse course. FL ST § 322.2616(1)(a), (2), (9), (11). Under FL ST § 322.27; FL ST § 322.28(1), a person's li- cense may be suspended for not more than 1 year if driver has "committed" an offense that usually requires license revocation (e.g., DWI). Such action may be taken <u>without</u> a preliminary hearing and <u>could</u> occur prior to a convic-
Post DWI Conviction:	tion.
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> <sup>220,221</sup> FL ST § 322.28.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First conviction – Not less than 180 days or more than 1         year;         Second conviction (within 5 years) – Not less than 5         years;         Third conviction (within 10 years) – Not less than 10         years;         Fourth conviction – Permanently.         FL ST § 322.28(2)(a), (e).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>219</sup> The "actual" suspension period appears to be only 11months. The law provides that a person be issued a 30-day temporary license at the time of arrest. However, since the law also provides that the suspension "commences" at the time of arrest or issuance of the notice, "whichever is later" the person may only be denied driving privileges for 11 months. FL ST § 322.2615(b). Unlike the mandatory suspension associated with an admin. per se violation where there has not been a prior drunk-driving offense, the law does not provide that the mandatory suspension period start after the expiration of the 30-day temporary license. <sup>220</sup> Under FL ST § 316.655(2), a court can suspend/revoke a driver's license in addition to any other sanction which may be autho-

rized, for a violation of any law regarding motor vehicles. In considering whether to exercise this privilege, the court considers the "totality of the circumstances," the need to protect the motoring public and the severity of the offense committed. <sup>221</sup> This revocation applies to both non-injury and injury-related DWI offense convictions. FL ST § 322.28(2).

	Revocation is permanent if there is an alcohol offense in connection with a vehicle manslaughter/homicide offense. FL ST § 322.26; FL ST § 322.28(2)(e).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	First offense– 180 days;Second offense(within 5 years) – 12 months;Third offense(within 10 years) – 24 months;Fourth offense– 5 years.FL ST § 322.271(2)(b); FL ST § 322.28.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> A substance abuse course/alcohol treatment program is required for a defendant convicted of any DWI offense. FL ST § 316.193(5); FL ST § 322.291. Such a course must be successfully completed by defendants who have been convicted of two DWI offenses (within 5 years) or 3 such offenses (within 10 years) before the license can be restored. FL ST § 322.03(2).
Alcohol Treatment:	If BAC/BrAC is > .05, drivers < 21 years old must com- plete a substance abuse course. FL ST § 322.2616(2)(c).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Yes (Limited) – A DWI offender's vehicle is subject to forfeiture, if at the time of the DWI offense, that person was driving on a suspended or revoked license for a prior DWI driving offense. FL ST § 322.34(9)(a); FL ST § 932.701(2)(a)(9).
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	None
Other:	Impoundment or Immobilization:First offense – 10 days;Second offense (within 5 years) – 30 days;Third offense (within 10 years) – 90 days.FL ST § 316.193(6)(a), (b), (c), (d).Note: The court may decide not to order vehicle impoundment or immobilization if the family of the vehicleowner "has no other public or private or public means of transportation." FL ST § 316.193(6)(g).
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included	Medical Facility Visitation Requirement: A DWI of-
Elsewhere:	fender under 18 years old may be ordered by the court to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>222</sup> A temporary restricted use license for business/employment may be issued. Generally, a person must have completed a substance

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>223</sup> A temporary restricted use license for business/employment may be issued. Generally, a person must have completed a substance abuse course prior to being issued this type of license. FL ST § 322.271(2)(a). <sup>223</sup> After this period of time, a restricted occupational license may be issued. Before such restricted driving privileges are granted, the person must demonstrate that he/she has been drug-free for 12 months. FL ST § 322.271(2)(b). <sup>224</sup> Applies <u>only</u> to vehicles used in the offense or to <u>one</u> vehicle owned by the offender. The term is 10 days or for the unexpired term of a rental or lease agreement that expires within 10 days. This action is a condition of probation and must <u>not</u> occur concur-rently with incarceration. FL ST § 316.193(6)(a). <sup>225</sup> Applies to <u>all</u> vehicles owned by the offender. The term is 30 days or for the unexpired term of a rental or lease agreement that

expires within 30 days. This action may not be concurrent with incarceration, but must be concurrent with the driver's license revocation. FL ST § 316.193(6)(b), (c).

Ignition Interlock:         Permitted or Prohibited:         Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):         Conditions of Use:	visit medical facilities that treat victims of traffic acci- dents. FL ST § 322.0602. <b>Probation Requirements</b> : A court, under its general pro- bation powers, may require a person convicted of a DWI offense to place a <b>bumper sticker</b> on his vehicle that identifies him as a convicted DWI offender who is operat- ing a motor vehicle on a restricted license, or to place, at his own expense, <b>an advertisement in a local newspaper</b> along with their photograph that identifies them as DWI offender. These probation conditions have been held to be constitutional under both the Federal and State constitu- tions. <i>Goldschmitt v. State</i> , 490 So.2d 123 (Fla.App.2 Dist. 1986) (upholding the use of a bumper sticker); <i>Lind- say v. State</i> , 606 So.2d 652 (Fla.App.4 Dist. 1992)(upholding the requirement to place an ad in a local newspaper). Such a condition can also require a person to abstain from the use of alcohol. <i>Spry</i> v. <i>State</i> , 750 So.2d 123 (Fla.App.2 Dist. 2000). <b>Permitted</b> FL ST § 322.2715. <b>Mandatory</b> Use of ignition interlock device <sup>226</sup> is mandatory for at least 1 year upon a second conviction if driver qualifies for a	
	permanent or restricted license, and for at least 2 years for any third conviction. FL ST § 316.193(2)(a), (b), (4)(c). Additionally, a driver may be required to use an ignition interlock device when applying for reinstatement of his suspended/revoked license. FL ST § 322.271(2)(d).	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted State v. Jones, 483 So.2d 433 (Fla. 1986); Campbell v. State, 679 So.2d 1168 (Fla. 1996).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law: 227	Yes $\underline{DWI}$ (DUI) Manslaughter (a death related to a drunk- driving offense) $2^{28} - 2^{nd}$ degree felony.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>226</sup> This applies to all vehicles that are individually or jointly leased or owned and routinely operated by the convicted person.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>227</sup> Under FL ST § 322.34(3), it is third degree felony for a person to carelessly or negligently cause death or serious bodily injury to another with a motor vehicle while the person's license is either suspended or revoked and where the basis of the suspension or revocation was: (1) a second DWI offense; (2) vehicular manslaughter; (3) vehicular homicide; or (4) a DWI offense that requires an enhanced sanction. Sanctions include incarceration for not more than 5 years and a fine of not more than \$5,000. FL ST § 775.082(3)(d); FL ST § 775.083(1)(c).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>228</sup> The unlawful killing of a viable fetus by any injury to the mother of such child which would be murder if it resulted in the death of such mother shall be deemed murder in the same degree as that which would have been committed against the mother. FL ST § 782.09.

	316.193(3)(c)(3); FL ST § 782.07; FL ST § 782.071.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>15 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . FL ST § 775.082(3)(c); FL ST § 775.083(1)(b).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> FL ST § 322.28(2)(e), (4)(a).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<u>DWI (DUI) Manslaughter</u> – <b>3 years</b> (minimum) FL ST § 322.28(2)(e), (4)(a).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	This term appears to be mandatory. FL ST § 322.28(2)(e), (4)(a).	
Other:	<ul> <li>I. A defendant may be required to pay restitution to a victim. FL ST § 775.089.</li> <li>II. A defendant must complete a driver-training course or a substance abuse education course, which shall include a psychosocial evaluation and treatment if referred. FL ST § 322.291.</li> </ul>	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person who has <i>any</i> alcohol in her/her body may not drive or be in actual physical control of a commercial motor vehicle. Such person shall be guilty of a moving violation. <sup>229</sup> Additionally, such person shall be placed out- of-service immediately for a period of 24 hours. FL ST § 322.62.	
	A person who has a BAC of .04 or more shall be subject to the same penalties as provided in FL ST § 316.193. Additionally, such person shall be disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 year (3 years if carrying hazardous material) for a <u>first offense</u> . FL ST § 322.61(3)(b), (4). For a <u>second offense</u> , the disqualification shall be permanent. FL ST § 322.61(5).	
	Any driver who violates an out-of-service order shall be disqualified for not less than 90 days or more than 1 year (first violation); not less than 1 year or more than 5 years (second violation within 10 years); not less than 3 years or more than 5 years (third or subsequent violations within 10 years). FL ST § 322.61(8).	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>229</sup> This does not prevent such person from being prosecuted for driving under the influence as well. FL ST § 322.62(3).

Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> $(2^{nd} \text{ degree misdemeanor}) - \text{Not more than}$
	<b>60 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> ; Second offense (1 <sup>st</sup> degree misdemeanor) Not more than
	Second offense $(1^{st} \text{ degree misdemeanor}) - \text{Not more than}$ <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ;
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (felony third degree) – Not
	more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.
	FL ST § 322.34(2); FL ST § 775.082; FL ST § 775.083.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	None
Imprisonment/Fine:	
Length of Term of License	
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action:	<b>Suspension</b> or <b>Revocation</b> FL ST § 322.28(1).
Withdrawal Action:	Suspension shall not be more than 1 year.
	Revocation shall be for 1 year.
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	<b>No</b> A restricted hardship license may be issued. FL ST § 322.271.
Other:	The vehicle used in the offense, if it is owned of the driver, is impounded
	by law enforcement officials. The vehicle remains impounded until the owner presents proof of insurance or of sale of the vehicle to another
	person. FL ST § 322.34(8), (9).
labitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes FL ST § 322.264.
Grounds for Being Declared an	3 serious <sup>230</sup> or 15 normal moving violations within a 5-
Habitual Offender:	year period.
Term of License Rev While Under	<b>Revocation – 5 years</b> . FL ST § 322.27(5). Note: After
Habitual Offender Status:	12 months, the offender may have the driving privileges
	restored. FL ST § 322.271(1)(b).
	Under FL ST § 322.291, a driver-training course must be
	completed.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	$3^{rd}$ degree felony. FL ST § 322.34(5).
on Charges of Driving While on	
Habitual Offender Status:	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of	
Driving While on Habitual Offender	
Status:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>5</b> years and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . FL
	ST § 322.34; FL ST § 775.082; FL ST § 775.083
Mandatory Minimum Term of	None
Imprisonment/Fine:	
Licensing Actions (Specify):	<b>Revocation</b> period is <b>5 years</b> , but a person may petition
	for reinstatement after 12 months. FL ST § 322.27(5); FL
	ST § 322.271; FL ST § 322.331.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>230</sup> These violations include manslaughter resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle, DWI, driving on a revoked or suspended license, and driving a CMV while privilege is disqualified. FL ST § 322.264(1).

Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Other State Laws Related TO Alcohor Ose.		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes FL ST § 316.1933.	
State Has Stell a Law (165/16).		
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes FL ST § 316.1933.	
Vehicle Passengers:	<b>No</b> <sup>231</sup>	
Pedestrian:	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> <sup>232</sup> FL ST § 562.11(1)(a)2.	
Sale/Purchase:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> – Except for employment purposes. FL ST § 562.111.	
Possession/Consumption:	interest in the first second	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	<b>Yes – Limited</b> FL ST § 768.125. <sup>233, 234, 235</sup>	
(Yes/No):		
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions – Social Hosts:	No FL ST § 562.11.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>231</sup> However, if a health care provider providing medical care to a person in a medical facility who was injured in a motor vehicle crash becomes aware, as a result of any blood test performed in the course of medical treatment, that the person's BAC meets or exceeds .08, the provider *may* notify any law enforcement officer. FL ST § 316.1933(2)(a)1. <sup>232</sup> It is unlawful for a minor to "misrepresent" his/her age in order to obtain alcoholic beverages. FL ST § 562.11(2).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>233</sup> This law limits liability to damages caused by selling or furnishing alcoholic beverages to persons under the legal drinking or by knowingly serving alcoholic beverages to persons who are habitually addicted to alcohol. Peoples Restaurant v. Sabo. 591 So.2d 907 (Fla. 1991). Note: Regarding injuries caused by a minor, the injured party must prove that alcoholic beverages were "willfully and unlawfully" served to the minor by the licensee. For injuries caused by a habitual drunkard, the injured party must prove that alcoholic beverages were only "knowingly" served by the licensee. Also, service on multiple drinks on one occasion is not sufficient to establish that a patron was a habitual drunkard. However, serving multiple drinks on numerous occasions is circumstantial evidence of such behavior. Ellis v. N.G.N. of Tampa, 586 So.2d 1042 (Fla. 1991); Fleuridor v. Surf Cafe, 775 So.2d 411 (Fla.App.4 Dist. 2001). Additionally, liability does not apply in situations where injury causing habitual drunkards are sold alcoholic beverages in closed containers. Liability only occurs if such persons are served alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises. Persen v. Southland Corp., 656 So.2d 453 (Fla. 1995).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>234</sup> A licensee may be held liable for the actions of an intoxicated minor to whom he/she has not sold alcoholic beverages. Such is the case if an underage person is allowed to purchase alcoholic beverages where the licensee is "on notice" that the purchaser will give such beverages to another minor who could become intoxicated and cause injury to a third party, i.e., the licensee is considered to have sold or furnished alcoholic beverages to both minors. O'Neale v. Hershoff, 634 So.2d 644 (Fla.App.3 Dist. 1994).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>235</sup> I. A patron who is a known "habitual drunkard" can hold a licensee liable, under the dram shop law, for injures he sustains as a result of becoming intoxicated at the licensee's establishment. Ellis v. N.G.N. of Tampa, 586 So.2d 1042 (Fla. 1991). II. Under the dram shop law, a licensee may be liable for the injuries or death (including suicide) of an intoxicated minor patron. Kirkman Road Sports Pub and Restaurant, Inc. v. Dempsey, 723 So.2d 384 (Fla.App.5 Dist. 1998).

Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A court may withhold the issuance of, or suspend or revoke the driver's license of, a social host convicted of providing alcohol to a minor. <u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>3 months</b> or more than <b>6</b> <b>months</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – <b>1 year</b> . FL ST § 322.057.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	2 <sup>nd</sup> degree misdemeanor (applies only to circumstances involving habitual drunkards). <sup>236</sup>	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	No	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<u>First violation</u> $-2^{nd}$ degree misdemeanor; <u>Second or subsequent violation</u> $-1^{st}$ degree misdemeanor. FL ST § 562.11(1)(a).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	First violation       – Not more than 60 days and/or not more than \$500;         Second or subsequent violation       – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000.         FL ST § 775.082; FL ST § 775.083.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or revocation <sup>237</sup>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>236</sup> However, it is a second degree misdemeanor (jail – not more than 60 days; fine – not more than \$500) for a licensee to sell or dispose of intoxicating liquors to an individual after the seller or dispenser has written notice that such individual is an habitual drun-kard. FL ST § 562.50; FL ST § 775.082; FL ST § 775.083. A licensee is also subject to license suspension under FL ST § 561.29(1)(a), (b). <sup>237</sup> Administrative sanctions may be mitigated if the licensee has been certified as a responsible vendor. Such a vendor must have

provided special training to his/her employees/managers in how to sell alcoholic beverages so as not to violate the ABC laws by

	FL ST § 561.29(1)(a), (b).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Time period is not specified in the statute.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes FL ST § 316.1936.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes FL ST § 316.1936.	

selling such beverages to minors. FL ST § 561.706.

STATE	GEORGIA
General Reference:	Code of Georgia Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol. GA ST § 40-6-391(a)(1).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{238}$ or any amount of a controlled substance or mariju-
	ana (in the blood or urine). GA ST § 40-1-1(1); GA ST §
	40-6-391(a)(5), (6); GA ST § 40-6-392(c)(l).
	Demons Under 21 Verse Old $>$ 02 <sup>239</sup> CA ST § 40 6
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> $- \ge .02^{.239}$ GA ST § 40-6- 391(k)(l); GA ST § 40-6-392(c)(3).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08$
riesumption (BAC/BIAC).	If the BAC was $\leq .05$ , then the judge/jury may infer the
	person was not under the influence of alcohol.
	If the BAC was $> .05$ but $< .08$ , no inference shall be made
	that the person was or was not under the influence of alco-
	hol. However, this fact may be considered by the
	judge/jury with any other evidence.
	GA ST § 40-6-392(b), (c).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	(1) Under the influence of any drug, (2) under the inten-
	tional influence of any glue, aerosol, or other toxic vapor
	or (3) under the combined influence of alcohol and/or any
	of the previous substances. GA ST § 40-6-391(a). <sup>240</sup>
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No <sup>241</sup>
Implied Consent Law:	Yes GA ST § 40-5-55
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>242</sup> GA ST § 40-5-55(a).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	<b>Yes</b> GA ST § 40-5-55(a).
(Yes/No):	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	<b>Yes</b> <sup>243</sup> (Criminal Cases). GA ST § 40-6-392(d).
Admitted into Evidence:	
Other Information:	Refusal to submit to alco-sensor (PBT) and field sobriety

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>238</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. GA ST § 40-1-1(1)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>239</sup> Except as noted, the sanctions for this offense are the same as for any other drunk-driving offense.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>240</sup> The courts have held that GA ST § 40-6-391 establishes <u>one</u> offense namely that of "driving under the influence." Subsection (a)(1), the standard DWI offense, and subsequent section (a)(5), the .08 illegal per se offense, represent two different methods of proving this "one" offense. *Kuptz v. State*, 345 S.E.2d 670 (Ga.App. 1986).
 <sup>241</sup> Law enforcement officers are using preliminary breath testing devices without express legislative authorization. However, GA ST

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>241</sup> Law enforcement officers are using preliminary breath testing devices without express legislative authorization. However, GA ST § 40-6-392(f) provides for the use of a self-authenticating certificate with regard to the inspection of a breath-test instrument. Further, the Georgia Supreme Court has held that a law enforcement officer is not required to advise a defendant of his right to an independent alcohol level test before requiring the defendant to undergo a preliminary screening test. *Keenan v. State*, 436 S.E.2d 475 (Ga. 1993).

<sup>(</sup>Ga. 1993). <sup>242</sup> It appears that an arrest is not required if there are "reasonable grounds" to believe that a person was under the influence <u>and</u> he/she was involved in an accident that resulted in either serious injury or death. GA ST § 40-5-55(a).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>243</sup> If proper and objective warnings are not given, evidence of refusal (of a chemical test) may not be admissible. *State v. Leviner*, 443 S.E.2d 688 (Ga.App. 1994).

#### **GEORGIA**

	tests may be admitted into evidence. <i>Turner v. State</i> , 504	
	S.E.2d 229 (Ga.App. 1998).	
	5.2.2 <b>.</b> 22) (Sumpp. 1996).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
*		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>244</sup> GA ST § 40-5-55(a).	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> GA ST § 40-5-55(a).	
Other:	"Other Bodily Substances" GA ST § 40-5-55(a).	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatary Adjudication Law (Voc/No):	No <sup>245</sup>	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No): Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes First offense (discretionary);	
(Yes/No):	<u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (mand).	
(105/100).	GA ST § 40-5-1(9); GA ST § 40-5-63.1; GA ST § 40-6-	
	391(c).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a		
Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	N/A	
<u>Test</u> :		
Refusal to Take Implied Consent		
Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	Suspension 1 year (mand) GA ST § 40-5-67.1(b).	
(Susp/Rev):		
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI		
Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
	First offense (misdemeaner) Net less then 10 days or	
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> (misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>12 months</b> and not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than	
	\$1,000;	
	<i>ψ</i> 1,000,	
	Second offense (within 10 years) (misdemeanor) – Not	
	less than <b>90 days</b> or more than <b>12 months</b> and not less	
	than \$600 or more than \$1,000;	
	Third offense (within 10 years) (high and aggravated mis-	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>244</sup> The law further provides that a blood test with a "drug screen" may be administered to drivers involved in accidents resulting in either serious injury or death. GA ST § 40-5-55(a). <sup>245</sup> The court cannot accept a *nolo contendere* plea in two situations: (1) For a violation of the illegal per se provision, where the offender's BAC or BrAC was  $\geq$  .15; or (2) for a violation of GA ST § 40-6-391(k), where a person under 21 years old was operating a motor vehicle with a BAC or BrAC  $\geq$  .02. GA ST § 40-6-391(k)(3); GA ST § 40-6-391.1(a).

	up to one-half of the fine imposed if the defendant under- goes substance abuse treatment. GA ST § 40-6-391(c), (g), (k).	
	The base fines are mandatory. However, if payment of the fine will impose an economic hardship, the judge may or- der the defendant to pay in installments, or may suspend	
	<u>Third offense (within 10 years) – 15 days;</u> <u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – 90 days	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: <sup>247</sup>	<u>First offense</u> – <b>24 hours</b> if BAC/BrAC was $\geq$ .08; <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>72 hours</b> ; Third offense (within 10 years) – <b>15 days</b> ;	
	<b>Child Endangerment</b> : <sup>246</sup> It is a separate offense to transport a child under the age of 14 years while driving under the influence. The sanctions for this offense are as follows: <u>first or second offense</u> (misdemeanor) – imprisonment for not more than 12 months and/or a fine of not more than \$1,000; <u>third or subsequent offense</u> (felony) – imprisonment for not less than 1 year or more than 3 years and/or a fine of not less than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000. GA ST § 16-12-1(d); GA ST § 40-6-391(l).	
	DWI if operating a <b>school bus</b> – imprisonment from not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> and/or a fine of not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . GA ST § 40-6-391.3.	
	DWI where there is a <b>serious injury</b> (i.e., where a member of a person's body has been deprived, rendered useless or disfigured) is a felony. The sanction for this offense is imprisonment of not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>15 years</b> . GA ST § 40-6-394.	
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> : Same penalties apply, but these offenders must be kept segregated from all other of- fenders. GA ST § 17-10-3.1(b); GA ST § 40-6-391(k). Also, if convicted of operating a motor vehicle with a BAC/BrAC level $\geq$ .02, at the discretion of the court, such persons may be sentenced to serve imprisonment time ei- ther on weekends or during nonworking hours. GA ST § 17-10-3.1(a).	
	demeanor) – Not less than <b>120 days</b> or more than <b>12</b> <b>months</b> and not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) (felony) – Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> and not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . GA ST § 40-6-391(c), (k).	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>246</sup> This offense shall not be merged with the offense of driving under the influence of alcohol/drugs, for purposes of prosecution and sentencing. GA ST § 40-6-391(l).
 <sup>247</sup> An offender is subject to <u>both</u> a period of mandatory jail and mandatory community service. *Gidey* v. *State*, 491 S.E.2d 406

<sup>(</sup>Ga.App. 1997). <sup>248</sup> If the defendant's BAC was less than .08, then he/she shall perform no fewer than 20 hours of community service.

	<u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> – Not less than <b>60 days</b> , which may be suspended of the defendant is sentenced to serve 3 years of actual imprisonment.	
	GA ST § 40-6-391(c).	
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> with an alcohol concentration $of < .08$ :	
	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than 20 mandatory hours; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – Not less than 40 manda-	
	tory hours. Community service must be completed within 60 days of	
	the sentencing date. GA ST § 40-6-391(c); GA ST § 40-6-391(k)(2).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes       (1) A defendant may have to pay restitution (or other relief to a victim) as a condition of probation. GA ST § 17-14-1 et seq.	
	(2) A victim may also receive payment from the State's victims' compensation fund. GA ST § 17-15-1 <i>et seq</i> .	
Other:	<b>Photo, Name</b> and Address Publication: For a second or subsequent offense, a defendant's name, address and pho- tograph shall be published in the legal organ of the county in which the defendant resides or was convicted. GA ST § 40-6-391(j).	
	<b>Special Fine for the Peace Officer's Annuity and Bene- fit Fund</b> : An additional fine equal to 5% of the original fine is imposed and deposited into this fund. GA ST § 15- 21-131.	
	<b>Special Penalty for the Brain and Spinal Injury Trust Fund</b> : An additional fine equal to 10% of the original fine is imposed and deposited into this fund. GA ST § 15-21-149; GA ST § 15-21-150.	
	<b>Assessment</b> : A mandatory assessment penalty of \$26 or 11% of the original fine, whichever is less. This penalty is used to support the Crime Victims Emergency Fund. GA ST § 15-21-112; GA ST § 15-21-115.	
	<b>Probation</b> : If jail is <12 months, there is mandatory probation for any period of time not served in confinement. GA ST § 40-6-391(c)(1)(F).	
	<b>License Plates Surrendered</b> : A <u>second or subsequent</u> drunk-driving offender <u>must</u> have the license plates of <u>all</u> vehicles owned surrendered to the court. Specially numbered plates may be issued for such vehicles provided the offender has a limited or probationary license or some other member of the offender's household has a valid license and there is a hardship requiring the use of a vehicle or vehicles. Such special plates shall not constitute probable cause to stop a motor vehicle. GA ST § 40-2-136.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		

Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes <sup>249</sup> $\geq$ .08 BAC/BrAC ( $\geq$ .02 for persons under 21 yearsold). GA ST § 40-5-67.1(b)(2); GA ST § 40-5-67.2(a).First action – Suspension for 1 year <sup>250</sup> (30 days mand);Second action (within 5 years) – Suspension for 3 years(18 months mand);Third or subsequent action (within 5 years) – Suspensionfor 5 years (2 years mand).GA ST § 40-5-67.1; GA ST § 40-5-67.2(a).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Suspension</b> or <b>Revocation</b> GA ST § 40-5-62(a)(1); GA ST § 40-5-63; GA ST § 40-5-64.
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: <sup>251</sup> Suspension or Revoca- tion. GA ST § 40-5-57.1(b)(2); GA ST § 40-6-391.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	I. Alcohol and Non-controlled Substance (Drug) DWI Offenses: <u>First offense</u> – Suspension – 12 months; <sup>252</sup> <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – 3 years; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years) – 5 years. <u>DWI-Serious Injury</u> – 3 years. GA ST § 40-5-63(a); GA ST § 40-5-63(d)(1).
	II. Controlled Substance DWI Offenses: <u>First offense</u> – Not less than 180 days; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – 3 years; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years) – 5 years. GA ST § 40-5-63(a); GA ST § 40-5-75(a).
Mandatara Minimum Tarra C	Persons Under 21 Years Old: Not less than <b>120 days</b> . Otherwise, the person is subject to the same licensing sanctions as above. GA ST § 40-5-57.1(b)(2).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	I. Alcohol and Non-controlled Substance (Drug) DWI Offenses: <u>First_offense</u> – 120 days; <sup>253</sup>

 $<sup>^{249}</sup>$  If a person is "acquitted" of a drunk-driving offense under GA ST § 40-6-391, the implied consent refusal or administrative per se suspension is terminated. However, this suspension does not terminate in cases where a person pleaded *nolo contendere* to such an offense. GA ST § 40-5-67.1(g)(4).  $^{250}$  However after 30 days following the effective date of suspension, a person may apply for reinstatement conditioned upon proof

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>250</sup> However after 30 days following the effective date of suspension, a person may apply for reinstatement conditioned upon proof of completion of a DUI Alcohol or Drug Use Risk Reduction Program and payment of a \$200-\$210 fee.
 <sup>251</sup> If the vehicle operator was below the driving age (age 16) at the time of the DWI offense, the privilege to obtain a driver's license

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>251</sup> If the vehicle operator was below the driving age (age 16) at the time of the DWI offense, the privilege to obtain a driver's license must be "delayed" until age 17 for a first offense, and until age 18 for a subsequent offense. However, the privilege may be reinstated if the person completes a DWI alcohol and drug use risk reduction program. GA ST § 40-5-22.1.
<sup>252</sup> For first drunk-driving offense conviction, the license suspension period may be limited to only 120 days. Under GA ST § 40-5-

 $<sup>^{252}</sup>$  For first drunk-driving offense conviction, the license suspension period may be limited to only 120 days. Under GA ST § 40-5-63(a)(l), a driver's license may be reinstated after 120 days, provided the defendant has completed a DWI alcohol or drug use risk-reduction program. The offender <u>must</u> have completed this program before the license can be restored.

	$\frac{\text{Second offense} - 18\text{-month suspension};}{\text{Third offense}} (within 5 years) - 2 years. After 2 years, a person may be issued a "probationary" driver's license. GA ST § 40-5-63(a)(3).  DWI-Serious Injury - 3 years. GA ST § 40-5-53(d)(2).  II. Controlled Substance DWI Offenses:  First offense - 180 days;  Second offense - 1 year;  Third offense - 2 years.  GA ST § 40-5-63(a); GA ST § 40-5-75(a).  Persons Under 21 Years Old:  First offense - If BAC was < .08 - 6 months;  if BAC was \ge .08 - 12 months;Second or subsequent offense - 12 months.GA ST § 40-5-57.1(b)(2).$
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	Yes
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes I. For a first or second DWI conviction listed under admin. action I or II, a person's license cannot be reinstated until completion of an alcohol or drug risk-reduction program. GA ST § 40-5-63(a)(1), (2); GA ST § 40-6-391(c)(1)(d); GA ST § 40-6-391(c)(2)(D). II. For second or third DWI offense convictions, a defen- dant must complete an "alcohol or drug use risk-reduction program" and, if an evaluation indicates that treatment is necessary, a substance treatment program before their li- cense can be restored. GA ST § 40-5-62(b); GA ST § 40- 5-63(a)(2); GA ST § 40-5-63.1; GA ST § 40-6-391(2)(E), (3)(E).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	<ul> <li>Yes – Forfeiture: A person's vehicle is subject to forfeiture if convicted of a fourth DWI offense and such offense occurred while operating a vehicle in habitual offender status based on 3 prior DWI convictions. GA ST § 40-6-391.2.</li> <li>In lieu of forfeiture and based on the financial hardship to the defendant's family, the court may order that the vehicle's title be transferred to another family member who</li> </ul>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>253</sup> For a first DWI offense conviction, a defendant may receive limited driving privileges in cases of "extreme hardship." GA ST § 40-5-64. Driving privileges may be reinstated after the offender has completed a drug treatment program if a refusal to allow such privileges would cause "extreme hardship." GA ST § 40-5-64.

	is licensed and who needs the vehicle for employment or
	other family needs. GA ST § 40-6-391.2(i).
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	None
Other:	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	The court has the authority to order a defendant "to wear a fluorescent pink plastic bracelet imprinted with the words 'D.U.I. CONVICT'" as a condition of probation. <i>Ballenger v. State,</i> 436 S.E.2d 793, 794 (Ga.App. 1993).
Ignition Interloak:	
Ignition Interlock: Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory
Conditions of Use:	Second and subsequent offenders on probation must install
	ignition interlock devices on all vehicles they own and operate. This requirement becomes effective when the offender is issued limited driving privileges, and must last for 6 months. GA ST § 40-5-58; GA ST § 40-5-63; GA ST § 42-8-111; GA ST § 42-8-112.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted State v. Stearns, 524 S.E.2d 554 (Ga.App. 1999).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Vehicular Homicide in the first degree (felony) – Death where there is no "malice aforethought" but where there is either reckless driving or a DWI offense. Vehicular Homicide in the second degree (misdemea- nor) – Where the death is caused "without an intention to do so" and where there is neither reckless driving nor a
	DWI offense. Vehicular Homicide in the first degree (felony) – Death
	where the defendant is a "Habitual Violator", the license has been revoked <u>and</u> there is no "malice aforethought".
	GA ST § 16-1-3(5) (defines a felony offense); GA ST § 40-6-393.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<b>First Degree</b> – Not less than <b>3 years</b> or more than <b>15</b> <b>years</b> . GA ST § 40-6-393(a)
	<b>Second Degree</b> – Not more than <b>12 months</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . GA ST § 17-10-3; GA ST § 40-6-393(c).

	Habitual Offender – First Degree – Not less than 5 years or more than 20 years. GA ST § 40-6-393(d).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: 254	Habitual Offender – First Degree – 1 year. GA ST § 40-6-393.
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Suspension/Revocation</b> GA ST § 40-5-54(a)(1); GA ST § 40-5-58; GA ST § 40-5- 62; GA ST § 40-5-63.
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>Suspension – 3 years</b> (GA ST § 40-5-63(d)) <b>Revocation – 5 years</b> if "Habitual Violator" (GA ST § 40- 5-58).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>Suspension – 3 years</b> (GA ST § 40-5-63 (d)) <b>Revocation – 5 years</b> if "Habitual Violator" (GA ST § 40- 5-58(f)).
<u>DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor</u> <u>Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's</u> <u>Licenses (CDL):</u>	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for not less than 1 mandatory year (not less than 3 years if trans- porting hazardous materials) if convicted of driving a CMV: (1) with a BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq$ .04 "percent by weight" of alcohol or more in the blood, breath or urine; (2) while under the influence of alcohol or any drug or; (3) or by refusing to submit to a chemical test for alcohol concentration. GA ST § 40-5-142(2); GA ST § 40-5-142(13.1); GA ST § 40-5-151; GA ST § 40-5-153. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for life (10 years mand). It is a misdemeanor to operate a CMV with a BAC $\geq$ .04; the <u>only</u> sanctions for this offense are the fines associated with DWI offense convictions. In addition, a CMV operator, who has any measurable amount of alcohol in his system, must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. GA ST § 40- 5-67.1(c); GA ST § 40-5-151; GA ST § 40-5-152; GA ST § 40-5-153; GA ST § 40-6-391(i); GA ST § 40-6- 392(c)(2).
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	No specific statutory provision on this subject. The sanc- tions given are for the general offense of operating a motor vehicle while driving privileges are suspended or revoked.
Sanction:	
Criminal:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>254</sup> Under GA ST § 17-10-8, the court as a condition of probation for a felony offense may require an offender to pay a fine of not more than \$100,000.

Imprisonment Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than 2 days or more than 12months and may be fined not less than \$500 or more than\$1,000;Second or third conviction (within 5 years) – Not less than10 days or more than 12 months and may be fined not lessthan \$1,000 or more than \$2,500;Fourth or subsequent conviction (within 5 years) – Notless than \$1,000 or more than \$2,500;Fourth or subsequent conviction (within 5 years) – Notless than \$2,500 or more than \$5,000.GA ST § 40-5-121(a).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.	
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension/Revocation GA ST § 40-5-121(b), (c).	
Withdrawal Action:	Original suspension or revocation period is extended <b>6 months.</b>	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	This appears to be mandatory.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> GA ST § 40-5-58.	
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	3 or more serious violations within 5 years. <sup>255</sup>	
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Revocation – 5 years</b> <sup>256</sup> GA ST § 40-5-62(a)(1).	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Felony</b> <sup>257</sup> GA ST § 16-1-3(5); GA ST § 40-5-58(c)(1), (2).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> and/or a fine of not less than <b>\$750</b> , or <b>\$1,000</b> (if HO status was based only on DWI offense convictions). GA ST § 40-5-58(c)(l), (2).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>255</sup> Serious violations include racing, reckless driving, any DWI offense, and eluding. GA ST § 40-5-58(a)(1).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>256</sup> A 3-year probationary restricted hardship license may be issued after 2 years of the revocation period have passed. The issuance of a probationary license must be based upon "extreme hardship" which is defined as a need for transportation to go to and from employment, medical care facilities, school or college, or court-ordered alcohol or drug treatment programs. The person is also required to complete defensive driver course or an alcohol or drug risk-reduction program before this probationary license can be issued. GA ST § 40-5-58(e). A probationary license is not available if: (1) the person's regular license has been revoked for a DWIrelated death (GA ST § 40-5-58(f)); (2) the person has been convicted of any other motor vehicle-related death (GA ST § 40-5-58(e)(1)(B)); or the person has been convicted of violating either the alcoholic beverage control law or the controlled substances law  $(GA ST \S 40-5-58(e)(1)(D)).$ <sup>257</sup> It is a misdemeanor (jail – not more 12 months; fine – not more than \$1,000) to operate a vehicle without a license after the 5-

year revocation has passed. GA ST § 17-10-3(a); GA ST § 40-5-58(c).

Licensing Actions (Specify):	None	
Elections (Specify).		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
<u>Other State Laws Related TO Method Ose</u> .		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> GA ST § 40-5-55; GA ST § 45-16-46. <sup>258</sup>	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	<b>Yes</b> GA ST § 40-5-55	
Vehicle Passengers:	Possible <sup>259</sup>	
Pedestrian:	Possible	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> GA ST § 3-3-23(a)(1), (2).	
Sale/Purchase:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> GA ST § 3-3-23(a)(2), (b). <b>Exceptions</b> : Medical	
Possession/Consumption:	purposes, religious ceremonies, and home use with	
	parental consent, or handling pursuant to employment.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	<b>Yes – Limited</b> . GA ST § 51-1-40(b). <sup>260,261</sup>	
(Yes/No): "Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No	
	NO	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Yes</b> – <b>Limited</b> GA ST § 51-1-40(b).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who contributes to the delinquency or unruliness	
Social Host-Chiminal Emolecement.	of a minor by knowingly and willfully encouraging,	
	causing or aiding such minor in committing a delinquent	
	causing of along such minor in committing a demiquent	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>258</sup> At the request of either a coroner or police officer, the medical examiner may take a blood sample from a person who has been killed for the purpose of determining the presence of intoxicating substances in such person.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>259</sup> GA ST § 40-5-55(b) states that "[a]ny person who is dead, unconscious, or otherwise in a condition rendering such person incapable of refusal shall be deemed not to have withdrawn the consent...." (Emphasis added.)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>260</sup> Also, under GA ST § 51-1-18, a parent has a right to bring an action against any person who sells or furnishes alcoholic beverages to that parent's underage child without the parent's permission. *Eldridge v. Aronson*, 472 S.E 2d 497 (Ga.App. 1996).
<sup>261</sup> Action is limited to the selling, furnishing or serving of alcoholic beverages to persons under the legal drinking age (in a willful,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>261</sup> Action is limited to the selling, furnishing or serving of alcoholic beverages to persons under the legal drinking age (in a willful, knowing and unlawful manner) or to persons who are "in a state of noticeable intoxication" <u>and</u> only for injuries and damages resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle "when the sale, furnishing, or serving is the proximate cause of such injury or damage." *Perryman* v. *Lufran, Inc.*, 434 S.E.2d 112 (Ga.App. 1993). A motor vehicle passenger can recover damages from a licensee for any injuries they may have sustained in an accident while riding with an intoxicated driver who had became inebriated at the licensee's establishment. Liability applies even if the passenger also consumed alcoholic beverages with the vehicle operator at the establishment prior to the accident. A passenger is not considered a "consumer" under the dram shop law. *Griffen Motel Co.* v. *Strickland*, 479 S.E.2d 401 (Ga.App. 1996).

	act or an act which would cause such minor to be found an unruly child shall be punished in the following manner: <u>First or second conviction</u> – not more than \$1,000 and/or not more than 12 months; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – not less than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000 and/or not less than 1 year or more than 3 years. GA ST § 16-12-1. <i>However</i> , a parent or guardian may give his/her minor alcohol and such possession is in the home of the parent/guardian and such parent/guardian is present. GA ST § 3-3-23.
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> GA ST § 3-3-9; GA ST § 3-3-22; GA ST § 17-10-3.
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	Not more than <b>12 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> .
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons: License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or cancellation. GA ST § 3-2-3(1).
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	2 years
<u>Criminal Actions Against Owners or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under</u> <u>the Minimum Legal Drinking Age</u> :	
Type of Criminal Action:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>Misdemeanor</b> ; <u>Subsequent offenses</u> – <b>Misdemeanor</b> of a high and aggra- vated nature. GA ST § 3-3-9; GA ST § 3-3-23; GA ST § 3-3-23.1; GA ST § 17-10-3; GA ST § 17-10-4.
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	For first and subsequent offense – Not more than 12 months and/or not more than \$1,000 (first offense) or \$5,000 (subsequent offense).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	

License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or cancellation GA ST § 3-2-3(1).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	2 years	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No): Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes         GA ST § 40-6-253.           Yes         GA ST § 40-6-253.	

STATE	HAWAII
General Reference:	Hawai'i Revised Statutes Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of an intoxicant. HI ST § 291E-61(a).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{262}$ HI ST § 291E- 61(a)(3), (4).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08. HI ST § 291E-3(a).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug. <sup>263</sup> HI ST § 291E- 61(a)(2).
Other:	<u>Person Under 21 Years Old</u> – ≥ .02 but < .08. <sup>264</sup> HI ST § 291E- 64(a).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>265</sup> HI ST § 291E-11(f).
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> HI ST § 291E-11(b)(1).
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> HI ST § 291E-11(a).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> HI ST § 291E-11(a), (b).
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	No (Criminal and Civil Cases). However, there is an ex-
Admitted into Evidence:	ception for administrative hearings related to test refusals (license suspension). HI ST § 291E-16; HI ST § 291E-65.
Other Information:	A driver may be compelled to submit to a chemical test if
	involved in an accident resulting in either death or serious
	personal injury to another person and there is reason to
	believe that the driver was under the influence of alcohol
	or drugs. HI ST § 291E-21(c).
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for	
Alcohol Concentration Which Are	
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> HI ST § 291E-11(a).
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> HI ST § 291E-11(a).
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>262</sup> "<u>Alcohol concentration</u>" means grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters or cubic centimeters of blood, or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. HI ST § 291E-1.
<sup>263</sup> Under the influence of any drug that impairs the person's ability to operate a vehicle in a careful and prudent manner. HI ST §

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>263</sup> Under the influence of any drug that impairs the person's ability to operate a vehicle in a careful and prudent manner. HI ST § 291E-1; HI ST § 291E-61(a)(2). <sup>264</sup> The law prohibits a person < 21 years old from driving with any measurable amount of alcohol concentration. "Measurable

 $<sup>^{264}</sup>$  The law prohibits a person < 21 years old from driving with any measurable amount of alcohol concentration. "Measurable amount of alcohol" is defined as an alcohol concentration equal to or greater than .02 but less than .08. HI ST § 291E-1; HI ST § 291E-64(a).

<sup>291</sup>E-64(a). <sup>265</sup> The law does not specifically authorize the use of PBTs, but does allow for PBT test results to "determining probable cause for the arrest." However, the PBT is not a substitute for usual chemical tests under the implied consent law. HI ST § 291E-1; HI ST § 291E-11(f).

Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes Substance abuse assessment is required. HI ST §
(Yes/No):	291E-61(d).
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a	
Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	N/A
Test:	
Refusal to Take Implied Consent	
Chemical Test:	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None
Administrative Licensing Action	<u>First alcohol enforcement contact</u> <sup>266</sup> – <b>Revocation</b> – 1
(Susp/Rev):	year;
	Second alcohol enforcement contact (within 5 years) –
	Revocation – 2 years;
	Third alcohol enforcement contact (within 7 years) – Re-
	vocation – 4 years;
	Fourth or subsequent alcohol enforcement contact (within
	10 years) – <b>Revocation for life</b> .
	HI ST § 291E-41(d).
	Persons Under Age 21:
	First alcohol enforcement contact – Suspension – 12
	months;
	Second alcohol enforcement contact – Suspension – Not
	less than 2 years and not more than 5 years.
	HI ST § 291E-65.
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	
Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine: 267	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>48 hours</b> and more than <b>5</b>
	days or not less than \$150 or more than \$1,000;
	Second offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 5 days or
	more than 14 days and not less than \$500 or more than
	\$1,500;
	Third offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 10 days or
	more than <b>30 days</b> and not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than
	\$2,500;
	HI ST § 291E-61(b).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>266</sup> "<u>Alcohol Enforcement Contact</u>" means a refusal, an admin. per se action, or any offense involving driving with an unlawful alcohol concentration or a drunk driving offense. HI ST § 291E-1. The term must be explained in order to secure a knowing refusal under HI ST § 291E-11. *Castro v. Administrative Director of the Courts*, 40 P. 3d 865 (Hawaii 2002). <sup>267</sup> A person <u>must</u> be sentenced to <u>one</u> of these sanctions but may be sentenced to more than one. HI ST § 291E-61(b)(1)(C).

Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Second offense (within 5 years) – <b>\$500</b> ;	
-	Third offense (within 5 years) – \$500/10 days (with at	
	least 48 consecutive hours).	
	HI ST § 291E-61(b).	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>72 hours</b> may be imposed;	
	Second offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 240 hours	
	may be imposed;	
	HI ST § 291E-61(b).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Restitution may be ordered. HI ST § 351-1 et seq.	
Other:	Surcharge: \$25 for neurotrauma special fund. Addition-	
	ally, up to \$25 (first offense) or \$50 (subsequent offense)	
	may be deposited into trauma system special fund if the	
	court so orders. HI ST § 291E-61(b).	
	Payment of Costs: Offenders shall make restitution to the	
	county police department or other agency for cost of blood	
	and urine tests. HI ST § 291E-61(f).	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
C C		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	First alcohol enforcement contact – Revocation – A min-	
	imum of <b>3 months</b> up to a maximum of <b>1 year</b> ;	
	<u>First contact – highly intoxicated driver<sup>268</sup> – Revocation –</u>	
	A minimum of 6 months up to a maximum of 1 year;	
	Second alcohol enforcement contact (within 5 years) –	
	<b>Revocation</b> – A minimum of <b>1 year</b> up to a maximum of	
	2 years;	
	Third alcohol enforcement contact (within 7 years) – Re-	
	<b>vocation</b> – A minimum of <b>2 years</b> up to a maximum of <b>4</b>	
	years;	
	Fourth or subsequent alcohol enforcement contact (within	
	10 years) – <b>Revocation for life</b> .	
	HI ST § 291E-41(b).	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation HI ST § 291E-61(b).	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<u>First offense</u> – <b>Suspension</b> – <b>90 days</b> (or 30 days with	
Years, etc.):	restricted driving privileges for the remaining 60 days for	
	employment purposes);	
	<u>First offense – highly intoxicated driver</u> – <b>Suspension – 6</b>	
	months;	
	Second offense (within 5 years) – Suspension – 1 year;	
	<u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Revocation</b> – Not less	
	than 1 year or more than 5 years;	

 $<sup>^{268}</sup>$  "Highly intoxicated driver" means a person whose measurable amount of alcohol is 0.15 or more grams of alcohol per 100 ml or cubic centimeters of the person's blood, or 0.15 or more grams of alcohol per 210 liters of the person's breath. HI ST § 291E-1.

	HI ST § 291E-61(b).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	First offense – 30 days; Second offense (within 5 years) – 1 year; Third offense (within 5 years) – 1 year. HI ST § 291E-61(b).	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes	
Alcohol Treatment:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>14-hour</b> substance abuse rehabilitation program including education and counseling or other pro- gram as deemed appropriate by the court; <u>Second or subsequent offenses</u> – <b>Treatment</b> if recom- mended after an assessment. HI ST § 291E-61(b)(1)(A), (d). All offenders are referred to the driver's education program for an assessment. HI ST § 291E-61(d).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:		
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Administrative Registration Revocation: <sup>269</sup> The regis- tration of all of the vehicles owned by a second or subse- quent DWI offender must be revoked for the same periods of time as the license of the offender is revoked. Special registrations with special plates may be issued in hardship situations concerning owners or other household members. Forfeiture under Chapter 712A of the vehicle applies to third or subsequent convictions within 5 years, or convic- tion of habitually operating a vehicle under the influence of an intoxicant (provided the department of transportation provides storage for vehicles). HI ST § 291E-33(c); HI ST § 291E-34(e)(10); HI ST § 291E-37(e); HI ST § 291E-38(f), (1); HI ST § 291E-41; HI ST § 291E-61(b)(4)(F).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	N/A	
Other:		
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Child Endangerment</b> : Offenders $\geq 18$ years old who were operating a motor vehicle with a passenger <15 years old at the time of the offense are subject to the following <u>addi-</u> <u>tional mandatory</u> sanctions: (1) A mandatory fine of \$500; and (2) 48 consecutive hours of imprisonment. However, the total imprisonment time imposed for first, second or third offenses cannot exceed the maximum term of impri- sonment provided for first, second and subsequent DUI offenses. (1), (2), or (3). HI ST § 291E-61(b)(5).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>269</sup> Administration Registration Revocation for Refusal: If a person refuses to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law, the registrations of all the vehicles that person owns must be revoked for the same period of time as for a refusal licensing action. HI ST § 291E-41(d), (e). Special registrations with special plates may be issued in hardship situations concerning co-owners or other household members.

٦

Persons Under 21 Years Old: The following sanctions apply to persons < 21 years old who operate a motor ve- hicle with "a measurable amount of alcohol concentra- tion":                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    <b< th=""><th></th><th><ul> <li>Bodily Injury Related to Motor Vehicle Operation:</li> <li>I. Serious bodily injury caused by negligent vehicle operation (negligent injury in the first degree) – Class C felony: Jail – Not more than 5 years (Mandatory jail term of 1 year, 8 months if the victim is blind, paraplegic, quadriplegic, ≥60 years old, or ≤8 years old; <i>Fine</i> – Not more than \$10,000.</li> <li>II. Substantial bodily injury caused by negligent vehicle operation (negligent injury in the 2nd degree- misdemeanor: Jail – not more than 1 year; <i>Fine</i> – not more than \$2,000.</li> <li>HI ST § 706-620; HI ST § 706-640; HI ST § 706-660; HI ST § 706-660.2; HI ST § 706-663; HI ST § 707-705; HI ST § 707-706.</li> </ul></th><th></th></b<>		<ul> <li>Bodily Injury Related to Motor Vehicle Operation:</li> <li>I. Serious bodily injury caused by negligent vehicle operation (negligent injury in the first degree) – Class C felony: Jail – Not more than 5 years (Mandatory jail term of 1 year, 8 months if the victim is blind, paraplegic, quadriplegic, ≥60 years old, or ≤8 years old; <i>Fine</i> – Not more than \$10,000.</li> <li>II. Substantial bodily injury caused by negligent vehicle operation (negligent injury in the 2nd degree- misdemeanor: Jail – not more than 1 year; <i>Fine</i> – not more than \$2,000.</li> <li>HI ST § 706-620; HI ST § 706-640; HI ST § 706-660; HI ST § 706-660.2; HI ST § 706-663; HI ST § 707-705; HI ST § 707-706.</li> </ul>	
education program as to alcohol abuse or dependence and		apply to persons < 21 years old who operate a motor vehicle with "a measurable amount of alcohol concentration": <u>First offense</u> – (1) Attendance at an alcohol abuse education/counseling program (the person's parent or guardian must also attend if the person is < 18); (2) 180-day license suspension <u>or</u> 30-day mandatory suspension with a 150-day restricted driving privileges for employment purposes; and (3) <u>one or more</u> the following <u>discretionary</u> sanctions: not more than 36 hours of community service or a fine of not less than \$150 or more than \$500. <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years of a prior alcohol enforcement contact) – (1) 1-year mandatory license suspension; and (2) <u>any of the following discretionary sanctions</u> : not more than 50 hours of community service or a fine of \$300 to \$1,000. <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years of 2 prior alcohol enforcement contacts) – (1) 2-year mandatory license suspension; and (2) <u>any of the following discretionary sanctions</u> : not more than 100 hours of community service, or a fine of not less than \$300 or more than \$1,000.	
		education program as to alcohol abuse or dependence and	
Ignition Interlock:       No statutory provisions <sup>270</sup> Permitted or Prohibited:       No statutory provisions <sup>270</sup> Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):       Conditions of Use:	Permitted or Prohibited: Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	No statutory provisions <sup>270</sup>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>270</sup> Statutory provisions for ignition interlock devices shall become effective n 2011.

Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted         State v. Claunch, 173 P.3d 379, 383 (Hawaii App. 2006); see           e.g. State v. Heapy, 151 P.3d 764 (Hawaii 2007).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes(1) Death caused by negligent vehicle operation whileDWI (negligent homicide in the first degree) – Class Bfelony;(2) Death caused by negligent vehicle operation (negligent homicide in the second degree) – Class C felony;(3) Death caused by simple negligence (negligent homi-	
	cide in the third degree) – Misdemeanor. HI ST § 706-640; HI ST § 706-660; HI ST § 706-663; HI ST § 707-702.5; HI ST § 707-703; HI ST § 707-704.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Negligent homicide in the first degree – Not more than 10years and may be fined not more than \$25,000;Negligent homicide in the second degree – Not more than5 years and may be fined not more than \$10,000;Negligent homicide in the third degree – Not more than 1year or not more than \$2,000.HI ST § 706-640; HI ST § 706-660; HI ST § 706-663; HIST § 707-702.5; HI ST § 707-703; HI ST § 707-704.	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	The following mandatory imprisonment sanctions apply when the person killed is 60 years of age or older, blind, paraplegic, quadriplegic, or 8 years old or younger: Neg- ligent homicide in the first degree – 3 years, 4 months; Negligent homicide in the second degree – 1 year, 8 months. HI ST § 706-620; HI ST § 706-660.2.	
Administrative Licensing Action:	There are no specific licensing sanctions associated with vehicle homicide offenses. However, the law does provide for the following licensing sanctions: (1) A person is subject to a mandatory 1-year license revocation if convicted of manslaughter "resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle." HI ST § 286-124; HI ST § 286-126. (2) In addition, a person is subject to discretionary license suspension or revocation if convicted of a felony "in the commission of which a motor vehicle is used, or convicted of a violationof any traffic law or regulation involving a vehicle in motion." If a person's license is ordered to be suspended, the suspension cannot be for more than 5 years. If the license is ordered to be revoked, the revocation is for a mandatory period of 1 year. HI ST § 286-125; HI ST § 286-126.	

DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for not	
Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's	less than 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazard-	
<u>Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's</u> <u>Licenses (CDL):</u>	ous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person (1) has an alcohol concentration $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol, a controlled substance or any drug which impairs driving ability; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration. The CMV "disqualification" provision, based on a refusal, applies only to a refusal to submit to a chemical test for alcohol concentration; how- ever, the CMV implied consent provision applies to testing for alcohol or controlled substances. For either a subse- quent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for life (mand). In addition, a CMV operator who has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .01 must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. HI ST § 286-2; HI ST § 286-231; HI ST § 286- 240; HI ST § 286-242; HI ST § 286-243. Sanctions: Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$550 or more than \$1000; disqualification for not less than 1 year and up to life. HI ST § 286-235(b); HI ST § 286- 249(a).	
Driving While License Suspended or	For a violation of an out-of-service order, a driver shall be fined not less than \$1,000 or more than \$2,750 and disqua- lified for not less than 1 year and up to life. HI ST § 286- 249(b).	
<u>Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI</u> <u>Offense</u> :		
Sanction:		
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First offense– Not less than 3 consecutive days or more than 30 days and not less than \$250 or more than \$1,000; Second offense (within 5 years) – 30 days and \$1,000; Subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 1 year and \$2,000. HI ST § 291E-62(a), (b).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	The terms above are mandatory.	
Length of Term of License		
Administrative Licensing Actions: Type of Licensing Action	ALL offenses – Revocation. HI ST § 291E-62(a), (b).	
Withdrawal Action:	First offenseFirst offenseAn additional period of 1 year;Second offense(within 5 years) – An additional period of2 years;Subsequent offenseSubsequent offense(within 5 years) – Permanently. HI	

Mandatory Term of License	ST § 291E-62(a), (b). These revocation periods are to commence after the of- fender has been released from imprisonment. HI ST § 291E-62(b). The above revocation periods are mandatory.
Withdrawal Action:	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Habitually operating a vehicle under the influence of an intoxicant. HI ST § 291E-61.5.
Grounds for Being Declared a Habitual Offender:	Has been convicted three or more times within 10 years <sup>271</sup> of operating a vehicle under the influence of an intoxicant at the time the person is convicted of driving impaired offense. HI ST § 291E-61.5(a).
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	For first offense, or any offense not proceeded within a 5- year period by a prior conviction: 90-day suspension or a 30-day absolute driving prohibition, with a following 60- day restricted license for work-related purposes and partic- ipation in substance abuse treatment programs. For an of- fense occurring within 5 years of a prior conviction – one- year revocation with no exceptions, and not more than 5 years total. HI ST § 291E-61.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	Class C felony HI ST § 291E-61.5(c).
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<ul> <li>Either indeterminate term of imprisonment up to 5 years, or 5 years probation, with not less than 10 days imprisonment (48 hours served consecutively) and may be fined not more than \$10,000.</li> <li>Additionally, referral to a certified substance abuse counselor shall be made.</li> <li>\$25 surcharge shall be paid to the neurotrauma special fund, and a surcharge of up to \$50 may be ordered for payment to the trauma system special fund.</li> </ul>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>271</sup> "Convicted three or more times for offenses of operating a vehicle under the influence" means that, at the time of the behavior for which the person is charged under this section, the person had three or more times within 10 years of the instant offense, including: (1) A judgment on a verdict or a finding of guilty, or a plea of guilty or nolo contendere;

HI ST § 291E-61.5(b).

<sup>(2)</sup> A judgment on a verdict or a finding of guilty, or a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, for an offense that is comparable to this section or HI ST § 291-4; HI ST § 291-4.4 or HI ST § 291-7 as those sections were in effect on December 31, 2001, or HI ST § 291E-61; HI ST § 707-702.5; or

<sup>(3)</sup> An adjudication of a minor for a law or probation violation that, if committed by an adult, would constitute a violation of this section or section HI ST § 291-4; HI ST § 291-4.4 or HI ST § 291-7 as those sections were in effect on December 31, 2001, or HI ST § 291E-61 or HI ST § 707-702.5; but

<sup>(4)</sup> All convictions that have been expunged by pardon, reversed, or set aside prior to the instant offense shall not be deemed prior convictions for the purposes of proving the person's status as a habitual operator of a vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant.

	HI ST § 291E-61.5(d); HI ST § 706-640.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The \$25 surcharge and 10 days imprisonment are manda-
	tory.
Licensing Actions (Specify):	<b>Revocation</b> for not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> .
Licensing retions (speeng).	HI ST $\S$ 291E-61.5(d)(2)(A).
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
other blate Laws Related 107 Records ese.	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> HI ST § 291E-21.
State Hus Such a Edw (105/105).	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the	
the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes
Vehicle Passengers:	Possible HI ST § 291E-21; HI ST 841-3.
Pedestrian:	Possible HI ST § 291E-21; HI ST § 841-3.
Pedestnan.	Possible II 51 § 291E-21, II 51 § 841-5.
Lowa Establishing the Minimum As	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages	
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years)	21 11 OT 6 201 70(1) 11 OT 6 201 101 5
Sale/Purchase:	HI ST § 281-78(b); HI ST § 281-101.5
Minimum Age (Years)	
Possession/Consumption:	Employment situations, medical treatment and religious
	ceremonies are excluded. Any violation by someone under
	18 shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the Family Court;
	any violation by someone 18 to 21 shall be a petty misde-
	meanor, and punishable by suspension of driver's license
	for not less than 180 days. Except with permission from
	the court, the driver may operate the vehicle to and from
	school, to school-sponsored activities, and to employment.
	HI ST § 281-1; HI ST § 281-78; HI ST § 281-101.5.
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal	
Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes – third-party liability for damages caused by intoxica-
(Yes/No):	tion of persons under age 21.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	Yes Ono v. Applegate, 612 P. 2d 533 (Hawaii 1980);
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	<i>Reyes v. Kuboyama</i> , 870 P.2d 1281 (Hawaii 1994).
Common Law Rule by Action of the	
Highest Court of Record in the State	
(Case Citation):	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	No Johnston v. KFC Nat. Mgmt. Co., 788 P. 2d 159
_	(Haw. 1990); Faulk v. Suzuki Motor Co., Ltd., 851 P. 2d
	332 (Hawaii App. 1993).
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Under HI ST § 712-1250.5, it is a misdemeanor to promote intoxicating
	liquor to a minor. Sanctions include not more than 1 year in jail and /or a
	fine of not more than \$2,000.

<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated</u> <u>Patrons</u> : <sup>272</sup>	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or a fine of not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . HI ST § 281-78; HI ST § 281-102.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes – Suspension or Revocation.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute. A civil penalty of not more than \$2,000 may be assessed in lieu of a license suspen- sion or revocation. HI ST § 281-78; HI ST § 281-91.
<u>Criminal Actions Against Owners or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under</u> <u>the Minimum Legal Drinking Age</u> :	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . HI ST § 281-78; HI ST § 281-102.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes – Suspension or Revocation.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute. A civil penalty of not more than \$2,000 may be assessed in lieu of a license suspen- sion or revocation. HI ST § 281-78; HI ST § 281-91.
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	Yes Under HI ST § 281-78.5(a), licensees are prohibited from engaging in practices that promote the excessive consump- tion of alcoholic beverages. The various county commis- sions are required to promulgate regulations to prohibit

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>272</sup> The provision prohibiting sales or service of liquor to any intoxicated person has been struck. However this prohibition remains in effect for person who are known to the licensee to be addicted to the excessive use of intoxicating liquor. HI ST § 281-78.

	specific practices that promote excessive consumption. HI ST § 281-78.5(b).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> HI ST § 291-3.1(a).	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> HI ST § 291-3.1(b); HI ST § 291- 3.2(b); HI ST § 291-3.3.	

STATE	IDAHO	
General Reference:	Idaho Code (General Laws of Idaho Annotated)	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol. ID ST § 18-8004(1)(a).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{273}$ ID ST § 18-8004(1)(a). <u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> $-\geq .02$ but < .08. ID ST § 18-8004(1)(d).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug, intoxicating substance, any narcotic drug, or a combination of any drug and alco- hol. ID ST § 18-8004(1)(a); ID ST § 18-8004(7).	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes ID ST § 18-8002	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	No <sup>274</sup>	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> ID ST § 18-8002(1).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal Cases) See State v. Curtis 680 P.2d 1383 (Idaho App. 1984).	
Other Information:	Under ID ST § 18-8002(6)(b), a law enforcement officer may order a "qualified person" to withdraw blood from a driver for evidential purposes in cases where there is prob- able cause to believe that such driver has committed a DWI aggravated or homicide offense. <b>Comment</b> : This provision appears to allow law enforcement officers to obtain a blood sample via force. <i>See State v. Diaz</i> , 160 P.3d 739 (Idaho 2007); <i>State v. Worthington</i> , 65 P.3d 211 (Idaho App. 2002).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> ID ST § 18-8002(1); ID ST § 18-8004.	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> ID ST § 18-8002(1); ID ST § 18-8004.	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>273</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 cubic centimeters of blood, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath or grams of alcohol per 67 milliliters of urine. ID ST § 18-8004(4).
 <sup>274</sup> The police need only "reasonable grounds" of a DWI offense before the implied consent law is applicable. ID ST § 18-8002(1).

Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes (Alcohol Evaluation Required)	
(Yes/No):	ID ST § 18-8004A; ID ST § 18-8005(9).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a		
Chemical Test:		
<u>Chemical rest</u> .		
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	N/A	
÷		
<u>Test</u> :		
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u>		
Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	No However, there is a civil penalty of \$250 for refusing	
	an evidentiary test. ID ST § 18-8002.	
Administrative Licensing Action	<b><u>First Refusal</u></b> – <b>Suspension for 1 year</b> ;	
(Susp/Rev):	Second refusal (within 10 years) – Suspension for 2 years.	
	ID ST § 18-8002(3)(d), (4)(b), (4)(c).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a		
<u>DWI Offense</u> :		
<u> </u>		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> (Misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>6 months</b>	
imprisonment i me.	and/or not more than \$1,000;	
	First offense (BAC $\geq 0.20$ ) (Misdemeanor) – Not less than	
	<b>10 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and may be fined not more	
	than <b>\$2,000</b> ;	
	Second offense (within 10 years) (Misdemeanor) – Not less	
	than 10 days or more than 1 year and may be fined not	
	more than <b>\$2,000</b> ;	
	Second or subsequent offense (BAC $\geq$ 0.20) (within 5 years	
	of a previous 0.20) (Felony) – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or	
	more than <b>5 years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$5,000</b> ;	
	Third and subsequent offense (within 10 years) (Felony) –	
	Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> and may be	
	fined not more than \$5,000.	
	ID ST § 18-8004C; ID ST § 18-8005.	
	1D 51 § 10-000+C, 1D 51 § 10-0005.	
	Aggravated DWI offense (bodily harm or disfigurement)	
	(Felony) – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>15 years</b> and	
	may be fined not more than <b>\$5,000</b> .	
	ID ST § 18-8006.	
	<b>Child Endangerment</b> : It is an offense for a person >18	
	years old to operate a motor vehicle in violation of the	
	drunk-driving laws while transporting a "minor."	
	<u>No injury/death</u> (misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>6 months</b>	
	and may be fined not more than \$1000;	
	Injury or death (felony) – Not more than 10 years (unless a	
<u> </u>		

	more severe penalty is otherwise prescribed by law) ID ST § 18-113; ID ST § 18-1501(3).
	<b>Persons Under 21 Years Old (&lt; .08)</b> (Misdemeanor): First offense - A fine of not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ;
	Second offense - Not less than 5 days or more than 30 days and not less than \$500 or more than \$2,000;
	Third and subsequent offense – Not less than <b>10 days</b> or
	more than <b>6 months</b> and not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$2,000</b> .
	ID ST § 18-8004A.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	<u>First offense (BAC <math>\geq</math> 0.20)</u> – <b>10 days</b> (must serve 48 consecutive hours);
	<u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>5 days</b> (the first 48 hours must be consecutive); <sup>275</sup>
	Second or subsequent offense (BAC $\ge 0.20$ ) – <b>30 days</b> ;
	<u>Third and subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) $-$ <b>10 days</b> (the first 48 hours must be consecutive).
	ID ST § 18-8004C; ID ST § 18-8005.
	Aggravated DWI offense (is bodily harm/disfigurement) –
	<b>30 days</b> (must serve 48 consecutive hours)
	ID ST § 18-8006.
	Persons Under 21 Years Old (< .08) –
	<u>Second offense</u> – 5 days; <u>Third and subsequent offense</u> – 10 days.
	ID ST § 18-8004A.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	N/A
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes I. Under ID ST § 19-5304, a person who has been con- victed of any criminal offense may be ordered to pay resti- tution to a victim.
	II. <b>Aggravated DWI offense</b> : A defendant shall be ordered to pay restitution to a victim. ID ST § 18-8006.
	III. Victim's compensation fund: A defendant shall be
	assessed a special fine (not less than \$50 for any felony, and not less than \$25 for any misdemeanor) that is paid into
	the crime victim's compensation fund. ID ST § 72-1025.
Other:	<b>Electronic Monitoring</b> . The court may require the defendant to use an "electronic monitoring" device to record
	his/her movements while he/she is on probation to insure
	compliance with curfew hours, driving privilege restric- tions, or home confinement requirements. ID ST § 18-
	8008(3).

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{1}{275}$  The court may assign an offender to a work detail program within the custody of the county sheriff during the period of incarceration. \$18-8005(4)(a)

Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes ≥ .08 (BAC/BrAC/UrAC) or under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or an intoxicating substance: <u>First violation</u> – suspension 90 days (30 days mand fol- lowed by 60 days restricted driving privileges); <u>Second or subsequent violation</u> (within 5 years) – Suspen- sion 1 year (mand). ID ST § 18-8002A(2)(d).	
Other:	Under ID ST § 49-326(1)(a), (5), a person's license may be suspended for not more than 1 year if he/she has "commit- ted" an offense that usually requires license revocation (e.g., vehicle homicide). <sup>276</sup> Such action may be taken <u>with- out</u> a preliminary hearing.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense – Not less than 30 days or more than 150days;First offense (BAC $\geq 0.20$ ) – 1 year after release from confinement;Second offense – 1 year after release from confinement;Second of subsequent offense (BAC $\geq 0.20$ ) (within 10years of 0.20) – Not less than 1 year or more than 5 yearsafter release from confinement;Third and subsequent offense – Not less than 1 year ormore than 5 years after release from confinement;ID ST § 18-8004C; ID ST § 18-8005.Aggravated DWI offense – Not less than 1 year or morethan 5 years after release from confinement;ID ST § 18-8004C; ID ST § 18-8005.Aggravated DWI offense – Not less than 1 year or morethan 5 years after release from confinement;ID ST § 18-8006(1)(d).Persons Under 21 Years Old (< .08):	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	ID ST § 18-8004A. <u>First offense</u> – <b>30 days</b> ; <sup>277</sup> <u>First offense (BAC <math>\ge</math> 0.20)</u> – <b>1 year</b> after release from con- finement;	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>276</sup> These provisions do not apply to DWI offense convictions since such convictions result in license suspension <u>not</u> revocation.
 <sup>277</sup> After the 30-day period, the license must be suspended by the court for at least 60 additional days but not more than 150 days. However, the defendant may be issued a restricted license for employment/ family needs during this 60 to 150-day period. ID ST § 18-8005(l)(d).

	Second offense – 1 year after release from confinement; Second or subsequent offense (BAC $\geq 0.20$ ) (within 10 years of a previous $0.20$ ) – 1 year after release from confinement; Third and subsequent offense – 1 year after release from confinement. ID ST § 18-8004C; ID ST § 18-8005.Aggravated DWI offense – 1 year after release from confinement. ID ST § 18-8006(1)(d).
	Persons Under 21 Years Old (< .08): <u>First offense</u> – 90 days; <u>Second offense</u> – 1 year; <u>Third and subsequent offense</u> – 1 year ID ST § 18-8004A.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	
Alcohol Treatment:	A DWI offender may be required to participate in an alco- hol treatment program by the court. ID ST § 18-8004A; ID ST § 18-8005(12).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	N/A
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<ul> <li>Surcharge: A mandatory \$15 surcharge is added to all fines. Funds collected from this surcharge are deposited into a special account which is used either (1) to purchase ignition interlock or electronic monitoring devices or (2) for misdemeanor drunk- driving offense probation programs. ID ST § 18-8010.</li> <li>Labor on Public Works: An offender may be required to perform labor on federal, state or other governmental works. ID ST § 20-617.</li> </ul>
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permissive
Conditions of Use:	For most drunk-driving offenses, a defendant may be re- quired to operate a motor vehicle equipped with an ignition interlock device after any licensing action. The court shall require use of this device for a period of time not in excess of the defendant's probation period. ID ST § 18-8004A(2)(d), (3)(e); ID ST § 18-8004C(2)(e); ID ST § 18-8005(4)(f), (5)(e); ID ST § 18-8008.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	<u> </u>

Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Prohibited</b> <i>State v. Henderson</i> , 756 P.2d 1057 (Idaho 1988)(finding that sobriety checkpoints were not constitutional absent reasonable suspicion of criminal activity).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Vehicular Manslaughter. ID ST § 18-111; ID ST § 18- 4006(3)(b).
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>15 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$15,000</b> . ID ST § 18-4007(3)(b).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> (by the department) or <b>suspension</b> (by the court). ID ST § 18-4007(3)(e); 49-325(1)(a)
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>1 year revocation</b> ID ST § 49-325; ID ST § 49-326(5). <b>Court Suspension</b> In addition, an offender's license "may be suspended for a time determined by the court." ID ST § 18-4007(3)(b).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	The terms appear to be mandatory.
Other:	<b>Note</b> : A temporary restricted license cannot be issued following revocations based on vehicle <u>manslaughter</u> . ID ST § 49-325(2).
	Death of a Parent – If a parent of a minor was fatally in- jured, the offender may be required to pay child support until the minor reaches 18 years old. ID ST § 18-4007(3)(d).
<u>DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor</u> <u>Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's</u> <u>Licenses (CDL):</u>	I. A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate- rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person (1) has a BAC/BrAC/Alcohol Concentration in a "Bodily Substance" $\geq .04$ , (2) is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance (not all drugs) or (3) refuses to submit to a chem- ical test for an alcohol concentration (not drugs). For either (1) a subsequent violation or (2) a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "dis- qualification" is for life (mand).
	II. A person who operates a CMV with an alcohol concentration $\geq .04$ but $< .08$ or while under the influence of alcohol/any drug/intoxicating substances commits a DWI offense and is subject to same criminal sanctions as other DWI offenders.

	<ul> <li>III. Under separate provisions, a person who operates a CMV with an alcohol concentration ≥ .08 or while under the influence of alcohol/any drug/intoxicating substances commits a DWI offense and is subject to same criminal sanctions as other DWI offenders.</li> <li>IV. For II or III, the administrative (licensing) sanctions for a first DWI offense do not apply. However, they are applicable for subsequent ones.</li> <li>V. In addition, a CMV operator who has any "detectable" amount of alcohol in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours.</li> <li>ID ST § 49-335; ID ST § 18-8002(3)(a); ID ST § 18-8004(1)(b), (1)(c); ID ST § 18-8005.</li> </ul>	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense: 278		
Sanction:		
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense – Misdemeanor – Not less than 2 days or more than 6 months and may be fined not more than \$1,000; Second offense – Misdemeanor (within 5 years) – Not less than 20 days or more than 1 year and may be fined not more than \$1,000. Third and subsequent offenses – Misdemeanor (within 5 years) – Not less than 30 days or more than 1 year and may be fined not more than \$3,000. 	
Mandatory Minimum Term of		
Imprisonment/Fine:		
Length of Term of License		
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension ID ST § 18-8001.	
Withdrawal Action:	First offense (misdemeanor) – An additional 6 months;Second offense (within 5 years) – An additional 1 year;Third and subsequent offenses (within 10 years) – An additional 2 years.ID ST § 18-8001.	
Mandatory Term of License	First offense – None, <sup>279</sup>	

 $<sup>^{278}</sup>$  If a person is convicted of an alcohol driving offense and such person had no driving privileges at the time of arrest, the penalties imposed under ID ST § 18-8001 are in addition to any penalties imposed for an alcohol driving offense conviction. ID ST § 18-8001(7). <sup>279</sup> Restricted licenses are available for employment or education reasons or family health needs. ID ST § 18-8001.

Withdrawal Action:	Second offense(within 5years) - 30 days;Third and subsequent offenses(within 10 years) - 90 days.ID ST § 18-8001.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes ID ST § 49-1314.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> ID ST § 23-312; ID ST § 23-603; ID ST § 23-604; ID ST § 23-615(1); ID ST § 23-1401(2).	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> ID ST § 23-949. There is an employment exemption for persons who are at least 19 years old, along with an exemption for the home consumption of beer and wine. ID ST § 23-949; ID ST § 23-1013; ID ST § 23-1023; ID ST § 23-1334.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes This law limits liability to situations where the pa- tron/guest was obviously intoxicated or intoxicated and un- der the legal drinking age. ID ST § 23-808(3).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	Alegria v. Payonk, 619 P.2d 135 (Idaho 1980) provoked the passage of ID ST § 23-808 in 1986.	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes ID ST § 23-808.	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person may be found guilty of encouraging violations if he/she encourages, aids or causes a juvenile to come within the jurisdiction of the juvenile court. Encouraging violations are misdemeanors, punishable by not more than 6	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>280</sup> After the mandatory suspension period, a person is eligible for a restricted license for employment or education or family health needs. ID ST § 18-8001(4)(c), (5)(c).

	months and/or not more than \$1,000. However, a person may benefit from a suspended imposition of sentence if he/she complies with all conditions set by the court. ID ST § 18-113; ID ST § 20-526.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> . ID ST § 18-113; ID ST § 23-312; ID ST § 23-601; ID ST § 23-605; ID ST § 23-615(2), (3).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	I. State liquor dispensary employees (pkg. sales) – Not less than <b>3 months</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; ID ST § 23-312; ID ST § 23-601.	
	<ul> <li>II. State authorized licensees (beer, wine and liquor by the drink) – Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000.</li> <li>ID ST § 18-113; ID ST § 23-605; ID ST § 23-615(2), (3).</li> </ul>	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<ul> <li>Yes</li> <li>Suspension or Revocation</li> <li>I. State authorized licensees (beer, wine and liquor by the drink) – Suspension or Revocation.</li> <li>ID ST § 23-933; ID ST § 23-1037; ID ST § 23-1331.</li> <li>II. The court must include in its judgment of a licensee who is convicted of a violation of the alcoholic beverage control code, Title 23, a forfeiture of the alcoholic beverage li-</li> </ul>	
	cense or permit. ID ST § 23-608.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	For revocations for all licensees, a suspension of not more than 6 months. ID ST § 23-1037(1). <sup>281</sup>	
<u>Criminal Actions Against Owners or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under</u> <u>the Minimum Legal Drinking Age</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	I. State liquor dispensary employees (pkg. sales) – Mis-	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>281</sup> As an alternative to license suspension action, a licensee may be allowed to pay a monetary payment not to exceed \$5,000. ID ST § 23-933(2); ID ST § 23-1037(2); ID ST § 23-1331(2).

	demeanor.	
	ID ST § 23-312; ID ST § 23-601.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<ul> <li>II. State authorized licensees (beer, wine and liquor by the drink) –</li> <li><u>First offense</u> – Misdemeanor;</li> <li><u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – felony.</li> <li>ID ST § 18-112; ID ST § 18-113; ID ST § 23-603; ID ST § 23-615(1).</li> <li>I. State liquor dispensary employees (pkg. sales) – Not less than 3 months or more than 1 year and/or not less than</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>\$300 or more than \$1,000;</li> <li>II. State authorized licensees (beer, wine and liquor by the drink) –</li> <li><u>First offense</u> – Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$300;</li> <li><u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – Not more than 5 years</li> </ul>	
	and/or not more than \$50,000.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<ul> <li>I. State authorized licensees (beer, wine and liquor by the drink) – Suspension or Revocation.<sup>282</sup></li> <li>ID ST § 23-603;<sup>283</sup> ID ST § 23-933; ID ST § 23-1037; ID ST § 23-1331.</li> <li>II. The court must include in its judgment of a licensee who is convicted of a violation of the alcoholic beverage control code, Title 23, a forfeiture of the alcoholic beverage license or permit. ID ST § 23-608.</li> </ul>	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	For revocations for all licensees, not more than 6 months. ID ST § 23-1037. For retail sale of alcoholic beverages (beer, wine or liquor by the drink), a suspension of not more than 6 months. ID ST § 23-603.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> ID ST § 23-505; ID ST § 23-1333	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>282</sup> As an alternative to license suspension action, a licensee may be allowed to pay a monetary payment not to exceed \$5,000. ID ST § 23-933(2); ID ST § 23-1037(2); ID ST § 23-1331(2).
 <sup>283</sup> Under ID ST § 23-603, the licensee is also subject to an administrative fine. The law establishes no limits for this fine.

#### IDAHO

Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes ID ST § 23-505	
--------------------------------	--------------------	--

STATE	ILLINOIS
General Reference:	West's Smith-Hurd Illinois Compiled Statutes Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol. 625 ILCS $5/11-501(a)(2)$ . $\geq .08^{284}$ or any amount of cannabis, controlled substance or
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	intoxicating compound (under the Use of Intoxicating
	Compounds $Act^{285}$ ) or methamphetamine. 625 ILCS 5/11-
	501(a)(1), (6).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08 \ 625 \ \text{ILCS } 5/11-501.2(b)(3).$
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug an intoxicating compound
	or a combination of any drug, intoxicating compound and
	alcohol. 625 ILCS 5/11-501(a)(3), (4), (5).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>286</sup> 625 ILCS 5/11-501.5(a).
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> 625 ILCS 5/11-501.1
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>287</sup> 625 ILCS 5/11-501.1.
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 625 ILCS 5/11-501.1(a).
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases)
Admitted into Evidence:	625 ILCS 5/11-501.2(c)(1).
Other Information:	A blood sample may be taken without consent or by force for a DUI of-
	fense (injury or non-injury related) as long as police have probable cause
	of such offense. People v. Yant, 570 N.E.2d 3 (Ill.App. 2 Dist. 1991).
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for	
Alcohol Concentration Which Are	
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	Yes 625 ILCS 5/11-501.1; 625 ILCS 5/11-501.8.
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> 625 ILCS 5/11-501.1; 625 ILCS 5/11-501.8.
Other:	None
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No <sup>288</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>284</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. 625 ILCS 5/11-501.2(a)(5); 625 ILCS 5/11-501.8(b)(v). <sup>285</sup> For a list of "intoxicating compounds," *see* 720 ILCS 690/1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>286</sup> A law enforcement office may use a PBT to determine whether probable cause exists to arrest for committing a DUI offense. The state may not use as evidence the results of a PBT in its case-in-chief in a criminal trial, but may use the results in any administrative or criminal hearing to determine probable cause in a DUI offense. 625 ILCS 5/11-501.5; People v. Davis, 695 N.E.2d 1363 (III.App.

<sup>3</sup> Dist. 1998). <sup>287</sup> **Persons Under 21 Years Old**: Under a separate zero tolerance law, a law enforcement officer may request that a person who is under 21 years old submit to a chemical test of either his/her blood, breath or urine for alcohol concentration if there is "probable cause to believe" that such person has consumed any amount of alcohol. 625 ILCS 5/11-501.8(a).

Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No <sup>289</sup>	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes Alcohol or drug evaluation (screening required) with	
(Yes/No):	appropriate treatment. 625 ILCS 5/11-501.01.	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a		
Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u>		
$\underline{\text{Test}}$	N	
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Refusal to Take Implied Consent		
Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	First refusal – Suspension for 12 months. A judicial driv-	
(Susp/Rev):	ing permit is available after 30 days of the suspension.	
	Also, restricted driving privileges are available.	
	625 ILCS 5/6-206; 625 ILCS 5/6-208.1(a)(1); 625 ILCS	
	5/11-501.1	
	Subsequent refusals (within 5 years) – Suspension for 3	
	years. 625 ILCS 5/6-206; 625 ILCS 5/6-208.1; 625 ILCS 5/11-	
	501.1.	
Other:	Injury/Death Related Implied Consent Law. Under	
	another separate and independent implied consent law,	
	(625 ILCS 5/11-501.6) if a law enforcement officer has	
	arrested a driver for any moving violation under the ve-	
	hicle code and the driver has been involved in an accident	
	that has resulted in either an injury or a fatality, the officer	
	may request that the person submit to a chemical test of	
	the blood, breath or urine for the purpose of determining	
	either the alcohol or drug content in such person's blood.	
	If a driver refuses to submit to such a test, his/her driving	
	privileges are suspended as follows:	
	<u>First Refusal</u> – 12 months;	
	Refusal where the driver has had a previous license sus-	
	pension for DWI offense conviction or refusal/admin. per	
	<u>se action</u> $-3$ years.	
	These suspensions, however, are not mandatory in that a	
	driver may request a hearing on the legality of the suspen-	
	sion. If the driver meets his burden of proof, the court can	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>288</sup> Deferred judgment is allowed only by statute for certain offenses against the Cannabis Controlled Act and the Controlled Sub-stances Act 720 ILCS 550/10; 720 ILCS 570/410. Court supervision, a disposition allowed for first time DUI offenders is not deferred judgment in the adjudication of guilt either by finding or plea is required before the sentence is entered. <sup>289</sup> A defendant cannot be placed on supervision if that person has been convicted of DWI. pleaded guilt

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>289</sup> A defendant cannot be placed on supervision if that person has been convicted of DWI, pleaded guilty to or stipulated-facts supporting the conviction of a DWI offense charge, or received supervision for a prior DWI offense. 730 ILCS 5/5-6-l(d).

Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	rescind the suspension. Additionally, the Secretary of State may modify the suspension order or issue a restricted license for employment, educational or medical purposes. . 625 ILCS 5/6-208.1; 625 ILCS 5/11-501.6. A person subject to this implied consent law is still subject to the provisions of 625 ILCS 5/11-501.1.	
Criminal Sanctions: Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense (Class A misdemeanor) – Up to 1 year and \$2,500;Second offense – Not less than 5 days <sup>290</sup> and up to 1 year and \$2,500;Third offense <sup>291</sup> (Class 2 felony) – Probationable, or not less than 3 years or more than 7 years and not s <sup>292</sup> and not more than \$25,000;Fourth offense: (Class 2 felony) (non probationable of- fense) – Not less than 3 years or more than 7 years and not more than \$25,000;Fifth offense (Class 1 felony) (non probationable offense) – Not less than 4 years or more than 15 years and not more than \$25,000;Sixth or subsequent offense (Class X felony) (non proba- tionable offense) – Not less than 6 years or more than 30 years and not more than \$25,000.625 ILCS 5/11-501(d); 730 ILCS 5/5-8-1(a); 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1.	
	Transporting child < 16 years old: <u>First offense</u> – "Subject to" 6 months imprisonment and a mandatory additional \$1,000 and 25 days community service; <u>Third of subsequent offense</u> – mandatory \$25,000 and 25 days community service benefitting children in addition to any other sanction. 625 ILCS 5/11-501(c)(3), (d)(2)(C), (d)(2)(D), (d)(2)(E).	

<sup>290</sup> The law provides that the sentence can be *either* 5 days of imprisonment *or* 240 hours of community service in addition to any other sanction. 625 ILCS 5/11-501(c)(2). <sup>291</sup> This offense is termed "aggravated driving under the influence" and includes: (1) a third or subsequent DUI violation; (2) a viola-

<sup>292</sup> If probation or conditional discharge is ordered, the person must serve a mandatory 90 days and a minimum of 2,500. 625 ILCS 5/11-501(d).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>291</sup> This offense is termed "aggravated driving under the influence" and includes: (1) a third or subsequent DUI violation; (2) a violation while driving a school bus with persons  $\leq$  18 years; (3) a DUI violation causing an accident that resulted in great bodily harm or permanent disability or disfigurement to another (violation was the proximate cause of the injuries); (4) a second DUI violation where there has been a prior DUI related reckless homicide or great bodily harm or permanent disability or disfigurement; (5) a DUI violation (at any speed) in a school zone when the 20mph limit was in effect and such person was involved in an accident causing great bodily harm or permanent disability or disfigurement; (6) a DUI offense resulting in bodily harm to the child < 16 years of age; (7) a second DUI violation while transporting a child < 16 years of age. Any of these violations is a Class 4 felony. 625 ILCS 5/11-501(d).

	<b>BAC</b> ≥ 0.16:
	First offense – Less than 1 year and not less than $$500$
	(mand) or more than \$2,500;
	Second offense (Class 2 felony) –Not less than 2 days
	(mand) and more than 7 years and not less than \$1,250
	(mand) or more than <b>\$25,000</b> ;
	Third offense (Class 2 felony) – Mandatory <b>90 days</b> and
	mandatory <b>\$2,500</b> ;
	Fourth or subsequent offense (Class 1, 2 or X felony) –
	Mandatory <b>\$5,000</b> and no probation or conditional dis-
	charge.
	625 ILCS 5/11-501(c), (d).
	Creat hadily have as normanant disability or disfi
	Great bodily harm or permanent disability or disfi-
	gurement (Class 4 felony) – Probationable or not less than
	1 year or more than 12 years and not more than \$25,000.
	625 ILCS 5/11-501(d).
	Bodily harm to a child < 16 years old:
	First offense (Class 4 felony) – Mandatory <b>\$2,500</b> and 25
	days community service benefitting children and not less
	than 3 years or more than 7 years;
	625 ILCS 5/11-501(d).
	020 HECO 5/11 501(d).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The terms above are mandatory if listed as such.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	Mandatory terms of community service are listed where
	required.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes. Paid directly by a defendant to a victim. 730 ICLS
	5/5-5-3; 730 ILCS 5/5-5-6.
	There is also a victim's compensation fund. 740 ILCS 45/1
	et seq.
Other:	Visitation program: DWI offenders who are under 21
	years old may be ordered by the court to participate in a
	special visitation program. An offender may be required to
	visit: (1) a rehabilitation facility that cares for DWI vic-
	tims, (2) a facility that cares for persons who are terminal-
	ly ill from alcoholism, or (3) a morgue to observe persons
	who have been killed as a result of DWI related accidents.
	625 ILCS 5/11-501.7
	Attendance to victim impact panel: A court may require
	an offender to attend a victim impact panel. 625 ILCS
	5/11-501.01(b).
	Additional Fees/Costs/Surcharges:
	(1) A fee of up to <b>\$30</b> may be assessed against DWI of-
	fenders for court costs, or <b>\$100</b> for a second or subsequent
	offender. 55 ILCS 5/5-1101(a), (d). (2) A surcharge of <b>\$4</b> for every \$40 (or fraction thereof) of

	<ul> <li>the fine imposed. 625 ILCS 5/16-104a.</li> <li>(3) An additional penalty of \$10 for each \$40 (or fraction thereof) of the fine imposed. 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1(c).</li> <li>(4) An additional \$100 fee (specific to DUI offenses to be deposited into the Trauma Center Fund). 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1(c-5).</li> <li>(5) An additional \$5 (specific to DUI offenses to be deposited into the Spinal Cord Injury fund). 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1(c-7).</li> <li>(6) A DUI analysis fee of \$150. 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1.9.</li> <li>(7) Special restitution to the Illinois Secretary of State for any costs incurred by that official's office in obtaining evidence associated with the DUI offense. 625 ILCS 5/2-115(b).</li> <li>(8) A \$500 penalty (first offender) or \$1,000 (subsequent offender) to be distributed to the law enforcement agency making the arrest and the State Treasurer. 625 ILCS 5/11-5-501.01(f).</li> </ul>	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	<b>Yes</b> $- \ge .08$ (BAC/BrAC) or any amount of cannabis, controlled substance or intoxicating compound.	
Administrative Per Se Law:	First action – 6 months suspension (30 days mand);Subsequent action – 1 year suspension (mand).625 ILCS 5/6-206(a)(31); 625 ILCS 5/6-208.1(a); 625ILCS 5/11-501.1.Persons Under 21 Years Old: Under a separate admin per se law, persons under 21 years old who have BAC/BrAC > .00 but < .08 <sup>294</sup> are subject to the following sanctions:First violation – suspension 3 months (restricted driving privileges may be issued after 30 days); Subsequent violation– suspension 1 year (mand) 625 ILCS 5/6-208.2; 625 ILCS 5/11-501.1; 625 ILCS 5/11-501.8.	
Other:	<b>School Bus Operators</b> : A person's privilege to operate a school bus is canceled administratively for 3 years if, while operating such a vehicle, that person refuses to submit to a chemical test for alcohol concentration following a traffic offense arrest or submits to such a test which indicates he/she was driving with an alcohol concentration > .00. <sup>295</sup>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>293</sup> A person is not eligible for a "restricted driving permit" under 625 ILCS 5/6-205(c). 625 ILCS 5/6-208.1(g).
<sup>294</sup> A person under 21 years old is not subject to these licensing sanctions if the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed either as part of a religious service or as per prescribed medication. 625 ILCS 5/11-501.8(e)
<sup>295</sup> This sanction does not apply if the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration was the result of alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration the alcohol concentration the alcohol concentration the alcohol consumed as part of a religious service or certain the alcohol concentration the alcohol concentratin the alcohol concentration the alcohol conce

emony or for medical purposes. 625 ILCS 5/6-106.1a(e).

#### **ILLINOIS**

	625 ILCS 5/6-106.1a; 625 ILCS 5/6-106.1b.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation           625 ILCS 5/6-205; 625 ILCS 5/6-208; 625 ILCS 5/11-501.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense       - 1 year;         Second offense       (within 20 years) - 5 years;         Third offense       - 10 years;         Subsequent offense       - Permanent. <sup>296</sup> 625 ILCS 5/6-208(b).       - 10 years
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	First offense – None (A hardship license may be issued)         625 ILCS 5/6-205(c);         Second or subsequent offense – l year;         Third offense – l year;         Subsequent offense – l year.         625 ILCS 5/6-205(c)(6); 625 ILCS 5/6-208(b). <sup>297</sup>
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> 625 ILCS 5/11-501.01(a).
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes 625 ILCS 5/11-501.01(a).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Limited Impoundment:         Following a DWI arrest, a person's vehicle may be impounded for not more than 12 hours by law enforcement officers if such officers "reasonably believe" that the arrested person, upon release, will commit another DWI offense. 625 ILCS 5/4-203(e).         Second offense – Impoundment for 24 hours;         Third offense – Impoundment for 48 hours.         However, with the owner's consent, the vehicle may be released sooner to a person who is a competent driver.         625 ILCS 5/4-203(e-5).
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Seizure/Forfeiture (Not Mandatory): A vehicle is sub- ject to seizure and forfeiture under the following circums- tances: (1) if it is used with the knowledge and consent of the owner in a third or subsequent DWI offense; (2)the driver commits a DWI offense while suspended or re- voked due to a DUI; (3) the driver commits a violation of the implied consent law; (4) the driver is convicted of leaving the scene; or (5) the driver commits reckless ho-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>296</sup> A "person may not make application for a license" if he/she has been convicted of a fourth or subsequent offense. 625 ILCS 5/6-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>297</sup> A person <u>under 21 years old</u> who is convicted of a DWI offense must have his/her license revoked for a mandatory period of 1 year. After this l-year period, such offender may obtain a restricted driving permit for at least 1 additional year. The offender may apply for full reinstatement after the one year period of restricted privileges. 625 ILCS 5/6-205(d)(1).

Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released: Other: Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included	micide. 720 ILCS 5/36-1. If seized for committing a third or subsequent offense or for committing DWI while sus- pended or revoked as described above, based on a showing of "financial hardship", the vehicle will not be forfeited but its title must be transferred to either a spouse or other family member. 720 ILCS 5/36-1. The vehicle may be released sooner if permission is given to another person & that person possesses a valid opera- tor's license. 625 ILCS 5/4-203(e). Under 730 ILCS 5/5-6-1 and 730 ILCS 5/5-6-3.1, a DWI	
Elsewhere:	offender may be placed in a court-supervised diversion program. However, an offender cannot be placed in such a program if that person had a previous DWI conviction or been in such a diversion program within 5 years of the charged offense. As a supervision condition, he/she may be required to only operate motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices. This is not a diversion pro- gram. There must be a finding of guilt prior to the disposi- tion being entered.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	A first-offender shall be issued a monitoring device driving permit (MDDP) after the 30 <sup>th</sup> day of license suspension and must install an ignition interlock device within 14 days issuance of the MDDP. <sup>298</sup> Such person shall pay an administrative MDDP fee up to \$30 each month, installation fees and rental. There is a statutorily created indigent fund to assist those found indigent. 625 ILCS 5/6-206.1. Any second or subsequent offender shall be required to use an ignition interlock device. 625 ILCS 5/6-205; 625 ILCS 5/6-206.	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>People v. Bartley</i> , 486 N.E.2d 880 (Ill. 1985).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Aggravated DUI resulting in death. 625 ILCS 5/11-501(d)(1)(F).	
	023  ILCS  5/11-301(d)(1)(1)(1)	

 $<sup>^{298}</sup>$  A first offender may opt-out of the MDDP. A MDDP shall <u>not</u> be issued if the court finds: (1) the offender's license is otherwise invalid; (2) death or great bodily harm resulted from the arrest; (3) the offender has been previously convicted of reckless homicide or aggravated driving under the influence; or (4) the offender is < 18 years old. 625 ILCS 5/6-206.1.

Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Class 2 felony – Not less than 3 years or more than 14 years (for death of 1 person) or not less than 6 years or more than 28 years (for death of 2 or more persons) and not more than \$25,000. The offender is required to serve 85% of any term of imprisonment. The court may not sen- tence the offender to probation unless the court finds that "extraordinary circumstances" exist requiring probation. 625 ILCS 5/11-501(d)(2)(G); 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None
Administrative Licensing Action: Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> <sup>299</sup> 625 ILCS 5/6-205(a)(1).
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	First offense – 2 years;Second offense (within 20 years) – 5 years;Third offense – 10 years;Fourth and subsequent offense – Permanent.625 ILCS 5/6-208(b).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	First offense – None. Under 625 ILCS 5/6-205(c), a restricted license may be issued.Second or subsequent offense – 1 year.625 ILCS 5/6-205(c)(6); 625 ILCS 5/6-208(b).
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	First ViolationA person's privilege to operate a CMVis disqualified administratively for not less than 12 monthsif, while operating any vehicle, that person refuses tosubmit to a chemical test for alcohol or drugs under 625ILCS 5/11-501.1 or, while operating a CMV, and under625 ILCS 5/11-501.1, submits to such a test which indicates he/she was driving with an alcohol concentration >.04.Second or Subsequent Violation:The "disqualification" is for life (10 years mand); however, there is a mandatory lifetime disqualification if, afterthe driver's CDL has been reinstated after the 10 yearmandatory period, he/she commits another violation asnoted above. In addition, a CMV operator who has anyamount of alcohol or other drug(s) in their system must beplaced "out-of-service" for 24 hours.625 ILCS 5/1-115.3; 625 ILCS 5/6-515; 625 ILCS 5/6-517; 625 ILCS 5/1-501.1.
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>299</sup> A person convicted of "reckless homicide" is not eligible for a license until 24 months <u>after</u> release from imprisonment. 625 ILCS 5/6-103(15); 625 ILCS 5/6-208(b)(1).

Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<ul> <li>Driving on suspended/revoked license (because of DUI offense): (625 ILCS 5/6-303)</li> <li>First violation (Class A misdemeanor) – Not less than 10 days and up to 1 year and/or not more than \$2,500;</li> <li>Second violation (Class 4 felony) – Not less than 1 year or more than 3 years and not more than \$25,000;</li> <li>Third violation (Class 4 felony) – Not less than 30 days or more than 3 years and not more than \$25,000;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Fourth-Ninth violation (Class 4 felony) – Not less than</li> <li>180 days or more than 3 years and not more than \$25,000;</li> <li>Tenth-Fourteenth violation (Class 3 felony) – Not less than 2 years or more than 5 years and not more than</li> <li>\$25,000;</li> <li>Fifteenth or subsequent violation (Class 2 felony) – Not less than 3 years or more than 7 years and not more than</li> <li>\$25,000.</li> <li>625 ILCS 5/6-303; 730 ILCS 5/5-8-1(a); 730 ILCS 5/5-8-</li> <li>2.730 ILCS 5/5-0.1</li> </ul>
	3; 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1. Other Offenses: <b>MDDP Violations</b> (Class 4 felony) - Any person convicted of 625 ILCS 5/6-303 during a period of suspension imposed pursuant to Section 11-501.1 when the person was eligible for a MDDP shall serve a minimum term of imprisonment of <b>30 days</b> in addition to any other sanctions. 625 ILCS 5/6-303(c-3). Any person who has been issued a MDDP and who is convicted 625 ILCS 5/6-303 as a result of operating or being in actual physical control of a motor vehicle not equipped with an ignition interlock device at the time of the offense shall serve a minimum term of imprisonment of <b>30 days</b> in addition to any other sanction. 625 ILCS 5/6-303(c-4)
	<b>DUI offense while license is suspended/revoked (be- cause of DUI offense)</b> (Class 4 felony): Not les than <b>1</b> <b>year</b> or more than <b>3 years</b> and not more than <b>\$25,000</b> . 625 ILCS 5/11-501(d)(1)(G) 625 ILCS 5/11-501(d)(2), (3); 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Driving on suspended/revoked license (because of DUI offense): <u>First violation</u> – 10 consecutive days or 30 days community service; <u>Second violation</u> – 30 days or 300 hours community service;

	<u>Fourth-Ninth violation</u> – <b>180 days</b> ;	
	<u>Tenth-Fourteenth violation</u> $-2$ years;	
	<u>Fifteenth or subsequent violation</u> $-3$ years.	
	DUI offense while license is suspended/revoked (be- cause of DUI offense):	
	<u>First or second violation</u> – <b>10 days</b> or <b>480 hours</b> commu-	
	nity service;	
Length of Term of License		
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension or revocation	
Type of Electising Action	625 ILCS 5/6-303(b).	
Withdrawal Action:		
windrawar Action.	If the original charge is based on a suspension, the suspen- sion is extended an additional period of time equal to that of the original suspension. If the original charge is based on a revocation, the revocation is extended an additional	
	year. 625 ILCS 5/6-303(b).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The terms above are mandatory.	
Other:	Offender's motor vehicle is subject to seizure and forfei- ture. 625 ILCS 5/6-303(g).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes 55 ILCS 5/3-3013; 625 ILCS 5/11-501.6	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes (16 years old or older)	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> 235 ILCS 5/6-16; 235 ILCS 5/ 6-20.	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> There are exceptions for reasons of employment, by	
Possession/Consumption:	the order of a parent, for religious ceremonies or for home use. 235 ILCS 5/6-16; 235 ILCS 5/16-20.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		

Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 235 ILCS 5/6-21.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> Charles v. Seigfried, 651 N.E.2d 154 (Ill. 1995).
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	No person shall sell, give or deliver alcoholic liquor to another person under the age of 21. It is unlawful for any parent or guardian to knowingly permit his or her resi- dence to be used by an invitee of the parent's child or the guardian's ward, if the invitee is under the age of 21, in a manner that constitutes a violation. It is a violation to al- low a gathering of 2 or more persons at his or her resi- dence where those persons are under 21 and the person allowing the gathering knows alcohol is possessed or con- sumed by those under 21. Violation of this law is a class A misdemeanor, punishable by imprisonment for less than <b>1</b> <b>year</b> and/or a fine of not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$2,500</b> . Where the violation directly or indirectly causes great bodily harm or death to any person, it is a class 4 felony, punishable by not less than <b>1 year</b> and not more than <b>3 years</b> and not more than <b>\$25,000</b> . 235 ILCS 5/6-16(a-1), (c); 730 ILCS 5/5-8-1; 730 ILCS 5/5-9-1.
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor. 235 ILCS 5/6-16(a)
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	Less than 1 year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$2,500. 235 ILCS 5/6-16(a).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension/Revocation 235 ILCS 5/3-12 (state licenses); 235 ILCS 5/7-5 (local licenses). Mandatory revocation for a conviction for a "willful" vi- olation of the law. 235 ILCS 5/7-12

Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute. <sup>300, 301</sup>
Length of Term of License withdrawar.	Not specified in the statute.
Criminal Actions Against Owners or	
Employees of Establishments that Serve	
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of	
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under	
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor 235 ILCS 5/6-16(a)
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Less than <b>1 year</b> and/or not less than <b>\$500</b> (first offense)
	or not less than <b>\$2,000</b> (second or subsequent offense), or
	more than <b>\$2,500</b> . 235 ILCS 5/6-16(a).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of	
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic	
Beverages to Those Persons Under the	
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension/Revocation.
	235 ILCS 5/3-12 (state licenses); 235 ILCS 5/7-5 (local
	licenses).
	Mandatory revocation for a conviction for a "willful" vi-
	olation of the law. 235 ILCS 5/7-12.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute.
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	Yes 235 ILCS 5/6-28.
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open	
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)	
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in	
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes 625 ILCS 5/11-502.
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes 625 ILCS 5/11-502.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>300</sup> In lieu of revoking or suspending a state license, the commission may impose an administrative fine of up to \$500 for each violation; however, the maximum or total fine amount that may be imposed for all violations during any licensing period is \$20,000. In addition to revoking/suspending a local license, the licensee may be required to pay an administrative fine of \$1,000 for a first violation, \$1,500 for a second violation (within 12 months) and \$2,500 for a third or subsequent violation (within 12 months); however, the maximum or total fine amount that may be imposed during any licensing period is \$15,000. 235 ILCS 5/3-12; 235 ILCS 5/7-5. <sup>301</sup> If a license has been revoked, a new license shall not be granted for a period of 1 year. 235 ILCS 5/7-13.

STATE	INDIANA
General Reference:	Indiana Code Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Operating a vehicle while intoxicated (Class C Misdemeanor).Operating a vehicle while intoxicated and endangering a person (Class A Misdemeanor).IN ST § 9-30-5-2.
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08 \text{ but } < .15^{302} \text{ (Class C Misdemeanor).}$ IN ST § 9-30-5-1(a). $\geq .15 \text{ (Class A Misdemeanor).} \text{ IN ST § 9-30-5-1(b).}$ Any amount of a controlled substance <sup>303</sup> (Class C Misdemeanor). IN ST § 9-30-5-1(c). Persons Under 21 Years Old: $\geq .02 \text{ but } < .08 \text{ (Class C In-}$
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	fraction). IN ST § 9-30-5-8.5. $\geq$ .08. IN ST § 9-30-6-15(b)(2).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Persons Under 21 Years Old: $\geq$ .02. IN ST § 9-30-6-15(c). Operating a vehicle while intoxicated <sup>304</sup> (Class A Misdemeanor). IN ST § 9-30-5-2; IN ST § 9-13-2-86.
Other:	A BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .05 but < .08 is relevant evidence of in- toxication. IN ST § 9-13-2-151. A BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .08 is also prima facie evidence of intoxi- cation. IN ST § 9-13-2-131.
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Limited PBT for injury/death offenses. IN ST § 9-30-7-2; IN ST § 9-30-7-3.
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> IN ST § 9-30-6-2.
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> An actual arrest is not required. Nevertheless, a request for a test must still be based on probable cause. IN ST § 9-30-6-2.
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> IN ST § 9-30-6-2.
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) IN ST § 9-30-6-3(b).
Other Information:	I. A law enforcement officer may use reasonable force to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>302</sup> **Standards**: "Alcohol Concentration Equivalent" means grams of alcohol per either 100 milliliters of blood or 210 liters of breath.

IN ST § 9-30-5-1.  $^{303}$  **Exception**: It is a defense to this offense if it is shown that the defendant was using a controlled substance under a valid prescription. IN ST § 9-30-5-1(c).  $^{304}$  "Intoxicated" means under the influence of alcohol, a controlled substance, a drug other than alcohol or a controlled substance, a

substance which produces toxic vapors or nitrous oxide, or any combination of the above. IN ST § 9-13-2-86.

	<ul> <li>assist an individual authorized (by law) to take a bodily substance sample from a person who does not consent and resists the taking of such sample. This applies in cases where there is serious bodily injury or death of another. IN ST § 9-30-6-6(g), (h).</li> <li>II. In order to insure that offenders are &lt; .08 BAC/BrAC prior to pre-trial release, the law provides a chart to guide law enforcement officers on the number of hours a person should be held based on their BAC/BrAC. IN ST § 35-33-1-6.</li> </ul>
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>	
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>305</sup>
Urine:	Yes
Other:	Any other bodily substance
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes Mandatory for subsequent alcohol driving offenses. IN ST § 9-30-5-15.
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> Test:	
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	Class C Infraction – Up to \$500. Class A Infraction (if offender has 1 previous DWI con- viction) – Up to \$10,000. IN ST § 9-30-7-5(a); IN ST § 34-28-5-4.
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension – 1 year Suspension – 2 years (if offender has 1 previous DWI conviction). IN ST § 9-30-7-5(b).
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	Yes – Limited <sup>306</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>305</sup> The implied consent law requires a driver to submit one or more "chemical tests." The substances that may be tested are breath, blood, urine or any other bodily substance. IN ST § 9-30-6-1; IN ST § 9-30-6-6(a). <sup>306</sup> Under a separate implied consent law, a driver involved in a fatal or serious bodily injury accident <u>may</u> be asked by a law en-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>306</sup> Under a separate implied consent law, a driver involved in a fatal or serious bodily injury accident <u>may</u> be asked by a law enforcement officer to submit to a chemical test. A person does not have to submit to this test if offered but refusal is a Class C Infraction or Class A infraction (if one previous with a possible fine of up to \$500. The court <u>may</u> impose a license suspension for one 1 year. IN ST § 9-27-5-4(b); IN ST § 9-30-7-1 *et seq*.

Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>1-year suspension</b> . <sup>307</sup> May not be mandatory if there is a DWI conviction. IN ST § 9-30-6-9 (a). A driver's license may be reinstated if the DWI charges are dismissed. IN ST § 9-30-6-11 (a)(1).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>Intoxicated offense</b> (BAC ≥ .08 but < .15): <u>First offense</u> (Class C Misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>60</b> <b>days</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) (Class D Felony <sup>308</sup> ) – A fixed term between <b>6 months</b> and <b>3 years</b> (advisory sentence = 1½ years) and may be fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . IN ST § 9-30-5-1(a); IN ST § 9-30-5-3; IN ST § 35-50-2-7; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.	
	Endangerment Intoxicated offense (BAC $\geq$ .15): <u>First offense</u> (Class A Misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and may be fine not more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) or <u>passenger &lt; 18</u> <u>years old</u> (Class D Felony) – A fixed term between 6 months and 3 years (advisory sentence = 1½ years) and may be fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . IN ST § 9-30-5-1(b); IN ST § 9-30-5-2; IN ST § 35-50-2- 7; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.	
	Serious injury (BAC $\geq$ .08, with a schedule I or II controlled substance or while intoxicated): <u>First offense</u> (Class D felony) – A fixed term between 6 months and 3 years (advisory sentence = 1½ years) and may be fined not more than \$10,000; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) (Class C felony) – A fixed term of between 2 years and 8 years (advisory sen- tence = 4 years) and may be fined not more than \$10,000. IN ST § 9-30-5-4; IN ST § 35-50-2-6; IN ST § 35-50-2-7.	
	<b>Persons Under 21 Years Old</b> (BAC ≥ .02 but < .08) (Class C Infraction) – Up to <b>\$500</b> . IN ST § 9-30-5-8.5; IN ST § 34-28-5-4.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Third or subsequent offense – 6 months (with 48 hours consecutive). IN ST § 9-30-5-15(c); IN ST § 35-50-2-2(b)(R).	

 $<sup>^{307}</sup>$  This suspension is consecutive to any suspension for a DWI offense. However, if a court finds in the sentence order for a <u>DWI</u> <u>conviction</u> that it is in the best interest of society, it may terminate all or any part of this suspension. IN ST § 9-30-5-14 (b).  $^{308}$  A person convicted of a Class D felony may, at the court's discretion, be sentenced as if they had been convicted of a Class A misdemeanor (Jail: Not more than 1 year and possible fine of not more than \$5,000) provided that this was the person's first felony conviction. IN ST § 35-50-2-7.

Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	<u>First offense</u> : A person may be ordered to complete at least 180 hours of community service <u>or</u> be imprisoned for at least 5 days; <u>Second offense</u> : A person may be ordered to complete at least 360 hours of community service <u>or</u> be imprisoned for at least 10 days. IN ST § 9-30-5-15.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	<b>Yes</b> The court may order a defendant to pay direct compensa- tion to a victim. IN ST § 35-50-5-3. There is also a vic- tims' compensation fund. IN ST § 5-2-6.1-1 <i>et seq</i> .	
Other:	<ul> <li>Alcohol and Drug Countermeasures Fee: The clerk shall collect a fee of \$200 for a conviction of a DWI offense. IN ST § 33-37-5-10.</li> <li>Emergency Medical Services Fund: The court may order a defendant to make "restitution" of not more than \$1,000 to the emergency medical services fund for any needed services provided by emergency services personnel as a result of their actions. IN ST § 9-30-5-17.</li> <li>Victim Impact Program: A defendant may be ordered by the court to participate in programs with DWI offense victims. IN ST § 9-30-14-2.</li> <li>Visitation Program: A defendant may be required to visit emergency care facilities, coroner facilities or alcoholism treatment centers. IN ST § 9-30-14-3 (3).</li> <li>Court Costs: Under IN ST § 34-28-5-4, a person who commits a moving violation that is a Class C infraction may be required to pay various capped penalties in addition to court costs.</li> </ul>	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action: Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes <sup>309</sup> Based on BAC/BrAC prima facie evidence ≥ .08: Suspension up to 180 days or until the DWI charges have been disposed of, which ever occurs first. IN ST § 9-30-6-9 (c).         A person may be granted restricted driving privileges after 30 days. IN ST § 9-30-6-9 (g). Such privileges, however,	
	cannot be granted if the person has been convicted of a serious injury/death-related DWI offense or if he/she has been convicted of a previous DWI offense. IN ST § 9-24-15-6.5.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>309</sup> If a defendant makes a request for an early trial and one is not held within 90 days of the initial hearing, the court may order the driver's license to be reinstated. The reinstatement cannot take effect until 90 days after the initial hearing. IN ST § 9-30-6-18.

	1
	A person may also be issued a restricted license under IN ST § 9-30-5-11 <i>et seq.</i> , if he/she has not been convicted of a DWI offense. IN ST § 9-24-15-9. If DWI charges are dismissed or the defendant is found not guilty of the DWI offense, the court shall order the
	driver's license reinstated. IN ST § 9-30-6-11.
Other:	Under IN ST § 9-30-6-8, the court may suspend a license at the initial hearing if there is probable cause to believe that the person was driving while illegal per se or intox- icated. The initial hearing must be held within 10 days after the arrest. IN ST § 35-33-7-1(c).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension IN ST § 9-30-5-10.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<u>First offense</u> – At least <b>90 days</b> but not more than <b>2 years</b> ;
Years, etc.):	<u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years but more than 5 years from a first offense) – At least <b>180 days</b> but not more than <b>2 years</b> ; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) – At least <b>1</b> <b>year</b> but not more than <b>2 years</b> .
	<u>Injury-Related offense</u> (where a person has been operating a vehicle with a BAC $\geq$ .08, with a schedule I or II con- trolled substance or while intoxicated) – At least <b>2 years</b> but not more than <b>5 years</b> . IN ST § 9-30-5-10.
	Persons Under 21 Years Old (BAC $\geq$ .02 but < .08) – Not more than 1 year. IN ST § 9-30-5-8.5.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	First offense- 30 days (90 days) <sup>310</sup> ;Second or subsequent offense(within 10 years but morethan 5 years from a first offense) – 180 days; <sup>311</sup> Second or subsequent offense(within 5 years) – 1 year.IN ST § 9-30-5-10; IN ST § 9-30-5-11; IN ST § 9-30-5-12; IN ST § 9-30-6-9.
	<u>Injury-related offense</u> (where a person has been operating a vehicle with a BAC $\geq$ .08, with a schedule I or II con-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>310</sup> A probationary (restricted) license may be issued for 180 days. This restricted license does not take effect until a defendant's license has been suspended for 30 days under the admin. per se law. IN ST § 9-30-5-11; IN ST § 9-30-6-9. However, a first DWI offender who has refused to submit to a chemical test is not eligible for a probationary restricted license. Such a person is subject to a mandatory minimum license suspension of 90 days. IN ST § 9-30-5-12.

mandatory minimum license suspension of 90 days. IN ST § 9-30-5-12. <sup>311</sup> A probationary (restricted) license may be issued for that portion of the suspension period that exceeds the mandatory minimum period. IN ST § 9-30-5-10(c); IN ST § 9-30-5-12(c)(2).

	trolled substance or while intoxicated) – 2 years.	
	IN ST § 9-24-15-9; IN ST § 9-30-5-10; IN ST § 9-30-5-	
	12.	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes IN ST § 9-30-5-15; IN ST § 9-30-9-3; IN ST § 9-30-9-6.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes	
Vehicle Impoundment/Seizure:		
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	<b>Yes</b> Forfeiture of a motor vehicle <u>permitted</u> if driven by a per- son who has at least two prior DUIs within five years if that person commits additional DUI or driving with a sus- pended license. IN ST § 34-24-1-1(a)(15).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	Vehicle is not the subject of seizure if such vehicle is op- erated by a person who is not the owner or the spouse of the person who owns the vehicle. IN ST § 34-24-1-1(e).	
Other:	Vehicle registration "certificates" shall be sus- pended/revoked for <b>6 months</b> if the defendant was con- victed of a felony while using a motor vehicle (e.g., subse- quent DWI offenses). IN ST § 9-30-4-6(b)(3), (d)(1).	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<ul> <li>"Home detention" may be ordered in lieu of the minimum imprisonment sentence for certain offenses including DWI. "Home detention" using electronic monitoring also may be ordered as a part of probationary work release program. IN ST § 35-38-1-21; I NST § 35-38-2-2.3(a)(15); IN ST § 35-38-2.5-1, <i>et seq.</i>; IN ST § 35-38-3-5.</li> <li>Persons Under 21 Years Old: Under separate provisions of the law, the court may suspend the driving privileges of a person under 21 years if he/she has any "alcohol present in a hedibe substance" N ST § 5.24.12</li> </ul>	
	in a bodily substance." IN ST § 9-24-18-12.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Both	
Conditions of Use:	I. As a condition for obtaining probationary driving privi- leges, the court may require a first offender to use only vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices for a term established by the court with the limitation that such term cannot exceed the maximum prison sentence. II. A person convicted of an illegal per se/intoxicated offense (within 5 years or within 10 years but more than 5 years of a previous conviction) may be granted probationary (re- stricted) driving privileges on the condition that the person only operate vehicles equipped with ignition interlock de- vices. IN ST § 9-30-5-10(c), (d).	

Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted State v. Gerschoffer, 763 N.E.2d 960 (Ind. 2002).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes $BAC \ge .08$ , with a schedule I or II controlled substanceor while intoxicated:First offense – Class C felony;Subsequent offense(within 5 years) – Class B felony.IN ST § 9-30-5-5.	
	BAC $\geq$ .15 or with a schedule I or II controlled sub- stance – Class B felony. IN ST § 9-30-5-5.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>Class B felony</u> – A fixed term of between 6 years and 20 years (advisory sentence of 10 years) and may be fined not more than \$10,000; IN ST § 35-50-2-5. <u>Class C felony</u> – A fixed term of between 2 years and 8 years (advisory sentence of 4 years) and may be fined not more than \$10,000. IN ST § 35-50-2-6.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	There are mandatory imprisonment sanctions in cases in- volving offenders who have prior felony convictions. <i>See</i> IN ST § 35-50-2-2 for details.	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>BAC ≥ .08, with a schedule I or II controlled substance</b> <b>or while intoxicated</b> : <b>Suspension</b> . IN ST § 9-30-5-10.	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	At least <b>2 years</b> but not more than <b>5 years</b> . IN ST § 9-30- 5-10(e).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	This appears to be mandatory.	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate- rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person (1) has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemi- cal test for an alcohol concentration. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for life. However, for a second violation only, the CDL may be reinstated after 10 years. It is a Class C Infraction for a person to operate a CMV with a BAC $\geq$ .04 but < .08. The sanction of this offense is a fine of not more than \$500. IN ST § 9-24-6-8 <i>et seq</i> .	

	These sensitives and backers a first
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	These sanctions apply when a person operates a motor vehicle while the license is suspended/ revoked and where the licensing action was the result of the commission of a criminal offense (e.g., DWI). IN ST § 9-24-19-3; IN ST § 35-41-1-19.
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<ul> <li>I. <u>Class A Misdemeanor</u> – Not more than 1 year and may be fined not more than \$5,000. IN ST § 9-24-19-3; IN ST § 35-50-3-2.</li> <li>II. <u>Where there is Bodily Injury</u> (Class D felony) – A fixed term between 6 months and 3 years (advisory sentence = 1½ years) and may be fined not more than \$10,000.</li> <li>III. <u>Where there is a Death</u> (Class C felony) – A fixed term of between 2 years and 8 years (advisory sentence of 4 years) and may be fined not more than \$10,000.</li> <li>IN ST § 9-24-19-4; IN ST § 35-50-2-6; IN ST § 35-50-2-7.</li> </ul>
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	There are mandatory imprisonment sanctions in cases in- volving offenders who have prior felony convictions. <i>See</i> IN ST § 35-50-2-2 for details.
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action	<b>Suspension</b> IN ST § 9-24-19-5.
Withdrawal Action:	Not less than <b>90 days</b> or more than <b>2 years</b> . IN ST § 9-24-19-5.
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The base term above appears to be mandatory.
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> IN ST § 9-30-10-1 <i>et seq</i> .
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	<ul> <li>I. 2 convictions (within 10 years) for traffic law violations related to death offenses;<sup>312</sup></li> <li>II. 3 convictions (within 10 years) for major offenses;<sup>313</sup></li> <li>III. 10 convictions for any moving violations (within 10 years) of any traffic infraction (except parking or equipment violations) with at least one of the offenses having been a conviction listed in I or II above.</li> <li>IN ST § 9-30-10-4.</li> </ul>
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	I. 10-year suspension; II. 10-year suspension; III. 5-year suspension IN ST § 9-30-10-5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>312</sup> These include reckless homicide, voluntary or involuntary manslaughter involving operation of a motor vehicle and operation of a motor vehicle while intoxicated (resulting in death). IN ST § 9-30-10-4(a). <sup>313</sup> These include reckless driving, drag racing, and operation of a motor vehicle while intoxicated. IN ST § 9-30-10-4(b).

Turne of Criminal Offense if Convisted	Class D folowy DIST \$ 0.20.10.16	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	Class D felony IN ST § 9-30-10-16.	
on Charges of Driving While on		
Habitual Offender Status:		
Sanctions Following a Conviction of		
Driving While on Habitual Offender		
Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	A fixed term between 6 months and 3 years (advisory	
	sentence = 1½ years) and may be fined not more than	
	<b>\$10,000</b> . IN ST § 9-30-10-16; IN ST § 35-50-2-7.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	None	
Imprisonment/Fine:		
Licensing Actions (Specify):	For a Class D felony conviction – Forfeiture of license for life. <sup>314</sup> IN ST § 9- 30-10-16(c).	
	Class C felony for a person to operate a motor vehicle	
	after the license has been suspended for life. Sanctions: A	
	fixed term of between 2 years and 8 years (advisory sen-	
	tence of <b>4 years</b> ) and may be fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> .	
	IN ST § 9-30-10-17; IN ST § 35-50-2-6.	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>315</sup> IN ST § 9-27-5-4 (a).	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	<b>Yes</b> IN ST § 9-27-5-4(a).	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	<b>Yes</b> for persons $\geq$ 15 years old IN ST § 9-27-5-4(a).	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Sale/Purchase:	IN ST § 7.1-1-3-25; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-1; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-7;	
	IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.	
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Possession/Consumption:	IN ST § $7.1-5-7-7(a)(1)$ , (2).	
rossession consumption.	11, 01 § /.1 5 / /(4)(1), (2).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Dram Shop Laws and Kelator Legal		

 $<sup>^{314}</sup>$ After **10 years**, a person may petition the court for reinstatement of his/her license. IN ST § 9-30-10-14(a)(1). However, under some circumstances, offender's license may be reinstated after only **3 years**. For early reinstatement, the offender must not have been convicted of a death-related offense and the lifetime suspension must have based on traffic infractions. IN ST § 9-30-10-14(e). Additionally, if the judgment for conviction of a Class A misdemeanor is entered, the court may order a period of suspension in addition to any suspension of driving privileges already imposed. IN ST § 9-30-10-16(c). <sup>315</sup> The state department of toxicology in conjunction with the office of traffic safety may require "appropriate agencies" to collect

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>315</sup> The state department of toxicology in conjunction with the office of traffic safety may require "appropriate agencies" to collect "necessary specimens" from the body of each driver or pedestrian who is at least 15 years of age and who dies within 4 hours after involvement in an accident. IN ST  $\S$  9-27-5-4(a).

Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> IN § 7.1-5-10-15.5. <sup>316</sup>
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	Yes         Elder v. Fisher, 217 N.E.2d 847 (Ind. 1966); Parrett           v. Lebamoff, Inc., 408 N.E.2d 1344 (Ind.App. 1980).
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes         Gariup Const. Co., Inc. v. Foster, 519 N.E.2d 1224           (Ind. 1988); Ashlock v. Norris, 475 N.E.2d 1167 (Ind.App. 3 Dist., 1985).
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who recklessly, knowingly or intentionally pro- vides or furnishes an alcoholic beverage to a minor is guilty of a class B misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 180 days and a possible fine of not more than \$1,000. IN ST § 7.1-5-1-8; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-15.
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Class B Misdemeanor</b> IN ST § 7.1-5-1-8; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-15; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	Not more than <b>180 days</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than <b>\$1,000</b> may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>317</sup> IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-7; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 7.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>316</sup> Under IN ST § 7.1-5-10-15.5, a commercial server or a social host is not liable for the actions of intoxicated patrons or guests unless: (1) the commercial server/social host had "actual knowledge" that the patron/guest was visibly intoxicated at the time alcoholic beverages were "furnished"; and (2) the intoxicated person was the proximate cause of the injury or damage alleged. Also, under IN § 7.1-5-7.8(c), it appears that educational institutions are not subject to civil liability unless they sell/furnish alcoholic beverages to a minor. A licensee is not normally liable for the injuries resulting from the criminal conduct of an intoxicated patron. Such conduct is either not foreseeable or is an intervening act that breaks the necessary probable cause for liability under the Dram Shop Act. *Merchants Nat. Bank v. Simrell's Sports Bar & Grill, Inc.*, 741 N.E.2d 383 (Ind.App. 2000) <sup>317</sup> An employee or bartender who is convicted of serving alcoholic beverages to an intoxicated person is subject to mandatory revo-

 $<sup>^{317}</sup>$  An employee or bartender who is convicted of serving alcoholic beverages to an intoxicated person is subject to mandatory revocation of the permit to serve such beverages. IN ST § 7.1-3-18-9; IN ST § 7.1-3-18-11. The permit may be suspended pending the disposition of the charges. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-7(b)(2).

Criminal Actions Against Owners or         Employees of Establishments that Serve         Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of         Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of         Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of         Type of Criminal Action:         Class B Misdemeanor IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-5-         10-22; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:         Not more than 180 days and may be fined not more than         \$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-4; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6; For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For supensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; 26.1.       Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Ves IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.       Image: Product and the prime of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.         Open Container			
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Class B Misdemeanor IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-5- 10-22; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 180 days and may be fined not more than \$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Ves         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image: Class B Misdemeanor IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-5- 10-22; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 180 days and may be fined not more than \$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image: Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         Type of Criminal Action:       Class B Misdemeanor IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 180 days and may be fined not more than \$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:			
Type of Criminal Action:Class B MisdemeanorIN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-5- 10-22; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.Term of Imprisonment/Fine:Not more than 180 days and may be fined not more than \$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):YesVesIN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.Length of Term License Withdrawal:For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:YesVesIN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Open Container Law (Yes/No):YesYesIN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
10-22; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:         Not more than 180 days and may be fined not more than \$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.       ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
10-22; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:         Not more than 180 days and may be fined not more than \$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.       ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 180 days and may be fined not more than \$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image: Comparison of the the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawan (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-23-6.1; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.       Image: IN ST § 9-30-15-3.       Image: IN ST § 9-30-15-3.       Image: I	Type of Criminal Action:	Class B Misdemeanor IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 7.1-5-	
\$1000. Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6; For suspensions, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.		10-22; IN ST § 35-50-3-4.	
than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Wes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For revocations, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; A.1-3-23-2.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>180 days</b> and may be fined not more than	
than \$1,000 may be imposed. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-3; IN ST § 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Wes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For revocations, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; A.1-3-23-2.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	L.		
§ 7.1-5-7-8; IN ST § 35-50-3-3.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
Administrative Actions Against Owners of         Establishments That Serve Alcoholic         Beverages to Those Persons Under the         Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages         Withdrawn (Yes/No):         Serve Alcoholic Beverages         Withdrawn (Yes/No):         Length of Term License Withdrawal:         For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN         ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.		0 -7 -0	
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-6.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.Length of Term License Withdrawal:For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.Open Container Law (Yes/No):Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):Yes IN ST § 7.1-3-23-2; IN ST § 7.1-3-23-5; IN ST § 7.1- 3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.Length of Term License Withdrawal:For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
Withdrawn (Yes/No):3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.Length of Term License Withdrawal:For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Open Container Law (Yes/No):Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	Minimum Legar Drinking Age.		
Withdrawn (Yes/No):3-23-26.1; IN ST § 7.1-5-10-22.Length of Term License Withdrawal:For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3- 23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23- 26.1.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Open Container Law (Yes/No):Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	<b>Ves</b> IN ST & 7 1-3-23-2: IN ST & 7 1-3-23-5: IN ST & 7 1-	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:       For revocations, no period is specified in the statute. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-6. For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	•		
ST § 7.1-3-23-6.         For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-23-23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.		For revocations, no period is specified in the statute IN	
For suspensions, not more than 30 days. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes         Image: Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes         Image: Ves         Image: Ves         Yes	Length of Term License withdrawar.		
23-7. The licensee may also be fined. IN ST § 7.1-3-23-26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes         Image: Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes         Image: Ves         Image: Ves         Yes			
26.1.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       Yes IN ST § 7.1-5-10-20.         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle in the Passenger Law (Yes/No):         Ves       IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle is the passenger Compartment of a Vehicle is the passenger Compartment of a Vehicle is the passenger Law (Yes/No):         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.		20.1.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle is the passenger Compartment of a Vehicle is the passenger Compartment of a Vehicle is the passenger Law (Yes/No):         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	Anti Hanny Hour Laws/Pagulations:	Vog IN ST 8 7 1 5 10 20	
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)         the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	Anu-mappy nour Laws/Regulations:	I CS 11N S1 § /.1-3-10-20.	
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)         the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.	Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes         Yes <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
Open Container Law (Yes/No): Yes IN ST § 9-30-15-3.			
	uie rassenger Comparament of a venicle.		
	Open Container Law (Yes/No).	<b>Yes</b> IN ST & 9-30-15-3.	

STATE	IOWA	
General Reference:	Iowa Code Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of an alcoholic beverage. <sup>318</sup>	
	IA ST § 321J.2(1)(a)	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{319}$ or any amount of a controlled substance in the	
	blood or urine.	
	IA ST § 321J.1(1); IA ST § 321J.2(1)(b), (c).	
	Persons under 21 – .02 BAC. IA ST § 321J.2A.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug or any combination of	
	drugs including an alcoholic beverage. IA ST §	
	321J.2(1)(a).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes IA ST § 321J.5.	
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> IA ST § 321J.6	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> <sup>320</sup> IA ST § 321J.6(1).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	<b>Yes</b> IA ST § 321J.6.	
(Yes/No):		
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) IA ST § 321J. 16.	
Admitted into Evidence:	A person may be required to submit to a chemical test pur-	
	suant to a search warrant issued in an investigation of in-	
	voluntary manslaughter (IA ST § 707.5) or homi-	
	cide/serious injury by vehicle (IA ST § 707.6A) where a	
	traffic accident has resulted in a death or in a personal in-	
	jury likely to cause death and there is evidence of a DWI	
Other Information:	offense. IA ST § 321J.10.	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
rumonized onder the implied consent Daw.	I [	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>318</sup> A drunk-driving offense is described as "operating while intoxicated." However, "operating while intoxicated" is defined as operating a vehicle while under the influence of an alcoholic beverage or illegal per se. **Note**: Under IA ST § 321J.1(2), "[a]lcoholic beverage includes alcohol, wine, spirits, beer, or any other beverage which contains ethyl alcohol and is fit for human consumption." <sup>319</sup> **Standards**: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath or grams of alcohol per 67

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>319</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath or grams of alcohol per 67 milliliters of urine. IA ST § 321.1(1); IA ST § 321J.1(1)
 <sup>320</sup> A request to submit to a test is based on reasonable grounds of a drunk-driving offense or a violation of IA ST § 321J.2A (persons)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>320</sup> A request to submit to a test is based on reasonable grounds of a drunk-driving offense or a violation of IA ST § 321J.2A (persons under 21 years old driving with a BAC/BrAC  $\ge$  .02) AND any <u>one</u> of the following: (1) an arrest; (2) an accident resulting in injury or death; (3) a PBT refusal; (4) a PBT reading of  $\ge$  .08 (for CMV operators, PBT reading of  $\ge$  .04; for persons under the age of 21, PBT reading of  $\ge$  .02); or (5) reasonable grounds that the driver was under the influence of drugs or a combination of drugs and alcohol but a PBT reading is < .08. IA ST § 321J.6(1).

Blood:	Yes IA ST § 321J.6(2).	
Urine:	Yes IA ST § 321J.6(2).	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No Deferred judgment may be available for first offenders who have a BAC < .15, and no bodily injury resulted. IA ST § 321J.2; IA ST § 907.3.	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes An offender, at his own expense, must submit to a sub- stance abuse evaluation. IA ST § 321J.2(3)(b); IA ST § 321J.3; IA ST § 321J.17. Also, the court may order an evaluation if it thinks that the defendant "regularly abuses alcohol or other controlled substances". IA ST § 901.4A.	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test</u> :		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	RevocationFirst refusal – 1 year (90 days mand);Subsequent refusal321 – 2 years (1 year mand). IA ST §321J.9. If a defendant is under 18 years old, the period ofrevocation shall be either as indicated or until the personreaches 18 whichever is the longer revocation period.§321J.4(7).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
<u>Onense</u> .		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense(Serious misdemeanor) – Not less than 48hours or more than 1 year and a fine of \$1,250;322	

 $<sup>^{321}</sup>$  A prior drunk-driving offense conviction or a prior administrative per se violation is considered the same as a previous refusal for license sanction enhancement purposes. IA ST § 321J.9(1).  $^{322}$  The court may waive up to \$625 of the fine when the defendant presents to the court a restricted license after the minimum period of suspension/revocation. Additionally, the court may order the offender to perform community service as an alternative to a portion or all of the fine. IA ST § 321J.2(2)(a)(2).

Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Second offense (aggravated misdemeanor) – Not less than7 days or more than 2 years and not less than \$1,875 ormore than \$6,250;Third and each subsequent offense (Class D felony) – Notless than 30 days or more than 5 years <sup>323</sup> (or up to 1 yearin the county jail if the court suspends the commitment tothe custody of the director of the department of correc-tions) does not and not less than \$3,125 or more than\$9,375.Serious injury related to a drunk-driving offense (Class Dfelony) – Not more than 5 years and not less than \$750 ormore than \$7,500.IA ST § 321J.2(2), (3); IA ST § 707.6A; IA ST § 902.9;IA ST § 903.1.First offense – 48 hours; <sup>324</sup>
	Second offense – 7 consecutive days; 325Third and each subsequent offense – 30 consecutive days (if jail); mandatory incarceration but no minimum (if prison); 326Serious injury related to a drunk-driving offense – Man- datory prison, indeterminate 5 year sentence.IA ST § 321J.2; IA ST § 707.6A; IA ST § 902.9; IA ST § 903.1.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	First offense – Community service in lieu of part of or the entire fine. IA ST § 321J.2(2)(a).Under separate provisions, the court may order an offender to perform community service equivalent in value to any fine imposed. IA ST § 909.3A.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	<b>Yes</b> A victim is eligible for restitution from the defendant as well as compensation from the State crime reparation fund. IA ST § 321J.2(9)(a); IA ST § 915.1 <i>et seq., and in</i> <i>the event a victim receives payment from the State fund,</i> <i>the court must order the defendant to repay the State fund.</i>
Other:	<b>Surcharges</b> : A surcharge of 32% of the fine actually imposed is assessed against anyone convicted of a state crim-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>323</sup> If the court suspends the commitment of the offender to the director of the department of corrections, then the court shall order the offender to serve not less than 30 days or more than 1 year in the county jail. IA ST § 321J.2(2)(c)(2).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>324</sup> For a first offense, there is a mandatory imprisonment sentence of 48 hours and a fine as indicated if the offender had a BAC/BrAC > .15, refused to submit to a chemical test under implied consent law or committed a drunk- driving offense that injured another person. IA ST § 321J.2(3)(a); IA ST § 907.3(2). <sup>325</sup> For second and subsequent offenders the 7-day and 30-day jail sanctions respectively must be served consecutively. IA ST §

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>325</sup> For second and subsequent offenders the 7-day and 30-day jail sanctions respectively must be served consecutively. IA ST § 321J.2(3)(d). However, if consecutive minimum jail terms would cause a hardship on the defendant or if there is insufficient jail space, the minimum terms may be served in segments of at least 48 hours. In that case, the defendant <u>must</u> perform community service, with the period of community service decided by the court – as it deems appropriate. IA ST § 321J.2(3)(d). <sup>326</sup> An offender is subject to a 30-consecutive-day mandatory minimum incarceration sanction <u>only</u> if the court sentences him to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>326</sup> An offender is subject to a 30-consecutive-day mandatory minimum incarceration sanction <u>only</u> if the court sentences him to county jail. However, if an offender is sentenced to the State Department of Corrections, the offender will be incarcerated in prison for an indeterminate 5 year sentence, with no mandatory minimum period of sentence; release is at the direscretion of the board of parole.

	<ul> <li>inal offense and a drug abuse resistance education surcharge of \$10 must also be paid. IA ST § 911.1; IA ST § 911.2.</li> <li>Civil Penalty: An additional civil penalty of \$200 is assessed against a person who has had the license revoked as a result of either a DWI conviction, admin. per se violation or implied consent law refusal. This penalty must be paid before restricted driving privileges can be granted. IA ST § 321.218A; IA ST § 321J.17(1).</li> <li>Emergency Response Costs: The court may order an offender to pay the costs of an emergency response resulting from a drunk-driving offense. The cost cannot exceed \$500 for each public agency for each response. IA ST § 321J.2(9)(b).</li> <li>Home Detention: Persons sentenced to the county jail may be assigned "home detention" instead of incarceration. IA ST § 356.26.</li> </ul>	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes <u>First violation</u> – Revocation for 180 days (30 days mand; 60 days mand for persons under 21 years old); <u>Second or subsequent violation</u> – Revocation for l year (mand; 60 days mand for persons under 21 years old). IA ST § 321J.2A; IA ST § 321J.12.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> IA ST § 321J.2(2)(a), (3); IA ST § 321J.4; IA ST § 321J.12.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense – 180 days; Second offense – 2 years; Third and subsequent offenses – 6 years; DWI offense involving serious injury – 1 year (in addition to any other period of suspension or revocation); IA ST § 321J.2(2)(a); IA ST § 321J.4 DWI offense involving death – 6 years; First offenders with deferred judgments – 90 days. IA ST § 321J.2; IA ST § 321J.4; IA ST § 312J.12.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	First offense –         30 days (60 days if the offender was < 21 years old)	

	IA ST § 321J.4; IA ST § 321J.20.	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> First and subsequent offenses. IA ST § 321J.2(2)(a); IA ST § 321J.3; IA ST § 321J.17(2); IA ST § 321J.22.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes I. Based upon a substance abuse evaluation, a court may order a DWI offender to attend a treatment program. Such a program could include inpatient treatment, which could be a condition to a suspended sentence. The time the of- fender spends in this inpatient treatment program is cre- dited towards his sentence. IA ST § 321J.3. II. In addition, the court may order a defendant to com- plete a treatment program pursuant to an evaluation for alcohol or drug abuse. IA ST § 901.4A; IA ST § 901.5.	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Yes	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	<b>Impoundment or Immobilization</b> . For a second or sub- sequent offense, the vehicle used by the defendant in the offense is subject to impoundment or may be immobi- lized <sup>327</sup> for the period of the driver's license revocation or for 180 days whichever is longer. IA ST § 321J.4B(2)(a), (5)(d).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	Immediate return of the vehicle (without payment of costs associated with impoundment/immobilization) shall be made to: (1) the owner of the vehicle (if the offender is <u>not</u> the co-owner); (2) a motor vehicle rental or leasing agency that owns the vehicle; or (3) a person charged but not con- victed. IA ST § 321J.4B(5)(a).	
Other:		
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Court-ordered visitation program</b> : This is a "supervised educational tour" where a court may order a defendant to visit a hospital or other emergency medical facility to ob- serve the treatment of victims of motor vehicle accidents (including DWI accidents). Additionally, a defendant may be ordered to visit a substance abuse facility or a morgue. IA ST § 321J.24.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	If a defendant <sup>328</sup> seeks a temporary restricted license, he shall be ordered to install an ignition interlock device. IA ST § 321J.4(1); IA ST § 321J.17.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>327</sup> "Immobilized" means the installation of a device in a motor vehicle that completely prevents a motor vehicle from being operated, or the installation of an ignition interlock device of a type approved by the commission or public safety. IA ST § 321J.4B(1)(a). <sup>328</sup> A first offender with a deferred judgment, where no accident resulted and whose BAC was < .10, shall not be required to install

	For a second or subsequent offender, the department shall require certification of installation on all motor vehicles owned or operated by such person seeking reinstatement of driving privileges. The requirement for installation shall be for 1 year from the date of reinstatement. IA ST § 321J.17.	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Prohibited</b> DWI roadblocks, or sobriety checkpoints, do not fall within the list of types of roadblocks permitted. IA ST § 321K.1; <i>see State v. Day</i> , 582 N.W.2d 100 (Iowa 1995); <i>State v. Loyd</i> , 530 N.W.2d 708 (Iowa 1995).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Yes</b> IA ST § 707.6A.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<b>Class B felony</b> – Not more than <b>25 years</b> . IA ST § 902.9(2). There is no fine.	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	If the offender failed to stop at the scene of the accident, then such offender is not eligible for parole or work re- lease until he has served at least $7/10$ of the maximum term of his sentence. IA ST § 902.12.	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> IA ST § 321.209(1); IA ST § 321J.4(6); IA ST § 707.6A(1)(a).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>6 years</b> IA ST § 321J.4(6); IA ST § 707.6A(1)(a).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	<b>2</b> years 14  ST  8 22114(6)  IA ST  8 707(6A(1)(6))	
Other:	IA ST § 321J.4(6); IA ST § 707.6A(1)(a). <b>Special License Suspension</b> : Prior to an adjudication of a person for vehicular homicide related to reckless driving or drunk driving, the license shall be suspended until the completion of the judicial proceedings. If the person is not convicted, the license shall be reinstated. IA ST § 321.210D. <b>Restitution</b> : In addition to any other pecuniary damages, an offender must pay at least \$150,000 in restitution to a victim's estate. IA ST § 910.3B.	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for one mandatory year (3 years mand if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person (1) has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq .04$ ; (2) is under the influence of al-	

an ignition interlock device if he seeks a temporary restricted license. IA ST  $\S$  321J.4(3)(a). However, the court may order such defendant to install an ignition interlock device as a condition of that deferred judgment. IA ST  $\S$  321J.4(8)(a).

	<ul> <li>cohol, other drugs or a controlled substance or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for alcohol or drug concentrations. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the "disqualification" is for life (10 years mandatory). In addition, a CMV operator who has violated 49 CFR 392.5 (e.g., consumed any alcohol within 4 hours of operating a CMV) must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours, and any driver driving in violation of an "out-of-service" order is subject to a fine of not less than \$2,500 (first violation) and not less than \$5,000 (for a subsequent violation within 10 years).</li> <li>IA ST § 321.1(11); IA ST § 321.208; IA ST § 321.208A; IA ST § 321J.6; IA ST § 321J.8(1)(c).</li> </ul>	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Serious misdemeanor	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and not less than <b>\$315</b> or more than <b>\$1,875</b> , with an additional assessment of <b>\$1,000</b> . IA ST § 321J.21; IA ST § 903.1(1)(b).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	The base fine of <b>\$315</b> appears to be mandatory, and the additional assessment of <b>\$1,000</b> is mandatory.	
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension or revocation IA ST § 321J.21(2).	
Withdrawal Action:	Original suspension/revocation extended an additional like period. IA ST § 321J.21(2).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	None	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> IA ST § 321.555.	
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	Three or more serious offenses (within 6 years), or six or more minor offenses (within 2 years). <sup>329</sup> IA ST § 321.555.	
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	If based on serious offenses – Not less than <b>two years</b> or more than <b>six years</b> ; <sup>330</sup>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>329</sup> Serious offenses include: (1) vehicular manslaughter; (2) DWI; (3) driving on a revoked/suspended license; (4) perjury to department of safety; (5) a felony traffic offense; (6) failing to stop and render aid; (7) eluding; and (8) serious injury by vehicle. Minor offenses include moving violations but do not include parking violations, equipment violations, weights and measures violations and speeding violations of less than 15 mph over the speed limit. IA ST § 321.555. <sup>330</sup> I. If habitual offender status is based <u>only</u> on the operation of vehicles while the license is suspended, revoked or barred, a person

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>330</sup> I. If habitual offender status is based <u>only</u> on the operation of vehicles while the license is suspended, revoked or barred, a person is eligible for restricted driving privileges based on a showing of extreme hardship. II. If habitual offender status is based on DWI and vehicle homicide offenses and the offender is not otherwise eligible for a restricted license, that person may receive such a li-

	If based on minor offenses $-1$ year.	
Tyme of Criminal Offense if Convicted	IA ST § 321.560. Aggravated misdemeanor	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted		
on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	IA ST § 321.561; IA ST § 903.1.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of		
Driving While on Habitual Offender		
Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>two years</b> and not less than <b>\$625</b> or more than <b>\$6,250</b> . IA ST § 903.1(2).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	\$625	
Imprisonment/Fine:		
Licensing Actions (Specify):	Same as for driving while revoked.	
	5	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
	N -	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes under limited circumstances <sup>331</sup>	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> IA ST § 123.3(19); IA ST § 123.47; IA ST §	
Sale/Purchase:	123.49(2)(h).	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> There are exemptions for medical reasons, employ-	
Possession/Consumption:	ment and home use with parental consent. IA ST §	
Possession/Consumption.		
	123.47(2).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
· · ·		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes	
(Yes/No):	IA ST § 123.92.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	Yes Lewis v. State, 256 N.W.2d 181 (Iowa 1977).	1
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
	l	L

cense provided: (1) such a license is needed in order for the person to remain employed; (2) the person installs an ignition interlock system in his/her vehicle(s); and (3) the minimum period of license revocation has expired. IA ST § 321.215; IA ST § 321.560; IA ST § 321J.4(9). <sup>331</sup> Section 321J.7 of the Iowa Code permits the withdrawal of a specimen for testing of a person for whom a peace officer has rea-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>331</sup> Section 321J.7 of the Iowa Code permits the withdrawal of a specimen for testing of a person for whom a peace officer has reasonable grounds to believe such person is operating while intoxicated and a physician certifies that the person is "dead, unconscious, or otherwise unable to consent or refuse."

(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	No	
	IA ST § 123.49(1)(a).	
Social Host–Criminal Enforcement:	A social host may be charged with contributing to delinquency, a simple misdemeanor punishable by a fine of at least \$65 but not more than \$625, and may be imprisoned for not more than 30 days. IA ST § 232.2; IA ST § 709A.2; IA ST § 903.1.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Simple misdemeanor IA ST § 123.49; IA ST § 123.50(1).	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>30 days</b> and a fine of at least <b>\$65</b> but not more than <b>\$625</b> . IA ST § 903.1.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <b>Suspension</b> or <b>revocation</b> <sup>332</sup> IA ST § 123.39; IA ST § 123.40; IA ST § 123.50(2).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Suspension – not more than 1 year. IA ST § 123.39(1)(a) Revocation – 2 years. IA ST § 123.40. CIVIL PENALTY (fine): Not more than \$1,000 per viola-	
	tion. IA ST § $123.39(1)(a)$ .	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Simple misdemeanor</b> (a scheduled violation) IA ST § 123.49(2)(h); IA ST §123.50(1); IA ST § 805.8C(2).	
Term of Imprisonment:	None	
Fine (\$ Range):	Licensee or Permittee – $$1,500$ Employee – $$500^{333}$ IA ST § 805.8C(2).	

 $<sup>^{332}</sup>$  A criminal conviction for a violation of the liquor control laws is not a prerequisite to a license suspension/revocation or to a civil penalty (fine). IA ST §123.39(1)(c). However, a conviction is grounds for the suspension or revocation of the license or permit. IA ST § 123.50(2).

permit. IA ST § 123.50(2).  $^{333}$  For a first offense, the license is not suspended but the violator is assessed a "civil penalty" of \$500. If the violator does not pay this assessment, the license is suspended for 14 days. IA ST § 123.50(3)(a).

Administrations Astisus Assisted Or	[]	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or Revocation	
	IA ST § 123.39; <sup>334</sup> IA ST § 123.40; IA ST § 123.50(3).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>None</b> ;	
	Second offense (within 2 years) – <b>30 days</b> ;	
	<u>Third offense (within 3 years) – 60 days;</u>	
	Fourth offense (within 3 years) – 2 years.	
	IA ST § 123.40; IA ST § 123.50(3).	
	Civil Penalty:	
	First offense - \$500;	
	Second offense (within 2 years) or third offense (within 3	
	years) - \$1,500.	
	IA ST § 123.50(3)(b), (c).	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
- · · · ·		
and i assenger comparament of a venicity.		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> IA ST § 321.284; IA ST § 321.284A.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> IA ST § 123.46.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle: Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> IA ST § 321.284; IA ST § 321.284A.	

 $<sup>^{334}</sup>$  Section 123.59 also makes it illegal to sell alcoholic beverages to persons under 21 years old. It is a serious misdemeanor (first offense) to violate § 123.59 and the sanctions for this offense are a jail term of not more than 1 year and/or a fine of not more than \$1,000 (§ 903.1(1)(b)).

STATE	KANSAS	
General Reference:	Kansas Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DUI Charge:		
Standard DUI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol to a degree that renders the person incapable of safely driving a vehicle. KS ST § 8-1567(a)(3).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{335}$ KS ST § 8-1567(a)(1), (a)(2).	
	<u>Persons under 21</u> $-\ge$ .02 KS ST § 8-1567a. Violation of KS ST § 8-1567a is <u>not</u> a criminal offense, as the penalties are administrative (civil) only. <i>State v.</i> <i>Shuster</i> , 46 P.3d 1140 (Kan. 2002).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug or a combination of alcohol and drugs. KS ST § 8-1567(a)(4), (5).	
Other:	A BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .08 is prima facie evidence that the defen- dant was under the influence of alcohol. KS ST § 8- 1005(b). No person who is a habitual user of narcotic, hypnotic, somnifacient or stimulant drugs shall operate or attempt to operate a motor vehicle. KS ST § 8-1567(b).	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> KS ST § 8-1001(a); KS ST § 8-1012.	
Implied Consent Law:		
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> KS ST § 8-1001(b); KS ST § 8-1012(a), (b).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> KS ST § 8-1001(a).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal Cases) KS ST § 8-1001(n).	
Other Information:	A blood test may be administered without the driver's con- sent in situations where there is probable cause of any DUI offense and there was a serious injury or the death of anoth- er person. KS ST § 8-1001(p).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> KS ST § 8-1001(a).	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> KS ST § 8-1001(a).	
Other:	Other Bodily Substances KS ST § 8-1001(a).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>335</sup> **Standards**: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. KS ST § 8-1013(a); KS ST § 8-1567(v).

Adjudication of DUI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	Yes KS ST § 8-1567(s). However, certain diversion pro- grams are excepted.	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes         KS ST § 8-1008(c), (d); KS ST § 8-1567(x).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	Yes Infraction: A fine of not more than \$500. KS ST § 21-3105(2); KS ST § 21-4503(e).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First occurrence - Suspension - 1 year;Second occurrence - Suspension - 2 years;Third occurrence - Suspension - 3 years;Fourth occurrence - Suspension - 10 years;Fifth or subsequent occurrence - Permanent Revocation.KS ST § 8-1001(k); KS ST § 8-1014(a).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DUI		
<u>Offense</u> :		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First conviction (Class B misdemeanor) – Not less than 48consecutive hours or more than 6 months and not less than\$500 or more than \$1,000;Second conviction (Class A misdemeanor) – Not less than90 days or more than 1 year and not less than \$1,000 ormore than \$1,500;Third conviction (felony) – Not less than 90 days or morethan 1 year and \$2,500;Fourth or subsequent conviction (felony) – Not less than180 days or more than 1 year and \$2,500.KS ST § 8-1567.	
	<b>DUI with Child Under 14 Years of Age in Vehicle</b> : Punishment shall be enhanced by 1 month of imprisonment, which is mandatory and must be served consecutively to	

	any other mandatory minimum penalty imposed. KS ST § 8-1567(h).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – None; <sup>336</sup> Second conviction – 5 consecutive days (or 48 consecutive hours, then work release or house arrest);         Third conviction – 90 days (or 72 consecutive hours, then work release or house arrest);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 180 days (or 144 consecutive hours, then work release).         KS ST § 8-1567.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>100 hours</b> (in lieu of imprisonment); <u>Second and subsequent offenses</u> – may be ordered in lieu of fine. A \$5 credit is allowed on the fine for every hour of community service. KS ST § 8-1567(j).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	YesDirect compensation by defendants to victims as a condition of probation or parole. KS ST § 8-1019(c); KS ST § 21-4610(d)(1).Victims may also receive restitution for damages from the State's crime victims' compensation fund. The maximum amount that can be received from this fund is \$25,000. KS ST § 74-7302; KS ST § 74-7305.	
Other:	Assessment: Unless indigent, an offender must pay an assessment of \$150. This assessment is deposited into an alcohol and drug safety fund. KS ST § 8-1008(e).In a municipal court charge, an offender is assessed \$19 in addition to any fine; this assessment is used to fund various law enforcement and crime victim activities. KS ST § 12- 4117(a).	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DUI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes ≥.08 (BAC/BrAC) KS ST § 8-1014(b).         First occurrence – Suspension 30 days (mand) and 330         days restricted driving privileges;         Second, third, fourth occurrence – suspension 1 year         (mand) followed by restricted driving privileges for 1 year;         Fifth or subsequent occurrence – Permanent Revocation         (mand).	
	<ul> <li>≥.15 (BAC/BrAC) KS ST § 8-1014(b)(2)</li> <li><u>First occurrence</u> – Suspension 1 year and restricted driving privileges for 1 year;</li> <li><u>Second occurrence</u> – Suspension 1 year and restricted driving privileges 2 years;</li> </ul>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>336</sup> The court may order 48 consecutive hours or 100 hours community service, one of which the offender must complete before he is eligible for a suspended sentence, probation or reduction of sentence. KS ST § 8-1567(d).

	Third occurrence – Suspension 1 year and restricted driving privileges 3 years; Fourth occurrence – Suspension 1 year and restricted driving privileges 4 years; Fifth or subsequent occurrence – Permanent Revocation.Persons under 21:First occurrence ( $\geq .02$ but < .08) – Suspension 30 days followed by 330 days restriction on driving privileges; First occurrence ( $\geq .08$ ) – Suspension 1 year; First occurrence ( $\geq .08$ ) – Suspension 1 year; First occurrence ( $\geq .15$ ) – Suspension 1 year followed by a 1-year restriction on driving privileges; Second or subsequent occurrence ( $\geq .02$ or higher) – Suspension 1 year. KS ST § 8-1014(c); KS ST § 8-1567a(f).	
Post DUI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First – fourth occurrence</u> <sup>337</sup> – <b>Suspension</b> ; <u>Fifth or subsequent occurrence</u> – <b>Permanent Revocation</b> . KS ST § 8-1001; KS ST § 8-1014(b).	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	<ul> <li>≥ .08 but &lt; .15</li> <li><u>First occurrence</u> - 30 days;</li> <li><u>Second-fourth occurrence</u> - 1 year;</li> <li><u>Fifth or subsequent occurrence</u> - Permanent Revocation.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>≥.15</li> <li><u>First occurrence</u> – Suspension 1 year and restricted driving privileges for 1 year;</li> <li><u>Second occurrence</u> – Suspension 1 year and restricted driving privileges 2 years;</li> </ul>	
	<u>Third occurrence</u> – Suspension <b>1 year</b> and restricted driving privileges 3 years; <u>Fourth occurrence</u> – Suspension <b>1 year</b> and restricted driving privileges 4 years; <u>Fifth or subsequent occurrence</u> – <b>Permanent Revocation</b> .	
	KS ST § 8-1001; KS ST § 8-1014.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	<u>First conviction</u> – As a condition of probation, parole, etc., a defendant must complete an alcohol education or treatment program. KS ST § 8-1567. Attendance at an alcohol education or treatment program could be a condition for	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>337</sup> An "occurrence" includes a test refusal, test failure (admin. per se violations) or a DWI offense conviction. KS ST § 8-1013(e).

	issuing a restricted license. KS ST § 8-1014.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Second/Third convictions – As a condition of probation, suspended sentence or parole, an offender shall be required to complete an inpatient or outpatient treatment program. <u>Fourth or subsequent offenses</u> – Following release from prison, the offender is required to participate in an inpatient or outpatient program during a 1-year mandatory post- release supervision program. KS ST § 8-1567(e), (f),(g).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	<b>Yes</b> , for a period of not more than one year. However, the court shall not order impoundment if the car was stolen or converted at the time it was driven. Additionally, the court shall take into consideration whether impoundment would result in loss of employment by the offender or a member of his family, and whether the offender's or family members' abilities to attend school or obtain medical care would be impaired. KS ST § 8-1567(k).	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	KS ST § 8-1567(k).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	N/A	
Other:	<b>License Plate Revocation</b> : For a fourth or subsequent DWI conviction, the license plate of the vehicle used in the offense may be revoked for 1 year. KS ST § 8-1567(u).	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	For a second-fourth conviction or refusal, an ignition inter- lock shall be required after the period of suspension. KS ST § 8-1014(b)(2); KS ST § 8-1015	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>State v. Deskins</i> , 673 P.2d. 1174 (1983); <i>Davis v. Kansas Dept of Revenue</i> , 843 P.2d 260 (Kan. 1992).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes <u>Involuntary Manslaughter while DUI</u> – An unintentional death while DUI – Severity Level 4 Person Felony. KS ST § 21-3442. <u>Vehicle Homicide</u> – Death caused by operation of a vehicle in a manner that causes unreasonable risk and which constitutes a material deviation from the standard of care which a reasonable person would observe under the same circumstances. Class A Personal Misdemeanor. KS ST §	

	21-3405.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<ul> <li><u>Severity Level 4 Person Felony</u> – 38-172 months<sup>338</sup> and not more than \$300,000.</li> <li><u>Class A Misdemeanor</u> – Not more than 1 year and not more than \$2,500.</li> <li>KS ST § 21-4502; KS ST § 21-4704.</li> </ul>	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Involuntary Manslaughter while DUI – Suspension Vehicle Homicide – Revocation KS ST § 8-254; KS ST § 8-1014.	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<u>Involuntary Manslaughter</u> – same as for DWI offenses. <u>Vehicle Homicide</u> – <b>1 year</b> KS ST § 8-256.	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	Involuntary Manslaughter – Mandatory suspensions are the same as for DWI offenses. <u>Vehicle Homicide</u> – <b>None</b> – restricted driving privileges may be granted. KS ST § 8-254(b).	
DUI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC ≥.04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or any drug; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for either alcohol or drug concentrations. For a subsequent violation or a com- bination of two or more violations of any of the above listed violations, the "disqualification" is for life (10 years mand). A person operating a CMV with an alcohol concentration ≥.04 or while under the influence of alcohol or drugs is sub- ject to the regular DUI criminal sanctions. Also, a CMV operator who has any measurable (or detecta- ble) amount of alcohol in his/her system or who refuses to take a test must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. KS ST § 8-2,128; KS ST § 8-2,136; KS ST § 8-2,145; KS ST § 8-1001(1), (0); KS ST § 8-1002; KS ST § 8-1567.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DUI Offense:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>338</sup> **Sentencing Guidelines**: Imprisonment sanctions for felony offenses are determined by a sentencing guidelines grid and supporting statutory provisions. For a Severity Level 4 Person Felony, there is a "presumed" incarceration. The grid also provides for increased incarceration periods for subsequent felony offenses. Depending on a person's criminal history, the range to be served is between 32-172 months. For criminal history purposes if the charge is DUI Manslaughter every DUI conviction counts as a person felony to determine sentence. KST ST § 21-4704; KS ST § 21-4716; KS ST § 21-4718; KS ST § 21-4719 K.S ST § 21-4711(c)(2). http://www.accesskansas.org/ksc/2009desk/2009%20DRM%20Text.pdf

Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Ordinary Driving on Suspended/Revoked License: <u>First offense</u> (Class B Nonperson Misdemeanor) – Not less than 5 days or more than 6 months and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (Class A Nonperson Misde- meanor) – Not less than 5 days (mand) or more than 1 year and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$2,500; <sup>339</sup>
	Driving on Suspended/Revoked Where Basis Was DWI Offense:
	Same as terms above, except <b>90 days</b> shall be mandatory and the fine shall be imposed in addition to the term of im- prisonment. KS ST §8-262; KS ST § 21-4502; KS ST § 21-4503.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	See section above.
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension or revocation KS ST § 8-262(b).
Withdrawal Action:	The original suspension/revocation is extended for an addi- tional period of <b>90 days</b> . KS ST § 8-262(b).
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The term above appears to be mandatory.
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> KS ST § 8-285; KS ST § 8-286.
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	Three serious offenses <sup>340</sup> within 5 years. KS ST § 8-285(a).
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>3 years</b> KS ST § 8-286; KS ST § 8-288.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	Class A Misdemeanor         KS ST § 8-287.
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>339</sup> For a third or subsequent class A nonperson misdemeanor offense, the person shall be sentenced to not less than 90 days (mand) and not less than \$1,500 if such person's license was suspended/revoked because of: (1) refusal to submit to testing; (2) a conviction relating to vehicle liability coverage (KS ST § 40-3104); (3) was convicted of vehicle homicide or involuntary manslaughter while driving under the influence or any other murder or manslaughter crime resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle; or (4) was convicted of being a habitual offender. KS ST § 8-262(c)(1). <sup>340</sup> These include: (1) vehicular homicide; (2) DUI offense; (3) driving while license is canceled, suspended or revoked; (4) any

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>340</sup> These include: (1) vehicular homicide; (2) DUI offense; (3) driving while license is canceled, suspended or revoked; (4) any crime punishable as a felony if a motor vehicle was used in the perpetration of the crime; and (5) failing to stop at the scene of an accident. KS ST § 8-285(a).

Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . KS ST § 21-4502; KS ST § 21-4503.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> <sup>341</sup>	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	No statutory provision	
Vehicle Passengers:	No statutory provision	
Pedestrian:	No statutory provision	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> KS ST § 21-3610; KS ST § 41-102(q); KS ST § 41-715; KS ST § 41-727(a); KS ST § 41-2701(h).	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> KS ST § 41-715; KS ST § 41-727(a). There is an employ- ment exception. §41-2704(f).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	No See Berry v. National Medical Services, Inc., 205 P.3d 745 (Kan.App. 2009) (citing Ling v. Jan's Liquors, 703 P.2d 731 (Kan. 1985)).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> See Thies v. Cooper, 753 P.2d 1280 (Kan. 1988). <sup>342</sup>	
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	It is unlawful to intentionally or recklessly host minors consuming alcoholic liquor or cereal malt beverage. A violation is a Class A person misdemeanor, punishable by a term of not more than 1 year and/or a fine of not less than \$1,000 or more than \$2,500. KS ST § 21-3610c; KS ST §	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>341</sup> There are no statutory provisions requiring testing on persons killed in traffic accidents. However, a dead or unconscious person is deemed not to have withdrawn consent. KS ST § 8-1001(a).
 <sup>342</sup> This case concerned whether an employer was responsible for injuries caused by an employee who became intoxicated at a so-cial event hosted by the employer. The court held that there was no liability.

	21-4502; KS ST § 21-4503.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor KS ST § 41-715.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>30 days</b> and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$250</b> . KS ST § 41-715.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Revocation	
	KS ST § 41-314; KS ST § 41-2611(f); KS ST § 41-2626.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute	
Other:	<b>Civil Fine</b> : A "civil fine" of not more than <b>\$1,000</b> may also	
	be imposed. KS ST § 41-328(a).	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor KS ST § 41-2615	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>30 days</b> and/or a fine of not less than <b>\$100</b>	
	or more than <b>\$250</b> . KS ST § 41-2615.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or Revocation	
	KS ST § 41-2611(f); KS ST § 41-2626; KS ST §	
	41-2708(a)(5).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified for suspensions. For revocations, the govern-	
	ing body may revoke or suspend a license. KS ST § 41-2708(c).	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> KS ST § 41-2640(a)(3), (4); KS ST § 41-2722(a)(4).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		

#### KANSAS

the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes KS ST § 8-1599.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> KS ST § 41-719(a).	

STATE	KENTUCKY	
General Reference:	Kentucky Revised Statutes	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol	
	KY ST § 189A.010(1)(b).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{343}$ KY ST § 189A.010(1)(a).	
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> $\geq$ .02	
	KY ST § 189A.010(1)(e).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any substance or a combination of alcohol and any substance which may impair one's driving ability. KY ST § 189A.010(1)(c), (d).	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> KY ST § 189A.100.	
Implied Consent Law:		
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> KY ST § 189A.103(1), (3). Only reasonable grounds that a drunk-driving offense has been committed are needed in order to request that a person submit to a chemical test.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes KY ST § 189A.103(1).	
(Yes/No):	<b>165</b> K1 51 § 169A.105(1).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	<b>Yes</b> (Criminal Cases) KY ST § 189A.105(2)(a)(1).	
Other Information:	If a person has been arrested for <u>any</u> drunk-driving offense related to either a death or physical injury, the law allows a court to issue a search warrant requiring that either a blood or a urine sample be obtained for chemical testing. KY ST § 189A.105(2)(b). If a person has an alcohol concentration >.15, that person must be detained at least 4 hours following the arrest. KY	
	ST § 189A.110.	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes KY ST § 189A.103(1).	
Urine:	Yes KY ST § 189A.103(1).	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>343</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. KY ST § 189A.005(1).

Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Plea bargaining is not allowed if any one of the three fol- lowing conditions exist: (1) a defendant $\geq 21$ years old has a BAC/BrAC $\geq .08$ ; (2) a defendant < 21 years old has a BAC/BrAC $\geq .02$ ; or (3) a defendant refused to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law. However, this does not apply if the State's witnesses are unavailable for trial or the chemical test results are in error. The court must record the reasons for any change in the original charges. KY ST § 189A.120.	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	None KY ST § 189A.100	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail): Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	NoneFirst offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 30 days or more than 120 days; Second offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 12 months or more than 18 months; Third offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 24 months or more than 36 months; Fourth or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 60 months.If a person is NOT convicted of a drunk-driving offense but refused to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law, that person is subject to the same administra- tive licensing sanctions as if they had been convicted of such offense. KY ST § 189A.070(1); KY ST 189A.107(2). The court shall suspend the license of a person who refuses during the pending of the action. 189A.107(1).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		

Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense (within 5 years) – Not less than <b>48 hours</b> or	
imprisonment/rine.		
	more than <b>30</b> days <sup><math>344</math></sup> and/or not less than <b>\$200</b> or more than	
	\$500;	
	Second offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 7 days or	
	more than 6 months and not less than \$350 or more than	
	\$500;	
	<u>Third offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 30 days or</u>	
	more than <b>12 months</b> and not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than	
	\$1,000;	
	Fourth and subsequent offense (within 5 years - Class	
	D felony) – Not less than <b>120 days</b> or more than <b>5</b>	
	years and may be fined not less than \$1,000 or more	
	than <b>\$10,000</b> .	
	KY ST § 189A.010(5); KY ST § 532.020; KY ST §	
	532.060; KY ST § 534.030.	
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> (BAC $\geq$ .02 but $<$ .08) –	
	<b>\$500</b> . If BAC is $\geq$ .08, then sanctions of KY ST §	
	189A.010(5) apply. KY ST § 189A.010(7).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>48 hours</b> ; <sup>345</sup>	
	Second offense (within 5 years) – 7 days/\$350 (with 48	
	consecutive hours);	
	<u>Third offense</u> – <b>30 days/\$500</b> (with 48 consecutive hours);	
	Fourth and subsequent offenses – 120 days/\$1,000 (with 48	
	consecutive hours).	
	KY ST § 189A.010(5)(a)-(e).	
	Aggravating Circumstances: A person who has been	
	convicted of a drunk-driving offense is subject to enhanced	
	mandatory incarceration by committing one or more of the	
	following aggravating circumstances during the offense:	
	(1) Driving >30 mph over the speed limit; (2) driving in the wrong direction on a limited access highway; (3) caus-	
	ing an accident that resulted in either a death or a serious physical injury: (4) driving with a <b>BAC</b> $> 18$ : (4) refusing	
	physical injury; (4) driving with a <b>BAC</b> $\geq$ <b>.18</b> ; (4) refusing to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law;	
	or (5) transporting a child <12 years old (child endanger-	
	ment). KY ST §189A.010(11). But a first-time DUI of-	
	fender is not subject to enhancement where the aggravat- ing circumstance is refusal to submit to a chemical test.	
	Commonwealth v. Gaitherwright, 70 S.W.3d 411 (Ky.	
	2002). The mandatory minimum sentences imposed are:	
	<u>First offense</u> – 4 days;	
	Second offense – 14 days; Third offense – 60 days;	
	<u>Third offense</u> – 60 days;	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>344</sup> Weekend Confinement: For either a first or second offense, a defendant may be permitted to serve his term on weekends, provided he spends at least 24 hours in confinement. This does not apply to any mandatory 48-hour jail term. KY ST § 189A.030. <sup>345</sup> For a <u>first offense</u>, a defendant <u>must</u> be sentenced to at least one of the penalties listed: (1) 48 hours in jail; (2) a \$200 fine; or (3) 48 hours of community service. KY ST § 189A.010(5)(a), (9).

	Fourth or subsequent offense 240 days
	<u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> $-240$ days.
Other Penalties:	KY ST § 189A.010(5)(a)-(d).
	Einst efferrer Net her 48 herrer en men then 20
Community Service:	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>48 hours</b> or more than <b>30</b> <b>days</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> – Not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>6</b>
	<b>months</b> ; <sup>346</sup> <u>Third offense</u> – Not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>12</b>
	<b>months</b> ; KY ST § 189A.010(5).
	$\frac{\text{Persons Under 21 Years Old}}{\text{hours in lieu of a fine. KY ST § 189A.010(6).}} = 20$
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes – Victim's compensation board (KY ST § 346.010 <i>et seq.</i> ). Also, the court shall order a defendant to pay restitution directly to a victim as a condition of probation. KY ST § 532.358; KY ST § 533.030(3).
Other:	Service Fee: A DWI offender must pay a \$375 service fee in addition to any other fine. KY ST § 189A.050.
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	None
Other:	At arraignment, the court shall suspend the driver's license of a person who: (1) has refused to submit to a chemical test; (2) has either a prior DWI offense conviction or a prior refusal; or (3) was involved in an accident that re- sulted in death or physical injury to another person. This suspension remains in effect until a judgment of convic- tion or acquittal is entered or until the court terminates such suspension on its own order. However, no such sus- pension can last longer than the applicable licensing ac- tion for a drunk-driving offense/refusal to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law. KY ST § 189A.200.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First and subsequent offenses</u> – <b>Revocation</b> KY ST § 189A.070(1). <sup>347</sup>
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> . > .02 but < .08– <b>Suspen-</b> sion §189A.010(6)

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>346</sup> For second or third offenses not related to aggravating circumstances, the law provides for discretionary community service as a sentencing option which is in <u>addition</u> to incarceration. KY ST § 189A.010(8).
 <sup>347</sup> Under KY ST §189A.070(4), a person under 18 years old convicted of a regular drunk-driving offense has his license revoked until age 18 or as otherwise provided under KY ST § 189A.070, whichever sanction is longer.

Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense (within 5 year) – Not less than 30 or more than 120 days; Second offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 12 months or more than 18 months; 	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal: Other:	<ul> <li>The terms above appear to be mandatory, except as discussed below for hardship driving privileges.</li> <li>Hardship Driving Privileges: The court may grant hardship driving privileges for the purposes of employment, education, medical care, alcohol/ substance abuse education programs or other court-ordered counseling programs. This privilege may be conditioned on the offender operating motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices. This privilege may be granted only after the expiration of any mandatory license revocation period and is not available to a person subject to licensing action because of refusal to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law. KY ST § 189A.410.</li> <li>Reinstatement: A driver's license cannot be reinstated following a revocation for a DWI offense until the defendant completes the required alcohol education or treatment program under KY ST § 189A.040. KY ST § 189A.070(3).</li> </ul>	
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes <u>First offense</u> – Participation in an alcohol education or treatment program for 90 days is mandatory. KY ST § 189A.040(1). Costs are to be paid by the offender up to his ability.	
Alcohol Treatment:	For subsequent DWI offense convictions, the defendant <u>must</u> be sentenced to an alcohol or substance abuse treatment program for 1 year. KY ST § 189A.040(2), (3).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	For a <u>second or subsequent offense</u> , if the court <b>does not</b> order the installation of <u>ignition interlock devices</u> on <u>all</u> the vehicles owned by an offender, it <b>MUST</b> impound the license plates of such vehicles for a period of time not ex- ceeding the period of license action. KY ST § 189A.085.	

Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	A hardship exemption is available to other family mem- bers allowing only them to use the affected vehicles. KY ST § 189A.085.
Other:	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Reimbursement</b> : If a person is placed on probation or given conditional release from incarceration, the court may require payment to either an education or treatment pro- gram for drug or alcohol abuse or for periodic testing. The amount of this payment is not to exceed the amount of any fine that could have been imposed for the offense. KY ST § 533.030.
	<b>Incarceration Costs</b> : An offender may be required to reimburse the State or local government for incarceration costs. KY ST § 532.352; KY ST § 532.358.
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory
Conditions of Use:	At the conclusion of an offender's license revocation period, the court shall require that person to operate only motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices (with the exception of an employer's vehicles). This re- quirement lasts for the following periods following license revocation: <u>First offense</u> – 6 months; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – 12 months; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) – 30 months. <u>Second or subsequent</u> offenders must wait at least 1 year from the start of the license revocation period before apply- ing to the court for permission to use an ignition interlock device. This requirement may be used as an alternative to impounding the license plates of a <u>second or subsequent</u> drunk-driving offender. KY ST § 189A.340.
	The court may grant hardship driving privileges for the purpose of employment, education, medical care, alco- hol/substance abuse education programs or other court ordered counseling programs. This privilege may be con- ditioned on the offender operating motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices. KY ST § 189A.410.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>Steinbeck v. Com.</i> , 862 S.W.2d 912 (Ky.App. 1993).

Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
TT ··· 1 1 TY 1 · 1	
Homicide by Vehicle:	<b>x</b> 7 348
State Has Such a Law:	Yes <sup>348</sup> Manslaughter in the Second Degree – when a person wantonly causes the death of another person including situ- ations where the death results from the person's operation of a motor vehicle. KY ST § 507.040; <i>Spring v. Com.</i> , 998 S.W.2d 439 (Ky. 1999).
	<b>Reckless Homicide</b> – when a person, with recklessness causes the death of another person. KY ST § 507.050; <i>Farmer v. Com.</i> , 6 S.W.3d 144 (Ky.App. 1999).
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	<u>Manslaughter in the Second Degree</u> – Class C Felony; <u>Reckless Homicide</u> – Class D Felony.
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Class C Felony– Not less than 5 years or more than 10years and may be fined not less than \$1,000 or more than\$10,000.Class D Felony– Not less than 1 year or more than 5 yearsand may be fined not less than \$1,000 or more than\$10,000.
	KY ST § 532.060; KY ST § 534.030.
Mandatory Minimum Term:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> KY ST § 186.560.
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	Not less than 5 years (mand)
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate- rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of al- cohol or a controlled substance; or (3) has refused to sub- mit to a chemical test for either alcohol or drugs. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more vi- olations of any of the above-listed items, the "disqualifica- tion" is for life (10 years mand).
	A person who operates a CMV with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04 but $\leq$ .08 is subject to a fine of not less than \$20 and not more than \$50. However, if the BAC/BrAC is > .08, that person is subject to the same fines as for a regular drunk-driving offense.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>348</sup> The difference between the two manslaughter statutes lies within their degrees of culpability. Manslaughter in the second degree requires wantonness, which inherently includes recklessness. This is similar to voluntary manslaughter. Reckless homicide requires only recklessness, which is similar to involuntary manslaughter.

	Third and subsequent offense (within 5 years; Class D felony) – Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> and may be fined not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> .
	<ul> <li><u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years; Class A misdemeanor) –</li> <li>Not more than 12 months and/or not more than \$500;</li> <li><u>Also in violation of DUI laws</u> (Class D felony) – Not less than 1 year or more than 5 years and may be fined not less than \$1,000 or more than \$10,000;</li> </ul>
imprisonment (renn//rine.	<u>Also in violation of DUI laws</u> (Class A misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>12 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> ;
Criminal: Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First offense (within 5 years; Class B misdemeanor) – Not
Sanction:	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	
	A person is prohibited from operating a CMV during ei- ther a CDL disqualification or a CDL out-of-service or- der. KY ST § 281A.090(2). However, neither this section nor any other provision of Chapter 281A provides a sanc- tion for this prohibition.
	The pre-trial and implied consent provisions of Ch. 189A also apply to CMV operators (KY ST § 281A.220(2)). KY ST § 281A.010; KY ST § 281A.190; KY ST § 281A.210; KY ST § 281A.2102; KY ST § 281A.220
	However, if the operator fails to appear at the implied con- sent hearing, which is automatically scheduled in refusal situations, the CMV privilege is revoked; the length of this revocation is not specified.
	If a CMV operator refuses to submit to a chemical test (for an alcohol concentration or for the presence of other drugs) under the CMV implied consent law provisions, the operator's privilege to operate a CMV can be either sus- pended or revoked: <u>First refusal</u> – the CMV privilege is suspended for one year (mand); <u>Subsequent refusal</u> – the privilege is suspended for life (mand).
	In addition, a CMV operator who has any measurable (or detectable) amount of alcohol or controlled substance in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours.

#### KENTUCKY

	KY ST § 189A.090(2); KY ST § 532.060; KY ST §
	532.090; KY ST § 534.030; KY ST § 534.040.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	None
Imprisonment/Fine:	
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action	<b>Revocation</b> KY ST § 189A.090(2).
Withdrawal Action:	<u>First offense</u> (within 5 years) – 6 months;
	Also in violation of DUI laws – 1 year;
	<u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>l year</b> ;
	<u>Also in violation of DUI laws</u> – 2 years;
	Third and subsequent offenses (within 5 years) – 2
	years;
	<u>Also in violation of DUI laws</u> – <b>5 years</b> .
	KY ST § 189A.090(2).
Mandatory Term of License	<u>First offense</u> – 6 months;
Withdrawal Action:	Second or subsequent offense – 1 year.
	KY ST § 189A.090(4).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No <sup>349</sup>
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> KY ST § 72.025 <sup>350</sup>
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the	
the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes KY ST § 72.025
Vehicle Passengers:	<b>Yes</b> KY ST § 72.025
Pedestrian:	Yes KY ST § 72.025
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages	
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years)	21

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>349</sup> While the Kentucky statutes specifically do not contain habitual offender laws related to motor vehicles, there is a "persistent felony offender" statute which allows for sentencing enhancement based on a defendant's prior criminal history. KY ST § 532.080. <sup>350</sup> Coroners shall require a post-mortem examination to be performed under certain circumstances surrounding death, to include when the death appears to be the result of a motor vehicle accident and the operator of the motor vehicle has left the scene, or the body has been found in or near a roadway or railroad. Additionally, coroners are mandated to report in writing to the State Police the death of any person as a result of an accident involving a motor vehicle. KY ST § 189.590.

Sale/Purchase:	KY ST § 244.080; KY ST § 244.085.	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> There is a limited employment exemption.	
Possession/Consumption:	KY ST § 244.085; KY ST § 244.087.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	<b>Yes</b> <sup>351</sup>	
(Yes/No):	KY ST § 413.241.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	<b>Yes</b> <i>Pike v. George</i> , 434 S.W.2d 626 (Ky. 1968).	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):	N -	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts: Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	No           A parent, guardian or other person legally charged with	
Social Host – Chiminal Enforcement.	the care and custody of a minor may be found guilty of	
	endangering the welfare of a minor when he/she fails or	
	refuses to exercise reasonable diligence in the control of	
	such child to prevent that child from becoming a	
	neglected, dependant or delinquent child. Endangering the	
	welfare of a minor is a Class A misdemeanor, punishable	
	by not more than 6 months in jail and/or a fine of not more	
	than \$500.	
	KY ST § 530.060; KY ST § 532.090; KY ST § 534.040.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<u>First offense</u> – Class B Misdemeanor;	
	Second or subsequent offense – Class A Misdemeanor	
Imprisonment Term/Fine:	KY ST § 244.080(2); KY ST § 244.990(1).	
imprisonment Term/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>90 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$250</b> ;	
	Second or subsequent offense – Not more than <b>12 months</b>	
	and/or not more than \$500.	
	KY ST § 244.990; KY ST 532.090; KY ST § 534.040.	
	KI 51 § 211.770, KI 51 552.070, KI 51 § 554.040.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or Revocation <sup>352</sup>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>351</sup> This law limits liability if the service of alcoholic beverages was to a person over the legal drinking age. A licensee or any employee thereof is not liable for the actions of a patron "unless a reasonable person under the same or similar circumstances should know that the person served is already intoxicated at the time of serving." <sup>352</sup> For a first violation, in lieu of revocation, the State may suspend the license. The licensee, however, as an alternative to this sus-

#### KENTUCKY

	KY ST § 243.480; KY ST § 243.490; KY ST § 243.500.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	<b>2</b> years KY ST § 243.100(1)(e).
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	First offense– Class B Misdemeanor;Second or subsequent offense– Class A Misdemeanor.KY ST § 241.010(2); KY ST § 244.080(1); <sup>353</sup> KY ST §244.990(1).
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense– Not more than 90 days and/or not more than\$250;Second or subsequent offense– Not more than 12 monthsand/or not more than \$500. KY ST § 532.090; KY ST §534.040.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes           Suspension or Revocation           KY ST § 243.480; KY ST § 243.490; KY ST § 243.500.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	<b>2</b> years KY ST § 243.100(1)(e).
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes KY ST § 189.530(2).
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>354</sup>

pension, may pay a fine. For retail licensees and all others, the fine is \$50 per day the license would have been suspended. KY ST § 243.480(1). For a second violation within 2 years, the license must be revoked or suspended. KY ST § 243.500(4). <sup>353</sup> This statute, which prohibits the sale of alcoholic beverages by "retail licensees" to persons under the legal drinking age, was also applied to an employee of a licensee who sold alcoholic beverages to such a person. *Com.* v. *White*, 3 S.W.3d 353 (Ky. 1999) <sup>354</sup> By virtue of the open container law (excluding the exceptions mentioned above), no consumption of alcohol is permitted.

STATE	LOUISIANA	
General Reference:	West's Louisiana Statutes Annotated: Revised Statutes	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcoholic beverages LA R.S. § 14:98(A)(1)(a).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{355} \text{ LA R.S. } (12)(12)(12)(12)(12)(12)(12)(12)(12)(12)$	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq$ .08 §32:662(A)(1)(c).	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	For Persons Under 21 Years Old. $\geq$ .02 LA R.S. §32:662(A)(1)(d).	
Other:	Under the influence of any drug. <sup>357</sup> LA R.S. § 14:98(A); LA R.S. § 40:964.	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes LA R.S. § 32:661.	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes LA R.S. § 32:661.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> LA R.S. § 32:661(A).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes <sup>358</sup> (Criminal & civil cases) LA R.S. §	
Admitted into Evidence:	32:666(A)(2)(c), (3); LA R.S. § 13:3714(B).	
Other Information:	Under LA R.S. § 32:666(A)(1)(a)(i), if there is probable cause that <u>any</u> drunk-driving offense occurred and a driver has been involved in a traffic fatality or accident resulting in a serious bodily injury, the driver may not refuse to submit to a chemical test. A law enforcement officer may <u>direct</u> that a chemical test be performed (i.e., that a blood sample be obtained). Such a test (or sample) may be per- formed (or obtained) even without the consent of the driver.	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>355</sup> Standard: "Percent by weight" based on grams of alcohol per 100 cubic centimeters of blood. LA R.S. § 14:98(A)(1)(b); LA R.S. § 14:98.1(A); LA R.S. § 32:662(A)(2). <sup>356</sup> This offense is defined as "[t]he crime of operating a motor while intoxicated is operating a motor vehicle... when the operator's

blood alcohol concentration is .02 percent or more by weight...." LA R.S. § 14:98.1(A). Note: If the person's alcohol concentration is  $\geq$  .08, he must be charged under the regular illegal per se law. LA R.S. § 14:98.1(B). <sup>357</sup> This includes under the influence of any controlled dangerous substance, a combination of alcohol and one or more drugs (ob-

tained by prescription or over-the-counter), and one or more drugs not controlled dangerous substances. LA R.S. § 14:98(A). <sup>358</sup> Refusal to submit to a field sobriety test can also be admitted into evidence at a drunk-driving offense trial. *See State v. Washing-*

ton, 498 So.2d 136 (La.App. 5 Cir. 1986).

#### LOUISIANA

Blood:	<b>Yes</b> LA R.S. § 32:661.	
Urine:	Yes LA R.S. § 32:661.	
Other:	Other bodily substances LA R.S. § 32:661.	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	YesRequired for third and subsequent offenses. LA R.S. § $14:98(D)$ , (E), (G).Required for persons <21 years old charged with driving with an alcohol concentration $\geq$ .02. LA R.S. § $14:98.1(E)$ .	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	Not less than <b>10 days</b> <sup>359</sup> or more than <b>6 months</b> and not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . LA R.S. § 14:98.2(B)(1).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First refusal– Suspension 1 year (90 days mand);Second or subsequent refusal (within 5 years) – Suspension 2 years.	
	Any refusal related to either a fatality or serious bodily injury (where the trier of fact determines intoxication to be a contributing factor): <u>First refusal</u> – Suspension 1 year (mand); <u>Second refusal</u> – Suspension 2 years (mand).	
	Refusal by Persons Under 21 Years Old – Suspension 180 days (90 days mand).	
	LA R.S. § 32:667(B)(2); LA R.S. § 32:668(B).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI		
<u>Offense</u> :		
Criminal Sanctions:		

 $<sup>^{359}</sup>$  Imposition or execution of sentence shall not be suspended unless: (1) the offender is placed on probation with a minimum condition that he serve 2 days in jail and participate in substance abuse and driver improvement programs; or (2) the offender is placed on probation with a minimum condition that he perform four 8-hour days of community service and participate in substance abuse and driver improvement programs. LA R.S. § 14:98.2(B)(2).

Imprisonment/Fine:	First conviction360 – Not less than 10 days or more than 6months and not less than \$300 or more than \$1,000;Second conviction361 – Not less than 30 days or more than6 months and not less than \$750 or more than \$1,000;Third conviction – Not less than 1 year or more than 5years and a fine of \$2,000;Fourth or subsequent conviction – Not less than 10years or more than 30 years and a fine of \$5,000.LA R.S. § 14:98(B), (C), (D).Child Endangerment – Any person violating the DWIlaws with a passenger 12 years of age or younger, shall besubject to the mandatory minimum if a first or second of-fense. For a third offense, the execution of the minimummandatory sentence shall not be suspended. For a fourthor subsequent offense, at least 2 years shall be imposedwithout suspension. LA R.S. § 14:98(J).
	<b>DWI Related Injury</b> : <u>Vehicular negligent injuring</u> – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or a fine of not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>First degree vehicular negligent injuring</u> (serious bodily injury) – Not more than <b>5 years</b> and/or a fine of not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . LAPS & 14:39 1: LAPS & 14:39 2
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	LA R.S. § 14:39.1; LA R.S. § 14:39.2.         First conviction – 2 days or four 8-hour work days of community service;         Second conviction – 48 hours;         Third conviction – 45 days;         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 75 days.         LA R.S. § 14:98.
Other Penalties:	LA K.S. § 14.96.
Other Penalties:         Community Service:         Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	First conviction – four 8-hour days of community service may be ordered if an offender seeks a suspended imposi- tion or execution of sentence; Second conviction – 30 8- hour days of community service may be ordered if an of- fender seeks a suspended imposition or execution of sen- tence;Third conviction – any offender placed on probation shall perform 30 8-hours days of community service; Fourth or subsequent conviction – any offender placed on probation shall perform 40 8-hour days of community service; Vice. LA R.S. § 14:98(B), (C), (D), (E).An offender must pay restitution to a victim where there is
Keshtunon (e.g., viennis runu)	An ortender must pay restruction to a victim where there is

 $<sup>^{360}</sup>$  If BAC  $\geq$  .15, at least 48 hours is mandatory. If BAC  $\geq$  .20, the offender shall be fined not less than \$750 or more than \$1,000 and at least 48 hours is mandatory. LA R.S. § 14:98(B)(2).  $^{361}$  On a second offense where the first offense was vehicular homicide or vehicular negligent injuring the sanction is not less than 1 year or more than 5 years and a fine of \$2,000. At least 6 months must be served. LA R.S. § 14:98(C)(3). If BAC  $\geq$  .15, at least 96 hours is mandatory. If BAC  $\geq$  .20, the offender shall be fined \$1,000 and at least 96 hours is mandatory. LA R.S. § 14:98(C)(2).

Other	"actual pecuniary loss" or where the victim has incurred costs in connection with a criminal prosecution. LSA C.Cr.P. Art. 883.2. Additionally, crime victims' reparation is available for victims of drunk-driving incidents. LA R.S. § 46:1801 <i>et seq</i> .	
Other:	Substance Abuse Programs Costs: An offender shall pay the cost of participation unless unable to do so. LA R.S. § 14:98(I).	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	$BAC \ge .08$ :First violation - Suspension for 90 days;Second or subsequent violation (within 5 years) - Suspension for 365 days (mand except for second offense where the use of an ignition interlock device has been authorized).	
	$BAC \ge .20$ : <u>First violation</u> – Suspension for 2 years; <u>Second or subsequent violation</u> – Suspension for 4 years.	
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> (BAC $\ge$ <b>.02</b> ) – <b>Suspension</b> for <b>180 days</b> (30 days mand).	
	LA R.S. § 32:667(B)(1), (3); LA R.S. § 32:668(B)(1)(c), (3); LA R.S. § 32:378.2(2)(a).	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Suspension</b> LA R.S. § 32:414; LA R.S. § 32:430.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense362 - 12 months;Second offense(within 5 years) - 24 months;Third or subsequent offense(within 5 years) - 36 months.	
	$\frac{BAC \ge .20}{First offense} - 2 years;$ Second offense - 4 years.	
	For Persons under 21 Years Old – 180 days.	
	LA R.S. § 32:414.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>None</b> (hardship/restricted driving privileges are available);	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>362</sup> This includes vehicular negligent injuring under LA R.S. § 14:32.1.

Other: Rehabilitation:	<u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>12 months</b> (mand <u>ex-</u> <u>cept</u> in situations where the use of an ignition interlock device has been authorized); <u>Third and subsequent offenses</u> (within 5 years) – <b>24</b> <b>months</b> (12 months mandatory in situations where the use of an ignition interlock device has been authorized).	
Alcohol Education:	Yes	
	First and second offenses LA R.S. § 14:98(B), (C).	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes <u>First and subsequent offenses</u> LA R.S. § 14:98(B), (C), (D), (E).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:		
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Third or subsequent offense, the vehicle used by the of- fender shall be seized, impounded and sold at auction. LA R.S. § 14:98(D)(2), (E)(2).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	The vehicle shall be exempt from sale if it was stolen, or if the driver at the time was not the owner and the owner did not know the driver was operating while intoxicated. The vehicle shall not be released from impoundment until tow- ing and storage fees have been paid. LA R.S. § 14:98(D)(2), (E)(2).	
Other:		
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Home Incarceration</b> : Any person convicted of a third or subsequent DWI offense and who is placed on probation shall be placed in a home incarceration program for not less than 6 months (for $3^{rd}$ conviction) or 1 year (for $4^{th}$ or subsequent conviction) and not more than the remainder of the sentence of imprisonment. LA R.S. § 14:98(D)(1)(c), (E)(1)(c).	
	School Bus Operators: A person who tests positive for the presence of marijuana, opioids, amphetamines, phen- cyclidine or other controlled dangerous substance or has an alcohol concentration $\geq$ .08 must be prohibited by pub- lic education authorities from operating a school bus. LA R.S. § 17:491.2(A).	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	<u>First offense with a BAC of 0.20 or more</u> – A restricted license may be granted during the first 12 months of sus- pension so long as an ignition interlock device is installed and operative;	

	<ul> <li><u>Second offense</u> – Not less than 6 months and during any period of suspension or additional period as determined by the court;</li> <li><u>Second offense with a BAC of 0.20 or more</u> – During the first 3 years of the 4-year suspension period. §14:98 K(2)(b)</li> <li><u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – Until completion of substance abuse treatment and home incarceration. LA R.S. § 14:98 K.</li> <li><u>Driving on a Suspended/Revoked License</u> – First or subsequent offenders are eligible for restricted driving for the entire suspension/revocation period, if they equip their vehicles with "ignition interlock" devices. LA R.S. § 32:378.2(A).</li> </ul>	
Sabriaty Chaolinainta		
Sobriety Checkpoints: Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>State v. Jackson</i> , 764 So.2d 64 (La. 2000).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes – Vehicular Homicide: Not less than 5 years (3 years mand) or more than 30 years and not less than \$2,000 or more than \$15,000. LA R.S. § 14:32.1(B).	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>5 years</b> or more than <b>30 years</b> and not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$15,000</b> . §14:32.1(B)	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	3 years <sup>363</sup>	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Suspension LA R.S. § 32:414.	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	24 months	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	24 months	
Other:	The offender shall be required to participate in a substance abuse and may be required to participate in a driver im- provement program. LA R.S. § 14:32.1(B).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from (i.e., his CDL is suspended, revoked or cancelled for) operating a CMV for minimum period of 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazard- ous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has	

 $<sup>^{363}</sup>$  If BAC  $\geq$  .15, or this is a second/subsequent offense, then there is a mandatory minimum of 5 years. LA R.S. § 14:32.1(B).

	a BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq .04$ ; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for either alcohol or drug concentrations. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the "disqualifi- cation" is for life (10 years mand). It is a criminal offense to operate a CMV with BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq .04$ or while under the influence of al- cohol/controlled substance, or to refuse to submit to a chemical test. The sanctions for this offense are a jail term of not more than 6 months and a fine of not less than \$10 or more than \$500. There is also a civil penalty of not more than \$1,250. In addition, a CMV operator, who has any "measured amount of alcohol concentration" or a "detected presence" of either alcohol or controlled substance in their system, must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. LA R.S. § 32:414.2; LA R.S. § 32:427(A)(2).	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense: <sup>364</sup>		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Misdemeanor	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or up to <b>\$500</b> .	
	If such violation was simultaneous with a second or sub- sequent DWI conviction, then the offender shall be fined not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> and not less than <b>7</b> <b>days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> . LA R.S. § 32:415.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	sequent DWI conviction, then the offender shall be fined not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> and not less than <b>7</b> <b>days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> .	
Imprisonment/Fine: Length of Term of License	<ul> <li>sequent DWI conviction, then the offender shall be fined not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and not less than 7 days or more than 6 months.</li> <li>LA R.S. § 32:415.</li> <li>7 days/\$300 if such violation was simultaneous with a</li> </ul>	
Imprisonment/Fine:	<ul> <li>sequent DWI conviction, then the offender shall be fined not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and not less than 7 days or more than 6 months. LA R.S. § 32:415.</li> <li>7 days/\$300 if such violation was simultaneous with a second or subsequent DWI offense conviction.</li> <li>Suspension/Revocation</li> </ul>	
Imprisonment/Fine: Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:	<ul> <li>sequent DWI conviction, then the offender shall be fined not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and not less than 7 days or more than 6 months.</li> <li>LA R.S. § 32:415.</li> <li>7 days/\$300 if such violation was simultaneous with a second or subsequent DWI offense conviction.</li> </ul>	
Imprisonment/Fine:         Length of Term of License         Administrative Licensing Actions:         Type of Licensing Action         Withdrawal Action:         Mandatory Term of License         Withdrawal Action:	<ul> <li>sequent DWI conviction, then the offender shall be fined not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and not less than 7 days or more than 6 months. LA R.S. § 32:415.</li> <li>7 days/\$300 if such violation was simultaneous with a second or subsequent DWI offense conviction.</li> <li>Suspension/Revocation LA R.S. § 32:415(B).</li> <li>Original suspension/revocation period extended for 1 year LA R.S. § 32:415(B).</li> <li>None. A hardship license is available for first offenders. LA R.S. § 32:415.1.</li> </ul>	
Imprisonment/Fine:         Length of Term of License         Administrative Licensing Actions:         Type of Licensing Action         Withdrawal Action:         Mandatory Term of License	<ul> <li>sequent DWI conviction, then the offender shall be fined not less than \$300 or more than \$500 and not less than 7 days or more than 6 months. LA R.S. § 32:415.</li> <li>7 days/\$300 if such violation was simultaneous with a second or subsequent DWI offense conviction.</li> <li>Suspension/Revocation LA R.S. § 32:415(B).</li> <li>Original suspension/revocation period extended for 1 year LA R.S. § 32:415(B).</li> <li>None. A hardship license is available for first offenders.</li> </ul>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>364</sup> There are no specific sanctions for driving on a suspended/revoked license where the basis was a DWI. The sanctions listed are for ordinary driving on a suspended/revoked license, unless otherwise stated.

State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes LA R.S. § 32:1472.	
Grounds for Being Declared an	Convictions for 10 or more traffic law offenses within 3	
Habitual Offender:	years involving moving violations in the operation of a	
	motor vehicle which are required to be reported to the De-	
	partment of Public Safety and Corrections. LA R.S. §	
	32:1472(A).	
Term of License Rev While Under	<b>3 years</b> LA R.S. § 32:1479.	
Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Note</b> : A first time habitual offender may apply for a hard-	
Habitual Offender Status.	ship license under LA R.S. § 32:1477(B), (C)(3).	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	An offender is sentenced in the manner that the code	
on Charges of Driving While on	prescribes for the specific crime committed. A person	
Habitual Offender Status:	deemed a habitual offender is then subject to a portion of	
	time added onto the base sentence. An offender can be	
	sentenced only as a habitual offender if the requirements	
	under LA R.S. § 15:529.1 are met. Additional	
	imprisonment depends on the number of prior felonies and	
	types committed. Additionally, if more than 10 years have	
	elapsed between the date of the commission of the current	
	offense(s) and the expiration of the maximum sentence(s) of	
	the previous conviction(s), then the current offense shall not	
	be counted as a subsequent offense. LA R.S. § 15:529.1(C).	
Licensing Actions (Specify):	<b>Revocation</b> LA R.S. § 32:1479.	
Electising Actions (Specify).	<b>Revocation</b> LAR.5. § 52.1477.	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> LA R.S. § 32:661(2), (6).	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes (if a victim)	
Pedestrian:	Yes (if a victim)	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> LA R.S. § 14:93.11; LA R.S. § 14:93.12; LA R.S. §	
Sale/Purchase:	26:90(A); LA R.S. § 26:286(A).	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> LA R.S. § 14:93.10(2) <sup>365</sup> ; LA R.S. § 14:93.12.	
Possession/Consumption:		
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>365</sup> The term "public possession" does not include the possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages for a religious purpose, when the person is accompanied by a parent or legal custodian who is over 21 years of age, for medical purposes or at a private residence. LA R.S. § 14:93.10(2).

State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes – only with regard to minors. LA R.S. § 9:2008.1; see Colgate v. Mughal Bros., Inc., 836 So.2d 1229 (La.App. 2 Cir. 2003); Godfrey v. Boston Old Colony Ins. Co., 718 So.2d 441 (La.App. 4 Cir. 1998).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	N/A	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Yes</b> – limited. Social hosts are not liable for injuries sustained or caused by an intoxicated guest over the legal drinking age. LA R.S. § 9:2800.1(C); <i>c.f., Garcia on</i> <i>behalf of Garcia v. Jennings</i> , 427 So.2d 1329 (La.App. 2 Cir. 1983) (holding liable social hosts who furnished alcoholic beverages to a minor).	
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	A parent, legal guardian or any person having custody of a minor who contributes to, aids, encourages, or permits such child (under the age of 17) to possess or consume alcohol may be found guilty of the following: (1) Contributing to the delinquency of a juvenile – not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500; (2) Encouraging or contributing to child delinquency (no age limitation) – not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000; (3) Improper supervision of a minor – not more than \$250, and not less than 40 hours of community service and a family counseling program. LA R.S. § 14:92; LA R.S. § 14:92.1; LA R.S. § 14:92.2.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	Alcoholic beverages with an alcohol content of more than 6 % – <b>Misdemeanor</b> . LA R.S. § 26:2(1); LA R.S. § 26:90(A)(2).	
	Alcoholic beverages with an alcohol content of 0.5-6% – <b>Misdemeanor</b> . LA R.S. § 26:241(1); LA R.S. § 26:286(A)(2).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> . LA R.S. § 26:171; LA R.S. § 26:521.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		

#### LOUISIANA

License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Revocation</b> or <b>Suspension</b> <sup>366</sup>	
windrawn (105/100).	LA R.S. § 26:90(I); LA R.S. § 26:286(I) <sup>367</sup>	
Longth of Torm of Licongo With drawal	Not specified	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age: 368		
Type of Criminal Action:	Alcoholic beverages with an alcohol content of more than	
	6 % – Misdemeanor. LA R.S. § 26:2(1); LA R.S. §	
	26:90(A)(2).	
	Alcoholic beverages with an alcohol content of 0.5-6% –	
	<b>Misdemeanor</b> . LA R.S. § 26:241(1); LA R.S. §	
	26:286(A)(2).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not	
	less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> . LA R.S. § 26:171; LA	
	R.S. § 26:521.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Revocation or Suspension	
	LA R.S. § 26:90(I); LA R.S. § 26:286(I).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> LA R.S. § 26:90(A)(15); LA R.S. § 26:286(A)(15).	
	These sections prohibit the sale of alcoholic beverages at a	
	fixed price on an "all you can drink" basis after 10 pm.	
	ince price on an an you can armik basis arter 10 pm.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
ine i assenger Compartment of a venicle.		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>366</sup> If a licensee has been certified as a "responsible vendor" of alcoholic beverages, his/her license is not suspended or revoked for a first offense. LA R.S. § 26:935(B).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>367</sup> Under LA R.S. § 26:97 and LA R.S. § 26:293, the liquor licensing authority may deny issuing a permit for a premises for one year if such premises were the subject of a revoked license. An administrative fine may be ordered in lieu of or in addition to suspension or revocation. Those fines are: first offense – not less than \$50 or more than \$500; second offense (within 3 years) – not less than \$250 or more than \$1,000; third offense (within 3 years of the first offense) – not less than \$500 or more than \$2,500. LA R.S. § 26:96; LA R.S. § 26:521. <sup>368</sup> In addition to the sanctions provided in the alcoholic beverage control law, the following sanctions are available in criminal law:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>368</sup> In addition to the sanctions provided in the alcoholic beverage control law, the following sanctions are available in criminal law: An imprisonment term of not more less than 30 days or more than 6 months and/or a fine of not less than \$500 or more than \$1000. LA R.S. § 14:93.11.

#### LOUISIANA

Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> LA R.S. § 32.300.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes LA R.S. § 32.300(F).	

STATE	MAINE	
General Reference:	Maine Revised Statutes Annotated (MRSA)	
	Code of Maine Rules (CMR)	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense: <sup>369</sup>	Under the influence of intoxicants. ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(1-A)(A).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{370}$ ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(1-A)(A).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	<b>No</b> <sup>371</sup>	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of intoxicants ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(1-A).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:		
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> – Police must have "probable cause" before a suspected drunk driver has to submit to a chemical test. ME ST TI 29-A § 2521(1).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> ME ST TI 29-A § 2521(1).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal Cases) ME ST TI 29-A § 2521(3)(B).	
Other Information:	A person shall be required to submit to a chemical test if he is involved in an accident that results or may result in death to any other person. ME ST TI 29-A § 2522.	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes ME ST TI 29-A § 2521(1).	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> ME ST TI 29-A § 2521(1).	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>369</sup> Maine refers to the crime as an "OUI" offense (operating under the influence). <sup>370</sup> "Blood alcohol level" (blood alcohol concentration) is stated as "percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. However, the law further defines this to mean grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood. ME ST TI 29-A § 2401(2). <sup>371</sup> For purposes of evidence in proceedings *other than those arising under ME ST TI 29-A § 2411 (OUI offenses)*, it shall be pre-sumed that a person was under the influence of intoxicants when he/she has a blood alcohol level  $\geq$  .08. ME ST TI 29-A § 2432(3).

Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail). <sup>372</sup>	First offense – Not less than 96 hours and not less than\$600;Second offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 12 daysand not less than \$900;Third offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 40 daysand not less than \$1,400;Fourth offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 6 months,20 days and not less than \$2,500.ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(A), (B), (C), (D).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First refusal – Suspension – 275 days;         Second refusal – Suspension – 18 months (mandatory);         Third refusal – Suspension – 4 years (mandatory);         Fourth refusal – Suspension – 6 years (mandatory).         ME ST TI 29-A MRSA § 2521(6).         Probable cause to believe that death has occurred or will         occur as a result of an accident – Suspension – 1 year.         ME ST TI 29-A § 2522.	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: A person under 21 years old who refuses to submit to a chemical test where there is probable cause that they were driving with "any amount of alcohol in the blood" is subject to the following licensing action: <u>First refusal</u> – <b>Suspension</b> – <b>18 months</b> ; <sup>373</sup> <u>Second or subsequent refusal</u> – <b>Suspension</b> – <b>30 months</b> . ME ST TI 29-A § 2472(4).	
	Refusal in negligent death case: Any person who negli- gently operates a motor vehicle in a manner as to cause the death of a person who subsequently fails to submit to a chemical test shall have his/her license suspended for <b>3</b> years. ME ST TI 29-A § 2456.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>372</sup> These criminal sanctions apply when the offender is also convicted of operating the vehicle while under the influence. <sup>373</sup> If such person operated the motor vehicle at the time of the offense with a passenger under 21 years of age, an additional 180 days must be imposed. ME ST TI 29-A § 2472(4).

Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<ul> <li>&lt; .15 <u>First offense</u> – A fine of not less than \$500; <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – Not less than 7 days or more than 12 months and not less than \$700 or more than \$2,000; <u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) – Not less than 30 days or more than 12 months and not less than \$1,100 or more than \$2,000; <u>Fourth offense</u> (within 10 years) – Not less than 6 months or more than 5 years and not less than \$2,100 or more than \$5,000.</li> <li>≥ .15 <u>First offense</u> – Not less than 48 hours or more than \$2,000.</li> <li>Serious bodily injury – Not less than 6 months or more than 5 years and not less than 82,100 or more than \$2,000.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Prior conviction of a Class C felony crime (DWI) or prior DWI criminal homicide – Not less than 6 months or more than 10 years and not less than \$2,100 or more than \$20,000.</li> <li>ME ST TI 17-A § 1252; ME ST TI 17-A § 1301; ME ST TI 29-A § 2411.</li> </ul>	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	Community service may be ordered as a condition of pro- bation. ME ST TI 17-A § 1204(2-A)(L).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes As a condition of probation or as part of the incarceration sanction, or by way of the crime victims compensation fund. ME ST TI 5 § 3360; ME ST TI 17-A § 1204(2-A)(B); ME ST TI 17-A § 1252(3); ME ST TI 17-A § 1321.	
Other:	Surcharge:A \$30 surcharge must be charged. If, how- ever, the conviction is for operating under the influence of drugs or a combination of liquor and drugs, the surcharge is \$125. ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(7).State surcharges of 14% and 5% must be added to every fine, forfeiture or penalty. ME ST TI 4 § 1057.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	1	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes BAC ≥ .08	

· · ·	
Fourth offense (within 10 years) – Suspension 6 years.	
Serious bodily injury – Suspension 6 years.	
Prior conviction of a Class C felony crime (OUI) or prior DWI criminal homicide – Suspension 10 years.	
<b>Child Endangerment</b> : An offender with a passenger under the age of 21 shall have an additional <b>180 days</b> of suspension.	
Person under 21 years of age	
<u> </u>	
ME ST TI 29-A § 2411; ME ST TI 29-A § 2453;ME ST	
A person's endorsement to operate a school bus is permanently revoked if they drive such a vehicle while OUI. A person who has a school bus en- dorsement and who commits a OUI offense while operating another type	
of vehicle has his/her school bus endorsement suspended for 3 years (1 year mand) for a first offense and for 6 years (mand) for a second or sub- sequent offense (within 10 years). ME ST TI 29-A § 2452.	
-	
Suspension <sup>374</sup>	
<b>1</b>	
puet to jouro. 111 of 112, 11 g 2000.	
Ves	
privileges can be restored. ME ST TI 29-A § 2504.	
Second and subsequent offenders must participate in an	
alcohol and drug treatment program. ME ST TI 29-A §	
	Serious bodily injury – Suspension 6 years.         Prior conviction of a Class C felony crime (OUI) or prior DWI criminal homicide – Suspension 10 years.         Child Endangerment: An offender with a passenger under the age of 21 shall have an additional 180 days of suspension.         Person under 21 years of age:         First offense – Suspension 1 year;         Second offense – Suspension 2 years.         ME ST TI 29-A § 2411; ME ST TI 29-A § 2453; ME ST TI 29-A § 2472(3-A).         A person's endorsement to operate a school bus is permanently revoked if they drive such a vehicle while OUI. A person who has a school bus endorsement and who commits a OUI offense while operating another type of vehicle has his/her school bus endorsement suspended for 3 years (1 year mand) for a first offense and for 6 years (mand) for a second or subsequent offense (within 10 years). ME ST TI 29-A § 2452.         Suspension <sup>374</sup> The suspension periods are the same as those under the administrative per se law, above.         ME ST TI 29-A § 2451; ME ST TI 29-A § 2453.         None – a work-restricted license may be issued as long as the offender's license has not been under suspension in the past 10 years. ME ST TI 29-A § 2503.         Yes         First and subsequent offenders <u>must</u> participate in and complete an alcohol or drug program before their driving

 $<sup>^{374}</sup>$  A license suspension period for a drunk-driving offense conviction is reduced by any suspension period that was imposed for an admin. per se violation. ME ST TI 29-A § 2453(6)(c).

Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:		
Authorized by Specific Statutory	Yes	
Authority:	ME ST TI 29-A § 2422(1).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	The motor vehicle may be released after at least an 8-hour period and payment of any towing and storage fees. ME ST TI 29-A § 2422(3).	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permissive	
Conditions of Use:	OUI Violation:	
	Second offense – Reinstatement of license after 9 months if device is installed for 2 years; <u>Third offense</u> – Reinstatement of license after 3 years if device is installed for 3 years; <u>Fourth offense</u> – Reinstatement of license after expiration of suspension if device is installed for 4 years. ME ST TI 29-A § 2508; ME ST TI 29-A § 2411.	
	<b>Driving on Suspended/Revoked Violation</b> : The Secretary of State may require a person subject to the minimum mandatory periods of suspension to have in- stalled an ignition interlock device for a period of up to 2 years. ME ST TI 29-A § 2412-A(7).	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>State v. Leighton</i> , 551 A.2d 116 (Me. 1988).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Yes</b> ME ST TI 17-A § 211; ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(D-2).	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:	Class B Crime	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>6 months</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> and not less than <b>\$2,100</b> or more than <b>\$20,000</b> . ME ST TI 17-A § 1252; ME ST TI 17-A § 1301; ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(D-2).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Suspension/Revocation (by the court)	
Action:	ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(D-2); ME ST TI 29-A § 2454(2).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	Permanent revocation However an offender may petition for a license after <b>10</b> years. ME ST TI 29-A § 2411(D-2); ME ST TI 29-A § 2454(2).	

Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	10 years	
of License Withdrawal: Other:	Administrative Suspension: A person who negligently causes the death of another while driving under the influ- ence of intoxicants, with a BAC $\geq$ .08 or who fails to sub- mit to a chemical test, will have his/her license suspended 	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	Via regulations, a person's CDL is suspended if that per- son operates a CMV and has a BAC $\geq$ .04 or is under the influence of a controlled substance. If the person has nei- ther a prior DWI offense conviction nor administrative license adjudication (e.g., driving with BAC $\geq$ .04) related to CMV operations, his/her CDL is suspended for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials). If that person has either a prior DWI offense conviction or administrative license adjudication (e.g., driving with BAC $\geq$ .04) related to CMV operations, the CDL is per- manently suspended (mand). Under statutory provisions, if a person refuses to submit to a chemical test to determine either alcohol level or drug concentration where there is probable cause to believe that they were operating a CMV with a BAC $\geq$ .04 or while under the influence of drugs, their privilege to operate a CMV is suspended for 1 mandatory year (3 years if trans- porting hazardous materials) for a first refusal and perma- nently for a second or subsequent refusal. ME ST TI 29-A § 1253; ME ST TI 29-A § 2458(2)(M); ME ST TI 29-A § 2523; 49 U.S.C.A § 31310.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> –7 days and a minimum of \$600; <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – 30 days and a mini- mum of \$1,000; <u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) – 60 days and a minimum of \$2,000;	

	Fourth offense (within 10 years) – 6 months and a mini-	
	1000000000000000000000000000000000000	
	ME ST TI 29-A § 2412-A.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	These terms are mandatory.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	These terms are mandatory.	
Length of Term of License		
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension ME ST TI 29-A § 2412-A(3).	
Type of Election	Suspension will ST TT $2^{j-A}$ § $2^{j-1}2^{-A}(5)$ .	
Withdrawal Action:	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>3 years</b> added to the	
	original suspension or revocation.	
Mandatory Term of License	1 year	
Withdrawal Action:		
Other:	Forfeiture: When the sole owner-operator of the motor	
	vehicle has been convicted of DWI and a simultaneous	
	offense of operating after suspension when the underlying	
	suspension was imposed for a prior OUI conviction, the	
	vehicle must be forfeited to the State. ME ST TI 29-A §	
	2421.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes ME ST TI 29-A § 2551-A et seq.	
Grounds for Being Declared an	Convictions of 3 serious traffic offenses <sup>375</sup> within 5 years,	
Habitual Offender:	or convictions of 10 or more moving violations within 5	
	years.	
Term of License Rev While Under	Revoked – Indefinitely	
Habitual Offender Status:	However, relief from such revocation may be granted after	
	3 years. <sup>376</sup> ME ST TI 29-A § 2552; ME ST TI 29-A §	
	2554.	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	<u>First offense</u> – Class D crime;	
on Charges of Driving While on	Subsequent offense (within 10 years) – Class C crime.	
Habitual Offender Status:	ME ST TI 29-A § 2557-A(2).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of		
Driving While on Habitual Offender		
Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Operating After Habitual Offender Revocation:	
	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b>	
	and \$500;	
	Second offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 6 months	
	or more than 5 years and \$1,000;	
	Third offense (within 10 years) – Not less than <b>9 months</b>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>375</sup> "Serious traffic offenses" include homicide resulting from operation of motor vehicle, OUI conviction, driving to endanger, operating after suspension/revocation, operating without an ignition interlock device if license is reinstated based on that provision. <sup>376</sup> A **work-restricted license** is available after 18 months. ME ST TI 29-A § 2556. However, a person is not eligible for this type

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>376</sup> A **work-restricted license** is available after 18 months. ME ST TI 29-A § 2556. However, a person is not eligible for this type of license if: (1) one of the offenses used to determine habitual offender status was homicide related to motor vehicle operations; (2) he/she is convicted of operating a motor vehicle while on habitual offender status; or (3) after having his/her license restored, he/she is convicted within 5 years of an offense cited in the habitual offender law. In addition, a person is not eligible for this type of license, if one of the offenses used to determine habitual offender status was a DWI offense, until he/she completes the required license suspension periods and any alcohol or drug program. ME ST TI 29-A § 2556(5).

		1
	or more than 5 years and \$1,000;	
	Fourth offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 2 years or	
	more than 5 years and \$1,000.	
	Aggravated <sup>377</sup> Operating After Habitual Offender Re-	
	vocation:	
	First offense – Not less than <b>6 months</b> or more than <b>12</b>	
	months and not less than \$500 or more than \$2,000;	
	Second offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 1 year or	
	more than 5 years and not less than \$1,000 or more than	
	\$5,000;	
	Third offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 2 years or	
	more than <b>5 years</b> and not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than	
	\$5,000;	
	Fourth offense (within 10 years) – 5 years and not less	
	than \$3,000 or more than \$5,000.	
	ME ST TI 17-A § 1252; ME ST TI 17-A § 1301; ME ST	
	TI 29-A § 2557-A(2); ME ST TI 29-1 § 2558.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	The terms above are mandatory.	
Imprisonment/Fine:		
_		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
	N.	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Sale/Purchase:	ME ST TI 28-A § 2(20); ME ST TI 28-A § 2051(1)(A).	
Minimum Age (Years)	21 Home and employment exemption ME ST TI 28-A §	
Possession/Consumption:	2501(1)(B), (E)	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes	
(Yes/No):	ME ST TI 28-A § 2501 <i>et seq</i> .	
	Note: Except for medical expenses, recovery under the	
	dram shop act is limited to \$250,000 per single accident or	
	occurrence. ME ST TI 28-A § 2509.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>377</sup> At the time of habitual traffic offender revocation, a violator commits one of the following: (1) OUI; (2) driving to endanger; (3) eluding officer; (4) passing a roadblock; (5) exceeding maximum speed limit by 30 mph or more. ME ST TI 29-A § 2558(1).

Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes	
	Liability is limited to situations where the social host	
	negligently served alcoholic beverages to a minor or	
	recklessly served alcoholic beverages to a minor or a	
	visibly intoxicated person.	
	ME ST TI 28-A § 2503(5); ME ST TI 28-A § 2505(2);	
	ME ST TI 28-A § 2506(1); ME ST TI 28-A § 2507.	
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	A person who knowingly furnishes or allows consumption	
	or possession of liquor to/by a minor commits a Class D	
	crime. If the consumption of liquor causes bodily injury	
	or death to the minor or another, it is a Class C crime.	
	ME ST TI 28-A § 2081.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Alcoholie Deverages to intexteated rations.		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class E Crime ME ST TI 28-A § 1; ME STI TI 28-A §	
51	354; ME ST TI 28-A § 705(2-A).	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . ME	
1	ST TI 17-A § 1252; ME ST TI 17-A § 1301.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
<u>beveruges to momenteur runons</u> .		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or revocation	
	ME ST TI 28-A § 801; ME ST TI 28-A § 803(5).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Suspension – not specified in the statute.	
	Revocation – not less than 1 year or more than 5 years	
	ME ST TI 28A § 803(5).	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class E Crime	
- ) P + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	ME ST TI 28-A § 1; ME ST TI 28-A § 2(20); ME ST TI	
	28-A § 354; ME ST TI 28-A § 705(2)(E), (3)(E).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and not more than $\$1,000$ . ME	
renn er mprisennener me.	ST TI 17-A § 1252; ME ST TI 17-A § 1301.	
	51 11 17-11 y 1252, WIL 51 11 17-11 y 1501.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		

#### MAINE

Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or Revocation ME ST TI 28-A § 801; ME ST TI 28-A § 803(5).
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Suspension – not specified in the statute. Revocation – not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> ME ST TI 28A § 803(5).
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> ME ST TI 28-A § 709.
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes ME ST TI 29-A § 2112-A.
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes ME ST TI 29-A § 2112-A.

STATE	MARYLAND	
General Reference:	Annotated Code of Maryland	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	I. While under the influence of alcohol	
	MD TRANS § 21-902(a)(1).	
	While impaired by alcohol.	
	MD TRANS § 21-902(b).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq$ .08 <sup>378</sup> MD TRANS § 21-902(a)(2).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq$ .08 MD CTS & JUD PRO 10-307.	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	While impaired by any drug, any combination of drugs, a combination of one or more drugs and alcohol, or any controlled substance, or while such person has a detectable level of a controlled dangerous substance or its metabolites. MD TRANS § 21-902(c)(1), (d).	
Other:	I. An alcohol concentration $\geq$ <b>.07 but</b> < <b>.08</b> is <i>prima facie</i> evidence of driving while impaired by alcohol. MD CTS & JUD PRO § 10-307(d).	
	II. Any alcohol concentration of $\geq .02$ is <i>prima facie</i> evidence that the person was driving with alcohol in the person's blood, and driving in violation of an alcohol restriction.	
	tion. MD CTS & JUD PRO § 10-307(e), (f). III. Anyone arrested for DWI may not drive for 12 hours after the arrest. MD TRANS § 21.902.1.	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes MD TRANS § 16-205.2.	
Implied Consent Law:		
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes MD TRANS § 16-205.1(a)(2).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MD TRANS § 16-205.1.	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases)MD CTS & JUD PRO § 10-309(a)(2).Evidence of a refusal can only be admitted if it is "materialand relevant" to a matter other than guilt or innocence.Krauss v. State, 587 A.2d 1102 (Md. 1991).	
Other Information:	<b>Death or injury involvement</b> : If a driver is involved in a driving while under the influence of alcohol or driving while impaired (alcohol or drugs) which is related to an accident that resulted either in the death of or life threatening injury to another person, the driver shall be required to submit to a chemical test of blood or breath. MD TRANS	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>378</sup> **Standards**: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. MD TRANS § 11-103.2.

	§ 16-205.1(c)(1). Except as noted above, a person cannot be compelled to submit to a chemical test. MD CTS & JUD PRO § 10-309(a)(l).	
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>		
Blood:	Yes <sup>379</sup> MD TRANS § 16-205.1	
Urine:	No	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes A defendant may be placed on the "stet docket" or have his case nolle prosequied. In order to take advantage of this, the defendant is required to complete any alco- hol/substance abuse programs successfully and pay any fines or courts costs. At the end of successful completion no finding of guilt is ever made (stet) or the case is dis- missed (nolle prosequied). MD CRIM PROC § 6-229. Additionally, a defendant may be ordered to complete an alcohol treatment program as part of a probation before the court enters any judgment (finding of guilt) against such defendant. MD CRIM PROC § 6-220.	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	None	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	Not more than <b>2 months</b> and/or not more than $500^{380}$ MD TRANS § 27-101(x)(3).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> – Suspension 120 days; <u>Second or subsequent refusal</u> – Suspension 1 year.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>379</sup> Under MD CTS & JUD PRO § 10-305(a), a test for alcoholic content of the blood cannot be administered unless: (1) the driver is unconscious or otherwise incapable of refusing a test; (2) injuries to the driver require removal to a medical facility; or (3) breath test equipment is not available. The Court of Appeals of Maryland has held that, under this statute, if a driver agrees to submit to a breath test and the <u>equipment</u> is available but not a qualified operator, the driver may refuse to submit to blood test without incurring licensing action. Under these circumstances, a refusal to submit to a blood test is not considered to be a refusal to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law. *Hyle v. Motor Vehicle Admin.*, 702 A.2d 760 (Md. 1997).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>380</sup> This applies only when the trier of fact finds beyond a reasonable doubt that the person knowingly refused to take a test arising out of the same circumstances as the violation.

#### MARYLAND

	MD TRANS § 16-205.1(2)(b)(1)(i)(3).
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	
Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Driving while impaired: <sup>381</sup> <u>First offense</u> – Not more than 2 months and/or not more than \$500; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$500.
	Driving while under the influence of alcohol $\ge .08$ : <u>First offense</u> – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000; <u>Second offense</u> – Not more than 2 years and/or not more than \$2,000; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – not more than 3 years and/or not more than \$3,000 Trans. §§21-902 and 27- 101(c), (f) and (k)
	Driving while impaired & transporting a minor: <sup>382</sup> <u>First offense</u> – Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,000.
	Driving under the influence & transporting a minor: <u>First offense</u> – Not more than 2 years and/or not more than \$2,000; <u>Second offense</u> – Not more than 3 years and/or not more than \$3,000; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – Not more than 4 years and/or not more than \$4,000.
	MD TRANS § 27-101. Serious Physical Injury: while under the influence – Not more than <b>3 years</b> and/or
	not more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>while impaired</u> – Not more than <b>2 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$3,000</b> . MD CRIM LAW § 3-211.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: 383	<u>First offense</u> – None;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>381</sup> Includes driving while impaired by drugs/alcohol and drugs/controlled substances. MD TRANS § 21-902(c), (d); MD TRANS §

includes driving while impaired by drugs/alcohol and drugs/controlled substances. MD TRANS § 21-902(c), (d); MD TRANS 27-101(c), (d)(1). <sup>382</sup> A "minor" is a person < 18 years old. MD CODE Art. 1 § 24(b)(2). <sup>383</sup> Imprisonment includes confinement in an inpatient rehabilitation or treatment center or home detention that includes electronic monitoring. MD TRANS § 27-101(j).

	Second offense within 5 years –5 days;
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> $-10$ days.
	MD TRANS § 27-101(j).
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	Community service may be ordered as part of any sus-
	pended sentence or probation. MD CRIM PROC § 6-219;
	MD CRIM PROC § 6-220.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	The court may order a defendant to pay restitution. MD
Restitution (e.g., vietinis i und)	CRIM PROC § 11-603(2). Also, a victim may receive
	payments under the Criminal Injuries Compensation Act.
	MD CRIM PROC § 11-801 et seq.
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	Suspension MD TRANS § 16-205.1.
Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.08
	<u>First offense</u> –45 days;
	Second or subsequent offense -90 days.
	≥.15
	<u>First offense</u> – 90 days;
	<u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – <b>180 days</b> .
	<u>Second of subsequent offense</u> – 180 days.
	These suspensions are <b>not</b> mandatory, as a restricted hard-
	ship license may be issued if the offender had no viola-
	tions or convictions within 5 years and did not refuse to a
	test under the implied consent law. MD TRANS § 16-
	205.1.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> or Suspension <sup>384</sup>
	MD TRANS § 16-205.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	DUI / driving while impaired by controlled dangerous
Years, etc.):	substance:
	Second or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Suspen-
	sion 1 year;
	sion i year,
	Driving while impaired (alcohol and/or drug) within a
	3-year period of 2 or more previous convictions of
	DUI/impairment – Revocation
	<u>First revocation</u> –at least 6 months;
	<u>Second revocation</u> –1 year; Third revocation – 18 months;

 $<sup>^{384}</sup>$  Any suspension shall be concurrent with any other suspension or revocation imposed by the Administration that arises out of the same circumstances of a DUI/impairment conviction. Additionally, an offender shall receive credit for any suspension period imposed. MD TRANS § 16-205(d-1)(2).

	<u>Fourth or subsequent revocation</u> – 2 years.
	Driving while impaired (alcohol and/or drug) within a 3-year period of 1 previous conviction of DUI/impairment – Suspension for not more than 120 days
	Driving while impaired (alcohol and/or drug): Suspen- sion – Suspension for not more than 60 days
	Under the age of 21: <u>First conviction</u> – 1 year; <u>Second or subsequent conviction</u> – 2 years.
	MD TRANS § 16-205; MD TRANS § 16-208.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	It appears the terms for subsequent offenders are mandato-
Withdrawal: Other:	ry. License Restrictions: The Administration shall impose an
	alcohol restrictions. The Administration shall impose an alcohol restriction that prohibits a person from driving or attempting to drive with alcohol in his blood, when such person has been convicted of any combination of two or more drunk- driving offenses within 5 years. The restriction shall be imposed for 3 years. MD TRAN § 16- $113(g)(1)$ .
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	Yes Alcohol education/treatment is required as a condition of probation. Any offender may be required to attend a driv- er improvement or an alcohol education program as a con- dition of reinstatement of their driving privilege. MD CRIM PROC § 6-219(c); MD TRANS § 16-212.
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Limited impoundment
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	MD TRANS § 27-111. A vehicle may be impounded as a sentence or part of a sentence, or condition of probation for not more than 180 days if a driver was driving the vehicle while his licenses was suspended or revoked for any DUI/impairment offense.
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	Upon a showing of bona fide sale, gift or transfer to another person prior to the date of the hearing. Addition- ally, the court shall take into consideration whether the vehicle is the primary means of transportation available for the use of the individual's immediate family. MD TRANS § 27-111(c).
Other:	
nition Interlock:	

Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):       Both         Conditions of Use:       As a condition of probation, the court may order a defendant for 1-3 years (one year minimum) to operate only vehicles equipped with "fignition interlock" devices.         BAC ≥ .15 – ignition interlock must be installed for at least one year.       Second or subsequent conviction – DUI – unless the requirement was waived at a hearing, ignition interlock for not less than 3 months or more than 1 year, after the expiration of the 1-year suspension.         If ignition interlock is required, proof of installation and periodic reporting by the defendant is required.       MD TRANS § 16-404.1; MD TRANS § 27-107.         Sobriety Checkpoints:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).       Permitted or Prohibited:         Permitted or Prohibited:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:       Homicide while DU1 <sup>365</sup> – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.       Homicide while DU1 <sup>365</sup> – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504.       Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505.         Sanctions:       Criminal Sanction:       Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:       Momicide while DU1 – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:       Homicide while DU1 – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.	Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Conditions of Use:       As a condition of probation, the court may order a defendant for 1-3 years (one year minimum) to operate only vehicles equipped with "ignition interlock" devices.         BAC ≥ .15 – ignition interlock must be installed for at least one year.       Second or subsequent conviction – DU1 – unless the requirement was waived at a hearing, ignition interlock for not less than 3 months or more than 1 year, after the expiration of the 1-year suspension.         IF ignition interlock is required.       MD TRANS § 16-404.1; MD TRANS § 27-107.         Sobriety Checkpoints:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:       Immicide while DU1 <sup>MS1</sup> – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.         Homicide by Vehicle:       Immicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504.       Homicide while impaired (drugs) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504.         Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:       Homicide while DU1 – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than 5 syears and/or not more th		
least one year.       Second or subsequent conviction – DUI – unless the requirement was waived at a hearing, ignition interlock for not less than 3 months or more than 1 year, after the expiration of the 1-year suspension.         If ignition interlock is required, proof of installation and periodic reporting by the defendant is required.         MD TRANS § 16-404.1; MD TRANS § 27-107.         Sobriety Checkpoints:         Permitted or Prohibited:         Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:         Homicide while DUI <sup>345</sup> – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505.         Sanctions:         Criminal Sanction:         Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcopous controlled substances) – Not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcopous) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcopous) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcopous) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcopous) – Not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impa		As a condition of probation, the court may order a defen- dant for <b>1-3 years</b> (one year minimum) to operate only
quirement was waived at a hearing, ignition interlock for not less than 3 months or more than 1 year, after the expi- ration of the 1-year suspension.       If         If ignition interlock is required, proof of installation and periodic reporting by the defendant is required.       Im         MD TRANS § 16-404.1; MD TRANS § 27-107.       Im         Sobriety Checkpoints:       Im         Permitted or Prohibited:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:       Im         Homicide by Vehicle:       Im         State Has Such a Law:       Yes         Homicide while DUI <sup>385</sup> – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.       Im         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504.       Im         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505.       Im         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505.       Im         Sanctions:       Immicide while DUI – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Imore than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (dacohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Imore than \$5,000.       Imore than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled sub- stances) – Not more than \$5,000.       Immicide while impaired (dangerous controlled sub- 		-
periodic reporting by the defendant is required.       MD TRANS § 16-404.1; MD TRANS § 27-107.         Sobriety Checkpoints:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:       Image: Comparison of the c		quirement was waived at a hearing, ignition interlock for not less than 3 months or more than 1 year, after the expi-
Sobriety Checkpoints:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Permitted or Prohibited:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:       Image: Comparison of the state of t		
Permitted or Prohibited:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:       Image: Constraint of the state of the sta		MD TRANS § 16-404.1; MD TRANS § 27-107.
Permitted or Prohibited:       Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).         Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:       Image: Constraint of the state of the sta	Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Homicide by Vehicle:       Image: State Has Such a Law:       Yes         Homicide while DUI <sup>385</sup> – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.       Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504.       Homicide while impaired (drugs) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505.         Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-506.       Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-506.         Sanctions:       Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:       Homicide while DUI – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Momicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:       None       None	* *	Permitted Little v. State, 479 A.2d 903 (Md. 1984).
State Has Such a Law:       Yes         Homicide while DUI <sup>385</sup> – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503.       Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505.       Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505.         Sanctions:       Criminal Sanction:         Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:       Homicide while DUI – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:       None	Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide while DUI385 – MD CRIM LAW § 2-503. Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504. Homicide while impaired (drugs) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505. 	Homicide by Vehicle:	
Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-504. Homicide while impaired (drugs) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-505. Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled sub- stances) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-506.Sanctions:Criminal Sanction:Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:Homicide while DUI – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000. Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000. Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000. Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than \$5,000. Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than \$5,000. Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled sub- stances) – Not more than \$5,000. Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled sub- stances) – Not more than \$5,000.Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:None	State Has Such a Law:	Yes
2-505.       Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-506.         Sanctions:		Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – MD CRIM LAW §
stances) – MD CRIM LAW § 2-506.Sanctions:Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:Homicide while DUI – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:None		
Sanctions:       Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:         Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:       Homicide while DUI – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:       None		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:       Homicide while DUI – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.       Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:       None	Sanctions:	
more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (alcohol) – Not more than 5         years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5         years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5         years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:       None		
years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (drugs) – Not more than 5         years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	more than <b>\$5,000</b> .
years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Homicide while impaired (dangerous controlled substances) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:       None		years and/or not more than \$5,000.
stances) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than         \$5,000.         Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:		
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: None		stances) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than
	Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	
Automisticative Electrising Action.	Administrative Licensing Action:	

 $<sup>^{385}</sup>$  "Under the influence of alcohol per se" is defined as a BAC/BrAC  $\geq$  .08 at the time of testing. MD CRIM LAW § 2-501.

Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Revocation MD TRANS 8 16 205(b)
Length of Term of Licensing	MD TRANS § 16-205(b). <u>First revocation</u> – 6 months;
Withdrawal:	<u>Second revocation</u> – <b>9</b> months,
williawai.	<u>Third revocation</u> – <b>18 months</b> ;
	111111111111111111111111111111111111
	MD TRANS § 16-208(b).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	None
of License Withdrawal:	A revocation may be denied, canceled or modified if a
of License withdrawar.	defendant needs to operate a motor vehicle for
	employment purposes. MD TRANS § 16-405(a).
	employment purposes. WD TRANS § 10-405(a).
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1
Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's	mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate-
Licenses (CDL):	rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person has a
<u>Elections (CDE):</u>	BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04 has violated MD TRANS § 21-902 or a
	similar Federal law or refuses to submit to a chemical test
	for alcohol concentration. For a subsequent violation or a
	combination of two or more violations of any of the above
	listed items, the "disqualification" is for life.
	nstea terns, the disquarmention is for fife.
	The lifetime disqualification is mandatory unless a re-
	duced period is provided by Federal regulations. A CMV
	operator is also subject to DWI criminal sanctions and
	administrative actions against his regular driving privileg-
	es. Additionally, a CMV operator, who has any "detecta-
	ble" amount of alcohol in the system, must be placed "out-
	of-service" for 24 hours.
	MD CTS & JUD PRO § 10-307(a); MD TRANS § 11-
	103.1; MD TRANS § 11-103.2; MD TRANS § 11-109;
	MD TRANS § 11-111.1; MD TRANS § 16-
	205.1(b)(1)(iii); MD TRANS § 16-208.1; MD TRANS §
	16-812; MD TRANS § 16-813.
Driving While License Suspended or	There is no specific statutory provision on this subject.
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI	The sanctions given are for the general offense of operat-
Offense:	ing a motor vehicle while driving privileges are suspended
	or revoked. MD TRANS § 16-303.
Sanction:	
Criminal:	Misdemeanor
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than
	\$1,000;
	<u>Subsequent offense</u> – Not more than <b>2 years</b> and/or not
	more than \$1,000.
	MD TRANS § 16-303; MD TRANS § 27-101.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	None
Imprisonment/Fine:	
Type of Licensing Action:	Revocation

(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	No Kuykendall v. Top Notch Laminates, Inc., 520 A.2d 1115 (Md.App. 1987).	
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	It is a civil offense and a citation shall be issued to any adult who knowingly and willfully allows an individual under the age of 21 to possess or consume an alcoholic beverage at a residence which the adult owns or leases and in which the adult resides.	
	However, an adult who willfully contributes to, encourag- es, causes or tends to cause any act, omission or condition which results in a violation may be punished by not more than 3 years and/or not more than \$2,500. MD CTS & JUD PROC § 3-8A-30; MD CRIM LAW § 10-117; MD CRIM LAW § 10-119.	
	The distinction may be in the age of the minor (under 18 years of age versus under 21 years of age).	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons: <sup>386</sup>		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor MD CODE ART 2B § 12-108; MD CODE ART 2B § 12- 110.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>\$50</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (if habitual drunkard) – Not more than <b>30 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$100</b> . MD CODE ART 2B § 12-108; MD CODE ART 2B § 110.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	YesSuspension or revocationMD CODE ART 2B § 10-401.For licenses issued by the Comptroller a monetary compromise of not more than \$2,000 may be paid in lieu of a suspension.MD CODE ART 2B § 10-402.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	The law does not specify a term of suspension for licenses issued by the Comptroller. However, if a license is revoked by the Comptroller, it is for <b>6 months</b> .	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>386</sup> The law also prohibits sales to habitual drunkards or to anyone whose family member has provided notice of intemperate habits. MD CODE ART 2B § 12-110.

	The periods of license suspension/ revocation may be	
	longer for certain counties.	
	MD CODE ART 2B § 10-404.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
the Willing Age.		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor	
Type of Chillinal Action.	MD CODE ART 2B § 12-108.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>\$50.</b> MD CODE ART 2B § 12-108.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or revocation	
	MD CODE ART 2B § 10-401.	
	For licenses issued by the Comptroller, a monetary com-	
	promise of not more than \$2,000 may be paid in lieu of a	
	suspension.	
	MD CODE ART 2B § 10-402.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	The law does not specify at term of suspension for licenses	
	issued by the Comptroller. However, if a license is re-	
	voked by the Comptroller, it is for <b>6 months</b> . The periods	
	of license suspension/ revocation may be longer for certain	
	counties.	
	MD CODE ART 2B § 10-404.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
• • • •		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
$4 l_{12} D_{22} D_{22$		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle: Open Container Law (Yes/No): Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes         MD CRIM LAW § 10-125(a).           Yes         MD CRIM LAW § 10-125(b); MD TRANS § 21-903.	

lepres- ST 90
( <b>41</b>
er the
il angeg
il cases minis- MA ST
se.
1

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>387</sup> A "narcotic drug" includes opium and opiate, opium poppy and opium straw, coca leaves and any of their derivatives, salts, compounds or isomers. MA ST 90C § 1.
 <sup>388</sup> The prosecution of any subsequent DUI offense shall not be placed on file or disposed of in any manner except trial, judgment and sentencing. If the interests of justice require an alternative disposition, then it must be done upon motion in writing stating specifically the reasons. MA ST 90 § 24(3).

Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	N/A	
<u>Test</u> :		
Refusal to Take Implied Consent		
Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	N/A	
Administrative Licensing Action	Suspension – 180 days;	
(Susp/Rev): <sup>389</sup>	Second refusal or refusal by someone under the age of 21	
	– suspension 3 years;	
	<u>Third refusal</u> – suspension 5 years;	
	<u>Fourth refusal</u> – <b>lifetime suspension</b> ;	
	<u>Refusal with a prior conviction of DUI-serious bodily in-</u> jury – suspension 10 years;	
	Refusal with a prior conviction of DUI-homicide – life-	
	time suspension.	
	MA ST 90 § 24(1)(f)(1).	
Other:	Impoundment: The officer shall impound the vehicle	
	driven by the operator for 12 hours after the operator's	
	refusal. MA ST 90 § 24(1)(f)(1)(iii).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
<u>Onense</u> .		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense – Not more than 2 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> years and/or not more	
	than <b>\$500</b> ;	
	<u>Second offense</u> – Not less than 60 days or more than $2\frac{1}{2}$	
	years and not less than \$600 or more than \$10,000;	
	<u>Third offense</u> – Not less than <b>180 days</b> or more than $2\frac{1}{2}$	
	years (or not less than 2 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> years or more than 5 years in the state prison) and not less than \$1,000 or more than	
	\$15,000;	
	Fourth offense – Not less than 2 years or more than $2\frac{1}{2}$	
	years (or not less than 2 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> years or more than 5 years in	
	the state prison) and not less than \$1,500 or more than	
	\$25,000;	
	<u>Fifth or subsequent offense</u> $-2\frac{1}{2}$ years (or not less than	
	$2\frac{1}{2}$ years or more than 5 years in state prison) and not	
	less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$50,000</b> .	
	Recklessly and negligently causing serious bodily in-	
	jury – Not less than $2\frac{1}{2}$ years or more than 10 years (or	
	not less than 6 months or more than $2\frac{1}{2}$ years in a	
	jail/house of correction) and not more than \$5,000.	

 $<sup>\</sup>overline{^{389}}$  Suspension for refusal shall run consecutively to any other suspension. MA ST 90 § 24(1)(f)(1).

	<b>Causing serious bodily injury</b> – Not more than 2½ years and/or not less than \$3,000.	
	<ul> <li>Child Endangerment<sup>390</sup> (child age 14 years or younger): Enhanced penalty of imprisonment and fine:</li> <li><u>First offense</u> – Not less than 90 days or more than 2½ years and not less than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000;</li> <li><u>Second offense</u> – Not less than 6 months (mand) or more than 2½ years (or not less than 3 years or more than 5 years in state prison) and not less than \$5,000 or more than \$10,000.</li> <li>MA ST 90 § 24(1)(a)(1); MA ST 90 § 24L; MA ST 90 § 24V; MA ST 274 § 1.</li> </ul>	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First offense– None;Second offense– 30 days/\$600;391Third offense– 150 days/\$1,000;Fourth offense– 12 months/\$1,500;Fifth and subsequent offense– 24 months/\$2,000.	
	Serious bodily injury – 6 months. Child Endangerment – 6 months.	
Other Penalties:	Assessment: \$250 and \$50 shall be assessed to any person who is convicted of, placed on probation for, or is granted a continuance without a finding for, or otherwise pleads guilty to or admits to a finding of sufficient facts of DUI. MA ST 90 § 24(a)(1).	
Community Service:	The court may order a defendant to serve a minimum of <b>30</b> hours of community service as a condition of probation. MA ST 90 § 24D.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	YesAs a condition of probation. MA ST 276 § 92.By a compensation fund. MA ST 258C § 2.	
Other:	A first offender <sup>392</sup> may received a suspended imposition of sentence and be placed on probation for not more than 2 years with the condition that he be confined for no less than 14 days in a residential alcohol treatment program. Failure to complete all probation obligations in a timely manner shall result in a sentence of not less than 2 days and a second chance at completing the residential and any other alcohol programs. Failure to complete that shall re- sult in a sentence of not less than 30 days. MA ST 90 § 24(1)(a)(4).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>390</sup> This sentence shall run consecutively to the predication violation (DUI). MA ST 90 § 24V. <sup>391</sup> **Persons Under 21 Years Old**: I. For <u>persons < 21 but a ≥18 years old</u> – suspension – 180 days. If a person does not have a previous drunk driving offense charge, the suspension may be waived if they participate in an alcohol education or treatment program. II. For <u>persons < 18 years old</u> – suspension – 1 year (mand). However, for a first refusal, there is only a 180-day mandatory suspension if the person participates in an alcohol education or treatment program. MA ST 90 § 24(1)(f); MA ST 90 § 24P(a). <sup>392</sup> This shall not apply to a first offender who caused serious personal injury or death . MA ST 90 § 24D.

Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Var	
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes Suspension until the DUI charges are disposed of but not more than <b>30 days</b> . MA ST 90 § $24(1)(f)(2)$ .	
	<b>Persons Under 21 Years Old</b> : The following suspensions apply notwithstanding the finding concerning any DUI offense: <u>A person &lt; 21 but <math>\ge</math> 18 years old</u> (BAC $\ge$ .02): <b>180 days</b> . If the person is a first offender, the suspension may be waived if he/she participates in an alcohol education or treatment program. <u>A person &lt; 18 years (BAC <math>\ge</math> .02): <b>1 year</b>. However, for a first violation, there is only a 180-day mandatory suspen- sion if the person participates in an alcohol education or treatment program. MA ST 90 § 24P(a).</u>	
Other:	I. If the law enforcement officer does not take action under the admin. per se law at the time of arrest, the court, at the time of arraignment, shall suspend a defendant's license until the case is disposed of (but not more than 30 days), provided the State establishes a <i>prima facie</i> showing that the defendant was operating a motor vehicle with a BAC $\geq$ .08 (persons under 21 years old BAC $\geq$ .02). MA ST 90 § 24N. II. A person's license may be suspended or revoked for not more than 30 days without a hearing if he/she has "committed" a violation of the motor vehicle laws that "constitute an immediate threat to the public safety." MA ST 90 § 22(a).	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Probation / Revocation	
Type of Electising Action (Susp/Rev).	MA ST 90 § 24(1)(b); MA ST 90 § 24D.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First offense <sup>393</sup> – 1 year;	
Years, etc.):	Second offense – 2 years;	
	<u>Third offense</u> – 8 years;	
	Fourth offense – 10 years;	
	<u>Fifth and subsequent offenses</u> – Life	
	Any subsequent offender who is assigned to an alco-	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>393</sup> A first offender who is placed on a 2-year probation without a disposition shall have his license suspended for not less than 45 days or more than 90 days. A first offender under the age of 21, in the same category, shall have his license suspended for 210 days. MA ST 90 § 24D.

Mandatory Minimum Term of	hol/controlled substance education, treatment or rehabilitation program and who violates a DUI law shall have his license revoked for life.         Serious bodily injury: Revocation 2 years.         Child Endangerment:         First offense – Suspension 1 year;         Subsequent offense – Suspension 3 years.         MA ST 90 § 24(1)(c); MA ST 90 § 24L; MA ST 90 § 24R; MA ST 90 § 24V.         First offense – 3 months;
Withdrawal:	<u>Second offense</u> – 1 year; <u>Third offense</u> – 2 years; <u>Fourth offense</u> – 5 years; <u>Fifth and subsequent offenses</u> – Life MA ST 90 § 24(1)(c).
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	Yes
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes <u>First offense</u> – For first offenders who have not caused major injury or death, they may be placed on probation for not more than 2 years. MA ST 90 § 24D. Individuals shall be placed on probation for not more than two years and shall, as a condition of probation, be as- signed to a driver alcohol education program and, if deemed necessary by the court, to an alcohol or controlled substance abuse treatment or rehabilitation program or to both, and such person's license or right to operate shall be suspended for a period of no less than forty-five nor more than ninety days; provided, however, that if such person was under the age of twenty-one when the offense was committed, the person's license or right to operate shall be suspended for two hundred and ten days, and such person shall be assigned to a program specifically designed by the department of public health for the education and treat- ment of drivers who operates a motor vehicle after or while consuming alcohol, controlled substances or the va- pors of glue, except for a person aged 17 to 21, inclusive, whose blood alcohol percentage, by weight, was not less than .20, in which case such person shall be assigned to a driver alcohol treatment and rehabilitation program known as the "14-day second offender in-home program."
	<u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – In lieu of imprisonment, defendant may serve all or part of the mandatory impri- sonment term in a residential alcohol treatment program

	for not less than 14 days and participate in an outpatient counseling program MA ST 90 § 24(1)(a)(1).
	<u>BAC was &gt; .20 or if a repeat violation</u> , the violator shall complete an assessment of the level of the offender's ad- diction to alcohol or drugs, and the department's recom- mended course of treatment. MA ST 90 § 24Q.
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Forfeiture
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	<u>Fourth conviction</u> – If the vehicle is owned by the operator, it may be forfeited.
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	If the vehicle is jointly owned (before the second DUI conviction) by a parent, spouse, child, grandparent, brother, sister, or parent of the spouse living in the defendant's household, the court may consider releasing such vehicle if such family member shows he/she is dependent upon the vehicle for livelihood or maintenance of family. MA ST 90 § 24W.
Other:	Alcoholic Beverage Licensee Reporting: The court shall inquire of a DUI offender, prior to sentencing, as to whether he was served alcoholic beverages at a licensed establishment. Any information obtained is to be transmit- ted to law enforcement authorities. MA ST 90 § 24J.
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory
Conditions of Use:	Second or subsequent offenders – Before a new license is issued, or right to operate restored an ignition interlock device shall be installed in each vehicle owned for a pe- riod of 2 years. MA ST 90 § 24 1/2.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> Commonwealth v. Shields, 521 N.E.2d 987 (Mass. 1988).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law. <sup>394</sup>	Yes Homicide by motor vehicle. MA ST 90 § 24G. Manslaughter while operating a motor vehicle. MA ST 265 § 13 1/2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>394</sup> The State has the discretion to charge an offender with either manslaughter or homicide involving DUI, but it cannot charge both if the act is based on DUI only. The purpose of proscribing homicide by motor vehicle was to provide a middle ground between the felony of manslaughter and misdemeanor of driving so as to endanger. Vehicular homicide is not a lesser-included of manslaughter. *See Commonwealth v. Jones*, 416 N.E.2d 502 (Mass. 1981) for further explanation.

Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term):	<ul> <li>Homicide: <u>Negligently or recklessly</u> – Not less than 2½ years or more than 15 years (or not less than 1 year or more than 2½ years in jail or house of correction) and not more than \$5,000; <u>No negligence or recklessness</u> – Not less than 30 days or more than 2½ years and/or not less than \$300 or more than \$3,000. MA ST 90 § 24G.</li> <li>Manslaughter – Not less than 5 years or more than 20 years and not more than \$25,000.</li> </ul>	
	MA ST 265 § 13 1/2.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Homicide: <u>Negligently or recklessly</u> – 1 year; <u>No negligence or recklessness</u> – None. Manslaughter – 5 years.	
Administrative Licensing Action:	Wansiaughter – 5 years.	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Revocation	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>15 years</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – <b>life</b> . MA ST 90 § 24G; MA ST 265 § 13 1/2.	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	The terms above are mandatory.	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for not less than 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting ha- zardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04 or is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance, or refused to submit to a chemi- cal test. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for life. MA ST 90F § 9; MA ST 90F § 11.	
	A CMV operator who has any alcohol in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. A violation of the out-of-service order shall result in disqualification for not less than 90 days (first violation); not less than 1 year (second violation within 10 years); not less than 3 years (third or subsequent violation within 10 years). Addition- ally the driver is subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$1,100 or more than \$2,750. MA ST 90F § 9(E 1/2 ); MA ST 90F § 10.	

Driving While License Suspended or		
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI		
Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>60 days</b> or more than <b>2<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> years</b> and not less	
	than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> . MA ST 90 § 23.	
	If a person violates a DUI offense and his license is re-	
	voked or suspended, punishment is not less than 1 year or	
	more than 2 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> years and not less than \$2,500 or more than	
Mandatana Minimum Tana af	\$10,000.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	60 days/\$1,000	
Imprisonment/Fine:	While violating DUI offense – 1 year/\$2,500	
Length of Term of License	while violating DOI offense – 1 year/\$2,500	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension/Revocation MA ST 90 § 23.	
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension/Revocation WIA 51 90 § 25.	
Withdrawal Action:	Suspension/revocation is extended for an additional pe-	
	riod of 1 year. MA ST 90 § 23.	
Mandatory Term of License	The term appears to be mandatory.	
Withdrawal Action:		
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes MA ST 90 § 22F	
Grounds for Being Declared an	Any combination of three or more serious traffic of-	
Habitual Offender:	fenses <sup>395</sup> within 5 years, or 12 convictions within 5 years	
	for traffic offenses. <sup>396</sup>	
Term of License Rev While Under	<b>4 years</b> MA ST 90 § 22F.	
Habitual Offender Status:		
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	Misdemeanor MA ST 274 § 1.	
on Charges of Driving While on		
Habitual Offender Status:		
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender		
Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>2 years</b> and/or not less than <b>\$500</b> or more	
imprisonment (Term)/Time.	than <b>\$5,000</b> . MA ST 90 § 23.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	None	
Imprisonment/Fine:		
F		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>395</sup> These include DUI, negligent/reckless endangerment, hit and run and driving on a suspended/revoked license.
 <sup>396</sup> These are offenses which required the suspension or revocation of license for 30 days or more, including serious traffic offenses.

Lawa Doquiring DAC Chamical Tasta on	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Demons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	Veg limited MA ST 29 S 4A
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes – limited MA ST 38 § 4A.
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the	
the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes <sup>397</sup>
Vehicle Passengers:	No
Pedestrian:	No
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages	
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> MA ST 138 § 34; MA ST 138 § 34A.
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> There is an exemption for persons 18-21 years old for
Possession/Consumption:	employment purposes. MA ST 138 § 34C.
Drom Shan Laws and Palatad Lagal	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:	
<u>Actions</u> .	
State Has a Dram Shop Law	No <sup>398</sup>
(Yes/No):	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	Yes
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	Adamain v. Three Sons, 233 N.E.2d 18 (Mass. 1968).
Common Law Rule by Action of the	
Highest Court of Record in the State	
(Case Citation):	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes
	<i>McGuiggan v. New England Tel. &amp; Tel Co.,</i> 496 N.E.2d 141 (Mass. 1986).
Social Host – Criminal Enforcement:	A person who furnishes or supplies alcohol to a minor
	may be found guilty of:
	<b>Furnishing Alcohol to a Minor</b> – punishable by not more
	than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,000; or
	<b>Contributing to the Delinquency of a Minor</b> – punisha-
	ble by not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$500.
	MA ST 119 § 63; MA ST 138 § 34;
	see e.g., Commonwealth v. Militello, 848 N.E.2d 406 (Mass.App.Ct. 2006).
Criminal Action Against Owner or	
Employees of Establishments that Serve	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>397</sup> In the case of a single vehicle accident, the law requires medical examiners to submit to the police laboratory blood samples of drivers who die of injuries received in auto accidents within 4 hours of an accident. However, the law only applies if, at the time of the accident, the driver was the only occupant of the vehicle and no other individuals were involved. MA ST 38 § 4A. <sup>398</sup> However, liability may be placed on one who sells alcoholic beverages to an already intoxicated person or a minor, through a

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>396</sup> However, liability may be placed on one who sells alcoholic beverages to an already intoxicated person or a minor, through a negligence action if the sale was the proximate cause of an injury to a third person. *See Adamian v. Three Sons, Inc.*, 233 N.E.2d 18 (Mass. 1968);

Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not less than 1 month and not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$50 and not more than \$500. MA ST 138 § 62; MA ST 138 § 69.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension, revocation or cancellation MA ST 138 § 64.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	If revocation is imposed, a licensee is disqualified from receiving a license for <b>1 year</b> after the expiration of the term of the revoked license. No established period for suspension or a cancellation.
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . MA ST 138 § 34.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension, revocation or cancellation MA ST 138 § 64.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	If revocation is imposed, a licensee is disqualified from receiving a license for <b>1 year</b> after the expiration of the term of the revoked license. No established period for either a suspension or a cancellation. MA ST 138 § 64. A licensee who is convicted of a violation within 24 months of a previous offense may be required to obtain liquor liability insurance to a limit of not less than \$100,000 to any one person and \$200,000 to all persons. MA ST 138 § 64A; MA ST 138 § 67.

#### MASSACHUSETTS

Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes MA ST 90 § 24I.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	There is no specific statutory provision for consumption by a passenger. However, since open containers are prohibited, prohibition of consumption necessarily follows.	

STATE	MICHIGAN
General Reference:	Michigan Compiled Laws Annotated
	Michigan Administrative Code (MI ADC)
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
	200
Standard DWI Offense:	1. Operating while intoxicated. <sup>399</sup> MI ST § 257.625(1)(a).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{400}$ MI ST § 257.625(1)(b).
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: Any Bodily Alcohol Con-
	tent (meaning a BAC/BrAC/UrAC of ≥.02 but ≤.08) or
	"any presence of alcohol within a person's body resulting
	from the consumption of intoxicating liquor," (except) "as
	part of a generally recognized religious service or ceremo-
	ny." MI ST § 257.625(6).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None. However, a BAC of .08 falls within the definition
* × /	of "operating while intoxicated." MI ST § 257.625.
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of or visibly impaired by a controlled
	substance or a combination of alcoholic liquor and a con-
	trolled substance. MI ST § 257.625(1)(a), (3).
	A person, whether licensed or not, shall not operate a ve-
	hicle upon a highway or other place open to the general
	public or generally accessible to motor vehicles, including
	an area designated for the parking of vehicles, within this
	state if the person has in his or her body any amount of a
	controlled substance listed in schedule 1 under section
	7212 of the public health code, 1978 PA 368, MCL
	333.7212, or a rule promulgated under that section, or of a
	controlled substance described in section 7214(a)(iv) of
	the public health code, 1978 PA 368, MCL 333.7214. MI
	ST § 257.625(8).
Chambred Dreath Trate C. Al. 1.1	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes MI ST § 257.625a(2).
Implied Consent Law:	Yes MI ST § 257.625c
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MI ST § 257.625c(1)(a).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes MI ST § 257.625c(1).
(Yes/No):	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Civil and Criminal) MI ST § 257.625a(6)(a).
Admitted into Evidence:	
Other Information:	Following a refusal to submit to a chemical test under the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>399</sup> "Operating while intoxicated" means under the influence of alcoholic liquor, a controlled substance or a combination of alcoholic liquor and a controlled substance. Additionally, it means a person's ability to operate a vehicle is visibly impaired. MI ST § 257.625(1)(a), (c).

 $<sup>^{400}</sup>$  Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath or grams of alcohol per 67 milliliters of urine. MI ST § 257.625(1)(b), (6)(a).

	implied consent law, a law enforcement officer can seek a court order for such test. MI ST § 257.625a(6)(b)(iv); MI ST § 625d(1).
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood: Urine: Other:	Yes         MI ST § 257.625c(1).           Yes         MI ST § 257.625c(1).           None         Image: Contract of the second se
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No): Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	NoLimited A person who is charged with driving while under the influence, driving while visibly impaired or illegal per se offenses cannot enter a plea of either guilty or <i>nolo contendere</i> to driving with "any bodily alcohol content" in exchange for dismissal of the original charge. However the court, upon the prosecuting attorney's motion, may dismiss the charge. MI ST § 257.625(16).
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes         MI ST § 257.625b(5).
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail): Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None None
Other:	Civil infraction – A fine of not more than \$100 plus court costs. MI ST § 257.625a(2)(d); MI ST § 257.741 <i>et seq.</i> ; MI ST § 257.907. It is a misdemeanor for a CMV opera- tor to refuse to submit to a PBT. MI ST § 257.319d; MI ST § 257.625a(4).
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail): Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	NoneFirst refusal – 1 year suspension (a restricted/hardship license may be issued);Second or subsequent refusal (within 7 years) – 2 years mandatory suspension.MI ST § 257.323c; MI ST 257.625f.
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	

fense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Driving while under the influence/controlled substance
	(misdemeanor):
	First offense – Not more than 93 days or community ser-
	vice for not more than <b>360 hours</b> or a fine of not less than
	<b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ;
	<u>First offense</u> (BAC $\ge$ .17) – Not more than <b>180 days</b> <u>or</u>
	community service for not more than <b>360 hours</b> or a fine
	of not less than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$700</b> ;
	Second offense (within 7 years) – Not less than <b>\$200</b> or
	more than \$1,000 and not less than 5 days or more than
	<b>1year</b> <u>and/or</u> not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>90 days</b>
	of community service;
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (felony) – Not less $500$ or
	more than <b>\$5,000</b> and either of the following:
	not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> ; or
	probation with imprisonment in the county jail for not
	less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and community
	service for not less than <b>60 days</b> or more than <b>180 days</b> .
	MI ST § 257.625(9).
	Driving while visibly impaired:
	<u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>93 days</b> <u>or</u> not more than
	\$300 or not more than 360 hours of community service;
	<u>Second offense</u> (within 7 years) – Not less than <b>\$200</b> or
	more than \$1,000 and not less than 5 days or more than 1
	year and/or not less than 30 days or more than 90 days of
	community service;
	Third or subsequent offense (felony) – Not less than \$500
	or more than <b>\$5,000</b> and either of the following:
	not less than 1 year or more than 5 years; or
	probation with imprisonment in the county jail for not
	less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and community
	service for not less than 60 days or more than 180
	days.
	MI ST § 257.625(11).
	Serious impairment of bodily function (felony):
	Not more than 5 years and/or not less than \$1,000 or more
	than <b>\$5,000</b> . MI ST § 257.625(5).
	Persons under 21 years old (misdemeanor):
	<u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>\$250</b> and/or not more than
	<b>360 hours</b> of community service;
	<u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 7 years) – Not more
	than 93 days or not more than \$500 or not more than 60
	days of community service.
	MI ST § 257.625(12).

Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Operating with a minor under the age of 16:         First offense (misdemeanor) – Not less than \$200 or more than \$1,000 and either of the following:         not less than 5 days or more than 1 year; or         not less than 30 days or more than 90 days of community service.         Second offense (within 7 years) or subsequent offense (felony) – Not less than \$500 or more than \$5,000 and to either of the following:         not less than 1 year or more than 5 years; or         probation with imprisonment in the county jail for not less than 30 days or more than 1 year and community service for not less than 60 days or more than 180 days.         MI ST § 257.625(7)(a).         Person under 21 years old with minor under the age of 16 (misdemeanor):         First offense – Not more than \$500 or not more than 93 days or more than 190 days or more than 180 days.         MI ST § 257.625(7)(a).         Person under 21 years old with minor under the age of 16 (misdemeanor):         First offense – Not more than \$500 or not more than 93 days or more than 190 days or more than 180 days or more than 94 days of community service;         Second offense (within 7 years) or subsequent offense – Not less than 30 days or more than 1 year and/or not less than 30 days or more than 190 days of community service.         MI ST § 257.625(7)(b).         Driving while under the influence/controlled substance:         First offense – None;         Second offense – 5 days (with 48 consecutive hours) / \$200;         Third or subsequent offense – e
	<u>First offense</u> – None; <u>Second offense</u> – 5 days (with 48 consecutive hours) /
	county jail) / <b>\$500</b> . MI ST § 257.625(11)(d). Serious impairment of bodily function – <b>\$1,000</b> .
	Persons under 21 years old – None.

	Operating with a minor under the age of 16:         First offense - \$200;         Second or subsequent offense - either 1 year (if imprisoned with department of corrections) or 30 days (with 48 consecutive hours) (if probation with imprisonment in the county jail) / \$500.         MI ST § 257.625(7)(a).         Persons under 21 years old operating with minor under the age of 16:         First offense – None;         Second or subsequent offense – \$200.         MI ST § 257.625(7)(b).
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	See Criminal Sanctions, above.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes Restitution is ordered by the court and may also be a condition of proba- tion. MI ST § 771.3(1)(e); MI ST § 780.766.
Other:	<ul> <li>Assessments: A person convicted of a crime must pay the following assessments. Felony – \$60; Misdemeanor – \$50. MI ST § 780.905(1). Juveniles pay an assessment of \$20. MI ST § 780.905(2).</li> <li>Costs of Prosecution: For any drunk-driving offense listed above, an offender may be required to pay the costs of prosecution. MI ST § 257.625(13); MI ST § 769.1f(1).</li> <li>EMS Costs: For any drunk-driving offense listed above, an offender may be required to pay the emergency response costs incurred by state or local government as a result of such offense. MI ST § 769.1f(1), (3).</li> </ul>
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	None
Other:	Under MI ST § 257.625g, if a driver refuses to submit to a chemical test or submits to such test which indicates an "unlawful alcohol content," <sup>401</sup> the license is confiscated by the police. A temporary license is issued and is valid until the conclusion of the DWI criminal proceedings, or if not prosecuted, for 90 days or until admin suspension, which ever comes first.
Post DWI Conviction:	
	<u> </u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>401</sup> An "unlawful alcohol content" means a BAC/BrAC/UrAC of : (1)  $\ge$  .02 for a person under the age of 21; (2)  $\ge$  .04 for a person with a CDL operating a CMV; or (3)  $\ge$  .08 for a person operating any motor vehicle. MI ST § 257.625g(4).

Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension or Revocation
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	Driving while under the influence of alcohol/controlled substance: <u>First offense</u> (within 7 years) – Suspension 180 days; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 7 years) – Revoca- tion not less than 1 year;
	<u>Subsequent offense</u> (after revocation) – <b>Revocation</b> not less than <b>5 years</b> .
	Driving while visibly impaired: <u>First offense</u> (within 7 years) – Suspension 90 days (If the offense involved driving while impaired by a controlled substance or a controlled substance and alcohol – 180 days);
	<u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 7 years) – <b>Revoca-</b> tion not less than 1 year; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (after revocation) – <b>Revocation</b> not
	less than 5 years. Serious impairment of bodily function;
	<u>First offense</u> – <b>Revocation</b> not less than <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Any subsequent offense</u> – <b>Revocation</b> not less than <b>5</b> <b>years</b> .
	Persons under 21 years old: <u>First offense</u> (within 7 years) – Suspension 30 days; <u>Second offense</u> (within 7 years) – Suspension 90 days; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – Revoca- tion not less than 1 year; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (after revocation) – Revocation not less than 1 year.
	<b>Operating with a minor under the age of 16</b> : <u>First offense</u> (within 7 years) – <b>Suspension 180 days</b> .
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	MI ST § 257.303(2), (4); MI ST § 257.319(8). <b>Driving while under the influence/controlled substance</b> : <u>First offense</u> – <b>30 days</b>
	<b>Driving while visibly impaired</b> : <u>First offense</u> – <b>None.</b>
	<b>Serious impairment of bodily function</b> – the terms listed appear to be mandatory.
	Persons under 21 years old Suspension – None

	<b>Operating with a minor under the age of 16</b> – <u>First of-</u> <u>fense</u> - <b>90 days</b> .
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	Yes MI ST § 257.625b(5); MI ST § 771.3(2)(i).
Alcohol Treatment:	<b>Yes</b> MI ST § 257.625b(5); MI ST § 771.3(2)(g).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Vehicle Immobilization <sup>402</sup> / Forfeiture
Authorized by Specific Statutory	Immobilization:
Authority:	I. For any convictions for DUI (alcohol & controlled sub- stance), visible impairment, & driving with a minor < 16 years old, the court <u>may</u> order vehicle immobilization for not more than <b>180 days</b> .
	II. For any convictions for serious impairment of bodily function and death resulting from DUI/visible impairment, the court <u>shall</u> order vehicle immobilization for not more than <b>180 days</b> .
	III. For any second DUI-related convictions (except per- sons under 21 years old) within 7 years, the court <u>shall</u> order vehicle immobilization for not less than <b>90 days</b> or more than <b>180 days</b> .
	IV. For any third DUI-related convictions (except persons under 21 years old) within 10 years, the court <u>shall</u> order vehicle immobilization for not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>3 years</b> . MI ST § 257.904d.
	Forfeiture:
	The court may impose vehicle forfeiture as a sanction for convictions of: (1) DUI/impairment resulting in death; (2) DUI/impairment resulting in serious impairment of bodily function; (3) second or subsequent convictions of DUI (alcohol & controlled substance), impairment and driving with a minor < 16 years old. If forfeiture is not ordered in these instances, then immobilization may/shall be order according to the terms above.
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	The court may order the offender to pay the costs asso- ciated with immobilization and storage. MI ST § 257.904e(1).
Other:	The court may order such vehicle immobilized to be stored at a location approved by the court. MI ST § 257.904e(1).
tion Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	

 $<sup>^{402}</sup>$  "Vehicle immobilization" means requiring the motor vehicle involved in the violation immobilized in a manner which locks the ignition, wheels or steering wheel, or otherwise prevents any person from operating the vehicle. MI ST § 257.904d(8)(b).

Conditions of Use:	A driver who has been granted a restricted license must install an ignition interlock device. The initial period for the use of such device is 1 year. MI ST § 257.322(6), (7), (8), (9). Any person who is issued a restricted license shall not re- move the ignition interlock device unless the department of state has issued an order authorizing its removal. MI ST § 257.322a.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Prohibited</b> <i>Sitz v. Department of State Police</i> , 506 N.W.2d 209 (Mich. 1993). <sup>403</sup>
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Yes</b> <b>DUI – Death</b> (felony) MI ST § 257.625(4).
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	I. Not more than <b>15 years</b> and/or not less than <b>\$2,500</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> . MI ST § 257.625(4)(a).
	II. If a driver fails to exhibit due care and caution when approaching and passing a stationary authorized emergen- cy vehicle giving visual signal and causes the death of a police officer, firefighter or other emergency response per- sonnel, punishment is: not more than <b>20 years</b> and/or a fine of not less than <b>\$2,500</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> .
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: <sup>404</sup>	I. No law enforcement officer: <b>\$2,500</b> II. Law enforcement officer: <b>12 years/\$2,500</b> MI ST § 257.625(4); MI ST § 777.63; MI ST § 777.64.
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Revocation
Action:	MI ST § 257.303(2).
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	First offense– Not less than 1 year;Second or subsequent offense(within 7 years) – Not lessthan 5 years.MI ST § 257.303(4)(a).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	First offense1 year;Second or subsequent offense(within 7 years) - 5 yearsMI ST § 257.322(6).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>403</sup> In *Michigan Dep't of State Police v. Sitz*, 496 U.S. 444 (1990), the United States Supreme Court held that the use of sobriety checkpoints did not violate the Fourth Amendment. The Court reversed the Michigan Court of Appeals and remanded the case back to that court. On remand, the Michigan Court of Appeals held that, despite the U.S. Supreme Court's ruling, the use of sobriety checkpoints violated the Michigan state constitution. This was affirmed by the Michigan Supreme Court.
<sup>404</sup> Michigan follows sentencing guidelines which lay out minimum sentence ranges (actual time to serve). The range is determined,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>404</sup> Michigan follows sentencing guidelines which lay out minimum sentence ranges (actual time to serve). The range is determined, however, by variables such as the offender's prior criminal record. These ranges do not change the overall sentencing range permitted by law. MI ST § 777.61 *et seq*. The terms listed assume no prior criminal record.

Other:	If the vehicle is not ordered forfeited, then the court shall order vehicle immobilization in the judgment of the sen- tence. MI ST § 257.625(4)(a); MI ST § 257.625n; MI ST § 257.904d.
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person's privilege to operate a CMV is suspended for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has violated the law that prohibits CMV operation with a BAC/BrAC/UrAC ≥.04; has violated the provisions of the drunk driving law; or (3) has refused to submit to a chemical test for alcohol concentra- tion or the presence of controlled substances. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, a revocation for not less than 10 years. MI ST § 257.625f (1)(b), (c). A person who operates a CMV with a BAC/BrAC/UrAC ≥.04 but <.08 commits a criminal offense: <u>First offense</u> (misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>93 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$300</b> and license suspension for <b>1 year</b> (a restricted license is availa- ble for all of this period); <u>Second offense</u> (within 7 years) (misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> and license revocation for <b>life</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) (felony) – Not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> and either: not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> ; <u>or</u> probation with imprisonment in the county jail for not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> (with <b>48</b> consecutive hours) <u>and</u> not less than 60 days or more than <b>180 days</b> of community service; and license revocation for <b>life</b> . MI ST § 257.319b; MI ST § 257.625a; MI ST § 257.625m A CMV operator who has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC ≥ .15 must be placed "out of service" for 24 hours. MI ST § 257.319d(3).
	It is a misdemeanor for a person to refuse to submit to a PBT while oper- ating a CMV. Sanctions are not more than <b>90 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$100</b> , with a 24-hour out-of-service order. MI ST § 257.319d(7).
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	There are not statutory provisions specifically addressing this category. The provisions below address basic driving on suspended/revoked license.
Sanction:	
Criminal: Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First offense (misdemeanor) – Not more than 93 days and/or not more than \$500; Second and subsequent offenses (misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000. MI ST § 257.904(1), (3).If the offense resulted in death of another person - Not more than 15 years and not less than \$2,500 or more than \$10,000. MI ST § 257.904(4).

	If the offense resulted in <b>serious impairment of a body</b> <b>function</b> (felony) – Not more than <b>5 years</b> and/or not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . MI ST § 257.904(5).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None
Length of Term of License Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension or revocation MI ST § 257.904(10).
Withdrawal Action:	The original license suspension or revocation is extended for a like period.
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The new term appears to be mandatory.
Other:	For death or serious impairment, the court may order for- feiture of the vehicle. If the vehicle is not forfeited, then the court shall order immobilization. MI ST § 257.904(6).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	<ul> <li>I. 2 convictions of reckless driving within 7 years</li> <li>II. 2 or more convictions within 7 years of crimes including, but not limited to felony in which motor vehicle was used and vehicular homicide.</li> <li>III. 2 convictions, or a combination of 1 conviction for DUI (under 21) and 1 conviction within 7 years of crimes including DUI.<sup>405</sup></li> <li>IV. 3 convictions, or a combination of 2 convictions for DUI (under 21) and 1 conviction within 7 years of crimes including DUI.<sup>405</sup></li> <li>IV. 3 convictions, or a combination of 2 convictions for DUI (under 21) and 1 conviction within 7 years of crimes including DUI.</li> <li>MI ST § 257.303.</li> </ul>
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	<b>None</b> – Habitual Offender status, criminally speaking, applies to DUI $3^{rd}$ and provides for sentencing enhancement only. Therefore, if subsequent felony is punishably by a term less than life, the court may place the offender on probation or sentence the person to imprisonment for the maximum term that is not more than $1\frac{1}{2}$ times the longest term prescribed for a first conviction of that offense or for a lesser term. MI ST § 769.10.
Licensing Actions (Specify):	<b>Revocation / Denial</b> The secretary of state shall not issue a license to anyone deemed a habitual offender unless that person rebuts by clear and convincing evidence the presumption resulting from prima facie evidence of habitual offender status. MI ST § 257.303(4)(b).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>405</sup> See MI ST § 257.303(c), (g) for a list of crimes other than DUI.

Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MI ST § 257.625a(6)(f).	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	<b>Yes</b> MI ST § 257.625a(6)(f).	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> MI ST § 436.1701(1); MI ST § 436.1703(1); MI ST § 436.1801(2).	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> Employment exemption <sup>406</sup>	
Possession/Consumption:	MI ST § 436.1703.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MI ST § 436.1801(3), (10).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes – Limited to minors' actions. See MI ST § 436.1701; see also Longstreth v. Gensel, 377 N.W.2d 804 (Mich. 1985); Traxler v. Koposky, 384 N.W.2d 819 (Mich.App. 1986).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. A person who furnishes alcoholic liquor to a minor shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and punished in the following manner: <u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>60 days</b> and not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> – Not more than <b>90 days</b> and not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . Community service may be ordered. MI ST § 436.1701(1).	
	If <b>death</b> results, such person who furnished the alcoholic liquor shall be guilty of a felony and punished by impri-	

 $<sup>^{406}</sup>$  Additionally, a person <21 years old may consume alcoholic beverages as part of a course at a post-secondary educational institution. Also, such a person may purchase, possess or consume alcoholic beverages when participating in law enforcement operations designed to enforce the alcoholic beverage control law's provisions related to minors. MI ST § 436.1703(11), (13).

	sonment for not more than <b>10 years</b> and/or a fine of not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . MI ST § 436.1701(2).	
	II. A person having control over any premises, residence or other real property shall not knowingly allow a minor to consume or possess an alcoholic beverage at a social ga- thering on or within that premises, residence or real prop- erty. Violation of this law is a misdemeanor and punisha- ble by imprisonment for not more than <b>30 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> , for a first offense. For a second or sub- sequent offense, a violation is punishable by not more than <b>90 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . MI ST § 750.141a(2).	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor         MI ST § 436.1707;         MI ST § 436.1801(2);           MI ST § 436.1909.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> .	
	MI ST § 436.1909.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes           Suspension or Revocation MI ST § 436.1903(1); MI ST         § 436.1907(3).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Period of license suspension is not specified in the statute. Period of license revocation is at least <b>2 years</b> . MI ST § 436.1907(3).	
	A civil fine of not more than \$300 may be assessed in ad- dition to or in lieu of a suspension or revocation. MI ST § 436.1903(1).	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		$\neg$
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> <sup>407</sup> MI ST § 436.1701; MI ST §	
	436.1801(2); MI ST § 436.1909(2).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>407</sup> The State/local police cannot charge a licensee with violating the law prohibiting the sale of alcoholic beverages to persons under 21 years old, unless these law enforcement agencies also charge the minors involved in the offense (except minors being used as undercover agents) with violating the law prohibiting such persons from purchasing or attempting to purchase such beverages. MI

Term of Imprisonment:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> . MI ST § 436.1909.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <b>Suspension</b> or <b>Revocation</b> MI ST § 436.1903(1); MI ST § 436.1907(3).
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	<ul> <li>Period of license suspension is not specified in the statute.</li> <li>Period of license revocation is at least 2 years.</li> <li>MI ST § 436.1907(3).</li> <li>A civil fine of not more than \$300 may be assessed in addition to or in lieu of a suspension or revocation. MI ST § 436.1903(1).</li> </ul>
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	Yes MI ADC 436.1438
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes MI ST § 257.624a.
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes MI ST § 436.1915(1).

ST § 436.1701(4).

STATE	MINNESOTA	
General Reference:	Minnesota Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Driving while impaired MN ST § 169A.20, subd. 1.	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq$ .08 <sup>408</sup> MN ST § 169A.20, subd. 1(5).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of a controlled substance, a listed ha- zardous substance, or a combination of alcohol, a con- trolled substance or a listed hazardous substance. MN ST § 169A.20, subd. 1(2), (3), (4).	
Other:	An alcohol concentration $\geq$ <b>.04</b> is relevant evidence that a person was under the influence of alcohol. MN ST § 169A.45, subd. 2.	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes MN ST § 169A.41.	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes MN ST § 169A.51	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	No	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes controlled <sup>409</sup> or hazardous substances	
(Yes/No):	MN ST § 169A.51, subd. 1.	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal) MN ST § 169A.45, subd 3.	
Other Information:	I. A driver is required to submit to a chemical test if there is probable cause to believe that the person violated crimi- nal vehicular homicide or injury laws. MN ST § 169A.51, sub. 2(3); MN ST § 169A.52, subd 1. II. In addition to the above statutory provision, a person may be administered a blood test without consent if there is "probable cause" that the person committed an offense where blood test results could be used as evidence of a crime. <i>See State v. Lee</i> , 585 N.W.2d 378 (Minn. 1998). III. Refusal to submit to a preliminary breath test may be used in a civil action or criminal prosecution for driving while impaired or test refusal. MN ST § 169A.41.	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>408</sup>Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath or grams of alcohol per 67 milliliters of urine. MN ST § 169A.03, subd. 2.
 <sup>409</sup>Applies to controlled substances listed in Schedules I and II except marijuana or tetrahydrocannabinols. MN ST § 169 A.20,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>409</sup> Applies to controlled substances listed in Schedules I and II <u>except</u> marijuana or tetrahydrocannabinols. MN ST § 169 A.20, subd 1(7). It is an affirmative defense to a violation of this provision if the defendant can show that the controlled substance was being used according to the terms of a valid prescription. MN ST § 169A.46, subd. 2.

Blood:	<b>Yes</b> MN ST § 169A.51, subd. 1. <sup>410</sup>	
Urine:	Yes MN ST § 169A.51, subd. 1.	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes MN ST § 169A.70; MN ST § 609.115.	
(Yes/No):		
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a		
Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath		
Test:		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None	
Refusal to Take Implied Consent		
Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	Punished as a DWI offense. MN ST § 169A.20, subd. 2	
	However, for a:	
	<u>First refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 90 days</b> ;	
	Refusal occurring within 10 years of a prior impaired driv-	
	<u>ing</u> – <b>Revocation</b> not less than <b>1 year</b> and until the court has certified that treatment or rehabilitation has been	
	successfully completed;	
	<u>Second refusal</u> (within 10 years of first) – <b>Revocation</b> not	
	less than 1 year and denial of license until rehabilitation	
	has been established;	
	Third or subsequent refusal (within 10 years of first) -	
	Revocation not less than 2 years and denial of license	
	until rehabilitation has been established. MN ST §	
	169A.54 subds. 1, 6.	
Administrative Licensing Action	<b>Revocation</b> for not less than <b>180 days</b> and up to <b>1 year</b> .	
(Susp/Rev):	MN ST § 169A.52, subd. 3(a); MN ST § 171.30, subd.	
	2a(3).	
Other:	School or Head Start Bus Operators: I. It is a misdemeanor to operate a school or head start bus with <u>any</u> alco-	
	hol in the body. Sanctions: jail for not more than 90 days and/or a fine of	
	not more than \$1,000.	
	II. It is a gross misdemeanor if the offense occurred within 5 years of a prior DWI offense or the offense occurred while the driver was transport-	
	ing a child $< 16$ years old who was 36 months younger than the driver;	
	the sanctions for this offense are jail for not more than 1 year and/or a fine	

 $<sup>^{410}</sup>$  A blood or urine test may be requested after a breath test if there is probable cause to believe that there is impairment by a controlled or hazardous substance that is not subject to testing by a breath test. "Action may be taken against a person who refuses to take a blood test ...only if a urine test was offered and action may be taken against a person who refuses to take a urine test only if a blood test was offered." MN ST § 169A.51, subds. 3, 4.

	of not more than \$3,000. MN ST § 169A.31; MN ST § 609.03.
	Conditional Release: I. Unless maximum bail is imposed, a person charged with a drunk driv- ing or implied consent offense may be released from detention only if such person agrees to abstain from alcohol and submit to electronic moni- toring, involving at least daily measurements of the person's alcohol con- centration, pending resolution of the charged offense. MN ST § 169A.44.
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	
<u>Offense</u> :	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	<ul> <li>(1) Fourth Degree DWI (no aggravating factors<sup>411</sup>) (misdemeanor) – Not more than 90 days and/or not more than \$1,000; MN ST § 169A.27.</li> <li>(2) Third Degree DWI (1 aggravating factor) (gross misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$3,000; MN ST § 169A.26.</li> <li>(3) Second Degree DWI (2 or more aggravating factors) (gross misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$3,000; MN ST § 169A.25.</li> <li>(4) First Degree DWI (felony)</li> <li>(1) within 10 years of the first 3 or more prior DWI incidents; or</li> <li>(2) previously convicted of felony DWI; or</li> <li>(3) previously convicted of DWI homicide</li> <li>Not more than 7 years and/or not more than \$14,000.</li> <li>MN ST § 169A.24.</li> </ul>
	Criminal Vehicular Injury: <sup>412</sup> (1) Bodily Harm – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$3,000; (2) Solution fiel Bodily Harman National than 2 means
	(2) <b>Substantial Bodily Harm</b> – Not more than <b>3 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$10,000</b> ;
	(3) Great Bodily Harm – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$10,000.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine <sup>413</sup> :	<u>First offense</u> – None;
	Second offense (within 10 years) – 30 days with 48 con-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>411</sup> "Aggravating factor" means: (1) qualified prior DWI incidents within 10 years of the current offense; (2) having BAC of  $\geq$  .20 at the time or within 2 hours of the offense; or (3) having a child < 16 in the motor vehicle at the time of the offense and such child is more than 36 months younger than the offender. MN ST § 169A.03 <sup>412</sup> The elements of this crime include: (1) operating a motor vehicle in a grossly negligent manner; (2) in a negligent manner while

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>412</sup> The elements of this crime include: (1) operating a motor vehicle in a grossly negligent manner; (2) in a negligent manner while under the influence of alcohol, a controlled substance or any combination; (3) while having a BAC of  $\geq$  .08; (4) while having a BAC of  $\geq$  .08 within 2 hours of driving; (5) in a negligent manner while knowingly under the influence of a hazardous substance; or(6) in a negligent manner while any amount of a controlled schedule I or II substance (other than marijuana or tetrahydrocannabinols) is present in the body. MN ST § 609.21, subd. 1. <sup>413</sup> For **felony** offenses, mandatory fines are based on 30% of the maximum statutory fine. For a **gross misdemeanor** or **misde-**

 $<sup>^{413}</sup>$  For **felony** offenses, mandatory fines are based on 30% of the maximum statutory fine. For a **gross misdemeanor** or **misde-meanor**, mandatory fines are based on 30% of the maximum statutory fine *or* on 30% of the maximum fine for such offenses in the uniform fine schedule (which is lower than the statutory fine). MN ST § 609.101, subd. 4. Additionally, if the court finds that imposition of a fine would create an undue hardship for the convicted person or that person's immediate family, the court may reduce the fine amount to not less than **\$50**. MN ST § 609.101, subd.5.

	secutive hours; <sup>414</sup>	
	Third offense (within 10 years) –	
	(1) 90 days with 30 consecutive days (not more than 60	
	days may be served on home detention or intensive proba-	
	tion <sup>415</sup> ); or	
	(2) <b>6 days</b> of incarceration followed by intensive proba-	
	tion.	
	Fourth offense (within 10 years) –	
	(1) Not less than <b>3 years</b> (if first degree DWI); <u>or</u>	
	(2) <b>180 days</b> with <b>30 consecutive days</b> (not more than 150	
	days may be served on home detention or intensive proba-	
	tion); or	
	(3) <b>6 days</b> of incarceration followed by intensive proba-	
	tion;	
	Fifth or subsequent offense (within 10 years) –	
	(1) Not less than <b>3 years</b> (if first degree DWI); <u>or</u>	
	(1) Not less than 5 years (it hist degree 5 vr), <u>or</u> (2) A minimum of 1 year with 60 consecutive days (the	
	remainder of the minimum sentence may be served via on	
	intensive probation with electronic monitoring or home	
	detention); or	
	(3) <b>6 days</b> of incarceration followed by intensive proba-	
	tion.	
	MN ST § 169A.74; MN ST § 169A.275; MN ST §	
	169A.276.	
Other Penalties:	109A.270.	
Community Service:	<u>First offense</u> – 8 hours of community service for each day	
	less than 30 of incarceration as an alternative to mandatory	
	jail. MN ST § 169A.275, subd. $1(a)(2)$ .	
	The court may permit an offender to perform community	
	service in lieu of a fine. MN ST § 609.101, subd. 5.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes	
Restlution (e.g., vietnins rund)	Victim's fund <sup>416</sup> and direct payment by the defendant to a	
	victim.	
	MN ST § 611A.04; MN ST § 611A.54; MN ST § 609.10;	
	MN ST § 609.125(4).	
Other:	Surcharge: For alcohol screening, there is a surcharge of \$125 (addition-	
	al \$5 if there has been a prior conviction within 5 years). MN ST §	
	169A.284, subd. 1.	
	The court shall impose a \$75 surcharge on every person convicted of any	
	felony, gross misdemeanor, misdemeanor or petty misdemeanor offense.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>414</sup> Based on mitigating circumstances, the court may sentence a person without regard to the mandatory sanctions. However, any sanction that is imposed must include not less than 48 hours of consecutive incarceration or at least 80 hours of community service. MN ST § 169A.275, subd. 1(d). Additionally, a judge is not required to sentence a person under the mandatory sentence provision if the judge requires the person as a condition of probation to drive only motor vehicles equipped with an ignition interlock device. MN ST § 169A.275, subd. 7.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>415</sup> Intensive Probation (Supervision) Program: Counties may receive State grants to start "intensive probation" programs for repeat drunk driving law offenders. This program provides for: (1) chemical dependency assessment; (2) a period of incarceration (or detention); (3) home detention; (4) abstinence from the use of alcohol/drugs; (5) decreased levels of program contact over the period of probation; (6) a provision that offenders continue or seek employment; and (7) the costs of the program to be paid in whole or in part by the defendant. MN ST § 169A.74. <sup>416</sup> Payments to all claimants as to the injury or death of one victim shall not exceed \$50,000. MN ST § 611A.54.

#### MINNESOTA

	MN ST § 357.021, subd. 6.	
	<b>Penalty Assessment</b> : In addition to any other fine or assessment, a person who has been convicted of DWI with an alcohol concentration $\geq 0.20$ may be required to pay an assessment of up to \$1,000. MN ST § 169A.285, subd. 1.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Administrative Electising Actions.		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	<b>Yes</b> $\geq$ <b>.08</b> (or the presence of a controlled substance)	
	<u>First violation</u> – <b>Revocation 90 days</b> (15 days mand); <u>Second or subsequent violation</u> (within 10 years) – <b>Revo-</b> <b>cation 180 days</b> (90 days mand).	
	<u>Under the age of 21</u> – <b>Revocation 6 months</b>	
	<u>BAC <math>\ge</math> .20</u> – <b>Revocation</b> for <b>twice</b> the applicable period, as stated above.	
	A limited license is available after the minimum mandato- ry revocation (or "waiting") period.	
	MN ST § 169A.52, subd. 4; MN ST § 171.30, subd. 2, 2a.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> MN ST § 169A.54, subd. 1; MN ST § 171.17.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense – Not less than 30 days (6 months for a person under the age of 21);Second offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 180 daysand until treatment/rehabilitation has been completed;Third offense (within 10 years) – Not less than 1 year anduntil rehabilitation has been established;Fourth or subsequent offense – Not less than 2 years anduntil rehabilitation has been established;Fourth or subsequent offense – Not less than 2 years anduntil rehabilitation has been established;Personal Injury – an additional 90 days is added to thebase periods listed above;BAC $\geq .20$ – twice the period of time otherwise prescribed above.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	MN ST § 169A.54. <u>First offense</u> – <b>15 days</b> ; <sup>417</sup>	
Withdrawal:	<u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – 90 days; <u>Personal Injury</u> – 1 year;	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>417</sup> Under MS ST § 171.30, after the minimum mandatory revocation (or "waiting") period, a limited license may be issued for: (1) employment purposes; (2) attendance at an alcohol treatment program; or (3) the needs of a homemaker in order to prevent the substantial disruption of the educational, medical or nutritional needs of the family.

	$\frac{BAC \ge .20}{P} - A \text{ period of time equal to twice the base time period.}$ MN ST § 171.30.	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes MN ST § 169A.275, subd 5.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes MN ST § 169A.275, subd 5. Except for mandatory criminal sanctions, the court may stay imposition of fine or jail sentence but not the licens- ing action if defendant submits to treatment as recommend by the assessment report under MN ST § 169A.70 or as otherwise determined by the court. MN ST § 169A.283.	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Vehicle Impoundment Vehicle Forfeiture	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	<b>Vehicle Impoundment</b> : A law enforcement officer may impound a vehicle following the arrest or taking into cus- tody of the driver for a DWI violation. MN ST § 169A.42, subd. 2.	
	Vehicle Forfeiture (Administrative or Judicial): A vehicle is subject to forfeiture if it was used in the commission of a designated offense or was used in conduct resulting in a designated license revocation.	
	<u>Designated offense</u> – DWI (first or second degree); DWI where operator's license was cancelled or operator re- ceived a restricted license with conditions that he/she may not consume any amount of alcohol or a controlled sub- stance.	
	<u>Designated license revocation</u> – Revocation for third test failure or test refusal within 10 years of the first of two; license disqualification (CDL) resulting from third test failure or test refusal within 10 years of the first of two.	
	MN ST § 169A.63, subd. 1(d), (e), subd. 7.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	Vehicle Impoundment: The vehicle must be released on- ly: (1) if the registered owner or lien holder provides proof of ownership, valid Minnesota driving privileges and proof of insurance; (2) if the vehicle is subject to a rental or lease agreement, to a renter/lessee with valid Minnesota driving privileges who provides a copy of the rental/lease agreement and proof of insurance; or (3) to an agent of a towing company authorized by the registered owner if the owner provides proof of ownership and insurance. MN ST § 169A.42, subd. 2.	
	Vehicle Forfeiture: A vehicle will be released only if the owner can show by clear and convincing evidence that	

Length of Term of Licensing	No time period is specified, however, no person shall be	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> MN ST § 169.11; MN ST § 171.17.	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>10 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$20,000</b> . MN ST § 609.21, subd. 1a.	
Criminal Sanction:		
Sanctions:		
	negligent manner while knowingly under the influence of a hazardous substance; or (6) with any amount of con- trolled substance in the body. MN ST § 609.21, subd. 1.	
	Death as a result of operating a motor vehicle: (1) in a grossly negligent manner; (2) in a negligent manner while under the influence of alcohol/controlled substance or combination of the two; (3) with a BAC $\ge .08$ ; (4) with a BAC $\ge .08$ within 2 hours of the time of driving; (5) in a	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes	
Homicide by Vehicle:		
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Sobriety Checkpoints: Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Prohibited</b> Ascher v. Commissioner of Public Safety, 519 N.W.2d 183 (Minn. 1994).	
	The commissioner shall cancel a limited license if the device registers a positive reading for use of alcohol or the person violates any condition of the limited license. MN ST § 171.305, subd. 10.	
	The commissioner has the authority to and shall determine the appropri- ate period for which a person participating in the ignition interlock pro- gram shall be subject to the program. MN ST § 171.306, subd. 3(c).	
Conditions of Use:	The commissioner may issue a limited license to a DWI offender who had been denied driving privileges if at least half of the person's required alcohol abstinence period has been completed, the treatment program has been completed and the person is currently participating in a group sup- port abstinence program, and the person agrees to drive only a motor vehicle equipped with an ignition interlock device. MN ST § 171.305, subd. 5.	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permissive	
Ignition Interlock: Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Tau Mary Tudada ala		
	any vehicle use. MN ST § 169A.63, subd. 7(d).	
	is a family or household member and has 3 or more prior DWI convictions, then the owner is presumed to know of	
	contrary to law or that the owner took reasonable steps to prevent its use by the offender. However, if the offender	
	he/she did not have knowledge that the vehicle was used contrary to law or that the owner took reasonable steps to	

Withdrawal:	issued another license unless and until that person successfully passes an examination by the licensing agency, and in any event, it shall not be less than <b>1 year</b> . If the court has denied an offender's petition for reinstatement of the license, the offender must wait 1 year before re-petitioning. MN ST § 171.19; MN ST § 171.29, subd. 1; MN ST § 171.30.
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>1 year</b> MN ST § 171.30 A limited license may be issued after this period. MN ST § 171.30, subd. 2a.
<u>DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor</u> <u>Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's</u> <u>Licenses (CDL):</u>	<ul> <li>A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate- rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC ≥ .04, is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance or refuses to submit to a chemi- cal test for the presence of alcohol. For a subsequent vi- olation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for not less than 10 years (10 years mand).</li> <li>A CMV operator is placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours if any alcohol is in the system. A person commits a DWI offense if he operates a CMV with a BAC/BrAC/UrAC ≥ .04; the sanctions for this offense are the same as for any DWI offense.</li> <li>MN ST § 169A.20, sub. 1(1), (6); MN ST § 169A.51, subd. 1(c); MN ST § 169A.52; MN ST § 169A.54, subd. 1, 7; MN ST § 171.165.</li> </ul>
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	No specific statutory provision on this subject. Sanctions given are for the general offense of operating a motor vehicle while driving privileges are suspended, revoked,
Sanction:	cancelled, or disqualified. MN ST § 171.24.
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<ul> <li>Misdemeanor – Not more than 90 days and/or not more than \$1,000. MN ST § 171.24; MN ST § 609.03(3).</li> <li>Gross misdemeanor (if license was originally cancelled or denied because the commissioner found good cause to believe operation of a motor vehicle would be inimical to public safety or welfare) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$3,000. MN ST § 171.24, subd. 5; MN ST § 609.03.</li> </ul>
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None
Type of Licensing Action	There is no statutory provision for licensing action. How-
i jpo or Eroonome rouon	There is no surfacely provision for needsing dealon. The

	ever, when a person is convicted for driving after his li- cense has been suspended, revoked or cancelled, the court	
	shall require the registration plates of the motor vehicle or those registered in the person's name to be surrendered to the court. MN ST § 168.041, subd. 1.	
Term:	None listed.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes MN ST § 169.09, subd. 11.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes MN ST § 169.09, subd. 11	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes age 16 or older	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> <sup>418</sup> MN ST § 340A.503, subd. 2(1), (2).	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> Exemption for home possession with parental consent.	
Possession/Consumption:	MN ST § 340A.503, subds. 1(2), 3.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes MN ST § 340A.801.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes – Limited	
	Social hosts $\geq 21$ years of age who serve or provide alco-	
	holic beverages that result in the intoxication of persons <	
	21 years old are liable for the injuries caused by such mi-	
	nors. However, the law excludes such intoxicated minors	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>418</sup> A person under 21 years old may purchase alcoholic beverages if under the supervision of a person over 21 years old and the purpose of the purchase is for training, education or research purposes. The law further provides that "[p]rior notification of the licensing authority is required unless the supervised alcohol purchase attempt is for professional research conducted by post-secondary educational institutions or state, county, or local health departments." MN ST § 340A.503, subd. 2.

	from recovering for any of the injuries they may sustain. MN ST § 340A.90.	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. No person shall furnish or give alcohol to a person under 21 years of age. Such person may be found guilty of a gross misdemeanor, punishable by not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$3,000</b> . MN ST § 340A.503; MN ST § 340A.702; MN ST § 609.03. II. Any person who by act, word or omission encourages, causes or contributes to delinquency of a child or to a child's status as a juvenile petty offender is guilty of a gross misdemeanor, punishable by not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$3,000</b> . MN ST § 260B.425; MN ST § 609.03.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Gross Misdemeanor MN ST § 340A.502; MN ST § 340A.702(7); MN ST § 609.03.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$3,000</b> . MN ST § 609.03.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MN ST § 340A.415.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Revocation (no specified time)Suspension for up to 60 daysCivil Penalty of up to \$2,000Or a combination of the above 3.MN ST § 340A.415.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Gross Misdemeanor</b> <sup>419</sup> MN ST § 340A.503, subd. 2(1); MN ST § 340A.702(8); MN ST § 609.03.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$3,000.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>419</sup> Employers cannot be held criminally liable for the acts of their employees who illegally sell/serve alcoholic beverages to persons under the legal drinking age. MN ST § 340A.501; *see also State v. Guminga*, 395 N.W.2d 344 (Minn. 1986).

Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Minimum Degut Drinking Age.		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	MN ST § 340A.415.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	<b>Revocation</b> (no specified time)	
	Suspension for up to 60 days	
	Civil Penalty of up to \$2,000	
	Or a combination of the above 3.	
	MN ST § 340A.415.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes MN ST § 169A.35, subds. 3, 4.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes MN ST § 169A.35, subd. 2.	

STATE	MISSISSIPPI
General Reference:	Mississippi Code Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intervienting liquer
Standard Dwi Offense.	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor MS ST § 63-11-30(1).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{420} \text{ MS ST } \$ 63-11-30(1)(c).$
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: $\geq$ .02
	MS ST § 63-11-30(1)(c).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any substance which has impaired
	driving ability or any drug or controlled substance the pos-
	session of which is illegal. MS ST § 63-11-30(1)(b), (d).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No
Implied Consent Law:	Yes MS ST § 63-11-5
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	No However, a request to submit to a test is based on rea-
	sonable grounds and probable cause of DUI.
	MS ST § 63-11-5(1).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> MS ST § 63-11-5(1).
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal cases)
Admitted into Evidence:	MS ST § 63-11-41.
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for	
Alcohol Concentration Which Are	
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	Yes MS ST § 63-11-5.
Urine:	Yes MS ST § 63-11-5.
Other:	None
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
	Nr. 421
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> <sup>421</sup>
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	Yes A DUI charge cannot be reduced. MS ST § 63-11-
	39. For subsequent offenses, mandatory sanctions cannot
	be suspended or reduced through a plea agreement. MS $ST = (2, 11, 20(2)(h), (a))$
	ST § 63 11-30(2)(b), (c).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>420</sup> Standard: Alcohol concentration is expressed as "percent" which is defined as grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. MS ST § 63-11-30(1).
<sup>421</sup> A DUI offense cannot be dismissed upon the completion of court imposed conditions. MS ST § 99-15-26(1); *see e.g.*, MS AG Op.Atty.Gen. No. 93-0889 (Stevens, January 12, 1994. 1994 WL 32564.

Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	None	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	First refusal – Not less than \$250 or more than \$1,000and/or not more than 48 hours in jail;Second refusal (within 5 years) – Not less than \$600 ormore than \$1,500 and not less than 5 days (mand) or morethan 1 year;Third or subsequent refusal (within 5 years) – Not lessthan \$2,000 or more than \$5,000 and not less than 1 yearor more than 5 years.MS ST § 63-11-21; MS ST § 63-11-30(2).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First refusal – Suspension for not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety education program; Second refusal – Suspension for 2 years (mand); Third or subsequent refusal – Suspension for 5 years (mand).MS ST § 63-11-5(2); MS ST § 63-11-21; MS ST § 63-11- 30(2).	
Other:	A <i>de novo</i> court trial may be held following administrative hearings on these suspensions. This provision will be re- pealed on July 1, 2010. MS ST § 63-11-25. If a person whose license has been suspended for refusal subsequently pleads guilty to a DUI violation, the suspen- sion of such person's license shall be vacated. MS ST §	
	63-11-23.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>\$250</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> and/or not more than <b>48 hours</b> <sup>422</sup> in jail; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – Not less than <b>\$600</b> or more than <b>\$1,500</b> and not less than <b>5 days</b> (mand) or more than <b>1 year</b> ;	

 $<sup>^{422}</sup>$  Attendance at a victim impact panel may be ordered in lieu of 48 hours in jail. MS ST § 63-11-30(2).

	Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> and not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> .	
	Under 21 years of age: <u>First offense</u> – \$250; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – Not more than \$500; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) – Not more than \$1,000.	
	<b>DUI w/ death or mutilation/injury</b> : <u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>5 years</b> or more than <b>25</b> <b>years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> ; <sup>423</sup>	
	MS ST § 63-11-30.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	$\frac{\text{First offense} - \$250;^{424}}{\frac{\text{Second offense} - 5 \text{ days}/\$600;}{\text{Third or subsequent offense} - 1 \text{ year}/\$2,000.}$ $\text{MS ST } \$ 63-11-30(2)(b), (c).$	
	Under 21 years of aga None 425	
	<b>Under 21 years of age</b> – <b>None</b> . <sup>425</sup> MS ST § 63-11-30(3).	
	DUI with death or mutilation/injury – 5 years. MS ST § 63-11-30(5).	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	Yes <u>Second offense</u> – Not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>1</b> year. MS ST § 63-11-30(2)(b).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	YesI. A defendant may be ordered by the court to make direct restitution to a victim, but not more than \$5,000. MS ST § 99-37-3.II. A victim may also obtain limited compensation from the State Crimes Victims' Compensation Fund. MS ST § 99-41-1 et seq.	
Other:	Implied Consent Violation Assessment: \$232.50 in addi- tion to any other fine or penalty. MS ST § 99-19-73(2).	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes This law encourages DWI offenders who have a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .08 (for persons < 21 years old $\geq$ .02), to request a trial within 30 days after arrest. If the chemical	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>423</sup> For a second or subsequent conviction, the sentence may run consecutive to or concurrent with the first. MS ST § 63-11-30(5).
<sup>424</sup> An offender may attend a victim impact panel in lieu of 48 hours of incarceration. §63-11-30(2)(a)
<sup>425</sup> For persons under the age of 21, the court shall have the discretion to rule that a first offense shall be nonadjudicated. MS ST § 63-11-30(3)(g).

	test indicates one of the above BAC/BrAC levels, the	
	driver's license is seized by the police and sent to the li-	
	censing agency. The driver is issued a receipt for such	
	license. This receipt may be used as a temporary permit	
	for 30 days. However, driving privileges are extended if a	
	trial is requested by the driver but not commenced within	
	30 days. MS ST $\S$ 63-11-23(2).	
	<b>Important</b> : If temporary driving privileges expire without	
	a trial having been requested by the offender, the license	
	suspension periods for implied consent violations apply.	
	MS ST § 63-11-23(2).	
Other:	A person's license may be suspended if he/she has com-	
Ouler.	mitted an offense that usually requires license revocation	
	(e.g., vehicle homicide). Such action may be taken with-	
	out a preliminary hearing. The time period for this sus-	
	pension is not specified. Such action could occur prior to	
	a conviction. MS ST § 63-1-53(2)(a).	
De et DWI Conscietions		
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension <sup>420</sup> MS ST § $63-11-30$ .	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev): Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	Suspension426MS ST § 63-11-30.First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First offense –Not less than 90 days and until such person	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<u>First offense</u> –Not less than <b>90 days</b> and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety education program;	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<u>First offense</u> –Not less than <b>90 days</b> and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu-	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age:	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First offense-Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) - 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) - 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense - 90 days;	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year;	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year; Third or subsequent offense – 2 years or until 21st birth-	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: 	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.): Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year; Third or subsequent offense – 2 years or until 21st birth- day, whichever is longer.First offense – 30 days <sup>427</sup> ;	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: 	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.): Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year; Third or subsequent offense – 2 years or until 21st birth- day, whichever is longer.First offense – 30 days <sup>427</sup> ;	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.): Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offenseFirst offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year; Third or subsequent offense – 2 years or until 21st birth- day, whichever is longer.First offense – 30 days <sup>427</sup> ; 	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.): Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year; Third or subsequent offense – 2 years or until 21st birth- day, whichever is longer.First offense – 30 days <sup>427</sup> ; 	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.): Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offenseFirst offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year; Third or subsequent offense – 2 years or until 21st birth- day, whichever is longer.First offense – 30 days <sup>427</sup> ; 	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.): Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offenseFirst offense-Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year; Third or subsequent offense – 2 years or until 21st birth- day, whichever is longer.First offense – 30 days <sup>427</sup> ; 	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.): Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offenseFirst offense–Not less than 90 days and until such person attends and successfully completes an alcohol safety edu- cation program; Second offense (within 5 years) – 2 years; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 5 years.Under 21 years of age: First offense – 90 days; Second offense – 1 year; Third or subsequent offense – 2 years or until 21st birth- day, whichever is longer.First offense – 30 days <sup>427</sup> ; 	

 $<sup>^{426}</sup>$  Suspension of driving privileges shall run consecutively. MS ST § 63-11-30(10).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>427</sup> The county circuit court may reduce the suspension period to 30 days provided the defendant demonstrates a need for a license to continue employment or education, to obtain medical care, to attend driver improvement, alcohol or drug education programs, or to attend court ordered counseling. MS ST § 63-1 1-30(2).

attend court ordered counseling. MS ST § 63-1 l-30(2).  $^{428}$  For a second conviction, the suspension period may be reduced to 1 year provided the defendant is diagnosed as needing alcohol/drug abuse treatment and successfully completes such treatment. MS ST § 63-11-30(2)(d).

 $<sup>^{429}</sup>$  For a third or subsequent conviction, a defendant's license may be reinstated after three years upon successful completion of an alcohol/drug abuse treatment program. MS ST § 63-11-30(2)(e).

Rehabilitation:	been convicted of operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of a controlled substance <u>must</u> have the driv- ing privileges forfeited for not less than 6 months. The revocation or suspension is to run consecutive to any oth- ers. MS ST § 63-1-71(1).	
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> – First offense. Required before license can be reinstated. MS ST § 63- 11-30(2)(a); MS ST § 63-11-32.	
Alcohol Treatment:	<b>Yes</b> – Second & third offenses. MS ST § 63-11-30(2)(d), (e).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment/Immobilization Forfeiture	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	<b>Impoundment/Immobilization</b> : For second or subsequent offenses, all vehicles owned by the offender must be im- pounded/immobilized for the length of the license suspen- sion. MS ST § 63-11-30(2)(b); MS ST § 63-11-31-(1); MS ST § 63-11-49(1).	
	<b>Forfeiture</b> : For a <u>second offense</u> (within 5 years), the vehicle used in the offense <b>may</b> be forfeited. For third <u>or subsequent offenses</u> , the vehicle <b>shall</b> be seized. However, the vehicle owner's spouse may obtain possession of the vehicle by demonstrating the vehicle is the only means of transportation. MS ST § 63-11-30(2)(b), (c); MS ST § 63-11-49.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	Upon a showing by the spouse that the seized vehicle is the only source of transportation, the chief law enforce- ment officer shall declare the vehicle is forfeited to such spouse. This applies only to one forfeiture per vehicle. MS ST § 63-11-49.	
Other: Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Bus Drivers and Operators of Vehicles for Hire</b> : The privilege to operate a bus/vehicle for hire may be suspended/revoked if a person drives such a vehicle while intoxicated or noticeably under the influence of intoxicating liquor. MS ST § 21-27-137; MS ST § 21-27-155.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive): Conditions of Use:	Permissive The court may order the use of an ignition interlock device on all vehicles operated by the offender following license reinstatement. Where impoundment or immobilization interferes with a spouse's use a vehicle subject to im- poundment or immobilization, the court may order the installation of an ignition interlock system for a minimum	

	of 6 months in lieu of impoundment/immobilization.
	The court shall order proof of installation and periodic reporting by the person for proper verification of the de-
	vice, and require the person to have the system monitored
	for proper use and accuracy at least semiannually.
	MS ST § 63-11-30(11); MS ST § 63-11-31(1)(a).
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	(There is no statute or case law) <sup>430</sup>
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Yes – Felony</b> MS ST § 63-11-30(5).
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>5 years</b> or more than <b>25 years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . MS ST § 63-11-30(5); MS ST § 99-19-32.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Revocation
Action:	MS ST § 63-1-51(1)(a).
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>1 year</b> MS ST § 63-1-51(1)(a).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	l year MS ST § 63-1-51(1).
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person's privilege to operate a CMV is "suspended" for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate- rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq .04$ ; (2) is under the influence of al- cohol or a controlled substance; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical (breath) test for alcohol. For a subsequent vi- olation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "suspension" is for life (or a lesser period as established by federal law).
	In addition, a CMV operator who has any measurable (or detectable) amount of alcohol in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours.
	MS ST § 63-1-216; MS ST § 63-11-30(1)(e).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>430</sup> However, the Fifth Circuit has recognized the Supreme Court's holding in *Michigan v. Dep't of State Police v. Sitz*, 496 U.S. 444 (1990), permitting the use of sobriety checkpoints. *See Collins v. Ainsworth*, 382 F.3d 529 (5th Cir. 2004).

Driving While License Suspended or		
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI		
Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Misdemeanor MS ST § 63-11-40.	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>48 hours</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and not	
	less than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> . M ST § 63-11-40.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	48 hours	
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension	
Length of Withdrawal Action:	<b>6-month suspension</b> added to the original suspension period. MS ST § 63-11-40.	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	This term is mandatory.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MS ST § 63-11-7.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Sale/Purchase:	MS ST § 67-1-81; MS ST § 67-3-53(b); MS ST § 67-3- 70(1).	
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Possession/Consumption:	There is an employment exemption and an exception for persons 18 years of age or older who: (1) are in the military and possess/consume light wine or beer on military property; and (2) possess/consume light wine or beer with the consent of and in the presence of his/her spouse or legal guardian. MS ST § 67-1-81; MS ST § 67-3-54.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		

### MISSISSIPPI

State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MS ST § 67-3-53(b); MS ST § 67-3-73(2), (4).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	<b>Yes</b> <i>Munford, Inc. v. Peterson,</i> 368 So.2d 213 (Miss. 1979).	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes – Limited A social host cannot be held liable if he provides alcoholic beverages to a person who may lawfully consume such beverages. MS ST § 67-3-73.	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who gives or furnishes alcohol to a minor or visibly or noticeably intoxicated person or habitual drun- kard shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and punished by a fine of not more than \$500 and/or imprisonment for not more than 6 months. This does not include a spouse or legal guardian who is present when the person (18 years of age or older) possesses or consumes light wine or beer, or if such person is in the military and on military property. MS ST § 67-3-54; MS ST § 67-3-69.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> MS ST § 67-1-83; MS ST § 67-3-53(b); MS ST § 67-3-69.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> . MS ST § 67-1-83.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No): Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Yes - Revocation or suspension.MS ST § 67-1-83; MSST § 67-3-69.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action: Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	MisdemeanorMS ST § 67-1-81; MS ST § 67-3-53.Alcoholic beverages (4 percent or more alcohol by wgt.):First offenseFirst offenseNot less than \$500 or more than \$1,000;Second or subsequent offenseNot more than 1 yearand/or not less than \$1,000 or more than \$2,000.	

#### MISSISSIPPI

	MS ST § 67-1-81.	
	Beer and light wine – Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500. MS ST § 67-1-81; MS ST § 67-3-53; MS ST § 67-3-69.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes – Revocation or suspension.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal: <sup>431</sup>	Alcoholic beverages (4 percent or more alcohol by wgt.): <u>First offense</u> – <b>Revocation</b> (no time period specified); <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – <b>Permanent revocation</b> . MS ST § 67-1-71; MS ST § 67-1-81.	
	Beer and light wine: <u>Holder of permit/employee of holder of permit</u> : <u>First offense</u> – A fine of not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000 and/or suspension for not more than 3 months; <u>Second offense</u> (within 12 months) – Not less than \$500 or more than \$2,000 and/or suspension for not more than 6 months; <u>Third offense</u> (within 12 months of the first) – Not less than \$2,000 or more than \$5,000 and/or suspension or revocation of the permit to sell beer or light wine. MS ST § 67-3-69(3).	
	Holder of permit (brewpub): <u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> (within 12 months) – Not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 12 months of the first) – Not more than <b>\$5,000</b> and <b>suspension</b> for <b>30 days</b> . MS ST § 67-3-69(5).	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	No <sup>432</sup>	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>431</sup> These terms are in addition to any other provision provided by law. Conceivably, a holder/employee of the holder of the permit may be jailed/imprisoned, fined twice and have his license suspended or revoked.
 <sup>432</sup> However, under MS ST § 67-3-65, a local government may regulate or prohibit the possession of open containers of beer or light

#### MISSISSIPPI

Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	No	
--------------------------------	----	--

wine by an individual while operating or riding in a motor vehicle. *See* MS AG Op.Atty.Gen. No. 1999-0264 (Phillips, July 2, 1999) (1999 WL 791692).

STATE	MISSOURI	
General Reference:	Missouri Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Driving while intoxicated MO ST § 577.010.	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\ge .08^{433}$ MO ST § 577.012.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Drugged Condition MO ST § 577.010.	
Other:	A BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .08 is <i>prima facie</i> evidence of intoxica- tion. MO ST § 577.037.	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> MO ST § 577.021.3.	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes MO ST § 577.020.1	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes MO ST § 577.020.1(1).	
	Exceptions:	
	(1) Reasonable grounds for belief is sufficient for persons	
	under the age of 21;	
	(2) A person was involved in a motor vehicle collision	
	which resulted in a fatality, a readily apparent serious	
	physical injury, or serious physical injury. MO ST § 577.020.1.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	Yes MO ST § 577.020.1.	
(Yes/No):	1 <b>cs</b> 100 51 § 577.020.1.	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes MO ST § 577.041.1 (Criminal cases).	
Admitted into Evidence:		
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes MO ST § 577.020.1.	
Urine:	Yes MO ST § 577.020.1.	
Other:	Saliva MO ST § 577.020.1.	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>433</sup> **Standard**: "Percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. This concentration is defined to mean grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. MO ST § 577.012.1,2; MO ST § 577.037.2.

Sanations for Defusal to Submit to a		
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a		
Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath		
Test:		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	N/A	
	N/A	
Administrative Licensing Action	N/A	
(Susp/Rev):		
Potygol to Taka Implied Concent		
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:		
Chemical Test:	N	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	<u>First Refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 1 year</b> (90 days mand);	
(Susp/Rev):	Second or subsequent refusal (within 5 years) – <b>Revoca</b> -	
	tion 1 year (mand).	
0.1	MO ST § 302.309.3(6)(e), (f); MO ST § 577.041.	
Other:	A person must complete a substance abuse program before	
	the license can be reinstated. For cause, the court may	
	modify or waive this requirement unless the offender's	
	BAC was $\geq$ 15, which eliminates the court's discretion to	
	waive. MO ST § 577.041.7.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI		
Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> (Class B Misdemeanor) – Not more than 6	
	months and/or not more than \$500;	
	$\frac{\text{Prior offender}^{434}}{\text{(Class A Misdemeanor)} - \text{Not more than}}$	
	1 year and/or not more than \$1,000;	
	Persistent offender (Class D Felony) – Not more than 4	
	years or not more than 1 year in the county jail and/or not	
	more than \$5,000;	
	Aggravated offender (Class C Felony) – Not more than 7	
	years or not more than 1 year in the county jail and/or not	
	more than <b>\$5,000</b> ;	
	<u>Chronic offender</u> (Class B Felony) – Not less than <b>5 years</b>	
	or more than 15 years.	
	MO ST § 557.011; MO ST § 558.011; MO ST § 560.011;	
	MO ST § 560.016; MO ST § 577.010; MO ST § 577.012;	
	MS ST § 577.023.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>434</sup> A "prior offender" means a person who has had one previous alcohol related driving offense conviction within 5 years of the presently charged offense. A "persistent offender" means a person who has had two or more alcohol related driving offense convictions or a vehicular homicide/assault conviction. An "aggravated offender" means a person who has had three or more alcohol related driving offense convictions or one or more vehicular homicide/assault convictions where alcohol was involved. A "chronic offender" means a person who has had: (1) four or more alcohol related driving offense convictions; (2) two or more vehicular homicide/assault convictions where alcohol was involved; or (3) two or more alcohol related driving offense convictions and any vehicular homicide/assault conviction. MO ST § 577.023.1.

	<ul> <li>Assault in 2<sup>nd</sup> degree (Class C Felony) – Not more than 7 years or not more than 1 year in the county jail and/or not more than \$5,000. MO ST § 565.060.1(4).</li> <li>Endangering the welfare of a child – 2<sup>nd</sup> degree (Class A Misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000. MO ST § 558.011; MO ST § 560.016; MO ST § 568.050.</li> </ul>	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First offense – None;         Prior offender – 5 days;         Persistent offender – 10 days;         Aggravated offender – 60 days;         Chronic offender – 2 years.         MO ST § 558.011; MO ST § 560.011; MO ST § 577.023.6.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	The court may order <b>30 days</b> or a "prior offender" or <b>60 days</b> for a "persistent offender." If ordered, community service must be a condition of parole or probation. MO ST § 577.023.6.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	A victim's compensation fund is available. Additionally, a court may order direct compensation by defendants to victims. MO ST § 559.100; MO ST § 595.010 <i>et seq</i> ; MO ST § 595.200.	
Other:	For a first offender, the sentence may be suspended pro- vided the defendant is placed on probation for a minimum of 2 years. MO ST § 577.010.2.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		_
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes $\geq .08 / \geq .02$ (persons under 21)MO ST § 302.309.3(5)(i); MO ST § 302.505.First Violation – Suspension 30 days (mand) <sup>435</sup> with alimited license for an additional 60 days provided therehas been no prior "alcohol related enforcement contact"within 5 years;	
	Subsequent Violation (within 5 years) – Revocation 1year (mand). Restricted driving privileges may be grantedpending the outcome of a trial de novo in the courts on anadmin. per se action.MO ST § 302.309.3(5); MO ST § 302.525.2(1); MO ST §	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>435</sup> Any period of administrative per se license suspension/revocation shall be credited against any period of time a person's license is suspended/revoked for a DWI offense conviction. The total license suspension/revocation period shall not exceed the longer of the two periods. MO ST § 302.525.4.

two periods. MO ST § 302.525.4. <sup>436</sup> The term "alcohol-related enforcement contact" shall include suspension or revocation under an admin per se action, any suspension/revocation for a refusal to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law; and any conviction for the offense of driving with an unlawful alcohol concentration. MO ST § 302.525.3.

	302.535.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Suspension</b> or <b>Revocation</b> MO ST § 302.060; MO ST § 302.302; MO ST § 302.304.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense – Suspension 30 days (plus 60 days restricted driving privileges)437 MO ST § 302.304.5.Second offense (within 5 years) of violating the laws related to driving while intoxicated – 5 years MO ST § 302.060(10);Third or subsequent offense – 10 yearsMO ST § 302.060(9).	
	Persons Under 21: <u>First offense</u> – Suspension 90 days; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – Revocation 1 year. MO ST § 577.500.6; MO ST § 577.510.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	First offense – 30 daysSecond offense – 30 daysSecond offense (within 5 years) – 2 years.Third or subsequent offense – 3 years/10years. After 3years, hardship driving privileges may be granted. After10 years, a court may order the licensing agency to issuean offender a license provided the offender is no longer athreat to the public safety. Such an order can only be issued once. MO ST § 302.060; MO ST § 302.304; MO ST§ 302.309.	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	<ul><li>Yes Required for persons under 21 years old who have committed an alcohol offense. MO ST § 577.525.</li><li>Upon a plea of guilty or finding of guilt for a DWI, the court shall order the person to participate in and successfully complete a substance abuse traffic offender program. MO ST § 577.049.</li></ul>	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:		
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Impoundment/Forfeiture:Under MO ST § 82.1000,certain cities with populations over 100,000 may enact motor vehicle impoundment or forfeiture ordinances.I. A motor vehicle is subject to such action if the driver	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>437</sup> Under MO ST § 302.304.5, the licensing agency may grant restricted driving privileges for 60 days following the 30-day mandatory period for the purpose of employment or for attending an alcohol education/treatment program. Also, under MO ST § 302.309.3(2), a court or the licensing agency may grant limited driving privileges for employment, educational or medical reasons after the 30-day mandatory period.

	has had one or more intoxicated related traffic offense	
	convictions (including illegal per se) and is operating the	
	vehicle while on a suspended or revoked license either for	
	an intoxicated related traffic offense or for involuntary	
	manslaughter related to intoxicated driving.	
	II. A motor vehicle is subject to such action if the driver	
	has had two or more intoxicated related traffic offense	
	convictions (including illegal per se) and has a BAC/BrAC	
	$\geq .08$ ( $\geq .02$ if $< 21$ years old) or refuses to submit to chemi-	
	cal test under the implied consent law. The above actions	
	apply to the vehicle operated by the offender irrespective of its ownership.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	When a non-operator owner/co-owner (not previously	
Released:	been the operator or owner of the a motor vehicle subject	
	to forfeiture) pays all associated costs of towing, storage	
	and impoundment, the vehicle may be released, upon ex-	
	ecution of a written agreement stipulating and consenting	
	to the seizure and forfeiture of such vehicle if it is subse-	
	quently operated by the same operator under circums-	
	tances which would allow forfeiture. MO ST § 82.1000.5.	
Other:		
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included	<b>DWI Enforcement Cost</b> : A court may require a person	
Elsewhere:	convicted of a DWI offense to reimburse the State or local	
	governments for the costs associated with the person's	
	DWI arrest. MO ST § 488.5334.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	<u>First offender</u> – The court may require such person to only	
	operate motor vehicles that are equipped with an ignition	
	interlock device for not less than 6 months following li-	
	cense reinstatement;	
	<u>Second or subsequent offender</u> – The court <u>must</u> require	
	such person to only operate motor vehicles equipped with	
	an ignition interlock device for not less than 6 months fol-	
	lowing license reinstatement.	
	Such a requirement is <u>mandatory</u> as a condition for grant-	
	ing limited (hardship) driving privileges under MO ST §	
	302.309 for subsequent offenders.	
	MO ST § 577.600.	
	The court shall require the use of an ignition interlock de	
	operate a motor vehicle is restricted or not, as determined by the court. MO ST § 577.604.	
	The court shall require the use of an ignition interlock de- vice during the period of probation if the person is permit- ted to operate a motor vehicle, whether the privilege to	

Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited	<b>Permitted</b> <i>State v. Welch</i> , 755 S.W.2d 624 (Mo.App. W.D. 1988).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Death to any person - Class C felony; Death to any person not a passenger, to two or more per- sons, or while BAC is at least 0.18 – Class B felony. MO ST § 565.024.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Class C felony – Not more than 7 years and/or not more than \$5,000. Class B felony – Not less than 5 years or more than 15 years. MO ST § 558.011; MO ST § 560.011.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Class B felony – 5 years	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> MO ST § 302.060(10).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>5 years</b> MO ST § 302.060(10).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>5 years</b> MO ST § 302.060(10).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for not less than 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazard- ous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or drugs; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for either alcohol or drug concentrations. For a subse- quent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the "disqualification" is for life (10 years mand).	
	In addition, a CMV operator who has any "measurable" amount of alcohol in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours.	
	Finally, it is a Class B misdemeanor to drive A CMV with either BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq$ .04 or while under the influence of either alcohol or a controlled substance.	
	The term "controlled substance" may not apply to all drugs. MO ST § 302.780.1(3). The sanctions for this of-fense are imprisonment for not more than 6 months and/or	

### MISSOURI

	a fine of not more than \$500. MO ST § 558.011; MO ST § 560.016.	
	MO ST § 302.309.3(6); MO ST § 302.700.2; MO ST § 302.745; MO ST § 302.750; MO ST § 302.755; MO ST § 302.780.	
Driving While License Suspended or		
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI		
Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First of second offense (Class A misdemeanor) – Not more	
	than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000;	
	Third or subsequent (with prior alcohol-related enforce-	
	ment contact) (within 10 years) (Class D felony) –Not	
	more than 4 years or not more than 1 year in the county	
	jail and/or not more than \$5,000;	
	MO ST § 302.321; MO ST § 558.011; MO ST § 560.011.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<b>48 consecutive hours</b> (In lieu of imprisonment, the defen-	
Imprisonment/Fine:	dant may perform at least 10 days involving at least 40	
imprisonment/Time.	hours of community service.) MO ST § 302.321.	
Length of Term of License	nours of community service.) WO ST § 502.521.	
Administrative Licensing Actions: Type of Licensing Action	Revocation	
Type of Licensing Action	Under the point system – 12 points	
With James 1 A stirms	MO ST § 302.302.1(5).	
Withdrawal Action:	<b>1 year</b> MO ST § 302.304.7.	
Mandatory Term of License	None	
Withdrawal Action:	Restricted hardship driving privileges may be granted.	
	This privilege, however, may only be granted once in 5	
	years. MO ST § 302.309.3.	
Habitual Traffia Offendar Lawy		
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Vac/Na):	No	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):		
Other State Lewis Poleted To Alashal Lize:		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
	Vos. MO ST 8 59 445	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes MO ST § 58.445.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:	Vez	
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes	
Pedestrian:	Yes	

### MISSOURI

Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> MO ST § 311.310; MO ST § 311.325.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> Exceptions to culinary students 18 years of age or old- er, or persons 18 years or older employed and handling beer or liquor. MO ST § 311.310; MO ST § 311.325.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes – limited to persons who knowing sell alcohol to underage minors or persons visibly intoxicated. MO ST § 537.053.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	No Andres v. Alpha Kappa Lambda Fraternity, 730 S.W.2d 547 (Mo. 1987).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any owner, occupant or person or legal entity with lawful right to exclusive use and enjoyment of any property who knowingly allows a person under the age of 21 to drink or possess intoxicating liquor in any quantity, or knowingly fails to stop such underage person from drinking or pos- sessing intoxicating liquor on that property is guilty of a class B misdemeanor, punishable by imprisonment not to exceed 6 months and/or a fine not to exceed \$500. A second or subsequent violation constitutes a class A mis- demeanor, punishable by imprisonment not to exceed 1 year and/or a fine not to exceed \$1,000. MO ST § 311.310.2; MO ST § 558.011; MO ST § 560.016.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor MO ST § 311.310.1; MO ST § 311.880.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not less than <b>\$50</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . MO ST § 311.880.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		

License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Revocation MO ST § 311.720.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Alcoholic beverages over 3.2 percent alcohol by weight: Length of revocation is not specified in the statute. MO ST § 311.720.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> MO ST § 311.310; MO ST § 311.880.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$50 or more than \$1,000.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Revocation MO ST § 311.720	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Alcoholic beverages over 3.2 percent alcohol by weight:Length of revocation is not specified in the statute.MO ST § 311.720.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	No statutory provisions <sup>438</sup>	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes MO ST § 577.017.	

 $<sup>\</sup>overline{^{438}}$  However, by virtue of the anti-consumption law, the open container law would likely be in existence.

STATE	MONTANA	
General Reference:	Montana Code Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol MT ST § 61-8-401(1)(a).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{439}$ MT ST § 61-8-406(1)(a). Persons Under 21 Years Old $- \geq .02$ MT ST § 61-8-410.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq$ .08 (A rebuttable inference) MT ST § 61-8-401(4)(c).	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug, a dangerous drug, or al- cohol and any dangerous or other drug. MT ST § 61-8-401(1).	
Other:	BAC >.04 to < .08 – no inference, but may be considered as evidence. <.04 – inference that the person was not under the influ- ence of alcohol. MT ST § 61-8-401(4).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>440</sup> MT ST § 61-8-409.	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes MT ST § 61-8-402	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MT ST § 61-8-402(2)(a)(i).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MT ST § 61-8-402(1).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	<b>Yes</b> (Criminal Cases) MT ST § 61-8-404(2).	
Other Information:	The standard for a PBT test is "particularized suspicion." MT ST § 61-8-409.	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes MT ST § 61-8-402(1).	
Urine:	No	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> – But a DWI offender is not eligible for pretrial diversion. MT ST § 46-16-130(4).	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>439</sup> The standards for "alcohol concentration" are grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. MT ST § 61-8-407.
 <sup>440</sup> The results of a PBT test may be used as evidence in a DUI trial. MT ST § 61-8-404(1).

Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> – discretionary. However, for any crime carrying a sentence of incarceration for more than 1 year, a presentence investigation shall be completed. MT ST § 61-8-732(2); MT ST § 46-18-111(2).
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail): Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	No         Suspension up to 1 year. MT ST § 61-8-409(3).
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail): Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None         First refusal – Suspension 6 months (mand);         Second or subsequent refusal (within 5 years) – Revocation 1 year (mand).         MT ST § 61-8-402 (6).
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions: Imprisonment/Fine:	DUI (misdemeanor):First conviction – Not less than 24 consecutive hours ormore than 6 months and not less than \$300 or more than\$1,000;Second conviction (within 5 years) – Not less than 7 daysor more than 6 months and not less than \$600 or morethan \$1,000;Third conviction (within 5 years) – Not less than 30 daysor more than 1 year and not less than \$1,000 or more than\$5,000;Fourth or subsequent conviction (within 5 years) (felony)– Not less than 13 months plus 5 years (all suspended)and not less than \$10,000.MT ST § 61-8-714; MT ST § 61-8-731.
	DUI with Passenger < 16:First conviction – Not less than 48 consecutive hours or more than 12 months and not less than \$600 or more than \$2,000;Second conviction – Not less than 14 days or more than 12 months and not less than \$1,200 or more than \$2,000;Third conviction – Not less than 60 days or more than 12 months and not less than \$2,000 or more than \$10,000.

	Excessive BAC (misdemeanor): <u>First conviction</u> – Not more than <b>10 days</b> and not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> (within 5 years) – Not less than <b>5</b> <b>days</b> <sup>441</sup> or more than <b>30 days</b> and not less than <b>\$600</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Third conviction</u> (within 5 years) – Not less than <b>10</b> <b>days</b> <sup>442</sup> or more than <b>6 months</b> and not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Fourth or subsequent conviction</u> (within 5 years) (felony) – Not less than <b>13 months</b> plus <b>5 years (all suspended)</b> and not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> .	
	Excessive BAC with Passenger < 16: <u>First conviction</u> – Not more than 20 days and not less than \$600 or more than \$2,000; <u>Second conviction</u> – Not less than 10 days or more than 60 days and not less than \$1,200 or more than \$2,000; <u>Third conviction</u> – Not less than 20 days or more than 12 months and not less than \$2,000 or more than \$10,000.	
	<b>Negligent Vehicle Assault</b> (misdemeanor): <sup>443</sup> Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . MT ST § 45-5-205(2).	
	Negligent Vehicle Assault (felony) – Not more than 10 years and/or not more than \$10,000. MT ST § 45-5-205(3).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	DUI: <u>First conviction</u> – 24 consecutive hours; <u>Second conviction</u> – 5 days; <u>Third conviction</u> – 10 days; <u>Fourth or subsequent conviction</u> – 13 months. MT ST § 61-8-714; MT ST § 61-8-731.	
	Excessive BAC: <u>First conviction</u> – None; <u>Second conviction</u> – 5 days; <u>Third conviction</u> – 10 days; <u>Fourth or subsequent conviction</u> – 13 months. MT ST § 61-8-722; MT ST § 61-8-731.	
	DUI - Person < 21 (BAC ≥ .02):	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>441</sup> The first 5 days shall be served in the county jail and not on home arrest. MT ST § 61-8-722(2).
<sup>442</sup> The first 10 days shall be served in the county jail and not on home arrest. MT ST § 61-8-722(3).
<sup>443</sup> Negligent Vehicle Assault – A person commits a misdemeanor by causing bodily injury to another person while driving while under the influence of alcohol, a dangerous drug, any drug or any combination of these; a person commits a felony by causing serious bodily injury.

	<u>First conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ;	
	Second conviction – Not less than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$500</b>	
	and not more than <b>10 days</b> (if offender > 18 years old);	
	Third or subsequent conviction –Not less than \$300 or more than \$500	
	and not less than 24 hours or more than 60 days (if offender > 18).	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	<b>Yes</b> – Imposed as part of deferred sentencing. MT ST § 46-18-201(4)(j).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes	_
	<ul> <li>I. If a person has suffered a pecuniary loss as a result of the defendant's illegal actions, the court <u>must</u> order the defendant to pay restitution to such person. A defendant may be ordered to participate in community service if financially unable to pay restitution.</li> <li>MT ST § 46-18-201(5); MT ST § 46-18-241.</li> <li>II. A victim also can receive compensation from the State's Victims' Compensation Fund. MT ST § 53-9-101 <i>et seq.</i></li> <li>III. Persons convicted of <u>serious</u> bodily negligent vehicle</li> </ul>	
	assault <u>shall</u> be ordered to pay restitution. MT ST § 45-5-205.	
Other:	Surcharges: \$15 for any misdemeanor offense; \$20 or 10% of the fine imposed, whichever is greater, for any felony offense; and \$50 for any DUI/Excessive BAC of- fense. These surcharges are in addition to any fine sanc- tion. MT ST § 46-18-236(1), (3).	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		—
Administrative Per Se Law:	The law only provides for administrative sanctions after a refusal or conviction.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Suspension</b> or <b>Revocation</b> MT ST § 61-5-205; MT ST § 61-5-208.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	DUI/Excessive BAC: <u>First offense</u> – Suspension 6 months; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) – Suspen- sion 1 year.	
	Negligent Vehicle Assault – Revocation 1 year.         MT ST § 61-5-205(2); MT ST § 61-5-208.         Person < 21 years old:	
	First offense       – Suspension 90 days;         Second offense-       Suspension 6 months;         Third offense-       Suspension 1 year.         MT ST § 61-8-410.       MT	

Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	DUI/Excessive BAC:First offense – NoneSecond or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 1 yearunless the offender completes at least 45 days of the suspension & the report of conviction includes a recommendation by the court that a probationary driver's license beissued.Negligent Vehicle Assault – 1 yearPerson < 21 years old: The periods of suspension shall last until the offender pays a reinstatement fee. If, however the offender is < 18 years old, 30 days of the suspension are mandatory.	
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Noc MT ST 8 (1.9.714	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes         MT ST § 61-8-714.           Yes         MT ST § 61-8-723.	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Vehicle Seizure/Forfeiture           MT ST § 61-8-733.	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	For a second or subsequent DUI/BAC conviction or a sus- pension because of refusal, the court shall order that each motor vehicle owned by the person at the time of the of- fense be seized and subject to forfeiture. MT ST § 61-8-733.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	If the court grants a probationary license, then the vehicle seized shall be equipped with an ignition interlock device, but shall not be forfeited. MT ST § 61-8-733.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	First conviction – If a probationary license is granted, a court may restrict the person to drive only a motor vehicle equipped with an ignition interlock device;         Second or subsequent conviction – If a probationary license is granted the court shall restrict the person to drive only a motor vehicle equipped with an ignition interlock device.         The administration shall determine the length of time in which the ignition interlock device shall be installed.         MT ST § 61-8-442; MT ST § 61-8-731.	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Possibly Prohibited</b> MS ST § 46-5-502 permits the establishment of temporary roadblocks for the purpose of apprehending persons wanted for violations of the law, identifying drivers, checking for driver's licenses, vehicle registration, and insurance. The specificity of this statute indicates sobriety	

	checkpoints are not permitted.	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Yes</b> Vehicular homicide while under the influence. MT ST § 45-5-106.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>30 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$50,000</b> .	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	There is a mandatory term, as the imposition of the sen- tence cannot be suspended. The specific term, however, is not listed. MT ST § 45-5-106.	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Revocation	
Action:	MT ST § 61-5-205(1)(a).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	1 year	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	1 year	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is suspended from operating a CMV for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has an alcohol con- centration $\geq$ .04; (2) is convicted of violating the drunk driving laws (MT ST § 61-8-401; MT ST § 61-8-406); or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol con- centration.	
	For a subsequent violation of operating a CMV with an alcohol concentration $\geq$ .04, the "suspension" is for life with 10 years mandatory as may be allowed by Federal regulations.	
	For a subsequent refusal to submit to a chemical test, the suspension is for life with 10 years mandatory as may be allowed by Federal regulations.	
	For a second DUI offense conviction associated with op- erating a CMV, the suspension is for life except as allowed by Federal regulations.	
	For a third DUI offense conviction associated with operat- ing a CMV, the suspension is for life (mand).	
	A person who operates a CMV with any measurable amount or detected presence of alcohol must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours.	
	MT ST § 61-5-208; MT ST § 61-8-805; MT ST §	

	61-8-806.
Driving While License Suspended or	
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI	
Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	Misdemeanor
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>2 days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . MT ST § 61-5-212.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	2 days
Type of Licensing Action	Suspension or revocation
Withdrawal Action:	Suspension/revocation extended for an additional year. MT ST § 61-5-212(2)
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	
Other:	I. The court may order an offender to perform up to 40 hours of community service. MT ST § 61-5-212(1)(b)(ii). II. The vehicle must be seized or rendered inoperable by the county sheriff of the convicted person's county of resi- dence for 30 days. MT ST § 61-5-212(3).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MT ST § 61-11-201 <i>et seq</i> .
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	Accumulation of 30 or more conviction points <sup>444</sup> in a 3- year period. MT ST § 61-11-203(2).
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Revocation 3 years</b> If a driver participates in a driver rehabilitation and improvement program, a restricted probationary license may be issued after 1 year of the revocation period has passed. MT ST § 61-2-302 (2)(b)(ii); MT ST § 61-11-211; MT ST § 61-11-212.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	Misdemeanor MT ST § 61-11-213.
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	
Imprisonment (Term):	Not less than <b>14 days</b> nor more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . MT ST § 61-11-213.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	It appears that the <b>14 days</b> is mandatory.
Licensing Actions (Specify):	<b>Revocation</b> extended for an additional period of <b>1 year</b> . MT ST § 61-11-213.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>444</sup> See MT ST § 61-11-203(2) for a list of point accumulations.

Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	21 MT ST $\S$ 16 2 201(4)(a) (5): MT ST $\S$ 16 6 205(1)	
Minimum Age (Years)	MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a), (5); MT ST § 16-6-305(1). 21 MT ST § 45 5 (24(1)4)	
Possession/Consumption:	MT ST § 45-5-624(1)(b).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Limited to persons under the legal drinking age, those who are visibly intoxicated, and forced or coerced consumption or trickery. MT ST § 27-1-710(3).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	Yes Hehring v. La Counte, 712 P.2d 1329 (Mont. 1986); Rohlfs v. Klemenhagen, LLC, 354 Mont. 133 (Mont. 2009) (unpublished).	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes Limited to situations where the consumer was under the legal age or the furnishing of alcohol was accomplished by force, coercion or trickery. MT ST § 27-1-710(5).	
Social Hosts-Criminal Enforcement:	A parent, guardian or any person age 18 or older who knowingly contributes to the delinquency of a child by supplying or encouraging the use of an intoxicating sub- stance by a child (under the age of 18) may be found guilty of endangering the welfare of a child, punishable by not more than \$500 and/or jail for not more than 6 months for a first offense. A second conviction results in a fine of not more than \$1,000 and/or imprisonment for not more than 6 months. MT ST § 45-5-622.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(b); MT ST § 16-6-304; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> .	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		

Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes Suspension - Not more than 3 months; Revocation - Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-06.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-06.         Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor MT ST § 16-3-001(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 16-4-8-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Suspension - Not more than 3 months; Revocation - Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes Suspension - Not more than 3 months; Revocation - Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):			
Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Length of Term of License Withdrawal:       Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes         Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.       Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle: <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:       Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Liength of Term License Withdrawal:       Suspension or toor ethan 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 16-8-460.	License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Revocation - Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverages or those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         Type of Criminal Action:       Misdemeanor MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes         Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.       Suspension - Not more than 3 months; Revocation - Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations: No       Implementer         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle: Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	Withdrawn (Yes/No):		
MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         Criminal Actions Against Owners or         Employees of Establishments that Serve         Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of         Misdemeanor         MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST §         16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:         Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of         Establishments That Serve Alcoholic         Beverages to Those Persons Under the         Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages         Withdrawn (Yes/No):         Length of Term License Withdrawal:         Suspension - Not more than 3 months;         Revocation - Period of revocation is not specified.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       Image: String S 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No <td>Length of Term of License Withdrawal:</td> <td></td> <td></td>	Length of Term of License Withdrawal:		
Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes         Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.       E		<b>Revocation</b> – Period of revocation is not specified.	
MT ST § 16-4-406.         Criminal Actions Against Owners or         Employees of Establishments that Serve         Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under         the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         Type of Criminal Action:         MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST §         16-6-314; MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST §         16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:         Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of         Establishments That Serve Alcoholic         Beverages to Those Persons Under the         Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages         Withdrawn (Yes/No):         Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Activil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations;       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container			
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor         Type of Criminal Action:       Misdemeanor         MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         MT ST § 16-4-406.       Imposed of the promoted of the p	Other:		
Employees of Establishments that Serve       Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor         Type of Criminal Action:       Misdemeanor       MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Ves         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No       No       Imposed of revocation is not specified.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.       Imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No       Imposed of revocation is not specified.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       Imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.       Imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No       Imposed of revocation is not specified.       Imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.       Impos		MT ST § 16-4-406.	
Employees of Establishments that Serve       Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor         Type of Criminal Action:       Misdemeanor       MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Ves         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No       No       Imposed of revocation is not specified.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.       Imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No       Imposed of revocation is not specified.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       Imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.       Imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No       Imposed of revocation is not specified.       Imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.       Impos	Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor MT ST § 16-3301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         I       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       No         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.       I			
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Misdemeanor MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image: Comparison of the state of the			
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image:       Image: <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
Type of Criminal Action:Misdemeanor MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST § 16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.Term of Imprisonment/Fine:Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:Image: Comparison of the serve alcoholic of the serve	-		
MT ST § 16-3-301(4)(a); MT ST § 16-6-305; MT ST §         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of       Establishments         Establishments That Serve Alcoholic       Beverages to Those Persons Under the         Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages       Yes         Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       Suspension – Not more than 3 months;         Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       No         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.       Image: State Stat			
16-6-314; MT ST § 46-18-212.         Term of Imprisonment/Fine:         Administrative Actions Against Owners of         Establishments That Serve Alcoholic         Beverages to Those Persons Under the         Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages         Withdrawn (Yes/No):         Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:         Suspension – Not more than 3 months;         Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:         Activil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	Type of Criminal Action:		
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:       Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic       Image: Comparison of the stablishments That Serve Alcoholic         Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       No         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle:			
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Ne         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.       Image: State Sta			
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.Length of Term License Withdrawal:Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.Other:A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:NoLaws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> .	
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.Length of Term License Withdrawal:Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.Other:A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:NoLaws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image:			
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages       Yes         Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       Suspension – Not more than 3 months;         Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.       MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.       Image: State Sta			
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):Yes Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.Length of Term License Withdrawal:Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.Other:A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:NoLaws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.			
Withdrawn (Yes/No):Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.Length of Term License Withdrawal:Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.Other:A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:NoLaws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	<u></u>		
Withdrawn (Yes/No):Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.Length of Term License Withdrawal:Suspension – Not more than 3 months; Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified. MT ST § 16-4-406.Other:A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:NoLaws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Revocation – Period of revocation is not specified.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or revocation MT ST § 16-4-406.	
MT ST § 16-4-406.         Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed.         MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Suspension – Not more than 3 months;	
Other:       A civil penalty not to exceed \$1,500 may be imposed. MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle		1	
MT ST § 16-4-406.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.			
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Image: Container Law (Yes/No):         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	Other:		
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open         Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)         the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes         MT ST § 61-8-460.		MT ST § 16-4-406.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open         Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)         the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes         MT ST § 61-8-460.	Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)         the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.			
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes         MT ST § 61-8-460.	Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.			
Open Container Law (Yes/No):     Yes MT ST § 61-8-460.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
	Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MT ST § 61-8-460.	
	Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> MT ST § 61-8-460.	

STATE	NEBRASKA	
General Reference:	Revised Statutes of Nebraska	
	Nebraska Administrative Code	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcoholic liquor. NE ST § 60- 6,196(1)(a).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\ge .08^{445}$ NE ST § 60-6,196(1)(b), (c).	
6	Persons Under 21 Years Old – BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .02 but <.08	
	NE ST § 60-6,211.01.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug. NE ST § 60-6,196(1)(a).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> NE ST § 60-6,197(3); NE ST § 60-6,211.02(2).	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes NE ST § 60-6,197	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>446</sup> NE ST § 60-6,197(2).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	<b>Yes</b> NE ST § 60-6,197(1).	
(Yes/No):		
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	<b>Yes</b> (Criminal Cases) NE ST § 60-6,197(6).	
Admitted into Evidence:		
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> NE ST § 60-6,197(1).	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> NE ST § 60-6,197(1).	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> Pretrial diversion of DWI cases is prohibited.	
	NE ST § 29-3604.	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes Any person shall submit to and participate in an alco-	
(Yes/No):	hol assessment during a presentence evaluation.	
	NE ST § 60-6,197.08.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>445</sup> Standards: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. NE ST § 60-6,196(1); NE

ST § 60-6,211.01. <sup>446</sup> Probable cause (not an arrest) is needed prior to requesting a person under 21 years old to submit to a chemical test. NE ST § 60-6,211.02(2).

Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> Test:		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	Class V Misdemeanor: A maximum of \$100 fine. NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § 60-6,197(3); NE ST § 60-6,197.04.	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation 1 year NE ST § 60-498.02.	
Other:	Persons Under 21 Years Old: A person under 21 years old who refuses to submit to a preliminary breath test to de- termine if he/she was driving with a BAC/BrAC ≥.02 may be arrested. NE ST § 60-6, 211.02(2).	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	See Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense, below.	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Impoundment or revocationNE ST § 60-6,197.03.	
	Probation/suspension of sentence not granted:First offense – Impoundment = 6 months; Revocation = 6months (30 days mand.); $\geq .15$ - Revocation = 1 year (60 days mand.);Second offense – Revocation = 1 year; $\geq .15$ - Revocation = at least 1 year but not more than15 years;Third offense – Revocation = 15 years; $\geq .15$ - Revocation = 15 years;Fourth offense – Revocation = 15 years;Fourth offense – Revocation = 15 years; $\geq .15$ - Revocation = 15 years;	
	Probation/suspension of sentence granted:         First offense – Revocation = 60 days         ≥.15 – Revocation = 1 year (unless ignition interlock authorized);         Second offense – Revocation = 1 year (unless ignition interlock authorized);         ≥.15 – Revocation = at least 1 year but not more than 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);         Third offense – Revocation = at least 2 years but not more than 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);         ∑.15 – Revocation = at least 2 years but not more than 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);         ∑.15 – Revocation = at least 5 years but not more than 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);         ∑.15 – Revocation = at least 5 years but not more than 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);         ∑.15 – Revocation = at least 5 years but not more than 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);         ∑ourth offense – Revocation = 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);         Fourth offense – Revocation = 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);	

	$\geq .15 - \text{Revocation} = 15 \text{ years (unless ignition inter-lock authorized)}$ $\frac{\text{Fifth or subsequent offense}}{\text{Iless ignition interlock authorized}} - \text{Revocation} = 15 \text{ years (un-less ignition interlock authorized)}$ NE ST § 60-6,197.03.
Other:	Persons Under 21 Years Old: A person under 21 years oldwho refuses to submit to a chemical test to determine ifhe/she has BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .02 but <.08 commits a Traffic
	Admin. Action: 90 days license "impoundment". Restricted driving privi- leges for employment are available. NE ST § 60-672; NE ST § 60-689; NE ST § 60-6,211.02; NE ST § 60-6,211.03.
	The driver licensing record for this administrative action must be expunged after 120 days. NE ST § 60-6,211.06(2).
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense(Class W misdemeanor) – Not more than 60days and not more than \$500;Second offense(within 12 years) (Class W misdemeanor)– Not more than 6 months and not more than \$500;Third offense(within 12 years) (Class W misdemeanor) –Not more than 1 year and not more than \$600;Fourth offense(within 12 years) (Class IIIA felony) – Notless than 180 days or more than 5 years and/or not morethan \$10,000;Fifth or subsequent offense(within 12 years) (Class IIIfelony) – Not less than 1 year or more than 20 yearsand/or not more than \$25,000;
	BAC ≥ .15: <u>First offense</u> (Class W misdemeanor) – Not less than 2 days or more than 60 days and not more than \$500; <u>Second offense</u> (Class I misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000; <u>Third offense</u> (Class IIIA felony) – Not less than 180 days or more than 5 years and/or not more than \$10,000;

	Fourth offense (Class III folony) Not loss than 1 year on
	Fourth offense (Class III felony) – Not less than 1 year or
	more than <b>20 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$25,000</b> ;
	<u>Fifth or subsequent offense</u> (Class II felony) – Not less
	than 1 year or more than 50 years.
	NE ST § 28-105; NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § 60-6,197(4);
	NE ST § 60-6,197.02; NE ST § 60-6,197.03.
	<b>DUI Serious Bodily Injury</b> (Class IIIA Felony) – Not
	more than <b>5</b> years and/or not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . NE ST §
	60-6,198.
	Persons under 21 years old:
	<u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>\$100</b> ;
	Second offense (within 1 year) – Not more than <b>\$200</b> ; Third or subsequent offense (within 1 year) – Not more
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (within 1 year) – Not more than <b>\$300</b> .
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	NE ST § 60-6,211.02; NE ST § 60-6,211.03.           Mandatory Sanctions:
wandatory winning rem/rine.	Probation/suspension of sentence <u>not</u> granted:
	First offense – \$400/7 days;
	$\frac{11151 \text{ Offense}}{\text{Second offense}} = $400/7 \text{ days};$
	5000000000000000000000000000000000000
	$\frac{2.15}{\text{Third offense}} - \$600/1 \text{ year}$
	$\geq .15 - 180$ days.
	NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § $60-6,197(4)$ .
	NE 51 § 20-100, NE 51 § 00-0,177(4).
	Probation/suspension of sentence granted:
	<u>First offense</u> – <b>\$400</b> ;
	$\geq .15$ - \$500/2 days or not less than 120 hours
	community service;
	Second offense – \$500/5 days or not less than 240 hours
	of community service;
	<u>≥ .15</u> - \$1,000/30 days;
	<u>Third offense</u> – <b>\$600/30 days</b> ;
	<u>≥ .15</u> - <b>\$1,000/60 days</b> ;
	Fourth offense (within 12 years) - \$1,000/90 days;
	<u>≥.15</u> – \$1,000/120 days;
	Fifth or subsequent offense - \$1,000/180 days;
	<u>≥ .15</u> - \$1,000/180 days.
	NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § 60-6,197.03.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	Except when the violation requires a mandatory minimum
	sentence, community service may be ordered as an alterna-
	tive to a fine, in lieu of incarceration, as a condition of
	probation or in addition to another sentence. NE ST § 29-
	2278.
	See NE ST § 29-2279 for a list of community service pe-
	right that may be ordered by the court
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	riod that may be ordered by the court.I. A defendant may be ordered to pay restitution to a vic-

	tim NE ST \$ 20 2280	
	tim. NE ST § 29-2280.	
	II. Victims' Compensation Fund is available. NE ST §	
	81-1801 <i>et seq</i> .	
Other:	Driver Education Program: Offenders who have accu-	
	mulated 12 or more points within 2 years must attend and	
	successfully complete a driver's education program of at	
	least 8 hours duration before any license may be reins-	
	tated. NE ST § 60-4,183.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
renning renning.		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	<b>Revocation</b> NE ST § 60-498.02.	
<u>The David Conviction</u> Discussing Fredom		
Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.08	
	<u>First violation</u> – <b>Revocation 90 days</b> (30 days mand);	
	Subsequent violation (within 12 years) – Revocation 1	
	<b>year</b> (mand).	
	NE ST § 60-498.02.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Impoundment or Revocation	
Type of Electioning Pretron (Suspireev).	NE ST § 60-498; NE ST § 60-6,197.03.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	Probation/suspension of sentence <u>not</u> granted:	
Years, etc.):	First offense – Impoundment = 6 months; Revocation = 6	
Tears, etc.).		
	months (30 days mand.);	
	$\geq .15$ - Revocation = 1 year (60 days mand.);	
	<u>Second offense</u> – Revocation = 1 year;	
	$\geq .15$ – Revocation = at least 1 year but not more than	
	15 years;	
	<u>Third offense</u> – Revocation = 15 years;	
	$\geq .15 - \text{Revocation} = 15 \text{ years};$	
	<u>Fourth offense</u> – Revocation = 15 years;	
	$\geq .15$ – Revocation = 15 years;	
	<u>Fifth or subsequent offense</u> – Revocation =15 years;	
	$\geq .15 - \text{Revocation} = 15 \text{ years}$	
	$\geq .13$ – Revocation – 13 years	
	Probation/suspension of sentence granted:	
	First offense – Revocation = $60 \text{ days}$	
	$\geq .15$ – Revocation = 1 year (unless ignition interlock	
	- · · ·	
	authorized);	
	<u>Second offense</u> – Revocation = 1 year (unless ignition in-	
	terlock authorized);	
	$\geq .15$ – Revocation = at least 1 year but not more than	
	15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);	
	<u>Third offense</u> – Revocation = at least 2 years but not more	
	than 15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);	
	$\geq .15$ – Revocation = at least 5 years but not more than	

	15 years (unless ignition interlock authorized);	
	<u>Fourth offense</u> – Revocation = 15 years (unless ignition	
	interlock authorized);	
	$\geq .15$ – Revocation = 15 years (unless ignition inter-	
	lock authorized)	
	<u>Fifth or subsequent offense</u> – Revocation = 15 years (un-	
	less ignition interlock authorized)	
	NE ST § 60-6,197.03.	
	DUI Serious Bodily Injury: 15 years	
	NE ST § 60-6,198(1).	
	Dansons under 21 voors old:	
	Persons under 21 years old: 20 dame NE ST $\beta$ (0 ( 211 02) NE ST $\beta$ (0 ( 211 02)	
	<b>30 days</b> NE ST § 60-6,211.02; NE ST § 60-6,211.03.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	The terms above are mandatory unless an ignition inter-	
Withdrawal:	lock device is authorized.	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes	
	NE ST § 60-6,196(8).	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment	
veniere impoundment, comiseutori.	Immobilization	
Authorized by Specific Statutory	NE ST § 60-4,110	
	5 · · ·	
Authority:	NE ST § 60-6,197.01(1)(a), (b).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	Impoundment: Any motor vehicle impounded shall be	
Released:	released to the holder of a bona fide lien, the title owner	
	when such owner is the lessor, or to the registered owner,	
	registered co-owner, or his spouse upon good cause shown	
	by affidavit that the impounded motor vehicle is essential	
	to the livelihood of such person. NE ST § 60-4,110(2).	
	Immobilization:	
	A co-owner of the vehicle may have the vehicle released	
	to him or her if there is a need to use such vehicle to con-	
	tinue employment or for the well-being of the co-owner's	
	children or parents.	
	*	
01	NE ST § 60-6,197.01(1)(a)(ii).	
Other:	Impoundment: Every motor vehicle, regardless of the	
	registered owner, being operated by a person whose li-	
	cense has been suspended, revoked or impounded because	
	of DUI convictions is declared to be a "public nuisance."	
	Upon arrest, the motor vehicle shall be impounded for not	
	less than 10 days or more than 30 days. NE ST § 60-	
	4,110.	
	Immobilization: A person who has been convicted of ei-	

	ther a second or subsequent drunk-driving/implied consent refusal offense (within 12 years) must have <b>all</b> of the mo- tor vehicles that person owns "immobilized" for not less than <b>5 days nor more than 8 months</b> . NE ST § 60-6,197.01(1).	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):		
Conditions of Use:	If an order of probation is granted after a DUI conviction or admin per se violation, the court may order such defen- dant to install an ignition interlock device. The court may determine the period of time in which the device shall be used, but shall not exceed the maximum term of revoca- tion which the court could have imposed. NE ST § 60- 6,211.05.	
	Any person whose license has been revoked for a 3 <sup>rd</sup> or subsequent DUI violation within 15 years may apply for reinstatement of his/her eligibility for license after the li- cense has been revoked for at least 7 years. If such reins- tatement is granted, the Board of Pardons may order such person to obtain an ignition interlock device and operate only motor vehicles equipped with such devices. NE ST § 60-6,209; NE ST § 83-1,127.02.	
	The court may order a person who has been convicted of a second or subsequent DUI/implied consent refusal offense, as an alternative to vehicle immobilization, to have all of the vehicles owned equipped with ignition interlock devices. This requirement must last for not less than <b>6 months.</b> One year of the license revocation period must be completed before any ignition interlock devices can be installed. NE ST § 60-6,197.01(1)(b).	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted         See State v. McCleery, 560 N.W.2d 789 (Neb. 1997).447	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Unintentionally causing death while engaged in the opera- tion of a motor vehicle where the proximate cause of death of another is the operation of a motor vehicle in violation of a DUI law. NE ST § 28-306(3).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>447</sup> The issue in this case was whether avoiding a sobriety checkpoint was justification for an investigatory stop. However, the ruling in this case infers that the use of sobriety checkpoints is lawful.

Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	Class III felony
	Class II felony (if the defendant has a prior DUI convic-
	tion or driving on a revoked license where DUI was the
	cause for revocation).
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Class III felony – Not less than 1 year or more than 20
	years and/or not more than \$25,000;
	Class II felony – Not less than 1 year or more than 50
	years.
	NE ST § 28-105.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	1 year (for both).
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Revocation
Action:	
Length of Term of Licensing	Class III felony – Revocation for at least 1 year and not
Withdrawal:	more than <b>15 years</b> ;
	Class II felony – Revocation for 15 years.
	NE ST § 28-306(3)(b), (c).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	The terms appear to be mandatory.
of License Withdrawal:	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Other:	For each, the court shall order the person not to drive any
	motor vehicle for any purpose for the period of time spe-
	cific above, in addition to revocation of the person's oper-
	ator's license.
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 man-
Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's	datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if,
Licenses (CDL):	while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a
Licelises (CDL).	
	BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of alco-
	hol or a controlled substance; or (3) refuses to submit to a
	chemical test for alcohol concentration. For a subsequent
	violation or a combination of two or more violations of
	any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is for
	life (mand).
	In addition, CMV operators who have any detectable
	amount of alcohol in their system must be placed
	out-of-service for 24 hours.
	Any CMV apareter who refuges to submit to a malining
	Any CMV operator who refuses to submit to a preliminary
	breath test shall be guilty of a Class V misdemeanor, pu-
	nishable by a fine of \$400.
	NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § 60-4,163; NE ST § 60-4,164;
	NE ST § 60-4,168.
	10 51 y 00-7,100.
Driving While License Suspended or	There are no specific sanctions where the basis of suspen-
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI	sion/revocation was a DUI offense.

Offence		
Offense:		
Sanction:	Driving While Revoked – Class II misdemeanor;	_
	Driving While Suspended – Class II misdemeanor.	
	NE ST § 60-4,108; NE ST § 60-4,109.	
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Class II misdemeanor – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or	
	not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ;	
	Class III misdemeanor – Not more than <b>3 months</b> and/or	
	not more than \$500.	
	NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § 60-557; NE ST § 60-4,108; NE	
	ST § 60-4,109.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	None	
Imprisonment/Fine:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal	Driving While Revoked:	
Action:	First offense – 1 year;	
	<u>Subsequent offense</u> – 2 years.	
	NE ST § 60-4,109(1).	
	Driving While Suspended – 1 year. <sup>448</sup>	
	NE ST § 60-4,109(2).	
Mandatory Term of License	The terms appear to be mandatory	
Withdrawal Action:		
Other:	In each of the offenses above, the court shall also order	
	such person not to operate any motor vehicle for any pur-	
	pose.	
Ushitusl Troffis Offender Levu		
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NE ST § 60-6,102.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes If dead within 4 hours of the accident.	_
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes If at least 16 years old and dead within 4 hours of the	_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>448</sup> If such person provides proof of reinstatement of suspended license, proof of issuance of a new license, or proof of a return of the impounded license, then the court shall only order a fine not more than **\$100**. NE ST § 60-4,109(2).

	accident.	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Sale/Purchase:	NE ST § 53-180; NE ST § 53-180.02.	
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Possession/Consumption:	There are exemptions for possession in a "permanent place	
-	of residence," for religious purposes, and for certain em-	
	ployment purposes by those $\geq 19$ years old.	
	NE ST § 53-168.06; NE ST § 53-180.02.	
Dram Shan Laws and Palatad Lagal		
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
<u>Actions</u> :		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	No	
(Yes/No):		
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	N/A	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes – limited to minors. NE ST § 53-404.	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. A person providing alcohol to a minor may be found	
	guilty of contributing to the delinquency of a child, a Class	
	I misdemeanor, punishable by not more than <b>1 year</b> impri-	
	sonment and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . NE ST § 28-106;	
	NE ST § 28-709.	
	II. Any person age 21 and over who gives alcoholic liquor	
	to a minor may be found guilty of a Class I misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment for not more than 1 year	
	and/or a fine of not more than \$1,000. Any person older	
	than age 18 but younger than age 21 who gives alcoholic	
	liquor to a minor may be found guilty of a Class III mis-	
	demeanor punishable by imprisonment for not more than 3	
	months and/or a fine of not more than \$500.	
	NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § 53-180; NE ST § 53-180.05.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class I Misdemeanor	
	NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § 53-180; NE ST § 53-180.05;	
	237 NE ADC Ch. 6,, § 019.01N.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> .	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		

Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes         Suspension, cancellation or revocation         NE ST § 53-116.02; NE ST § 53-1,104.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	First offense– A licensee may pay a cash penalty for each of the suspension, in lieu of suspension, which is \$50/day; Second offense (within 4 years) – Not more than 48 hours; Third or subsequent offense (within 4 years of the first 	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Class I Misdemeanor</b> NE ST § 28-106; NE ST § 53-180; NE ST § 53-180.05.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension, cancellation or revocation NE ST § 53-116.02; NE ST § 53-1,104.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	First offense– A licensee may pay a cash penalty for each of the suspension, in lieu of suspension, which is \$50/day; Second offense (within 4 years) – Not more than 48 hours; Third or subsequent offense (within 4 years of the first suspension) – Not more than 15 days. NE ST § 53-1,104.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> 237 NE ADC Ch. 6 § 019.01U.	
	This regulation does not regulate the price of "single" drinks. It does, however, prohibit the selling of an unli- mited quantity of drinks at one price.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NE ST § 60-6,211.08(2).	

#### NEBRASKA

Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NE ST § 60-6,211.08(3).		
--------------------------------	------------------------------------	--	--

STATE	NEVADA	
General Reference:	Nevada Revised Statutes	
	Nevada Administrative Code	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor NV ST § 484.379(1)(a).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	I. $\geq$ .08 <sup>449</sup> NV ST § 484.038; NV ST § 484.379(1)(b), (c). II. Certain amounts of prohibited substances in the blood or urine. <sup>450</sup> NV ST § 484.379(3).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	<ul> <li>I. Under the influence of a controlled substance or a combination of intoxicating liquor and a controlled substance.</li> <li>NV ST § 484.379(2)(a), (b).</li> <li>II. Any person who inhales, ingests, applies or otherwise uses any chemical, poison, organic solvent and any compound or a combination of these to a degree which renders him incapable of safely driving.</li> <li>NV ST § 484.379(2) (c).</li> </ul>	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes NV ST § 484.382.	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes NV ST § 484.383	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> NV ST § 484.383(1).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NV ST § 484.383(1).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	<b>Yes</b> (Criminal Cases and Admin Actions) NV ST § 484.389. If a person fails to submit to a test, a blood sample may be obtained without consent and by the use of reasonable force if there are "reasonable grounds to believe" that the driver has been driving under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. NV ST § 484.383(7).	
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>451</sup> NV ST § 484.383(1).	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>449</sup> Standards: "Concentration of alcohol" is defined as grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. NV ST § 483.045; NV ST § 484.038.
 <sup>450</sup> See NV ST § 484.379(3) for a list of prohibited substances and corresponding amounts in blood or urine. These substances include cocaine, marijuana, heroin, ampletamine and phencyclidine (PCP).
 <sup>451</sup> A person may be directed to submit to a blood test to determine the presence of controlled substances. NV ST § 484.383(5).

Additionally, a law enforcement officer may direct a person to submit to a blood test if there are reasonable grounds to believe the person, while operating a vehicle caused death or serious injury while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled sub-

Urine:	<b>Yes – Limited</b> <sup>452</sup> NV ST § 484.383(1).	
Other:	Other bodily substance (unspecified)	
	NV ST § 484.383(1).	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> A DUI charge cannot be reduced for a lesser charge in exchange for a plea, or dismissed unless there is no evi- dence to support probable cause, or such charge cannot be proven at trial. NV ST § 484.3792(4).	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes I. An alcohol or drug evaluation must be administered to third or subsequent offenders. NV ST § 176.135; NV ST § 484.3792(1)(c); NV ST § 484.3796. II. A first offender who registers a BAC/BrAC ≥.18, or any second offender (within 7 years) must be administered an evaluation to determine if that person is an abuser of alcohol or drugs. NV ST § 484.37943(1). III. A first offender who is < 21 years old or a first or sub- sequent offender who is < 18 years old must be adminis- tered an evaluation to determine if that person is an abuser of alcohol or drugs. NV ST § 484.37943(2).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Other:	If a person refuses to submit to a preliminary breath test where there are "reasonable grounds to believe" that per- son has committed a DUI offense, the law enforcement officer requesting such a test must seize the person's li- cense, arrest that person, and take the person to a conve- nient place for the administration of a test pursuant to NV ST § 484.383. NV ST § 484.382(2).	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	<b>Revocation</b> (not time period listed in statute)	
(Susp/Rev):	NV ST § 484.385; see also, State, Dept. of Motor Vehicles	

stance, or has been stopped for a subsequent DUI offense within 7 years. NV ST § 484.383(4)(c). <sup>452</sup> A urine test can be requested only under two conditions: (1) a driver is afflicted with hemophilia or a heart condition requiring the use of anticoagulants, which would exempt him/her from any blood test; or (2) a driver has been stopped for driving under the influence of a controlled substance. NV ST § 484.383(3), (5), (6).

	<i>v. Kiffe</i> , 709 P.2d 1017 (Nev. 1985)(holding that motor- ist's license was properly revoked for refusal to submit to test under implied consent law).
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense(within 7 years) (misdemeanor) – Not lessthan 2 days or more than 6 months and not less than \$400or more than \$1,000;Second offense(within 7 years) (misdemeanor) – Not lessthan 10 days or more than 6 months and not less than\$750 or more than \$1,000;Third offense(within 7 years) (category B felony) – Notless than 1 year or more than 6 years and not less than\$2,000 or more than \$5,000;Subsequent offense <sup>453</sup> (within 7 years) (category B felony)– Not less than 2 years or more than 15 years and not lessthan \$2,000 or more than \$5,000.NV ST § 484.3792.
	<b>DUI with Substantial Bodily Harm</b> (category B felony) – Not less than <b>2 years</b> or more than <b>20 years</b> and not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . NV ST § 484.3795.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First offense – \$400;         Second offense – 10 days (with at least 48 consecutive hours)/\$750;         Third offense – 1 year/\$2,000(with at least 48 consecutive hours);         Subsequent offense – 2 years/\$2,000.         NV ST § 484.3792(4), (5).
Other Penalties:	DUI with Substantial Bodily Harm – 2 years/\$2,000.
Community Service:	Community service may be ordered as an alternative sanc- tion, or as a condition of any suspended sentence. NV ST § 4.373; NV ST § 5.055; NV ST § 484.37937; NV ST § 484.3794.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes         I. As a condition for a suspended sentence, the court may order a defendant to pay compensation to a victim. NV ST § 4.373; NV ST § 5.055.         II. Through a victims' compensation fund. NV ST § 217.010 et seq.
Other:	Offenders under NV ST § 484.37937 Disposition: This

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>453</sup> This applies to a person who has been previously convicted of a felony DUI offense, DUI death/serious bodily injury, vehicular homicide stemming from DUI or a DUI offense that was reduced from a felony. NV ST § 484.3792(2).

allows offenders to undergo a substance abuse or alcohol treatment program, where the offender is diagnosed as an alcoholic or abuser of drugs, the offender must serve some jail time and/or perform community service, and pay a fine. The court shall sentence the defendant to an all- suspended sentence upon condition of successful or satis- factory completion. The following terms apply: <u>First offense</u> – At least 1 days in jail or not less than 24 hours or more than 96 hours of community service and a fine of not more than \$400, with a suspended sentence of not more than 3 years; <u>Second offense</u> – 5 days in jail and may be ordered to serve not less than ½ of the hours of community service and a suspended sentence of not more than 3 years; <u>Third offense</u> – Probation for not more than 5 years condi- tioned upon acceptance into a treatment facility for not less than 6 months.	
Under this disposition, sentence shall not be deferred and conviction shall not be set aside. NV ST § 484.37937; NV ST § 484.3794; NV ST § 484.37941	
<b>Residential Confinement</b> : The court may order that the defendant be confined to home for a conviction of a misdemeanor offense. This sentence may be supervised by means of electronic devices. NV ST § 4.3762; NV ST § 5.076.	
A Civil Fine of \$35 must be imposed. This fine is paid into a victims' compensation fund. NV ST § 484.3791.	
<b>Chemical Test Fee</b> : In addition to any fine, a defendant must pay a fee of <b>\$60</b> for any chemical analysis that was performed to determine alcohol concentration or the presence of a controlled substance in the blood, breath or urine. NV ST § 484.3798.	
Administrative Assessment: DUI misdemeanor offenders are subject to administrative assessments in addition to any fine that is imposed. These assessments may range from \$25 -\$115 depending upon the size of the fine that is imposed. NV ST § 176.059(1).	
<b>Evaluation Assessment Fee</b> : An offender who has been ordered to submit to alcohol or drug evaluation must pay a fee of not more than <b>\$100</b> . NV ST § 484.37943(7).	
<b>Impact Meeting</b> : An offender shall be ordered to attend in person a live meeting (if available) with victims of DUI	

	offenses in order to discuss the impact of the offense on	
	such victims. NV ST § 484.3797.	
	<b>Taxicab Drivers</b> : It is illegal for a person to "drive a tax-	
	icab or go on duty while under the influence of, or im-	
	paired by, any controlled substance, dangerous drug, or	
	intoxicating liquor or drinking liquor while on duty." NV	
	ST § 706.8849(1)(g).	
	A person who violates this provision is subject to the fol-	
	lowing sanctions:	
	<u>First offense</u> – A fine of not more than <b>\$100</b> and/or driv-	
	er's license suspension from 1-5 days;	
	<u>Second offense</u> (within 12 months) – A fine of not more	
	than <b>\$300</b> and/or driver's license suspension from <b>6-20</b>	
	days; Third offense (within 12 months) A fine of not more	
	<u>Third offense</u> (within 12 months) – A fine of not more than <b>\$500</b> . In addition to these sanctions, a driver's license	
	than <b>\$500</b> . In addition to these sanctions, a driver's license	
	may be revoked and possible revocation of license. NV ST § 706.8849(2). <b>Note</b> : The law does not state a revoca-	
	0 ( )	
	tion period.	
	Child Endangerment: If a child less than 15 years old	
	was a passenger in the vehicle at the time of the offense,	
	such fact shall be considered an aggravating factor when	
	determining sentence. NV ST § 484.3792(8); NV ST §	
	484.3795(4).	
	404.5755(4).	
	Work Zone: In addition to the primary penalty attributed	
	to a DUI offense, any person violating a DUI law within a	
	work zone is subject to an additional penalty equal to the	
	original, not to exceed \$1,000, 6 months imprisonment or	
	120 hours of community service. NV ST § 484.3667.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	<b>Yes</b> $\geq$ .08 (BAC/BrAC) or a detectable amount of a prohi-	
A Minimutative i et be Law.	bited substance in the blood or urine – <b>Revocation 90</b>	
	days. NV ST § 484.383; NV ST § 484.384; NV ST § 484.385.	
	11 1 51 8 404.303, 11 1 51 8 404.304, 11 1 51 8 404.303.	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old – ≥ <b>.02 but</b> < <b>.08</b>	
	(BAC/BrAC) Suspension 90 days (45 days mand). NV	
	ST § 483.461; NV ST § 483.462; NV ST § 483.464.	
Other:	Under NV ST § 483.470, a person's license may be sus-	
	pended if that person has "committed" an offense that	
	usually requires license revocation (e.g., DUI). Such ac-	
	tion may be taken <u>without</u> a preliminary hearing. The	
	length of the revocation period is unclear.	
	iongen of the revolution period is unclear.	

Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> NV ST § 483.460.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<u>First offense</u> – <b>90 days</b> (45 days mand.); <sup>454</sup>	
Years, etc.):	Second offense (within 7 years) – 1 year;	
	Third and subsequent offense (within 7 years) – 3 years.	
	NV ST § 483.460.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<u>First offense</u> – 45 days;	
Withdrawal:	Second offense (within 7 years) – 1 year;	
	<u>Third and subsequent offenses</u> (within 7 years) $-1\frac{1}{2}$	
	years. After a 1- year mandatory revocation, a restricted	
	license may be issued if the person is allowed to use an	
Other	ignition interlock.	
Other: Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes	
Alconol Education:		
Alcohol Treatment:	NV ST § 484.3792(1)(a)(1). Yes	
Alcohol Heatment.		
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	N/A	
Other:	Vehicle Registration Suspension: For a second or sub-	
	sequent drunk-driving/drunk-driving related vehicle homi-	
	cide offense (within 7 years), the registrations of <u>all</u> of the	
	vehicles owned by the offender must be <b>suspended for 5</b>	
	days. There is an exception in the case of a non-offender	
	family member who needs to use a vehicle for employ-	
	ment purposes, medical reasons, school or other necessi-	
	ties. NV ST § 482.451; NV ST § 484.37975.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Both	
Conditions of Use:	Permissive	
	I. The court may order a defendant convicted of DUI (<	
	.18) to install an ignition interlock device as a condition	
	for restricted driving privileges for not less than <b>3 months</b>	
	or more than <b>6 months</b> .	
	Mondatomy	
	Mandatory Third or subsequent offense/DUI > .18 – Not less than 12	
	months or more than 36 months	
	months of more than so months	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>454</sup> After half of the revocation period has passed and the DUI offender has completed treatment in a treatment program, a restricted license may be issued. NV ST § 483.460(3); NV ST § 483.490(1).

	Any person with a device must provide proof of com- pliance before receiving a restricted license, and proof of inspection at least once every 90 days $\underline{DUI} > .18$ - (mandatory). NV ST § 484C.460.	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> NV ST § 484.359.	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Vehicular homicide (DUI-death with 3 prior like of- fenses) – Category A felony	
	DUI-death – Category B felony	
	NV ST § 484.3795; NV ST § 484.37955.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Vehicular Homicide – Imprisonment for life with parole eligibility after 10 years, or a definite term of 25 years; DUI-death – Not less than 2 years or more than 20 years and not less than \$2,000 or more than \$5,000.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	Vehicular Homicide – 10 years, <sup>455</sup> DUI-death – 2 years/\$2,000.	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Revocation	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>3</b> years <sup>456</sup> NV ST § 483.460(1)(a).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	This term appears to be mandatory.	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	The State's Public Service Commission and Department of Motor Vehicles and Public Safety have promulgated regu- lations that adopt by reference 49 CFR Parts 383 and 392. NV ST § 483.908. Under 49 CFR §383.51, a person is "disqualified" from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, he/she has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04 or is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more vi- olations of any of the above-listed items, the "disqualifica- tion" is for life.	

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{1}{455}$  This minimum sanction may not be suspended nor may probation be granted. NV ST § 484.3795(2).  $\frac{1}{456}$  This period is set aside during any period of imprisonment. NV ST § 483.460(1)(a).

Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The terms above are mandatory.	
Action:	riod. The original revocation is extended 1 year. NV ST § 483.560(5).	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev): Length of Term of License Withdrawal	Suspension or revocation NV ST § 483.560(5). The original suspension period is extended for a like pe-	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	30 days/\$500	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> <sup><math>457</math></sup> and not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . NV ST § $483.560(2)$ .	
Criminal:	Misdemeanor	
Sanction:		
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
	months and/or a fine of at least \$100 (mand) but not more than \$1,000. In addition, a person who violates a State regulation may also be liable for a civil penalty not to ex- ceed \$10,000. NV ST § 483.904; NV ST § 483.908; NV ST § 706.173; NV ST § 706.756; NV ST § 706.771; NV ADC § 706.247; 49 USCA 31301 <i>et seq</i> .	
	It is a misdemeanor to violate a State regulation. The sanctions for this offense are a jail term of not more than 6	
	Under 49 CFR § 392.5, a CMV operator who has any "de- tectable" amount of alcohol in their system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours.	
	If there are "reasonable grounds to believe" that a CMV operator is under the influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled substance, or has violated any provision of the drunk-driving or DWI vehicle homicide laws, a law en- forcement officer <u>must</u> administer a blood, breath, or urine test to such driver in order to determine either the alcohol- ic content or the presence of a controlled substance in the operator's system.	

 $<sup>^{457}</sup>$  Or, in residential confinement for not less than 60 days or more than 6 months.

Laws Bagwining BAC Chamical Tests on		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes NV ST § 484.394.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes	
Pedestrian:	Yes	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> NV ST § 202.020.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> Applies to possession in a public place. NV ST § 202.020. There are exceptions with regard to religious purposes, employment, medical prescriptions, and possession in the presence of parents or guardians. NV ST § 202.020(5).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes – limited to persons under the age of 21	
(Yes/No):	NV ST § 41.1305.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	Νο	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Possibly limited to persons under the age of 18</b> NV ST § 41.1305.	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. Any person furnishing alcohol to a minor may be found guilty of a misdemeanor and punished by not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000, or not more than 200 hours of community service. NV ST § 176.087; NV ST § 193.150; NV ST § 202.055. II. Any person who commits any act, causes or encourages a minor to consume alcohol may be found guilty of contri- buting to the delinquency of a minor, a misdemeanor, pu- nishable by not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$1,000, or not more than 200 hours of community service. NV ST § 176.087; NV ST § 193.150; NV ST § 201.110.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	N/A	

Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	N/A	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):		
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> NV ST § 193.150; NV ST § 202.055.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . <sup>458</sup>	
	NV ST § 193.150.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	No statutory provisions	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):		
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NV ST § 484.448(2).	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NV ST § 484.448.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>458</sup> A person may be permitted to perform not more than 200 hours of community service in lieu of all or part of his sentence. NV ST § 176.087; NV ST § 193.150.

STATE	NEW HAMPSHIRE	
General Reference:	New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor. <sup>459</sup> NH ST § 265-A:2.	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{460}$ NH ST § 265-A:2(I)(b). <u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> - $\geq .02$ NH ST § 265-A:2(I)(b).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	≥ .08 is <i>prima facie</i> evidence of intoxication. NH ST § 265-A:11.	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of (1) Any Controlled Drug and (2) Any Combination of Intoxicating Liquor and Controlled Drugs NH ST § 265:A2(I)(a)	
Other:	<ul> <li>≤ .03 BAC is <i>prima facie</i> evidence that defendant was not intoxicated</li> <li>&gt; .03 but &lt; .08 is relevant evidence that defendant was under the influence.</li> <li>NH ST § 265-A:11(I).</li> </ul>	
	Aggravated Driving While Intoxicated Offense: (1) Driving under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any controlled drug or any combination of intoxicating liquor and a controlled drug or with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .08 and one of the following: (a) exceeding the <i>prima facie</i> speed limit by more than 30 MPH; (b) causing a collision that results in a serious bodily injury to another person; or (c) attempting to elude a law enforcement officer; or (2) Driving with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .16. NH ST § 265-A:3.	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> NH ST § 265-A:15.	
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> NH ST § 265-A:4	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NH ST § 265-A:4.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NH ST § 265-A:4.	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) NH ST § 265-A:10.	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>459</sup> The term "intoxicating liquor" is defined to include <u>all</u> alcohol beverages containing more than one per cent alcohol by volume. NH ST § 21:33.
<sup>460</sup> The term "alcohol concentration" is defined as grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath or grams of alcohol per 67 milliliters of urine. NH ST § 259:3-b.

Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes NH ST § 265-A:5.	
Urine:	Yes NH ST § 265-A:5.	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> The law requires the filing of reports on plea- bargain- ing agreements. Since these reports are public records, they are available for public inspection. NH ST § 265- A:21(II).	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	The court may order a presentence investigation report for any person convicted of a felony or misdemeanor. How- ever the court <u>shall</u> order such report where the felony or misdemeanor was violent and the court has reason to be- lieve that the defendant committed a similar act within the past year. NH ST § 651:4.	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	<b>None -</b> but evidence of refusal is admissible only to show probable cause for the arrest. NH ST § 265-A:15.	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> where there has been no previous DWI of- fense – <b>Suspension for 180 days</b> (mand); <u>Second refusal</u> or a first refusal where there has been a previous DWI offense – <b>Suspension for 2 years</b> (mand).	
	These revocations are <u>not</u> to run concurrently with any other suspension or revocation.	
	NH ST § 265-A:14.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First conviction</u> (Class B misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$1,200</b> ;	

Administrative Per Se Law:	<b>Yes</b> $\geq$ .08 ( $\geq$ .02 for persons under 21 years old):	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
	defendant shall be responsible for confinement fees and intervention costs. NH ST § 265-A:40.	
	Multiple DWI Offender Intervention Detention Center Program: A court may sentence a person convicted of DWI to attend a 7-day detention center program. Such	
	<b>Liability for Response</b> : A DWI offender may be liable to reimburse a public agency for up to \$10,000 of the cost incurred in responding to an incident involving the negligent use of a vehicle while under the influence of alcohol. NH ST § 153-A:24.	
Other:	<b>Penalty Assessment</b> : An offender must pay an assessment of \$2 or 20 percent of the fine imposed, whichever is greater. NH ST § 188-F:31.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	<ul> <li>I. Payment by the defendant to the victim. NH ST § 651:63.</li> <li>II. A victim may receive compensation for damages from a State fund. NH ST § 21-M:8-h <i>et seq</i>.</li> </ul>	
Community Service:	A court may sentence a defendant to community service as a condition of a suspended sentence or probation. NH ST § 651:68.	
Other Penalties:		
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	NH ST § 265-A:18; NH ST § 651:2.The base terms above appear to be mandatory.	
	Aggravated DWI with Serious Bodily Injury (Class B felony) – Not less than \$1,000 or more than \$4,000 and not less than 21 consecutive days or more than 7 years.	
	Aggravated DWI (Class A misdemeanor) – Not less than \$750 or more than \$2,000 and not less than 10 days or more than 1 year.	
	more than <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Fourth or subsequent conviction</u> (felony) – Not less than <b>\$750</b> or more than <b>\$4,000</b> and not less than <b>180 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> .	
	more than <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Third conviction</u> (Class A misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>\$750</b> or more than <b>\$2,000</b> and not less than <b>180 days</b> or	
	Second conviction (Class A misdemeanor) – Not less than 5750 or more than $2,000$ and not less than $37$ days (if within 2 years) or $10$ days (if > 2 years but < 10 years), or	

	<u>First violation</u> – Suspension 6 months;	
	Subsequent violation – Suspension 2 years.	
	A subsequent administrative per se violation also includes	
	a prior refusal or DWI offense.	
	NH ST § 265-A:30.	
Other:	Under NH ST § 263:56(I)(a), (III), a person's license may	
	be suspended/revoked for not more than 1 year if he/she	
	has "committed" an offense that requires mandatory li-	
	1 2	
	cense revocation (e.g., DWI). A preliminary hearing is	
	required before such action can be taken.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> <sup>461</sup> NH ST § 265-A:18.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First conviction – Not less than <b>9 months</b> or more than <b>2</b>	
Years, etc.):	years; <sup>462</sup>	
rears, etc.).		
	<u>Second conviction</u> – Not less than <b>3 years</b> ;	
	<u>Third conviction</u> – <b>Indefinitely</b> but not less than <b>5 years</b> ;	
	Third or subsequent conviction (where prior is negligent	
	homicide) – <b>Indefinitely</b> but not less than <b>10 years</b> ;	
	Fourth or subsequent conviction – <b>Indefinitely</b> but not	
	less than 7 years.	
	Aggregated DWI (including spring hadily injury) Not	
	Aggravated DWI (including serious bodily injury) – Not	
	less than 18 months or more than 2 years.	
	NH ST § 265-A:18.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<u>First conviction</u> – <b>3 months</b> ;	
Withdrawal:	Second conviction – 3 years;	
	<u>Third conviction – 5 years;</u>	
	<u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> (where prior is negligent	
	homicide) – <b>10 years</b> ;	
	Fourth or subsequent conviction – 7 years.	
	Aggravated DWI (including serious bodily injury) – 12	
	months.	
01	NH ST § 265-A:18.	
Other:	Child Endangerment: If the DWI offender was trans-	
	porting a person under 16 years old at the time of the of-	
	fense, the offender must have their driving privileges re-	
	voked for the maximum time period provided by law. NH	
	ST § 265A-18(XI).	
Rehabilitation:		
1. <b>v</b> 11 <b>u</b> 0111 <b>u</b> 01011.		

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>461</sup> Before an offender's license can be restored, the person must complete either a 7-day State-operated multiple DWI offender program or a 7-day alcohol and drug residential intervention program. NH ST § 265-A:18.
 <sup>462</sup> If the criminal complaint does not allege a prior conviction, but the person is found to have a prior conviction within 10 years, then revocation shall be for not less than 1 year (6 months mand) or more than 3 years.

Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> NH ST § 265-A:18.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes NH ST § 265-A:18.	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	None	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:		
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:		
Other:	<b>Vehicle Registration Revocation</b> : <sup>463</sup> For a second or sub- sequent DWI offense conviction or an aggravated DWI offense conviction, the driver's vehicle's registration must be revoked for the same period of time as the driver's li- cense suspension/revocation. NH ST § 261:180.	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	At-Risk Driver (Probationary License): Any person who shall apply for re-issuance of the license following a DWI conviction is an "at-risk" driver and whose license shall be probationary for 3 years. Such probationary li- cense may be suspended for not less than <b>90</b> or more than <b>180 days</b> if the driver operates a motor vehicle with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .03. NH ST § 265-A:35.	
	<b>Impaired Driver Intervention Program</b> : For any alco- hol-related driving offense, a defendant must complete an impaired driver intervention program before the license can be restored; except if the person has previously been required to complete such a program, that person must complete the multiple offender intervention detention cen- ter program or an equivalent 7-day residential intervention program. NH ST § 265-A:18; NH ST § 265-A:39; NH ST § 265-A:40.	
	<b>Liquor Forfeiture</b> : Except for liquor intended for sale, any liquor on the defendant's person at the time the defen- dant is taken into custody is forfeited to the State. NH ST § 179:4.	
Ignition Interlock:	D	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted New José Anna State	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	Aggravated DWI or subsequent DWI offenders <u>shall</u> be required to install an ignition interlock device on the ve- hicles owned or regularly used for not less than 12 months or more than 2 years following license reinstatement.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>463</sup> Under NH ST § 261:180(IV), hardship registrations for the vehicles involved are available for those convicted of negligent homicide, vehicular manslaughter, any DWI subsequent offense conviction, aggravated DWI, or those certified as a habitual offender. In order to obtain such registrations, it must be shown that either a spouse or another individual must operate the vehicle or vehicles in order to avoid a hardship to a family or an individual. NH ADC Saf-C 3001.01; NH ADC Saf-C 3003.01; NH ADC Saf-C 3003.03.

	Any person convicted of driving on a suspended/revoke license resulting from a DWI offense shall be required to use an ignition interlock device for the remaining period of suspension/revocation <u>plus</u> an additional period not less than 12 months or more than 2 years. A person under the age of 21, after the period of revoca- tion or suspension, <u>may</u> be required to install an ignition interlock device, until the age of 21 or for not less than 12 months, whichever is longer. NH ST § 265-A:36.	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> (must be court-authorized). NH ST § 265:1-a.	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Negligent Homicide – Class A felony NH ST § 630:3.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>15 years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$4,000</b> . NH ST § 651:2.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> NH ST § 263:56(I); NH ST § 630:3(III).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>Indefinitely</b> , but not less than <b>7 years</b> . NH ST § 630:3(III).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>7 years</b> The use of an ignition_interlock device may also be re- quired for not more than 5 years following license reins- tatement. NH ST § 630:3(III).	
Other:	Vehicle Registration Revocation: For Negligent Homi- cide and Manslaughter offenses, the driver's vehicle's reg- istration must be revoked for the same period of time as the driver's license suspension/revocation. NH ST § 261:180(III).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person's privilege to operate a CMV is suspended for at least 1 year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV that person is under the influence of alcohol with an alcohol concentration (BAC/BrAC/UrAC) $\geq$ .04, or is under the influence of a controlled substance. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the suspension is for life (10 years mand).	

	If a person refuses to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law while operating a CMV, the CDL is revoked for a first refusal for not less than 1 mandatory year and for a second or subsequent refusal for not less than 10 years. In addition, a CMV operator who has any alcohol in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. NH ST § 265-A:23; NH ST § 265-A:24; NH ST 265-A:25.	
	111 51 § 205-A.25, 111 51 § 205-A.24, 111 51 205-A.25.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Misdemeanor	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . NH ST § 263:64; NH ST § 625:9(IV)(a)(2); NH ST § 651:2(II).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	7 consecutive 24-hour periods NH ST § 263:64(IV).	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation NH ST § 263:64(IV).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal	An additional 1 year	
Action:	NH ST § 263:64-a.	
Mandatory Term of License	This term is mandatory.	
Withdrawal Action:	NH ST § 263:64-a.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NH ST § 259:39.	
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	3 serious offenses (within 5 years); 12 moving violations (within 5 years); 1 serious offense and 8 moving violations (within 5 years), or a combination of 2 serious offenses plus 4 moving violations (within 5 years).	
Term of License Rev While Under	Revocation at least 7 years <sup>464</sup>	
Habitual Offender Status:	NH ST § 262.19(IV). A habitual offender may have to	
	successfully complete a "Driver Attitude Program" before the license is reinstated. NH ST § 263:56-e.	
	<b>Vehicle Registration Revocation:</b> The habitual offender's vehicle's registration must be revoked for the same period of time as the driver's license revocation. NH ST § 261:180(III).	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Felony</b> NH ST § 262:23.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>464</sup> A person whose license was revoked prior to July 17, 1987, may petition the director after a minimum of 1 year for restoration of driving privileges. NH ST § 262:19.

Lunning on the (Torner)/Fig. of	Not loss than 1 more on more than 5 more and not more
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> and not more than <b>54 000</b> . NULST \$ 262:22(1): NULST \$ 625:0(11)
	than <b>\$4,000</b> . NH ST § 262:23(I); NH ST § 625:9(III). A person may also be sentenced to home confinement as a
	condition of probation. NH ST § 651:2(V)(b).
Mondotory Minimum Torm of	<b>1 year</b> or, if home confinement is order, 8 consecutive
Mandatory Minimum Term of	
Imprisonment/Fine:	weekends or 14 consecutive days in jail. NH ST § 262:23.
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
other build have refuted to referre other obe.	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes (Required) NH ST § 265-A:16.
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the	
the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes
Pedestrian:	Yes
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages	
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> <sup>465</sup> NH ST § 175:1; NH ST § 179:5; NH ST § 179:6.
Sale/Purchase:	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> There are employment exemptions. NH ST § 179:10;
Possession/Consumption:	NH ST § 179:23.
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal	
Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law	<b>Yes</b> NH ST § 507-F:4.
(Yes/No):	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	
Common Law Rule by Action of the	
Highest Court of Record in the State	
(Case Citation):	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Yes</b> NH ST § 507-F:5.
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who serves a minor alcohol may be found
	guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 1
	year and/or not more than \$2,000. NH ST § 179:5; NH
	ST § 179:58; NH ST § 651:2.
Criminal Action Against Owner or	
Employees of Establishments that Serve	
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	

 $<sup>^{465}</sup>$  It is not a crime for a minor to simply purchase alcoholic beverages. However, it is a crime for a minor to "misrepresent" his/her age in order to obtain alcoholic beverages. NH ST § 179:9(I)

Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> NH ST § 179:5; NH ST § 179:58(I)	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . NH ST § 651:2(I).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension/Revocation NH ST § 179:57.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Time period is not specified in the statute for either sus- pension or revocation. Administrative fine of not less than \$100 or more than \$5,000 in lieu of a suspension/revocation. NH ST § 179:57.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> NH ST § 179:5; NH ST § 179:6; NH ST § 179:58(I).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . NH ST § 651:2(I).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension/Revocation NH ST § 179:57.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Time period is not specified in the statute for either sus- pension or revocation. Administrative fine of not less than \$100 or more than \$5,000 in lieu of a suspension/revocation. NH ST § 179:57.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No <sup>466</sup>	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		

 $<sup>\</sup>overline{^{466}}$  However, the service of "free drinks" is prohibited except for wine-tasting purposes. NH ST § 179:44.

Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes NH ST § 265-A:44.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes (by implication) NH ST § 265-A:44.	

STATE	NEW JERSEY	
General Reference:	New Jersey Statutes Annotated	
	New Jersey Administrative Code	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor	
	NJ ST § 39:4-50(a).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{467}$ NJ ST § 39:4-50(a).	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old- ≥ .01	
	NJ ST § 39:4-50.14.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of a narcotic, a hallucinogenic drug or	
	a habit producing drug. NJ ST § 39:4-50(a).	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u>		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> NJ ST § 39:4-50.4a	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NJ ST § 39:4-50.4a.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	No	
(Yes/No):		
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal Cases) State v. Stever, 527 A.2d 408 (N.J.	
Admitted into Evidence:	1987) ( <i>cert. denied</i> 484 U.S. 954 (1987)).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
<u></u>		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> NJ ST § 39:4-50.2.	
Urine:	No	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Vac/Na):	No	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No): Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> However, a victim who sustains bodily injury or se-	
Anu-rica-darganning Statute (Yes/NO):	rious bodily injury shall be provided with the opportunity	
	to consult with the prosecutor prior to dismissal of the case	
	or the filing of a proposed plea negotiation with the court.	
	NJ ST § 39:4-50.12.	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	The court may order a pre-sentence investigation in any	
(Yes/No):	case. When the Rules of the Court so require, the court	
(105/110).	shall not impose sentencing without first ordering a pre-	
	sentence investigation of the defendant. NJ ST § 2C:44-6.	
	sentence investigation of the defendant. NJ 51 y 20.44-0.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>467</sup> **Standard**: "Percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. NJ ST § 39:4-50(a); NJ ST § 39:4-50.14.

Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:	See School Property/Crossing.	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	First offense – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500;Second offense – Not less than \$1,000 or more than\$2,000;Third or subsequent offense – \$2,000.NJ ST § 39:4-50.4a(a).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation         First Refusal –Not less than 7 months or more than 1         year;         Second refusal – 2 years;         subsequent refusal –10 years.         NJ ST § 39:4-50.4a(a).	
Other:	I. A surcharge of \$100. NJ ST § 39:4-50.8. II. School Property/Crossing: If the refusal occurred: (1) on property owned by or within 1,000 ft., of an elementary/secondary school; (2) while driving through a designated school crossing zone; or (3) while driving through a non-designated school crossing zone when juveniles are present, the following sanctions apply: <u>First offense</u> – Not less than \$600 or more than \$1,000 and license sus- pension for not less than \$1,000 or more than \$2,000 and license suspension for 4 years; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> - \$2,000 and license suspension for 20 years. NJ ST § 39:4-50.4a(b).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense: $BAC \ge .08 - < .10 - Not less than 12 hours or more than$	

 $<sup>^{468}</sup>$  A defendant shall be required to serve this as prescribed by the program requirements of the Intoxicated Driver Resource Centers, which is a community-based treatment program. NJ ST § 39:4-50(f).

	$\frac{\text{Bodily Injury}}{\text{months and/or not more than } \$10,000}$ .	
	<u>Serious Bodily Injury</u> (crime of the $3^{rd}$ degree) – Between <b>3-5 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$15,000</b> .	
	School Property/Crossing:Bodily Injury (crime of the 3 <sup>rd</sup> degree) – Between 3-5years and/or not more than \$15,000;Serious Bodily Injury (crime of the 2 <sup>nd</sup> degree) –Between 5-10 years and/or not more than \$150,000.NJ ST § 2C:12-1; NJ ST § 2C:43-3; NJ ST § 2C:43-6.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First offense – 12 hours detention/\$250 (or \$300 if BAC $\geq .10$ );Second offense – 48 consecutive hours/\$500;Third and subsequent offenses – 90 days <sup>469</sup> /\$1,000.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	A court may order a person to perform community service. However, the community service of <b>30 days</b> shall be or- dered for a second offense. NJ ST § 39:4-50.	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old – Not less than <b>15 days</b> or more than <b>30 days</b> community service. NJ ST § 39:4-50.14.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes (1) Paid by the defendant to a victim. NJ ST § 2C:43-2; NJ ST § 2C:43-3; NJ ST § 2C:44-2. (2) A victim is also eligible to receive payment from the State's Violent Crimes Compensation Board. NJ ST § 52:4B-11.	
Other:	Additional Fees and Surcharges: A \$100 fee is imposed for the Alcohol Education and Enforcement Fund. NJ ST § 39:4- 50(b). A \$100 surcharge is imposed for the Drunk-Driving Enforcement Fund. NJ ST § 39:4-50.8. One dollar (\$1) is added to any fine for the Body Armor Replacement Fund and \$1 added for the N.J. Spinal Cord Research Fund. NJ ST § 39:5-41(d), (e).	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	None	
Other:	For an alleged DUI-related injury or death (as well as for other serious driving offenses), the licensing agency may issue a preliminary suspension <u>without</u> a hearing. When	

 $<sup>^{469}</sup>$ The law provides that the court may substitute no more than 90 days of the 180 days jail term to be served participating in a drug or alcohol inpatient rehabilitation program approved by the Intoxicated Driver Resource Center. NJ ST § 39:4-50(a)(3), (f).

	the agency notifies the driver of the preliminary action, it also advises that person of any final licensing action to be taken. The driver may request a hearing prior to the final action. NJ ST § 39:5-30(e); NJ ST § 39:5-31.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		—
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation <sup>470</sup>	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.): <sup>471</sup>	First offense: $BAC \ge .08 - < .10 - 3$ months; $BAC \ge .10 - Not less than 7 months or more than 1 year;Second offense - 2 years;Third or subsequent offense - 10 years.Under 21 years old (BAC \ge .01 but < .08) - Not less than$	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	<b>30 days</b> or more than <b>90 days</b> . NJ ST § 39:4-50.14.The terms above appear to be mandatory.Under 21 Years Old – <b>30 days</b> . NJ ST § 39:4-50.14.	
Other:	Under separate statutory authority, the licensing agency has the discretion to suspend, revoke or prohibit the driv- ing privileges of a person for any violation of the traffic laws. NJ ST § 39:5-30(a).	
Rehabilitation:		—
Alcohol Education:	Yes for persons under the age of 21. NJ ST § 39:4-50.14.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes The court shall order an offender to serve time in an Intox- icated Driver Resource Center. For a third or subsequent offender, the court may substitute up to 90 days of jail time to be served in an inpatient rehabilitation facility. NJ ST § 39:4-50.	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	The arresting law enforcement agency shall impound the vehicle that the person was operating, for violations of DUI law or refusal. Impoundment shall be for 12 hours after the time of arrest and when: (1) the offender presents valid operator's license, proof of ownership and valid insurance; (2) the offender is able to operate the vehicle in a safe manner; and (3) the offender meets any other conditions for release established by the law enforcement agency. NJ ST § 39:4-50.23.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	A vehicle may be released prior to the impoundment pe-	

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{470}{470}$  The statute uses the terminology "forfeit his right to operate a motor vehicle." NJ ST § 39:4-50; NJ ST § 39:4-50.14.  $\frac{471}{471}$  For offenders <17 years old, license forfeiture is through their 17th birthday plus the regular forfeiture period. NJ ST § 39:4-50.

riod only if the vehicle is not owned or leased by the per- son under arrest and the person who owns/leases the ve- hicle claims it and presents valid registration, proof of	
ownership and valid insurance. NJ ST § 39:4-50.23(c).	
<b>Special Assessment</b> : A defendant shall be assessed a penalty of \$50 that is to be paid into a fund administered by the Violent Crimes Compensation Board. NJ ST § 2C:43-3.1(c).	
<b>Insurance Surcharges</b> : A DWI offender <u>must</u> pay the following insurance surcharges: <u>first and second offenses</u> – \$1,000 per year for 3 years for a total surcharge of \$3,000 for each conviction; and <u>third offense</u> (within 3 years) – \$1,500 per year for 3 years for a total surcharge of \$4,500. NJ ST § 17:29A-35(b)(2).	
<i>Per Diem</i> Fees: DWI offenders who are incarcerated in an Intoxicated Driver Resource Center must pay the fol- lowing <i>per diem</i> fees: <u>First offense</u> – <b>\$75</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> – <b>\$100</b> . These fees may be increased via regulations promulgated by the Commissioner of Health after consulting with the Governor's Council on Alcohol- ism and Drug Abuse. NJ ST § 39:4-50(f).	
<b>Child Endangerment</b> : In <u>addition</u> to any other sanctions for a drunk-driving offense, a person who commits such an offense while transporting a passenger $\leq 17$ years old is guilty of a "disorderly persons offense". Additionally, such person shall be ordered to perform not more than <b>5</b> <b>days</b> of community service, and shall have his license sus- pended for not more than <b>6 months</b> . NJ ST § 39:4-50.15.	
<b>Visitation Program</b> : As part of probation or community service, offenders may be ordered by the court to participate in a visitation program to a medical facility that handles motor vehicle accident victims. NJ ST § 39:4-50(h).	
Permitted	
After the license suspension period has been completed, a person may be required to install an ignition interlock device on <u>all</u> of the motor vehicles he/she owns, leases or regularly operates. The device remains installed for the following periods: <u>first offense</u> (discretionary) – Not less than <b>6 months</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> ; <u>second or subsequent</u> <u>offense</u> – mandatory ignition usage for not less than <b>1</b>	
	son under arrest and the person who owns/leases the vehicle claims it and presents valid registration, proof of ownership and valid insurance. NJ ST § 39:4-50.23(c).  Special Assessment: A defendant shall be assessed a penalty of \$50 that is to be paid into a fund administered by the Violent Crimes Compensation Board. NJ ST § 2C:43-3.1(c).  Insurance Surcharges: A DWI offender must pay the following insurance surcharges: first and second offenses – \$1,000 per year for 3 years for a total surcharge of \$3,000 for each conviction; and third offense (within 3 years) – \$1,500 per year for 3 years for a total surcharge of \$4,500. NJ ST § 17:29A-35(b)(2).  Per Diem Fees: DWI offenders who are incarcerated in an Intoxicated Driver Resource Center must pay the following <i>per diem</i> fees: First offense – \$75; Second offense – \$100. These fees may be increased via regulations promulgated by the Commissioner of Health after consulting with the Governor's Council on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse. NJ ST § 39:4-50(f).  Child Endangerment: In addition to any other sanctions for a drunk-driving offense, a person who commits such an offense while transporting a passenger ≤17 years old is guilty of a "disorderly persons offense". Additionally, such person shall be ordered to perform not more than 5 days of community service, and shall have his license suspended for not more than 6 months. NJ ST § 39:4-50.15. Visitation Program: As part of probation or community service, offenders may be ordered by the court to participate in a visitation program to a medical facility that handles motor vehicle accident victims. NJ ST § 39:4-50(h).

	tion revocation. NJ ST § 39:4-50(a); NJ ST § 39:4-50.17.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted State v. Mazurek, 567 A.2d 277 (N.J.Super.A.D. 1989).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Crime of the second degree. <sup>472</sup> NJ ST § 2C:11-5.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>5 years</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$150,000</b> . NJ ST § 2C:43-3(a)(2); NJ ST § 2C:43-6(a)(2).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	<b>3 years</b> <sup>473</sup> NJ ST § 2C:11-5(b)(1).
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<ul> <li>I. If the offense was related to DWI/Refusal – Suspension.</li> <li>NJ ST § 2C:11-5(b)(4).</li> <li>II. The licensing agency has the discretion to suspend, revoke or prohibit the driving privileges of a person for any violation of the traffic laws. NJ ST § 39:5-30(a).</li> </ul>
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	I. If the offense was related to DWI/Refusal – Suspension between 5 years and life NJ ST § 2C:11-5(b)(4).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	5 years
Other:	School Property/Crossing: Crime in the first degree –Not less than 10 years or more than 20 years and/or notmore than \$200,000.NJ ST § 2C:11-5; NJ ST § 2C:43-3(a)(1); NJ ST § 2C:43-6(a)(1).
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person's privilege to operate a CMV is "suspended" for not less than 1 mandatory year nor more than 3 years if transporting hazardous materials if, while operating a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04 (Standards: Grams of alc. per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alc. per 210 liters of breath.); (2) is under the influence of in- toxicating liquor or a controlled substance; or (3) violates the drunk-driving law.
	A CMV operator who refuses to submit to a chemical test shall have his license revoked for 6 months (first offense) or 2 years (subsequent offense), in addition to the sanc-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>472</sup> This offense is not specifically classified as a "felony" or a "misdemeanor" because the Criminal Code (Title 2C) does not define these terms. To cope with the lack of definition, the N.J. Supreme Court has held that a crime can be considered equal to a "common law felony" if a defendant can be sentenced to the State prison for more than 1 year. *State v. Doyle,* 200 A.2d 606 (N.J. 1964). <sup>473</sup> The minimum sentence is either between one-third and one-half of the sentence imposed or 3 years whichever is greater.

	tions listed in NJ ST § 39:4-50.4a.	
	For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above listed items, the privi- lege to operate a CMV is revoked for life (10 years mand). A CMV operator who refuses to submit to a chemical test is subject to a fine of not less than \$250 or more than \$500.	
	NJ ST § 39:3-10.13; NJ ST § 39:3-10.24; NJ ST § 39:3- 10.27.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine: Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – 10 days/\$1,000; <u>Second offense</u> – 11 days/\$1,250; Third or subsequent offense – 20 days/\$1,500.	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension NJ ST § 39:3-40(f).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	An additional period of not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>2</b> years NJ ST § 39:3-40(f)(2).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	1 year	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NJ ST § 39:5-30a.	
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	3 license suspensions for traffic offenses within 3 years. NJ ST § 39:5-30a.	
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>Suspension</b> for not more than <b>3 years</b> . NJ ST § 39:5-30b. This suspension is not to run concurrently with any other suspension. NJ ST § 39:5-30d.	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	Not specified	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	A fine of <b>\$1,000</b> and may be imprisoned for <b>30 days</b> or not less than <b>45 days</b> if the offense resulted in bodily in- jury. NJ ST § 39:5-30e	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>45 days</b> if the offense resulted in bodily injury. NJ ST § 39:5-30e	

Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes NJ ST § 26:2B-24.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> NJ ST § 33:1-77; NJ ST § 33:1-81.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> NJ ST § 2C:33-15. There is an exemption for employment, religious observances, ceremonies or rites. NJ ST § 2C:33-17; NJ ST § 9:17B-1; NJ ST § 33:1-81(b).	
Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes NJ ST § 2A:22A-5. In order to be held liable, it must be shown that the licensee served alcoholic beverages to ei- ther a minor or a visibly intoxicated person.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Yes.</b> NJ ST § 2A:15-5.5. These provisions provide the exclusive remedy against a social host who has provided alcoholic beverages to an injury-causing guest where: (1) the guest is over the legal drinking age and is visibly intoxicated; and (2) the injuries are the result of negligent operation of a vehicle by the guest. NJ ST § 2A:15-5.6.	
	The courts have held that the term "provided" includes "self- service" by guests as well as the "direct service" of alcoholic beverages by the host on the social host's pre- mises. The "provided" alcoholic beverages include those alcoholic beverages that may have been brought by other guests. <i>Dower v. Gamba</i> , 647A.2d 1364 (N.J.Super. A.D. 1994).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. Any person who knowingly offers or serves or makes available an alcoholic beverage to a person under the legal age, or entices or encourages such person is a "disorderly person." NJ ST § 2C:33-17.	

	II. A parent, guardian or other person having legal custody of a person under 18 years of age who fails or neglects to exercise reasonable supervision or control over such per- son who illegally possesses or consumes alcohol shall be subject to a fine of \$500, if the parent, guardian or other person having legal custody was previously notified in writing of the young person's violation. NJ ST § 33:1- 81.1a.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action: Imprisonment/Fine	A violation. NJ ST § 33:1-12.37. Not less than <b>\$50</b> or more than <b>\$250</b> . NJ ST § 33:1-12.37.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or Revocation NJ ST § 33:1-31; NJ ADC 13:2-19.11.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Suspension:         First offense – 15 days;         Second offense – 30 days.         NJ ADC 13:2-19.11.         Revocation:         First offense – 2 years;         Subsequent offense – Permanent revocation.	
	A compromise sum of money may be paid in lieu of a suspension. NJ ST § 33:1-31.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Disorderly Person Offense NJ ST § 2C:33-17; NJ ST § 2C:43-3(c); NJ ST § 2C:43-8; NJ ST § 33:1-77; NJ ADC 13:2-23.1.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and not more than <b>\$1,000</b> .	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the		

Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
initialit Elegar Drinking rige.		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension or Revocation	
	NJ ST § 33:1-31; NJ ADC 13:2-19.11.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Suspension:	
č	Sale to minor (over age 18):	
	First offense – 15 days;	
	Second offense – 30 days.	
	Sale to minor (under age 18):	
	<u>First offense</u> – <b>30 days</b> ;	
	<u>Second offense</u> – 60 days.	
	NJ ADC 13:2-19.11.	
	Revocation:	
	<u>First offense</u> – 2 years;	
	Subsequent offense – Permanent revocation.	
	A compromise sum of money may be paid in lieu of a sus-	
	pension.	
	NJ ST § 33:1-31.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	NJ ADC 13:2-23.16. This regulation does not regulate the	
Anti-mappy mour Laws/Regulations.	price of "single" drinks. It does, however, prohibit the	
	selling of an unlimited quantity of drinks at one price or	
	the charging of one price for two or more drinks.	
	the endiging of the pree for two of more driftes.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NJ ST § 39:4-51a.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NJ ST § 39:4-51a.	

STATE	NEW MEXICO	
General Reference:	New Mexico Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor NM ST § 66-8-102(A).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{474}$ NM ST § 66-8-102(C).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug NM ST § 66-8-102(B).	
Other:	I. Aggravated DWI Offense:	
	(1) driving with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .16; (2) causing bodily injury (an injury which is not likely to cause death or great bodily harm) while under the influence of alcohol or drugs; or (3) refusing to submit to a chemical test <u>and</u> driv- ing while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs. NM ST § 66-8-102(D). II. A person with a BAC < .04 is presumed not to be intox- icated. For a person with a BAC $\geq$ .04 but < .08, there is no presumption that such person is or is not under the in- fluence of intoxicating liquor, but such level may be com- petent evidence in determining whether such person was under the influence. NM ST § 66-8-110(B).	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes NM ST § 66-8-107	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes NM ST § 66-8-107.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NM ST § 66-8-107.	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Actions) NM ST § 66-8-110(A).	
Other Information:	A driver may be required to submit to a chemical test based on a search warrant issued by a court upon probable cause that the driver has killed or greatly injured another person while operating a motor vehicle or where there is probable cause to believe that the driver committed a felo- ny while under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. NM ST § 66-8-111(A).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>474</sup>Alcohol concentration is based upon grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. NM ST § 66-8-110(F).

Blood:	Yes NM ST § 66-8-107.	
Urine:	No	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> – However, a driver must be charged with a DWI offense if he/she has an alcohol concentration $\geq$ .08. NM ST § 66-8-110(C).	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NM ST § 66-8-102.1. If a guilty plea is entered, it must be to one of the subsections of the DWI statute when alcohol concentration is $\geq .08$ .	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail): Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None           Revocation 1 year (mand)         NM ST § 66-5-35(A)(2); NM           ST § 66-8-111(B).         Image: State	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>DWI/Aggravated DUI Offenses</b> : <u>First conviction</u> – Not more than <b>90 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Second or third conviction</u> – Not more than <b>364 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Fourth conviction</u> (4 <sup>th</sup> degree felony) – Not less than <b>1</b> or more than <b>2 years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Fifth conviction</u> (4 <sup>th</sup> degree felony) – <b>2 years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Sixth conviction</u> (3 <sup>rd</sup> degree felony) – <b>30 months</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Seventh or subsequent conviction</u> (3 <sup>rd</sup> degree felony) – <b>3</b> <b>years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . NM ST § 31-18-15; NM ST § 66-8-102.	

	<b>DWI – Great Bodily Injury</b> (3 <sup>rd</sup> degree felony): Not less	
	than 2 or more than 4 years and may be fined not more	
	than <b>5</b> ,000.	
	NM ST 31-18-15; NM ST § 66-8-101.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	DWI Offenses:	
	First conviction – \$300;	
	Second conviction – 96 hours/\$500;	
	Third conviction – 30 days/\$750;	
	Fourth conviction – 6 months;	
	Fifth conviction – 1 year;	
	Sixth conviction – 18 months;	
	Seventh or subsequent conviction – 2 years.	
	Aggravated DWI Offenses:	
	$\frac{\text{First offense}}{1000} - 48 \text{ consecutive hours;}$	
	<u>Second offense</u> $-$ <b>96 consecutive hours</b> ;	
	<u>Third offense</u> – <b>60 consecutive days</b> ;	
	Fourth and subsequent offense $-6$ months (the sentence	
	may not be suspended or deferred).	
	NM ST 31-18-15; NM ST § 66-8-102.	
	<b>DUI – Great Bodily Injury: 2 years</b> . NM ST § 66-8-101.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	First offense – Not less than <b>24 hours</b> ;	
	Second offense – Not less than <b>48 hours</b> ;	
	Third offense – Not less than <b>96 hours</b> .	
	NM ST § 66-8-102.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes NM ST § 31-17-1. Restitution is to be paid by the	
	defendant.	
Other:	<b>BAC Test Fee</b> : A fee of \$85 is assessed against each de-	
	fendant to defray the costs of chemical tests for DWI. NM	
	ST § 31-12-7(A).	
	<b>DWI Program Fee</b> : A fee of \$75 is assessed to fund	
	comprehensive DWI community programs. NM ST §	
	31-12-7(B).	
	$51^{-1}2^{-1}(D).$	
	Screening and Treatment Costs: In addition to all other	
	fines and fees the court may order the defendant to pay the	
	costs of any screening and treatment programs. NM ST §	
	66-8-102(S).	
Administration Linearcine Astister		
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>Revocation 6 months</b> ( <b>1 year</b> if < 21 yrs	
	old);	
	Second offense – Revocation 1 year.	
	NM ST § 66-8-111.	

Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation NM ST § 66-5-29.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<u>First conviction</u> – 1 year;	
Years, etc.):	<u>Second conviction</u> – 2 years;	
	<u>Third conviction</u> – 3 years;	
	Fourth or subsequent conviction – life, subject to a 5-year	
	review.	
	NM ST § 66-5-29(C).	
	<b>DUI – Great Bodily Injury – life</b> , subject to a 10-year	
	review. NM ST § 66-5-29(D).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	No mandatory periods are listed. However, when a person	
Withdrawal:	applies for reinstatement of driver's license, he must show	
	a minimum of 6 months of driving with an ignition inter-	
	lock device with no attempts to circumvent or tamper with	
	the device. NM ST § 66-5-33.1(B).	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Alcohol education and/or screening is ordered. NM ST § 66-8-102.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Alcohol treatment is ordered for subsequent offenders,	
	which may include a 28-day inpatient, residential or in-	
	custody substance abuse treatment program, a 90-day out-	
	patient treatment program, a drug court program or any	
	other substance abuse treatment program.	
	For a person convicted of a DWI felony, the department of	
	corrections shall provide substance abuse counseling and	
	treatment while the offender is in custody.	
	NM ST § 66-8-102(L), (M).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Special Note: Municipal ordinances may provide for civil	
veniere impoundment/comiseuton.	vehicle forfeiture. See City of Albuquerque v. One 1984	
	Chevy Ut., VIN 1G8CS18BXE8176575, New Mexico Li-	
	<i>cense No. 335-KRH</i> , 46 P.3d 94 (N.M. 2002).	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included	Driving Safety Course: A DWI offender may be required	
Elsewhere:	to take a driving safety course. NM ST § 66-10-11.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	<u>First conviction</u> – 1 year;	
	<u>Second conviction</u> – 2 years;	

	<u>Third conviction</u> – <b>3 years</b> ; <u>Fourth or subsequent conviction</u> – <b>reminder of the of-</b> <b>fender's life</b> . <sup>475</sup>	
	Unless determined to be indigent, an offender shall pay the costs associated with having an ignition interlock device installed. NM ST § 66-8-102(N).	
	After 6 months of driving with an ignition interlock device and showing no attempts to circumvent or tamper with the device, an offender may apply for reinstatement of license. NM ST § 66-5-33.1.	
	A person convicted of DWI vehicular homicide or causing great bodily injury shall not be issued an ignition interlock license. NM ST § 66-5-503.	
Sabriatz Chaolmainta		
Sobriety Checkpoints: Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted City of Las Cruces v. Betancourt, 735 P.2d1161 (N.M.App. 1987).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		_
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Yes</b> 3 <sup>rd</sup> Degree Felony NM ST § 66-8-101.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<b>6 years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . NM ST § 31-18-15.	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		$\neg$
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Suspension/Revocation	$\neg$
Action:	NM ST § 66-5-29; NM ST § 66-5-30(A).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	1 year	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	<b>1 year</b> No restricted driving privileges may be granted.	
of License Withdrawal:	NM ST § 66-5-35(A)(5).	$\neg$
Other:	A person who commits DWI vehicular homicide and who has incurred a prior DWI conviction within 10 years shall have his basic sentence increased by <b>4 years</b> for each prior DWI conviction. NM ST § 66-8-101(D).	
		$\neg$
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for not	$\neg$
Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's	less than 1 mandatory year (not less than 3 years if trans-	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>475</sup> However, five years from the date of conviction and every 5 years thereafter, such offender may apply to a district court for removal of the ignition interlock device requirement. A court may remove the device for good cause shown. NM ST § 66-8-102(O).

Licenses (CDL):	porting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC $\geq$ .04 but <.08; (2) is convicted of a DWI offense while operating a CMV; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for either alcohol or drug con- centrations. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the dis- qualification is for life (10 years mand). NM ST § 66-5-68.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Misdemeanor	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Less than <b>1 year</b> and/or not less than <b>\$300</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . NM ST § 31-19-1(A); NM ST § 66-5-39(A).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	<b>7 consecutive days/\$300</b> . NM ST § 66-5-39(A).	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation NM ST § 66-5-39(C).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	<u>For driving while suspended</u> – an additional suspension period equal to the original period. <u>For driving while revoked</u> – an additional revocation pe- riod of one (1) year. NM ST § 66-5-39(C).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The above suspension/revocation periods appear to be mandatory.	
Other:	A person who drives on a revoked license shall have the vehicle immobilized for 30 days, unless immobilization poses an imminent danger to the health, safety or employment of the convicted person's immediate family or the family of the owner of the vehicle. NM ST § 66-5-39(B).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>476</sup> NM ST § 24-11-6(B).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>476</sup> But the information obtained from these test results can only be used for statistical purposes; i.e., the information cannot contain any identification about deceased persons. NM ST § 24-11-6(B).

BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes	
Pedestrian:	Yes	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> NM ST § 60-3A-3(P); NM ST § 60-7B-1(C).	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> There is an exemption when the minor is on real property (not a licensed premises) under the control of a parent or guardian, or when the alcohol beverages are used in the practice of religious beliefs. NM ST § 60-7B-1(B).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes NM ST § 41-11-1.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Yes</b> NM ST § 41-11-1(E). Liability is based upon the host providing alcoholic beve- rages to the guest in reckless disregard of the rights of oth- ers including the guest.	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. A person who serves or delivers alcohol to a minor may be found guilty of a fourth degree felony, punishable by 18 months and a possible fine of not more than \$5,000. NM ST § 60-7B-1(F). II. Any person committing any act or omitting the perfor- mance of any duty, which act or omission causes or tends to cause or encourage the delinquency of any person under the age of 18, may be found guilty of a 4 <sup>th</sup> degree felony, punishably by 18 months and a possible fine of not more than \$5,000. NM ST § 30-6-3.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> NM ST § 31-19-1; NM ST § 60-7A-16; NM ST § 60-7A-25.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Less than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . NM ST § 31-19-1.	

A lucinistruction A stimus A sain st Oran and a f		
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	<b>Yes</b> <sup>477</sup>	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension/Revocation/Fine	
	NM ST § 60-6C-1.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	2 years	
	First offense is permissive	
	Second offense is mandatory	
	NM ST § 60-6C-8.	
	Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than	
	\$10,000 may also be imposed. NM ST § 60-6C-1(A).	
Criminal Actions Against Oranges on		
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	4 <sup>th</sup> Degree Felony NM ST § 60-7B-1(F).	
Term of Imprisonment:	<b>18 months</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . NM	
	ST § 31-18-15.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension/Revocation/Fine	
Withertawii (105/100).	NM ST § 60-6C-1.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	2 years	
Longer of Form Electise Withdrawal.	First offense is permissive	
	Second offense is mandatory	
	NM ST § 60-6C-8.	
	1111 51 y 00-0C-0.	
	Additionally, an administrative fine of not more than	
	\$10,000 may also be imposed. NM ST § 60-6C-1(A).	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>477</sup> **Licensed Servers**: Persons who serve alcoholic beverages at a business licensed to sell such beverages must be individually licensed to serve these beverages. If such a person serves alcoholic beverages to an intoxicated person or to a person under the legal drinking age, the licensed individual is subject to the following administrative sanctions which are in addition to any criminal liability that may be imposed: <u>first offense</u> – an administrative fine of not more than \$500 and/or server permit suspended for 30 days; <u>second offense</u> – server permit suspended for 1 year; <u>third offense</u> – server permit permanently revoked. NM ST § 60-6E-8.

#### **NEW MEXICO**

Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes NM ST § 66-8-138(B), (C).	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes NM ST § 66-8-138(A).	

STATE	NEW YORK	
General Reference:	McKinney's Consolidated Laws of New York	
	New York Code Rules and Regulations (NY ADC)	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Driving while ability impaired; Driving while intoxicated; Driving while having consumed alcohol (< 21 years old). NY Veh & Traf § 1192(1), (3); NY Veh & Traf § 1192-a.	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{478}$ NY Veh & Traf § 1192(2).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	<b>BAC</b> > .05 but $\leq$ .07 is prima facie evidence that such person was not in an intoxicated condition, but is "relevant evidence" regarding impairment. NY Veh & Traf § 1195(2)(b), . <b>BAC</b> > .07 but < .08 is <i>prima facie</i> evidence that such person was not in an intoxicated condition, but such evidence shall be given "prima facie" effect. NY Veh & Traf § 1195(2)(c). <b>BAC</b> $\geq$ 0.18 – "Aggravated Driving While Intoxicated": NY Veh & Traf § 1192(2-a).	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Driving while impaired by drugs or driving while impaired by the combined influence of drugs or of alcohol and any drug or drugs. NY Veh & Traf § 1192(4), (4-a).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes NY Veh & Traf § 1194(1)(b). The law allows for field testing, which includes a breath test for every person operating a motor vehicle which has been involved in an accident or which is operated in violation of any traffic law.	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes NY Veh & Traf § 1194	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> <sup>479</sup> NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(a).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(f).	
Other Information:	Under NY Veh & Traf § 1194(3), a driver may be com- pelled by court order to submit to a chemical test of his blood for either alcoholic or drug content if he has been involved in an accident related to a DWI offense and there has been a fatality or a serious physical injury, or if a PBT	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>478</sup> Standard: "Percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. NY Veh & Traf § 1192(2). Percent by weight of alcohol in the blood may be expressed as grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood. 10 NY ADC § 59.1(b).
 <sup>479</sup> A person under 21 years old who has been stopped for operating a motor vehicle "after having consumed alcohol" cannot be arrested. However, they can be "temporarily detained" by law enforcement officers for the purpose of requesting a chemical test. NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(a)(4).

	indicates alcohol consumption and the person has been
	arrested and has refused to submit to a chemical test.
Chamical Tasta of Other Substances for	
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> Alcohol Concentration Which Are	
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Autorized Order the Implied Consent Law.	
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(a).
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(a).
Other:	Saliva NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(a).
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No, but unconditional discharge for a DWI violation is prohibited. NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(e).
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	Yes Unless available evidence determines otherwise, plea- bargaining is allowed only to another DWI offense. NY Veh & Traf § 1192(10)(a).
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	A pre-sentencing investigation is mandatory in any felony case or any misdemeanor case where the sentence may be more than 90 days. NY Crim Pro § 390.20.
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First refusal       – Revocation 1 year;         Second refusal       480 (within 5 years) – Revocation 18 months;
	Under 21 years of age:
	<u>First refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 1 year</b> ;
	<u>Subsequent refusal</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Revocation 1 year</b> or until <b>age 21</b> , whichever is the greater period of time.
	NY Veh & Traf § 1194(4)(d)(1)(a), (b), (d).
	These revocation terms are mandatory. NY Veh & Traf  1194(2)(d)(3).
Other:	Civil Penalty:

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{1}{480}$  A subsequent offense considers a prior revocation resulting from refusal or conviction/finding of violation of any DWI offense. NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(d)(1)(a).

	First revocation       - \$500;         Second or subsequent revocation       (within 5 years) - \$750.         NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(d)(2).
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	
<u>Offense</u> :	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	<ul> <li>Driving while ability impaired (traffic infraction): <u>First conviction</u> – Not more than 15 days and/or not less than \$300 or more than \$500; <u>Second conviction</u> (within 5 years) – Not more than 30 days and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$750; <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> (within 10 years) – Not more than 180 days and/or not less than \$750 or more than \$1,500. NY Veh &amp; Traf § 1193(1)(a).</li> <li>Driving while intoxicated/ability impaired by drugs/combination: <u>First conviction</u> (misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000;</li> </ul>
	<u>Second conviction</u> (Class E felony) (within 10 years) – Not more than <b>4 years</b> and/or not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Subsequent conviction</u> (Class D felony) (within 10 years) – Not more than <b>7 years</b> and/or not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> . NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(b)(4)
	Aggravated DWI (BAC $\geq$ .18) (misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$1,000 or more than \$2,500. NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(b).
	<b>DWI Felony</b> : <sup>481</sup> <u>Class E Felony</u> – Not more than <b>5 years</b> and/or not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Class D Felony</u> – Not more than <b>7 years</b> and/or not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> . NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(c); NY Penal § 70.00(2).
	Driving while ability impaired School bus (with at least 1 student passenger) (misdemeanor) – <u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>30 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$300</b> ;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>481</sup> **Class E Felony**: It becomes a Class D felony offense when the offender operates a motor vehicle in violation of DWI (per se; alcohol; drugs; combination) and has been convicted previously of: (1) a DWI or of  $1^{st}/2^{nd}$  degree vehicular assault and aggravated vehicular assault; or (2)  $1^{st}/2^{nd}$  degree vehicular manslaughter and vehicular homicide, within 10 years. **Class D Felony**: It becomes a Class D felony offense under the conditions above if it is a subsequent offense within 10 years. NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(c).

	Second offense (within 19 menths) Not more than 00	
	Second offense (within 18 months) – Not more than <b>90</b>	
	days and/or not more than \$500;	
	Third or subsequent conviction (within 18 months) – Not	
	more than <b>180 days</b> and/or not more than $\$1,125$ . NY	
	Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(d)(1-a); NY Veh & Traf § 1801.	
	<b>DWI School bus</b> (within at least 1 passenger) (Class E	
	felony) – Not more than <b>4 years</b> and/or not less than	
	<b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . NY Veh & Traf §	
	1193(1)(d)(4-a); NY Penal § 70.15.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	<b>DWI/Per Se 2<sup>nd</sup></b> (within 5 years) – 5 days or 30 days	
	community service;	
	<b>DWI/Per Se 3<sup>rd</sup></b> (within 5 years) – <b>10 days</b> or <b>60 days</b>	
	community service.	
	NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1-a)(b).	
	The fines listed in the category above appear to be manda-	
	tory.	
Other Penalties:		
	<b>DWI/Per Se 2<sup>nd</sup> – 30 days</b> (if no jail time)	
Community Service:		
	<b>DWI/Per Se <math>3^{rd}</math> – 60 days</b> (if no jail time)	
	NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1-a)(b).	
	Additionally, as a condition of probation, a court may or-	
	der an offender to complete community service. NY Penal	
	§ 65.10(2)(h).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	The court may require restitution by a defendant to a vic-	
	tim. NY Penal § 60.27; NY Penal § 65.10(2)(g).	
	A person may also receive compensation from the State's	
	victims' compensation fund. NY Exec § 620, <i>et seq</i> .	
Other:	Surcharges and fees:	
	<u>Infraction</u> - \$5 fee and \$25 surcharge;	
	<u>Misdemeanor</u> - \$25 fee and \$175 surcharge;	
	Felony - \$25 fee and \$300 surcharge.	
	U	
	NY Veh & Traf § 1809.	
	There is also a congrete additional surphares of \$25 for	
	There is also a separate additional surcharge of \$25 for	
	any conviction. NY Veh & Traf § 1809-c.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Persons Under 21 Years Old: Operating a motor vehicle	
	"after having consumed alcohol." A person under the	
	age of 21 is <u>only</u> considered to have consumed alcohol if	
	his <b>BAC is ≥ .02 but &lt; .07</b> . NY Veh & Traf § 1192-a.	
	First action – Suspension 6 months;	
	Subsequent action – Revocation 1 year or until such per-	
	son reaches the age of 21, whichever is the greater period	

	(mand). NY Veh & Traf § 1193(2)(a), (b)(7).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation NY Veh & Traf § 1193(2).
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	Driving while ability impaired:         First offense – Suspension 90 days;         Subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Revocation 6 months
	DWI/Per Se: <u>First offense</u> – Revocation 6 months; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – Revocation 1 year
	Aggravated DWI: <u>First offense</u> – Revocation 1 year; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 18 months.
	<b>DWI School bus</b> : <u>First offense</u> – <b>Revocation 1 year</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>Revocation 3</b> <b>years</b> .
	Persons under 21 years old: <u>First offense</u> – Revocation 1 year; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – Revocation 1 year or until the age of 21 (whichever is greater).
	<b>Permanent Revocation</b> – this applies to a third or subsequent conviction within 4 years, or a fourth conviction within 8 years of any DWI or implied consent offense.
	DWI Injury: Permanent revocation
	NY Veh & Traf § 1193(2).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	Driving while ability impaired: Subsequent offense – 6 months;
	DWI/Per Se: Second/subsequent offense – 1 year
	Aggravated DWI – 18 months;
	Permanent Revocation – 5 years. <sup>482</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>482</sup> A person may be issued a conditional license while participating in a rehabilitation program. However, a person is not permitted to take part in such a program and obtain a conditional license: (1) if the person has participated in such a program within a five-year

Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> NY Veh & Traf § 1196.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes         NY Veh & Traf § 1196.	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	<b>Forfeiture</b> NY CPLR § 1310(5); NY CPLR § 1311(1)(a).	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	A defendant's vehicle may be subject to forfeiture if he/she has been convicted of a felony drunk-driving of- fense (e.g., a second or subsequent Per Se or Intoxicated offense within 10 years). This sanction is not mandatory.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	The court may grant relief if such relief is warranted by the existence of some compelling factor, consideration or circumstance demonstrating that forfeiture would not serve the ends of justice. NY CPLR § 1311(4)(d).	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<ul> <li>Victim Impact Program: A defendant may be required to attend a "victim impact program". This program consists of a single session in which prior DWI offenders discuss the impact that such an offense has had on them. NY Veh &amp; Traf § 1193(1)(f).</li> <li>Civil Penalty: A person &lt; 21 years old who has had a license suspension/revocation for driving "after having consumed alcohol" is liable for a civil penalty of \$125. NY Veh &amp; Traf § 1194-a (2).</li> <li>Probation: A defendant may be placed on probation with conditions related to the offender's rehabilitation. NY Penal § 65.10(2)(1). Conditional discharge or probation must be accompanied by a sentence or a fine. NY Veh &amp; Traf § 1193(1)(e).</li> </ul>	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	I. The use of an "ignition interlock" may be a condition of probation for an illegal per se/intoxicated offense conviction or Aggravated Driving While Intoxicated. NY Penal § 65.10(2)(k-l).	
	II. Ignition interlock is required for 2nd or 3rd subsequent per se or intoxicated offenses during period of revocation and thereafter by court order. NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1-a)(c).	

period; or (2) has been convicted of a subsequent alcohol-driving offense within 5 years. Successful completion of the program shall satisfy any sentence of imprisonment and allow an offender to apply for reinstatement of the driver's license. NY Veh & Traf § 1196(7).

Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>People v. Scott</i> , 473 N.E.2d 1 (N.Y. 1984).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	YesVehicular manslaughter in the $2^{nd}$ degree – Class D felony.Vehicular manslaughter in the $1^{st}$ degree (BAC $\geq 0.18$ )– Class C felony.NY Penal § 125.12.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term):	<ul> <li>2<sup>nd</sup> Degree – Not more than 7 years and/or not more than \$5,000;</li> <li>1<sup>st</sup> Degree – Not more than 15 years and/or not more than \$15,000.</li> <li>NY Penal § 70.00; NY Penal § 80.00.</li> </ul>	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	<b>1 year</b> NY Penal § 70.00.	
Administrative Licensing Action:	<b>Revocation</b> NY Veh & Traf $\S$ 510(2)(a)(i).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>6 months</b> NY Veh & Traf § 510(6).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	6 months NY Veh & Traf § 510(6).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person will have his privilege to operate a CMV "re- voked" for one mandatory year (three years mandatory if transporting hazardous materials) if, while operating a CMV he: (1) had a BAC $\geq$ .04 (amount of alcohol in the blood); (2) violated any provision of the DWI law; or (3) refused to submit to a chemical test for alcoholic/drug con- tent. For a second violation or a combination of two viola- tions of any of the above-listed items, there is a "disquali- fication" for at least 10 years, and a fine of \$750. For a third violation or a combination of three violations of any of the above listed items, there is a mandatory per- manent "disqualification". NY Veh & Traf § 510-a; NY Veh & Traf § 530(5); NY Veh & Traf § 1193(2)(b)(5); NY Veh & Traf §	
	1193(2)(e)(3); NY Veh & Traf § 1194(2)(d)(1)(c), (d); NY         Veh & Traf § 1196(5).         Criminal Sanctions:	
	Crimmul Dancuvity.	

Infraction: A person commits an "infraction" if he oper-
ates a CMV with a BAC $\geq$ .04 but < .06. The sanctions
for this "infraction" are the same as for "impaired" driv-
ing.
Misdemeanor: A person commits a misdemeanor if they
operate a CMV with a BAC $\geq$ <b>.06 but &lt; .08</b> .
For a first Per Se Level II Offense, the sanctions are a fine
of not less than \$500 or more than \$1,500 and/or a jail
term of not more than 180 days.
For a subsequent Per Se Level II Offense (within five
For a subsequent Per Se Level II Offense (within five years) or for a first offense where there has been a pre-
vious DWI offense conviction (within five years), the
sanctions are a fine of not less than \$500 or more than
\$1,500 and/or a jail term of not more than one year.
A person commits a misdemeanor if he operates a CMV
and violates the regular provisions of the DWI law. The
sanctions for this offense are a fine of not less than $$500$
or more than \$1,500 and/or a jail term or not more than 1
year.
Felony: A person commits a Class E felony if he is con-
victed of a Per Se Level II offense and has been convicted
2 or 3 times within 5 years of a Per Se Level II offense or
any DWI offense (one of these must be a misdemeanor.)
A person commits a Class D felony if he is convicted of a
Per Se Level II offense and has been convicted 4 or more
times within 5 years of a Per Se Level II offense or <u>any</u> DWI offense (One of these must be a misdemeanor.)
by remember (one of these must be a misdemeanor.)
Class E felony sanctions: A fine of not less than \$1,000 or
more than \$5,000 and/or a term of imprisonment of not
more than 4 years.
Class D felony sanctions: A fine of not less than \$2,000 or
more than \$10,000 and/or a term of imprisonment of not
more than 7 years.
NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(d)(1), (2), (3), (4); NY Penal §
55.10(1)(b); NY Penal § $55.10(2)(b);$ NY Penal § $70.00;$
NY Penal $\S$ 70.15(1)(a).
DWI Offenses Involving Other Motor Vehicles Used In
Commerce: The following sanctions apply to persons who
operate taxicabs, liveries or a trunk weighing more than
18,000 lbs. but less than 26,000 lbs. while in violation of
the regular provisions of the DWI law.
<u>First offense</u> (misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or

not less than \$500 or more than \$1,500; license revoked 1 year; <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) (class E felony) – Not more than 4 years and/or not less than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000; disqualification; <u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) (class D felony) – Not more than 7 years and/or not less than \$2,000 or more than \$10,000; disqualification. NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(d)(l), (2), (3); (4); NY Veh & Traf § 1193(2)(b)(4); NY Veh & Traf § 1193(2)(e)(3); NY Penal § 55.10(1)(b); NY Penal § 55.10(2)(b); NY Penal § 70.00; NY Penal § 70.15(1)(a). <b>Note</b> : Operating a vehicle weighing > 18,000 lbs while transporting flammable gas_radioactive materials or ex-	
plosives and with Per Se, Intoxicated or driving while im- paired by drugs offense is also a Class E felony with the criminal sanctions as noted above. NY Veh & Traf § 1193(l)(d)(5).	
Aggravated unlicensed operation of a motor vehicle in the 2 <sup>nd</sup> degree – Misdemeanor         Aggravated unlicensed operation of a motor vehicle in the 1 <sup>st</sup> degree – Cleas E Felorer	
0	
<ul> <li>2<sup>nd</sup> Degree: Not less than 7 days or more than 180 days and not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000. NY Veh &amp; Traf § 511(2)(a)(iii), (b).</li> <li>1<sup>st</sup> Degree: Not more than 4 years and not less than \$500 or more than \$5,000.</li> </ul>	
NV Vah & Trof & 511(2)(b); NV Danal & 70.00	
NY Veh & Traf § 511(3)(b); NY Penal § 70.00.	
2 <sup>nd</sup> Degree – 7 days/\$500;	
2 <sup>nd</sup> Degree – 7 days/\$500; 1 <sup>st</sup> Degree – 1 year/\$5,000	
2 <sup>nd</sup> Degree – 7 days/\$500;	
2 <sup>nd</sup> Degree – 7 days/\$500; 1 <sup>st</sup> Degree – 1 year/\$5,000	
	year; <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) (class E felony) – Not more than 4 years and/or not less than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000; disqualification; <u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) (class D felony) – Not more than 7 years and/or not less than \$2,000 or more than \$10,000; disqualification. NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(d)(l), (2), (3); (4); NY Veh & Traf § 1193(2)(b)(4); NY Veh & Traf § 1193(2)(e)(3); NY Penal § 55.10(1)(b); NY Penal § 55.10(2)(b); NY Penal § 70.00; NY Penal § 70.15(1)(a). <b>Note</b> : Operating a vehicle weighing > 18,000 lbs while transporting flammable gas, radioactive materials or ex- plosives and with Per Se, Intoxicated or driving while im- paired by drugs offense is also a Class E felony with the criminal sanctions as noted above. NY Veh & Traf § 1193(1)(d)(5). <b>Aggravated unlicensed operation of a motor vehicle in</b> <b>the</b> 1 <sup>st</sup> <b>degree</b> – <b>Class E Felony</b> NY Veh & Traf § 511(2)(a)(i), (3). <b>2<sup>nd</sup> Degree</b> : Not less than <b>7 days</b> or more than <b>180 days</b> and not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . NY Veh & Traf § 511(2)(a)(iii), (b). <b>1<sup>st</sup> Degree</b> : Not more than <b>4 years</b> and not less than <b>\$500</b>

Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
Habituar france Offender Law.		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
State Has Such a Law (Tes/NO).		
Other State Lewis Delated To Aleghal User		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Larra Bagyining BAC Chamical Tests on		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	$\mathbf{V}_{\text{cr}} = \mathbf{N} \mathbf{V}_{\text{cr}} \mathbf{C}_{\text{cr}} \mathbf{v}_{\text{cr}} \in (74(2)/L)^{483}$	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NY County § 674(3)(b). <sup>483</sup>	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes (If 16 years or older)	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21 NY Al Bev Con § 65; NY Al Bev Con § 65-b; NY Al	
Sale/Purchase:	Bev Con § 82.	
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Possession/Consumption:		
<u> </u>		
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	<b>Yes</b> NY Gen Oblig § 11-100; NY Gen Oblig § 11-101.	
(Yes/No):		
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Limited</b> to minors (< 21) only. NY Gen Oblig § 11-100;	
	see Cole v. O'Tooles of Utica, Inc., 643 N.Y.S.2d 283	
	(N.Y.A.D. 4 Dept. 1996). <sup>484</sup>	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. Any person who gives or serves alcohol to a minor may	
	be found guilty of a misdemeanor, punishably by not more	
	than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000.	
	II. Any person who acts in a manner likely to be injurious	
	to the physical, mental or moral welfare of a child $< 17$ or	
	any parent, guardian or other person legally charged with	
	the care or custody of a child $< 18$ who fails or refuses to	
	are care of custory of a child < 10 who fails of fordses to	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>483</sup> The test shall not be made if there is reason to believe that the decedent is of a religious faith that is opposed to such test on religious or moral grounds. NY County § 674(3)(b).
 <sup>484</sup> The court found no social host liability at a party given by a business where alcoholic beverages were furnished to an adult guest who caused injuries as a result of becoming intoxicated at the party. *Joly v. Northway Motor Car Corp.*, 517 N.Y. S.2d 595 (N.Y.A.D. 3 Dept. 1987).

	exercise reasonable diligence in the control of such child may be found guilty of child endangerment, a class A mis- demeanor, punishable by not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000. NY Penal § 260.10. III. Any person who gives or sells or causes to be giv- en/sold any alcoholic beverage to a person < 21 may be found guilty of unlawfully dealing with a child in the 1 <sup>st</sup> degree, a class A misdemeanor, punishably by not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000. NY Penal 260.20.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor NY Al Bev Con § 65; NY Al Bev Con § 130(5); NY Penal § 55.10(2)(b); NY Penal § 70.15(1); NY Penal § 80.05(1).	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . NY Al Bev Con § 130.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension, cancellation, revocation, and/or a civil pe- nalty. NY Al Bev Con § 118.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute, however upon a second or subsequent conviction, a licensee shall be fined a civil pe- nalty, in addition to suspension, cancellation or revocation, not more than <b>\$500</b> . NY Al Bev Con § 119.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor NY Al Bev Con § 65; NY Al Bev Con § 130; NY Penal § 55.10(2)(b); NY Penal § 70.15(1); NY Penal § 80.05; NY Penal § 80.10(1)(b), (c); NY Penal § 260.20.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b>	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		

License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension, cancellation, revocation, and/or a civil pe-	
	nalty. NY Al Bev Con § 118.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute, however upon a second or	
	subsequent conviction, a licensee shall be fined a civil pe-	
	nalty, in addition to suspension, cancellation or revocation,	
	not more than <b>\$500</b> . NY Al Bev Con § 119.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	Yes NY Al Bev Con § 117-a.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
	102	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>485</sup> NY Veh & Traf § 1227.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NY Veh & Traf § 1227.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>485</sup> This does not apply to vehicles operating under certain certificates or permits issued by the U.S. Department of Transportation. NY Veh & Traf § 1227.

STATE	NORTH CAROLINA	
General Reference:	North Carolina General Statutes	
	North Carolina Administrative Code	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of an impairing substance. <sup>486</sup> NC ST § 20-4.01(14a); NC ST § 20-138.1(a)(1).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\ge .08^{487}$ NC ST § 20-138.1(a)(2).	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: Any alcohol or controlled substance in the body. NC ST § 20-138.3.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any impairing substance or with any amount of a Schedule I controlled substance (as listed in NC ST § 90-89) or its metabolites. <sup>488</sup> NC ST § 20- 4.01(14a); NC ST § 20-138.1(a)(3).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> NC ST § 20-16.3(a).	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes NC ST § 20-16.2	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>489</sup> NC ST § 20-16.2(a).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <sup>490</sup> NC ST § 20-16.2(a), (a1); NC ST § 20-139.1. <sup>491</sup>	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal or administrative hearings) NC ST § 20- 16.3(d).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes (unconscious persons) NC ST § 20-16.2(b).	
Urine:	No	
Other:	N/A	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>486</sup> "Impairing substance" means alcohol, a controlled substance, any other drug or psychoactive substance capable of impairing a person's physical or mental faculties, or any combination of these substances. NC ST § 20-4.01(14a). <sup>487</sup> Alcohol concentration means grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. NC ST §

<sup>20-4.01(1</sup>b).

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>488</sup> The fact that a person is legally entitled to use alcohol or a drug is <u>not a defense</u>. NC ST § 20-138.1(b).
 <sup>489</sup> A person is charged with an implied consent offense if he has been arrested or if criminal process for the offense has been issued. NC ST § 20-16.2(a1). <sup>490</sup> A law enforcement officer shall "designate the type of chemical analysis to be administered." NC ST § 20-16.2(b), (c).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>491</sup> NC ST § 20-139.1 only applies to procedures governing chemical tests for alcohol concentration.

#### NORTH CAROLINA

Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> However, the law does require the prosecutor to explain a reduction or dismissal of a DWI charge in writing and in open court. NC ST § 20-138.4.
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes A judge may order a presentence investigation. NC ST § 20-179.1.
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> Test:	N/A
Other:	The fact that a person refused to submit to a PBT may be used by the officer, is admissible in court, or may be used by an administrative agency in determining whether there are reasonable grounds for believing that the driver com- mitted an implied consent offense and that the driver had consumed alcohol and had in his body previously con- sumed alcohol. NC ST § 20-16.3(d).
Refusal to Take Implied Consent	
<u>Chemical Test:</u>	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail): Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	N/A         Revocation 12 months (6 months mand <sup>492</sup> ) NC ST § 20-16.2(d).
	If a driver appears before a judicial official <sup>493</sup> the revoca- tion period is 30 days (mand) if there are no pending of- fenses for which the person's license had been or is re- voked. This period may be increased to 45 days if the per- son does not appear before the judicial official. NC ST § 20-16.5.
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	Misdemeanor <sup>494</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>492</sup> A limited license may be issued after 6 months of the revocation period to a driver if: (1) at the time of the refusal the person held a valid drivers license or one that had been expired less than one year; (2) at the time of the refusal, the person had not within 7 years been convicted of impaired driving; (3) at the time of the refusal, the person had not within 7 year willfully refused to submit to a chemical analysis; (4) the implied consent offense did not involve death or critical injury; (5) the underlying charge for which the person was requested to submit to chemical analysis has been disposed of other than by conviction, or by conviction at a punishment level authorizing limited license and the defendant has complied with at least one of the mandatory conditions of probation; (6) subsequent to the refusal, the person has had no unresolved pending charges for or additional convictions of an offense involving impaired driving; (7) the person's license has been revoked for at least 6 months for the refusal; and (8) the person has obtained a substance abuse assessment from a mental health facility and successfully completed any recommended training or treatment program. NC ST § 20-16.2(e1). <sup>493</sup> A judicial official means a magistrate, clerk, judge or justice. NC ST § 15A-101(5); NC ST § 20-16.5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>494</sup> After hearing mitigating and aggravating factors, a court determines which level punishment to impose. Mitigating factors include slight impairment, driving record, medical condition, voluntary submission to a mental health facility, and completion of sub-

Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>Level 1 Punishment</u> – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>24 months</b> and may be fined up to <b>\$4,000</b> ;
	Level 2 Punishment – Not less than 7 days or more than
	12 months and may be fined up to \$2,000;
	Level 3 Punishment – Not less than 72 hours or more than
	6 months and may be fined up to \$1,000;
	Level 4 Punishment – Not less than <b>48 hours</b> or more than
	120 days and may be fined up to \$500;
	Level 5 Punishment – Not less than <b>24 hours</b> or more than
	60 days and may be fined up to \$200.
	NC ST § 20-179.
	Serious injury by vehicle (Class F felony <sup>495</sup> ): Sentence is
	<b>10-59 months</b> depending on the person's criminal history.
	NC ST § 15A-1340.17; NC ST § 20-141.4.
	<b>Aggravated</b> <sup>496</sup> serious injury by vehicle (Class E felony):
	Sentence is <b>15-98 months</b> depending on the person's
	criminal history. NC ST § 15A-1340.17; NC ST § 20-
	141.4.
	Persons under the age of 21 (Class 2 misdemeanor) (any
	alcohol or controlled substance) – Not less than <b>1 day</b> or
	more than <b>60 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . NC ST §
	15A-1340.23; NC ST § 20-138.3; NC ST § 20-176.
	Operating school bus after consuming alcohol:
	<u>First offense</u> (class 3 misdemeanor) – <b>\$100</b> ;
	Second or subsequent offense (misdemeanor) – punishable
	in the same manner above (punishment levels).NC ST §
	20-138.2B.
Mandatory Minimum Term:	Level 1 Punishment –30 days;
	Level 2 Punishment –7 days;
	Level 3 Punishment – None;
	Level 4 Punishment – None;
	Level 5 Punishment – None.
Other Penalties: Community Service:	Level 3 Punishment – <b>72 hours</b> within 90 days (or 72
Community Service.	hours in jail, or both);
	Level 4 Punishment – <b>48 hours</b> within 60 days (or 48
	hours in jail, or both);
	Level 5 Punishment – <b>24 hours</b> within 30 days (or 24
	hours in jail, or both).

stance abuse treatment, to name a few. Aggravating factors include high BAC, negligent or reckless driving, prior driving record, driving while license revoked, etc. NC ST § 20-179. <sup>495</sup> North Carolina follows a sentencing grid which provides presumptive, mitigated and aggravated sentencing ranges for each class offense and prior record level. *See* NC ST § 15A-1340.17. <sup>496</sup> The crime becomes aggravated when the person has a previous impaired driving within 7 years of the instant offense. NC ST §

<sup>20-141.4(</sup>a4).

	NC ST § 20-179.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Direct compensation by the defendant to a victim. NC ST § 15B-24.
Other:	Continuous alcohol monitoring system: As a condition of probation for defendants subject to Level 1 or 2 pu- nishment, the judge may order a defendant to abstain from alcohol consumption for not less than 30 days or more than 60 days, as verified by a continuous alcohol monitor- ing system. NC ST § 20-179(h1).
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.08 (>.00 for persons under 21 years old / ≥ .04 for CMV operators) Revocation 30 days NC ST § 20-16.5(b), (b1), (e), (f). Note: If the driver is late in surrendering or does not surrender the license to the court when ordered to do so, the revocation period is 45 days. NC ST § 20-16.5(f). In addition, if the driver already has a pending drunk-driving offense and a probationary license as a result of a DWI offense, the license is revoked for the present offense until a final judgment (including all appeals) has become final. NC ST § 20-16.5(e), (f).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation           NC ST § 20-17; NC ST § 20-17.6; NC ST § 20-19; NC ST           § 20-179; NC ST § 20-138.5; NC ST § 122C-142.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense – 1 year;         Subsequent offense (not within 3 years) – 1 year;         Second offense (within 3 years) – 4 years;         Third offense (where the second offense was within 5 years of the third) – Permanent.         NC ST § 20-17; NC ST § 20-19(c1), (d), (e).         Persons under 21 years old: Revocation 1 year         NC ST § 20-13.2.
	<b>Serious/aggravated injury by vehicle – Permanent</b> NC ST § 20-17; NC ST § 20-19.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – None <u>Second offense</u> – <b>2 years</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> – <b>3 years</b> . NC ST § 20-19(d), (e).

Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes NC ST § 20-179.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes NC ST § 20-179. Under NC ST § 20-179.1, treatment may be ordered by the court as a condition of probation. Under NC ST § 20-179(k1), the court may order that a term of imprisonment imposed as a condition of probation be served in an inpatient alcohol treatment facility.	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Forfeiture	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	For a <u>fourth or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years), the motor vehicle driven by the offender is subject to seizure and forfeiture. NC ST § 20-138.5(e).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	Certain innocent parties who have an ownership interest in the vehicle, or a lien holder, may have the vehicle released to them. NC ST § 20-138.5(e).	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Both	
Conditions of Use:	I. Persons eligible for restricted driving privileges <u>may</u> be required to operate motor vehicles equipped with an igni- tion interlock device. II. If BAC was $\geq .15$ <u>or</u> if person is a second or subsequent offender (within 7 years), ignition interlock is required. <sup>497</sup> III. Length of requirement – If original revocation period was: one year = one year from date of restoration; four years = three years from date of restoration; permanent = seven years from date of restoration. NC ST § 20-17.8.	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted NC ST § 20-16.3A.	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Felony Death by Vehicle</b> (Class E felony); <b>Aggravated Felony Death by Vehicle</b> (Class D felony); <b>Repeat Felony Death by Vehicle Offender</b> (Class B2 felony).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>493</sup> I. <u>Required</u> ignition interlock usage, after license restoration, is as follows: (1) 1 year if license revocation was for 1 year; (2) 3 years if license revocation was for 4 years; and (3) 7 years if the license was permanently revoked but can be restored. §20-17.8(c) II. The following BAC requirements also apply while using an ignition interlock device: (1) If BAC was  $\geq$ .16, the person may not drive with a BAC  $\geq$ .04; and, for either a second or subsequent DWI offense, DWI in a CMV, DWI <21 years old after consuming alcohol/drugs or any vehicle homicide offense, the person may not drive with a BAC >.00. §20-17.8(b)(3)

#### NORTH CAROLINA

	NC ST § 15A-1340.17; NC ST § 20-141.4.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<b>Felony Death by Vehicle</b> (Class E felony) - Sentence is <b>15-98 months</b> depending on the person's criminal history and aggravating/mitigating factors.	
	<b>Aggravated Felony Death by Vehicle</b> (Class D felony) – Sentence is <b>38-229 months</b> depending on the person's criminal history and aggravating/mitigating factors.	
	<b>Repeat Felony Death by Vehicle Offender</b> (Class B2 felony) – Sentence is <b>94-480 months</b> depending on the person's criminal history and aggravating/mitigating factors.	
	Fine amounts are discretionary with the court.	
	NC ST § 15A-1340.17; NC ST § 20-141.4.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> NC ST § 20-17(a)(9); NC ST § 20-19(d)	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	4 years	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	2 years	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	I. A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate- rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of an impair- ing substance, or has any amount of a controlled substance or its metabolites in blood or urine; or (3) refuses to sub- mit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more vi- olations of any of the above-listed items, the disqualifica- tion is for life (10 years mand but for third viola- tion/refusal, disqualification for life is mand).	
	<ul> <li>II. It is a misdemeanor to operate a CMV while under the influence of an impairing substance or with a BAC/BrAC ≥.04. The sanctions for this offense are the same as for a regular drunk-driving offense (NC ST § 20-179).</li> </ul>	
	III. The State has adopted by reference the out-of-service provisions of 49 CFR § 392.5; 49 CFR § 395.13. These provisions provide, among other things, that a CMV operator be place out-of-service for 24 hours, if by general ap-	

	<ul> <li>pearance or conduct, it appears the operator has consumed intoxicating beverages with the preceding 4 hours.</li> <li>IV. Driving a CMV while consuming alcohol or while alcohol remains in the body:</li> <li><u>First offense</u> (Class 3 misdemeanor) – A \$100 fine and disqualification for 10 days (mand);</li> <li><u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 7 years) (misdemeanor) – Same criminal sanctions as for a DWI offense and CDL disqualification for 1 year (mand). An offender must have alcohol education/treatment prior to re-licensing.</li> <li><u>Fourth offense</u>, disqualification is for life (mand).</li> <li><b>Note</b>: The preliminary breath test and implied consent laws also apply to this offense.</li> </ul>	
	NC ST § 20-17.4(a), (a1), (b), (b1); NC ST § 20-17.6; NC ST § 20-19(f); NC ST § 20-37.12; NC ST § 20-138.2; NC ST § 20-138.2A; NC ST § 20-179.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Class 1 misdemeanor NC ST § 20-28(a).	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	A sentence of <b>1-120 days</b> depending on the person's crim- inal record. A fine is discretionary by the court. NC ST § 20-28(a); NC ST § 15A-1340.23.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	None	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	First offense- 1 additional year added to original revocation period;Second offense- 2 additional years added to originalrevocation period;- 1000000000000000000000000000000000000	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>90 days</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> – <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> – <b>3 years</b> . The driver shall obtain a substance abuse assessment prior to issuance of a license, show proof of financial responsi- bility and complete education or treatment if necessary. If the assessment determines the person abuses alcohol, then such person shall install an ignition interlock for the period of time the conditional restoration is active. NC ST § 20-28(c4).	
Other:	I. Vehicle "subject to" impoundment and forfeiture if de- termined by judge. NC ST § 20.28.2.	

	II. If a person is convicted of a DWI offense while driving	
	with a license revoked for a previous DWI offense convic-	
	tion (within 7 years), the Court must impose Level 1 pu-	
	nishment. NC ST § 20-179(c)(2).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes Habitual Impaired Driving	
Grounds for Being Declared an	3 or more impaired driving offenses within 10 years. NC	
Habitual Offender:	ST § 20-138.5.	
Term of License Rev While Under	Revocation NC ST § 20-138.5.	
Habitual Offender Status:		
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	Class F felony NC ST § 20-138.5.	
on Charges of Driving While on		
Habitual Offender Status:		
Sanctions Following a Conviction of		
Driving While on Habitual Offender		
Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	10-59 months	
	A fine is discretionary.	
	NC ST § 15A-1340.17.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<b>12 months</b> NC ST § 20-138.5.	
Imprisonment/Fine:		
Licensing Actions (Specify):	Permanent Revocation	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21	
Sale/Purchase:	NC ST § 18B-302(a), (b).	
Minimum Age (Years)	21 Employment exemption.	
Possession/Consumption:	NC ST § 18B-301(f)(4); NC ST § 18B-302(b); NC ST §	
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	18B-302(h).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes (underage persons) NC ST § 18B-120 et seq. Note:	
(Yes/No):	The law limits recovery to \$500,000. NC ST § 18B-123.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
	I	

Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes	
	Under general negligence principles of common law, a social host may be held liable for the injuries caused by intoxicated guests. <i>Hart v. Ivey</i> , 420 S.E.2d 174 (N.C. 1992).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. Any person who gives an underage person alcohol may be found guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor, punishable by 10-59 months <u>or</u> a \$250 fine and 25 hours of community service for a first offense. For a subsequent offense (with- in 4 years) the punishment is 10-59 months, or a \$500 fine and 150 hours of community service. NC ST § 15A- 1340.23; NC ST § 18B-302(a1); NC ST § 18B-302.1. II. A person who is at least 16 years old who knowingly or willfully causes, encourages or aid any juvenile to commit an act whereby such juvenile could be adjudicated delin- quent may be found guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor, pu- nishable by 10-59 months and, in the discretion of the court, a fine. NC ST § 14-316.1; NC ST § 15A-1340.23.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Class 1 Misdemeanor</b> NC ST § 18B-102; NC ST § 18B-305.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	1-120 days and a fine in the court's discretion. The length of the imprisonment term is determined in part by the number of prior criminal convictions. NC ST § 15A- 1340.23	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension, revocation, fine or suspension & fine NC ST § 18B-104; NC ST § 18B-305(a).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Suspension – Not more than 3 years Revocation period is not specified in the statute A fine of up to \$500 (1 <sup>st</sup> violation), \$750 (2 <sup>nd</sup> violation) or \$1,000 (3 <sup>rd</sup> violation) may be imposed A permittee may pay a penalty of up to \$5,000 as an offer in compromise for revocation. The Commission may not revoke the permit if a penalty is paid. However, the Commission may still suspend the permit and collect the penalty. NC ST § 18B-104.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		

Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class 1 Misdemeanor         NC ST § 18B-102; NC ST § 18B-302; NC ST § 18B-302.1.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense– 10-59 months or \$250 and 25 hours community service;Subsequent offense– 10-59 months or \$500 and 150hours community service.The imposition of a fine is in the court's discretion. NCST § 15A-1340.23.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension, revocation, fine or suspension & fine NC ST § 18B-104; NC ST § 18B-305(a).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Suspension – Not more than 3 yearsRevocation period is not specified in the statuteA fine of up to \$500 (1 <sup>st</sup> violation), \$750 (2 <sup>nd</sup> violation) or\$1,000 (3 <sup>rd</sup> violation) may be imposedA permittee may pay a penalty of up to \$5,000 as an offerin compromise for revocation. The Commission may notrevoke the permit if a penalty is paid. However, theCommission may still suspend the permit and collect thepenalty.NC ST § 18B-104.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	Yes 4 NC ADC 2S.0232.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NC ST § 18B-401(a); NC ST § 20-138.7.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes NC ST § 18B-401(a); NC ST § 20-138.7.	

STATE	NORTH DAKOTA
General Reference:	North Dakota Century Code Annotated
	North Dakota Administrative Code
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor. NDCC § 39-08-01(1)(b).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08 <sup>498</sup> NDCC § 39-08-01(1)(a); NDCC § 39-20-07(3), (4).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08 NDCC § 39-20-07(3).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug or substance, any combination of drugs or substances and combine influence of alcohol and any drug or substance. NDCC § 39-08-01(1)(c), (d). "Drug" means any drug or substance or combination of drugs or substances which renders a person incapable of safely driv- ing. NDCC § 39-20-01.
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes NDCC § 39-20-14.
Implied Consent Law:	ř.
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes NDCC § 39-20-01.
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> NDCC § 39-20-01.
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) NDCC § 39-20-08.
Other Information:	In any accident in which there is a death or a serious bodily injury and there is probable cause showing that a driver has committed <u>any</u> DWI offense or a moving violation, such driver must be compelled to submit to a chemical test or tests of the driver's blood, breath, saliva, or urine. NDCC § 39-20-01.1.
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	Yes NDCC § 39-20-01.
Urine:	Yes NDCC § 39-20-01.
Other:	Saliva NDCC § 39-20-01.
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>498</sup> Alcohol concentration is described as "percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. This is defined to mean grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath or grams of alcohol per 67 milliliters of urine. NDCC § 39-20-07(4).

#### NORTH DAKOTA

Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes Addiction evaluation is mandatory for all offenders. NDCC § 39-08-01(4).
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath Test:	
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	No
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First offense– Suspension 1 year;Second offense(within 5 years) – Suspension 3 years;Third offense(within 5 years) – Suspension 4 years.NDCC § 39-20-04; NDCC § 39-20-14.
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent Chemical</u> Test:	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First offense</u> – <b>Revocation 1 year</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Revocation 3 years</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Revocation 4 years</b> . NDCC § 39-20-04.
Other:	A person's driving privileges are not subject to revocation for the refusal if an administrative hearing is not held, the person mails in an affidavit of intent to plead guilty and the person actually pleads guilty. NDCC § 39-20-04(2). However, such person's driving privileges are subject to suspension or revoca- tion if that person pleads guilty to driving under the influence. NDCC § 39-06.1-10.
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine: 499	First offense (Class B Misdemeanor) – A maximum of 30 days and/or a fine of \$1,000; Second offense (within 5 years) (Class B Misdemeanor) – A maximum of 30 days and/or a fine of \$1,000; Third offense (within 5 years) (Class A Misdemeanor) – A maximum of 1 year and/or a fine of \$2,000; Fourth offense (within 7 years) (Class A Misdemeanor) – A maximum of 1 year and/or a fine of \$2,000; Hours consecutively) and \$1,000 Fifth offense (within 7 years) (Class C Felony) – A maximum of 5 years and/or a fine of \$5,000.
	NDCC § 12.1-32-01; NDCC § 39-08-01.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>499</sup> "Imprisonment" includes house arrest with electronic home detention where the offender is prohibited from consuming alcoholic beverages. However, this requirement does not apply to persons under the control of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation. NDCC § 39-08-01(5).

	<b>DWI Serious Injury</b> (Class A misdemeanor): A maximum of <b>1 year</b> and/or a fine of <b>\$2,000</b> NDCC § 12.1-32-01; NDCC § 39-08-01.2.
	<b>Child Endangerment</b> (Class A misdemeanor): Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or a fine of <b>\$2,000</b> . NDCC § 12.1-32-01; NDCC § 39-08-01.4.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: <sup>500</sup>	First offense- \$250;Second offense- 5 days (48 hours consecutive)/\$500;Third offense- 60 days (48 hours consecutive)/\$1,000; <sup>501</sup> Fourth or subsequent offense- 180 days (48 hours consecu-tive)/\$1,000. <sup>502</sup> NDCC § 39-08-01(4).
	<b>DWI Serious Injury – 90 days</b> NDCC § 12.1-32-01; NDCC§ 39-08-01.2.
	<b>Child Endangerment – None</b> . NDCC § 12.1-32-01; NDCC § 39-08-01.4.
	<b>Special Note</b> : If an offender has been ordered to participate in an addiction treatment program and is also subject to mandato- ry imprisonment, the time spent in the treatment program must be credited as a portion of the sentence of imprisonment." NDCC § 39-08-01(g).
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	<u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) $-$ <b>30 days</b> as an alternative to imprisonment.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes – by the defendant and through a victims compensation fund. NDCC § 12.1-32-02; NDCC § 12.1-32-08; NDCC § 54-23.4-01, <i>et seq</i> .
Other:	A court shall order a defendant to pay <b>\$50</b> to the department of corrections and rehabilitation at the time a presentence investigation is initiated. NDCC § 12.1-32-02(10).
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.08 Persons Under 21 Years Old - ≥ .02

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>500</sup>Alternative Mandatory Sentence: Ten days of mandatory imprisonment on the condition that the offender undergoes and completes a drug/alcohol evaluation. Based on this evaluation, the court may place the offender on probation and require treatment and rehabilitation. NDCC § 39-08-01(4)(e).
 <sup>501</sup> The court may suspend 50 days of imprisonment and place the offender with the Department of Corrections for supervision and treatment. NDCC § 39-08-01(4)(e).
 <sup>502</sup> The court may suspend 170 days of imprisonment and place the offender with the Department of Corrections for supervision and treatment. NDCC § 20 09 01(4)(e).

treatment. NDCC § 39-08-01(4)(e).

#### NORTH DAKOTA

	NIDCC \$ 20.06.1.11(2): NIDCC \$ 20.20.02.1: NIDCC \$
	NDCC § 39-06.1-11(2); NDCC § 39-20-03.1; NDCC § 39-20-04.1; NDCC § 39-20-07.
	$\frac{\text{First offense} - \text{Suspension 91 days (30 days mand);}}{\text{BAC} \ge .18} - \text{Suspension 180 days (mand);}$ $\frac{\text{Second offense}}{\text{Second offense}} \text{ (within 5 years)} - \text{Suspension 365 days} \text{ (mand);}$ $\frac{\text{Third or subsequent offense}}{\text{Suspension 2 years (mand);}} - \text{Suspension 2 years (mand);}$
	<b>3 years</b> (mand).
Other:	For a second or subsequent offense, a temporary restricted li- cense may be issued for good cause if the offender has not committed an offense for a period of 2 years before the date of filing the written application that must be accompanied by a report from a licensed addiction treatment program, or if the offender is participating in the drug court program and has not committed an offense for a period of 365 days before the date of the filing of a written application that must be accompanied by a recommendation from the district court. NDCC § 39- 06.1-11(2). Additionally, the director of the department of transportation shall issue a temporary restricted driver's permit to the offend- er only for the purpose of participation in the twenty-four sev- en sobriety program. NDCC § 39-06.1-11(5).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation NDCC § 39-06-31; NDCC § 39-06.1-10(7).
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	$\frac{\text{First offense} - \text{Suspension 91 days};}{\text{BAC} \ge .18} - \text{Suspension 180 days};}$ $\frac{\text{BAC} \ge .18}{\text{Second offense}} \text{ (within 5 years)} - \text{Suspension 365 days};}$ $\frac{\text{Third or subsequent offense}}{\text{Suspension 2}} \text{ (within 5 years)} - \text{Suspension 2}}$ $\frac{\text{Third or subsequent offense w/ last offense} \ge .18}{\text{Suspension 3}} - \text{Suspension 3}$ $\frac{\text{Suspension 2}}{\text{Suspension 3}} \text{ (mand)}.$
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	DWI Serious Injury – Revocation 1 year (mand).First offense – 30 days; Second offense (within 5 years) – 365 days; Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 2 years.NDCC § 39-06.1-10(3.1) (b); NDCC § 39-06.1-11.Note: No restricted licenses can be issued in cases where there has been a serious injury related to a DWI offense. NDCC § 39-06-31; NDCC § 39-06.1-11(2).
Other:	

Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	Yes
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes A defendant must be referred to an alcohol rehabilitation facili- ty for addiction evaluation. Following the evaluation, the court may require the defendant to complete an alcohol education or treatment program. NDCC § 39-08-01(4). A defendant's license cannot be restored until the defendant
	furnishes a written statement from an approved treatment pro- gram that he/she does not need alcohol education/treatment or that he/she has complied with the attendance rules of such pro- gram. NDCC § 39-06.1-10(3.1)(a).
	For a fourth or subsequent offense (within 7 years), a defen- dant must complete an addiction treatment program <u>and</u> have no alcohol or drug-related offense convictions within 2 con- secutive years before his/her driving privileges can be restored. NDCC § 39-06.1-10 (3.1)(b).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	<b>Forfeiture</b> NDCC § 39-08-01.3.
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	For a second or subsequent DWI offense conviction (within 5 years), a defendant's vehicle may be subject to forfeiture. NDCC § 39-08-01.3.
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	
Other:	<b>Impoundment</b> : License plates may be impounded following a conviction for an alcohol-driving offense. They must be impounded upon a second or subsequent offense within 5 years; except that a court may grant a hardship exception to a person completely dependent on the motor vehicle for the necessities of life, including a family member of the convicted individual and co-owner of the motor vehicle, but not including the offender. The period of impoundment is for the same period of time as the defendant's license suspension period. NDCC § 39-08-01(3).
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permissive
Conditions of Use:	The court or driver licensing agency may order a defendant to install an ignition interlock device on his/her vehicle. This re- quirement applies to the issuance of temporary restricted driv- ing privileges.
	The court shall determine the length of time an ignition inter- lock shall be installed in a motor vehicle.

#### NORTH DAKOTA

	NDCC § 39-06.1-11; NDCC § 39-08-01.3.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted City of Bismarck v. Uhden, 513 N.W.2d 373 (N.D. 1994).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	<b>No specific law</b> While there is no specific law, a DUI homicide can be charged as murder, manslaughter or negligent homicide, depending on the circumstances. <sup>503</sup> NDCC § 12.1-16-01; NDCC § 12.1-16- 02; NDCC § 12.1-16-03.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Murder (Class AA Felony) – A maximum of life imprison- ment (without parole) Manslaughter (Class B Felony) – A maximum of 10 years and/or a fine of \$10,000; Negligent Homicide (Class C Felony) – A maximum of 5 years and/or a fine of \$5,000. NDCC § 12.1-32-01.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	1 year NDCC § 39-08-01.2.
Administrative Licensing Action:	Č Č
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> NDCC § 39-06-31.
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	1 year
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	1 year
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 mandato- ry year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC ≥04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or drugs; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration. <b>Note</b> : The disqualification section, NDCC § 39-06.2-10, ap-
	pears to only apply to a refusal to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration; however, the CMV implied consent

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>503</sup> For purposes of a DUI homicide, the following definitions apply: (1) <u>Murder</u> – intentionally or knowingly causing the death of another, or causing the death of another under circumstances manifesting extreme indifference to the value of human life; (2) <u>Manslaughter</u> – recklessly causing the death of another; (3) <u>Negligent homicide</u> – Negligently causing the death of another.

Action:	
Other:	<b>License Plate Impoundment</b> : Under NDCC § 39-06-42(3), license plates may be impounded for the duration of the driver's license suspension/ revocation.
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> <sup>504</sup>
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes NDCC § 39-20-13.
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes
Pedestrian:	Yes
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> NDCC § 5-01-08; NDCC § 5-01-09; NDCC § 5-02-01.1(2)(d); NDCC § 5-02-06.
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> NDCC§ 5-01-08. There is an employment exception for employees 18-20 years old, and for religious services, or when accompanied by a parent or legal guardian.
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes NDCC § 5-01-06.1.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes NDCC § 5-01-06.1.
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	I. Any person who gives alcohol to an underage person may be found guilty of a class B misdemeanor, punishable by not more than <b>30 days</b> and/or <b>\$1,000</b> . NDCC § 5-01-15; NDCC § 12.1- 32-01. II. Any individual who willfully encourages, causes or contri- butes to the delinquency of a minor may be found guilty of a

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>504</sup> However, an individual who is a habitual drunkard (3 or more convictions of DWI, or 3 or more administrative suspensions within a 5 year period), shall not be issued a license, unless such person can provide adequate proof of removal of the habit which may include satisfactory completion of a licensed drug or alcohol treatment program. NDCC § 39-06-03.

#### NORTH DAKOTA

	class A misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 1 year
	and/or \$2,000. NDCC § 12.1-32-01; NDCC § 14-10-06.
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor NDCC § 5-01-09.
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or <b>\$2,000</b> . NDCC § 12.1-32-01.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Revocation/suspension NDCC § 5-02-10; NDCC § 5-02-11.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Time period is not specified in the statute. NDCC § 5-02-11.
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor NDCC § 5-01-09; NDCC § 5-02-06.
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than 1 year and/or \$2,000. NDCC § 12.1-32-01.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Revocation/suspension NDCC § 5-02-10; NDCC § 5-02-11.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Time period is not specified in the statute. NDCC § 5-02-11.
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes NDCC § 39-08-18.
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes NDCC § 39-08-18.

STATE	ОНІО	
General Reference:	Ohio Revised Code Annotated	
	Ohio Administrative Code	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI (OVI) Offense:	Operating a Vehicle Under the Influence of Alcohol or Drugs (OVI) OH ST § 4511.19(A)(1)(a), (A)(2).	
Illegal Per Se Law	I. Whole Blood or Breath: $\geq .08$ but $< .17^{505}$ ,	
Whole Blood	Blood Serum or Plasma: ≥ <b>.096 but &lt; .204</b>	
Blood Serum or Plasma	Urine: ≥ <b>.11 but &lt; .238</b>	
Breath	OH ST § 4511.19(A)(1)(b) – (e), (j).	
Urine	II. Whole Blood or Breath: $\geq .17^{506}$	
	Blood Serum or Plasma: $\geq .204$	
	Urine: $\geq .238$	
	OH ST § $4511.19(A)(1)(f) - (i)$	
	(113134311.1)(A)(1)(1) = (1)	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old:	
	Whole Blood or Breath: $\geq .02$ but < .08	
	Blood Serum or Plasma: ≥ <b>.03 but &lt; .096</b>	
	Urine: ≥ <b>.028 but &lt; .11</b>	
	OH ST § 4511.19(B).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	Yes	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of alcohol, a drug of abuse or a com- bination of alcohol and a drug of abuse. "Drug of abuse" includes the following controlled substances, or metabo- lites of a controlled substance: amphetamines, cocaine,	
	heroin, L.S.D., and marijuana. OH ST § 4506.01(K); OH ST § 4511.19(A)(1).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>No</b> <sup>507</sup>	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes OH ST § 4511.191	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> OH ST § 4511.191(A)(3), (5). <sup>508</sup>	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>505</sup>Alcohol concentration standards when expressed as a percentage, mean grams of alcohol per the following: (1) 100 milliliters of whole blood, blood serum, or blood plasma; (2) 210 liters of breath; and (3) 100 milliliters of urine. OH ST § 4506.01(A); OH ST § 4511.19(A), (B).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>506</sup>Also, for a <u>breath or whole blood</u> alcohol concentration which is  $\ge .17$ , for a <u>blood serum or plasma</u> alcohol concentration  $\ge .204$ , or for a <u>urine</u> alcohol concentration which is  $\ge 0.238$ . OH ST §4511.19(A)(1)(f), (g), (h), (i). <sup>507</sup> However, a field sobriety test may be given. Evidence of such test may be presented in a criminal case so long as it is shown by

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>507</sup> However, a field sobriety test may be given. Evidence of such test may be presented in a criminal case so long as it is shown by clear and convincing evidence that the officer administered the test in substantial compliance with testing standards. OH ST § 4511.194. Further, the result of a portable breath test is a factor, in addition to field sobriety tests, upon which a law enforcement officer may base probable cause for arrest.
 <sup>508</sup> The code states that a chemical test shall be administered at the request of an officer having reasonable grounds to believe a per-

 $<sup>^{508}</sup>$  The code states that a chemical test shall be administered at the request of an officer having reasonable grounds to believe a person was operating a vehicle in violation of the DWI (OVI) statute. It also states that if an officer arrests a person for a violation, the officer shall request such person to submit to a chemical test. OH ST § 4511.191(A)(3), (5). Based on this language, it appears that arrest is not required for an officer to request someone to submit to a test. However, if there is an arrest, then the officer is mandated

#### OHIO

Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OH ST § 4511.191(A).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal Cases) State v. Hoover, 916 N.E.2d 1056(Ohio 2009); City of Westerville v. Cunningham, 239N.E.2d 40 (Ohio 1968).	
Other Information:	A law enforcement officer shall advise the person at the time of the refusal that the officer may employ whatever reasonable means are necessary to ensure that the person submits to a chemical test of the person's whole blood or blood serum or plasma. A law enforcement officer who acts pursuant to this division to ensure that a person sub- mits to a chemical test is immune from criminal and civil liability based upon a claim for assault and battery or any other claim for the acts, unless the officer acted with ma- licious purpose, in bad faith or in a wanton or reckless manner. OH ST § 4511.191(A)(5)(b).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> OH ST § 4511.191(A)(2).	
Urine:	Yes OH ST § 4511.191(A)(2).	
Other:	Yes other bodily substance. OH ST § 4511.191(D)(1).	
Adjudication of DWI (OVI) Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No, but courts will generally order a PSI prior to sentenc- ing.	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	First Refusal (minor misdemeanor) – Not more than \$100; Second refusal (within 1 year - fourth degree misdemeanor) – Not more than 30 days and not more than \$250; Third and subsequent refusals (within 1 year of first - third degree misdemeanor) – Not more than 60 days and not more than \$500 OH ST § 4511.99; OH ST § 2929.24.	

to giving such test.

Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> – <b>Suspension 1 year</b> (limited driving privileges after mandatory 30 days); <u>Second refusal</u> (within 6 years) – <b>Suspension 2 years</b> (li-
	mited driving privileges after mandatory 90 days); <u>Third refusal</u> (within 6 years) – <b>Suspension 3 years</b> (li- mited driving privileges after mandatory 1 year); <u>Subsequent refusal</u> (within 6 years) – <b>Suspension 5 years</b> (no limited driving privileges during period of suspen-
	sion). OH ST § 4510.02; OH ST § 4510.13; OH ST § 4511.191(B)(1).
	Except as noted, limited driving privileges may be granted after the mandatory period of license suspension has passed. OH ST § 4510.021; OH ST § 4510.13. The li- cense suspension is subject to appeal pursuant to OH ST § 4511.197.
Other:	A suspension for a refusal will <u>not</u> terminate if the driver is found "not guilty" of the related DWI (OVI) offense. However, such suspension will terminate if the person is found guilty of or pleads guilty to a related DWI (OVI) offense. Additionally, such suspension shall be credited against any judicial suspension for a DWI (OVI) convic- tion any time during which the person serves a related suspension imposed for a refusal. OH ST § 4511.191(B)(2).
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI (OVI) Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>OVI</b> : <u>First conviction</u> (misdemeanor 1 <sup>st</sup> degree) – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and not less than <b>\$375</b> or more than <b>\$1,075</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> (within 6 years) (misdemeanor 1 <sup>st</sup> de- gree) - Not more than <b>6 months</b> and not less than <b>\$525</b> or more than <b>\$1,675</b> ;; <u>Third conviction</u> (within 6 years) (unclassified misdemea-
	$\overline{\text{nor}}^{509}$ – <b>Not more than 1 year</b> and not less than <b>\$850</b> or more than <b>\$2,750</b> ; <u>Fourth conviction</u> (within 6 years, or 5 or more OVI con- victions within 20 years) (fourth degree felony) –If the offender has 5 or more convictions within 20 years of the present offense, then the court shall impose a mandatory
	additional prison term of 1-5 years. Cumulative jail time shall not exceed <b>1 year</b> . If the sentence is served in pris- on, the court may impose an additional and definite prison term of <b>6 to 30 months and not less than \$1,350 or more</b>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>509</sup> A crime is classified as a misdemeanor if the imprisonment sanction is not more than 1 year. OH ST § 2901.02(F).

than \$10,500. Prior felony OVI conviction within any time period – (third degree felony) – Cumulative prison time shall not exceed 5 years. If the offender has 5 or more convictions within 20 years of the present offense, in additional to the OVI offense, such offender shall be sentenced an addition- al prison term of 1 to 5 years. If the offender does not have the prior convictions, then such offender shall be sen- tenced to a mandatory 60 days or mandatory 120 days (for high concentration), and not less than \$1,350 or more than \$10,500. OH ST § 2929.14; OH ST § 2929.16; OH ST § 2929.18; OH ST § 2929.19(C); OH ST § 2929.21; OH ST § 4511.19(G).	
Offense for Persons Under 21 Years Old: <u>First conviction</u> (fourth degree misdemeanor) – Not more than 30 days; <u>Second conviction</u> (within 1 year) (third degree misde- meanor) – Not more than 60 days. OH ST § 2929.21; OH ST § 4511.19(H).	
<b>Child Endangerment</b> : It is a separate offense to operate a motor vehicle in violation of the drunk- driving laws when 1 or more children under age 18 are in the vehicle. <u>First offense</u> (first degree misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>6</b> <b>months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>First offense where there has been serious physical harm</u> to the child or subsequent offense (fifth degree felony) – <b>6</b> <b>to 12 months</b> and/or a fine of not more than <b>\$2,500</b> ; <u>Sub-</u> <u>sequent child endangerment offense</u> (serious physical harm to the child, or where there has been serious physical harm to the child, and the driver has a prior vehicular ho- micide (prior to March, 23, 2000) conviction = fourth de- gree felony) – <b>6 to 18 months</b> and a fine of not more than <b>\$5,000</b> .	
In addition to the above, offenders are subject to not more than 200 hours of community service, which is not in lieu of community service that may be imposed via probation.	
OH ST § 2919.22(C)(1), (E); OH ST § 2929.14; OH ST § 2929.18; OH ST § 2929.21.	
Aggravated Vehicular Assault (serious physical harm): <u>First offense</u> (third degree felony) – 1 to 5 years and not more than <b>\$10,000</b> ; <u>First offense</u> (where: (1) the offender has been convicted previously of a vehicular homicide offense; (2) at the time of offense the offender was driving under suspension; (3) the offender has a prior conviction for any traffic-related homicide, manslaughter or assault offense) (second degree	

	<ul> <li>felony) – 2 to 18 years and not more than \$15,000.Subsequent offense (within 6 years) (second degree felony) – 2 to 8 years and not more than \$15,000.</li> <li>OH ST § 2903.08; OH ST § 2929.11; OH ST § 2929.18; OH ST § 4510.02.</li> </ul>
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	OVI:         First conviction – 3 consecutive days; <sup>510</sup> Second conviction – 10 consecutive days (Alternative: 5 consecutive days in jail and not less than 18 consecutive days "house arrest" with electronic monitoring <sup>511</sup> );         Third conviction (within 6 years) – 30 consecutive days (Alternative: 15 consecutive days in jail and not less than 55 consecutive days "house arrest" with electronic monitoring);         Fourth conviction (within 6 years) – 60 consecutive
	days. <sup>512</sup> BAC $\geq$ .17: <u>First conviction</u> – 3 consecutive days in jail with 3 con- secutive days of a drivers' intervention program or 6 con- secutive days in jail; <u>Second conviction</u> (within 6 years) – 20 consecutive days (Alternative: 10 consecutive days in jail <u>and</u> not less than 36 consecutive days "house arrest" with electronic moni- toring"); <u>Third conviction</u> (within 6 years) – 60 consecutive days
	(Alternative: 30 consecutive days in jail and not less than110 consecutive days "house arrest" with electronic monitoring);Fourth conviction (within 6 years) – 120 consecutive days(in jail or prison);Prior felony conviction (within any time period) – 120consecutive days in prison.Aggravated OVI: any sentence is mandatory.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	A court may order an offender to perform supervised community service. OH ST § 2951.02(B).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>510</sup> Three consecutive days is defined as 72 consecutive hours. In lieu of this 3-day jail sanction, the court may place a defendant on probation and order attendance at a driver's intervention program for 3 consecutive days. OH ST § 4511.19. <sup>511</sup> This alternative is imposed <u>only</u> when there are overcrowded jail conditions that prohibit the offender from commencing his/her

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>511</sup> This alternative is imposed <u>only</u> when there are overcrowded jail conditions that prohibit the offender from commencing his/her term of imprisonment within 60 days of sentencing. OH ST § 4511.99(A)(12). <sup>512</sup> Special Conditions for OVI Felony Offenses: I. For a first OVI felony offense, the 60 consecutive days <u>must</u> be served in a

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>512</sup> **Special Conditions for OVI Felony Offenses:** I. For a first OVI felony offense, the 60 consecutive days <u>must</u> be served in a local incarceration facility (e.g., jail, a community-based correctional facility, a halfway house or other alternative residential facility). In addition, after the mandatory incarceration period is served the offender may be placed on community control probation or in the electronic monitoring program. II. For a subsequent OVI felony offense, the 60 consecutive days <u>must</u> be served in State prison and such person is not eligible to participate in the electronic monitoring program. OH ST § 2929.13(G); OH ST § 2929.15(A); OH ST § 2929.17; OH ST § 2929.23(3)(d).

	Any person convicted of aggravated OVI shall complete not more than 200 hours of community service. OH ST § 2919.22.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	YesI. An offender may be ordered to pay restitution to a victim in an amount based on the victim's financial loss. OHST § 2929.18.II. A victim is eligible for reparations from the State. OHST § 2743.51 et seq.
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
<u>Pre-DWI (OVI) Conviction</u> Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	<ul> <li>≥.08 BAC/BrAC or ≥ .11 UrAC or ≥ .096 Blood Plasma or Serum</li> <li>First offense – Suspension 3 months (15 days mand);</li> <li>Second offense (within 6 years) – Suspension 1 year (45 days mand);</li> <li>Third offense (within 6 years) – Suspension 2 years (180 days mand);</li> <li>Subsequent offense (within 6 years) – Suspension 3 years (mand).</li> <li>OH ST § 4510.02(B); OH ST § 4510.13; OH ST § 4511.191(B).</li> </ul>
Post DWI (OVI) Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation
	First convictionSuspension;Second conviction (within 6 years) - Suspension;Third conviction (within 6 years) - Suspension;Subsequent convictions (within 6 years) - Suspension;sion/RevocationOH ST § 4510.02.
	OVI-Related Aggravated Vehicle Assault – Suspension OH ST § 2903.08; OH ST § 4510.02.
	<u>Child Endangerment</u> – <b>Suspension</b> OH ST § 2919.22(C)(1).
	Offense for Persons Under 21 Years Old – Suspension OH ST § 4510.02; OH ST § 4511.19(H).
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	<u>First offense</u> - Suspension 6 months to 3 years; <u>Second offense</u> - Suspension 1 to 5 years; <u>Third offense</u> - Suspension 2 to 10 years;

		1
	<u>Subsequent offenses</u> – Suspension for not less than 3	
	years or Permanent Revocation (for life)	
	DW/I Delated A computed Vehicle Assoult	
	DWI Related Aggravated Vehicle Assault:	
	<u>First offense</u> – Suspension 2 to 10 years;	
	Subsequent offense – Suspension 3 years to life	
	Child Endangerment: Suspension not more than 1 year	
	Offense for Persons Under 21 Years Old:	
	First offense – 3 months to 2 years;	
	Subsequent offense (within 1 year) $-1$ to 5 years.	
	OH ST § 4510.02; OH ST § 4511.19(H).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	<b>None</b> . A court may grant limited driving privileges. OH ST § 4510.021; OH ST § 4510.13.	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes	
	A person charged with a misdemeanor offense, determined	
	by the court to be either an alcoholic or a person suffering	
	from acute alcohol intoxication and who would benefit	
	from an alcohol or drug treatment program may, in lieu of	
	imprisonment, be placed in such a program under close	
	supervision. However, an OVI offender must be confined	
	in a treatment facility for at least 3 days. OH ST §	
	2935.33(8).	
	For subsequent offenses, the court may require a defendant	
	to attend a treatment program. For third and subsequent	
	offenses, the court shall require the defendant to attend a	
	treatment program. OH ST § 4511.19(G).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Seizure, Immobilization, Impoundment	
Authorized by Specific Statutory	Upon a second offense, the vehicle may be seized. OH ST	
Authority:	§ 4511.195;	
	Second conviction (within 6 years) – Immobilization of	
	and impoundment of the license plates of the vehicle	
	used in the offense for 90 days if registered to the of-	
	fender;	
	Third conviction (within 6 years) – Criminal forfeiture of	
	the vehicle used in the offense if registered to the of-	
	fender;	
	Subsequent convictions (within 6 years) – Criminal for-	
	feiture of the vehicle used in the offense if registered to	
	the offender.	
	OH ST § 4507.164; OH ST § 4511.19.	

Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	A non-driver owner of the vehicle may avoid the forfeiture sanction by proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the non-driver neither knew nor should have known that an offense was or would be committed. OH ST § 4503.234.	
	If the vehicle is subject to forfeiture pursuant to a statute other than OH ST § 4503.234 and the vehicle's registration has been assigned or transferred, the defendant may be required to pay a fine which is equal to the value of the vehicle. OH ST § 4503.234(E).	
Other:		
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Juvenile DWI Offenders</b> : A person under 18 years old who violates the regular DWI law may be assigned to temporary custody of not more than 5 days to: (1) a deten- tion home; (2) another similar institution for children; or (3) a school camp. OH ST § 2152.21(A)(5).	
	<b>Confinement Costs</b> : In some counties, offenders may have to pay the costs of confinement (workhouses). OH ST § 2947.19.	
Ignition Interlock: Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	<b>Both</b> (during a period of limited driving privileges, based upon the facts of the case). OH ST § 4510.13.	
Conditions of Use:	The court may require any offender to operate only a mo- tor vehicle equipped with an ignition interlock device. OH ST § 2951.02(C); OH ST § 4510.13.	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted State v. Bauer, 651 N.E.2d 46 (Ohio App. 10 Dist. 1994).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	YesAggravated Vehicular Homicide (felony)OH ST § 2903.06(A)(1)(a).Involuntary Manslaughter (felony)OH ST § 2903.04Aggravated Vehicular Homicide Specification (mandatory prison time)OH ST § 2929.142.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:	Aggreveted Vehicular Hamieida	
Imprisonment (Term):	Aggravated Vehicular HomicideFirst offense $(2^{nd} \text{ degree felony}) - 2 \text{ to } 8 \text{ years}$ and may befined not more than \$15,000;Subsequent offense $(1^{st} \text{ degree felony}) - 3 \text{ to } 10 \text{ years}$ andmay be fined not more than \$20,000.	
	OH ST § 2929.14; OH ST § 2929.142; OH ST § 2929.18.	

#### **Involuntary Manslaughter** First offense $(3^{rd} \text{ degree felony}) - 1$ to 5 years (mand); Subsequent offense $(1^{st} \text{ degree felony}) - 3 \text{ to } 10 \text{ years}$ (mand). OH ST § 2903.04 **Aggravated Vehicular Homicide Specification** (offender has 3 or more OVI convictions within 6 years, or 2 more felony OVI convictions) – 10 to 15 years. OH ST § 2929.142. Mandatory Minimum Term: An offender who commits a subsequent offense, or who commits aggravated vehicular homicide while his license is suspended must serve mandatory time. Administrative Licensing Action: Licensing Authorized and Type of Suspension Action: OH ST § 2903.04; OH ST § 2903.06(B)(2)(d); OH ST § 4510.02. Length of Term of Licensing For life Withdrawal: OH ST § 4510.02. Mandatory Action—Minimum Length Life suspension is mandatory. of License Withdrawal: Other<sup>.</sup> License Plate Impoundment: A vehicle's license plates may be impounded if the owner thereof has had their driver's license either suspended or revoked for any deathrelated vehicle offenses. OH ST § 4507.164(A). DWI (OVI) Offenses and Commercial A person is "disgualified" from operating a CMV for 1 Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous mate-Driver's Licenses (CDL): rials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of a controlled substance; (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for the presence of either alcohol or controlled substances; or (4) violates an "out-of-service" order. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the "disqualification" is for life (or for any other period as specified by Federal regulations). A violation of any of these items appears to be a first degree misdemeanor; the sanctions for such a misdemeanor are an imprisonment for not more than 6 months and/or a fine of not more than \$1,000. In addition, a CMV operator who has any "measurable" or "detectable" amount of alcohol or a controlled substance in the system must be placed "out-of-service" for 24 hours. Under separate provisions of law, no person shall operate

	a CMV while alertness is impaired; such impairment in- cludes the use of any drug that would adversely affect such alertness or ability to operate a CMV. The sanctions for violating this prohibition are for a first offense (minor misdemeanor) a fine of not more than \$100 and for a second offense (fourth degree misdemeanor) jail for not more than 30 days and/or a fine of not more than \$250. OH ST § 2929.21; OH ST § 4506.01; OH ST § 4506.15; OH ST § 4506.16(A), (B); OH ST § 4506.17(A); OH ST § 4511.79; OH ST § 4511.99(C).	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term):	First offense (first degree misdemeanor) – Not more than 6months and not less than \$250 or more than \$1,000;Second offense (within 6 years – first degree misdemeanor) – Not less than 10 consecutive days or more than 1year and not less than \$500 or more than \$2,500;Third or subsequent offense (within 6 years – unclassified misdemeanor) – Not less than 30 consecutive days or more than \$500 or more than \$500 or more than \$500 or more than \$500 or more than \$2,500;More than 1 year and not less than \$500 or more than	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense – 3 consecutive days/\$250 (Alternative: 30consecutive days of electronically monitored house arrest);Second offense (within 5 years) – 10 consecutive days(Alternative: 90 consecutive days of "house arrest" withelectronic monitoring.)/\$500;Third and subsequent offense (within 5 years) – 30 consecutive days/\$500 (electronically monitored house arrest not available).	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension OH ST § 4510.14(E).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	Not more than 1 year OH ST § 4510.02(A).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	A mandatory period is not specified. However, a definite term of suspension must be applied.	
Other:	First offense– Immobilization of vehicle for 30 days and impoundment of license plates for 30 days;Second offense– Immobilization of vehicle for 60 days and impoundment of license plates for 60 days;Third or subsequent offense– Criminal forfeiture or a fine of up to the value of the vehicle.OH ST § 4510.14.	

Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	State registry of habitual offenders. OH ST § 5502.10.	
Olici State Laws Related TO Arconor Ose.	State registry of national offenders. Off 51 § 5502.10.	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes OH ST § 313.13.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes OH ST § 313.13.	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> OH ST § 4301.22(A)(1); OH ST § 4301.63; OH ST §	
Sale/Purchase:	4301.69.	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> OH ST § 4301.69.	
Possession/Consumption:		
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
	×7	
State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes	
(Yes/No): "Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	OH ST § 4399.02; OH ST § 4399.18. No <sup>513</sup>	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	110	
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes Limited to underage persons only	
	Mitseff v. Wheeler, 526 N.E.2d 798 (Ohio 1988).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	No parent, spouse who is not an under aged person, or le-	
	gal guardian of a minor shall knowingly permit the minor	
	to purchase or consume alcohol. Such person may be found guilty of a 1 <sup>st</sup> degree misdemeanor, punishable by	
	not more than 6 months and not more than \$1,000. OH ST	
	§ 4301.69(F); OH ST § 4301.99(C).	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>513</sup> However, for social host liability, there has been a change to the common law rule by actions of the court. *See Huston v. Konieczny*, 556 N.E.2d 505 (Ohio 1990).

Type of Criminal Action:	Third Degree Misdemeanor	,
	OH ST § 4301.22(B); OH ST § 4301.99(D).	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>60 days</b> and not more than <b>\$500</b> . OH ST § 2929.21.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes           Revocation/Suspension <sup>514</sup> OH ST § 4301.25; OH ST § 4301.27.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Indeterminate	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>Under OH ST § 4301.69(A)</u> : Not less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> and may be imprisoned for not more than <b>6 months</b> . OH ST § 4301.99(I).	
	Under OH ST § 4301.22(A):Not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000 and may be imprisoned for not more than 60 days. OH ST § 4301.99(H).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes           Revocation/Suspension           OH ST § 4301.25; OH ST § 4301.27.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Indeterminate	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> OH ADC 4301:1-1-50 <sup>515</sup>	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>514</sup> For a first or second offense (within 2 years), a monetary forfeiture maybe imposed in lieu of a suspension: <u>first violation</u> – \$100 to \$200 for each day of the suspension; <u>second violation</u> – \$200 to \$400 for each day of the violation. OH ST § 4301.252. <sup>515</sup> This regulation prohibits the sale of alcoholic beverages (1) in unlimited number of servings "during a set period of time for a fixed price" or (2) after 9:00 p.m. "at a price less than those charged to other patrons."

#### OHIO

Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes OH ST § 4301.62(B)(4), (5).	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OH ST § 4301.64.	

STATE	OKLAHOMA	
General Reference:	Oklahoma Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	I. Under the influence of alcoholOK ST TI 47 § 11-902(A)(2).II. Impaired by the consumption of alcohol (driving while impaired)impaired)OK ST TI 47 § 761(A).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{516}$ OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(A)(1) <u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> – Any measurable quantity of alcohol in the blood or breath. OK ST TI 47 § 11- 906.4(A).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	<ul> <li>I. Under the influence of intoxicating substances or a combination of these and alcohol.</li> <li>OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(A)(3), (4).</li> <li>II. Impaired by any other substance.</li> <li>OK ST TI 47 § 761(A).</li> <li>III. Persons Under 21 Years Old – Under the influence of any other intoxicating substance or a combination of alcohol and any other intoxicating substance.</li> <li>OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4(A).</li> </ul>	
Other:	<ul> <li>I. A BAC/BrAC ≥.08 is <i>prima facie</i> evidence that a person was under the influence of alcohol. OK ST TI 47 § 756(A)(3).</li> <li>II. A BAC/BrAC &gt;.05 but &lt;.08 is "relevant evidence" of Driving While Impaired. OK ST TI 47 § 756(A)(2).</li> <li>III. Any measurable quantity of alcohol is <i>prima facie</i> evidence that a person &lt; 21 years old violated the DWI law. OK ST TI 47§ 756(A).</li> </ul>	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
<u>concentration</u> .		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes OK ST TI 47 § 751	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OK ST TI 47 § 751(A)	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OK ST TI 47 § 751(A)	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal Cases) OK ST TI 47 § 756(A)	
Other Information:	I. A mandatory chemical test may be ordered in situations where there is probable cause that a person while intox- icated has operated a motor vehicle and that such opera- tion has caused either death or serious physical injury to	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>516</sup> Alcohol concentration is defined as grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. OK ST TI 47 § 756(B).

	another person. OK ST TI 47 § 753. II. A mandatory chemical test for alcohol/drugs may be ordered in traffic accident situations where the driver (per- son to be tested) has been cited for a traffic offense. OK ST TI 47 § 10-104(B).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes OK ST TI 47 § 751(A)	
Urine:	Yes OK ST TI 47 § 751(Å)	
Other:	Saliva OK ST TI 47 § 751(A)	
Adjudication of DUI and DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes	
(Yes/No):	OK ST TI 47 § 761(D); OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(G).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a         Chemical Test:         Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath         Test:         Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u>		
Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First refusal – Revocation 180 days;517Second refusal (within 10 years) – Revocation 1 year(mand);Subsequent refusal (within 10 years) – Revocation 3years (mandatory).OK ST TI 47 § 6-205.1; OK ST TI 47 § 753; OK ST TI 47§ 754.1; OK ST TI 47 § 755.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DUI or DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>Driving While Impaired</b> : Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> . OK ST TI 47 §	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>517</sup> License revocation may be modified upon a showing that no other adequate means of transportation exists. As a condition of modification, the driver must agree, except in certain circumstances, to only operate motor vehicles that are equipped with an ignition interlock device. OK ST TI 47 § 754.1(B); OK ST TI 47 § 755.

	761.
	Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:
	<u>First conviction</u> (misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>10 days</b> or
	more than 1 year and not more than \$1,000;
	<u>Second conviction</u> (within 10 years) (felony) – Not less
	than 1 year or more than 5 years and not more than
	\$2,500;
	<u>Third conviction</u> (within 10 years) (felony) – Not less than
	1 year or more than 10 years and not more than \$5,000;
	Fourth and subsequent conviction (within 10 years) (felo-
	(ny) - Not less than 1 year or more than 20 years and not
	more than <b>\$5,000</b> .
	OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(C)(4).
	DUI – Personal Injury:
	First conviction (misdemeanor) – Not less than 90 days or
	more than 1 year and not more than \$2,500;
	Second or subsequent conviction (felony) – Not less than 1
	year or more than 5 years and not more than \$5,000
	OK ST TI 47 § 11-904(A).
	<b>DUI – Great Bodily Injury</b> (felony): Not less than <b>1 year</b>
	or more than <b>5 years</b> and not more than $$5,000$ .
	OK ST TI 47 § 11-904(B).
	Persons Under 21 Years Old
	<b>Persons Under 21 Years Old:</b> First conviction – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> .
	<u>First conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ;
	<u>First conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than
	<u>First conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ;
	<u>First conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or
	<u>First conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ;
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	<u>First conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$2,000</b> .
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 10 days jail.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 10 days jail.         DUI – Personal Injury:
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 10 days jail.         DUI – Personal Injury:         First conviction – 90 days;
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 10 days jail.         DUI – Personal Injury:
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 10 days jail.         DUI – Personal Injury:         First conviction – 90 days;
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 10 days jail.         DUI – Personal Injury:         First conviction – 90 days;         Second conviction – 1 year.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 10 days jail.         DUI – Personal Injury:         First conviction – 1 year.         DUI – Great Bodily Injury:         First conviction – 1 year.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	First conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500;         Second conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than \$100 or more than \$2,000.         OK ST TI 47 § 11-906.4.         Driving While Impaired: None         Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         Second conviction – 5 days jail (or 5 days inpatient treatment);         Third conviction – 10 days jail (or 10 days inpatient treatment);         Fourth or subsequent conviction – 10 days jail.         DUI – Personal Injury:         First conviction – 1 year.         DUI – Great Bodily Injury:

Community Service:	Driving Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:
	<u>Third conviction</u> – <b>240 hours</b> ;
	Fourth or subsequent conviction – 480 hours.
	A fine cannot be imposed in lieu of community service. OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(C), (K).
	Aggravated DUI: 480 hours OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(D).
	Community service may be ordered under OK ST TI 22 § 991a(A)(1)(c).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes The court may order a defendant to pay restitution to a victim. OK ST TI 22 § 991a(A)(1)(a); OK ST TI 22 § 991f.
Other:	Aggravated DUI (BAC $\geq$ .15): In addition to any other penalty, a defendant shall participate in an assessment and evaluation and shall comply with all recommendations for treatment. Such person shall be sentenced to not less than 1 year of supervision and periodic testing at his own ex- pense. OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(D).
	<b>Child Endangerment</b> : Any person age 18 or older who violates a DUI law while transporting or having any child less than 18 years old shall be subject to an enhanced penalty in the form of a doubled fine. Said driver may also be prosecuted for Felony Child Endangerment. OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(M); OK ST TI 21 § 852.1.
	Assessment Fee: In addition to any other penalty, the court shall order a \$100 assessment to be deposited into the Drug Abuse Education and Treatment Revolving Fund. OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(L).
	Victims Impact Panel: Any person may be required to attend a victims impact panel program, and to pay a fee of not less than \$15 or more than \$25. OK ST TI 47 § 11- 902(H).
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Dro. DIII Conviction Licensing Action	
Pre- DUI Conviction Licensing Action: Administrative Per Se Law:	BAC ≥ .08 / Any measurable quantity of alcohol in blood/breath (for persons under 21): <u>First offense</u> – Revocation 180 days (may be modified); <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 1 year (may be modified); <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 3 years (may be modified). OK ST TI 47 § 6-205.1; OK ST TI 47 § 754.

Post DUI and DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	Driving While Impaired <u>First offense</u> – Suspension 30 days; <u>Second offense</u> – Suspension 6 months; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – Suspension 12 months. OK ST TI 47 § 761(B).	
	Driving While Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se: <u>First offense</u> – Revocation 180 days; <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 1 year; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 3 years. OK ST TI 47 § 6-205; OK ST TI 47 § 6-205.1.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	Driving While Impaired:         first offense – None;         second offense – 6 months;         third offense – 12 months. OK ST TI 47 § 761.         Driving While Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se:         First offense – None (licensing action may be modified) <sup>5</sup>	
Others	Second offense       - 1 year (may be modified);         Subsequent offense       - 3 years (may be modified).         OK ST TI 47 § 6-205.1.	
Other: Rehabilitation:		
Alcohol Education:	Yes         A first offender must successfully complete this course before license can be reinstated.         OK ST TI 22 § 991a(A)(1)(p), (A)(7);         OK ST TI 47 § 6-212.2.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes The court may order first offenders and shall order subse- quent offenders (all types of DUI offenses within 10 years) to participate in alcohol or drug rehabilitation treatment programs. OK ST TI 22 § 991a(A)(6); OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(G)(J).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Forfeiture	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	A subsequent DUI offender's vehicle may be subject to forfeiture. <sup>518</sup> OK ST TI 47 § 11-902b.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>518</sup> If a person's vehicle is involved in one of the offenses noted, it <u>may</u> be subject to forfeiture provided: (1) the person has been convicted of driving while under the influence/illegal per se, vehicle negligent homicide, or a DUI injury-related offense and has a prior conviction for one of these offenses (within 10 years); and (2) one of the offenses, either present or prior, must have involved

Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	Any person having ownership or a security interest in the	
Released:	vehicle may file a written objection.	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included	Electronic Home Monitoring: A person who has been	
Elsewhere:	convicted of a <u>felony</u> offense may be subject to court-	
Elsewhere.		
	ordered electronic home monitoring. OK ST TI 22 §	
	991a(A)(1)(o), (A)(7)(e); OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(I).	
	Other Caster A defendent may be required to new other	
	<b>Other Costs</b> : A defendant may be required to pay other	
	costs such as reimbursing the State for the cost of a vic-	
	tim's medical expenses and for the cost of court appointed	
	attorneys for the defendant. OK ST TI 22 § 991a(A).	
	Investigation Costs: The defendent may be required by	
	Investigation Costs: The defendant may be required by	
	the court to reimburse the Oklahoma State Bureau of In-	
	vestigation for any services that were associated with the	
	defendant's criminal offense. There is an exception based	
	on "manifest hardship" to the defendant. OK ST TI 22 §	
	991a (A)(4).	
т <sup>1</sup> / <sup>1</sup> т, 1 1		
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory/Permissive Permissive:	
Conditions of Use:	The court may order a defendant to install an ignition interlock device on	
	every vehicle used following reinstatement of driving privileges. This	
	requirement shall remain in effect for a period of time as the court deems	
	proper, but not more than 2 years. OK ST TI 22 § 991a(A)(1)(n),	
	(A)(7)(d).	
	Mandatory:	
	I. As a condition of license modification for an admin per se violation or a	
	DUI conviction, the licensing agency must require persons to install igni-	
	tion interlock devices on the vehicles they operate. OK ST TI 47 § 754.1.	
	II. Driving While Under the Influence/Illegal Per Se Convictions:	
	Fourth or subsequent conviction – A minimum of 30 days. OK ST TI 47	
	§ 11-902(C)(4).	
	III A serie of a DUI Constant of the series of 20 days OV OT THAT S	
	III. Aggravated DUI Conviction: A minimum of 30 days. OK ST TI 47 § 11-902(D).	
	IV. As a condition of reinstatement of driving privileges and restricted	
	license, installation of an ignition interlock device shall be for:	
	A second or subsequent offender convicted within 5 years of a previous conviction – 6 months;	
	An offender deemed to be an excessive user of alcohol $-12$ months. <sup>519</sup>	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> Geopfert v. State ex rel. Dept. of Public Safety,	
	884 P.2d 1218 (Okl.App. 1994).	

either an injury or a death to another person. OK ST TI 47 § 11-902b.

<sup>519</sup> These terms shall run concurrent with a court order, if any, pursuant to conviction. OK ST TI 47 § 6-212.3(D).

ther Criminal Actions Related to DUI and	
<u>WI</u> :	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Negligent Homicide OK ST TI 47 § 11-903.
Sanctions:	Č
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> in the county jail and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> .
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	\$100
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Revocation
Action:	OK ST TI 47 § 6-205(A)(1).
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – 1 year; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) – 3 years. OK ST TI 47 § 6-205(A)(1), (B), (C).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	The terms above are mandatory.
DUI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if that person is convicted of driving a CMV: (1) with a BAC $\geq$ .04 (amount of alcohol in the blood; or (2) while under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance; or (3) refusing to submit to a chemical test. For a subsequent conviction or a combination of two or more convictions of any of the above-listed items, the "disqualification" is for life (10 years mand). OK ST TI 47 § 6-205.2.
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DUI Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	Misdemeanor
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First conviction– Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000;Second conviction– Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$1,000 or more than \$2,000;Third or subsequent conviction– Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$2,000 or more than \$5,000.OK ST TI 47 § 6-303(C).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	The fines listed above appear to be mandatory.
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> OK ST TI 47 § 6-303(E).

Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	Period of revocation extended for 4 months OK ST TI 47 § 6-303(E).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	This term appears to be mandatory.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> OK ST TI 37 § 163.2(a); OK ST TI 37 § 241; OK ST TI 37 § 246(A); OK ST TI 37 § 537(A)(1).	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> OK ST TI 21 § 1215; OK ST TI 37 § 241; OK ST TI 37 § 246(A).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes Brigance v. Velvet Dove Restaurant, Inc., 725 P.2d 300 (Okl. 1986).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	Yes Brigance v. The Velvet Dove Restaurant, 725 P.2d 300 (Okl. 1986).	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> <i>Troxell v. Bingham</i> , 774 P.2d 1073 (Okl.App. 1989); <i>Teel v. Warren</i> , 22 P.3d 234 (Okla.Civ.App. Div 1 2001).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who serves or gives alcohol to a minor may be found guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$1,000, for a first of- fense. For a second or subsequent offense such person shall be found guilty of a felony, punishable by not more than 3 years and/or not more than \$5,000. OK ST TI 21 § 856; OK ST TI 21 § 858.3.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	For alcoholic beverages 3.2 percent and above – Felony;For low-point beer ½ of 1 percent to 3.2 percent alcohol –Misdemeanor.	

#### OKLAHOMA

	OK ST TI 37 § 247; OK ST TI 37 § 506(3); OK ST TI 37 § 537(A)(2); OK ST TI 37 § 538(G).	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Alcoholic Beverages – Not more than 1year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000. OK ST TI 37 § 538(G).	
	Low-point Beer: Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$500. OK ST TI 37 § 247.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <b>Revocation</b> OK ST TI 37 § 247; OK ST TI 37 § 528.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Alcoholic beverages: Revocation (unspecified). OK ST TI 37 § 528(D).	
	<b>Low-point Beer</b> : No provisions found involving suspension or revocation of license with regard to serving intoxicated patrons.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	For alcoholic beverages 3.2 percent and above – Felony; For low-point beer ½ of 1 percent to 3.2 percent alcohol – Misdemeanor.	
	OK ST TI 21 § 9; OK ST TI 21 § 10; OK ST TI 21 § 21; OK ST TI 37 § 163.1; OK ST TI 37 § 163.2; OK ST TI 37 § 163.20(a); OK ST TI 37 § 241; OK ST TI 37 § 537(A)(1); OK ST TI 37 § 538(F).	
Term of Imprisonment:	Alcoholic Beverages – Not more than 5 years and/or not less than \$2,500 or more than \$5,000. OK ST TI 37 § 538(F).	
	Low-point Beer: <u>First violation</u> (misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> ; <u>Second violation</u> (within 1 year) (misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> ; <u>Third violation</u> (within 1 year of the 1 <sup>st</sup> ) (felony) – Not more than 5 years and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> .	

	OV ST TI 27 S 241(D)	
	OK ST TI 37 § 241(D).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension/Revocation	
	OK ST TI 37 § 244; OK ST TI 37 § 528.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	For alcoholic beverages: Revocation (unspecified). OK	
	ST TI 37 § 528(D).	
	51 1157 3 526(2).	
	For low-point beer:	
	<u>First conviction</u> – Suspension not more than 30 days;	
	Second conviction (within 24 months) – Suspension 30	
	<b>days</b> (mand) if both violations by same employee or of an	
	egregious nature; Third conviction (within 24 months) Suprometice 20	
	Third conviction (within 24 months) – Suspension 30	
	days (mand), or 180 days (if all 3 were by same em-	
	ployee);	
	Fourth or subsequent conviction (within 24 months) – Re-	
	vocation (mandatory) (duration not specified).	
	OK ST TI 37 § 244.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> OK ST TI 37 § 537(B)(4).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes OK ST TI 21 § 1220; OK ST TI 37 § 537(A)(7)	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes OK ST TI 37 § 8.	

STATE	OREGON	
General Reference:	Oregon Revised Statutes	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor OR ST § 813.010(1)(b).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{520}$ OR ST § 813.010(1)(a).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	Not less than <b>.08</b> constitutes being under the influence of intoxicating liquor. OR ST § 813.300(2).	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of a controlled substance, an inha- lant <sup>521</sup> or any combination of intoxicating liquor, an inha- lant and a controlled substance. OR ST § 813.010(1)(b), (c).	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes OR ST § 813.131	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OR ST § 813.100; OR ST § 813.131.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OR ST § 813.131.	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases) OR ST § 813.310.	
Other Information:	There is also an implied consent law on field sobriety test- ing. Evidence of refusal to submit to a field sobriety test is admissible in any criminal or civil proceeding arising out of the allegations. OR ST § 813.135; OR ST § 813.136.	
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> – Limited to: (1) when a driver expressly consents to the taking of the sample; (2) when a driver is receiving medical care in a health facility immediately after a motor vehicle accident; or (3) when a driver is unconscious, or otherwise in a condition rendering him incapable of expressly consenting. OR ST § 813.100; OR ST § 813.140.	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> – Limited to when a breath test discloses a BAC of less than .08 or when such person has been in an accident. Additionally, prior to asking for urine, an officer must have reasonable suspicion to believe the person is under the influence of a controlled substance. OR ST § 813.131.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>520</sup> Standard: "Percent by weight" of alcohol is to be based on grams of alcohol per 100 cubic centimeters of blood. OR ST §

 $<sup>^{521}</sup>$  An inhalant means any glue, paint, cement or other substance that is capable of causing intoxication and that contains one or more of the chemical compounds listed in OR ST § 810.317.

Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> A person charged with DWI shall not be allowed to plead guilty or no contest to any other offense in exchange for a dismissal of the offense charged. OR ST § 813.170.	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	At least <b>\$500</b> and not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . OR ST § 813.095(2); OR ST § 813.130(2)(f).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension – 1 year if no previous suspensions for a test refusal or a DWI offense (90 days are mandatory). Sus- pension – 3 years for a previous test refusal or a previous DWI offense/admin per se violation based license suspen- sion within 5 years (1 year mand). OR ST § 813.100; OR ST § 813.130; OR ST § 813.132; OR ST § 813.410; OR ST § 813.420; OR ST § 813.430; OR ST § 813.520.	
Other:	Consecutive license suspensions for refusals to submit to both breath and urine tests. OR ST § 813.132.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense (Class A misdemeanor) – Not more than 1year and not less than \$1,000;Second offense (Class A misdemeanor) – Not more than 1year and not less than \$1,500;Third or subsequent offense (Class A misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year or not less than \$2,000 (if no imprisonment);Fourth offense (within 10 years) (Class C felony) – Not more than 5 years or not less than \$2,000 (if no imprisonment).OR ST § 161.605; OR ST § 813.010(4), (5).	

Mandatory Minimum Term:	Assault in the 4 <sup>th</sup> Degree (physical injury <sup>522</sup> ) (Class A misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than\$6,250. OR ST § 161.615; OR ST § 161.635; OR ST § 163.160.Assault in the 3 <sup>rd</sup> Degree (serious physical injury <sup>523</sup> ) (Class B felony) – Not more than 10 years and/or not more than\$250,000. OR ST § 161.605; OR ST § 161.625; OR ST § 163.165(2).All offenses – 48 consecutive hours <sup>524</sup> and a fine, as listed
	above. OR ST § 813.020(2).
Other Penalties: Community Service:	All offenses – Not less than <b>80 hours</b> or more than <b>250</b> <b>hours</b> (as an alternative to imprisonment). OR ST § 813.020(2); OR ST § 137.129(4).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes Direct compensation to victims by the defendant. OR ST § 137.106. Also a victims' compensation fund is available. OR ST §147.005 <i>et seq</i> .
Other:	<ul> <li>A \$130 fee is charged in addition to any fine imposed. The court may waive this fee in whole or in part for indigent defendants. OR ST § 813.020(1)(a); OR ST § 813.030.</li> <li>BAC ≥ .15: A minimum of \$2,000 shall be imposed. OR ST § 813.010(6)(d).</li> <li>Unitary Assessment: \$97. OR ST § 137.290(1)(c).</li> <li>County Assessment: In addition to and which is based on the amount of fine an offender has to pay. The assessment varies in amount but is not more than \$66. OR ST § 137.309.</li> <li>Diagnostic Assessment Fee: There is a diagnostic assessment fee of \$150. OR ST § 813.020(1)(b); OR ST § 813.240(2).</li> <li>Victim Impact Program: A DWI offender may be required to attend a victim impact treatment session. The offender may be required to pay a fee of not less than \$5 or more than \$50 to offset the cost of this program. OR ST § 813.020(3).</li> </ul>

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>522</sup> Physical injury means impairment of physical condition or substantial pain. OR ST § 161.015(7).
 <sup>523</sup> Serious physical injury means physical injury which creates a substantial risk of death or which causes serious and protracted disfigurement, protracted impairment of health or protracted loss or impairment of the function of any bodily organ. OR ST § 161.015(8).  $^{524}$  This term must be served unless justice requires otherwise. The court must state the reasons why the mandatory imprisonment

term cannot be served consecutively. OR ST § 813.020. For the purpose of the minimum period of incarceration, imprisonment includes a jail, minimum security facility or inpatient rehabilitation or treatment center. OR ST § 813.020(2).

	809.411(10)(d). <u>Assault in the 3<sup>rd</sup> Degree</u> – Suspension 5 years. OR ST §	
	Assault in the 4 <sup>th</sup> Degree – Suspension 1 year. OR ST §	
	<b>Permanent revocation</b> . OR ST § 809.235; OR ST § 809.428; OR ST § 813.400.	
	Fourth conviction (with 3 prior offenses within 10 years) –	
Years, etc.):	<u>Second conviction</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Suspension 3 years</b> ; <u>Third conviction</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Suspension 3 years</b> ;	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	First conviction – Suspension 1 year;	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation OR ST § 809.428; OR ST § 813.400.	
Licensing Action:		
Post DWI Conviction:		
	vious suspension for a chemical test ferusal, an admin per se violation, or a DWI offense within 5 years. OR ST § 813.100(4); OR ST § 813.130; OR ST § 813.300(2), (3); OR ST § 813.410; OR ST § 813.420; OR ST § 813.430; OR ST § 813.520.	
	per se violation, or a DWI offense. <b>Suspension – 1 year</b> (mandatory) if there has been a pre- vious suspension for a chemical test refusal, an admin per	
Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.08 (Any BAC for persons under 21 years old) Suspension – 90 days (30 days mand) if there has been no previous suspension for a chemical test refusal, an admin	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
	mum fine for a felony offense. OR ST § 811.230; OR ST § 811.235.	
	<b>School and Work Zone</b> : If the offense occurred in a school or work zone, there is a <b>minimum mandatory</b> fine which is equal to: (1) <b>20 percent</b> of the maximum fine for a misdemeanor offense; and (2) <b>2 percent</b> of the maxi-	
	<b>No Deferred Proceedings</b> : A person who has been found guilty of or who pleads guilty to a DWI offense cannot be placed on probation and have the judgment of guilt not entered on the record via a deferred proceeding. OR ST § 137.533.	
	ical care and incarceration. OR ST § 169.150; OR ST § 169.151.	
	<b>Incarceration and Medical Costs</b> : A city or county may seek reimbursement from an offender for the costs of med-	

	809.411(10)(c).
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<u>First offense</u> – <b>30 days</b> ;
Withdrawal:	Second offense (within 5 years) – 90 days;
	Third or subsequent offenses (within 5 years) - perma-
	nent revocation (a petition for restoration of the driving
	privilege may be filed with District Court 10 years after
	release on parole or post-prison supervision). OR ST §
0.1	809.235(2)(a).
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	Yes
Alcohol Education: Alcohol Treatment:	Yes
Alconol Heatment.	I. An intoxicated offender must complete an appropriate
	treatment program for alcoholism or drug dependency.
	This requirement impacts an offender's eligibility for a
	hardship permit. This could include an alcohol/drug edu-
	cation program. OR ST § 813.020(1)(b); OR ST §
	813.021; OR ST § 813.500.
	II. Second or subsequent offenders may be issued a re-
	stricted hardship license only on the condition that they
	complete an alcohol/drug assessment, and, if required,
	enroll in an alcohol/drug rehabilitation program. Howev-
	er, if an assessment indicates that they are not required to
	participate in a rehabilitation program, they must enter an
	alcohol/drug information program as a condition for ob-
	taining restricted hardship driving privileges. OR ST §
	813.500.
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment / Immobilization
Authorized by Specific Statutory	I A court movierdor a motor vichiala impounded ar immo
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	I. A court may order a motor vehicle impounded or immo- bilized upon conviction for a second or subsequent DWI
Authority.	offense. This shall last not more than 1 year.
	OR ST § 809.700.
	II. A police officer may impound a motor vehicle if he has
	probably cause of a DWI offense or driving on a sus-
	pended/revoked license. OR ST § 809.720.
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	I. A vehicle shall be released upon payment of the costs of
Released:	removing, storing or immobilizing the vehicle.
	OR ST § 809.700(6).
	II. A vehicle shall be released only upon proof of valid
	driving privileges, proof of financial responsibility and
	payment of any fees associated with the impoundment.
	OR ST § 809.720.
tion Interlock:	
tion Interlock: Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
ition Interlock: Permitted or Prohibited: Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permitted Mandatory

	<ul> <li>Transportation shall require that an ignition interlock device be installed and used in any vehicle by that person before such person is eligible for a hardship permit and for the duration of a hardship permit.</li> <li><u>First conviction</u> – 1 year after the ending date of suspension or revocation resulting from conviction; <u>Second or subsequent conviction</u> – 2 years after the ending date of suspension or revocation resulting from conviction.</li> <li>Such person must provide proof of installation. Failure to submit proof extends the suspension or revocation period for 1 year (first conviction) or 2 years (second or subsequent conviction).</li> <li>OR ST § 813.602.</li> </ul>	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Prohibited</b> <i>State v. Boyanovsky</i> , 743 P.2d 711 (Or. 1987).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes First Degree Manslaughter OR ST § 163.118. Second Degree Manslaughter OR ST § 163.125. Criminally Negligent Homicide OR ST 163.145. Aggravated Vehicular Homicide (subsequent offense) OR ST § 163.149.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First Degree Manslaughter: 10 yearsSecond Degree Manslaughter: 75 monthsCriminally Negligent Homicide:First offense (Class B felony) – Not more than 10 yearsand/or not more than \$250,000. OR ST § 161.605; OR ST§ 161.625.Aggravated Vehicular Homicide:Subsequent offense (Class A felony) – Not more than 20years and/or not more than \$375,000. OR ST § 161.605;OD ST § 1(1.625)	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	OR ST § 161.625.First and second degree manslaughter and aggravated vehicular homicide are Measure 11 mandatory sentencecrimes which carry mandatory sentences as listed above.OR ST § 163.147 classifies second degree manslaughterand criminally negligent homicide when the result wasfrom operating a motor vehicle under the influence of al-cohol/intoxicants, as "crime category 9" of the sentencing	

	guidelines grid. The sentence received will depend on the	
	offender's criminal history.	
Administrative Licensing Action:	<b>Revocation</b> OR ST § 809.409(2).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>10 years</b> OR ST § 809.409(2).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>5 years</b> OR ST § 809.409(3).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC/UrAC ≥.04; (2) is under the influence of a controlled substance; (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for the presence of either alcohol or controlled sub- stances; or (4) violates an out-of-service order. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the dis-	
	<ul> <li>more violations of any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is for life (10 years mand).</li> <li>If a police officer has reasonable grounds to believe that a CMV operator has consumed alcohol or other intoxicating beverage within 4 hours prior to the time the operator began operating the vehicle, then he shall be able to issue an out-of-service order which shall remain in effect for 24 hours. A violation also carries a civil penalty of not less than \$2,500 for the first violation and \$5,000 for the second or subsequent violation.</li> <li>OR ST § 809.404; OR ST § 809.413; OR ST § 813.050; OR ST § 813.055</li> </ul>	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Class A Misdemeanor – Not more than 1 year and at least \$1,000 (first offense); at least \$2,000 (second or sub- sequent offense) but not more than \$6,250. OR ST § 161.615; OR ST § 811.182(4).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offense - \$1,000	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Second offense - \$2,000	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Other:	It is a Class B felony if the license is suspended/revoked as a result of any murder, manslaughter, criminally negligent homicide or assault resulting from a motor vehicle, or ag- gravated vehicular homicide or felony DWI. This is pu-	

#### OREGON

	nishable by not more than <b>10 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$250,000</b> . OR ST § 161.605; OR ST § 161.625; OR ST § 811.182(3).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OR ST § 809.600 <i>et seq.</i>	
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	(1) Three serious traffic offenses (within 5 years); or (2) A combination of 20 minor and serious traffic offenses (within 5 years). <sup>525</sup> OR ST § 809.600.	
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>5 years</b> <b>Note</b> : A one-year probationary and renewable permit is available if certain conditions are met. OR ST § 807.270; OR ST § 809.650.	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	Class A misdemeanor OR ST § 811.182(4)(g).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and at least <b>\$1,000</b> (first offense); at least <b>\$2,000</b> (second or subsequent offense) but not more than <b>\$6,250</b> . OR ST § 161.615; OR ST § 811.182(4).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offense - \$1,000	
Imprisonment:	Second offense - \$2,000	
Licensing Actions (Specify):	N/A	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OR ST § 146.113.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes If over 13 years of age and within 5 hours of accident	
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes If over 13 years of age and within 5 hours of accident	
Pedestrian:	Yes If over 13 years of age and within 5 hours of accident	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> OR ST § 471.410; OR ST § 471.430.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> Exception for the possession of an alcoholic beverage in a private residence accompanied by or with the consent	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>525</sup> Serious traffic offenses include manslaughter, DWI, driving on a suspended/revoked license, aggravated vehicular homicide. OR ST § 809.600.

#### OREGON

	of a parent or for religious purposes. OR ST § 471.410; OR ST § 471.430.
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OR ST § 471.565(2); OR ST § 471.567.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Yes</b> OR ST § 471.565(2); OR ST § 471.567.
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	No person who exercises control over private real property may knowingly allow any other person under age 21 (who is not a child of such person) to remain on such property if the child consumes alcoholic liquor. Such act is a viola- tion and punishable by: <u>First conviction</u> - \$350; <u>Second or subsequent conviction</u> - \$1,000. OR ST § 471.410(3), (7).
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :	
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Class A Misdemeanor</b> <sup>526</sup> OR ST § 471.410(1), (4).
Imprisonment/Fine:	First conviction – Not more than 1 year and \$350;         Second conviction – Not more than 1 year and \$1,000;         Third or subsequent conviction – Not less than 30 days or more than 1 year and \$1,000.         OR ST § 161.615; OR ST § 471.410(4).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of	
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic	
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Cancellation/Suspension/Civil Penalty OR ST § 471.315(1)(a)(G).
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute. However, if the license is suspended for 30 days or less, a civil penalty may be im- posed in lieu or in addition to the suspension. Such penal- ty shall not be less than \$100 or more than \$5,000. OR ST

 $<sup>^{526}</sup>$  It is a Class A Misdemeanor for a licensee to knowingly allow a patron to consume or to continue to consume alcoholic beverages if visibly intoxicated. However, for the first 3 violations within 2 years, the only sanction is a letter of reprimand. OR ST § 471.412(4).

	§ 471.322.	
<u>Criminal Actions Against Owners or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under</u> <u>the Minimum Legal Drinking Age</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor OR ST § 471.410(2), (4).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First conviction</u> – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and <b>\$350</b> ; <u>Second conviction</u> – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and <b>\$1,000</b> . OR ST § 161.615; OR ST § 471.410(4).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Cancellation/Suspension/Civil Penalty OR ST § 471.315(1)(a)(G).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute. However, if the license is suspended for 30 days or less, a civil penalty may be im- posed in lieu or in addition to the suspension. Such penal- ty shall not be less than \$100 or more than \$5,000. OR ST § 471.322.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> OR ST § 811.170(1).	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes OR ST § 811.170(1).	

STATE	PENNSYLVANIA	
General Reference:	Pennsylvania Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense: <sup>527</sup>	General impairment – Imbibing a sufficient amount of al- cohol such that the individual is rendered incapable of safely driving. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(a)(1).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	≥ .08 <sup>528</sup> 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(a)(2); High rate of alcohol – ≥ .10 but < .16 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(b); Highest rate of alcohol – ≥ .16 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(c); Persons Under 21 Years Old – ≥ .02 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(e); School buses ≥ .02 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(f)(1)(ii).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):		
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	<ul> <li>I. Any amount in the blood of a Schedule I controlled substance or a Schedule II or III controlled substance not prescribed for the individual, or the metabolite of either of the above;</li> <li>II. Under the influence of a drug or combination of drugs to a degree which impairs the ability to safely drive;</li> <li>III. Under the influence of alcohol and a drug or drugs to a degree which impairs the ability to safely drive;</li> <li>IV. Under the influence of a solvent or noxious substance.</li> <li>75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(d).</li> </ul>	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547(k).	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> However an officer must have reasonable grounds to believe the person to have been driving in violation of DWI laws. <sup>529</sup>	

 $<sup>^{527}</sup>$  Evidence of alcohol or controlled substance concentration more than 2 hours after the individual has driven, operated or been in actual physical control of the movement of the vehicle is sufficient to establish the element of BAC when: (1) the Commonwealth shows good cause explaining why the chemical test sample could not be obtained within 2 hours; and (2) the Commonwealth establishes that the individual did not imbibe any alcohol or utilize a controlled substance between the time the individual was arrested and the time the sample was obtained. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(g).

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>528</sup> Standard: "Alcohol concentration in the individual's blood or breath." "Percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802. "Percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood may be expressed as grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood. *Com. v. Karch,* 502 A.2d 1359 (Pa.Super. 1986).
 <sup>529</sup> 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547(a) provides that a person shall be deemed to have given consent to one or more chemical tests when an of-

 $<sup>^{529}</sup>$  75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547(a) provides that a person shall be deemed to have given consent to one or more chemical tests when an officer has reasonable grounds to believe that such person was: (1) driving while his license was suspended or revoked, under the influence of alcohol or controlled substance or illegally operating a vehicle not equipped with ignition interlock; or (2) involved in an accident in which the operator or passenger of any vehicle or pedestrian required medical treatment or was killed. This latter section,

#### PENNSYLVANIA

Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547(a).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal Cases) 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547(e).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547.	
Urine:	Yes 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547.	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> However the presiding judicial officer at preliminary hearing or arraignment shall not reduce or modify an orig- inal DWI charge without the consent of the attorney for the Commonwealth. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3812.	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	YesAlcohol or drug evaluation is required prior to sentencing.A full assessment for alcohol and drug addiction shall becompleted: (1) for a second or subsequent DWI violation;(2) if the evaluation indicates a need for counseling ortreatment; or (3) if the defendant's BAC was $\geq$ .16.75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3814.	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	None	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	<u>First refusal</u> – Suspension 12 months;	
(Susp/Rev):	<u>Subsequent refusal (or prior DUI)</u> – Suspension 18 months.	
	75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547(b).	
	Refusal when suspected of operating with .02 or greater	
	while DUI suspended, or .025 or greater in violation of	
	Interlock restrictions – Suspension 6 months.	
	75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1547(b.1).	

(2) was held to be unconstitutional. *Com v. Kohl*, 615 A.2d 308 (Pa. 1992). Therefore, unless an officer has reasonable grounds to believe a person violated the law under subsection (1), when such person is involved in an accident, the officer may not perform a chemical test.

Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI	
Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	General impairment:
	<u>First offense</u> (misdemeanor) – Mandatory minimum term
	of 6 months' probation and <b>\$300</b> ; Second offense (misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>5 days</b> or
	more than 6 months and not less than \$300 or more than
	\$2,500;
	Third or subsequent offense (2 <sup>nd</sup> degree misdemeanor) –
	Not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>2 years</b> and not less
	than \$500 or more than \$5,000.
	75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3803; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3804(a).
	High rate of blood alcohol; minors; commercial ve-
	hicles and school buses and school vehicles; accidents
	(general impairment):
	First offense (misdemeanor) – Not less than 48 consecu-
	tive hours or more than 6 months and not less than \$500
	or more than \$5,000;
	<u>Second offense</u> (misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and not less than <b>\$750</b> or more than
	<b>\$5,000</b> ;
	<u>Third offense</u> (1 <sup>st</sup> degree misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>90</b>
	days or more than 5 years and not less than \$1,500 or
	more than <b>\$10,000</b> ;
	<u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> (1 <sup>st</sup> degree misdemeanor) –
	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> and not less
	than <b>\$1,500</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> . 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1104; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3803; 75 Pa.C.S.A. §
	3804(b).
	Refusal (general impairment) ; highest blood alcohol;
	controlled substances:
	<u>First offense</u> (misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>72 consecu-</b> <b>tive hours</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and not less than
	\$1,000 or more than \$5,000;
	Second offense $(1^{st} \text{ degree misdemeanor}) - \text{ Not less than}$
	<b>90 days</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> and not less than <b>\$1,500</b> or
	more than <b>\$10,000</b> ;
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (1 <sup>st</sup> degree misdemeanor) –
	Not less than <b>one year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> and not less than <b>\$2 500</b> or more than <b>\$10 000</b>
	than <b>\$2,500</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> . 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1101; 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1104; 75 Pa.C.S.A. §
	3803; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3804(c).
	Aggravated Assault DWI (serious bodily injury) (2 <sup>nd</sup> De-

	gree Felony): Not more than <b>10 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$25,000</b> . 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1101; 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1104; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3735.1.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The base terms listed above reflect mandatory minimum sentences. A criminal sentence in Pennsylvania must have a minimum and a maximum; the maximum must be at least two times the duration of the minimum.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	In addition to other penalties, the sentencing judge may impose up to 150 hours of community service, and order attendance by the defendant at a victim impact panel. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3804(f).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Restitution under Accelerated Rehabilitative Disposition.         75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3807.
	Restitution as part of probation. 42 Pa.C.S.A. § 9754(c)(8).
	Crime Victim's Compensation Fund. 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 11.101.
Other:	<b>Extended supervision of court</b> : If after the initial drug and alcohol assessment, a defendant is determined to be in need of additional treatment, the judge shall impose a min- imum sentence as provided by law and a maximum sen- tence equal to the statutorily available maximum. A sen- tence to the statutorily available maximum imposed pur- suant to this subsection may, in the discretion of the sen- tencing court, be ordered to be served in a county prison. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3804(d).
	<ul> <li>Accelerated Rehabilitative Disposition (ARD): A first-time DWI offender may be placed in ARD. Acceptance into and satisfactory completion of the program may lead to dismissal and expungement of the DWI charge.</li> <li>ARD applies to a first offense within ten years (or second offense if the first offense was for &gt; .08 but &lt; .10) and is not available if a crash caused death or serious bodily injury to others, or if a passenger under 14 years of age was in the vehicle at the time of the offense.</li> <li>Acceptance of ARD is considered a first conviction for purposes of computing any subsequent violations. License suspension for ARD is based upon BAC, there is no period of suspension for a BAC under .10, there is a 30-day suspension for a BAC of .16 or higher. The 60-day suspension also applies to: refusals, crashes with bodily injury and/or vehicle or property damage, and drug DUI. A driver under 21 placed on ARD undergoes a 90-day li-</li> </ul>

	cense suspension. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3807.	
	<b>Laboratory Costs</b> : A defendant may be required to pay a laboratory user fee that includes the costs associated with laboratory services for BAC testing and any court appearances by laboratory technicians. 42 Pa.C.S.A. § 1725.3.	
	<b>Victim Impact Panel</b> : The court may order a defendant to attend a victim impact panel. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3804(f.1).	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	N/A	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3804(e).	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	General impairment:First offense (misdemeanor) – none;Second offense (misdemeanor) – 12 months;Third or subsequent offense (2 <sup>nd</sup> degree misdemeanor) –12 monthsHigh rate of blood alcohol; minors; commercial vehicles and school buses and school vehicles; accidents:First offense (misdemeanor) – 12 months;Second offense (misdemeanor) – 12 months;First offense (misdemeanor) – 12 months;Third offense (1 <sup>st</sup> degree misdemeanor) – 18 months;	
	Fourth or subsequent offense(1st degree misdemeanor) –18 months.Refusal; highest blood alcohol; controlled substances:First offense(misdemeanor) – 12 months;Second offense(1st degree misdemeanor) – 18 months;Third or subsequent offense(1st degree misdemeanor) – 18 months;Third or subsequent offense(1st degree misdemeanor) – 18 months;To Pa.C.S.A. § 3804(e).Aggravated Assault DWI (serious bodily injury)(2nd Degree Felony): 1 year. 75	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	Pa.C.S.A. § 1532. The terms are mandatory. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1541.	
Withdrawal:		
Other:		
Rehabilitation:	For all offenders	
Alcohol Education:	Yes 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3804; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3815.	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3804; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3815.	

Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Forfeiture
Authorized by Specific Statutory	No, however under common law, a court may order forfei-
Authority:	ture of the motor vehicle used in a DWI offense. See
	Commonwealth v. Crosby, 568 A.2d 233 (Pa.Super. 1990).
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	No statutory forfeiture, however under common law, a
Released:	court will consider whether forfeiture will present a hard-
	ship to family members. See Commonwealth v. Crosby,
	568 A.2d 233 (Pa.Super. 1990).
gnition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory
Conditions of Use:	Any convicted offender with a prior offense within 10
conditions of ose.	years, or person who has had his operating privileges sus-
	pended for driving with a BAC of .02 or greater while
	DUI suspended, or for illegally operating a vehicle not
	equipped with ignition interlock who seeks a restoration of
	driving privileges shall be required, as a condition for re-
	ceipt of a restricted license, to equip each motor vehicle
	driven by that person with an ignition interlock for the du-
	ration of the restricted license period, or up to 1 year. 75
	Pa.C.S.A. § 3805.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted Com. v. Yastrop, 768 A.2d 318 (Pa. 2001).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes
	Homicide by Vehicle While Driving Under the Influ-
	ence
	75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3735.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	2 <sup>nd</sup> Degree Felony
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>10 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$25,000</b> . 18
······································	Pa.C.S.A. § 1101; 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1104.
Mandatory Minimum Term:	3 years
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of	Suspension
Action:	
Length of Term of Licensing	3 years
Withdrawal:	75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1532(a.1)(2).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	<b>3</b> vears
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>3 years</b> 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1541.

DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	<ul> <li>A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if that person is convicted of driving a CMV with a BAC ≥.04 (amount of alcohol in the blood or while under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance.</li> <li>For a subsequent conviction or a combination of two or more convictions of any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is for life (10 years mand).</li> <li>A person who violates this provision is subject to the same criminal sanctions as for any other DWI offense.</li> <li>A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 year if, while operating a CMV, that person refuses to submit a chemical test for an alcohol concentration or the presence of controlled substances. In addition, a CMV operator must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours if he/she has any amount of alcohol in the system. A person who operates a CMV with any amount of alcohol in the system commits a summary offense and is subject to a fine of \$100.</li> <li>Even a DUI violation in a personal vehicle subjects the holder of a CDL to a one-year CDL disqualification.</li> </ul>
	75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1603; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1611; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1612; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1613; 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3802(f).
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	Summary Offense
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>60 days</b> or more than <b>90 days</b> and <b>\$500</b> . 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1543(b)(1).
	Driving on DUI Suspended with BAC ≥ .02:First offense – Not less than 90 days and \$1,000;Second offense ( $3^{rd}$ degree misdemeanor) – Not less than 6months or more than 1 year and \$2,500;Third or subsequent offense ( $1^{st}$ degree misdemeanor) –Not less than 2 years or more than 5 years and \$5,000.18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1101; 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1104; 75 Pa.C.S.A. §1543(b)(1.1).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	The base terms listed above are mandatory.
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation/Suspension 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1543(c)

Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	If suspension, original suspension extended an additional period of 1 year. If revocation, original revocation extended an additional period of 2 years. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1543(c).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	Terms are mandatory. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1553(d)(15); 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1554(f)(12).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes	
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	Three convictions of any one or more serious traffic of- fenses <sup>530</sup> within a 5-year period.	
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>5 years</b> . Each additional offense committed within 5 years shall result in a revocation period of 2 years. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1542(e).	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	Second Degree Misdemeanor 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 6503.1.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>2 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1104(2).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3749. Blood or urine samples shall be taken.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	<b>Yes</b> If >15 years old and died within 4 hours of accident.	
Vehicle Passengers:	<b>Yes</b> If driver cannot be determined, then all vehicle occupants over 15 years old.	
Pedestrian:	<b>Yes</b> If $>15$ years old and died within 4 hours of accident.	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 6308.	
Minimum Age (Years)	21	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>530</sup> Serious traffic offenses include DWI, driving on suspended/revoked license, racing, accidents involving death or personal injury, accidents involving death or personal injury while not licensed, accidents involving damage to attended vehicle or property. 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 1542..

Possession/Consumption:	18 Pa.C.S.A. § 6308.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 47 P.S. § 4-497 <sup>531</sup>	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	<b>Yes</b> Jardine v. Upper Darby Lodge No. 1973 Inc., 198 A.2d 550 (Pa. 1964).	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes – limited to minors. See, e.g., Congini by Congini v. Portersville Valve Co., 470 A.2d 515 (Pa. 1983).	
Social Hosts-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who knowingly furnishes any liquor or malt or brewed beverages to a person under the age of 21 shall be guilty of a 3 <sup>rd</sup> degree misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not less than \$1,000 and/or jail for not more than 1 year, for a first offense. For a subsequent offense, the fine shall be \$2,500 and/or jail for not more than 1 year. 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 1101; 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 6310.1.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> 47 P.S. § 4-493(1); 47 P.S. § 4-494(a).	
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense – Not less than \$100 or more than \$500 (upon <u>failure to pay fine</u> , imprisonment shall be not less than 1 month or more than 3 months); <u>Subsequent offense</u> – Not less than 3 months or more than 1 year and/or not less than \$300 or more than \$500.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No): Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	YesSuspension, Revocation, and/or FineIf revocation, 3 years 47 P.S. § 4-471(b).	
<u>Criminal Actions Against Owners or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under</u>		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>531</sup> 47 P.S. § 4-497 only includes "customers" who are visibly intoxicated. This term does not include minors. However, a licensee can be held liable under the common law for injuries caused by an inebriated minor who has been sold alcoholic beverages. *See Matthews v. Konieczny*, 527 A.2d 508 (Pa. 1987).

the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> 47 P.S. § 4-493(1); 47 P.S. § 4-494(a).	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense – Not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b>	
-	(upon <u>failure to pay fine</u> , imprisonment shall be not less	
	than 1 month or more than 3 months);	
	Subsequent offense – Not less than <b>3 months</b> or more than	
	1 year and/or not less than \$300 or more than \$500.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension, Revocation, and/or Fine	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	If revocation, <b>3 years</b> 47 P.S. § 4-471(b).	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3809.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes 75 Pa.C.S.A. § 3809.	

STATE	PUERTO RICO <sup>532</sup>	
General Reference:	Laws of Puerto Rico Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages. 9 L.P.R.A § 5202.	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	≥ .08 9 L.P.R.A § 5202(a). <u>Persons under 18 years old</u> <sup>533</sup> – Any alcohol content. 9 L.P.R.A § 5202(c).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Any narcotic drug, marijuana, stimulant or depressant sub- stance, or of any chemical or controlled substance. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5203.	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209.	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	No 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209(a).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	Yes 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209(a).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	N/A	
Other Information:	I. If alcohol concentration for a person over the age of 18 is less than .08, it shall be concluded that the person has not been driving or operating a vehicle under the influence of alcoholic beverages. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209. II. If after performing the alcohol tests they show that the driver was not under the effect of alcoholic beverages, yet appeared to be intoxicated, the police officer may have grounds to believe that the driver is under the influence of drugs or controlled substances. In such case, the police officer shall then perform the field tests he deems neces- sary before submitting the person detained or arrested to a chemical analysis of the urine. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209(f).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209.	
Urine:	Yes 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209.	
Other:	Any bodily fluid 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>532</sup> Updated through December 2008.
<sup>533</sup> Puerto Rico's law provides that is it unlawful for anyone over 18 years of age to drive or operate a motor vehicle with a BAC of ≥ .08. It is illegal for any person under the age of 18 to drive with any alcohol content in his blood. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5202.

Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 9 L.P.R.A. § 5207(a).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	N/A	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	N/A	
Other:	There are no provisions for criminal or administrative sanctions. However, anyone who refuses to submit to a chemical test will be arrested and transported to a medical facility where a person certified by the Department of Health will perform the test. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209(a).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:	Misdemeanor	
Imprisonment/Fine:	<ul> <li>DWI: <u>First conviction</u> – Not less than \$300 or more than \$500;<sup>534</sup> <u>Second conviction</u> (within 3 years) – 15 to 30 days and not less than \$500 or more than \$750; <u>Third and subsequent convictions</u> (within 3 years) – Not less than 60 days or more than 6 months and not less than \$700 or more than \$1,000. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5204(b).</li> </ul>	
	<b>DWI – Bodily Harm</b> : In addition to any other penalty for DWI, any person causing bodily harm shall be punished by a fine of not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . 9 L.P.R.A. § 5205.	
	<b>DWI – Serious Bodily Injury</b> : In additional to any other penalty for DWI, any person causing serious bodily injury	

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{1}{5^{34}}$  If a defendant does not comply with the conditions of judgment and rehabilitation, he is subject to 5 to 15 days of imprisonment. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5204(b)(1).

	shall be punished by imprisonment of <b>18 months</b> and a fine of not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . <sup>535</sup> 9 L.P.R.A. § 5206. <b>DWI – With Minor <math>\leq</math> 15 Years Old: 48 hours</b> and <b>\$500</b> . 9 L.P.R.A. § 5204(c).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	DWI: <u>First conviction</u> - \$300; <u>Second conviction</u> - 15 days/\$500; <u>Third conviction</u> - 60 days/\$700. DWI - Bodily Harm: \$1,000. DWI - Serious Bodily Injury: 18 months/\$1,000.	
	DWI – With Minor ≤ 15 Years Old: 48 hours/\$500.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	Community service may be ordered in any case. However a defendant, whose sentence is suspended, shall perform community service of 30 days. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5208(c).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Included in the penalties. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5204(b).	
Other:	<ul> <li>I. A person who has been convicted of DWI and subsequent commits the same or similar offense is deemed to be a "recidivist." 9 L.P.R.A. § 5206.</li> <li>II. A sentence may be suspended for any DWI, except serious bodily injury or when a person is deemed a recidivist, a defendant's BAC was ≥ .08 but ≤ .10. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5208.</li> <li>III. In addition to any penalty, a person shall pay a special penalty of \$100 (misdemeanor) or \$300 (felony), which shall be forwarded to the crime victims compensation fund. 33 L.P.R.A. § 4695.</li> </ul>	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	N/A	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	DWI:First conviction – Not more than 30 days;Second conviction (within 3 years) – 6 months;Third conviction (within 3 years) – 2 years.9 L.P.R.A. § 5204(b).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>535</sup> The term of imprisonment may be increased to a maximum of 3 years if there are aggravating circumstances, or decreased to minimum of 6 months, 1 day if there are mitigating circumstances. The law does not provide examples of either aggravating or mitigating circumstances. 9 L.P.R.A. § 5206.

	<b>DWI – Bodily Harm</b> – Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than	
	<b>5 years</b> . 9 L.P.R.A. § 5205.	
	DWI Continue Dedite Internet Net loss them 2 monte or	
	<b>DWI – Serious Bodily Injury</b> : Not less than <b>2 years</b> or more than <b>7 years</b> . 9 L.P.R.A. § 5206.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	The terms above appear to be mandatory.	
Withdrawal:		
Other:		
Rehabilitation:	Mandatory for all offenders	
Alcohol Education:	Yes 9 L.P.R.A. § 5204(b).	
Alcohol Treatment:	<b>Yes</b> 9 L.P.R.A. § 5204(b).	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Seizure	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	The court shall order seizure of the motor vehicle for second or subsequent convictions (within 5 years). 9	
	L.P.R.A. § 5204(b)(4).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	The court may make an exception for an individual who completely depends on the motor vehicle for his/her needs, including any member of the family unit of the defendant, or any co-owner (provided such person is not the defen- dant). 9 L.P.R.A. § 5204(c).	
Ignition Interlock: Permitted or Prohibited:	No statutory provisions	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	No statutory provisions	
Conditions of Use:		
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	No provisions	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Negligent Homicide</b> 33 L.P.R.A. § 4737	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:	3 <sup>rd</sup> Degree Felony	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>3 years</b> , <b>1 day</b> or more than <b>8 years</b> and a	
	daily fine (of not less than \$1 or more than \$44, up to 90 days). 33 L.P.R.A. § 4644; 33 L.P.R.A. § 4683; 33 L.P.R.A. § 4694.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	<b>60%</b> of the term imposed. 33 L.P.R.A. § 4683(d).	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Revocation	
Length of Term of Licensing	Not less than 1 year	
Withdrawal:	33 L.P.R.A. § 4690.	

Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	None	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	It shall be unlawful for any operator of a CMV to operate such vehicle with a BAC of $\geq$ .02. Sanctions are the same as those for DWI.	
	An operator is subject to disqualification for 1 year (3 years if driving with hazardous material) if he drives under the influence, drives with a BAC of $\geq$ .04 or refuses to consent to a chemical test. A second or subsequent offense results in disqualification for life (10 year mand). 49 C.F.R. § 383.51.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Misdemeanor 9 L.P.R.A. § 5073(m).	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than \$500 or more than \$3,000.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	\$500	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation 9 L.P.R.A. § 5069(d).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> 9 L.P.R.A. § 5069(d).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	None	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 9 L.P.R.A. § 5209(b).	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes within 4 hours after the accident	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes within 4 hours after the accident	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		

Minimum Age (Years)	<b>18</b> <sup>536</sup>	
Sale/Purchase: Minimum Age (Years)	18	
Possession/Consumption:		
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Limited to <u>commercial</u> establishments who serve alcohol to visibly intoxicated individuals. <i>Lopez v. Porrata Doria</i> , 2006 WL 2873349 (October 4, 2006); <i>Vernet v. Serrano-</i> <i>Torres</i> , 566 F.3d 254 (C.A. 1 - Puerto Rico 2009).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	N/A	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	No statutory provisions	
Social Hosts-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who induces intoxication, permits or aids in- toxication of a minor shall be guilty of a 4 <sup>th</sup> degree felony, which carries a term of not less than 6 months, 1 day or more than 3 years. 33 L.P.R.A. 4765; 33 L.P.R.A. 4644; 33 L.P.R.A. § 4694.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>No statutory provisions</b> . However, under the 21 <sup>st</sup> Amendment, state and local governments may regulate the sale and distribution of alcohol. <i>See Broadwell v. Munici-</i> <i>pality of San Juan</i> , 312 F.Supp.2d 132 (D. Puerto Rico 2004).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	No statutory provisions	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>536</sup> Specific reference could not be found. However, a combined reading of the DWI laws (9 L.P.R.A. § 5201, *et seq.*) with the corruption of minors law (33 L.P.R.A. 4765) indicates the legal age of drinking to be 18.

Type of Criminal Action:	4 <sup>th</sup> Degree Felony	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not less than <b>6 months</b> , <b>1 day</b> , or more than <b>3 years</b> . 33 L.P.R.A. § 4765.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Cancellation / Revocation 33 L.P.R.A. § 4765.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Term not specified.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes 9 L.P.R.A. § 5201.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes 9 L.P.R.A. § 5201.	

STATE	RHODE ISLAND	
General Reference:	General Laws of Rhode Island	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor RI ST § 31-27-2(a).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{537}$ RI ST § 31-27-2(b)(1).	
	<u>Persons under 21 years old</u> (BAC $\geq$ .02 but <.10) are considered to have been driving while impaired which is not a criminal offense. RI ST § 31-27-2.7.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug, toluene, any controlled substance or any combination of these substances and intoxicating liquor. RI ST § 31-27-2(a).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> RI ST § 31-27-2.3	
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> RI ST § 31-27-2.1	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	No RI ST § 31-27-2.1	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> RI ST § 31-27-2.1	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Only if the defendant chooses to testify. RI ST § $31-27-2(c)(1)$ .	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> However, there is an exception based for medical or religious reasons. RI ST § 31-27-2.1.	
Urine:	Yes RI ST § 31-27-2.1.	1
Other:	<b>Body fluids</b> RI ST § 31-27-2.1	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>537</sup> **Standard**: "Percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood is to be based upon milligrams of alcohol per 100 cubic centimeters of blood. RI ST § 31-27-2(e).

Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a		
Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath		
<u>Test</u> :		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Other:	<b>Infraction</b> : An administrative fine of <b>\$85</b> shall be imposed. RI ST § 31-27-2.3(b); RI ST § 31-41.1-4(a).	
Refusal to Take Implied Consent		
<u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	<u>First refusal</u> – <b>\$200-\$500</b> <u>Second refusal</u> (within 5 years) – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and <b>\$600-\$1,000</b> ; <u>Third or subsequent refusal</u> (within 5 years) – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and <b>\$800-\$1,000</b> . RI ST § 31-27-2.1(b).	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension <u>First refusal</u> – 6 months-1 year; <u>Second refusal</u> – 1-2 years; <u>Third or subsequent refusal</u> – 2-5 years. RI ST § 31-27-2.1(b).	
	Prior to the reinstatement of a driver's license to a person charged with a third or subsequent refusal within a <i>3-year period</i> , a judge shall hold a hearing to determine whether the offender demonstrates behavior to warrant reinstatement. RI ST § 31-27-2.1(b)(3).	
Other:	<u>First refusal</u> – Attendance at a DWI class or alcohol/drug treatment program and 10-60 hours community service; <u>Second refusal</u> – Attendance at an alcohol/drug treatment program and 60-100 hours community service; <u>Third or subsequent refusal</u> – Attendance at an alco- hol/drug treatment program and not less than <b>100 hours</b> community service. RI ST § 31-27-2.1(b).	
	Highway safety assessments of \$500 and \$200 and shall be paid by any person found in violation. RI ST § 31-27- 2.1(b)(5), (6).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>DWI</b> : <u>First offense</u> (BAC $\ge$ .08 but < .10) – Imprisonment up to <b>1 year</b> and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$300</b> ;	

	First offense (BAC $\geq$ .10 but < .15) – Imprisonment up to
	<u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) (BAC $\ge$ .08 but < .15) – Not less than <b>10 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and <b>\$400</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) (BAC $\ge$ .15) – Not less than <b>6 months</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and <b>\$1,000</b>
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .08 but < .15) (felony) – Not less than 1 year or more than 3 years and \$400; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .15) – Not less than 3 years or more than 5 years and not less than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000.
	RI ST § 31-27-2(d).
	<b>DWI With Minor (under age 13)</b> : Not more than <b>1 year</b> (which may not be suspended). RI ST § 31-27-2(d)(4)(ii).
	<b>DWI – Serious Bodily Injury</b> (felony): <u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> and not less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> ;
	Second or subsequent offense (within 5 years) – Not less than 2 years or more than 15 years and not less than <b>\$3,000</b> or more than <b>\$10,000</b> . RI ST § 31-27-2.6.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The base terms listed above are mandatory. RI ST § 31- $27-2(i)$ . <sup>538</sup>
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	<b>DWI</b> : <u>First offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .08 but < .10) – <b>10-60 hours</b> (not mandatory); <u>First offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .10 but < .15) – <b>10-60 hours</b> (mand); <u>First offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .15) – <b>20-60 hours</b> (mand).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	RI ST § 31-27-2(d).         Victims compensation fund RI ST § 12-25-16 et seq.
Other:	Highway Assessment Fee: In addition to the above fines, a defendant must pay a highway assessment fee of \$500 and an additional fee of \$86. RI ST § 31-27-2(d)(5)(i), (ii).
	<b>EMS Special Assessment</b> : In addition to any fine, an of- fender must be assessed \$1. RI ST § 31-27-18.
	Child Endangerment: An offender who is over 18 years old is subject to an imprisonment term of not more than 1

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>538</sup> "No fines, suspensions, assessments, alcohol or drug treatment programs, course on driving while intoxicated or under the influence of a controlled substance, public community restitution, or jail provided for under this section can be suspended." RI ST § 31-27-2(i).

	year if he/she was transporting a passenger under 13 years old at the time of the offense. RI ST § 31-27-2(d)(4).
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	None A license may be suspended for not more than 1 year if a person has committed an offense that requires revoca- tion/suspension (e.g., DWI). Such action may be taken without a preliminary hearing. RI ST § 31-11-7(a).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	
Years, etc.):	$\frac{\text{First offense}}{\text{First offense}} (BAC \ge .08 \text{ but } < .10) -30-180 \text{ days};$ $\frac{\text{First offense}}{\text{First offense}} (BAC \ge .10 \text{ but } < .15) - 3-12 \text{ months};$ $\frac{\text{First offense}}{\text{First offense}} (BAC \ge .15) - 3-18 \text{ months};$
	$\frac{\text{Second offense}}{\text{Second offense}} (BAC \ge .08 \text{ but} < .15) - 1-2 \text{ years};$ $\frac{\text{Second offense}}{\text{Second offense}} (BAC \ge .15) - 2 \text{ years};$
	Third or subsequent offense (BAC $\geq$ .08 but < .15) - 2-3years;Third or subsequent offense (BAC $\geq$ .15) - 3 years.
	RI ST § 31-27-2(d).
	DWI – Serious Bodily Injury:
	First offense – Revocation up to 2 years;
	Second or subsequent offense – Revocation up to 4 years. RI ST § 31-27-2.6.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	The terms above are mandatory. RI ST § 31-27-2(i).
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	Yes A course on driving while intoxicated or under the influ- ence of controlled substances may be required. RI ST § 31-27-2(d).
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes
	First or subsequent DWI Serious Injury Offenses: A court may order a person to successfully complete an alcohol or drug treatment program. RI ST § 31-27-2.6.
Vahiala Impoundment/Carfronting	Doufoituno
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Forfeiture

Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	For a third or subsequent DWI offense – A person's vehicle shall be subject, in the discretion of the sentencing judge, to forfeiture. RI ST § 31-27-2(d)(3)(iii).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:		
Other:		
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>DWI Course Fees</b> : A first offender must pay the follow- ing fees that are associated with attending an alcohol/drug education course: a reasonable tuition of not less than \$25 and a fee of \$175. RI ST § 31-27-2(j).	
	<b>Shock Incarceration</b> : Eighteen (18) to 28-year-old non- violent offenders who have never been incarcerated fol- lowing a conviction are eligible to participate in a shock incarceration program, which shall include extensive phys- ical regimentation, drug and alcohol abuse counseling, behavioral counseling and mandatory education courses and community services. RI ST § 12-19-2.2.	
	<b>DWI Offenders Under 18 Years Old</b> : <u>First offense</u> – a highway assessment fine of not more than \$500, 10-60 hours of community service, and license sus- pension of not less than 6 months or more than 18 months; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – Confinement in a training school for not more than one year, a fine of not more than \$500 and license suspension until the person is 21 (mand). RI ST § 31-27-2(d)(6).	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old with a BAC ≥.02 but <.10: <u>First violation</u> – A fine of not more than \$250, 30 hours of community service, and license suspension of not less than 1 month or more than 3 months; <u>Second violation</u> – A fine of not more than \$250, a high- way safety assessment fee of \$300 (mand), 60 hours of community service, and license suspension of not less than 3 months or more than 6 months (3 months mand); RI ST § 31-27-2.5 (d)(4).	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permissive	
Conditions of Use:	<u>Second offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .08 but < .15) – A court may pro- hibit operation of motor vehicle that is not equipped with ignition interlock for 1-2 years following completion of sentence. RI ST § 31-27-2(d).	
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – An offender shall be re- quired to operate only motor vehicles installed with an	

#### **RHODE ISLAND**

	ignition interlock device for a period of not more than 2 years. RI ST § 31-27-2(d); RI ST § 31-27-2.8.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Prohibited Primental v. Rhode Island, 561 A.2d 1348 (R.I. 1989).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Driving under the influence of liquor or drugs, result- ing in death RI ST § 31-27-2.2.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	Felony
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First offense – Not less than 5 years or more than 15years and not less than \$5,000 or more than \$10,000;Second or subsequent offense(within 5 years) – Not lessthan 10 years or more than 20 years and not less than\$10,000 or more than \$20,000.RI ST § 31-27-2.2.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> RI ST § 31-27-2.2.
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	5 years
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	5 years
<u>DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor</u> <u>Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's</u> <u>Licenses (CDL):</u>	A person's privilege to operate a CMV is suspended for at least 1 mandatory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if that person is convicted of driving a CMV: (1) with a BAC ≥04; (2) while under the influence of al- cohol or controlled substances; or (3) of a refusal to sub- mit to a chemical test. For a second violation of any of the above-listed items, a person's privilege to operate a CMV is revoked for life (10 years mand). In addition, a CMV operator who has any alcohol in the system must "cease" to operate a CMV for 24 hours. RI ST § 31-10.3-3; RI ST § 31-10.3-31.
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	
Sanction:	

Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First offense (misdemeanor) – Not less than 10 days or more than 1 year and \$500;Second offense (within 5 years - misdemeanor) – Not less than 6 months or more than 1 year and \$500;Third or subsequent offense (within 5 years - felony) – Not less than 1 year or more than 5 years and not more than \$5,000.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	RI ST § 31-11-18.1; RI ST § 31-27-13; RI ST § 31-27-14.         The terms above are mandatory.         RI ST § 31-11-18.1.
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation RI ST § 31-11-18.1.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	Driving While Suspended:         First offense – An additional period of 3 months;         Second offense – An additional period of 6 months;         Subsequent offense – Revocation for 1 year         Driving While Revoked – An additional period of 1 year.         RI ST § 31-11-18.1.
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> RI ST § 31-40-1 <i>et seq</i> .
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	Three or more convictions within 3 years for any of the following: 1) Motor vehicle manslaughter; 2) DWI (alco- hol or drugs); 3) Driving while license suspended or re- voked; 4) Willfully operating a motor vehicle without a license; 5) Any felony offense using a motor vehicle; 6) Failure to stop and report death/injury after accident driver was involved in; 7) Failure of driver to stop and report accident where damages equaled \$150 or more; or 8) A combination of six traffic offenses where any one convic- tion could result in license suspension or revocation for 30 days or more. RI ST § 31-40-2.
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> RI ST § 31-40-7.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	Felony RI ST § 11-1-2.
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than 5 years RI ST § 31-40-8.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	The 5-year sentence may not be suspended <u>except</u> in cases where the defendant operated a vehicle in order to save

	life or limb. RI ST § 31-40-8.	
Licensing Actions (Specify):	The court shall determine whether the person has been held an habitual offender and by reason of the holding, is barred from operating a motor vehicle on the highways. RI ST § 31-40-8(b).	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>No specific provisions</b> . However, by reference, testing of a driver, passenger or pedestrian may be permitted. <i>See</i> RI ST § 31-27-3.1(c).	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes	
Pedestrian:	Yes	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> RI ST § 3-8-4; RI ST § 3-8-5; RI ST § 3-8-6(a)(2).	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> RI ST § 3-8-6(a)(2); RI ST § 3-8-10. There is an exception of employment and for religious purposes.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal <u>Actions</u> :		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> RI ST § 3-14-6; RI ST § 3-14-7.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> See Ferreira v. Strack, 652 A.2d 965 (R.I. 1995); <sup>539</sup> Marty v. Garcia, 667 A.2d 282 (R.I. 1995).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who willfully encourages, aids, contributes to or in any way causes any child under the age of 16 to violate any law of the state shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, pu- nishable by a fine of not more than \$500 or imprisonment for not more than 1 year. RI ST § 11-9-4.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>539</sup> In declining to recognize social host responsibility, the Supreme Court of Rhode Island held that the Legislature must set out the duties and responsibilities of various segments of the society within certain social situations. *Ferreira*, 652 A.2d at 970.

	1	r 1
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Astion:	Violation	
Type of Criminal Action:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . RI ST § 3-8-1; RI ST § 3-11-5.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension/Revocation	
	RI ST § 3-5-23.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Suspension – Length is not specified. RI ST § 3-5-23.	
Longui of Fermi of Electise Withdrawar.	<b>Revocation</b> – 5 years (under RI ST § $3-5-23$ ). <sup>540</sup>	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Violation</b> <sup>541</sup> RI ST § 3-8-5; RI ST § 11-1-2.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense – <b>\$250</b> ;	
_	Second offense (within 3 years) – <b>\$500</b> ;	
	Third or subsequent offense (within 3 years) – \$750.	
	RI ST § 3-8-5.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension/Revocation	
	RI ST § 3-5-23.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Suspension – Length is not specified. RI ST § 3-5-23.	
Longii of Ferri Electise Withdrawal.	<b>Revocation</b> – 5 years (under RI ST § $3-5-23$ ).	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> RI ST § 3-7-26.	
<u></u>		1

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>540</sup> If the revocation is under RI ST § 3-5-22, the length would be 1 year.
<sup>541</sup> A licensee who sells alcoholic beverages to one under the legal drinking age can also be charged with a violation of RI ST § 3-8-1. The sanctions for this offense are: <u>first offense</u> – imprisonment for not more than 6 months and/or a fine of not less than \$350 or more than \$1,000; <u>second offense</u> – imprisonment for not more than 1 year and/or a fine of not less than \$750 or more than \$1,000; <u>third or subsequent offense</u> – imprisonment for not more than 3 years and/or a fine of not less than \$1,000 (mand) or more than \$2,500. RI ST § 3-8-11.1; RI ST § 3-8-11.2.
<sup>542</sup> If the revocation is under RI ST § 3-5-22, the length would be 1 year.

Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> RI ST § 31-22-21.1.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> RI ST § 31-22-21.1.	

STATE	SOUTH CAROLINA
General Reference:	Code of Laws of South Carolina Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DUI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol. SC ST § 56-5-2930(1).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08 <sup>543</sup>
	Driving with an unlawful alcohol concentration SC ST § 56-5-2933
	Persons Under 21 (>.02): SC ST § 56-1-286(A).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{544}$ SC ST § 56-5-2950(G)(3).
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug, any combination of drugs or substances or a combination of alcohol and other drugs or substances. SC ST § 56-5-2930(A).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No
Implied Consent Law:	Yes SC ST § 56-5-2950.
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes SC ST § 56-5-2950(A); SC ST § 56-1-286(C).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	Yes SC ST § 56-5-2950(A)
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	<b>Yes</b> (Criminal Cases) <i>State v. Miller</i> , 185 S.E.2d 359 (S.C. 1971).
Other Information:	I. No tests may be administered or samples obtained unless, upon activiation of the video recording equipment and prior to the commencement of the testing procedure, the person has been given a written copy of and verbally informed of his im- plied consent rights. Violator must have his conduct at the in- cident site and the breath test site videotaped, if law enforce- ment vehicle is equipped with a videotaping device, and if breath test site is equipped with a videotaping device. SC ST § 56-5-2950(B); SC ST § 56-5-2953(A), (G). II. A person must submit to a chemical test if arrested or if there is probable cause to believe that such person caused great bodily injury while in violation of the DUI law. SC ST § 56-5-2946.
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized	
Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> If the person is physically unable to provide an acceptable breath sample because he has an injured mouth, is unconscious

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>543</sup> "Alcohol concentration" is defined to mean grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or other bodily fluids as determined by the South Carolina Law Enforcement Division. SC ST § 56-1-10(17). <sup>544</sup> It may be inferred that the person was under the influence of alcohol.

	or dead, or for any reason considered acceptable by the li- censed medical professional, the arresting officer may request a blood sample to be taken. SC ST § 56-5-2950(A).
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> If the officer has reasonable suspicion that the person is under the influence of drugs other than alcohol, or is under the influence of a combination of alcohol and drugs, the officer may order that a urine sample be taken for testing. SC ST § 56-5-2950(A).
Other:	Breath samples must be collected within 2 hours of arrest; any additional tests to collect other samples must be collected within 3 hours of arrest. SC ST § 56-5-2950(A).
Adjudication of DUI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No): Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No           No
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:	
Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath Test:	N/A
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent Chemical</u> <u>Test:</u>	
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First refusalSuspension 6 months;Second refusal (within 10 years)– Suspension 9 months;Third refusal (within 10 years)– Suspension 12 months;Fourth or subsequent refusal (within 10 years)– Suspension15 months.A person may still be issued restricted driving privileges for employment or college education purposes.SC ST § 56-5-2951(P).
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: <u>First refusal</u> – <b>Suspension 6 months</b> ; <u>Subsequent refusal</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Suspension 1 year</b> . SC ST § 56-1-286(F)
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DUI Offense:	
Criminal Sanctions:	
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense– Not less than 48 hours or more than 30 days or\$400First offense(BAC $\geq$ .10 but < .16) – Not less than 72 hours

	or more than <b>30 days</b> or <b>\$500</b> ; <u>First offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .16) – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>90 days</b> or <b>\$1,000</b> .
	Second offense (class C misdemeanor) – Not less than 5 days or more than 1 year and not less than \$2,100 or more than \$5,100; Second offense (class C misdemeanor) (BAC ≥ .10 but < .16) – Not less than 30 days or more than 2 years and not less than \$2,100 or more than \$5,100; Second offense (class C misdemeanor) (BAC ≥ .16) – Not less than 90 days or more than 3 years and not less than \$3,500 or more than \$6,500.
	Third offense (class A misdemeanor) – Not less than 60 days or more than 3 years and not less than \$3,800 or more than \$6,300;Third offense (class A misdemeanor) (BAC $\geq$ .10 but < .16) – Not less than 90 days or more than 4 years and not less than \$5,000 or more than \$7,500; Third offense (class A misdemeanor) (BAC $\geq$ .16) – Not less than 6 months or more than 5 years and not less than \$7,500 or more than \$10,000.
	Fourth or subsequent offense (class F felony) – Not less than 1year or more than 5 years;Fourth or subsequent offense (class F felony) (BAC $\geq$ .10 but< .16) – Not less than 2 years or more than 6 years;
	SC ST § 16-1-10; SC ST § 16-1-20; SC ST § 16-1-90(F); SC ST § 16-1-100; SC ST § 56-5-2930; SC ST § 56-5-2933.
	<b>DUI – Great bodily injury</b> (class B felony) – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> and not less than <b>\$5,100</b> or more than <b>\$10,100</b> . SC ST § 16-1-90(B); SC ST § 56-5-2945.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	$\frac{\text{First offense}}{\text{First offense}} -\$400;$ $\frac{\text{First offense}}{\text{First offense}} (\text{BAC} \ge .10 \text{ but} < .16) - \$500;$ $\frac{\text{First offense}}{\text{First offense}} (\text{BAC} \ge .16) - \$1,000.^{545}$
	$\frac{\text{Second offense}}{\text{Second offense}} = -5 \text{ days/$1,100;}$ $\frac{\text{Second offense}}{\text{Second offense}} (BAC \ge .10 \text{ but} < .16) - 30 \text{ days/$1,100;}$ $\frac{\text{Second offense}}{\text{Second offense}} (BAC \ge .16) - 90 \text{ days/$1,100.}$
	$\frac{\text{Third offense}}{\text{Third offense}} = -60 \text{ days/} \$3,800;$ $\frac{\text{Third offense}}{\text{Third offense}} (BAC \ge .10 \text{ but} < .16) -90 \text{ days/} \$5,000;$

 $<sup>^{545}</sup>$  In lieu of jail time, the court may order a defendant to complete the same amount (48 hours/72 hours) in community service. SC ST § 56-5-2930(A)(1).

Γ	Third offense $(\mathbf{D} \wedge \mathbf{C} > 16)$ 6 months/87 500
	<u>Third offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .16) –6 months/\$7,500.
	Fourth or subsequent offense – 1 year;
	Fourth or subsequent offense (BAC $\geq$ .10 but < .16) – 2 years;
	Fourth or subsequent offense (BAC $\geq$ .16) out (.16) 2 years, Fourth or subsequent offense (BAC $\geq$ .16) – 3 years.
	DUI – Great bodily injury (class B felony) –30 days/
	\$5,100.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	<u>First offense</u> – 48 hours;
	First offense (BAC $\ge$ .10 but < .16) – 72 hours;
	<u>First offense</u> (BAC $\ge$ .16) – 30 days. <sup>546</sup>
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Victims' Compensation Fund SC ST § 16-3-1110 et seq.
Other:	Motor vehicle immobilization: For second or subsequent
	DUI violations, the violator's motor vehicles must be immobi-
	lized for a period of thirty days. <sup>547</sup> SC ST § 56-5-2942.
	<b>Child Endangerment</b> : A person $\geq 18$ years old who commits
	a DUI, a driving with an unlawful alcohol concentration or
	DUI-great bodily injury offense while transporting a child <16
	years old is subject to <u>additional</u> jail and fine sanctions which
	are equal to not more than one-half the maximum jail and fine
	sanctions for these offenses. These sanctions are mandatory if
	the jail or fine sanctions have been imposed for the original
	offense. Also, <u>mandatory</u> license suspension for 60 days. SC
	ST § 56-5-2947.
	Man Jakana Amerikan
	Mandatory Assessments:
	I. In general sessions court, magistrates court and municipal
	court, a defendant must pay respectively an assessment which
	is equal to 107.5 percent of the fine imposed. SC ST § 14-1- 206(A): SC ST § 14.1.207: SC ST § 14.1.208(A)
	206(A); SC ST § 14-1-207; SC ST § 14-1-208(A).
	II. For ANY drunk-driving offense, there is a mandatory \$100 surcharge obtained in general sessions court and a \$25 manda-
	tory surcharge obtained in magistrate's and municipal courts. SC ST  14-1-211(A)(1).
	III. There is an additional mandatory \$100 surcharge for ANY
	drunk offense under SC ST § $14-1-211(A)(2)$ .
	IV. Every defendant must pay a $12$ assessment in addition to
	any other sanction. SC ST § 56-5-2995.
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.15 BAC:
	First violation – Suspension 1 month; <sup>548</sup>

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>546</sup> Community service may be ordered in lieu of imprisonment.
 <sup>547</sup> Immobilization means suspension and surrender of the registration and motor vehicle license plate. SC ST § 56-5-2942(B).
 <sup>548</sup> These suspensions are not mandatory as restricted driving privileges are available for either employment or college education

	Second violation (within 10 years) – Suspension 2 months; Third violation (within 10 years) – Suspension 3 months; Fourth or subsequent violation (within 10 year) – Suspension 4 months. SC ST § 56-5-2951(I).Persons Under 21 Years Old (BAC ≥.02): First violation – Suspension 3 months (mand); Subsequent violation (within 5 years) – Suspension 6 months (mand). SC ST § 56-1-286(A), (G).A person must be attending or have completed an alcohol safe- ty action program before license can be restored. SC ST § 56-
	5-2951(J).
Post DUI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	<u>First offense</u> – <b>Suspension 6 months</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>Suspension 1 year</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>Suspension 2 years</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>Suspension 4 years</b> ; <u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>Permanent</b> <b>revocation</b> . SC ST § 56-5-2990.
	DUI offense causing great bodily injury – Suspension for the term of imprisonment plus 3 years. SC ST § 56-5-2945.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	First offenseFirst offense– For a first DUI offense, a provisional licensemay be issued for the 6-month suspension period provided thedefendant participates in an alcohol/drug education/treatmentprogram.SC ST § 56-1-1320; SC ST § 56-1-1330.Second offense (within 10 years) – 1 year;Third offense (within 10 years) – 2 years;Third offense (within 5 years) – 4 years;Fourth and subsequent offenses (within 10 years) – 7 years.SC ST § 56-1-385(A)(1).
	DUI offense causing great bodily injury –Suspension for the term of imprisonment plus 3 years. SC ST § 56-5-2945.
Other: Robabilitation:	
Rehabilitation: Alcohol Education:	An offender whose license was suspended must successfully complete an Alcohol and Drug Safety Action Program prior to license reinstatement. However, upon the

purposes, and there is a \$100 fee for a restricted license. SC ST § 56-5-2951(H).

	<ul> <li>recommendation by the Medical Advisory Board, an offender's license may be restored notwithstanding the fact that person has not successfully completed this program. SC ST § 56-5-2990(B), (D).</li> <li>Persons who have had the driving privileges permanently revoked must successfully complete an alcohol or drug treatment program before their licenses can be reinstated. SC ST § 56-1-385(A)(3).</li> </ul>
Alcohol Treatment:	All offenders convicted of DUI or DUAC must enroll in and successfully complete an Alcohol and Drug Safety Action Program. SC ST § 56-5-2930(H).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Forfeiture
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	For a third or subsequent DUI offense (within 10 years), the vehicle owned <u>and</u> operated by the offender or operated by an offender who is a resident of the household of the registered owner must be forfeited. SC ST § 56-5-6240(A).
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	The court shall order a vehicle returned to the registered owner if it is shown by a preponderance of the evidence that the use of the vehicle on the occasion of arrest was not expressly or impliedly authorized, or the registered owner did not know that the driver did not possess a valid driver's license. SC ST § 56-5-6240(B).
Other:	
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permissive
Conditions of Use:	<ul> <li>A subsequent offender must install an ignition interlock device on any motor vehicle he drives. The terms are:</li> <li>2 years for a second offense;</li> <li>3 years for a third offense;</li> <li>Life for a fourth or subsequent. SC ST § 56-5-2941.</li> </ul>
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	No statutory provisions or case law <sup>549</sup>
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	<b>Yes</b> SC ST § 56-5-2945.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>549</sup> However, in *State v. Groome*, 664 S.E.2d 460 (S.C. 2008), the South Carolina Supreme Court references sobriety checkpoints, which indicates their use or permitted use.

Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>25 years</b> and not less than <b>\$10,100</b> or more than <b>\$25,100</b> . SC ST § 56-5-2945(A)(2).
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	1 year/\$10,100
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Suspension SC ST § 56-5-2945(B).
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	Term of imprisonment plus 5 years. SC ST § 56-5-2945.
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	This period is mandatory.
DUI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for not less than 1 year (not less than 3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC ≥.04; (2) has an alcohol concentration ≥.04 in other bodily substances (fluids) as determined by the Law Enforcement Division; (3) is under the influence of alcohol, a controlled substance or a drug which impairs driving ability; or (4) refus- es to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration. <b>Note</b> : The disqualification section (SC ST § 56-1-2110(A)(5)) appears to apply only to a refusal to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration; however, the CMV implied con- sent section (SC ST § 56-1-2130) applies to tests for both an alcohol concentration and the presence of other drugs. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is for life (10 years mandatory). In addition, CMV operators who have any measurable amount of alcohol in their systems must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours. SC ST § 56-1-2030; SC ST § 56-1-2110; SC ST § 56-1-2120; SC ST § 56-1-2130; SC ST § 56-5-6190. A person who operates a CMV while CDL is under an out-of- service order is subject to the following sanctions: <u>First violation</u> – disqualification for not less than 90 days (mand) or more than 1 year; <u>Second violation</u> (within 10 years) – disqualification for not less than 1 year (mand) or more than 5 years; <u>Third or subsequent violation</u> (within 10 years) – disqualifica- tion for not less than 3 years (mand) or more than 5 years. In addition, first or subsequent offenders are subject to a civil penalty of not less than 31,000 or more than 5 years. In addition, first or subsequent offenders are subject to a civil penalty of not less than 31,000 or more than 5 years. In addition, first or subsequent offenders are subject to a civil penalty of not less than 31,000 or more than 52,500. If the offender was operating a CMV while transporting ha- zardous mate

#### SOUTH CAROLINA

	First violation – disqualification for not less than 180 days (mand) or more than 2 years; Second or subsequent violation (within 10 years) – disqualifi- cation for not less than 3 years (mand) or more than 5 years. In addition, first or subsequent offenders are subject to a civil penalty of \$1,000 to \$2,500.SC ST § 56-1-2070(E).
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DUI Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First offense (misdemeanor) – Not less than 10 days or more than 30 days or \$300;Second offense (within five years) (misdemeanor) – Not less than 60 days or more than 6 months or \$600;
	Third or subsequent offense (within five years) (Class A Mis- demeanor) – Not less than <b>6 months</b> or more than <b>3 years</b> and <b>\$1,000</b> . SC ST § 16-1-10(C); SC ST § 16-1-20; SC ST § 16-1-100(A); SC ST § 56-1-460(A)(2), (B).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – 10 days <u>or</u> \$300 <u>Second offense</u> – 60 days <u>or</u> \$600; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – 6 months/\$1,000. SC ST § 56-1-460(A)(2).
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension or Revocation SC ST § 56-1-460(B).
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	Suspension for a like period of time if the original suspension was for a definite period of time. If not, then suspension for an additional 3 months. If license was revoked, a new license shall not be issued for an additional 1 year from the date such person would have otherwise been entitled to apply for a new license. SC ST § 56-1-460(B).
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The terms above appear to be mandatory.
Other:	<b>Forfeiture</b> : For a fourth or subsequent offense (within 5 years), the vehicle owned and operated by the offender or operated by an offender who is a resident of the household of the registered owner must be forfeited. SC ST § 56-5-6240(A).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> SC ST § 56-1-1010 <i>et seq</i> .
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	3 or more serious convictions or 10 or more moving violations rated at 4 points or more under the point system within a pe- riod of 3 years SC ST § 56-1-1020(a), (b).
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	5 years and until the court thereafter restores the driving privi- lege. After 1 year, this period may be reduced to 2 years upon

	1
	a showing of "good cause."
	SC ST § 56-1-1090.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on	Felony
Charges of Driving While on Habitual	SC ST § 56-1-1100.
Offender Status:	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of	
Driving While on Habitual Offender	
Status:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than 5 years SC ST § 56-1-1100.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	None
Imprisonment:	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Office State Laws Related To Alcohol Ose.	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
	Veg. SC ST § 17.7.90
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> SC ST § 17-7-80.
DAC Chemical Test Is Circuits di	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the	
the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes
Vehicle Passengers:	No
Pedestrian:	Yes (16 years old or older)
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages	
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> SC ST § 63-19-2440; SC ST § 63-19-2450.
Minimum Age (Years)	21 Se ST § 05 19 2100, Se ST § 05 19 2100. 21 There are exceptions for home, education, religious cere-
Possession/Consumption:	monies, and employment. The employment exception applies
	only to persons over 18 years old.
	SC ST § 63-19-2460.
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal	
Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	No See Tobias v. Sports Club, Inc., 504 S.E.2d 318 (S.C.
	1998); Lydia v. Horton, 583 S.E.2d 750 (S.C. 2003).
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been	No
Adopted Via a Change to the Common	
Law Rule by Action of the Highest	
Court of Record in the State (Case	
Citation):	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> Garren v. Cummings and McCrady, Inc., 345 S.E.2d 508
	(S.C.App. 1986). However a social host may be liable for
	serving alcohol to a minor.
Conicil Host Criminal Dafeman (	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who transfers or gives to a person under the age of
	21 beer or wine may be found guilty of a misdemeanor, pu-
	nishable by not more than 30 days or not less than \$200 or
	more than \$300 (first offense), or not more than 30 days or not

#### SOUTH CAROLINA

	less than \$400 or more than \$500 (second or subsequent of- fense). SC ST § 61-4-90(A).
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees</u> of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> SC ST § 61-4-580(2); SC ST § 61-6-2220.
Imprisonment/Fine:	Alcoholic Liquors – Not more than 30 days or more than \$100. SC ST § 61-6-2600
	Non-intoxicating Beverages – Not less than 3 months or not less than \$100. SC ST § 61-2-250; SC ST § 61-6-4210.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or Revocation
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	<ul> <li>Alcoholic Beverages: <u>First offense</u> – Revocation for 1 year or pay a penalty of \$250; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – Revocation for 2 years or pay a penalty of \$500. SC ST § 61-6-4260.</li> <li>Note: Under SC ST § 61-6-4270, an administrative fine of from \$100 to \$1,500 may be paid in lieu of suspen- sion/revocation.</li> <li>Non-intoxicating Beverages: Length of suspension or revo- cation is not specified. However an administrative fine from \$25 to \$1,000 may be paid in lieu of suspension or revo- cation. SC ST § 61-4-250; SC ST § 61-4-580.</li> </ul>
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action: Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	MisdemeanorFirst offense – Not more than 30 days and/or not less than\$200 or more than \$300;Second or subsequent offense – Not more than 30 days and/ornot less than \$400 or more than \$500.

#### SOUTH CAROLINA

	SC ST § 61-4-50; SC ST § 61-6-4080.
	SC 51 g 01-4-50, SC 51 g 01-0-4080.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension or Revocation
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	<ul> <li>Alcoholic Beverages: <u>First offense</u> – Revocation for 1 year or pay a penalty of \$250; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – Revocation for 2 years or pay a penalty of \$500. SC ST § 61-6-4260.</li> <li>Note: Under SC ST § 61-6-4270, an administrative fine of from \$100 to \$1,500 may be paid in lieu of suspen- sion/revocation.</li> <li>Non-intoxicating Beverages: Length of suspension or revo- cation is not specified. However an administrative fine from \$25 to \$1,000 may be paid in lieu of suspension or revo- cation.</li> </ul>
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	SC ST § 61-4-250; SC ST § 61-4-580. Yes SC ST § 61-4-160; SC ST § 61-6-4550.
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No): Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes         SC ST § 61-4-110; SC ST § 61-6-4020.           Yes         SC ST § 61-6-4720.
	105 50 51 y 01 0 1720.

#### SOUTH DAKOTA

STATE	SOUTH DAKOTA	
General Reference:	South Dakota Codified Laws	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of an alcoholic beverage	
	SD ST § 32-23-1(2).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{550}$ SD ST § 32-23-1(1).	
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> : $\geq$ .02 or any evidence of marijuana or a controlled drug or substance in the body. SD	
	ST § 32-23-21.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08 SD ST § 32-23-7.	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any substance, any controlled drug, marijuana or a combination of these substances and an alcoholic beverage, or any substance ingested, inhaled, or otherwise taken into the body for the purpose of becoming intoxicated. SD ST § 32-23-1(3), (4), (5).	
Other:	<.05 BAC – Presumed not intoxicated >.05 – < .08 BAC – No presumption but such fact may be considered with other competent evidence in determining guilt or innocence. SD ST § 32-23-7.	
<u>Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol</u> <u>Concentration</u> :		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> SD ST § 32-23-1.2	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes SD ST § 32-23-10	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes SD ST § 32-23-10	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> SD ST § 32-23-10	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes SD ST § 19-13-28.1	
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> SD ST § 32-23-10.	
Urine:	<b>No</b> SD ST § 32-23-10.	
Other:	Other bodily substances SD ST § 32-23-10.	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>550</sup> Based on "percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. However, SD ST § 32-23-7 provides that "[p]ercent by weight of alcohol in the blood shall be based upon milligrams of alcohol per 1.0 cubic centimeters of whole blood or 2100 cubic centimeters of deep lung breath."

Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> But an illegal per se charge may be reduced or dismissed <u>only</u> when written reasons for such have been filed with the court. SD ST § 32-23-1.3.	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> Limited for first offenders where the BAC is $\geq$ 17, the court must require them to undergo an evaluation to determine if they are addicted to alcohol. SD ST § 32-23-2.1. The courts have general authority to order discretionary pre-sentence investigation reports. SD ST § 23A-27-5.	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation 1 year <sup>551</sup> SD ST § 32-23-11; SD ST § 32-23- 18.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense (Class 1 misdemeanor) – Not more than 1year (county jail) and/or not more than \$2,000;Second offense (within 10 years) (Class 1 misdemeanor) –Not more than 1 year (county jail) and/or not more than\$2,000;Third offense (within 10 years)(Class 6 felony) – Notmore than 2 years (State penitentiary) and/or not morethan \$4,000;Fourth offense (within 10 years)(Class 5 felony) – Notmore than 5 years (State penitentiary) and a fine of\$10,000 may be imposed; <sup>552</sup> Fifth or subsequent offense (within 10 years)(Class 4 felony) – Not more than 10 years and a fine of \$20,000 may	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>551</sup> Under SD ST §32-23-11.1, a driver's license is not subject to revocation for refusal to submit to a chemical test under the implied consent law if: (1) the driver pleads guilty to a DWI offense; (2) the DWI charge is dismissed prior to a hearing on the refusal and the person is not convicted of a reckless or careless driving offense; or (3) a hearing is not requested prior to the revocation being ordered.

dered.  $^{552}$  A person convicted of a Class 5 or 6 felony may be sentenced to serve not more than 1 year in the county jail in lieu of the indicated incarceration period in the State penitentiary. SD ST § 22-6-1.1.

	be imposed.	
	SD ST § 22-6-1; SD ST § 22-6-1.1; SD ST § 22-6-2; SD ST § 32-23-2; SD ST § 32-23-3; SD ST § 32-23-4; SD ST § 32-23-4.1; SD ST § 32-23-4.6; SD ST § 32-23-4.7.	
	Vehicular Battery (Class 4 felony) – Not more than <b>10</b> years (State penitentiary) and a fine of not more than <b>\$20,000</b> may be imposed. SD ST § 22-6-1; SD ST § 22-18-36.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	Community service may be condition of probation. SD ST § 23A-27-18.3.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Restitution is to be paid by the defendants to the victims. SD ST § 22-6-1; SD ST § 22-6-2; SD ST § 23A-27-18.3; SD ST § 23A-28-3.	
Other:	<b>Costs of Confinement</b> : If they are financially able, of- fenders may be required to pay for the costs of their con- finement in a county jail. SD ST § 24-11-45.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	None	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation           SD ST § 32-23-2; SD ST § 32-23-3; SD ST § 32-23-4; SD           ST § 32-23-4.6; SD ST § 32-23-4.7.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	First offense – Not less than 30 days;533Second offense – Not less than 1 year;Third offense – Not less than 1 year from the date sentence is imposed or 1 year from the date of discharge from incarceration, whichever is later;Fourth offense – Not less than 2 years from the date sentence is imposed or 2 years from the date of discharge from incarceration, whichever is later;Fifth or subsequent offenses – Not less than 3 years from the date of discharge from incarceration, whichever is later;Fifth or subsequent offenses – Not less than 3 years from the date of discharge from incarceration, whichever is later.SD ST § 32-23-2; SD ST § 32-23-3; SD ST § 32-23-4; SD ST § 32-23-4.6; SD ST § 32-23-4.7.	
	Vehicular Battery – Not less than <b>3 years</b> from the date	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>553</sup> The court may order revocation of the defendant's driving privilege for a further period not to exceed one year or restrict the driving privilege in such a manner as it sees fit for a period not to exceed one year. SD ST § 32-23-2.

	sentence is imposed or <b>3 years</b> from the date of discharge	
	from incarceration, whichever is later. SD ST § 22-18-36.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offense – None; <sup>554</sup>	
Withdrawal:	Second offense – 1 year (not mandatory in all situa-	
	tions); <sup>555</sup>	
	<u>Third offense</u> – Not less than 1 year;	
	Fourth offense – 2 years;	
	Fifth or subsequent offense – 3 years.	
	SD ST § 32-12-52.1; SD ST § 32-23-1; SD ST § 32-23-	
	4.6.	
	Vehicular Battery – 3 years. SD ST § 22-18-36.	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:	There are no specific provisions mandating alcohol educa-	
	tion or treatment upon conviction. However a defendant	
	may only be granted a restrict license upon successful	
	completion of an alcohol or drug treatment program, and the court may order treatment for chemical dependency as	
	part of probation. SD ST § 23A-27-18.3; SD ST § 32-23-	
	$\begin{array}{c} \text{part of probation. SD S1 } g 25 R - 27 - 18.5, \text{ SD S1 } g 52 - 25 - \\ 3. \end{array}$	
Alcohol Education:	5.	
Alcohol Treatment:		
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	N/A	
Authorized by Specific Statutory	None	
Authority:		
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	No statutory provisions or case law	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):		
Conditions of Use:		
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>State v. Tilton</i> , 561 N.W.2d 660 (S.D. 1997).	
	Termitted Side V. Tulon, 20111. (V.24 000 (S.D. 1777).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes	
	Vehicular Homicide	
	SD ST § 22-16-41.	
Sanctions:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>554</sup> A restricted hardship license is available for employment purposes, education, and for attending court-ordered counseling programs. SD ST § 32-23-2.
<sup>555</sup> Upon the successful completion of an alcohol treatment program and proof of financial responsibility, the court may grant any DUI offender driving privileges for employment purposes, attendance at school or counseling programs, and may place such conditions on these privileges as it sees fit. SD ST § 32-23-3.

Criminal Sanction:	Class 3 felony	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>15 years</b> (State penitentiary) and a fine of <b>\$30,000</b> may be imposed. SD ST § 22-6-1; SD ST § 22-16-41.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Revocation           SD ST § 22-16-41.	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	Not less than <b>10 years</b> from the date sentence is imposed or <b>10 years</b> from the date of initial release from impri- sonment. SD ST § 22-16-41.	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>10 years</b> However, a restricted hardship license may be available for education, employment, or counseling in some cir- cumstances. SD ST § 22-16-41.	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for not less than 1 mandatory year (not less than three years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC ≥04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled drug or substance; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for alcohol concentration. <b>Note</b> : The disqualification provision only applies to a re- fusal to submit to a chemical test for alcohol concentra- tion; however, the CMV implied consent provision applies to the testing for both alcohol concentrations and drugs. For a second violation or a combination of two violations of any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is for life (10 years mand). For a subsequent violation or a combination of three or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is <u>permanent</u> for life. Operating a CMV with a BAC ≥.04 to ≥ .08 or more is a Class 2 Misdemeanor; the sanctions for the offense are a jail term of not more than 30 days and/or a fine of not more than \$500. In addition, a CMV operator who has any detectable amount of alcohol in his/her system must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours. <b>Note</b> : Persons who have had their non-CMV driving privileges suspended or revoked may obtain a court order granting them CMV driving pri-	
	vileges for employment purposes. SD ST § 22-6-2; SD ST § 32-12A-1(5), (9); SD ST § 32-12A-36; SD ST § 32-12A-37; SD ST § 32-12A-39; SD	

#### SOUTH DAKOTA

	ST § 32-12A-43; SD ST § 32-12A-44; SD ST § 32-12A-46.
	The State has also adopted by reference 49 CFR Parts 383 and 384. SD ST § 32-12A-58.
Driving While License Suspended or	
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI	
Offense:	
Sanction:	These provisions do not provide for special or additional sanctions if the license was suspended/revoked where the basis was a DWI offense.
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	For driving while revoked (Class 1 misdemeanor) – Notmore than 1 year and/or not more than \$2,000;For driving while suspended (Class 2 Misdemeanor) – Notmore than 30 days and/or not more than \$500.SD ST § 22-6-2; SD ST § 32-12-65.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation SD ST § 32-12-66.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	<u>For driving while revoked</u> – original revocation period is extended for <b>1 year</b> ; <u>For driving while suspended</u> – an additional like suspen- sion period. SD ST § 32-12-66.
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The terms appear to be mandatory.
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> SD ST § 34-25-22.1.
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes
Vehicle Passengers:	Yes
Pedestrian:	Yes
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> SD ST § 35-9-1; SD ST § 35-9-1.1; SD ST § 35-9-2.

Sale/Purchase:		
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> There is an exception for employment, religious cere- monies or if such underage person is accompanied by a parent, guardian or spouse who is at least 21 years of age. SD ST § 35-4-79; SD ST § 35-9-1; SD ST § 35-9-1.1; SD ST § 35-9-2.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> SD ST § 35-4-78; SD ST § 35-11-1.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	Case law providing for dram shop liability has been abro- gated by statutory law. SD ST § 35-11-1.	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	No Liability is prohibited via statutory law. SD ST § 35-11-2.	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who sells or gives alcoholic beverages to a person under 18 years of age, may be found guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor (if the person is under age 18) or a class 2 misdemeanor (if the person is over age 18 but under age 21). There is an exception for situations where the minor is in the immediate presence of a parent or guardian. SD ST § 35-9-1; SD ST § 35-9-1.1.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Class 1 misdemeanor</b> SD ST § 22-6-2; SD ST § 35-4-78	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> (county jail) and/or not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . SD ST § 22-6-2.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes       Revocation/Suspension       SD ST § 35-2-10.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Revocation – 1 year;Suspension – Not more than 60 days.SD ST § 35-2-20; SD ST § 35-2-21.	
<u>Criminal Actions Against Owners or</u> Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>556</sup> In lieu of either a revocation or a suspension, the licensee may be allowed to pay a "monetary offer in compromise." This "compromise" cannot exceed \$75,000. SD ST § 35-2-21.

Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
<u>ute Willing Age</u> .		
Type of Criminal Action:	If under age 18: Class 1 misdemeanor	
Type of erminal redon.	SD ST § 22-6-2; SD ST § 35-9-1. <sup>557</sup>	
	If $> 18$ but $< 21$ : Class 2 misdemeanor	
	SD ST § 22-6-2; SD ST § 35-9-1.1.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>Class 1 misdemeanor:</b> Not more than <b>1 year</b> (county jail)	
	and/or not more than $\$2,000$ . SD ST $\S 22-6-2$ .	
	<b>Class 2 misdemeanor</b> : Not more than <b>30 days</b> (county	
	jail) and/or not more than <b>\$500</b> . SD ST § 22-6-2.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Revocation/Suspension <sup>558</sup>	
	SD ST § 35-2-10.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Revocation – 1 year;	
	Suspension – Not more than 60 days.	
	SD ST § 35-2-20; SD ST § 35-2-21.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open		
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
On on Container Leve (Veg/Ne):	Nor SD ST 8 25 1 0 1	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes SD ST § 35-1-9.1.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> SD ST § 35-1-9.1.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>557</sup> Administrative Fines: No criminal liability may be imposed on a person holding a "controlling interest" in a business licensed to sell alcoholic beverages at retail, if an employee of the business violates SD ST § 35-4-78 and the person having such an interest is <u>not</u> present when the violation occurred. A person is considered to have "controlling interest" with an ownership interest in the business  $\geq 10$  percent. Nevertheless, such a person may be assessed an administrative fine as follows: <u>first violation</u> – \$500; <u>second violation</u> (within 2 years) – \$750; <u>third violation</u> (within 2 years) – \$1,000. SD ST § 35-4-78.4.

 $<sup>^{558}</sup>$  A license cannot be suspended/revoked for an employee's action if: (1) the licensee did not see the violation; (2) the employee has received training in preventing underage drinking; (3) there is written policy requiring the examination of "age-bearing identification"; and (4) neither the licensee nor the employee has had a prior violation within 12 months. SD ST § 35-2-10.1.

STATE	TENNESSEE	
General Reference:	Tennessee Code Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	I. Under the influence of any intoxicant	
Standard Dwi Offense.	TN ST $\S$ 55-10-401(a)(1).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\ge .08^{559}$ TN ST § 55-10-401(a)(2).	
mogari er se Law (Brie, Brie).	Persons $\geq 16$ but $< 21$ Years Old $- >.02$ (Underage Im-	
	paired Driving Offense) TN ST $\S$ 55-10-415(a)(1)(A).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08 TN ST § 55-10-408.	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any intoxicant, marijuana, narcotic	
	drug or drugs producing stimulating effects on the central	
	nervous system. TN ST § 55-10-401(a)(1).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes TN ST § 55-10-406	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> TN ST § 55-10-406(a)(1).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	<b>Yes</b> TN ST § 55-10-406(a)(1).	
(Yes/No):		
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal Cases) TN ST § 55-10-406(d).	
Admitted into Evidence:		
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes TN ST § 55-10-405(5).	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> TN ST § 55-10-405(5).	
Other:	<b>Yes</b> TN ST § 55-10-405(5).	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Adjudication of Dw1 Charges.		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> TN ST § 55-10-403(b)(1). <sup>560</sup>	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	No	
(Yes/No):		
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a		
<u>Chemical Test</u> :		

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>559</sup> Standard: Percent or "percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. TN ST § 55-10-408(a) and (b) The Tennessee Supreme Court has noted that blood alcohol concentration is expressed as "grams of alcohol per 100 cubic centimeters of blood or 210 liters of breath." *State v. Sensing*, 843 S.W.2d 412, 415 (Tenn. 1992).
 <sup>560</sup> Pre-trial diversion is prohibited until the minimum sentence is served. TN ST § 55-10-403(b)(1).

Refusal to Take a Preliminary Breath	N/A	
Test:		
Refusal to Take Implied Consent		
Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action	Revocation	
(Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> – 1 year;	
	Subsequent refusal – 2 years;	
	<u>Refusal for DWI – serious bodily injury</u> – 2 years;	
	<u>Refusal for DWI – death</u> – 5 years.	
	A restricted license may be issued. TN ST § 55-10-	
	406(a)(4)(A), (c).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI		
Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<u>First conviction</u> (Class A misdemeanor) – <b>48 hours</b> and	
	not less than \$350 or more than \$1,500;	
	<u>First conviction</u> (BAC $\ge$ .20) (Class A misdemeanor) – 7	
	days and not less than \$350 or more than \$1,500;	
	Second conviction (within 10 years) (Class A misdemea-	
	nor) – Not less than <b>45 days</b> or more than <b>11 months</b> , <b>29</b>	
	days and not less than \$600 or more than \$3,500;	
	Third conviction (within 10 years) (Class A misdemeanor)	
	- Not less than 120 days or more than 11 months, 29 days	
	and not less than \$1,100 or more than \$10,000;	
	Fourth or subsequent conviction (within 10 years) (Class E	
	felony) – Not less than <b>150 days</b> or more than <b>6 years</b> and	
	not less than \$3,000 or more than \$15,000.	
	TN ST § 40-35-111; TN ST § 55-10-403(a)(1)(A), (s).	
	<u>Vehicular Assault</u> <sup>561</sup> (Class D felony) – Not less than <b>2</b>	
	years or more than 12 years and a fine of not more than	
	<b>\$5,000</b> may be imposed.	
	TN ST § 39-13-106; TN ST § 40-35-111.	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old (Misdemeanor) – A fine of	
	$\frac{1}{210}$ (Wisdemeanor) – A line of $\frac{1}{250}$ . TN ST § 55-10-415.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: <sup>562</sup>	First offense – <b>48 hours/\$350</b>	
wandatory winning refin/rine.	$\frac{1}{\text{First offense}} = 46 \text{ hours/$3530}$ First offense (BAC $\ge .20$ ) - 7 days/\$350;	
	Second offense (within 10 years) $- 45$ days/\$600;	
	$\underline{\text{Second Offense}}(\text{wrunn to years}) = 45 \text{ uays/soon},$	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>561</sup> A person who violates the DWI law with a child under the age of 18, where such child suffers serious bodily injury shall be punished for vehicular assault. TN ST § 55-10-403(a)(1)(B)(ii). <sup>562</sup> All fines shall be mandatory unless the judge determines that a person is indigent. TN ST § 55-10-403(b)(2).

	Third offense (within 10 years) - 120 days/\$1,100;Fourth or subsequent offense (within 10 years) - 150days/\$3,000.	
	Vehicle Assault – 2 years.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	I. The court shall order first offenders to perform 24 hours of community service as part of probation. Additionally, the court may require an offender to remove litter from the state highway system, public playgrounds, public parks or other appropriate locations for any prescribed period in addition to any other penalties, and may sentence an of- fender to 200 hours of community service. TN ST § 55- 10-403(a)(1)(A)(vii), (c)(3), (n). II. Persons <21 Years Old: The court may impose "public work" service. §55-10-415	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	YesA defendant may be sentenced to pay compensation di- rectly to a victim. TN ST § 39-11-118; TN ST § 40-35- 104; TN ST § 40-35-304.A victim's compensation fund is available. TN ST § 29-13-101 et seq.	
Other:	<ul> <li>BAC Test Fee: DWI offenders in certain counties or counties with a metropolitan form of government are required to pay a BAC test fee. TN ST § 55-10-403(h).</li> <li>Addiction Treatment Fee: Offenders will be assessed \$100 for each conviction. TN ST § 55-10-403(r).</li> <li>Other Fees: A person convicted of DWI shall be assessed a fee of \$5. TN ST § 55-10-403(i).</li> <li>Victims Impact Panel: In lieu of or in addition to alcohol assessment and treatment, a court may order an offender to attend a victims impact panel program if the court finds the offender has the ability to pay a fee of not less than \$25 or more than \$50 and such program is offered in the county in which the offense occurred. TN ST § 55-10-403(c)(1)(B).</li> </ul>	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	None	
Other:	Under TN ST § 55-50-502(a), the licensing agency can suspend a person's license if that person has committed an offense that requires mandatory license revocation.	

Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
~	Revocation	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	TN ST § 55-10-403; TN ST § 55-50-501; TN ST § 55-50- 502.	
	<b>Persons ≥16 but &lt;21 Years Old: Suspension</b> TN ST § 55-10-415(d).	
	Vehicle Assault: Revocation TN ST § 39-13-106.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	<u>First conviction</u> – 1 year; <u>Second conviction</u> – 2 years; <u>Third conviction</u> – Not less than 3 years or more than 10 years;	
	Fourth or subsequent offense (within 10 years) – 5 years. TN ST  55-10-403(a)(1)(A).	
	<b>Persons ≥16 but &lt;21 Years Old – 1 year</b> . TN ST § 55-10-415.	
	Vehicular Assault:	
	<u>First conviction</u> – 1 year;	
	<u>Second conviction</u> $- 2$ years;	
	<u>Third conviction</u> – 3 years;	
	<u>Fourth or subsequent conviction</u> – 5 years TN ST § 39-13-106.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<u>First offense</u> – <b>None</b> (1 year if injury/death-related)	
Withdrawal:	Second offense – 1 year;	
	<u>Third offense</u> – 1 year;	
	<u>Fourth and subsequent offense</u> – 1 year. TN ST § 55-10-403(d).	
	<b>Persons ≥16 but &lt;21 Years Old – 1 year</b> (The law is not clear on whether this licensing action is mandatory.)	
	<u>Vehicular Assault</u> – <u>First offense</u> – 1 year; Second offense – 2 years;	
	<u>Second offense</u> – 2 years; <u>Third offense</u> – 3 years;	
	<u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> – 5 years.	
	TN ST § 39-13-106.	
	Under <u>separate</u> statutory authority, the court can impose the following additional licensing sanctions for DWI of- fense convictions:	
	<u>First offense</u> – Prohibit driving for up to and including <b>6</b>	

Other:	Second offense– Prohibit driving for up to and including3 years;Third or subsequent offense– Prohibit driving for up toand including 10 years.TN ST § 55-10-412(a).
Rehabilitation:	<b>Yes</b> – Every person convicted of a DUI offense must un- dergo drug and alcohol assessment, to be paid by the con- victed party (unless indigent). TN ST § 55-10-403(c)(1).
Alcohol Education:	Yes
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes Participation in an alcohol safety DWI program is required as part of probation. This may consist of a court-ordered outpatient alcohol or drug treatment program. TN ST § 55- 10-403(d). Probation can begin only after serving the minimum imprisonment term. TN ST § 55-10-403(c)(1). For second and subsequent convictions (within 5 years), a condition of probation is participation in a rehabilitation program treatment facility. TN ST § 55-10-403(c)(2). Under TN ST § 55-50-502(c), the licensing agency, prior to reissuing a license to persons following a second or subsequent DWI conviction, must require them to com- plete an alcohol or drug abuse education or treatment pro- gram.
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	<b>Forfeiture</b> TN ST § 55-10-403(k).
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	The vehicle used in the commission of a person second or subsequent DWI violation is subject to seizure and forfeiture. <sup>563</sup>
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	N/A
Other: Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	Child Endangerment: A person accompanied by a child < 18 year old shall be punished by 30 days incarceration (mand) and \$1,000 (mand). This is a sentencing enhancement. TN ST § 55- 10-403(a)(1)(B).
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Permissive
Conditions of Use:	In addition to any other penalties provided for a DWI of- fense conviction, a defendant may be required to operate vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices for up to

 $<sup>^{563}</sup>$  One prior offense must have occurred on or after January 1, 1997, and the second offense after January 1, 1997, occurring within 5 years of the first offense occurring after January 1, 1997. TN ST § 55-10-403(k)(3).

	1 year after the defendant's license is no longer suspended or revoked. TN ST § 55-10-412.	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> <i>State v. Downey</i> , 945 S.W.2d 102 (Tenn. 1997).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Vehicular Homicide (Class B felony) TN ST § 39-13-213(a)(2). Aggravated Vehicle Homicide <sup>564</sup> (Class A felony) TN ST § 39-13-218.	
Sanctions:	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Vehicular Homicide – Not less than 8 years or more than 30 years and a fine of not more than \$25,000 may be im- posed; Aggravated Vehicular Homicide – Not less than 15 years or more than 60 years and a fine of not more than \$50,000 may be imposed. TN ST § 40-35-111(b).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> TN ST § 39-13-213; TN ST § 55-50-501(1).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	There are two separate driving privilege withdrawal schemes which could apply to <u>all</u> vehicle homicide of-fenses: (1) the licensing agency can revoke the offender's license for a period of time <b>equal to the term of the sentenced received</b> ; or (2) the court can prohibit the offender from operating a motor vehicle for not less than <b>3 years</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> . TN ST § 39-13-213; TN ST 55-50-501(a)(1).	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>3 years</b> TN ST § 39-13-213.	
Other:	If the child was killed at the time of the offense, the person commits a Class C felony, which is punishable by impri- sonment for not less than 3 years or more than 15 and a fine of not more than \$10,000 may be imposed. TN ST § 40-35-111(b)(3); TN ST § 55-10-403 (a)(1)(B).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's	A person's CDL is suspended for 1 mandatory year (3 years mandatory if transporting hazardous materials) if,	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>564</sup> Aggravated Vehicular Homicide is vehicular homicide where the defendant had: (1) two or more prior DWI/vehicle assault convictions (or any combination of them); (2) a prior vehicular homicide conviction; (3) or at the time of the vehicular homicide offense, a BAC  $\ge 0.20$  and a previous DWI or vehicular assault conviction. TN ST § 39-13-218.

Licenses (CDL):	while driving a CMV, that person has a BAC $\geq$ 04 or is under the influence of alcohol (with a BAC $\geq$ .04) or a con- trolled substance. For a subsequent violation or a combi- nation of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the suspension is for life (10 years mandatory). A commercial motor vehicle operator who drives a CMV with a BAC $\geq$ .04 violates the regular DWI laws. TN ST § 55-50-102(12); TN ST § 55-50-405(a); TN ST § 55-50-408.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> (Class B misdemeanor) – Not less than 2 days or more than 6 months and a fine of not more than \$1,000; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) (Class A misdemeanor) – Not less than 45 days or more than 11 months, 29 days and/or not more than \$3,000. TN ST § 40-35-111; TN ST § 55-50-504(a)(1).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	<u>First offense</u> – 2 days; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – 45 days. TN ST § 50-55-504(a), (f).	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Revocation/Suspension TN ST § 55-50-504(b).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	Revocation – The original revocation period extended 1 year; Suspended – The original suspension period is extended an additional like period. TN ST § 55-50-504(b).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> TN ST § 55-10-601 <i>et seq</i> .	
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	I. Three or more serious traffic offenses <sup>565</sup> within 3 years. II. Three or more serious traffic offenses within 5 years. III. Five or more serious traffic offenses within 10 years. TN ST § 55-10-603.	
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>3 years</b> <sup>566</sup> TN ST § 55-10-615.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>565</sup> The following are serious traffic offenses: (1) voluntary or involuntary motor vehicle homicide or manslaughter; (2) Adult DWI;
(3) failure to stop at the scene of an accident; (4) overtaking a school bus; (5) driving on a revoked, canceled or suspended license;

<sup>(6)</sup> failure to stop at the scene of an accident; (4) overtaking a school bus; (5) driving on a revoked, canceled of suspended ficense; (6) aggravated vehicle homicide; (7) reckless driving; (8) drag racing; (9) reckless endangerment; (10) evading arrest in a motor vehicle; (11) vehicular assault. TN ST § 55-10-603(2)(A).
<sup>566</sup> Exception: The court may <u>immediately</u> restore an offender's license on any conditions it sees fit if habitual offender status was the result of driving while suspended/revoked but where the underlying suspension/revocation was <u>not</u> one of the serious offenses listed in TN ST § 55-10-603(c).

Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	Class E felony	
on Charges of Driving While on	TN ST § 55-10-616.	
Habitual Offender Status:		
Sanctions Following a Conviction of		
Driving While on Habitual Offender		
Status:		
Imprisonment (Term):	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>6 years</b> and a fine of not	
	more than <b>\$3,000</b> may be imposed. TN ST §	
	40-35-111(b); TN ST § 55-10-616.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	1 year <sup>567</sup>	
Imprisonment/Fine:		
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Discretionary TN ST § 38-7-109.	
State Hus Stein a Edw (165/16).		
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:		
Driver:		
	Discretionary	
Vehicle Passengers:	Discretionary	
Pedestrian:	Discretionary	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> TN ST § 1-3-113	
Sale/Purchase:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> There are exceptions for employment and religious	
Possession/Consumption:	services. TN ST § 1-3-113.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law	No	
(Yes/No):	However if a judge or jury has found, beyond a reasonable	
	doubt that the service of alcoholic beverage or beer was	
	the proximate cause of injury or death, then damages may	
	be awarded. TN ST $\S$ 57-10-101; TN ST $\S$ 57-10-102.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	No	
Been Adopted Via a Change to the		
Common Law Rule by Action of the		
Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):	N. TM OT 2 57 10 101, TM OT 2 57 10 102 D:	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> TN ST § 57-10-101; TN ST § 57-10-102; <i>Biscan v.</i>	
	<i>Brown</i> , 160 S.W.3d 462 (Tenn. 2005).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>567</sup>One year of imprisonment is mandatory unless the habitual offender operated a motor vehicle in order to save life or limb. TN ST § 55-10-616.

Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who furnishes or gives any alcoholic beverage to a person under age 21 commits a Class A misdemeanor,
	punishable by not more than 11 months, 29 days in jail and/or a fine of not more than \$2,500. TN ST § 57-4- 203(b). Additionally, any adult who contributes to or en- courages the delinquency of a child may be found guilty of
	a Class A misdemeanor. TN ST § 37-1-156.
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> Employees of Establishments that Serve <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor TN ST § 40-35-111; TN ST § 57-3-406(c); TN ST § 57-3-412(a)(1); TN ST § 57-4-203(c), (j)(1).
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>11 months, 29 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . TN ST § 40-35-111.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes           Suspension/Revocation           TN ST § 57-3-104(c)(1)(A); TN ST § 57-3-214; TN ST §           57-3-215(a); TN ST § 57-4-202(a); TN ST §           57-4-203(j)(3).
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Package sales of alcoholic beverages (except beer con- taining less than 5 percent alcohol):Suspension – length not specified; Revocation – 1 year.
	<b>On- premises consumption of all alcoholic beverages</b> : <u>First offense</u> – Length of suspension/revocation is not specified; <u>Second offense</u> – <b>Permanent revocation.</b>
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor TN ST § 40-35-111; TN ST § 57-3-406(d); TN ST § 57-3-412(a)(1); TN ST § 57-4-101(a); TN ST § 57-4-203(b)(1), (j)(1), (4); TN ST § 57-5-101; TN ST § 57-5-301(a); TN ST § 57-6-102(1).
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>11 months, 29 days</b> and/or not more than

#### TENNESSEE

	<b>\$2,500</b> . TN ST § 40-35-111.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension/Revocation TN ST § 57-3-104(c)(1)(A); TN ST § 57-3-214; TN ST § 57-3-215(a); TN ST § 57-4-202(a); TN ST § 57-4-203(j)(4); TN ST § 57-5-109(c), (k); TN ST § 57-5-303(c).
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Package sales of alcoholic beverages (except beer containing less than 5 percent alcohol):Suspension – length not specified;Revocation- 1 yearOn- premises consumption of all alcoholic beverages:First offense – Length of suspension/revocation is not specified;Second offense – Permanent revocation
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No): Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes         TN ST § 55-10-416.           Yes         TN ST § 55-10-416.

STATE	TEXAS	
General Reference:	Texas Revised Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Intoxicated while driving	
	TX Penal § 49.04.	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{568}$ TX Penal § 49.01(2)(B); TX Penal § 49.04.	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old – Any detectable amount of alcohol. TX Al Bev§ 106.01; TX Al Bev§ 106.041(a).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Intoxicated while driving	
	TX Penal § 49.01(2)(A); TX Penal § 49.04.	
Other:	It is illegal for a person to operate a motor vehicle if such person is a chemically dependent person. TX Transp § 521.319.	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes TX Transp § 724.011	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes TX Transp § 724.011(a).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> TX Transp § 724.011(a).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	<b>Yes</b> (Criminal Cases) TX Transp § 724.061; TX Transp § 724.064.	
Other Information:	A law enforcement "shall require" a driver who has been arrested for driving while intoxicated and has refused to submit to test voluntarily to submit to a blood or breath test if the driver was involved in an accident that either resulted in a death or will likely result in one. TX Transp § 724.012.	
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> TX Transp § 724.011(a).	
Urine:	Yes – only if person consents	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>568</sup> **Standard**: Number of grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath, 100 milliliters of blood or 67 milliliters of urine. TX Penal § 49.01(1).

Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 5 years) – An evalu- ation is conducted to determine the appropriateness of an alcohol or drug rehabilitation program. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 §9(h).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> – <b>Suspension 180 days</b> ; <u>Subsequent refusal</u> (within 10 years) <b>Suspension 2 years</b> . TX Transp § 724.035.	
	<b>Occupational License</b> : If a person has not had a prior "al- cohol-related or drug-related enforcement contact," within 5 years of the arrest, an occupational license may be issued at any time based on essential need. If a person had had a prior "alcohol-related or drug-related enforcement con- tact," within 5 years such a license is not available until the person's license has been suspended for at least 90 days. An occupational license is only available once in a 10-year period.	
	TX Transp § 521.242; TX Transp § 521.245; TX Transp § 521.251.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>DWI</b> : <u>First offense</u> (Class B misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>72</b> <b>hours</b> or more than <b>180 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,000</b> ; <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years)(Class A misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$4,000</b> . <u>Second offense</u> (with a prior Intoxication Manslaughter within 5 years) (Third degree felony) – Not less than <b>2</b> <b>years</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> and a fine of not more than <b>\$10,000</b> may be imposed; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years) (Third degree felony) – Not less than <b>2 years</b> or more than <b>10 years</b> and a fine of not	

more than <b>\$10,000</b> may be imposed. TX Penal § 12.21; TX Penal § 12.22; TX Penal § 12.34;	
TTL D 10 40 04 TTL D 10 40 00	
TX Penal § 49.04; TX Penal § 49.09.	
Demons He der 21 Veren Old (ener dete stelle energet)	
<b>Persons Under 21 Years Old</b> (any detectable amount):	
<u>First &amp; second offense</u> (Class C misdemeanor) – Not more	
than <b>\$500</b> ;	
Subsequent offense – Not more than <b>180 days</b> and/or not	
less than <b>\$500</b> or more than <b>\$2,000</b> .	
TX Al Bev § 106.041; TX Penal § 12.23.	
Interior Account (coursing perious headily injug.) (Third	
<b>Intoxication Assault</b> (causing serious bodily injury)(Third degree felony) – Not less than <b>2 years</b> or more than <b>10</b>	
years and/or a fine of not more than \$10,000.	
TX Penal § 12.34; TX Penal § 49.07; TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 13(a).	
$42.12 \ $ § 15(a).	
<b>DWI – Child Passenger</b> (under 15 years of age) – Not	
less than <b>180 days</b> or more than <b>2 years</b> and a fine of not	
more than <b>\$10,000</b> may be imposed. TX Penal § 12.35;	
TX Penal § 49.045.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine: <b>DWI</b> :	
First offense – 72 hours <sup>569</sup>	
<u>Second offense</u> $-$ <b>30 days</b> (if community supervision is	
granted and the person is subject to use of ignition inter-	
lock = 5 days);	
Second offense (within a prior Intoxication Manslaughter	
within 5 years) 2 years (if community supervision is	
granted = $10 \text{ days}$ );	
<u>Third offense</u> – 2 years (if community supervision is	
granted = $10$ days).	
TX Penal § 49.04; TX Penal § 49.09; TX Crim Pro Art.	
42.12 § 13(i).	
<b>Note</b> : Under TX Penal § 12.44, a third degree felony of-	
fender may receive the imprisonment sanction of a Class A Misdemeanor.	
A misuemeanor.	
Persons Under 21 Years Old:	
<u>First or second offense</u> – None;	
<u>Subsequent offense</u> – None.	
TX Al Bev $\S$ 106.041.	
<b>Intoxication Assault – 2 years</b> (if community supervision	
is granted = <b>30 days</b> ). TX Penal § 49.07; TX Crim Pro	

 $<sup>^{569}</sup>$  If a first offender had in immediate possession an open container of an alcoholic beverage, the minimum term of confinement is 6 days. TX Penal § 49.04(c).

	Art. 42.12 § 13(i).	
	<b>DWI – Child Passenger</b> (under 15 years of age) – <b>2</b> years.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	A person convicted of a criminal offense may be required to perform community service according to the schedule listed below. This sanction is in addition to and not in lieu of other sanctions. <u>Third degree felony</u> – Not more than <b>600 hours</b> ; <u>Class A misdemeanor</u> – Not more than <b>200 hours</b> ; <u>Class B misdemeanor</u> – Not more than <b>100 hours</b> . TX Crime Pro Art. 42.036; TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 16(b).	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old:	
	<u>First &amp; second offense</u> – Not less than $20$ or more than $40$	
	hours; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – Not less than 40 or more than 60 hours.	
	TX Al Bev § 106.041(d).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	As a condition of community supervision. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 11.	
	A victim of a DWI offense may receive payments from a State victims' compensation fund via the State attorney general. TX Crim Pro 42.037; TX Crim Pro Art. 56.31 <i>et seq</i> .	
Other:	<b>Costs Attendant to Intoxication Convictions</b> : DWI offenders shall pay the following costs: (1) \$15 if a video camera was used in the arrest; (2) costs of evaluation; and (3) the cost of any emergency accident response necessitated by the DWI not to exceed \$1,000. TX Crim Proc Art. 102.018.	
	<b>Treatment Alternative to Incarceration</b> : An alcohol/ drug treatment program may be established as an alterna- tive to jail. Screening and assessment must be a part of this program when a person has been arrested for an of- fense in which use or possession of alcohol/drugs is an element. TX Govt § 76.017.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.08 <sup>570</sup> <u>First violation</u> – Suspension 90 days;	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>570</sup> An administrative per se suspension is not imposed or it is rescinded if a driver is acquitted of the drunk-driving offense associated with such suspension. TX Transp § 524.015(b). Additionally, an administrative per se suspension is credited towards a suspension imposed for a DWI offense conviction. TX Transp § 524.023.

	Subsequent violation (within 10 years) – <b>Suspension 1</b>
	year.
	ycal.
	<b>Occupational License</b> : If a person has not had a prior "al- cohol-related or drug-related enforcement contact" an oc- cupational license may be issued based on essential need. If a person has had a prior "alcohol-related or drug-related enforcement contact" within five years, such a license is not available until the person's license has been suspended for at least 90 days. An occupational license is only avail- able once in a 10-year period; and a court order granting an occupational license must order the driver to submit to alcohol and drug counseling and rehabilitation.
	TX Transp § 521.241; TX Transp § 521.242; TX Transp § 521.245; TX Transp § 521.251; TX Transp § 524.011; TX Transp § 524.012; TX Transp § 524.022(a).
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: <u>First violation</u> – Suspension 60 days (30 days mand); <u>Second violation</u> – Suspension 120 days (90 days mand) <u>Subsequent violation</u> – Suspension 180 days (90 days mand).
	TX Transp § 524.001; TX Transp § 524.012; TX Transp § 524.022(b), (c).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension TX Transp § 521.344.
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<b>DWL</b> <sup>571</sup>
Years, etc.):	First offense– Not less than 90 days or more than 1 year;Subsequent offense– Not less than 180 days or more than2years;Subsequent offense (within five years) – Not less than 1year or more than 2 years.TX Transp § 521.344(a); TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 13(k).
	<b>Persons Under 21 Years Old</b> <sup>572</sup> – <b>Suspension 1 year</b> . TX Transp § 521.342.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>571</sup> I. Except for subsequent DWI offenders (within 5 years) who are subject to required ignition interlock usage, a license cannot be suspended if a jury recommends community supervision and against such suspension. TX Transp § 521.344(d); TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 4; § 13(g). II. Except for subsequent DWI offenders (within 5 years) who are subject to required ignition interlock usage, an offender's license cannot be suspended if that person is required to attend an alcohol education program as part of probation. However, if a person has been previously convicted of a DWI offense, regardless of the time period between offenses, and such person has previously attended an alcohol education program as part of probation, that person's license must be suspended. The suspension periods, including any mandatory suspension period, are the same as for DWI. TX Transp § 521.344(d); TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § <sup>13</sup>(k).  $^{572}$  Except as noted, the licensing agency must suspend the offender's license regardless of whether the offender has been placed on

Mandatory Minimum Term of	Intoxication Assault: <u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>90 days</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (within five years) – <b>1 year</b> . TX Transp § 521.344(a). <b>DWI</b> :
Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – None; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (with required ignition interlock usage) – 1 year.
	Intoxicated Assault: <u>First offense</u> – None; <u>Subsequent offense</u> – 1 year.
	I. After the mandatory suspension period, offenders may be issued an occupational license based on "essential need." However, a person cannot be issued such a license if he was issued an occupational license within the past 10 years for a prior DWI offense conviction. TX Transp § 521.242(b)(2); TX Transp § 521.244.
	II. First offenders 21 years old or older placed on proba- tion are not subject to license suspension if they attend an alcohol education program. TX Transp § 521.344(d); TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 13(h), (j).
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education:	For any DWI offense, including Intoxication Assault and Intoxication Manslaughter as a condition of community supervision, an offender is required to complete an alcohol education program. This requirement may be waived upon a showing of good cause by the offender. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 13(h), (j).
Alcohol Treatment:	Felony offenders (third or subsequent DWI offenses, In- toxication Assault and Intoxication Manslaughter) may be confined in a substance abuse treatment facility in lieu of imprisonment from 90 days to 1 year. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 14(a).
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	N/A
Other:	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	<b>Work Release</b> : For misdemeanor and felony offenses (where imprisonment is in a county jail), the court may

probation and ordered to complete an alcohol education program. An offender's license is not subject to suspension if he/she is placed under community supervision and required to operate only motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices. Additionally, an occupational license is available. TX Transp § 521.241 *et seq.*, TX Transp § 521.342. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, offenders who are placed on community supervision must have their licenses suspended for 90 days, which must begin at the time they are placed on supervision. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 13(n).

	<ul> <li>allow an offender to participate in a work release program. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.034.</li> <li>Intermittent Sentence: A sentence may be served intermittently including confinement as a condition of community supervision. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.033.</li> <li>Electronic Monitoring: An offender may serve a county jail sentence via electronic monitored house arrest. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.035</li> <li>Incarceration Costs: Persons who are convicted of a misdemeanor offense may be required to pay the cost, at a rate of \$25 per day, for any incarceration time that they serve in a county jail. Indigent defendants may not be required to pay this cost. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.038.</li> </ul>	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive): Conditions of Use:	<ul> <li>Both</li> <li>Community supervision: For a first offense in situations where a defendant has been placed on community supervision, the court may require that the offender install an ignition interlock device on the vehicle. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 13(i).</li> <li>Occupational license based on essential need: When applying for an occupational license, the court may require a first offender and must require subsequent offenders within 10 years to only operate vehicles that are equipped with ignition interlock devices. An offender may obtain an exemption from using an ignition interlock device if required to operate a motor vehicle as part of employer. However, such exemption does not apply in the situations where the offender is self-employed and owns the vehicle. The ignition interlock device must be used for half of the license suspension period. For subsequent offenders within five years who are subject to the ignition interlock requirement, the time period of device usage is 1 year. TX Transp § 521.246.</li> </ul>	
	An offender who does not have a prior record of an im- plied consent refusal, an admin per se violation or DWI conviction can receive an occupational license without delay. However, an offender who has had a previous re- fusal or admin per se violation (within 5 years) must wait 90 days to obtain such a license. Likewise, an offender who has had a prior DWI offense conviction (within 5 years) must wait 180 days before obtaining occupational	

	driving privileges. TX Transp § 521.251.
	<b>By magistrate after release</b> : Unless the interests of justice indicate otherwise, a magistrate shall require a DWI subsequent offender, after release from confinement, to only operate vehicles that are equipped with ignition interlock devices. TX Crim Pro Art. 17.441
	Second or subsequent offenses or >.15 B.A.C.: The court shall order these offenders to install ignition inter- lock devices on all of the motor vehicles they own for 1 year following a period of license suspension. TX Penal § 49.09(h).
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Prohibited State v. Holt, 887 S.W.2d 16 (Tex.Crim.App. 1994).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Intoxication Manslaughter (Second degree felony) TX Penal § 49.08.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>2 years</b> or more than <b>20 years</b> and may be fined not more than <b>\$10,000</b> . TX Penal § 12.33.
Mandatory Minimum Term:	<b>120 days</b> if community supervision is granted. TX Crim Pro Art. 42.12 § 13(b).
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Suspension TX Transp § 521.344(b).
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	First offense– Not less than 180 days or more than 2years;Second or subsequent offense(within 10 years) – Not lessthan 1 year or more than 2 years.TX Transp § 521.344(b).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	First offense – None;Second or subsequent offense (within 10 years) – 1 year.TX Transp § 521.344(b).
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has an alcohol con- centration $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for either alcohol concentrations or the presence of a

	<ul> <li>controlled substance or drugs. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is for life (10 years mand). In addition, a CMV operator who has any measurable or detectable amount of alcohol in his/her system must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours.</li> <li>TX Transp § 522.003(1), (2), (5), (9), (23); TX Transp § 522.081; TX Transp § 522.082; TX Transp § 522.085; TX Transp § 522.086; TX Transp § 522.101; TX Transp § 522.102.</li> </ul>	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
<u>onense.</u>		
Sanction:	<b>Class B misdemeanor</b> TX Transp § 521.457(f-1).	
Criminal:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>180 days</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,000</b> . TX Transp § 521.457; TX Penal § 12.22.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension TX Transp § 521.292(a)(1).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The regular suspension period is extended for an addition- al period of the lesser of the term of the original suspen- sion or 1 year. TX Transp § 521.293	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	None An occupational license may be issued based on essential need. Tran. Code § 521.241.	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes TX Transp § 724.014.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Discretionary	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	21	

Sale/Purchase:	TX Al Bev § 106.01; TX Al Bev § 106.02; TX Al Bev § 106.03.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> Exemptions for employment or while in the presence of a parent or guardian. TX Al Bev § 106.01; TX Al Bev § 106.04; TX Al Bev § 106.05.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal <u>Actions</u> :		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes TX Al Bev § 2.02.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Yes</b> Limited to social hosts who serve alcohol to minors (under age 18). <i>See Smith v. Merritt,</i> 940 S.W.2d 602 (Tex. 1997).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who is not the parent, guardian, spouse or legal custodian of a minor under the age of 18 may be found guilty of a Class A misdemeanor if he/she purchases for or give alcohol to such minor. TX Al Bev § 106.06.	
<u>Criminal Action Against Owner or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class A Misdemeanor <sup>573</sup> TX Al Bev § 101.63.	
Imprisonment:	First offense       – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than         \$100 or more than \$500;         Second offense       – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than         \$100 or more than \$1,000.         TX Al Bev § 101.63(b), (c).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Suspension for not more than 60 days, revocation or cancellation.TX Al Bev § 11.61; TX Al Bev § 32.17; TX Al Bev § 61.71.	

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{1}{573}$  The sale must be with criminal negligence. TX Al Bev § 106.03(a).

Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Class A Misdemeanor <sup>574</sup> TX Al Bev § 101.63.         Type of Criminal Action:       Class A Misdemeanor <sup>574</sup> TX Al Bev § 101.63.         Term of Imprisonment:       Eirst offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$500; Second offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image: Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes TX Al Bev § 106.13.       Image: Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>90</b> days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>6</b> months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>12 months</b> . TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Class A Misdemeanor <sup>574</sup> TX AI Bev § 101.63.         Term of Imprisonment:       First offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than S100 or more than S00; Second offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than S500 or more than \$1,000.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image: Class A Misdemeanor <sup>574</sup> TX Al Bev § 101.63.         Type of Criminal Action:       Class A Misdemeanor <sup>574</sup> TX Al Bev § 101.63.         Term of Imprisonment:       First offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$500; Second offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Image: Class A Misdemeanor State Sta			
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Class A Misdemeanor <sup>574</sup> TX AI Bev § 101.63.         Term of Imprisonment:       First offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$500; Second offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000.         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Type of Criminal Action:       Class A Misdemeanor <sup>574</sup> TX AI Bev § 101.63.         Term of Imprisonment:       First offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$500; Second offense – Not more than \$1,000.         TX AI Bev § 101.63(b), (c).       TX AI Bev § 101.63(b), (c).         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Pressons Under the \$106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>90</b> days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>6</b> months; Third offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>6</b> months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>12</b> months. TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Term of Imprisonment:       First offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$500; Second offense – Not more than \$1,000. Second offense – Not more than \$1,000. TX AI Bev § 101.63(b), (c).         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>90</b> days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>6</b> months; Third offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>6</b> months; TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       No         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Term of Imprisonment:       First offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$500; Second offense – Not more than \$1,000. Second offense – Not more than \$1,000. TX AI Bev § 101.63(b), (c).         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>90</b> days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>6</b> months; Third offense – cancel or suspend for not more than <b>6</b> months; TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       No         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
\$100 or more than \$500; Second offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000. TX AI Bev § 101.63(b), (c).         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawal:       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13. First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Nes TX Penal § 49.031.		Class A Misdemeanor <sup>574</sup> TX Al Bev § 101.63.	
Second offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000. TX AI Bev § 101.63(b), (c).         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):         Length of Term License Withdrawal:         First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	Term of Imprisonment:	<u>First offense</u> – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not less than	
than \$500 or more than \$1,000. TX AI Bev § 101.63(b), (c).         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	-	<b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> ;	
than \$500 or more than \$1,000. TX AI Bev § 101.63(b), (c).         Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.		Second offense – Not more than 1 year and/or not less	
TX Al Bev § 101.63(b), (c).         Administrative Actions Against Owners of         Establishments That Serve Alcoholic         Beverages to Those Persons Under the         Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages         Withdrawn (Yes/No):         Length of Term License Withdrawal:         First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days;         Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months;         Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months.         TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Administrative Actions Against Owners of         Establishments That Serve Alcoholic         Beverages to Those Persons Under the         Minimum Legal Drinking Age:         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages         Withdrawn (Yes/No):         Length of Term License Withdrawal:         First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90         days;         Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6         months;         Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 6         months;         Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes TX Al Bev § 106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes TX Al Bev § 106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX AI Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:       Yes TX Al Bev § 106.13.         License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Yes TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Length of Term License Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Nes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Eirst offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Nes TX Penal § 49.031.	Minimum Legar Drinking Age.		
Withdrawn (Yes/No):       Eirst offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Nes TX Penal § 49.031.	License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Ves. TX A1 Bey & 106.13	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:       First offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 90 days; Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	•	1 <b>cs</b> 1X AI bev § 100.15.	
days;       Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months;         Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months.         TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.		First offense concel or suspend for not more than <b>00</b>	
Second offense – cancel or suspend for not more than 6 months; Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	Length of Term License withdrawar.		
months;       Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months.         TX Al Bev § 106.13.       TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Provide the following (1) the Possession of Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes       TX Penal § 49.031.			
Third offense (within 36 months) – cancel or suspend for not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
not more than 12 months. TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
TX Al Bev § 106.13.         Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:         No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:       No         Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle in the Passenger Law (Yes/No):         Yes       TX Penal § 49.031.			
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle is the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle is the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle is the Passenger Law (Yes/No):         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.		TX Al Bev § 106.13.	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:       Image: Compartment of a Vehicle is the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle is the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle is the Passenger Law (Yes/No):         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)         the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)         the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes TX Penal § 49.031.			
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in         the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):         Yes         TX Penal § 49.031.			
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:         Open Container Law (Yes/No):       Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):     Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):     Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No): Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> TX Penal § 49.031.	
	Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes TX Penal § 49.031.	

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{1}{574}$  The sale must be with criminal negligence. TX Al Bev § 106.03(a).

STATE	UTAH	
General Reference:	Utah Code Annotated	
	Utah Administrative Code	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol UT ST § 41-6a-502(1)(b).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{575}$ UT ST § 41-6a-502(1)(a), (c); UT ST § 53-3-223.	
	<u>Persons Under 21</u> – Any measurable blood, breath or urine	
$\mathbf{D}_{\mathbf{r}} = \mathbf{D}_{\mathbf{r}} \left( \mathbf{D} \wedge \mathbf{C} / \mathbf{D}_{\mathbf{r}} \wedge \mathbf{C} \right)$	alcohol concentration. UT ST § 53-3-231(2)(a).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug or a combination of any drug and alcohol, or has any measurable controlled sub-	
	stance or metabolite of a controlled substance in the per-	
	son's body. UT ST § 41-6a-502(1)(b); UT ST § 41-6a-	
	517(2).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes UT ST § 41-6a-520	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> UT ST § 41-6a-520(2)	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs	<b>Yes</b> UT ST § 41-6a-520(1)(a)	
(Yes/No):		
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal and Civil Cases)	
Admitted into Evidence:	UT ST § 41-6a-524.	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> UT ST § 41-6a-520(1)(a).	
Urine:	<b>Yes</b> UT ST § 41-6a-520(1)(a).	
Other:	<b>Oral fluids</b> UT ST § 41-6a-520(1)(a).	
other.		
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatana Adiadi di Tarah NTA	NT I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No However a court move not account a place of quilty or no	
	However, a court may not accept a plea of guilty or no	
	contest to a DUI charge unless: (1) the prosecutor agrees	
	to the plea in open court, in writing or by any other means of adequate communication to record the prosecutor's	
	agreement; (2) the charge is filed by information; or (3)	
	agreement, (2) the charge is med by information, or (3)	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>575</sup> Alcohol concentration is defined as grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. UT ST § 41-6a-502(2).

	the court receives verification from law enforcement that the defendant's driver's license records shows no convic- tion of more than 1 prior violation within 10 years, a felo- ny DUI conviction or automobile homicide. A prosecutor must examine a defendant's criminal and driver's records before entering into a plea. UT ST § 41-6a-513.	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	No	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 18 months</b> ; <u>Subsequent refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 36 months</b> . <sup>576</sup>	
	Persons Under 21: <u>First refusal</u> – Revocation until age 21 or 18 months, whichever is longer; <u>Subsequent refusal</u> – Revocation until age 21 or 36 months, whichever is longer.	
	UT ST § 41-6a-521.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	DUI (including controlled substances): <u>First and second offense</u> (Class B misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Subsequent offense</u> (where prior offense is felony DUI or automobile homicide) (Third degree felony) – Not more than <b>5 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) (Third degree felony) – Not more than <b>5 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> .	
	<b>DUI – Injury/With Child Passenger</b> (Class A misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> .	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>576</sup> If arrest was made on or after July 1, 2009, and the person had a previous license sanction within the previous 10 years for a DUI, refusal, or DUI (controlled substance) offense. UT ST § 41-6a-521.

	<b>DUI – Serious Bodily Injury</b> (Third degree felony) – Not
	more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000.
	<b>Impaired Driving</b> <sup>577</sup> (Class B misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> .
	UT ST § 41-6a-503; UT ST § 76-3-203; UT ST § 76-3- 204; UT ST § 76-3-301.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>48 consecutive hours/\$700</b> <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>240 consecutive</b> <b>hours/\$800</b> ;
	<u>Subsequent offense</u> (where prior offense is felony DUI or automobile homicide) – <b>1500 hours/\$1,500</b> ;
	Third offense (within 10 years) – <b>1500 hours/\$1,500</b> .
	<b>DUI – Injury/With Child Passenger</b> (Class A misde- meanor) – <b>None</b>
	DUI – Serious Bodily Injury (Third degree felony) – 1500/\$1,500.
	<b>Impaired Driving</b> (Class B misdemeanor) – <b>None</b> .
	UT ST § 41-6a-505.
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	<u>First offense</u> – Not less than <b>24 hours</b> in lieu of impri-
	sonment;
	<u>Second offense</u> – Not less than <b>240 hours</b> in lieu of im-
	prisonment; UT ST § 41-6a-505.
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes
	Victims Compensation Fund or direct payment by the de-
	fendant to the victim. UT ST 63M-7-501, et seq., UT ST §
	76-3-201; UT ST § 77-38a-301.
Other:	<b>Electronic Home Monitoring</b> : As an alternative to imprisonment or community service for a first or subsequent
	offense, a person may be allowed to participate in a home
	confinement electronic monitoring program. The court may impose a restriction on the consumption of alcoholic
	beverages by the offender as part of this program. UT ST
	§ 41-6a-505.
	<b>Surcharge</b> : A DUI-related fine is subject to an additional 90% surcharge. UT ST § 51-9-401(1).
	70/0 sureliaige. 01 51 § 51-7-401(1).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>577</sup> Impaired driving is a lesser offense and a defendant may plead guilty to this for an offense committed on or after July 1, 2008, and if the defendant completes court ordered probation requirements or the prosecutor agrees as part of a negotiated plea, and the plea is in the interests of justice. UT ST § 41-6a-502.5; UT ST § 76-3-402.

Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes <u>First suspension</u> – 120 days; <u>Second or subsequent suspension</u> (within 10 years) – 2 years.	
	Persons Under 21: <u>First suspension</u> – Until <b>age 21</b> or <b>120 days</b> , whichever is longer; <u>Second or subsequent suspension</u> (within 10 years) – Until <b>age 21</b> or <b>2 years</b> , whichever is longer.	
	UT ST § 53-3-223.	
Other:	Under UT ST § 53-3-221, a person's license may be sus- pended for not more than 1 year if that person has commit- ted an offense usually requiring license revocation. Such action may be taken without a preliminary hearing and may occur prior to a conviction.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation	
	<u>First offense</u> (for either injury or non-injury-related of- fenses) – <b>Suspension</b> ; <u>Subsequent DUI offense (</u> within 10 years for either injury or non-injury-related offenses) – <b>Revocation</b> UT ST § 41-6a-509; US ST § 53-3-220; UT ST § 53-3- 221.	
	Any Measurable Controlled Substance in the Body – <u>First offense</u> – <b>Suspension</b> ; <u>Subsequent DWI offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>Revocation</b> UT ST § 41-6a-517.	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	DUIFirst offenseSuspension for 120 days or Revocationfor not more than 1 year.Second offense (within 10 years) – Revocation 2 years.UT ST § 41-6a-509; UT ST § 53-3-221(9)(a).	
	<b>Impaired Driving</b> : <sup>578</sup> <u>First conviction</u> – <b>No suspension</b> ;	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>578</sup> The suspension or revocation period for a DUI conviction is reduced by any suspension period received under the administrative per se law. UT ST § 41-6a-517(6)(c). It should be noted that impaired driving is a lesser offense to which a person can plead guilty after being charged with DUI. The court entering the plea may still order suspension of the offender's driver's license for a period of 90 days under UT ST § 53-3-220(1)(a)(viii). UT ST § 41-6a-502.

	$\mathbf{S}_{-1}$ $\mathbf{D}_{-1}$ $\mathbf{D}$	
	Subsequent conviction (within 10 years) – Revocation 1	
	year. UT ST $(52, 2, 220(1)(2)(2)(2))$	
	UT ST § 53-3-220(1)(a)(viii).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	Suspension or revocation is mandatory. UT ST § 53-3-	
Withdrawal:	220(4)(a).	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:	Yes	
	Substance abuse assessment is required, including screen-	
	ing, assessment, education series and subsequent sub-	
	stance abuse treatment. <sup>579</sup> UT ST § 17-43-201(4)(m); UT	
	ST § 41-6a-502.5; UT ST § 41-6a-505; UT ST § 53-3-231.	
Alcohol Education:	Yes	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment	
Authorized by Specific Statutory	If a peace officer arrests, cites or refers for administrative	
Authority:	action the operator of a motor vehicle for violating a DUI	
	law, the officer shall seize and impound the vehicle.	
	UT ST § 41-6a-527; UT ST § 41-6a-1406.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	If a registered owner of the vehicle, other than the operator	
Released:	is present at the time of arrest, the peace officer may re-	
	lease the vehicle to that registered owner only if: (1) the	
	registered owner requests to remove the vehicle and	
	presents sufficient identification to prove ownership; and	
	(2) the vehicle is legally operable. UT ST § 41-6a-527(2).	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included	Assessments for Treatment: Following a DUI convic-	
Elsewhere:	tion, the court may assess a defendant an amount sufficient	
	to fully compensate agencies for the cost of any treatment	
	provided to such offender. UT ST § 62A-15-502; UT ST	
	§ 62A-15-503.	
	<b>Probation with BAC <math>\geq</math> .16</b> : An offender with a BAC $\geq$	
	.16 must be placed on probation. UT ST § 41-6a-505.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Both	
Conditions of Use:	The court <u>may</u> require the use of an ignition interlock de-	
	vice for anyone convicted of a DUI and who is granted	
	probation, for the period of probation.	
	The court shall require the use of an ignition interlock de-	
	vice for a person under the age of 21, as a condition of	
	probation.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>579</sup> An offender's driving privileges cannot be restored until that person has (1) satisfactorily completed alcohol or drug assessment, education, treatment or rehabilitation program that has been ordered and (2) paid any fines or fees, including restitution fees, and rehabilitation costs. UT ST § 41-6a-517.

Sobriety Checkpoints:	If the court imposes such use, it shall stipulate on the record the requirement for and period of use of the ignition interlock device. If the defendant had a BAC of $\geq$ .16, the court <u>shall</u> order ignition interlock and/or electronic home monitoring. UT ST § 41-6a-518.	
Permitted or Prohibited:	<b>Permitted</b> UT ST § 77-23-103; UT ST § 77-23-104.	
remitted of Fromoted.	<b>Termitted</b> 01 51 § 77-25-105, 01 51 § 77-25-104.	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Automobile Homicide <sup>580</sup> UT ST § 76-5-207.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Third Degree Felony– Not more than 5 years and/or not more than \$5,000;Second Degree Felony– Not less than 1 year or more than 15 years and/or not more than \$10,000.UT ST § 76-3-203; UT ST § 76-3-301; UT ST § 76-5-207.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> UT ST § 53-3-220(1)(a).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>1 year</b> UT ST § 53-3-225.	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>1 year</b> No hardship license may be issued. UT ST § 53-3-220(4)(a)(i).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	Persons are disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 mandatory year (3 mandatory years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, they: (1) have an alcohol concentration ≥.04; (2) are under the influence of alcohol, drugs or a controlled substance; or (3) refuse to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is for life (10 years mand). In addition, a CMV operator who has any measurable (or detectable) amount of alcohol in his/her system must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>580</sup> Automobile Homicide is a third degree felony, where a person operates a motor vehicle in a negligent manner and causes the death of another while driving under the influence. However, it becomes a second degree felony if it is subsequent to a DUI conviction. The second degree felony is where a person operates a motor vehicle in a criminally negligent manner and causes the death of another while driving under the influence. By virtue of the prior DUI conviction, the standard of criminal negligence is met because it is presumed the person should have known the consequences of such behavior. UT ST § 76-2-103; UT ST § 76-5-207.

	UT ST § 53-3-102(5)(a), (9); UT ST § 53-3-414; UT ST § 53-3-417; UT ST § 53-3-418.	
Driving While License Suspended or		
Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI		
Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Class B misdemeanor UT ST § 53-3-227(3).	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> . UT ST § 53-3-227(3)(a); UT ST § 76-3-204; UT ST § 76- 3-301.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	\$750	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation UT ST § 53-3-220(2)(a).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal	An additional like period of suspension or revocation, to a	
Action:	maximum of one year for each subsequent occurrence. UT ST § 53-3-220(2).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The term imposed will be mandatory. UT ST § 53-3-220(4).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> UT ST § 26-1-30(2)(q).	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the		
the Following Persons:	Yes	
Driver: Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes (Adults only)	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> UT ST § 32A-12-203(1); UT ST § 32A-12-209.	
Sale/Purchase:	There is an exception for medicinal purposes if furnished	
Minimum Age (Vears)	by parents, physicians, or dentists. 21 UT ST § 32A-12-209.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> U1 S1 § 32A-12-207.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		
Actions:		

State Has a Dram Shop Law	<b>Yes</b> UT ST § 32A-14a-102(1).	
(Yes/No):		
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes Limited to minors (under age 21) UT ST § 32A-14a-102(2).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who negligently or recklessly, or knowingly serves a minor alcohol may be found guilty of a class B or class A misdemeanor, respectively. A person above age 18 who provides alcohol to a person under the age of 18 may be found guilty of contributing to the delinquency of a minor, a class B misdemeanor. UT ST § 32A-12-203; UT ST § 76-10-2301.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Negligently or recklessly – Class B misdemeanor; Knowingly – Class A misdemeanor. UT ST § 32A-4-106(11); UT ST § 32A-12-104; UT ST § 32A-12-204.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Negligently or recklessly– Not more than 6 monthsand/or not more than \$1,000;Knowingly– Not more than 1 year and/or not more than\$2,500.UT ST § 76-3-204; UT ST § 76-3-301.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension, Revocation or Imposition of Fine UT ST § 32A-1-119(6).	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Suspension: Time period not specified in the statute (but see UT ADC R81-1 for a table summarizing fine and sus- pension ranges). Revocation: At least 3 years UT ST § 32A-1-119(6).	
	Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	

Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
the Minimum Legar Drinking Age.		
Type of Criminal Action:	Negligently or recklessly – Class B misdemeanor;	
	Knowingly – Class A misdemeanor.	
	UT ST § 32A-4-106(11); UT ST § 32A-12-104; UT ST §	
	32A-12-203.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Negligently or recklessly – Not more than 6 months	
renn or imprisonment/r inc.		
	and/or not more than \$1,000;	
	<u>Knowingly</u> – Not more than 1 year and/or not more than	
	\$2,500.	
	UT ST § 76-3-204; UT ST § 76-3-301.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension, Revocation or Imposition of Fine	
withdrawn (105/100).	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Suspension: Time period not specified in the statute (but	
	see UT ADC R81-1 for a table summarizing fine and sus-	
	pension ranges).	
	<b>Revocation</b> : At least <b>3 years</b>	
	Revocation: At least 3 years UT ST 8 32A-1-119(6)	
	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6).	
	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6).	
	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more	
	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a	
	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more	
	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a	
	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a). Yes UT ST § 32A-4-106(12)(a)(i).	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in	UT ST § 32A-1-119(6). Administrative Fine: An administrative fine of not more than \$25,000 may be imposed in lieu of or in addition to a license suspension. UT ST § 32A-1-107(4)(a).	

STATE	VERMONT	
General Reference:	Vermont Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of intoxicating liquor 23 VSA § 1201(a)(2).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{581}$ ( $\geq$ .02 if operating a school bus) 23 VSA §1201(a)(1).	
	$\frac{\text{Persons Under 21 Years Old}}{23 \text{ VSA } 1216(a)} = 2.02$	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any other drug or a combination of any other drug and alcohol. 23 VSA § 1201(a)(3).	
Other:	A BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .08 is a permissive inference of a DUI offense. 23 VSA § 1204(a)(2).	
	≥.02 within 2 hours of incident is a rebuttable presumption that a person < 21 years old committed a civil traffic violation. 23 VSA § 1216(e).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes 23 VSA § 1203(f).	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes 23 VSA § 1202	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	No 23 VSA § 1202(a).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 23 VSA § 1202(a).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (in Criminal Cases) 23 VSA § 1202(b).	
Other Information:	I. A driver who is involved in a fatal incident or collision where there are reasonable grounds to believe that alcohol or other drugs were in person's system is subject to the implied law; i.e., that person is required to submit to a chemical test of breath or blood for alcoholic content and, if the test is refused, the driver's license is suspended or revoked. 23 VSA § 1202(a). This requirement also exists for drivers who previously have been convicted of DUI where there are reasonable grounds to believe the driver is DUI. 23 VSA § 1201(b).	
	II. A driver involved in an accident that resulted in a bodi- ly injury or death to another who refuses to submit to a	

 $<sup>^{581}</sup>$  Alcohol concentration is defined as grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. 23 VSA § 1200(1).

	<ul> <li>blood or breath chemical test under the implied consent law may be compelled to submit to a blood test via a search warrant. 23 VSA § 1202(f).</li> <li>III. Results of a preliminary breath test are admissible in a DUI proceeding against persons under 21. 23VSA § 1216(d).</li> </ul>	
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>		
Blood:	Yes 23 VSA § 1202.	
Urine:	No	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes	
(Yes/No):	Before sentencing, the court may order a defendant to submit to an alcohol assessment screening. 23 VSA § 1210(a).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> Test:		
Criminal Sanctions (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> Chemical Test:		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> – Suspension 6 months; <u>Second refusal</u> – Suspension 18 months; <u>Third or subsequent refusal</u> – Suspension for life (3 years mandatory). 23 VSA § 1205(a), (m).	
Other:	<ul> <li>I. No person shall have his license reinstated until he has met all conditions of reinstatement, which includes successful completion of alcohol education, treatment and/or therapy programs. 23 VSA § 1209a.</li> <li>II. Prior to reinstatement, a \$50 surcharge shall be assessed to a person whose license is suspended for a refusal. 23 VSA § 1205(r).</li> </ul>	

	III. Suspensions shall run concurrently. 23 VSA § 1205(p).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First conviction (misdemeanor) – Not more than 2 years and/or not more than \$750; Second conviction (misdemeanor) – Not more than 2 years and/or not more than \$1,500; Third or subsequent conviction (felony) – Not more than 5 	
	<ul> <li>DUI – Serious Injury: Not more than 15 years and/or not more than \$5,000.</li> <li>13 VSA § 1; 23 VSA § 1210.</li> </ul>	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	<u>Second conviction</u> – <b>60 consecutive hours</b> ; <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> – <b>100 consecutive</b> <b>hours</b> . <sup>582</sup> 23 VSA § 1210(c), (d).	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	<u>First conviction</u> – Community service may be ordered; <u>Second conviction</u> – At least <b>200 hours</b> mandatory in lieu of imprisonment; <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> – At least <b>400 hours</b> man- datory in lieu of imprisonment. 13 VSA § 7030; 23 VSA § 1210(c), (d).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	<b>Yes</b> The court may order a defendant to pay restitution to a victim. 13 VSA § 7043.	
Other:	Surcharge: In addition to any fine, an offender must pay the following surcharges: <b>\$60</b> , used to fund the health de- partment's laboratory services special fund; <b>\$50</b> , used to fund public defenders special fund; and <b>\$50</b> , used to fund drunk-driving law enforcement. 23 VSA § 1210(h), (i), (j).	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	Yes ≥ .08 <u>First action</u> – Mandatory Suspension 90 days; <u>Second action</u> – Mandatory Suspension 18 months; <u>Third or subsequent action</u> – Suspension for life (3 years mandatory). 23 VSA § 1205.	
Post DWI Conviction:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>582</sup> These mandatory periods shall be ordered if community service is not ordered. 23 VSA § 1210(c), (d).

Licensing Action:	Sugnanzian/Davagation
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	23 VSA § 1206; 23 VSA § 1208. <u>First conviction</u> – <b>Suspension 90 days</b> ;
Years, etc.):	Second conviction – Suspension 18 months;
rears, etc.).	<u>Second conviction</u> – Suspension 18 months, <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> – Revocation for life.
	$\frac{111111}{23} \text{VSA} \$ 1206(c); 23 \text{ VSA} \$ 1208.$
Mondatory Minimum Torm of	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	<u>First offense</u> – 90 days;
Withdrawal:	Second offense – 18 months;
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – <b>Life</b> (but maybe reinstated
	after three years of abstinence).
	23 VSA § 1206; 23 VSA § 1209a.
	Demons II. dem 21 Verene Olde
	Persons Under 21 Years Old:
	<u>First violation</u> – <b>Suspension 6 months</b> and until such per-
	son complies with an alcohol and drug program, which
	includes alcohol screening and education;
	Second or subsequent violation – Suspension 1 year or
	until the person reaches age <b>21</b> , whichever is longer, and
	until such person complies with an alcohol education,
	treatment and/or therapy program.
	23 VSA § 1209a; 23 VSA § 1216(a)(1), (2).
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	Yes
	First license suspension, a defendant must complete an
	alcohol and driver education program. After this program,
	the person must submit to an assessment to determine if
	additional therapy is needed. The defendant must com-
	plete any required education or therapy prior to license
	reinstatement.
	Second suspension, a defendant has to successfully com-
	plete an alcohol and driving rehabilitation program and
	show substantial progress in completing a therapy program
	prior to license reinstatement.
	Third or subsequent suspension, a defendant has to com-
	plete or show substantial progress in completing a therapy
	program prior to license reinstatement.
	23 VSA § 1205; 23 VSA § 1206; 23 VSA § 1208; 23 VSA
	§ 1209a(a).
Alcohol Education:	Yes
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Immobilization
	Forfeiture
Authorized by Specific Statutory	Immobilization: Second or subsequent offense – the ve-
Authority:	hicle operated by the offender may be immobilized for 18
	months or when that person obtains a valid license, whi-
	chever comes first. 23 VSA § 1213a.
	Forfeiture: Third or subsequent offense – the vehicle op-

	erated by the offender may be forfeited. 23 VSA § 1213b.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	The court may consider any undue hardship which immo- bilization or forfeiture would cause to a person, other than the defendant, who is dependent on the motor vehicle for essential transportation needs. 23 VSA § 1213c.	
Other:	<b>Special Assessment</b> : A defendant is assessed a mandatory <b>\$36.00</b> fee, of which \$28.75 is deposited into an account that is used to assist/compensate victims of crimes. 13 VSA § 7282.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	No Statutory Provisions	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	×	
Conditions of Use:		
Salarista Chaslas sinta		
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted State v. Record, 548 A.2d 422 (Vt. 1988).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes 23 VSA § 1210(e).	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than 1 year or more than 15 years and/or not more than \$10,000.	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Suspension <sup>583</sup> 23 § 1210(e).	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>1 year</b> and until a defendant completes alcohol education, treatment and/or therapy. 23 VSA § 1206(b); 23 VSA § 1209a.	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	1 year	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of either intoxicating liq- uor or drugs (or under the combined influence of alcohol and any drug); or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the disqualification is for life (may be reduced to 10 years).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>583</sup> Before a defendant's license is reinstated, that person must complete an alcohol and driver education program. 23 VSA § 1209a.

<ul> <li>If a CMV out-of-state operator holds a CDL from a State that does not have a reciprocal disqualification agreement with Vermont, the CDL privileges in Vermont are suspended as above for operating a CMV with a BAC/BrAC of ≥.04 or while under the influence of alcohol/drugs.</li> <li>In addition, a CMV operator who has any measurable (or detectable) amount of alcohol in the system must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours.</li> <li>23 VSA § 4(59); 23 VSA § 1218; 23 VSA § 1219; 23 VSA § 4103; 23 VSA § 4116; 23 VSA § 4116a.</li> </ul>	
Misdemeanor	
Not more than <b>2 years</b> <sup>584</sup> and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . 13 VSA § 1; 23 VSA § 674(b).	
<u>First offense</u> – <b>\$300</b> or <b>40 hours</b> community service; <sup>585</sup> <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>\$750</b> or <b>80 hours</b> com- munity service; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>12 days</b> of preapproved furlough with community restitution (suspended sentence); <u>Fourth offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>18 days</b> of preapproved furlough with community restitution (suspended sentence); <u>Fifth and subsequent offenses</u> (within 5 years) – <b>16 days</b> . 23 VSA § 674(b).	
Suspension 23 VSA § 674(f).	
The suspension period shall not be deemed to expire until the defendant has complied with alcohol education, treat- ment and/or therapy and the person's license has been reinstated. 23 VSA § 674(f).	
None	
<b>Immobilization</b> : <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – the vehicle operated by the offender may be immobilized for 18	
months or when the person obtains a valid license, whi- chever comes first. 23 VSA § $674(g)$ .	
	that does not have a reciprocal disqualification agreement with Vermont, the CDL privileges in Vermont are sus- pended as above for operating a CMV with a BAC/BrAC of $\geq$ .04 or while under the influence of alcohol/drugs. In addition, a CMV operator who has any measurable (or detectable) amount of alcohol in the system must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours. 23 VSA § 4(59); 23 VSA § 1218; 23 VSA § 1219; 23 VSA § 4103; 23 VSA § 1218; 23 VSA § 1219; 23 VSA § 4103; 23 VSA § 4116; 23 VSA § 4116a. <b>Misdemeanor</b> Not more than <b>2 years</b> <sup>584</sup> and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . 13 VSA § 1; 23 VSA § 674(b). <u>First offense</u> – <b>\$300</b> or <b>40 hours</b> community service; <sup>585</sup> <u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>12 days</b> of preapproved furlough with community restitution (suspended sentence); <u>Fourth offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>18 days</b> of preapproved furlough with community restitution (suspended sentence); <u>Fifth and subsequent offenses</u> (within 5 years) – <b>16 days</b> . 23 VSA § 674(b). <b>Suspension</b> 23 VSA § 674(f). The suspension period shall not be deemed to expire until the defendant has complied with alcohol education, treat- ment and/or therapy and the person's license has been reinstated. 23 VSA § 674(f). <b>None</b> <b>Immobilization</b> : <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – the ve-

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>584</sup> If a person is convicted of both driving on a suspended and DUI, any penalty or suspension/revocation for these offenses shall be consecutive (not concurrent). 23 VSA § 674(d).
 <sup>585</sup> If there is no term of imprisonment, community service shall be performed within 120 days. 23 VSA § 674(b)(1).

	erated by the offender may be forfeited. 23 VSA § 674(h).	
	<b>Surcharge</b> : A \$50 surcharge shall be assessed, which is added to any fine or other surcharge imposed by the court. 23 VSA § 674(i).	
	<b>Reinstatement fee</b> : A \$65 fee shall be paid before any license is reinstated. 23 VSA § 675.	
	<b>Removal of license plates</b> : A law enforcement officer shall have the authority to remove any number plates from a motor vehicle which is being operated in violation of the statute. 23 VSA § 674(c).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 23 VSA § 673a.	
Grounds for Being Declared an	8 or more convictions based on moving violations (with 6	
Habitual Offender:	points or more assessed for DWI offenses within 5 years).	
Term of License Rev While Under	2 years	
Habitual Offender Status:	23 VSA § 673a.	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	None	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	21.7 MOA & 2020 T MOA & CEC.7 MOA & CET.7 MOA	
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> 7 VSA § 2(26); 7 VSA § 656; 7 VSA § 657; 7 VSA § 658	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> There is an employment exemption and an exemption for students age 18 or older and enrolled in post-secondary education culinary art program. 7 VSA § 2(26); 7 VSA § 656; 7 VSA § 657; 7 VSA 3.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 7 VSA § 501. <sup>586</sup>	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>586</sup> A person who sells or furnishes alcohol to a minor, where the person under the age of 21, while operating a motor vehicle on a public highway causes death or serious bodily injury to himself or herself or to another person as a result of the violation, shall be imprisoned not more than 5 years and/or fined not more than \$10,000.00. 7 VSA § 658(d).

#### VERMONT

Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State		
(Case Citation):		
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes (Minors only) 7 VSA 501(g)(2).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	A person who furnishes alcohol to a minor may be found guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 2 years and/or not less than \$500 or more than \$2,000. 7 VSA § 658.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>None</b> <i>Langle v. Kurkul</i> , 510 A.2d 1301, 1304 (Vt. 1986)(holding there is no statute in Vermont making it a crime for any person [vendors or social hosts] to sell or furnish alcohol to an adult who is visibly intoxicated).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments that Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Deverages to internet rations.		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	N/A	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or		
Employees of Establishments that Serve		
Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of		
Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		
the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
the Minimum Legar Drinking Age.		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> <sup>587</sup> 7 VSA § 658; 13 VSA § 1.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than 2 years and/or not less than \$500 or more	
	than <b>\$2,000</b> . 7 VSA § 658	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of		
Establishments That Serve Alcoholic		
Beverages to Those Persons Under the		
Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Semie Alectedia Deces	Vez	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes Sugneration/Devection	
Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Suspension/Revocation	
	7 VSA § 236(a).	

 $<sup>^{587}</sup>$ However, an employee of a licensee or an employee of a state-contracted liquor agency, who in the course of employment sells or furnishes alcohol to a minor during a compliance check conducted by law enforcement, shall be assessed a civil penalty of not more than \$100 (first violation), or not less than \$100 or more than \$500 (second violation that occurs more than 1 year after the first), and shall be subject to the criminal penalties for a second violation (within 1 year) or third or subsequent violation (within 3 years of the first). 7 VSA § 658(c)(1).

#### VERMONT

	An administrative penalty of not more than \$2,500 may be imposed on a licensee in lieu of suspension/revocation. 7 VSA § 236(b).
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Indeterminate 7 VSA § 236(a).
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open	
Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2)	
the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in	
the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 23 VSA § 1134(b); 23 VSA § 1134a(a).
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> 23 VSA § 1134(a); 23 VSA § 1134a(a).

STATE	VIRGINIA	
General Reference:	Code of Virginia Annotated	
	Virginia Administrative Code	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol VA ST § 18.2-266.	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq$ .08 <sup>588</sup> (BAC/BrAC)	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old: $\geq$ .02 but <.08 VA ST § 18.2-266.1(A).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq$ .08 BAC VA ST § 18.2-269.	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug, any narcotic drug, any self-administered intoxicant or drug of whatsoever nature, or a combine influence of alcohol and any drug or drugs, or while such person has a blood concentration equal to or greater than: (a) .02 milligrams of cocaine per liter of blood; (b) 0.1 milligrams of methamphetamine per liter of blood; (c) .01 milligrams of phencyclidine per liter of blood; or (d) 0.1 milligrams of 3, 4- methylenedioxymethamphetamine per liter of blood. VA ST § 18.2-266 (v).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> VA ST § 18.2-267(a).	
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> VA ST § 18.2-268.2	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> VA ST § 18.2-268.2.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> VA ST § 18.2-268.2.	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	<b>Yes</b> Evidence of an unreasonable refusal may be admitted <i>only</i> to explain the absence of a chemical test result but not as evidence of guilt. <sup>589</sup> VA ST § 18.2-268. 10(C).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	<b>Yes</b> VA ST § 18.2-268.2(A).	
Urine:	No	
Other:	No	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>588</sup> Standards: For blood, percent by weight by volume; for breath, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. VA ST § 18.2-266; VA ST § 18.2-266.1(A); VA ST § 18.2-269(A)(3); VA ST § 46.2-391.2.
 <sup>589</sup> The Virginia Court of Appeals has held, in an *en banc* decision that it is constitutional under both the Federal and State constitutions to admit evidence of a person's refusal to submit to "field sobriety tests." *Farmer v. Commonwealth*, 404 S.E.2d 371 (Va. App. 1001) 1991).

Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	Yes         An alcohol/drug screening/assessment mandatory via the         Alcohol Safety Action Program prior to any treatment. VA         ST § 18.2-271.1(A); VA ST § 19.2-299; VA ST § 19.2-299.2(A).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	<u>Second refusal</u> (within 10 years) (Class 2 misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$1,000</b> ; <u>Third refusal</u> (within 10 years) (Class 1 misdemeanor) – Not more than <b>12 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . VA ST § 18.2-11; VA ST § 18.2-268.3.	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	First refusal <sup>590</sup> – Suspension 1 year;         Second refusal (within 10 years) – Suspension 3 years         plus 7 days;         Third refusal (within 10 years) – Suspension 3 years plus         60 days. <sup>591</sup>	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First offense (Class 1 Misdemeanor) – Not more than 12months and/or not more than \$2,500;Second offense (Class 1 Misdemeanor) – Not more than 1year and/or not more than \$2,500;Third offense (Within 10 years)(Class 6 Felony) – Not lessthan 1 year or more than 5 years, or not more than 12months and/or not more than \$2,500;Fourth or subsequent offense (Within 10 years)(Class 6Felony) – Not less than 1 year or more than \$2,500;Fourth or subsequent offense (Within 10 years)(Class 6Felony) – Not less than 1 year or more than 5 years, ornot more than 12 months and/or not more than 5 years, orNot less than 1 year or more than 5 years, orNot S 18.2-10; VA ST § 18.2-11; VA ST § 18.2-270.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>590</sup> A first violation is a civil offense. Subsequent violations are criminal offenses. VA ST § 18.2-268.3(D). <sup>591</sup> The 7- and 60-day suspensions are administrative suspensions in addition to court suspensions. The court may dismiss a refusal suspension action if the defendant pleads guilty to a DUI offense. VA ST § 18.2-268.4.

	Offense for Persons Under 21 Years: A fine of not more	
	than <b>\$500</b> . VA ST § 18.2-266.1.	
	<b>DUI – Maiming</b> (Class 6 Felony) – Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> , or not more than <b>12 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . VA ST § 18.2-51.4.	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	$\frac{\text{First offense} - \$250;}{\text{First offense}} (BAC \ge .15 \text{ but} \le .20) - 5 \text{ days}/\$250;}$ $\frac{\text{First offense}}{\text{First offense}} (BAC \ge .20) - 10 \text{ days}/\$250;}$	
	Second offense (within less than 5 years) – 20 days/\$500; Second offense (within 5-10 years) – 10 days/\$500; Second offense (within 10 years)(BAC $\geq$ .15 but $\leq$ .20) – Additional 10 days/\$500; Second offense (within 10 years)(BAC $\geq$ .20) – Additional 20 days/\$500;	
	<u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>90 days/\$1000</b> ; <u>Third offense</u> (within 5 years) – <b>6 months/\$1000</b> ;	
	<u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) –1 year/\$1,000.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	For persons under 21, 50 hours of community service may be ordered in lieu of the \$500 fine. VA ST § 18.2-266.1. Additionally, the court may order community service as a condition of probation. VA ST § 19.2-303; VA ST § 19.2- 305.1.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes The court may order a defendant to pay restitution to a victim. In addition, a crime victims compensation fund is available. VA ST § 19.2-305; VA ST § 19.2-368.1 <i>et seq.</i>	
Other:	<b>Trauma Fund</b> : The court shall order any defendant con- victed of a DUI offense to pay \$50 to the Trauma Center Fund. VA ST § 18.2-270.01	
	<b>Child Endangerment</b> : <sup>592</sup> A person convicted of a DUI offense while transporting a person 17 years old or younger shall be fine an <i>additional</i> minimum \$500 and not more than \$1,000 and sentenced to a mandatory minimum period of 5 days. VA ST § 18.2-270(D).	
	<b>EMS/Enforcement Costs</b> : Counties, cities and towns may enact ordinances that make an offender liable in a civil action for the expenses of responding to <u>any</u> DWI offense. Liability is limited to \$1,000. VA ST § 15.2-1716.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>592</sup> A DUI offender who operates a motor vehicle while transporting a child <18 years old may be subject to prosecution for felony child abuse and neglect under §18.2-371.1. *Wolfe v. Commonwealth*, 595 S.E.2d 27 (Va. App. 2004).

	Dismissal of dual charges: Whenever any person is	
	charged with a violation of section 18.2-266 and with	
	reckless driving growing out of the same act or acts and is	
	convicted of one of these charges, the court shall dismiss the remaining charge.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	<b>Yes</b> $\geq$ <b>.08</b> ( $\geq$ .02 for persons under 21)	
	<u>First offense</u> – Suspension 7 days (mand);	
	<u>Second offense</u> – Suspension 60 days;	
	Third or subsequent offense – Suspension "until the day	
	and time of trial of the criminal offense charged."	
	VA ST § 46.2-391.2.	
Post DWI Conviction:		
Licensing Action:		
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation	
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	<u>First offense</u> – Suspension/Revocation 1 year;	
Years, etc.):	Second offense (within 10 years) – Revocation 3 years;	
	Third or subsequent offense (within 10 years) – Indefinite	
	revocation.	
	VA ST § 18.2-271; VA ST § 46.2-391.	
	Offense for Persons Under 21 Years: 6 months. VA ST §	
	18.2-266.1(B).	
	<u>DUI – Maiming</u> : Indefinite revocation. VA ST § 18.2-	
	271; VA ST § 46.2-391(B).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	First offense – None, <sup>593</sup>	
Withdrawal:	<u>Second offense</u> (within 5 years) – 1 year; <sup>594</sup>	
	Second offense (within 10 years) – 4 months;	
	<u>Third or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>3 years</b> . <sup>595</sup>	
	DUI – Maiming: 5 years	
	Offense for Persons Under 21 Years: None	
Other:		
Rehabilitation:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>593</sup> A restricted license may be issued if the defendant participates in a rehabilitation program. VA ST § 18.2-271.1(E).

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>594</sup> A restricted license may be issued after the minimum period of license withdrawal (1-year or 4-month revocation) has passed and a defendant has participated in a rehabilitation program. VA ST § 18.2-271.1(E).
 <sup>595</sup> For a third offense, if a person at the time of the DUI conviction was dependent on alcohol, the license may be restored after 5

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>595</sup> For a third offense, if a person at the time of the DUI conviction was dependent on alcohol, the license may be restored after 5 years or a restricted license for employment purposes may be issued after 3 years provided the person has been cured of dependency and is not otherwise a threat to the public safety. In addition, before a license is reinstated or a restricted employment license is issued, an offender may be required to undergo an alcohol evaluation. Depending upon its recommendations, driving privileges are not automatically restored after 5 years. Instead, the offender might be granted restricted driving privileges not to exceed 5 years. Offenders are given credit for any period of license revocation imposed under the habitual offender law. VA ST § 46.2-391(C).

Alashal Education	First offense Vest	
Alcohol Education:	<u>First offense</u> – Yes;	
	Second offense (within 10 years) – Yes;	
	<u>Third and subsequent offense</u> – Not eligible to participate	
	in the Virginia Alcohol Safety Action Program (VASAP).	
	VA ST § 18.2-271(C); VA ST § 18.2-271.1(A).	
Alcohol Treatment:	<u>First offense</u> – Yes;	
	Second offense (within 10 years) – Yes;	
	Third and subsequent offense – Not eligible to participate	
	in VASAP.	
	VA ST § 18.2-271(C); VA ST § 18.2-271.1(A).	
	<u>Offense for Persons Under 21 Years (<math>\geq .02</math> but &lt; .08)</u> : An	
	offender is eligible to participate in the VASAP.	
	VA ST § 18.2-266.1(B).	
Vahiala Immany durant/Canfigaatian		
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Impoundment/Immobilization Seizure & Forfeiture	
Authorized by Specific Statutory	<b>Impoundment</b> : The motor vehicle driven by a defendant	
Authority:	who commits a DUI offense shall be impounded or immo-	
Autionty.	bilized by law enforcement at the time the defendant is	
	arrested. Impoundment shall be for a period of 30 days.	
	VA ST § 46.2-301.1.	
	VA 51 § 40.2-501.1.	
	Seizure/Forfeiture: The vehicle solely owned by a defen-	
	dant convicted of felony DUI shall be subject to seizure	
	and forfeiture.	
	VA ST § 18.2-270(C)(3).	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	Impoundment/Immobilization:	
Released:	I. Any driver who is the owner of the vehicle may petition	
Keledsed.	the General District Court in the jurisdiction in which the	
	arrest was made for release of the impounded/immobilized	
	motor vehicle.	
	II. Any owner (not the driver) of the im-	
	pounded/immobilized motor vehicle may petition the	
	General District Court for release of the vehicle if he/she	
	proves he/she had no knowledge that the defendant's li-	
	cense was suspended/revoked or did not consent to the	
	vehicle being driven. If the owner proves that his imme-	
	diately family has only 1 vehicle and will suffer a substan-	
	tial hardship, the court may release the vehicle after some	
	period of less than 30 days. VA ST § 46.2-301.1(B), (C).	
	Seizure/Forfeiture:	
	An immediate family member may petition the court for	
	release of the vehicle if that person proves his family has	
	only one vehicle and seizure/forfeiture would create a sub- stantial hardship $VA$ ST § 18.2.270(C)(3)	
Other:	stantial hardship. VA ST § 18.2-270(C)(3).	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included	Interdiction Order: The court may issue an order prohi	
Elsewhere:	<b>Interdiction Order</b> : The court may issue an order prohibiting alcoholic beverage licensees from selling such beve-	
	I brung alconolic beverage licensees from senting such beve-	

	rages to a person who has been convicted of a DUI of
	rages to a person who has been convicted of a DUI of-
	fense. VA ST § 4.1-333.
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Both Permissive:
Conditions of Use:	The court may require a first offender who has been granted restricted or full driving privileges to drive only motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices. A second or subsequent offender who is required to partic- ipate in VASAP or a treatment program may obtain re- stricted driving privileges permitting only operation of motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices.
	<b>Mandatory</b> : The court shall require a second or subsequent offender and an offender whose BAC was $\geq$ .15, to operate only motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock as a condi- tion of a restricted license or restoration. This shall be for the period of such offender's suspension and not less than 6 months without any alcohol violations.
	VA ST § 18.2-270.1; VA ST § 18.2-271; VA ST § 46.2- 391.
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted Lowe v. Commonwealth, 337 S.E.2d 273 (Va. 1985).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	YesInvoluntary Manslaughter (Class 5 Felony);Aggravated Involuntary Manslaughter596 (Unclassified Felony).VA ST § 18.2-36; VA ST § 18-2-36.1.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Involuntary Manslaughter – Not less than 1 year or more than 10 years, or not more than 12 months and/or not more than \$2,500; Aggravated Involuntary Manslaughter – Not less than 1 year or more than 20 years.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>596</sup> Aggravated involuntary manslaughter contains the additional element of conduct that is so gross, wanton and culpable as to show a reckless disregard for human life. Certain additional fact, like driving behavior or criminal history may meet that element. VA ST § 18.2-36.1(B).

	VA ST § 18.2-10; VA ST § 18.2-36.1.	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	Involuntary Manslaughter – None; Aggravated Involuntary Manslaughter – 1 year.	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> VA ST § 18.2-36.1(C); VA ST § 46.2-389; VA ST § 46.2- 391(B)	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	No term specified	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>5 years</b> VA ST § 46.2-391(C)(2).	
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or any narcotic drug, self-administered intoxicant or other drug or; (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for alcohol or drugs. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the dis- qualification is for life (10 years mandatory). It is a Class 3 Misdemeanor to operate a CMV with a BAC $\geq$ .04; the sanction for this offense is a fine of not more than \$500. It is a Class 1 Misdemeanor to operate a CMV with a BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .08 or while under the influence of alcohol or drugs. The sanctions for this offense are as follows:	
	<u>First offense</u> – Jail for not more than 12 months and/or a fine sanction of not more than \$2,500; <u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – Jail for not less than 1 month or more than 1 year and/or a fine of not less than \$200 or more than \$2,500. If the second offense was with- in 5 years of a previous offense, there is a mandatory jail sanction of 5 days;	
	<u>Third offense</u> (within 10 years) – Jail for not less than 2 months or more than 1 year and/or a fine of not less than \$500 or more than \$2,500. A 30-day jail sentence is man- datory if the third or subsequent offense occurred within 5 years, and a 10-day jail sentence is mandatory if the third or subsequent offense occurred within 10 but more than 5 years.	
	In addition, a person who operates a CMV with any alco- hol in the system commits a traffic infraction (a fine of not more than \$200) and must be placed out-of-service for 24	

#### VIRGINIA

	1
	hours.
	VA ST § 18.2-11; VA ST § 18.2-271.1(J); VA ST § 46.2- 113; VA ST § 46.2-341.4; VA ST § 46.2-341.17; VA ST § 46.2-341.18; VA ST § 46.2-341.24; VA ST § 46.2-341.25; VA ST § 46.2-341.26:1 to VA ST § 46.2-341.26:11; VA ST § 46.2-341.27 to VA ST § 46.2-341.31.
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	Felony
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>5 years</b> , or not more than <b>12 months</b> . VA ST § 46.2-391(D)(2).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	12 months
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<b>Revocation</b> VA ST § 46.2-301; VA ST § 46.2-391(B); VA ST § 46.2-394.
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	An additional suspension/revocation for the same period for which the license has been previously suspended or revoked; if the original period was not specified, then the additional suspension or revocation is not to exceed 90 days.
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	An additional suspension/revocation for the same period for which the license has been previously suspended or revoked; if the original period was not specified, then the additional suspension or revocation is not to exceed 90 days. <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>Revoca- tion 3 years</b> . VA ST § 46.2-301(D).
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No <sup>597</sup>
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>10 years</b> and until the privilege to drive has been restored by an order of the court. VA ST § 46.2-356.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:	<u>First offense</u> (if driving <u>did not</u> endanger life, limb or property) – <b>Class 1 misdemeanor</b> ; <u>First offense</u> (if driving <u>did</u> endanger life, limb property) – <b>Felony</b> ; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – <b>Felony</b>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>597</sup> The habitual offender law has been repealed. However, those persons who were declared to be habitual offenders prior to the repeal may still be prosecuted for violation of their habitual offender status.

#### VIRGINIA

	VA ST § 46.2-357.	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:		
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Misdemeanor – Not more than 12 months and/or not more than \$2,500;Felony – Not less than 1 year or more than 5 years, or 12 months.VA ST § 46.2-357.	
Mandatory Minimum Term of	Misdemeanor – 10 days;	
Imprisonment:	Felony – 1 year/12 months. VA ST § 46.2-357(B)(2).	
Licensing Actions (Specify):	None	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	N	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> VA ST § 4.1-304; VA ST § 4.1-305.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> – A special exemption to minors, for employment reasons, and at the order of a parent. VA ST § 4.1-305.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	No	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	No	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person age 18 or older who gives a minor alcohol may be found guilty of contributing to the delinquency of a minor, a Class 1 misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 12 months and/or not more than \$2,500. VA ST § 18.2-371(i).	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class 1 Misdemeanor VA ST § 4.1-304.	

Imprisonment:	Not more than <b>12 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . VA ST § 18.2-11.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No): Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Yes – Revocation or suspension <sup>598,599</sup> VA ST § 4.1-         225(1)(k).         Time period is not specified in the statute.	
	Time period is not specified in the statute.	
<u>Criminal Actions Against Owners or</u> <u>Employees of Establishments that Serve</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of</u> <u>Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under</u> <u>the Minimum Legal Drinking Age</u> :		
Type of Criminal Action:	Class 1 Misdemeanor VA ST § 4.1-304.	
Term of Imprisonment:	Not more than <b>12 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . VA ST § 18.2-11.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes – Revocation or suspension</b> VA ST § 4.1-225(1)(k).	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Time period not specified in the statute.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	<b>Yes</b> 3VA ADC 5-50-160. <sup>600</sup>	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> VA ST § 18.2-323.1(B).	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> VA ST § 18.2-323.1.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>598</sup> In lieu of <u>suspending</u> a license or any portion thereof, a civil penalty may be imposed as follows: <u>First offense</u> – Not more than \$2,500; Subsequent offense – Not more than \$5,000. VA ST § 4.1-227(B). Also, under separate provisions the Board may impose a civil penalty in lieu of license suspension or revocation: First violation: \$2,500; Subsequent violations: \$5,000. VA ST § 4.1-227(B), or the Board may accept an offer in compromise from the licensee to pay a civil charge of \$5,000 in lieu of revocation. VA ST §

<sup>4.1-227(</sup>C). <sup>599</sup> This administrative action is based on 'reasonable cause to believe' the licensee sold alcoholic beverages to a minor or an intoxicated person. VA ST § 4.1-225.  $^{600}$  These regulations do not abolish happy hours; they simply impose limitations.

STATE	WASHINGTON	
General Reference:	Revised Code of Washington Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of or affected by intoxicating liquor	
	WA ST § 46.61.502(1)(b); WA ST § 46.61.504(1)(b).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	≥.08 <sup>601</sup>	
	WA ST § 46.61.502(1)(a); WA ST § 46.61.504(1)(a).	
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> ( $\geq$ .02 but < .08)	
	WA ST § 46.61.503.	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of or affected by any drug or a combi-	
	nation of intoxicating liquor and any drug. WA ST §	
	46.61.502(1)(b), (c); WA ST § 46.61.504(1)(b), (c).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:		
Implied Consent Law:	<b>Yes</b> WA ST § 46.20.308	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WA ST § 46.20.308	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WA ST § 46.20.308(1)	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal Cases)	
Admitted into Evidence:	WA ST § 46-20-308(2)(b); WA ST § 46.61.517.	
Other Information:	A person may be administered a breath or blood test with-	
	out consent if arrested for vehicular homicide, vehicular	
	assault, or any DWI offense related to an accident where	
	there was a serious bodily injury.	
	WA ST § 46.20.308(3).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes – Limited <sup>602</sup>	
Urine:	No	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>601</sup> **Standard**: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath. WA ST § 46.04.015. <sup>602</sup> The implied consent law provides for a blood test <u>only</u> in situations where a person has been arrested for vehicular homicide, vehicular assault or a DWI offense where the offense involved an accident in which a serious bodily injury occurred to another per-

son. WA ST § 46.20.308(3).

Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> <sup>603</sup>	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WA ST § 46.61.5056(2).	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> (within 7 years) – <b>Revocation/Denial 1 year</b> ; <u>Second or subsequent refusal</u> (within 7 years) – <b>Revoca- tion/Denial 2 years</b> or until the person reaches age 21, whichever is longer.	
	WA ST § 46.20.308; WA ST § 46.20.3101(1).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First conviction (within 7 years) – Not less than 1 day or more than 1 year and not less than \$350 or more than \$5,000;First conviction (BAC $\geq .15$ ) – Not less than 2 days or more than 1 year and not less than \$500 or more than \$5,000;Second conviction (within 7 years) – Not less than 30 days or more than 1 year and 60 days electronic home monitoring and not less than \$500 or more than \$5,000;Second conviction (within 7 years) – Not less than 30 days or more than 1 year and 60 days electronic home monitoring and not less than \$500 or more than \$5,000;Second conviction (BAC $\geq .15$ ) – Not less than 45 days or more than 1 year and 90 days electronic home monitoring and not less than \$750 or more than \$5,000;Third and fourth convictions (within 7 years) – Not less than 90 days or more than 1 year and 120 days electronic home monitoring and not less than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000;Third and fourth convictions (BAC $\geq .15$ ) – Not less than 120 days or more than 1 year and 120 days electronic home monitoring and not less than \$1,000 or more than \$5,000;	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>603</sup> **Deferred Prosecution**: Washington has a deferred prosecution program for DWI offenses. A person is eligible for this program <u>only</u> once. The program provides for alcohol treatment for a two-year period. Upon successful completion of the program, the court shall dismiss the charges pending against the defendant. WA ST § 10.05.010 *et seq*. The offender's license is placed on probationary status for 5 years. WA ST § 10.05.060. In addition, as a condition for granting deferred prosecution, the court shall order an offender to only operate vehicles that are equipped with ignition interlock devices. WA ST § 10.05.140. A deferred prosecution is treated as a prior offense for purposes of sanction enhancement for subsequent offenses. WA ST § 10.05.120.

	home monitoring and not less than \$1,500 or more than	
	<b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Fifth or subsequent conviction</u> or <u>subsequent conviction</u> (with previous conviction of vehicular homicide/ assault) (within 10 years)(Class C felony) – Not more than <b>5 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$10,000</b> .	
	WA ST § 9.94A.550; WA ST § 9A.20.021; WA ST § 46.61.502(5); WA ST § 46.61.504(5); WA ST § 46.61.5055.	
	<u>Vehicular Assault</u> (causing substantial bodily harm) (Class B felony) – Not more than <b>10 years</b> and/or not more than <b>\$20,000</b> . WA ST § 9A.20.021; WA ST § 46.61.522.	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	Vehicular Assault is a Class B felony, subject to the Sen- tencing Reform Act. An offender may serve from 1 month to 84 months of actual incarceration depending on his of- fender score, and the specific prong of Vehicular Assault. There are two prongs: (1) operation of a vehicle with dis- regard for the safety of others; or (2)being under the influ- ence, or by the operation or driving of a vehicle in a reck- less manner.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	Possible for any misdemeanor. WA ST § 9.94A.680.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Direct compensation to a victim, and payment via a crime victims' compensation fund. WA ST § §7.68.020 <i>et seq.</i> ; WA ST § 9.94A.505; WA ST § 9.94A.750.	
Other:	<b>Penalty Assessment</b> : A defendant who is convicted of a drunk-driving offense is required to pay an assessment used to support the victim's compensation fund. There is an assessment of \$250 for a first or subsequent misdemeanor and \$500 for a first or subsequent gross misdemeanor or felony. WA ST § 7.68.035(1)(a), (b), (2).	
	<b>Laboratory Assessment Fee</b> : An offender is assessed a \$125 fee which is used to fund the State's toxicology laboratory. The court may suspend this fee if the defendant does not have the ability to pay it. WA ST § 46.61.5054.	
	<b>Safety and Education Assessment</b> : A defendant <u>must</u> pay an assessment equal to 70 percent of the fine imposed for the purpose of funding safety and education programs. Additionally, an assessment equal to 50 percent of the as- sessment for public safety and education programs shall be assessed. WA ST § 3.62.090.	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		

#### WASHINGTON

Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.08 <u>First violation</u> - Suspension 90 days;
	Second or subsequent violation (within 7 years) – <b>Revoca-</b> tion or denial 2 years. WA ST § 46.20.3101.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Liconcing Action:	
Licensing Action: Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	BAC < .15:
	BAC ≥ .15: <u>First conviction</u> (within 7 years) – Revocation 1 year; <u>Second conviction</u> (within 7 years) – Revocation 900 days; <u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> (within 7 years) – Revoca- tion 4 years.
	WA ST § 46.61.5055(9). <u>Vehicular Assault</u> - <b>Revocation 1 year</b> . WA ST § 46.20.285.
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	Those convicted of Driving Under the Influence or Physi- cal Control of a Vehicle Under the Influence, or who have had or will have his or her license suspended, revoked or denied under WA ST § 46.20.3101, may apply for an Igni- tion Interlock Driver's License. WA ST §46.20.385.
Other:	MILDI 310.2000
Rehabilitation:	
Alcohol Education: Alcohol Treatment:	Yes – for all offenses WA ST § 46.61.5056.Yes – for all offenses WA ST § 46.61.5056.A court-ordered assessment will determine whether an offender will be required to attend an alcohol education course or treatment. WA ST § 46.61.5056.
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	Summary Impoundment Seizure/Forfeiture
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	Summary Impoundment: If arrested for DUI, vehicular homicide or vehicular assault or while found to be an habi- tual offender ordered not to drive, the vehicle is subject to summary impoundment pursuant to the terms and condi-

	tions of an applicable local ordinance or State agency rule. WA ST § 46.55.113(1).	
	<b>Seizure/Forfeiture</b> : The vehicle used in the offense in which a second or subsequent DWI offender (within 7 years) has a financial interest is subject to forfeiture. WA	
	ST § 46.61.5058.	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be	With regard to seizure/forfeiture, if a person has a claim of	
Released:	ownership within 45 days of the seizure, such person shall have a reasonable opportunity to be heard as to the claim or right. WA ST § 46.61.5058(4).	
Other:		
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	Mandatory Probation: For any DUI offense, if the court imposes < 1 year in jail, it shall suspend but not defer a period of confinement not exceeding 5 years and place offenders on probation with the following minimum con- ditions: (1) they cannot operate a vehicle unless they have valid licenses and maintain proof of financial responsibili- ty; (2) they cannot operate a motor vehicle with BAC/BrAC $\geq$ .08; and (3) they must submit to implied consent tests. If an offender violates (1) in combination with either (2) or (3), the offender is subject to a mandato- ry 30-day jail term and a license suspension for 30 days. WA ST § 46.61.5055(11).Probationary License:After the suspension or revoca-	
	tion period, DWI offenders' driving privileges or must be placed on probationary status for 5 years. WA ST § 46.20.355(2).	
	<b>Special Education Program</b> : A person convicted of a DUI offense may be required to attend an educational program that focuses on the emotional, physical and financial suffering of DUI victims. WA ST § 46.61.5152.	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Both	
Conditions of Use:	Mandatory: The department shall require the use of an ignition inter-	
	lock device after any applicable period of suspension or revocation for the following periods: <u>First offense</u> – 1 year; <u>Second offense</u> – 5 years; <u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – 10 years. WA ST § 46.20.720(3).	
	For (1) a <u>first offense</u> (BAC $\geq$ .15 or a refusal to submit to a chemical test); (2) <u>any subsequent drunk-driving offense</u>	

	<ul> <li>(within 7 years); (3) an offense following a previous deferred alcohol offense prosecution; or (4) a child under age 16 was in the vehicle, the court, after the license suspension or revocation period, <u>must</u> require such offender to operate only motor vehicles that are equipped with an ignition interlock device for the following periods:</li> <li><u>First offense</u> – 1 year;</li> <li><u>Second offense</u> –5 years;</li> <li><u>Third or subsequent offense</u> – 10 years.</li> <li>If a child &lt; 16 years old was a passenger in the vehicle, ignition interlock shall be ordered for an additional 60 days.</li> <li>WA ST § 46.61.5055(5).</li> <li><b>Permissive</b>:</li> <li>For a first offense (BAC &lt; .15) the court may require an offender to only operate motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices. This requirement may last for as long as the court has jurisdiction. WA ST § 46.20.720(1).</li> </ul>	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Prohibited City of Seattle v. Mesiani, 755 P.2d 775 (Wash. 1988).	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Vehicular Homicide <sup>604</sup> WA ST § 46.61.520.	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:	Class A felony	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<b>Life Imprisonment</b> <sup><math>605</math></sup> and/or not more than <b>\$50,000</b> . WA ST § $9A.20.021(1)(a)$ .	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The sentencing guidelines require a period of incarcera- tion.	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> WA ST § 46.20.285.	
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>2 years</b> WA ST § 46.20.285.	
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	<b>2 years</b> No Ignition Interlock License is available. WA ST § 46.20.385(1)(a).	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>604</sup> The State does not have to prove that a defendant's intoxication caused the victim's death. However, the State must still prove that the defendant's driving was related to the accident that caused the fatality. *See State v. Rivas*, 896 P.2d 57 (Wash. 1995). <sup>605</sup> Courts use sentencing guidelines. While the statutory sentence is up to life imprisonment, an offender may serve 31-177 months of actual incarceration, depending on his criminal history. WA ST § 9.94A.510; WA ST § 9.94A.515; WA ST § 9.94A.520.

Other:	<b>EMS Cost</b> : A defendant is liable for up to \$1,000 of the cost of an emergency response related to a DWI vehicle homicide offense. WA ST § 38.52.430.	
<u>DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor</u> <u>Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's</u> <u>Licenses (CDL):</u>	Persons are disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, they: (1) have a BAC/BrAC ≥.04; (2) are under the influence of alcohol or any drug; or (3) refuse to submit to a chemical test for alcohol. For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the dis- qualification is for life (10 years mand).	
	The implied consent provisions for CMV operators allow testing for either alcohol or drugs; however, the disqualifi- cation sanctions only apply to a refusal to submit to a test for an alcohol concentration.	
	In addition, CMV operators must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours if they have any amount of alcohol in their systems. A person commits a gross misdemeanor by op- erating a CMV with any amount of alcohol in the system.	
	WA ST § 9.92.020; WA ST § 46.25.010(2), (6), (8), (15); WA ST § 46.25.090; WA ST § 46.25.110; WA ST § 46.25.120; WA ST § 46.25.170.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Gross Misdemeanor	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . WA ST § 9.92.020; WA ST § 9A.20.021; WA ST § 46.20.342(1).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	None	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension or Revocation §46.20.342(2)	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal	An additional suspension/revocation period of 1 year.	
Action:	WA ST § 46.20.342(2)(b).	
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	The suspension/revocation shall not be extended if the court recommends against such extension and the driver has already obtained a valid license. WA ST § 46.20.342(2)(c).	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		

State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes WA ST § 46.65.020.	
Grounds for Being Declared an Habitual Offender:	Three serious offenses within 5 years or a combination of 20 minor and/or serious offenses within 5 years provided that 3 minor offenses must have been committed within 365 days immediately preceding the last conviction. WA ST § 46.65.020(2).	
Term of License Rev While Under Habitual Offender Status:	<b>7 years</b> <sup>606</sup> But there is a special stay of revocation if based on DUI offenses and the offender is attending an alcohol treatment program. In addition, after 4 years a license may be issued upon good and sufficient showing. WA ST § 46.65.060; WA ST § 46.65.070; WA ST § 46.65.080.	
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted on Charges of Driving While on Habitual Offender Status: Sanctions Following a Conviction of	Gross Misdemeanor WA ST § 46.20.342(1)(a).	
Driving While on Habitual Offender Status:		
Imprisonment (Term):	First offense– Not less than 10 days or more than 1 year and/or not more than \$5,000;Second offense– Not less than 90 days or more than 1 year and/or not more than \$5,000;Third or subsequent offense– Not less than 180 days or more than 1 year and/or not more than \$5,000.WA ST § 9.92.020; WA ST § 9A.20.021; WA ST § 46.20.342(1)(a).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	The terms above are mandatory.	
Licensing Actions (Specify):	The original revocation for being a habitual violator is ex- tended for an additional period of 1 year. The court may recommend against such an extension. WA ST § 46.20.342(2)(a), (c).	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents: State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WA ST § 46.52.065.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	No Vac	
Pedestrian:	Yes	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages		

<sup>606</sup> After this 7-year period, the revocation remains in effect until the offender petitions and receives a new license from the state licensing agency. WA ST § 46.65.100.

#### WASHINGTON

Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> WA ST § 66.44.270(1); WA ST § 66.44.290.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> Exemptions for minors who have been served alcohol- ic beverages by their parents or guardians in the home, for medical reasons and for religious services. WA ST § 66.44.270(2).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	Yes (minors only)WA ST § 66.44.200; see Estate of Kelly By and Through Kelly v. Falin, 896 P.2d 1245 (Wash. 1995).	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	<b>Yes</b> <i>Purchase v. Meyer</i> , 737 P.2d 661 (Wash. 1987).	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	Yes (minors only) Reynolds v. Hicks, 951 P.2d 761 (Wash. 1998).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who sells or gives alcohol to a minor may be found guilty of a gross misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 1 year and/or not more than \$5,000. WA ST § 9A.20.021(2); WA ST § 66.44.270(1).	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	Infraction WA ST § 66.44.200.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>\$500</b> . WA ST § 66.44.200(2)(b).	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension/Cancellation/Revocation WA ST § 66.20.070; WA ST § 66.24.010; WA ST § 66.44.200.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute. A suspension may be vacated upon payment of a penalty in an amount fixed by the board. WA ST § 66.24.010; WA ST § 66.24.120.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under		

the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Gross Misdemeanor WA ST § 66.44.270(1).
Term of Imprisonment:	Not more than <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . WA ST § 9A.20.021(2).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension/Cancellation/Revocation WA ST § 66.20.070; WA ST § 66.24.010; WA ST § 66.24.120.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Not specified in the statute. A suspension may be vacated upon payment of a penalty in an amount fixed by the board. WA ST § 66.24.010; WA ST § 66.24.120.
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes WA ST § 46.61.519(2).
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes WA ST § 46.61.519(1).

STATE	WEST VIRGINIA	
General Reference:	West Virginia Code	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol WV ST § 17C-5-2.	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{607}$ WV ST § 17C-5-2(a)(1)(E).	
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> ( $\geq$ .02 but < .08)	
	WV ST § 17C-5-2(i).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug, controlled substance or a combination of alcohol and any other controlled substance or any other drug. WV ST § 17C-5-2.	
Other:	An alcohol concentration $\ge .08$ is <i>prima facie</i> evidence of driving under the influence of alcohol. WV ST § 17C-5-8(a)(3).	
	An alcohol concentration >.05 but <.08 is relevant evi- dence of driving while under the influence of alcohol. WV ST § 17C-5-8(a)(2).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol		
Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	<b>Yes</b> WV ST § 17C-5-4 (b); WV ST § 17C-5-5.	
Implied Consent Law:	Yes WV ST § 17C-5-4.	
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	Yes WV ST § 17C-5-4.	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	No	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test	Yes (Criminal Cases) State v. Cozart, 352 S.E.2d 152	
Admitted into Evidence:	(W.Va. 1986)(abrogated on other grounds).	
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for		
Alcohol Concentration Which Are		
Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:		
Blood:	Yes WV ST § 17C-5-4.	
Urine:	Yes WV ST § 17C-5-4.	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>607</sup> **Standard**: "Percent by weight" of alcohol in the blood. WV ST § 17C-5-2; WV ST § 17C-5-8. However, this standard is based upon a formula of (1) grams of alcohol per 100 cubic centimeters of blood, (2) grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath, (3) grams of alcohol per 67 milliliter of urine, and (4) grams of alcohol per 86 milliliters of serum. WV ST § 17C-5-8.

information from within the court record that enables it to meaningfully exercise its sentencing authority. WV R RCRP Rule 32; <i>see State v. Bruffey</i> , 531 S.E.2d 332 (W.Va. 2000).
None
None
NY CONTRACTOR
None
<u>First Refusal</u> – Revocation 1 year or 45 days plus 1 year
ignition interlock;
<u>Second refusal</u> – <b>Revocation 10 years</b> (5 years mand) plus
1 year ignition interlock;
<u>Third or subsequent refusal</u> – <b>Revocation life</b> .
WV ST § $17C-5-7(a)$ .
Under WV ST § 17C-5-6a(c), a child may be taken into
custody if a law enforcement officer has reasonable grounds to believe that person has been operating a motor
vehicle with any amount of alcohol in their body. The law
requires the child be warned that a refusal to submit to the
implied consent test could result in a license suspension.
Implied consent test could result in a neense suspension.
DUI
<u>First offense</u> (misdemeanor) (BAC $> .15$ ) – Up to 6
months and not less than \$100 or more than \$500;
<u>First offense</u> (BAC $\ge$ .15) – Not less than <b>2 days</b> or more
than 6 months and not less than \$200 or more than
\$1,000;
Second offense (within 10 years) (misdemeanor) – Not
less than 6 months or more than 1 year and a fine of not
less than <b>\$1,000</b> or more than <b>\$3,000</b> may be imposed;
Third or subsequent offense (within 10 years) (felony)-
Not less than <b>1 year</b> or more than <b>3 years</b> and a fine of not less than <b>\$3,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> may be imposed.

	<b>DUI – Bodily injury</b> (misdemeanor) – Not less than <b>1 day</b> or more than <b>1 year</b> and not less than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> ;	
	Persons Under 21: <sup>608</sup> <u>First offense</u> – Not less than \$25 or more than \$100; <u>Second or subsequent offense</u> – Not less than 24 hours and not less than \$100 or more than \$500.	
	<b>DUI with Child &lt; 16</b> – Not less than <b>2 days</b> or more than <b>12 months</b> and not less than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> .	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	WV ST § 17C-5-2. DUI	
	<u>First offense</u> (BAC $\ge$ .15) – <b>24 hours/\$200</b> .	
	DUI with Child < 16 – 48 hours/\$200.	
	The sentences provided are mandatory and may not be suspended. However an offender may apply for an alter- native program (i.e., weekends, work release, day report- ing), or electronic home monitoring. WV ST § 62-11A- 1a; WV ST § 62-11B-1, <i>et seq</i> .	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	In lieu of a fine or incarceration sanction (except mandato- ry incarceration via statute), a court may impose commu- nity service with government entities, or charitable or oth- er nonprofit organizations which have been approved by the court. WV ST § $62-11A-1a(a)$ , (c)(1).	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Victims' Compensation Fund. WV ST § 14-2A-1, <i>et seq</i> . Direct compensation by the defendant to the victim via court order is also possible. WV ST § 14-2A-3(b)(1).	
Other:	Assessments: A fee of 20 percent of the fine imposed is assessed against each DUI offender. Additionally, sum of \$10 and \$8 are to be paid as costs in the case in addition to any other costs. Felony offenders are also assessed a fee of \$75. These assessments are deposited into the Crime Victims Compensation Fund. WV ST § 14-2A-4; WV ST § 62-5-10.	
	<b>Deferred Proceedings</b> : Any person who has not been previously convicted of any DUI-related offense may re- quest a deferral upon pleading guilty. Such person must successfully complete the Motor Vehicle Alcohol Test and Lock Program for at least 165 days after serving the 15- day license suspension. After a period of not less than one	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>608</sup> A person under the age of 21 and charged with a first offense of DUI may move to continue the proceedings on the conditions that he/she participate in the Motor Vehicle Alcohol Test and Lock Program (ignition interlock). Upon successful completion, the charge shall be dismissed by the court and the person's record expunged. WV ST § 17C-5-2(i); WV ST § 17C-5a-3a.

	year after successful completion, such person may apply for expungement of records (except if the charge was a felony). WV ST § 17C-5-2b.
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	<ul> <li>≥.08 but &lt; .15:</li> <li><u>First action</u> – Revocation 6 months or revocation 15 days plus 120 days ignition interlock;</li> <li><u>Second action</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 10 years; <u>Third or subsequent action</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation life.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>≥.15:</li> <li><u>First action</u> - Revocation 45 days plus 275 days ignition interlock;</li> <li><u>Second action</u> (within 10 years) - Revocation 10 years; <u>Third or subsequent action</u> (within 10 years) - Revocation life.</li> </ul>
	DUI – Bodily Injury: <u>First action</u> – Revocation 2 years; <u>Second action</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 10 years; <u>Third or subsequent action</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation life.
	Persons Under 21: <u>First action</u> – Suspension 60 days; <u>Subsequent action</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 1 year or until age 21, whichever is longer.
	DUI with Child < 16: <u>First action</u> – Revocation 1 year; <u>Second action</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation 10 years; <u>Third or subsequent action</u> (within 10 years) – Revocation life.
	WV ST § 17C-5A-2.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension (persons < 21) Revocation (all others)
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	The licensing sanctions are the same as for an admin per se violation, above. WV ST § 17C-5A-1a.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	

Alcohol Education:	<b>Yes</b> <sup>609</sup> After the period of mandatory revocation has elapsed and the driver has successfully completed an ap- proved program of either alcohol/drug education or alco- hol/drug treatment, a defendant's license may be reissued with or without conditions. WV ST § 17C-5A-3.
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	N/A
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Both
Conditions of Use:	Mandatory:First admin per se violation/DUI offense: 5 months;First refusal: 9 months.Second admin per se violation/DUI offense: 18 monthsSecond or subsequent refusal: 2 years;Subsequent admin per se violation/DUI offense: 2 years.WV ST §Permissive:The driver licensing agency may reduce the mandatoryand regular revocation periods of certain implied consent,admin per se and DUI law offenders if they agree to oper-ate motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devic-es.A person is not eligible for this program if involved indeath-related violations.WV ST § 17C-5a-3a.
Sobriety Checknointe:	
Sobriety Checkpoints: Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted Carte v. Cline, 460 S.E.2d 48 (W.Va. 1995).
	<b>i ci mitted</b> <i>Curie v. Curie</i> , 400 S.E.20 46 (W.Va. 1995).
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes DUI Death – Reckless Disregard <sup>611</sup> (felony) DUI Death (misdemeanor)

 $<sup>^{609}</sup>$  A person who has refused to submit to a chemical test <u>must</u> successfully complete an alcohol education or treatment program before the license can be reinstated. WV ST § 17C-5A-3.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>610</sup> This may include injury-related violations as well.
 <sup>611</sup> Any person whose driving under the influence is the proximate cause of death within 1 year, and commits the act in reckless disregard of the safety of others, commits a felony. It must be shown that the alcohol consumption contributed to the cause of death. WV ST § 17C-5-2(a). The misdemeanor does not contain the added element of reckless disregard.

### WEST VIRGINIA

	WV ST § 17C-5-2(a), (b).
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Felony – Not less than 2 years or more than 10 years and not less than \$1,000 or more than \$3,000;Misdemeanor – Not less than 90 days or more than 1 year and not less than \$500 or more than \$1,000.WV ST § 17C-5-2.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	The base terms are mandatory. WV ST § 17C-5-2(q).
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Revocation         WV ST § 17B-3-5;         WV ST § 17C-5A-2
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	Felony <u>First action</u> – 10 years; <u>Subsequent action</u> – life.         Misdemeanor
	$\frac{\text{First action}}{\text{Subsequent action}} - 5 \text{ years};$ $\frac{\text{Subsequent action}}{\text{Subsequent action}} - \text{life}.$
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length of License Withdrawal:	WV ST § 17C-5A-2.         The terms appear to be mandatory.
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	Persons are disqualified from operating a CMV for not less than 1 mandatory year (not less than 3 years if trans- porting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, they: (1) have an alcohol concentration ≥.04; (2) are under the influence of either alcohol or a controlled substance; or (3) refuse to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol con- centration.For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the dis- qualification is for life (10 years mand).
	In addition, a CMV operator who refuses to take a PBT or has any measurable (or detectable) amount of alcohol in the system must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours.
	WV ST § 17E-1-3; WV ST § 17E-1-13; WV ST § 17E-1-14; WV ST § 17E-1-15; WV ST § 17E-1-25.
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	

Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	First conviction (misdemeanor) – Not less than 30 days or more than 6 months and not less than \$100 or more than \$500; Second conviction (misdemeanor) – Not less than 6 months or more than 1 year and not less than \$1,000 or more than \$3,000; Third or subsequent conviction (felony) – Not less than 1 year or more than 3 years and not less than \$3,000 or more than \$5,000. WV ST § 17B-4-3(b).Persons Under 21 – Not less than 24 hours and/or not less than \$1,000 with \$1,000	
Mandatam Minimum Tama of	less than <b>\$50</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> . WV ST § 17B-4-3(d).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	The base terms are mandatory. However home detention may be ordered. WV ST § 17B-4-3.	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal	An additional <b>6 months</b> . <sup>612</sup>	
Action:	WV ST § 17B-4-3(c).	
Mandatory Term of License	This is mandatory.	
Withdrawal Action:		
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No <sup>613</sup>	
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on		
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	Yes WV ST § 17C-5B-1.	
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the the Following Persons:		
Driver:	Yes	
Vehicle Passengers:	No	
Pedestrian:	Yes (Adult pedestrians)	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> WV ST § 11-16-18(a)(3); WV ST § 11-16-19(a); WV	
Sale/Purchase:	ST § 60-3-22(a).	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> WV ST § 11-16-19(a); WV ST § 60-3A-24(A); WV ST	
Possession/Consumption:	§ 60-8-20a(a).	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>612</sup> This may be served concurrently with any other suspension or revocation.
<sup>613</sup> However a person who is a habitual user of narcotic drugs or amphetamine and who drives is guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by not less than 1 day or more than 6 months (24 hours mand) and not less than \$100 or more than \$500. WV ST § 17C-5-2(f).

<u>Actions</u> :	
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WV ST § 55-7-9.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	<b>Yes</b> Bailey v. Black, 394 S.E.2d 58 (W.Va. 1990).
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>No</b> Overbaugh v. McCutcheon, 396 S.E.2d 153 (W.Va. 1990)
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who knowingly buys for, gives to or furnishes to anyone under the age of twenty-one to whom they are not related by blood or marriage, any alcoholic liquors from whatever source, is guilty of a misdemeanor, punish- able by not more than 10 days and/or not more than \$100. WV ST § 60-3-22a(b). Anyone who knowingly buys for, gives to or furnishes non-intoxicating beer to anyone under the age of 21 to whom they are not related by marriage or blood shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 10 days and/or not more than \$100. WV ST § 11-16-19(c). Anyone who knowingly buys for, gives to or furnishes wine to anyone under the age of 21 to whom they are not related by marriage or blood shall be guilty of a misde- meanor, punishable by not more than 10 days and/or not more than \$100. WV ST § 60-8-20a(c).
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor
Imprisonment/Fine:	Alcoholic Liquor – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1</b> year and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . WV ST § 60-3A-25(a)(2). Non-intoxicating Beer – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not less than <b>\$25</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> . WV ST § 11-16-18.
	Wines– Not less than 30 days or more than 6 monthsand/or not less than \$100 or more than \$1,000. WV ST §60-8-20; WV ST § 60-8-25.
A durinistrative Actions Ain-+ O	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic	

Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes <u>Alcoholic Liquor</u> – Suspension or revocation WV ST §         60-3A-27. <u>Non-intoxicating Beer</u> – Suspension/revocation/penalty WV ST § 11-16-23. <u>Wines</u> - Suspension/revocation/probation/penalty WV
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	ST § 60-8-18. <u>Alcoholic Liquor</u> : Suspension or revocation for not more than 20 days. WV ST § 60-3A-27.
	Non-intoxicating Beer – Suspension or revocation (time period not specified); Probation not more than 12 months; or Penalty not more than \$1,000 (for each violation where revocation is not imposed). WV ST § 11-16-23.
	<u>Wines</u> – <b>Revocation</b> ; <b>Suspension</b> for not more than 12 <b>months</b> ; <b>Probation</b> not more than 12 <b>months</b> ; or <b>Penalty</b> not more than <b>\$1,000</b> (for each violation where revocation is not imposed). WV ST § 60-8-18.
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
Type of Criminal Action:	Misdemeanor
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Alcoholic Liquor – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>1</b> year and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> . WV ST § 60-3A-25(a)(3).
	<u>Non-intoxicating Beer</u> – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not less than <b>\$25</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> . WV ST § 11-16-18.
	<u>Wines</u> – Not less than <b>30 days</b> or more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$1,000</b> . WV ST § 60-8-20; WV ST § 60-8-25.
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages	Yes

### WEST VIRGINIA

Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Alcoholic Liquor – Suspension or revocation WV ST § 60-3A-27.
	<u>Non-intoxicating Beer</u> – <b>Suspen-</b> sion/revocation/probation/penalty WV ST § 11-16-23.
	<u>Wines</u> - Suspension/revocation/probation/penalty WV ST § 60-8-18.
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Alcoholic Liquor: Suspension or revocation for not more than 20 days. WV ST § 60-3A-27.
	Non-intoxicating Beer – Suspension or revocation (time period not specified); Probation not more than 12 months; or Penalty not more than \$1,000 (for each violation where revocation is not imposed). WV ST § 11-16-23.
	Wines – Revocation; Suspension for not more than 12 months; Probation not more than 12 months; or Penalty not more than \$1,000 (for each violation where revocation is not imposed). WV ST § 60-8-18.
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WV ST § 60-6-9(a)(3).
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WV ST § 60-6-9(a)(3).

STATE	WISCONSIN
General Reference:	Wisconsin Statutes Annotated
Basis for a DWI Charge:	
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of an intoxicant WI ST § 346.63(1)(a).
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	<ul> <li>≥.08 (2 or fewer prior convictions, suspensions or revocations);</li> <li>≥.02 (3 or more prior convictions, suspensions or revocations)</li> <li>A detectable amount of a restricted controlled substance in his or her blood.</li> <li>WI ST § 340.01(46m); WI ST § 346.63(1)(am).</li> </ul>
	<u>Persons Under 21 Years Old</u> (> .00 but < .08) WI ST § 346.63(2m).
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of any drug, an intoxicant, a con- trolled substance, a combination of an intoxicant and a controlled substance or a combination of an intoxicant and any other drug. WI ST § 346.63(1)(a).
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol	
Concentration:	
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	Yes WI ST § 343.303.
Implied Consent Law:	ž
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WI ST § 343.305(3).
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WI ST § 343.305(2).
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	Yes (Criminal Cases) State v. Albright, 298 N.W.2d 196 (Wis. App. 1980).
Chemical Tests of Other Substances for Alcohol Concentration Which Are Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:	
Blood:	Yes
Urine:	Yes
Other:	None
Adjudication of DWI Charges:	
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	<b>No</b> However, the court must approve dismissals of or amendments to DWI charges. WI ST § 967.055.
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI)	Yes

The court may order a pre-sentence investigation. WI ST § 972.15.
None
None
None
First refusal – Revocation 1 year (30 days mand); Second refusal (within 10 years) – Revocation 2 years (90 days mand);; Third or subsequent refusal – Revocation 3 years (120 days mand or 1 year mand if 2 or more priors within 5 years).WI ST § 343.10; WI ST § 343.305(9), (10).
Refusal While Transporting a Minor (< 16 years old) –Minimum and maximum license revocation periods are doubled. WI ST § 343.305(10)(b)(4m).Persons Under 21 – Revocation 6 months (15 days mand), or 12 months if driver was transporting a minor 16WI ST § 242.205(10)()
16. WI ST § 343.305(10)(em).
DWI: <u>First conviction</u> – Not less than \$150 or more than \$300; <u>Second conviction</u> (within 10 years) – Not less than 5 days or more than 6 months and not less than \$350 or more than \$1,100; <u>Third conviction</u> – Not less than 45 days or more than 1 year and not less than \$600 or more than \$2,000; <u>Fourth conviction</u> – Not less than 60 days or more than 1 year and not less than \$600 or more than \$2,000; <u>Fourth conviction</u> (within 5 years)(Class H felony) – Not less than 6 months or more than 6 years and not less than \$600 or more than \$10,000. <u>Fifth and sixth convictions</u> (Class H felony) – Not less than 6 months or more than 6 years and not less than

	<ul> <li><u>Seventh through ninth convictions</u> (Class G felony) – Not less than 3 years or more than 10 years and/or not more than \$25,000;</li> <li><u>Tenth or subsequent conviction</u> (Class F felony) – Not less than 4 years or more than 12 years, 6 months and/or not more than \$25,000.</li> <li>DWI – Great bodily harm (Class F felony): Not more than 12 years, 6 months and/or not more than \$25,000.</li> <li>DWI – Bodily harm – Not less than \$300 or more than \$25,000.</li> <li>DWI – Bodily harm – Not less than \$300 or more than \$25,000.</li> <li>DWI – Bodily harm – Not less than \$300 or more than \$2,000 and may be imprisoned for not less than 30 days or more than 1 year. If the offender has a prior conviction, then it is a Class H felony and punishable up to 6 years or a fine not exceeding \$10,000. WI ST § 346.65(3m), (3p).</li> <li>DWI with Minor &lt; 16 (felony) – Applicable minimum and maximum fines, forfeitures and imprisonment are doubled.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>BAC – Depending on the BAC, the applicable minimum and maximum fines, forfeitures and imprisonment are:</li> <li>.17199 – doubled;</li> <li>.20249 – tripled;</li> <li>≥ .25 – quadrupled.</li> </ul>
	WI ST § 346.63(1), (2); WI ST § 346.65(2), (3), (3m), (7); WI ST § 939.50; WI ST § 940.25.
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	DWI:First conviction – None, or 5 days if minor < 16 present;
	<b>DWI – Bodily harm – \$300</b> . WI ST § 346.65(3m).
Other Penalties:	
Community Service:	<b>Yes</b> WI ST § 346.65(2g).
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	Yes Direct compensation by the defendant to a victim for some types of pecuniary losses. WI ST § 346.65(2r)(a). In addition, the State has a victims' compensation fund.

	WI ST § 949.001 <i>et seq</i> .
Other:	<b>Surcharges</b> : Persons convicted of a DWI offense must pay a driver improvement surcharge of <b>\$365</b> , in addition to any other fine, forfeiture or assessment that may be im- posed, unless BAC < .08. WI ST § 346.655(1).
	In addition, under WI ST § 814.60, a defendant must pay \$163 to the clerk of court for all necessary filing, entering or recording. Additionally, under WI ST § 973.045, a defendant must pay a crime victim and witness assistance surcharge of \$67 for a misdemeanor conviction and \$92 for a felony conviction.
	<b>Traffic Safety School</b> : A defendant may be required to attend a "traffic safety school". WI ST § 345.60(3).
	<b>Visitation Program</b> : Offenders who have been convicted of an injury-related DWI offense under WI ST § 346.63(2) may be required to visit places that are concerned with the care and treatment of persons who have a substance abuse problem or who are being treated for DWI-related injuries. This requirement may be in lieu of all or part of a forfei- ture or in addition to any other sanction. WI ST § 346.65(2i).
	<b>Costs</b> : An offender may be required to pay the costs asso- ciated with arrest and trial. Such "costs" may also include payments to non-profit crime prevention and law enforce- ment organizations. WI ST § 973.06(1).
Administrative Licensing Actions:	
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:	
Administrative Per Se Law:	I. If the person has had two or fewer prior DWI offense convictions or refusals, the admin action is based on a "prohibited alcohol concentration" of $\geq .08 =$ Suspension 6 months; <sup>614</sup> If the person has had three or more previous DWI offense convictions or refusals, the administrative action is based on a "prohibited alcohol concentration" of $\geq .02 =$ Sus- pension 6 months. WI ST § 340.01(46m); WI ST § 343.305(7), (8).
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	

 $<sup>^{614}</sup>$  A restricted occupational license is available through the courts at any time. WI ST § 343.10(4); WI ST § 343.30(1q)(b)(2); WI ST § 343.305(8)(d). However, a person is not eligible for an occupational license if his/her license has been suspended or revoked for another offense within 1 year. WI ST § 343.10(2)(a)(1).

Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months,	DŴI:
Years, etc.):	<u>First offense</u> – <b>Revocation</b> not less than <b>6 months</b> or more
	than <b>9 months</b> ;
	Second offense (within 10 years) – Revocation not less
	than 1 year or more than 18 months;
	Subsequent offense – Revocation not less than 2 years or
	more than 3 years.
	<b>DWI – Great bodily harm – Revocation 2 years</b> . WI ST
	§ 343.31(3)(f).
	<b>DWI – Bodily harm – Revocation</b> not less than <b>1 year</b> or
	more than <b>2 years</b> . WI ST § 343.31(3)(e).
	<b>DWI with Minor &lt; 16</b> : <b>Revocation 4 years</b> . WI ST §
	343.31(3)(f).
	Persons Under 21 Years Old:
	Suspension – 3 months, or 6 months if transporting mi-
	nor < 16. WI ST § 343.30(1q); WI ST § 346.63(2m).
Mandatory Minimum Term of	DWI:
Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – None;
	<u>Second offense</u> $-$ <b>60 days</b> (if within 10 years) / <b>1 year</b> (if
	within 5 years);
	Subsequent offense – 45 days.
	<b>DWI – Great bodily harm – 120 days</b> . WI ST §
	343.31(3)(f).
	DWI – Bodily harm – 60 days.
	Persons Under 21 Years Old – None.
Other:	
Rehabilitation:	Yes
	Persons who are convicted of an injury-related DWI of-
	fense (without great bodily harm) or who refuse to submit
	to a chemical test under the implied consent law must
	submit to an alcohol assessment and comply with a driver safety plan. This plan may include a component concern-
	ing the effect that DWI offenses have had on either victim
	or a victim's family. There is a license suspension if a per-
	son does not comply with an alcohol/drug assessment
	(DWI screening), education or treatment program. WI ST
	§ 343.30(1q)(c), (d); WI ST § 343.305(10)(d).
Alcohol Education:	Yes
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes
	None
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	

Authorized by Specific Statutory	
Authority:	
Terms Upon Which Vehicle Will Be Released:	
Other:	
Miscellaneous Sanctions Not Included Elsewhere:	Child Endangerment: The maximum and minimum imprisonment, forfeiture and fine sanctions are doubled when a person violates the DWI law with a minor < 16 years of age. WI ST § 346.65(2)(f), (3).For any revocation period, the court shall extend the revo- cation by the number of days to which the court sentences 
Ignition Interlock:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory
Conditions of Use:	Mandatory – For a first offense with BAC of 0.15 orhigher, and all second or subsequent offenses, all refusalsand all vehicles owned by the offender must be equippedwith an ignition interlock device for not less than 1 yearnor more than the maximum period of license revocation.The ignition interlock restriction period begins on the dateany license is issued.WI ST § 343.301(1)(g), (2m); WI ST § 343.305(10m).
Sobriety Checkpoints:	
Permitted or Prohibited:	Prohibited WI ST § 349.02.
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:	
Homicide by Vehicle:	
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Homicide by Intoxicated Use of Vehicle WI ST § 940.09.
Sanctions:	
Criminal Sanction:	<u>First conviction</u> – Class D felony; <u>Subsequent conviction</u> – Class C felony.
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	<u>First conviction</u> – Not more than 25 years and/or not more than \$100,000; <u>Subsequent conviction</u> – Not more than 40 years and/or not more than \$100,000.         WI ST § 939.50.
Mandatory Minimum Term:	None
Administrative Licensing Action:	
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	Revocation

I anoth of Torms of Liosnain a	5
Length of Term of Licensing Withdrawal:	<b>5 years</b> WI ST § 343.10; WI ST § 343.31(3)(c).
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	120 days
of License Withdrawal:	A restricted occupational license may be issued after these
of Electise Whitehawai.	periods. WI ST § 343.31(3m).
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for 1 man- datory year (3 years if transporting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has an alcohol con- centration $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of an intoxicant; (3) is under the influence of any drug which renders the person incapable of driving safely; or (4) refuses to submit
	to a chemical test for either alcohol or drug concentrations.
	For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above-listed items, the dis- qualification is for life (10 years mand).
	In addition, a CMV operator who has an alcohol concen- tration >.0 must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours and pay a forfeiture of \$10.
	WI ST § 343.305(2), (3)(a), (4), (7)(b); WI ST § 343.31; WI ST § 343.315; WI ST § 346.63(5)(a), (6)(a), (7)(a); WI ST § 346.65(2j), (2u)(a), (3m); WI ST § 885.235(1)(d); WI ST § 940.25.
Deising While Liggers Companyed at an	
Driving While License Suspended or Bayakad Whata the Basis Was a DWI	
<u>Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI</u> Offense:	
<u>onense.</u>	
Sanction:	
Criminal:	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Up to <b>1 year</b> and/or not more than <b>\$2,500</b> . WI ST § 343.44(2)(as).
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment:	None
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation WI ST § 343.30(1g).
Length of Term of License Withdrawal Action:	<u>First, second or third offense</u> – Not more than <b>6 months</b> – (Revocation or Suspension) <u>Fourth or subsequent offense</u> – <b>6 months</b> (Revocation)
Mandatory Term of License Withdrawal Action:	None <sup>615</sup>
Other:	<b>Impoundment</b> : An offender's vehicle may be impounded. The length of such impoundment is determined by the court. WI ST § 343.44(4).

 $<sup>^{615}</sup>$  For a first, second or third offense, licensing action is discretionary with the court. However, even for a fourth or subsequent offense, the court may order a period of revocation of less than 6 months provided it "places its reasons for ordering the lesser period of revocation on the record." WI ST § 343.30(1q)(a), (b).

Habitual Traffic Offender Law:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WI ST § 351.01 <i>et seq.</i>
Grounds for Being Declared an	Four or more serious offenses <sup>616</sup> or 12 or more minor mov-
Habitual Offender:	ing violations within 5 years. WI ST § 351.02.
Term of License Rev While Under	<b>5 years</b> WI ST § 351.025(1). A hardship license may be
Habitual Offender Status:	issued after 2 years. WI ST § 351.07.
Type of Criminal Offense if Convicted	Misdemeanor
on Charges of Driving While on	
Habitual Offender Status:	
Sanctions Following a Conviction of	
Driving While on Habitual Offender	
Status: Imprisonment (Term).Fine:	Not more than <b>180 days</b> and not more than <b>\$5,000</b> . WI
mprisonnent (Term).rme.	ST § 351.08.
Mandatory Minimum Term of	The terms are mandatory.
Imprisonment/Fine:	The terms are mandatory.
Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:	
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on	
Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:	
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WI ST § 346.71(2).
BAC Chemical Test Is Given to the	
the Following Persons:	
Driver:	Yes
Vehicle Passengers:	No
Pedestrian:	Yes (14 years or older)
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages	
Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> WI ST § 125.02(8m); WI ST § 125.07(1), (4).
Sale/Purchase:	
Minimum Age (Years)	<b>21</b> Applies to possession or consumption in public places
Possession/Consumption:	unless accompanied by a parent or guardian
	WI ST § 125.07(1), (4).
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal	
Actions:	
State Has a Dram Shop Law	Yes (Minors only)
(Yes/No):	WI ST § 125.035.
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has	Sorenson v. Jarvis, 350 N.W.2d 108 (Wis. 1984).
Been Adopted Via a Change to the	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>616</sup> These include homicide involving the use of a vehicle, reckless driving, DWI, and refusal. WI ST § 351.02(1)(a).

1	
Ver (Miner entr) WI ST § 125 025	
prevent the illegal consumption of alcohol beverages by an underage person on premises owned by the adult or under the adult's control. Additionally, no adult may encourage or contribute to underage drinking. This is a misdemea-	
Action Against Owner or Employees). WI ST § 125.07(1)(a)(3), (4).	
<b>Misdemeanor</b> WI ST § 125.07(2)(a), (b); WI ST § 939.60.	
Not more than <b>60 days</b> and/or not less than <b>\$100</b> or more than <b>\$500</b> . WI ST § 125.07(2)(b).	
Yes	
Suspension /Revocation	
WI ST § 125.12.	
Suspension – Not more than 90 days;	
<b>Revocation</b> – At least <b>12 months</b> .	
WI ST § 125.12(b).	
Civil Violation/Misdemeanor <sup>617</sup>	
Second offense (within 30 months) (Misdemeanor) – Not	
	underage person on premises owned by the adult or under the adult's control. Additionally, no adult may encourage or contribute to underage drinking. This is a misdemeanor, punishable in the same fashion as below (Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees). WI ST § 125.07(1)(a)(3), (4).         Misdemeanor WI ST § 125.07(2)(a), (b); WI ST § 939.60.         Not more than 60 days and/or not less than \$100 or more than \$500. WI ST § 125.07(2)(b).         Yes         Suspension /Revocation         WI ST § 125.07(2)(b).         Yes         Suspension /Revocation         WI ST § 125.12.         Suspension – Not more than 90 days;         Revocation – At least 12 months.         WI ST § 125.12(b).         Civil Violation/Misdemeanor <sup>617</sup> WI ST § 125.07(1)(a), (b); WI ST § 939.60.         First offense (Forfeiture) – Not more than \$500;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>617</sup> A person who sells alcoholic beverages to a minor under 18 years old where the minor dies or suffers great bodily harm as a result of consuming such beverages is subject to the following sanctions: <u>Death</u> (Class G felony) – not more than 10 years and/or not more than \$25,000; <u>Injury</u> (Class H felony) – not more than 6 years and/or not more than \$10,000. WI ST § 125.075; WI ST § 939.50.

	Third offense (within 30 months) (Misdemeanor) – Not more than 90 days and/or not more than \$1,000; Fourth or subsequent offense (within 30 months) (Misdemeanor) – Not more than 9 months and/or not more than \$10,000. WI ST § 125.07(1)(b)(2).
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:	
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes for second and subsequent offenses Suspension WI ST § 125.07(1)(b)(3).
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	First offenseNone;Second offense(within 12 months) – Suspension for notmore than 3 days;Third offense(within 12 months) – Suspension for not lessthan 3 days or more than 10 days;Fourth offense(within 12 months) – Suspension for notless than 15 days or more than 30 days.WI ST § 125.07(1)(b)(3).
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:	
Open Container Law (Yes/No): Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	Yes         WI ST § 346.935(2), (3).           Yes         WI ST § 346.935(1).
Anti-Consumption Law (165/100).	<b>ICS</b> WIDI § 340.733(1).

STATE	WYOMING	
General Reference:	Wyoming Statutes Annotated	
Basis for a DWI Charge:		
Standard DWI Offense:	Under the influence of alcohol WY ST § 31-5-233(b)(ii)(A).	
Illegal Per Se Law (BAC/BrAC):	$\geq .08^{618}$ WY ST § 31-5-233(b)(i).	
Presumption (BAC/BrAC):	None	
Types of Drugs/Drugs and Alcohol:	Under the influence of a controlled substance or a combi- nation of alcohol and any controlled substance. <sup>619</sup> WY ST § 31-5-233(b)(ii)(B), (C).	
Chemical Breath Tests for Alcohol Concentration:		
Preliminary Breath Test Law:	No	
Implied Consent Law:		
Arrest Required (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WY ST § 31-6-102(a)(i); WY ST § 31-6-108(a).	
Implied Consent Law Applies to Drugs (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WY ST § 31-6-102(a)(i).	
Refusal to Submit to Chemical Test Admitted into Evidence:	<b>Yes</b> (Criminal and Civil Cases) WY ST § 31-6-105(f); WY ST § 31-6-108(k).	
<u>Chemical Tests of Other Substances for</u> <u>Alcohol Concentration Which Are</u> <u>Authorized Under the Implied Consent Law:</u>		
Blood:	Yes WY ST § 31-6-102.	
Urine:	Yes	
Other:	None	
Adjudication of DWI Charges:		
Mandatory Adjudication Law (Yes/No):	No	
Anti-Plea-Bargaining Statute (Yes/No):	Yes A DWI charge may not be reduced or dismissed, un- less the State in open court moves or files a statement con- taining supporting facts to indicate that there is insufficient evidence to support the original DWI charge. WY ST § 31-5-233(j).	
Pre-Sentencing Investigation Law (PSI) (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> No person charged with a felony and no person charged with a misdemeanor (unless the court directs oth- erwise) shall be placed on probation or released under sus- pension of sentence until a pre-sentence investigation re-	

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>618</sup> Standard: Grams of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood, grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath or grams of alcohol per 75 milliliters of urine. WY ST § 31-5-233(a)(i).
 <sup>619</sup> "Controlled substance" includes any drug or psychoactive substance, or any combination of these substances, capable of impairing a person's physical or mental faculties. WY ST § 31-5-233(a)(ii); WY ST § 31-6-101(a)(ii).

### WYOMING

	port is completed and presented to and considered by the court. WY ST § 7-13-303.	
Sanctions for Refusal to Submit to a Chemical Test:		
Refusal to Take a <u>Preliminary Breath</u> <u>Test</u> :	N/A	
Refusal to Take <u>Implied Consent</u> <u>Chemical Test:</u>		
Criminal Sanction (Fine/Jail):	None	
Administrative Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	<u>First refusal</u> – Suspension 6 months; <u>Subsequent refusal</u> (within 5 years) – Suspension 1 year, 6 months (mandatory). WY ST § 31-6-107.	
	<b>Note</b> : If a person refuses to submit to chemical test but pleads guilty to a DWI offense within 10 days of arraign- ment, the suspension for refusal shall not take effect. WY ST § 31-6-107(a)(iii).	
	Persons Under 21 Years Old – <u>First refusal</u> – Suspension 90 days;	
	Second or subsequent refusal – Suspension and use of ignition interlock. WY ST § 31-6-108(n).	
Sanctions Following a Conviction for a DWI		
Offense:		
Criminal Sanctions:		
Imprisonment/Fine:	First conviction (misdemeanor) – Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$750; Second conviction (within 10 years)(misdemeanor) – Not less than 7 days or more than 6 months and may be fined not less than \$200 or more than \$750; Third conviction (within 10 years) (misdemeanor) – Not less than 30 days or more than 6 months and may be fined not less than \$750 or more than 6 months and may be fined not less than \$750 or more than \$3,000; Fourth or subsequent conviction (within 10 years) (felony) – Not more than 2 years and/or not more than \$10,000. WY ST § 31-5-233(e).DWI – Serious Bodily Injury: Distance of the point	
	<u>First conviction</u> (felony) – Not more than <b>10 years</b> and/or not less than <b>\$2,000</b> or more than <b>\$5,000</b> ; <u>Subsequent conviction</u> (felony) – Not more than <b>20 years</b> . WY ST § 31-5-233(h).	
	DWI – Child passenger:	

	First conviction (misdemeanor) – Not more than 1 year; Subsequent conviction (felony) – Not more than 5 years. WY ST § 31-5-233(m).Persons Under 21:First conviction – Not more than \$750; Second conviction (within 1 year) – Not more than 1 month and/or not more than \$750; Third or subsequent conviction (within 2 years) – Not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$750. WY ST § 31-5-234.	
Mandatory Minimum Term:	First conviction – None;         Second conviction (within 5 years) – 7 days;         Third or subsequent conviction (within 5 years) – 30 days         or 15 days if the offender completes an impatient treatment program.         WY ST § 31-5-233(e).         Persons Under 21 – None.	
Other Penalties:		
Community Service:	Community service may be required as a condition of pro- bation. WY ST § 7-13-304.	
Restitution (e.g., Victim's Fund)	The defendant shall be ordered to pay restitution to a vic- tim. WY ST § 7-9-102. The State has a Victims' Compensation Act. WY ST § 1-40-101 <i>et seq</i> .	
Other:	<ul> <li>Cost of Incarceration: A DWI offender sentenced to confinement may be required to pay the local government for the cost of their incarceration. This requirement does not apply if the offender does not have the ability to pay for such cost. WY ST § 7-13-109.</li> <li>Surcharge: A surcharge of not less than \$150 or more than \$350 (first offense) or not less than \$200 or more than \$400 (subsequent offense) is assessed against convicted DWI offenders. This surcharge is used to help finance the Victims' Compensation Fund. WY ST § 1-40-119(a).</li> </ul>	
Administrative Licensing Actions:		
Pre-DWI Conviction Licensing Action:		
Administrative Per Se Law:	≥.08 – Suspension 90 days; <sup>620</sup> WY ST § 31-6-102; WY ST § 31-6-103.	
Other:	Persons Under 21 Years Old: WY ST § 31-5-234First violation – Suspension 90 days;Second violation (within 2 years) – Suspension 6 months.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>620</sup> For a first admin per se action, the 90-day suspension may be modified to allow for limited driving privileges in hardship situations. WY ST § 31-6-103(b); WY ST § 31-7-105(d).

	WY ST § 31-7-128(h).
	An offender is eligible for hardship driving privileges. However, such privileges can only be granted once within a 5-year period. WY ST § 31-7-105.
Post DWI Conviction:	
Licensing Action:	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	Suspension/Revocation
	DWI Serious Bodily Injury conviction – Revocation
	WY ST § 31-7-105; WY ST § 31-7-127(a)(ii); WY ST § 31-7-128(b).
Term of Withdrawal (Days, Months, Years, etc.):	<u>First conviction</u> – Suspension 90 days; <sup>621</sup> <u>Second conviction</u> (within 10 years) – Suspension 1 year;
	<u>Third or subsequent conviction</u> – <b>Revocation 3 years</b> . DWI Serious bodily injury conviction – <b>Revocation 1</b>
	year.
	WY ST § 31-5-233(h); WY ST § 31-7-105; WY ST § 31- 7-127; WY ST § 31-7-128
Mandatory Minimum Term of Withdrawal:	<u>First offense</u> – <b>None</b> (hardship driving privileges are available); <sup>622</sup>
	<u>Second offense</u> (within 10 years) – <b>1 year</b> ; <u>Third and subsequent offenses</u> (within 10 years) – <b>3 years</b> .
	<u>DWI Serious Bodily Injury Offenses</u> – 1 year
Rehabilitation:	Yes       I. The court may suspend part or all of the discretionary
	portion of an imprisonment sentence under if the defen- dant agrees to pursue and completes an alcohol education
	or treatment program as prescribed by the court. II. The mandatory incarceration sanction for a third or
	subsequent DWI offender may be reduced from 30 days to 15 days if the defendant completes an impatient treatment
	program. III. In order to obtain hardship driving privileges, the de-
	fendant must agree to pursue and complete an alcohol education and treatment program prescribed by the driver
	licensing agency.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>621</sup> A person convicted of a DWI offense shall have the suspension period for this offense reduced by 90 days if such person was also subject to a suspension under the admin per se law. WY ST § 31-6-102(e).
 <sup>622</sup> Limited Driving Privileges: Persons who have had their licenses <u>suspended</u> may be granted limited driving privileges based on

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>622</sup> Limited Driving Privileges: Persons who have had their licenses <u>suspended</u> may be granted limited driving privileges based on "undue hardship." Such privileges can only be granted once in a 5-year period. In addition, such privileges cannot be granted to anyone either who has been convicted of a drunk-driving offense within a 5-year period or who has had his/her driving privileges <u>revoked</u>. For drunk-driving law violators, these privileges can only be granted on the condition that the offender agrees to pursue and complete either an alcohol education or treatment program. WY ST § 31-7-105(f).

	WY ST § 31-5-233; WY ST § 31-7-105(f)(iii).	
Alcohol Education:	Yes	
Alcohol Treatment:	Yes	
Vehicle Impoundment/Confiscation:	No	
Authorized by Specific Statutory Authority:	No	
Ignition Interlock:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Permitted	
Type of Law (Mandatory or Permissive):	Mandatory	
Conditions of Use:	First conviction (BAC $\geq$ .15) – operate only motor vehicles equipped with ignition interlock devices for 6 months from the date of conviction; Second conviction – operate only vehicles equipped with an ignition interlock device for a period of 1 year from the 	
Sobriety Checkpoints:		
Permitted or Prohibited:	Prohibited WY ST § 7-17-102.	
remitted of Fromoted.	110mbittu (f) 1 51 g / -1 / -102.	
Other Criminal Actions Related to DWI:		
Homicide by Vehicle:		
State Has Such a Law:	Yes Aggravated homicide by vehicle WY ST § 6-2-106	
Sanctions:		
Criminal Sanction:	Felony	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not more than <b>20 years</b> . WY ST § 6-2-106(b).	
Mandatory Minimum Term/Fine:	None	
Administrative Licensing Action:		
Licensing Authorized and Type of Action:	<b>Revocation</b> WY ST § 6-2-106(c); WY ST § 31-7-127(a)(vii), (b).	

Length of Term of Licensing	1 year	
Withdrawal:		
Mandatory Action—Minimum Length	1 year	
of License Withdrawal:		
DWI Offenses and Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV)/Commercial Driver's Licenses (CDL):	A person is disqualified from operating a CMV for not less than 1 mandatory year (not less than 3 years if trans- porting hazardous materials) if, while driving a CMV, that person: (1) has an alcohol concentration $\geq$ .04; (2) is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance; or (3) refuses to submit to a chemical test for alcohol concentra-	
	tion.	
	The disqualification provision applies only to a refusal to submit to a chemical test for an alcohol concentration; however, the CMV implied consent provision applies to refusals to submit to chemical tests for both an alcohol concentration and the presence of controlled drugs.	
	For a subsequent violation or a combination of two or more violations of any of the above- listed items, the dis- qualification is for life (10 years mand).	
	In addition, a CMV operator who has any alcohol in the system must be placed out-of-service for 24 hours.	
	WY ST § 31-7-136; WY ST § 31-7-305; WY ST § 3-7- 306; WY ST § 31-7-307.	
Driving While License Suspended or Revoked Where the Basis Was a DWI Offense:		
Sanction:		
Criminal:	Misdemeanor WY ST § 31-7-134(c).	
Imprisonment (Term)/Fine:	Not less than 7 days or more than 6 months and not less	
	than <b>\$200</b> or more than <b>\$750</b> . WY ST § 31-7-134(c).	
Mandatory Minimum Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	<b>7 days<sup>623</sup>/\$200</b> WY ST § 31-7-134(c).	
Type of Licensing Action (Susp/Rev):	None additional	
Habitual Traffic Offender Law:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>623</sup> If the offender is under 21 years old and the alcohol concentration for the drunk-driving offense was between .02 and .08, that person is not subject to the mandatory 7-day jail term but, is instead subject to a mandatory administrative license suspension for 30 days. WY ST § 31-7-134(c)

Other State Laws Related To Alcohol Use:		
Laws Requiring BAC Chemical Tests on Persons Killed in Traffic Accidents:		
State Has Such a Law (Yes/No):	No	
Laws Establishing the Minimum Ages Concerning Alcoholic Beverages:		
Minimum Age (Years) Sale/Purchase:	<b>21</b> WY ST § 12-6-101.	
Minimum Age (Years) Possession/Consumption:	<b>21</b> WY ST § 12-6-101(c). There are exemptions for employment, by order of a parent, as part of religious services or for medicinal purposes.	
Dram Shop Laws and Related Legal Actions:		
State Has a Dram Shop Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> (Limited to minors and habitual drunkards, with notice) <sup><math>624</math></sup> WI ST § 12-8-301.	
"Dram Shop Law" Concept Has Been Adopted Via a Change to the Common Law Rule by Action of the Highest Court of Record in the State (Case Citation):	No	
Dram Shop Actions-Social Hosts:	<b>Yes</b> (Limited) Social hosts who serve alcoholic beverages illegally, such as to persons who are under 21 years old and who are not their child or ward, etc., may be liable for the resulting damages. WY ST § 12-8-301(c).	
Social Host-Criminal Enforcement:	Any person who sells, furnishes, gives or causes to be sold, furnished or given away any alcoholic liquor or malt beverage to any person under the age of 21 years, who is not his legal ward, medical patient or member of his own immediate family, is guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by not more than 6 months and/or not more than \$750. WY ST § 12-6-101; WY ST § 12-8-101.	
Criminal Action Against Owner or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> (Limited Application) It is illegal for licensees to sell sealed packages of alcohol- ic beverages to intoxicated persons in certain "drive-in areas." WY ST § 12-5-301(a)(v); WY ST § 12-8-101.	
Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$750</b> . WY ST § 12-8-101.	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>624</sup> Under WI ST § 12-5-502, a licensee who serves alcoholic beverages to an habitual drunkard after having been notified not to do so may be held liable for the support of the habitual drunkard's spouse or dependant.

Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Intoxicated Patrons:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> <b>Suspension</b> or <b>Revocation</b> <sup>625</sup> WY ST § 12-7-101; WY ST § 12-7-102.	
Length of Term of License Withdrawal:	<b>Revocation</b> – No time period specified; <b>Suspension</b> – For a period not to exceed the balance of the term for which the license was issued. Suspension may occur if it appears inadvisable to revoke a license. WY ST § 12-7-102.	
Criminal Actions Against Owners or Employees of Establishments that Serve Alcoholic Beverages or the Wrong Type of Alcoholic Beverage to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
Type of Criminal Action:	<b>Misdemeanor</b> WY ST § 12-5-301; WY ST § 12-6-101; WY ST § 12-8-101.	
Term of Imprisonment/Fine:	Not more than <b>6 months</b> and/or not more than <b>\$750</b> . WY ST § 12-8-101.	
Administrative Actions Against Owners of Establishments That Serve Alcoholic Beverages to Those Persons Under the Minimum Legal Drinking Age:		
License to Serve Alcoholic Beverages Withdrawn (Yes/No):	Yes Suspension (sufficient cause) or revocation (gross viola- tion). WY ST § 12-7-101.	
Length of Term License Withdrawal:	Revocation – No time period specified; Suspension – For a period not to exceed the balance of the term for which the license was issued. Suspension may occur if it appears inadvisable to revoke a license. WY ST § 12-7-102.	
Anti-Happy Hour Laws/Regulations:	No	
Laws Prohibiting (1) the Possession of Open Containers of Alcoholic Beverages and (2) the Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages in the Passenger Compartment of a Vehicle:		

 $<sup>\</sup>overline{}^{625}$  Suspension occurs where there is sufficient cause; revocation occurs where there is gross violation. WY ST § 12-7-101.

#### WYOMING

Open Container Law (Yes/No):	Yes WY ST § 31-5-235.	
Anti-Consumption Law (Yes/No):	<b>Yes</b> WY ST § 31-5-235.	

DOT HS 811 456 April 2011



U.S. Department of Transportation National Highway Traffic Safety Administration

